Swaziland



Demographic and Health Survey

2007

Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey 2006-07

Central Statistical Office Mbabane, Swaziland

Macro International Inc. Calverton, Maryland USA

May 2008



This report summarises the findings of the 2006 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) carried out by the Swaziland Central Statistical Office (CSO). The SDHS is part of the worldwide MEASURE Demographic and Health Surveys (DHS) pogram, funded by the United States Agency for International Development (USAID). Most of the funds for the local costs of the survey were provided by the Government of Swaziland and multiple donors, namely the National Emergency Response Council on HIV/AIDS (NERCHA), UNAIDS/Swaziland, UNFPA/Swaziland, UNICEF/Swaziland, Italian Corporation the World Health Organization, and Population Services International (PSI). The United States Agency for International Development (USAID) provided additional funds through the MEASURE DHS project to support the local costs and the technical assistance provided by Macro International Inc. Through an arrangment with Macro, the Global Clinical Virology Laboratories (GCVL) of South Africa also provided assistance with the training and laboratory processing for the HIV testing component of the survey. The Human Sciences Research Council (HSRC) of South Africa assisted during the design phase of the survey.

The opinions expressed herein are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of USAID or other funding partners.

Additional information about the survey may be obtained from Central Statistical Office (CSO), Ministry of Economic Planning and Development, P.O. Box 456 Mbabane, Swaziland H100 (Telephone 268-404-2151; Fax 268-404-3300; e-mail: statistics@africaonline.co.sz).

Additional information about the DHS program may be obtained by writing to: MEASURE DHS, Macro International Inc., 11785 Beltsville Drive, Suite 300, Calverton, MD 20705, USA (Telephone 301-572-0200; Fax 301-572-0999; e-mail: reports@orcmacro.com).

Suggested citation:

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland], and Macro International Inc. 2008. *Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey 2006-07*. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office and Macro International Inc.

CONTENTS

Page

TABLES AND FIGURES	xi
PREFACE	xxi
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS	xxiii
MAP OF SWAZILAND	xxviii

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION Henry Ginindza and Rachel Masuku

1.1	History, Geography, and Economy	. 1
1.2	Population	. 2
1.3	Population, Family Planning, and HIV Policies and Programmes	. 2
1.4	Objectives	. 3
1.5	Orgnisation of the Survey	. 3
1.6	Sample Design	. 4
1.7	Questionnaires	. 4
1.8	Anaemia and HIV Testing	. 5
1.9	Pretest, Training, and Fieldwork	. 5
1.10	HIV Testing	. 6
1.11	Data Processing	. 7
1.12	Response Rates	. 7

CHAPTER 2 HOUSEHOLD POPULATION AND HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS Petronella Mamba

2.1	Populat	ion by Age And Sex	9
2.2	Househ	old Composition	10
2.3	Education	on of the Household	11
	2.3.1	Educational Attainment	11
	2.3.2	School Attendance Rates	13
	2.3.3	Grade Repetition and Dropout Rates	15
2.4	Househ	old Environment	17
	2.4.1	Drinking Water	17
	2.4.2	Household Sanitation Facilities	19
	2.4.3	Housing Characteristics	19
2.5	Househ	old Possessions	22
2.6	Wealth	Index	23
2.7	Birth Re	gistration	24

CHAPTER 3 CHARACTERISTICS OF RESPONDENTS Henry Ginindza and Petronella Mamba

3.1	Characteristics of Survey Respondents	27
3.2	Educational Attainment by Background Characteristics	30
3.3	Literacy	31
3.4	Access to Mass Media	34
3.5	Employment	39
3.6	Occupation	44
3.7	Earnings and Type of Employment	47

CHAPTER 4 FERTILITY LEVELS, TRENDS, AND DIFFERENTIALS Dudu Dlamini

Introduction	49
Current Fertility	49
Fertility Differentials	50
Fertility Trends	51
Children Ever Born and Living	53
Birth Intervals	54
Age at First Birth	55
Teenage Pregnancy and Motherhood	57
	Introduction Current Fertility Fertility Differentials Fertility Trends Children Ever Born and Living Birth Intervals Age at First Birth Teenage Pregnancy and Motherhood

CHAPTER 5 FAMILY PLANNING Marjorie Mavuso

5.1	Knowledge of Contraceptive Methods	59
5.2	Ever Use of Contraception	61
5.3	Current Use of Contraceptive Methods	64
5.4	Number of Children at First Use of Contraception	69
5.5	Use of Social Marketing Brands	70
5.6	Disposal of Condoms	71
5.7	Knowledge of the Fertile Period	71
5.8	Timing of Sterilisation	71
5.9	Source of Contraception	71
5.10	Cost of Contraceptives	72
5.11	Informed Choice	73
5.12	Future Use of Contraception	75
5.13	Reasons for Non-use of Contraception	75
5.14	Preferred Method of Contraception for Future Use	76
5.15	Exposure to Family Planning Messages	76
5.16	Contact of Nonusers with Family Planning Providers	78
5.17	Husband's Knowledge of His Wife's Use of Contraception	79
5.18	Male Attitudes about Contraceptive Use	80

CHAPTER 6 OTHER DETERMINANTS OF FERTILITY Sri Poedjastoeti

6.1	Current Marital Status	83
6.2	Polygyny	84
6.3	Age at First Marriage	86
6.4	Age at First Sexual Intercourse	88
6.5	Recent Sexual Activity	
6.6	Postpartum Amenorrhoea, Abstinence, and Insusceptibility	94
6.7	Termination of Exposure to Pregnancy	96

CHAPTER 7 FERTILITY PREFERENCES Dudu Dlamini

7.1	Desire for More Children	97
7.2	Desire to Limit Childbearing by Background Characteristics	98
7.3	Need for Family Planning Services	99
7.4	Ideal Number of Children	101
7.5	Mean Ideal Number of Children by Background Characteristics	103
7.6	Fertility Planning Status	103
7.7	Wanted Fertility Rates	104

CHAPTER 8 INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY Sri Poedjastoeti

8.1	Data Quality	107
8.2	Levels and Trends in Infant and Child Mortality	108
8.3	Socio-economic and Demographic Differentials in Infant and Child	
	Mortality	110
8.4	Perinatal Mortality	112
8.5	High-Risk Fertility Behaviour	113

CHAPTER 9 MATERNAL HEALTH Nhlanhla M. Nhlabatsi

9.1	Antenatal Care	115
9.2	Number of ANC Visits, Timing of First Visit, and Source Where ANC	
	Received	116
9.3	Components of Antenatal Care	117
9.4	Tetanus Toxoid Injections	119
9.5	Place of Delivery	120
9.6	Assistance during Delivery	121
9.7	Postnatal Care	123
9.8	Problems in Accessing Health Care	125

CHAPTER 10 CHILD HEALTH Zodwa Dlamini-Mthethwa

10.1	Child's Size at Birth	127
10.2	Vaccination Coverage	
	10.2.1 Collection of Data	
	10.2.2 Level and Trend in Vaccination Coverage	
	10.2.3 Vaccination Coverage by Background Characteristics	
10.3	Acute Respiratory Infection and Fever	
10.4	Diarrhoeal Disease	
	10.4.1 Prevalence of Diarrhoea	
	10.4.2 Treatment of Diarrhoea	
	10.4.3 Feeding Practices	
10.5	Knowledge of ORS Packets	
10.6	Stool Disposal	

CHAPTER 11 NUTRITION OF CHILDREN AND ADULTS Nelisiwe Sikhosana

11.1	Nutritional Status of Children	141
	11.1.1 Measurement of Nutritional Status among Young Children	141
	11.1.2 Results of Data Collection	141
	11.1.3 Nutritional Status Indices	143
11.2	Initiation of Breastfeeding	145
11.3	Breastfeeding Status by Age	146
11.4	Duration and Frequency of Breastfeeding	148
11.5	Dietary Diversity among Young Children	149
	11.5.1 Foods and Liquids Consumed by Infants and Young Children	149
	11.5.2 Infant and Young Child Feeding (IYCF) Practices	150
11.6	Use of Iodized Salt	152
11.7	Prevalence of Anaemia in Children	153
	11.7.1 Children Age 6-69 Months	154
	11.7.2 Children Age 5-11 and 12-14 Years	155
11.8	Micronutrient Intake among Children	157
	11.8.1 Consumption of Vitamin A-rich and Iron-rich Foods	157
11.9	Nutritional Status of Women and Men	160
11.10	Foods Consumed by Mothers	162
11.11	Prevalence of Anaemia in Women and Men	163
11.12	Micronutrient Intake among Mothers	166
	-	

CHAPTER 12 MALARIA AND OTHER HEALTH ISSUES Africa Magongo

12.1	Malaria .		169
	12.1.1	Ownership and Use of Mosquito Nets	169
	12.1.2	Intermittent Preventive Treatment (IPT) by Women during	
		Pregnancy	172

	12.1.3 Prompt Treatment of Fever in Children12	74
	12.1.4 Indoor Residual Spraying12	75
12.2	Male Circumcision	75
12.3	Health Insurance Coverage	78
12.4	Knowledge and Attitudes Towards Tuberculosis	79
12.5	Use of Tobacco	81

CHAPTER 13 HIV/AIDS-RELATED KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDES, AND BEHAVIOUR Rejoice Nkambule

13.1	Introduc	ction	183
13.2	HIV/AID	OS Knowledge, Transmission, and Prevention	183
	13.2.1	Awareness of HIV and AIDS	183
	13.2.2	Knowledge of HIV Prevention	184
	13.2.3	Rejection of Misconceptions about HIV/AIDS	186
13.3	Knowled	dge of Prevention of Mother-to-Child Transmission of HIV	188
13.4	Attitude	s Towards People Living With AIDS	190
13.5	Attitude	s towards Negotiating Safer Sex	192
13.6	Attitude	s Towards Condom Education for Youth	193
13.7	Higher-I	Risk Sex	193
	13.7.1	Multiple Partners and Condom Use	193
	13.7.2	Condom Use and Knowledge of Source	196
13.8	Coverag	e of HIV Testing and Counselling	197
13.9	Self-Rep	oorting of Sexually Transmitted Infections	201
13.10	Prevaler	nce of Medical Injections	204
13.11	HIV/AIC	OS Knowledge and Sexual Behaviour among Youth	205
	13.11.1	HIV/AIDS-Related Knowledge among Young Adults	205
	13.11.2	Knowledge of Condom Sources among Young Adults	207
	13.11.3	Age at First Sex	207
	13.11.4	Condom Use at First Sex	208
	13.11.5	Abstinence and Premarital Sex	209
	13.11.6	Higher-Risk Sexual Intercourse and Condom Use among	
		Young People	210
	13.11.7	Cross-Generational Sexual Partners	213
	13.11.8	Drunkenness during Sexual Intercourse among Young People	213
	13.11.9	HIV Testing and Counselling among Young People	215

CHAPTER 14 HIV PREVALENCE AND ASSOCIATED FACTORS Rachel Masuku

14.1	Coverag	e of HIV Testing	. 217
14.2	HIV Pre	valence	. 221
	14.2.1	HIV Prevalence by Age	. 221
	14.2.2	HIV Prevalence by Residence, Region, and Wealth	222
	14.2.3	HIV Prevalence by Education and Employment	. 224
	14.2.4	HIV Prevalence by Sociodemographic Characteristics	225
	14.2.5	HIV Prevalence by Sexual Behaviour Indicators	228

14.3	HIV Prevalence by Other Characteristics Related to HIV Risk	233
14.4	HIV Prevalence and Male Circumcision	235
14.5	HIV Prevalence among Youth	235
14.6	HIV Prevalence among Couples	238
CHAPTER 15	ADULT AND MATERNAL MORTALITY Ann A. Way	
15.1	Data	239
15.2	Direct Estimates of Adult Mortality	240
15.3	Direct Estimates of Maternal Mortality	241
CHAPTER 16	WOMEN'S EMPOWERMENT AND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH OUTCOMES Rachel Masuku	
16.1	Employment and Form of Earnings	243
	16.1.1 Women's Control Over Their Own Earnings and Relative	245
	16.1.2 Control over Husband's Earnings	245
16.2	Woman's Participation in Decisionmaking	240
16.2	Attitudes Towards Wife Beating	250
16.5	Attitudes Towards Refusing Sex with Husband	253
16.5	Women's Empowerment Indicators	256
16.6	Current Use of Contracention by Women's Status	250
16.7	Ideal Family Size and Unmet Need By Women's Status	258
16.8	Women's Status and Reproductive Health Care	259
16.9	Early Childhood Mortality Rates by Women's Status	260
CHAPTER 17	ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN	
	/ unos Zwanc	
17.1	Children's Living Arrangements and Orphanhood	263
17.2	Orphans and Vulnerable Children	264
17.3	Social and Economic Situation of Orphaned and Vulnerable Children	266
	17.3.1 School Attendance by Survivorship of Parents and OVC Status	266
	17.3.2 Basic Material Needs	267
17.4	Orphans Not Living with Siblings	268
17.5	Underweight Orphans and Vulnerable Children	268
17.6	Early Sexual Intercourse	269
17.7	Succession Planning	270
17.8	vvidows Dispossessed of Property	2/1
17.9	External Support for Very Sick Persons	2/1
17.10	External Support for Orphans and Vulnerable Children	273

CHAPTER 18 YOUTH Africa Magongo and Nelisiwe Sikhosana

18.1	Caregiver	276
18.2	Supervision Going to and from School and at School	277
18.3	Knowledge and Attitudes about Sex	279
18.4	Knowledge and Attitudes about HIV/AIDS	281
18.5	Exposure to Media Messages on HIV/AIDS	283
18.6	Opinion on Information about HIV/AIDS	286
18.7	Knowledge of HIV/AIDS Help Line	288
18.8	Discussion about HIV/AIDS	289
18.9	Knowledge of Places to be Tested for the AIDS Virus	290
REFERENCES		293
APPENDIX A	SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION	295
APPENDIX B	ESTIMATES OF SAMPLING ERRORS	301
APPENDIX C	DATA QUALITY TABLES	321
APPENDIX D	EFFECT OF NONKESPONSE ON THE SDH5 HIV PREVALENCE	20 -
	KESULIS	
	PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE 2000-07 SWAZILAIND	227
		224
APPENDIX F	QUESTIVININAIRES	331

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

Table 1.1	Basic demographic indicators	. 2
Table 1.2	Results of the household and individual interviews	. 7
Table 1.3	Results of the household and individual interviews in households	
	selected for youth and older adults survey	8

CHAPTER 2 HOUSEHOLD POPULATION AND HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS

Table 2.1	Household population by age, sex, and residence	9
Table 2.2	Household composition	11
Table 2.3.1	Educational attainment of the female household population	12
Table 2.3.2	Educational attainment of the male household population	13
Table 2.4	School attendance ratios	14
Table 2.5	Grade repetition and dropout rates	16
Table 2.6	Household drinking water	18
Table 2.7	Household sanitation facilities	19
Table 2.8	Housing characteristics	20
Table 2.9	Type of windows	22
Table 2.10	Household possessions	23
Table 2.11	Wealth quintiles	24
Table 2.12	Birth registration of children under age five	25
Figure 2.1	Population Pyramid	10
Figure 2.2	Age-Specific Attendance Rates of the De-Facto Population 5 to 24 Years	15
CHAPTER 3	CHARACTERISTICS OF RESPONDENTS	
Table 3.1.1	Background characteristics of respondents: Women and men 15-49	28

	background characteristics of respondents. Women and men 15-49	20
Table 3.1.2	Background characteristics of respondents: Youth age 12-14	29
Table 3.1.3	Background characteristics of respondents: Older adults age 50+	29
Table 3.2.1	Educational attainment by background characteristics: Women 15-49	30
Table 3.2.2	Educational attainment by background characteristics: Men 15-49	31
Table 3.3.1	Literacy: Women 15-49	32
Table 3.3.2	Literacy: Men 15-49	32
Table 3.3.3	Literacy: Youth age 12-14	33
Table 3.3.4	Literacy: Older adults age 50+	34
Table 3.4.1	Exposure to mass media: Women 15-49	35
Table 3.4.2	Exposure to mass media: Men 15-49	36
Table 3.4.3	Exposure to mass media: Youth age 12-14	37
Table 3.4.4	Exposure to mass media: Older adults age 50+	38

Table 3.5.1	Employment status: Women 15-49	40
Table 3.5.2	Employment status: Men 15-49	42
Table 3.5.3	Employment status: Older adults age 50+	43
Table 3.6.1	Occupation: Women 15-49	44
Table 3.6.2	Occupation: Men 15-49	45
Table 3.6.3	Occupation: Older adults age 50+	46
Table 3.7	Type of employment: Women and men age 15-49	47
Figure 3.1	Women's Employment Status (past 12 months)	41
Figure 3.2	Type of Earnings of Women Employed in the Past 12 Months	48

CHAPTER 4 FERTILITY LEVELS, TRENDS, AND DIFFERENTIALS

Table 4.1	Current fertility	
Table 4.2	Fertility by background characteristics	51
Table 4.3	Trends in age-specific fertility rates	51
Table 4.4	Trends in fertility	
Table 4.5	Children ever born and living	53
Table 4.6	Birth intervals	55
Table 4.7	Age at first birth	
Table 4.8	Median age at first birth	
Table 4.9	Teenage pregnancy and motherhood	
Figure 4.1	Total Fertility Rates for Selected Countries in Southeast Africa	
Figure 4.2	Trends in Fertility	52

CHAPTER 5 FAMILY PLANNING

Table 5.1	Knowledge of contraceptive methods	60
Table 5.2	Knowledge of contraceptive methods by background characteristics	61
Table 5.3.1	Ever use of contraception: Women	62
Table 5.3.2	Ever use of contraception: Men	64
Table 5.4	Current use of contraception by age	65
Table 5.5	Current use of contraception by background characteristics	67
Table 5.6	Trends in current use of contraception	68
Table 5.7	Number of children at first use of contraception	70
Table 5.8.1	Brand of pills used	70
Table 5.8.2	Brand of condoms used	70
Table 5.9	Mode of disposal of condoms	71
Table 5.10	Knowledge of fertile period	71
Table 5.11	Source of modern contraception methods	72
Table 5.12	Cost of modern contraceptive methods	73
Table 5.13	Informed choice	74
Table 5.14	Future use of contraception	75
Table 5.15	Reason for not intending to use contraception in the future	75
Table 5.16	Preferred method of contraception for future use	76
Table 5.17.1	Exposure to family planning messages: Women 15-49	77

Table 5.17.2	Exposure to family planning messages: Men 15-49	78
Table 5.18	Contact of nonusers with family planning providers	79
Table 5.19	Husband/partner's knowledge of women's use of contraception	80
Table 5.20	Male attitudes about the use of contraception	81
Figure 5.1	Ever Use of Contraception Among Women	63
Figure 5.2	Contraceptive Prevalence of Modern Methods Among All Women in	
	Selected Countries in Southeast Africa	66
Figure 5.3	Contraceptive Prevalence Rates Among Currently Married Women	
	Age 15-49	68
Figure 5.4	Trends in Current Contraceptive Use Among Currently Married Women	69

CHAPTER 6 OTHER PROXIMATE DETERMINANTS OF FERTILITY

Table 6.1.1	Current marital status: Women and men 15-49	
Table 6.1.2	Current marital status: Women and men age 50+	
Table 6.2	Polygyny: Women and men age 15-49	85
Table 6.3	Number of co-wives: Women and men age 50+	
Table 6.4	Age at first marriage: Women and men age 15-49	
Table 6.5	Age at first marriage: Women and men age 50+	
Table 6.6	Median age at first marriage	
Table 6.7	Age at first sexual intercourse: Women and men age 15-49	
Table 6.8	Age at first sexual intercourse: Women and men age 50+	
Table 6.9	Median age at first intercourse	
Table 6.10.1	Recent sexual activity: Women age 15-49	
Table 6.10.2	Recent sexual activity: Men age 15-49	
Table 6.10.3	Recent sexual activity: Women and men age 50+	
Table 6.11	Postpartum amenorrhoea, abstinence, and insusceptibility	
Table 6.12	Median duration of amenorrhoea, postpartum abstinence, and	
	postpartum insusceptibility	
Table 6.13	Menopause	
	•	

CHAPTER 7 FERTILITY PREFERENCES

Table 7.1	Fertility preferences by number of living children	98
Table 7.2.1	Desire to limit childbearing: Women	99
Table 7.2.2	Desire to limit childbearing: Men	99
Table 7.3	Need and demand for family planning among currently married women	100
Table 7.4	Ideal number of children	102
Table 7.5	Mean ideal number of children	103
Table 7.6	Fertility planning status	104
Table 7.7	Wanted fertility rates	105
Figure 7.1	Planning Status of Births, 1988 and 2006-07	104

CHAPTER 8 INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY

Table 8.1 Table 8.2 Table 8.3 Table 8.4 Table 8.5	Early childhood mortality rates Early childhood mortality rates by socio-economic characteristics Early childhood mortality rates by demographic characteristics Perinatal mortality High-risk fertility behaviour	. 109 . 111 . 112 . 113 . 114
Figure 8.1	Infant Mortality Rates in Selected Sub-Saharan African Countries for 0-4 Years Preceding the Survey	.109
Figure 8.2	Neonatal, Postneonatal, Infant, Child, and Under-Five Mortality Rates for Five-Year Periods Preceding the Survey	. 110

CHAPTER 9 MATERNAL HEALTH

Table 9.1	Antenatal care provider	
Table 9.2	Number of antenatal care visits, timing of first visit, and source where	
	ANC received	117
Table 9.3	Components of antenatal care	118
Table 9.4	Tetanus toxoid injections	119
Table 9.5	Place of delivery	121
Table 9.6	Assistance during delivery	
Table 9.7	Timing of first postnatal checkup	
Table 9.8	Type of provider of first postnatal checkup	125
Table 9.9	Problems in accessing health care	126

CHAPTER 10 CHILD HEALTH

Table 10.1	Child's weight and size at birth	128
Table 10.2	Vaccinations by source of information	129
Table 10.3	Vaccinations by background characteristics	131
Table 10.4	Prevalence and treatment of fever and symptoms of ARI	132
Table 10.5	Prevalence of diarrhoea	134
Table 10.6	Diarrhoea treatment	135
Table 10.7	Feeding practices during diarrhoea	137
Table 10.8	Knowledge of ORS packets or pre-packaged liquids	138
Table 10.9	Disposal of children's stools	139
Figure 10.1	Trend in Vaccination Coverage	130
Figure 10.2	Treatment Practises for Children III with the Symptoms of an Acute	
-	Respiratory Infection or a Fever	133

CHAPTER 11 NUTRITION OF CHILDREN AND ADULTS

Table 11.1	Nutritional status of children	142
Table 11.2	Initial breastfeeding	146
Table 11.3	Breastfeeding status by age	147

Median duration and frequency of breastfeeding	
Foods and liquids consumed by children in the day and night	
preceding the interview	
Infant and young child feeding (IYCF) practices	151
Presence of iodized salt in household	
Prevalence of anaemia in children 6-59 months	
Prevalence of anaemia in children 5-11 years	
Prevalence of anaemia in children 12-14 years	
Micronutrient intake among children	
Nutritional status of women	
Nutritional status of men	
Foods consumed by mothers in the day and night preceding	
the interview	
Prevalence of anaemia in women age 15-49	
Prevalence of anaemia in men age 15-49	
Prevalence of anaemia in women age 50 and older	
Prevalence of anaemia in men age 50 and older	
Micronutrient intake among mothers	
	Median duration and frequency of breastfeeding Foods and liquids consumed by children in the day and night preceding the interview Infant and young child feeding (IYCF) practices Presence of iodized salt in household Prevalence of anaemia in children 6-59 months Prevalence of anaemia in children 5-11 years Prevalence of anaemia in children 12-14 years Micronutrient intake among children Nutritional status of women Nutritional status of men Foods consumed by mothers in the day and night preceding the interview Prevalence of anaemia in women age 15-49 Prevalence of anaemia in men age 50 and older Prevalence of anaemia in men age 50 and older

CHAPTER 12 MALARIA AND OTHR HEALTH ISSUES

Table 12.1	Ownership of mosquito nets	
Table 12.2	Use of mosquito nets by children	
Table 12.3	Use of mosquito nets by pregnant women	
Table 12.4	Prophylactic use of antimalarial drugs and use of Intermittent	
	Preventive Treatment (IPT) by women during pregnancy	
Table 12.5	Prevalence and prompt treatment of fever	
Table 12.6	Interior wall of dwelling sprayed against mosquitoes	
Table 12.7	Male circumcision	
Table 12.8	Desire to be circumcised	
Table 12.9.1	Health insurance coverage: Women	
Table 12.9.2	Health insurance coverage: Men	
Table 12.10.1	Knowledge and attitudes concerning tuberculosis: Women	
Table 12.10.2	Knowledge and attitudes concerning tuberculosis: Men	
Table 12.11	Use of tobacco	

CHAPTER 13 HIV/AIDS-RELATED KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDES, AND BEHAVIOUR

Table 13.1	Knowledge of AIDS	
Table 13.2	Knowledge of HIV prevention methods	
Table 13.3.1	Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS: Women	
Table 13.3.2	Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS: Men	
Table 13.4	Knowledge of prevention of mother-to-child transmission of HIV	
Table 13.5.1	Accepting attitudes towards those living with HIV/AIDS: Women	
Table 13.5.2	Accepting attitudes towards those living with HIV/AIDS: Men	191
Table 13.6	Attitudes towards negotiating safer sexual relations with husband	192
Table 13.7	Adult support of education about condom use to prevent AIDS	193

Table 13.8.1	Multiple sexual partners and higher-risk sexual intercourse in the	101
T (0.0.0	past 12 months: Women	194
Table 13.8.2	Multiple sexual partners and higher-risk sexual intercourse in the	105
Table 12 0	Condem use characteristics among men	195
Table 13.9	Condom use characteristics among men	190
Table 13.10	Coverage of a source for male and female condoms	19/
Table 13.11.1	Coverage of prior HIV testing: Mon	190
Table 13.11.2 Table 12.12	Time to get LIN/ test result	199
Table 13.12	Time to get HIV test result	200
Table 13.13	Solf reported provolonge of convulty transmitted infections (STIC) a	
Table 15.14	nd STI symptoms	202
Table 13 15	Reason for not seeking treatment for STIs	202
Table 13 16	Actions taken when had STI/STI symptoms	203
Table 13 17	Prevalence of medical injections	203
Table 13.17	Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS and knowledge of a source	
Table 15.10	for condoms among youth	206
Table 13 19	Age at first sexual intercourse among youth	200
Table 13 20	Condom use at first sexual intercourse among youth	207
Table 13.20	Premarital sexual intercourse and condom use during premarital	
Table 13.21	sexual intercourse among youth	210
Table 13 22 1	Higher-risk sexual intercourse among youth and condom use at last	
	higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months: Women	211
Table 13.22.2	Higher-risk sexual intercourse among youth and condom use at last	
	higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months: Men	212
Table 13.23	Age mixing in sexual relationships among women age 15-19	213
Table 13.24	Drunkenness during sexual intercourse among youth	214
Table 13.25	Recent HIV tests among youth	215
Figure 13.1	Women and Men Seeking Advice or Treatment for STIs	203
Figure 13.2	Type of Facility Where Last Medical Injection Was Received	205
Figure 13.3	Abstinence, Being Faithful, and Condom Use (ABC) among Young Womer	1
	and Men	208
CHAPTER 14	HIV PREVALENCE AND ASSOCIATED FACTORS	
Table 14 1	Coverage of HIV testing among the population age 2 years and	
	older by age	218
Table 14.2	Coverage of HIV testing among population age 2 years and older	
	by selected background characteristics	220
Table 14.3	HIV prevalence among population age 2 years and older by age	222
Table 14.4	HIV prevalence among the population age 2 years and older by	
	residence, region, and wealth quintile	223
Table 14.5	HIV prevalence by education and employment status: Women and	
	men age 15 and older	224

HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women age 15	
and older	226
HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Men age 15	
and older	227
HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women and men	
age 15 and older	228
HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women age 15 and older	229
HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Men age 15 and older	230
HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women and men age 15	
and older	232
HIV prevalence by other characteristics: related to HIV risk: Women	
and men age 15 and older	233
Prior HIV testing by current HIV status	234
HIV prevalence by male circumcision	235
HIV prevalence by background characteristics: Young people age 15-24	236
HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Young people age 15-24	237
HIV prevalence among couples	238
	 HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women age 15 and older HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women and men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women and men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women and men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Women and men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by other characteristics: related to HIV risk: Women and men age 15 and older HIV prevalence by ourrent HIV status HIV prevalence by male circumcision HIV prevalence by background characteristics: Young people age 15-24 HIV prevalence among couples

CHAPTER 15 ADULT AND MATERNAL MORTALITY

Table 15.1	Completeness of information on siblings	239
Table 15.2	Adult mortality rates	
Table 15.3	Maternal mortality	
Figure 15.1	Age-Specific Mortality Rates by Sex	

CHAPTER 16 WOMEN'S EMPOWERMENT AND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH OUTCOMES

Table 16.1	Employment and cash earnings	244
Table 16.2.1	Control over women's cash earnings and relative magnitude of	
	women's earnings: Women	245
Table 16.2.2	Control over men's cash earnings	247
Table 16.3	Women's control over their own earnings and over those of their	
	husbands	248
Table 16.4	Women's participation in decisionmaking	248
Table 16.5	Women's participation in decisionmaking by background characteristics	249
Table 16.6.1	Attitude toward wife beating: Women	251
Table 16.6.2	Attitude toward wife beating: Men	252
Table 16.7.1	Attitude toward refusing sexual intercourse with husband: Women	254
Table 16.7.2	Attitude toward refusing sexual intercourse with husband: Men	255
Table 16.8	Indicators of women's empowerment	257
Table 16.9	Current use of contraception by women's status	258
Table 16.10	Women's empowerment and ideal number of children and unmet	
	need for family planning	259
Table 16.11	Reproductive health care by women's empowerment	260
Table 16.12	Early childhood mortality rates by women's status	261

Figure 16.1	Number of Decisions in	Which Married Women	Participate
inguice room	I turniser of Decisions in	willen married wonten	1 di ticipate

CHAPTER 17 ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Table 17.1	Children's living arrangements and orphanhood	264
Table 17.2	Orphans and vulnerable children (OVC)	265
Table 17.3	School attendance by survivorship of parents and by OVC status	266
Table 17.4	Possession of basic material needs by orphans and vulnerable children	267
Table 17.5	Orphan not living with siblings	268
Table 17.6	Underweight orphans and vulnerable children	269
Table 17.7	Sexual intercourse before age 15 by OVC status	269
Table 17.8	Succession planning	270
Table 17.9	Widows dispossessed of property	271
Table 17.10	External support for very sick persons	272
Table 17.11	External support for orphans and vulnerable children	273

CHAPTER 18 YOUTH

Table 18.1	Relationship of caregiver(s)	
Table 18.2	Number of caregivers	
Table 18.3	Adult supervision going to and at school	
Table 18.4	Knowledge and attitudes about sex	
Table 18.5	Knowledge about HIV/AIDS	
Table 18.6	Knowledge about HIV/AIDS-related issues	
Table 18.7	Exposure to information on HIV/AIDS through mass media	
Table 18.8	Exposure to HIV/AIDS messages through other media	
Table 18.9	Places for information about HIV/AIDS	
Table 18.10	Opinion on information about HIV/AIDS	
Table 18.11	Knowledge of HIV/AIDS help line	
Table 18.12	Discussion about HIV/AIDS	
Table 18.13	Persons with whom youth would like to discuss HIV/AIDS	
Table 18.14	Knowledge of place to be tested for AIDS virus	
Figure 18.1	Attitudes about Dating and Decisions to Have Sex	
Figure 18.2	Knowledge of Various Modes to Avoid AIDS	

APPENDIX A SAMPL.E IMPLEMENTATION

300
•

APPENDIX B ESTIMATES OF SAMPLING ERRORS

Table B.1	List of selected variables for sampling errors	304
Table B.2	Sampling errors for national sample	306
Table B.3	Sampling errors for urban sample	308
Table B.4	Sampling errors for rural sample	310
Table B.5	Sampling errors for Hhohho sample	312
Table B.6	Sampling errors for Manzini sample	314
Table B.7	Sampling errors for Shiselweni sample	316
Table B.8	Sampling errors for Lubombo sample	318
Table B. 9	Sampling errors for persons age 12-14 (youth) and age 50 + (older adults),	
	national sample	320

APPENDIX C DATA QUALITY TABLES

Table C.1	Household age distribution	321
Table C.2.1	Age distribution of eligible and interviewed women	322
Table C.2.2	Age distribution of eligible and interviewed men	322
Table C.3	Completeness of reporting	323
Table C.4	Births by calendar years	323
Table C.5	Reporting of age at death in days	324
Table C.6	Reporting of age at death in months	324

APPENDIX D EFFECT OF NONRESPONSE ON THE SDHS HIV PREVALENCE RESULTS

Table Brit Sterred and adjacted Thit prefatine and mental and mental and the	Table D.1	Observed and adjusted HIV	prevalence among	women and men	
--	-----------	---------------------------	------------------	---------------	--

PREFACE

This detailed report presents the major findings of the 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (2006-07 SDHS). The 2006-07 SDHS is the first survey of its kind to be undertaken in Swaziland. It was a nationwide survey aimed at generating estimates at the country level, regional level, and for urban and rural areas. The survey was commissioned by the Ministry of Health and Social Welfare and implemented by the Central Statistical Office. Fieldwork was carried out between July 2006 and March 2007.

The primary objective of the 2006-07 SDHS was to collect up-to-date information for policymakers, planners, researchers, and programme managers that would provide guidance in the planning, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of population and health programmes in Swaziland. Specifically, the 2006-07 SDHS collected information on fertility levels, marriage, sexual activity, fertility preferences, awareness and use of family planning methods, breastfeeding practices, nutritional status of women and young children, childhood and maternal mortality, care and protection of youth, and awareness and behaviour regarding HIV/AIDS and other sexually transmitted infections (STIs). In addition, it collected information on malaria, the use of mosquito nets, and the prevalence of HIV in the population age two years and above.

I would like to acknowledge the efforts of a number of organizations that contributed immensely to the success of the survey. First, I would like to acknowledge the financial assistance from the Government of Swaziland, the United Nations Joint Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS), the National Emergency Response Council on HIV/AIDS (NERCHA), the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), the United Nations Population Fund (UNFPA), the U.S. Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and Prevention, which channeled its support through Population Services International (PSI), the Swaziland National AIDS Programme (SNAP), HIV/AIDS Prevention and Care (HAPAC), the World Health Organisation (WHO), and Italian Co-operation. Secondly, in the area of technical backstopping, I would like to acknowledge Macro International Inc. and the Global Clinical Viral laboratory.

We owe an immense gratitude to the Survey Director, Mrs Rachel Masuku from the Central Statistical Office, the Technical Survey Director, Mrs Nelisiwe Dlamini from the Ministry of Health and Social Welfare, the Field Coordinator, Mr Henry Ginindza from the Central Statistical Office, Mrs Thoko Nhlabatsi also from the Central Statistical Office, and the Data Processing staff, Interviewers, Supervisors, Field Editors, Laboratory Technicians and Drivers for their hard work and dedication. We are also grateful to all of the respondents for their patience and generosity with their time.

Isabella Hlophe Director of Statistics

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

The 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) is a nationally representative survey of 4,843 households, 4,987 women age 15-49, and 4,156 men age 15-49. The SDHS also included individual interviews with boys and girls age 12-14 and older adults age 50 and over. The survey of persons age 12-14 and age 50 and over was carried out in every other household selected in the SDHS. Interviews were completed for 459 girls and 411 boys age 12-14, and 661 women and 456 men age 50 and over.

The 2006-07 SDHS is the first national survey conducted in Swaziland as part of the Demographic and Health Surveys (DHS) programme. The data are intended to furnish programme managers and policymakers with detailed information on levels and trends in fertility; nuptiality; sexual activity; fertility preferences; awareness and use of family planning methods; breastfeeding practices; nutritional status of mothers and young children; early childhood mortality and maternal mortality; maternal and child health: and awareness and behaviour regarding HIV/AIDS and other sexually transmitted infections. The survey also collected information on malaria prevention and treatment.

The 2006-07 SDHS is the first nationwide survey in Swaziland to provide population-based prevalence estimates for anaemia and HIV. Children age 6 months and older as well as adults were tested for anaemia. Children age 2 years and older as well as adults were tested for HIV.

FERTILITY

Fertility in Swaziland has been declining rapidly, with the TFR falling from 6.4 births per woman in 1986 to 3.8 births at the time of the SDHS. As expected, fertility is higher in rural areas (4.2 births per woman) than in urban areas (3.0 births per woman). Fertility differentials by education and wealth are substantial. Women with no education have on average 4.9 children compared with 2.4 children for women with tertiary education. Fertility varies widely according to household wealth. Women in the highest wealth quintile have 2.9 children fewer than women in the lowest quintile (2.6 and 5.5 births per woman, respectively).

Unplanned pregnancies remain common in Swaziland, despite the falling fertility. Overall, 37 percent of births are unwanted, while 27 percent are mistimed (wanted later). If all unwanted births were prevented, women would have an average of 2.1 children compared with the actual average of 3.8 children.

While marriage and cohabitation are generally considered to be primary indicators of regular exposure to the risk of pregnancy, many women in Swaziland bear children before entering a stable union. Marriage occurs comparatively late in Swaziland. Only 23 percent of women and 7 percent of men marry before age 20. Around one-quarter of women and one-third of men age 30-34 have not yet married.

Initiating sexual activity before marriage is common in Swaziland. Half of women age 20-49 had first sexual intercourse by age 18, and more than 70 percent were sexually active by age 20. While men generally initiate sexual activity at a later age than women, 31 percent of men age 20-49 had first sexual intercourse before age 18, and 57 percent were sexually active by age 20.

The 2006-07 SDHS shows that 18 percent of currently married women are in a polygynous union, i.e., their husband has more than one wife. Older women are more likely to be in a polygynous union than younger women. Polygyny is about twice as prevalent in rural areas as in urban areas. Regional variation is substantial, with Lubombo having the highest proportion of women in polygynous marriages (23 percent) and Manzini having the lowest proportion (15 percent).

FAMILY PLANNING

Knowledge of family planning is universal in Swaziland. The most widely known method is the male condom (99 percent for both males and females). Among women, other widely known methods include injectables (96 percent), the pill (95 percent), and the female condom (91 percent). For men, the best known methods besides the male condom are the female condom (94 percent) and the pill and injectables (84 percent each).

More than half (51 percent) of currently married women in Swaziland are using a method of contraception; most of them use a modern method (48 percent). Contraceptive use among sexually active unmarried women (65 percent) is higher than that among married women, primarily because of the greater use of the male condom.

Government-sponsored facilities remain the chief providers of contraceptive methods in Swaziland (45 percent), while 14 percent are supplied through private medical sources, 9 percent through missions, 9 percent through nongovernment organisations (NGOs), and 18 percent through other private sources (e.g., shops). The most common single source of contraceptive methods in Swaziland is PHU/clinics, which supply about one-quarter of users of modern methods (25 percent). Shops supply 15 percent of users, followed by government hospitals (9 percent).

Unmet need for family planning among currently married women is 24 percent. If all married women with an unmet need for family planning were to use a contraceptive method, the contraceptive prevalence rate in Swaziland would increase from the current level of 51 percent to 75 percent.

CHILD HEALTH

Children are considered fully vaccinated when they receive one dose of BCG vaccine, three doses each of DPT and polio vaccines, and one dose of measles vaccine. BCG coverage among children age 12-23 months is nearly universal (97 percent); coverage is also high for the first doses of DPT (96 percent) and polio (97 percent). The proportion of children receiving subsequent doses of DPT and polio vaccines drops slightly, with 92 percent of children receiving the third dose of DPT and 87 percent receiving the third dose of polio. Ninety-two percent of children had received a measles vaccination by the time of the SDHS. Overall, 82 percent of children age 12-23 months are fully immunised.

In the two weeks prior to SDHS, 8 percent of children under age five experienced symptoms of ARI, and 28 percent had a fever. Diarrhoea was a more prevalent problem among young children than fever; 13 percent of children under age five had diarrhoea in the two weeks preceding the survey. More than 70 percent of children with diarrhoea were taken to a health provider. Nine in ten children with diarrhoea were treated with some type of oral rehydration therapy (ORT), and 26 percent were given increased fluids. Only 6 percent of children with diarrhoea did not receive any treatment at all.

Data from the 2006-07 SDHS indicate that for the most recent five-year period preceding the survey, the under-five mortality rate was 120 deaths per 1,000 live births. This means that one in every seven children born in Swaziland dies before reaching the fifth birthday. The infant mortality rate is 85 per 1,000. One-quarter of all infant deaths take place in the neonatal period, that is, during the first month of life.

MATERNAL HEALTH

In Swaziland, almost all women who had a live birth in the five years preceding the survey received antenatal care from health professionals (97 percent); 9 percent received care from a doctor, and 88 percent received care from a trained nurse or midwife. Only 3 percent of mothers did not receive any antenatal care.

Tetanus toxoid injections are given during pregnancy to prevent neonatal tetanus. Seventy-five percent of last-born children born during the five years preceding the SDHS were fully protected against neonatal tetanus, either because the mother had had at least two tetanus toxoid injections during that pregnancy or because she had had the number of doses required for lifetime protection. The majority of births in the five years before the survey were delivered in a health facility (74 percent). The births took place more often in public health facilities (43 percent) than in Mission or other private health facilities. Twelve percent of births were assisted by a doctor, 62 percent by a nurse or nursing assistant, and 5 percent by a traditional birth attendant. Eight percent of births were delivered by caesarean section.

Twenty-five percent of mothers received a postnatal checkup for the most recent birth in the five years preceding the survey, with 22 percent having the checkup within the critical 48 hours after delivery.

BREASTFEEDING AND NUTRITION

Overall, 87 percent of children in Swaziland are breastfed for some period of time (ever breastfed). The median duration of any breastfeeding in Swaziland is almost 17 months. However, the median duration of exclusive breastfeeding is much shorter (0.7 months).

Appropriate infant and young child feeding (IYCF) practices include increasing the amount and variety of foods a child consumes as it gets older, while maintaining frequent breastfeeding. Seven in ten children age 6-23 months in Swaziland were fed according to the recommended minimum standards with respect to food diversity. Among breastfed children age 6-23 months, about three-quarters were fed according to the minimum standards (consumed foods from 3 or more food groups), while, among non-breastfed children age 6-23 months, only 60 percent were fed according to the minimum standards (consumed foods from 4 or more food groups).

Overall, 42 percent of children age 6-59 months have some degree of anaemia. About one in five children are mildly anaemic, 19 percent have moderate anaemia and less than 1 percent have severe anaemia. The proportion of children age 5-11 years with some degree of anaemia is 18 percent; less than 1 percent of these children are severely anaemic. The national prevalence of anaemia among children age 12-14 years is virtually identical to that

among children age 5-11 years, and a majority of these children are mildly anaemic (17 percent).

Thirty percent of women age 15-49 have some degree of anaemia, with the majority classified as mildly anaemic (23 percent). Less than 1 percent of these women are considered severely anaemic. Pregnant women are more likely to be anaemic (40 percent) than breastfeeding women (29 percent) or women who are neither pregnant nor breastfeeding (30 percent). This could be a result of the high demand of iron and folate during pregnancy. Men age 15-49 are substantially less likely to be anaemic than women the same age (13 percent and 30 percent, respectively), and less than 1 percent of these men are considered severely anaemic. Women and men age 50 and over show a pattern that is the reverse of that seen for women and men age 15-49, with men age 50 and over substantially more likely to be anaemic than their female counterparts (31 percent and 21 percent, respectively).

At the time of the survey, 29 percent of children under age five were stunted (short for their age), 3 percent were wasted (thin for their height), and 5 percent were underweight (thin for their age). Nationally, only 2 percent of children are overweight for their age. Malnutrition rates are generally highest during the period when children are being weaned. Nearly half of children age 18-23 months are stunted, and 19 percent are severely stunted.

Overall, 46 percent of women and 72 percent of men have a body mass index (BMI) in the normal range. Comparatively few women are malnourished; only 3 percent of women are thin, and 1 percent are severely thin. Malnutrition is higher among men, with 10 percent of men assessed as too thin, and 3 percent considered moderately or severely thin. At the other end of the BMI range, 14 percent of men are assessed as overweight (BMI 25-29.9) and 4 percent are obese (BMI >30).. Among women, 28 percent are classified as overweight, and 23 percent are considered obese.

MALARIA

In interpreting the malaria programme indicators in Swaziland, it is important to recognise that the disease affects an estimated 30 percent of the population where malaria is most prevalent (the Lubombo Plateau, the lowveld, and parts of the middleveld). Malaria is also seasonal, occurring mainly during or after the rainy season (from November to March). A substantial part of the SDHS fieldwork took place outside of this period.

Overall, 6 percent of households in Swaziland have at least one mosquito net (treated or untreated), and 4 percent have at least one insecticide-treated net. Usage of bednets is relatively low among young children and pregnant women, groups that are considered particularly vulnerable to the effects of the disease. On the night before the survey, less than 1 percent of children under age five and less than 1 percent of pregnant women slept under an ever-treated net.

Prophylactic use of antimalarial drugs is not common in Swaziland. Only 7 percent of women with a live birth in the two years preceding the survey reported taking antimalarial drugs for prevention. Less than 1 percent of children under age five with fever were given an antimalarial drug.

Indoor residual spraying is another component of efforts to control malaria transmission in Swaziland. Twelve percent of households reported that the interior walls of their dwelling had been sprayed, principally as part of a government programme. The prevalence of indoor spraying was highest in Lubombo (46 percent), where malaria is most prevalent.

HIV/AIDS-RELATED KNOWLEDGE AND BEHAVIOUR

Knowledge of HIV and AIDS is universal in Swaziland. All women and 99 percent of men age 15-49 have heard of AIDS. Among those age 50 and over, 96 percent of women and 97 percent of men have heard about AIDS.

At the same time, however, only half of women (52 percent) and men (51 percent) have what can be considered comprehensive knowledge about the modes of HIV transmission and prevention. Comprehensive knowledge means knowing that consistent use of condoms and having just one uninfected, faithful partner can reduce the chances of getting HIV, knowing that a healthy-looking person can have HIV, and rejecting the two most common local misconceptions about HIV transmission and prevention. Comprehensive knowledge is lower among those age 50 and over (21 percent for women and 25 percent for men).

A high proportion of women and men age 15-49 know that HIV can be transmitted by breastfeeding and that the risk of mother-to-child transmission (MTCT) can be reduced by taking special drugs during pregnancy. Both aspects of MTCT are known to 76 percent of women and over 64 percent of men age 15-49. The level of awareness is somewhat lower among women and men age 50 and over.

Given that most HIV infections in Swaziland are contracted through heterosexual contact, information on the proportion of women and men who have multiple partners or engage in higher-risk sex (i.e., sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner) is important for planning prevention programmes. The 2006-07 SDHS results indicate that 2 percent of women and 23 percent of men age 15-49 had two or more partners during the 12 months preceding the survey. For older adults, the proportions are about half (1 percent of women and 10 percent of men). Sexual intercourse with a non-marital noncohabiting partner is more common than sexual intercourse with multiple partners; 44 percent of women and 58 percent of men age 15-49 who had sex in the 12 months preceding the survey reported having had sex with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner. Such behaviour is less common among those age 50 and over: 12 percent of women and 10 percent of men in this age group who had sex in the 12 months preceding the survey reported having had sex with a nonmarital, non-cohabiting partner. Among respondents age 15-49 who engaged in higher-risk sexual intercourse, 55 percent of women and 68 percent of men reported using a condom at the last higher-risk sexual intercourse.

The 2006-07 SDHS also obtained information on the coverage of HIV testing. Among adults age 15-49, 36 percent of women and 17 percent of men have been tested for HIV at some time, and received the results of the test. Twenty-two percent of women and 9 percent of men received their results within the 12 months preceding the survey.

HIV PREVALENCE

Results from the HIV testing component in the 2006-07 SDHS indicate that 26 percent of Swazi adults age 15-49 are infected with HIV. Among women, the HIV rate is 31 percent, compared with 20 percent among men. HIV prevalence peaks at 49 percent for women age 25-29, which is almost five times the rate among women age 15-19 and more than twice the rate observed among women age 45-49. HIV prevalence increases from 2 percent among men in the 15-19 age group to 45 percent in the age group 35-39 and then decreases to 28 percent among men age 45-49. HIV prevalence for women and men age 50 or over is 12 percent and 18 percent, respectively. Among the population age 2-14 years, 4 percent of girls and boys are infected.

HIV prevalence is higher in urban than in rural areas (31 percent and 24 percent, respectively, for women and men age 15-49). By region, Hhohho has the highest prevalence rate (29 percent), followed by Lubombo (26 percent) and Manzini (25 percent), while Shiselweni (23 percent) has the lowest HIV prevalence rate.

More than 700 cohabiting couples were tested for HIV in the 2006-07 SDHS. Results indicated that for 55 percent of these couples, both partners tested negative for HIV; 29 percent of couples, both partners tested positive for HIV; and in 16 percent of couples, the results were discordant, that is, one partner was infected and the other was not. In 8 percent of couples, the male partner was infected and the woman was not, while in another 9 percent of couples, the woman was infected and the man was not.

ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Seventy-eight percent of children under age 18 in the households sampled for the SDHS were not living with both parents, and 34 percent were not living with either parent. Twenty-three percent of children under age 18 were orphaned, that is, one or both parents were dead. The percentage increases rapidly with age, from 7 percent among children under age five to 37 percent among children age 15-17 years. Overall, 12 percent of children under age 18 were considered vulnerable, i.e., they lived in a household in which at least one adult had been chronically ill during the year preceding the survey or at least one parent living in the household or elsewhere had suffered from a chronic illness. Three in ten children in Swaziland are considered orphaned or vulnerable.

YOUTH

Interviews with children age 12-14 were designed to obtain information about risk factors associated with HIV infection. Respondents were asked questions about home care and protection, media exposure, knowledge and attitudes about sex, and knowledge of AIDS.

One important topic was identifying the person who cares for the child at home. Grandmothers play an important role in taking care of children, even when both parents are still alive (21 percent). Their role is even greater when the child is orphaned (37 percent).

Children benefit from knowing about the physiology of human reproduction and the ways a person can protect against sexual or reproductive diseases and problems. Six in ten youth (61 percent) said that they know the meaning of having sex. Knowledge is higher among girls and urban residents. Sex and sexual abuse are topics of discussion between some youth and their parents or guardians (37 percent and 43 percent, respectively). Girls are much more likely to have talked about sex with a parent or other caregiver than boys (47 percent compared with 25 percent).

Almost all children age 12-14 have heard of HIV/AIDS (97 percent) and there are no major variations by background characteristics. Overall, 64 percent of children mentioned abstaining from sex as a way of reducing the chances of getting AIDS, 47 percent mentioned the use of condoms, and 19 percent mentioned avoiding blood transfusions. One in six children (15 percent) said that the chances of contracting AIDS can be reduced or avoided by being faithful to one sexual partner. Half of children age 12-14 in the survey know of a place for AIDS testing. Girls and children living in urban areas are more likely than other children to know where to go for the AIDS testing.

SWAZILAND



Henry Ginindza and Rachel Masuku

1.1 HISTORY, GEOGRAPHY, AND ECONOMY

History

Swaziland became independent of British colonial rule in September 1968. It is one of the few countries in the world operating under monarchy rule. The King is the Head of State and his mother, the Indlovukazi or Queen Mother, is the mother of the nation..

Swaziland's first constitution in over 30 years was ratified by King Mswati III in July 2005 and it became effective in February 2006.

The majority of the population is ethnic Swazi, mixed with a small number of Zulus and non-Africans.

Geography

The Kingdom of Swaziland is the smallest landlocked country in Southern Africa measuring approximately $17,000 \text{ km}^2$. The country enjoys a tropical to near-temperate climate along the western highlands, which rises to an altitude of over 1,800 metres above sea level, while the lowveld areas are generally hot. Swaziland lies in a summer rainfall region.

Economy

Although manufacturing contributes a growing share to Swaziland's GDP, the economy is largely agricultural because most industries process agricultural produce. These include sugar processing, wood pulp production, food canning and so on. Other agriculture products include corn, citrus fruits, livestock, and pineapple, among others.

The performance of the Swazi economy has been stagnant over the last five years, averaging an annual growth rate of around two percent. This has been largely due to fluctuations in the performance of the agricultural sector brought about by changes in climatic conditions as well as changes in prices in the world market. Persistent drought and disease have affected production, resulting in failure to meet export quota requirements

1.2 POPULATION

The population census is the major source of historical demographic data. The first detailed population census was conducted in 1966 and since then, censuses have been conducted every ten years, i.e., 1986, 1997, and 2007. Table 1.1 shows that in 1976 the population of Swaziland was about half a million. Two decades later in 1997, the population had almost doubled. The high growth rate of the population is brought about by high fertility and declining mortality levels. According to the 1997 Population and Housing Census, life expectancy at birth is 60 years.

The population per square kilometre almost doubled over the 20-year period, from 29 persons in 1976 to 54 persons in 1997. The proportion of urban residents increased significantly from 15 percent in 1976 to 23 percent in 1997.

1.3 POPULATION, FAMILY PLANNING, AND HIV POLICIES AND PROGRAMMES

The National Population Policy was adopted in 2003 to focus on the implementation of the social development component of the National Development Strategy. The overall objective of the policy is to improve the quality of life by influencing demographic trends and responding to emerging challenges such as HIV/AIDS.

The specific objectives of the population policy are to:

• Improve the health and welfare status of the population

- Curb the further spread of HIV/AIDS
- Reduce the social and economic impact of HIV/AIDS
- Reduce the level of fertility
- Control the influx of illegal immigrants
- Promote gender equality and equity at all levels and spheres of society
- Promote the use of natural resources
- Contribute towards increasing food security at the household and national levels
- Reduce rural-urban migration
- Improve the availability, quality, and timeliness of population-related data and research for use in policy and planning
- Contribute towards reducing the levels of unemployment and poverty
- Contribute towards the improvement of the accessibility, quality, and relevance of high school and tertiary education
- Improve knowledge of the role that cultural beliefs and practices play in population-related issues
- Promote the creation of a legal framework that is responsive to population concerns
- Improve the availability, quality, and accessibility of population-related IEC
- Promote the integration of population concerns in development planning at all levels
- Contribute towards addressing the special needs of children, youth, the elderly, and persons with disabilities
- Integrate population and family life education into the school curricula
- Improve the quality of housing and related services

The National Policy on HIV/AIDS

As the HIV/AIDS epidemic affects all sectors, its control demands a well coordinated response. It is necessary to have policies that provide a framework, direction, and general principles for the national response, including prevention, care, and support to those infected and affected by the epidemic, and mitigation of its impact.

Table 1.1 Basic demographic indicators

Selected demographic indicators for Swaziland, 1976, 1986, and 1997 Population and Housing Censuses

Indicator	1976 PHC	1986 PHC	1997 PHC
Population	494,534	681,059	929,718
Intercensal growth rate (percent)	2.5	3.3	2.9
Density (pop./km ²)	29	39	54
Percent urban	15.2	22.8	23.1
Crude birth rate	51.6	48.3	36.39
Crude death rate	18.5	13.0	7.6
Total fertility rate	5.2	6.4	4.5
Infant mortality rate	u	99	78
Male	205	u	u
Female	180	u	u
Life expectancy at birth (years)	46	56	60

u = No information

Source: CSO. nd. 1976 Population and Housing Census, Vol. 1; CSO. nd. 1986 Population and Housing Census, Vol. 4; CSO. nd. 1997 Population and Housing Census Vol. 4. The National Multisectoral HIV and AIDS Policy was adopted in July 2006 with the goal of providing the framework, direction and general principles for interventions. The policy thus strengthens and expands efforts to manage and co-ordinate the response, promotes prevention interventions, provides effective treatment, care and support to people living with HIV/AIDS and mitigates the impact of the epidemic.

The National Emergency Response Council on HIV and AIDS (NERCHA) is guided by the 'three ones principles': one coordinating body, one strategic plan, and one monitoring and evaluation framework.

1.4 OBJECTIVES

Main Objective

The principal objective of the 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) was to provide up-to-date information on fertility, childhood mortality, marriage, fertility preferences, awareness, and use of family planning methods, infant feeding practices, maternal and child health, maternal mortality, HIV/AIDS-related knowledge and behaviour and prevalence of HIV and anaemia.

More specifically the 2006-07 SDHS was aimed at achieving the following;

- Determine key demographic rates, particularly fertility, under-five mortality, and adult mortality rates
- Investigate the direct and indirect factors which determine the level and trends of fertility
- Measure the level of contraceptive knowledge and practice of women and men by method
- Determine immunization coverage and prevalence and treatment of diarrhoea and acute respiratory diseases among children under five
- Determine infant and young child feeding practices and assess the nutritional status of children 6–59 months, women age 15–49 years, and men aged 15-49 years
- Estimate prevalence of anaemia
- Assess knowledge and attitudes of women and men regarding sexually transmitted infections and HIV/AIDS, and evaluate patterns of recent behaviour regarding condom use
- Identify behaviours that protect or predispose the population to HIV infection
- Examine social, economic, and cultural determinants of HIV
- Determine the proportion of households with orphans and vulnerable children (OVCs)
- Determine the proportion of households with sick people taken care at household level
- Determine HIV prevalence among males and females age 2 years and older
- Determine the use of iodized salt in households
- Describe care and protection of children age 12-14 years, and their knowledge and attitudes about sex and HIV/AIDS.

This information is intended to provide data to assist policymakers and programme implementers to monitor and evaluate existing programmes and to design new strategies for demographic, social and health policies in Swaziland. The survey also provides data to monitor the country's achievement towards the Millenium Development Goals.

1.5 ORGNISATION OF THE SURVEY

The 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) is a national-level sample survey designed to provide information on various demographic and maternal and child health issues in Swaziland. The SDHS was implemented by the Central Statistical Office (CSO) at the request of the Ministry of Health and Social Welfare (MOHSW). The majority of the local costs of the survey were provided by the Government of Swaziland. Macro International Inc. (Macro) provided technical assistance

to the SDHS as part of the worldwide USAID-funded MEASURE Demographic and Health Surveys (DHS) programme. The Human Sciences Research Council (HSRC) of South Africa assisted during the design phase of the survey. Through a subcontract with Macro, the Global Clinical and Viral Laboratory (GCVL) of South Africa provided support for the training and laboratory processing for the HIV testing component of the survey. Funds to support Macro's and GCVL's assistance and to defray some local costs were provided by USAID and the Centres for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)-Global AIDS Programme operating under the President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief (PEPFAR). Other organisations supporting SDHS included the National Emergency Response Council on HIV/AIDS (NERCHA), HIV/AIDS Prevention and Care (HAPAC), UNFPA, UNICEF, Italian Cooperation, the World Health Organisation, UNAIDS, and the Population Services International (PSI).

1.6 SAMPLE DESIGN

The 2006-07 SDHS was designed to provide estimates of health and demographic indicators at the national level, for urban-rural areas, and for the four regions of Manzini, Hhohho, Lubombo, and Shiselweni. Standard DHS sampling policy recommends a minimum of 1,000 to 1,200 women per major domain. To meet this criterion, the number of households selected in each of the various domains, particularly urban areas, was not proportional to the actual size of the population in the domain. As a result, the SDHS sample is not self-weighting at the national level, and weights must be applied to the data to obtain the national-level estimates.

The 2006-07 SDHS sample points (clusters) were selected from a list of enumeration areas (EAs) defined in the 1997 Swaziland Population and Housing Census. A total of 275 clusters were drawn from the census sample frame, 111 in the urban areas and 164 in the rural areas.

CSO staff conducted an exhaustive listing of households in each of the SDHS clusters in August and September 2005. From these lists, a systematic sample of households was drawn for a total of 5,500 households. All women and men age 15-49 identified in these households were eligible for individual interview. In addition, a sub-sample of half of these households (2,750 households) was selected randomly in which all boys and girls age 12-14 and persons age 50 and older were eligible for individual interview. In the SDHS households where youth and older adults were interviewed, all individuals age 6 months and older were eligible for anaemia testing and all individuals age 2 and older were eligible for HIV testing. In the SDHS households where only women and men age 15-49 were interviewed, children age 6 months to 5 years were eligible for the anaemia testing and women and men age 15-49 were eligible for anaemia and HIV testing.

During the household listing, field staff used Global Positioning System (GPS) receivers to establish and record the geographic coordinates of each of the SDHS clusters.

1.7 **QUESTIONNAIRES**

Five types of questionnaires were used for the SDHS: the Household Questionnaire, the Woman's Questionnaire, the Man's Questionnaire, the Youth Questionnaire, and the Older Adult Questionnaire. The contents of the questionnaires were based on questionnaires developed for the MEASURE DHS programme. The Youth Questionnaire was adapted from the 2002 Nelson Mandela/HSRC Study of HIV/AIDS in South Africa. The SDHS questionnaires were developed in collaboration with a wide range of stakeholders. After the SDHS survey instruments were drafted, they were translated into and printed in the local language, Siswati, for pretesting.

The Household Questionnaire was used to list all the usual members and visitors in the selected households. Basic information was collected on the characteristics of each person listed, including age, sex, education, and relationship to the head of the household. The Household Questionnaire was also used

to identify persons eligible for the individual interview. In addition, information was collected about the dwelling, such as the source of water; type of toilet facilities; materials used to construct the house; ownership of various consumer goods; use of bed nets; and care and free external support received by chronically ill household members and orphans and vulnerable children. The results of anthropometric measurement and anaemia testing were recorded in the Household Questionnaire, as was the information on the consent of eligible household members for the HIV testing.

The Woman's Questionnaire was used to collect information from all women age 15-49 and covered the following topics:

- Background characteristics (age, education, religion, etc.)
- Birth history
- Knowledge and use of family planning methods
- Antenatal and delivery care
- Infant feeding practices including patterns of breastfeeding
- Vaccinations
- Childhood illnesses and treatment
- Marriage and sexual activity
- Fertility preferences
- Husband's background and woman's work status
- Adult (maternal) mortality
- HIV/AIDS-related knowledge, attitudes, and behaviour.

The Man's Questionnaire was shorter than the Woman's Questionnaire, but covered many of the same topics, excluding the reproductive history and sections dealing with maternal and child health. The Older Adult Questionnaire obtained limited information on the background characteristics of the population age 50 and over and on HIV/AIDS knowledge, attitudes, and risk behaviour. The Youth Questionnaire included questions on knowledge and attitudes about sex, and factors exposing youth to risk of abuse.

1.8 ANAEMIA AND HIV TESTING

Haemoglobin testing is the primary method of anaemia diagnosis. In the SDHS, haemoglobin measurement was performed in the field by non-medical personnel. Prior to collecting the blood specimen, all participants age 12 and older and were asked to give informed consent to the testing.

Prior to asking the consent of unmarried youth age 12-17, consent was obtained from the parent or other adult responsible for the child at the time of the survey. For children age 6 months-11 years, consent was asked only from the parent or guardian. The consent statement explained the purpose of the test, informed prospective subjects tested and/or their caretakers how the test would be done, advised them that the results would be available as soon as the test was completed, and requested permission for the test to be carried out.

1.9 PRETEST, TRAINING, AND FIELDWORK

Pretest

Two pretests were conducted for the 2006-07 SDHS. The first was aimed at testing the flow of the questions and the translation from English to Siswati. Given the fact that this was the first SDHS to be conducted in the country, this pretest was also viewed as a pilot exercise for the survey organising committee. The first pretest was conducted in August-September 2005. Pretest activities started with a

training of trainers. The trainers were drawn from the CSO, the MOHSW, NERCHA, and the Ministry of Agriculture. Macro staff assisted with the training of trainers and Macro and HSRC staff assisted with the pretest training.

Eight women and 16 men participated in the field staff training. All but five of the participants had worked in the SDHS as household listers. The SDHS trainers and several guest lecturers gave talks to introduce specific topics in the survey, such as sexual and reproductive health, water and sanitation, malaria, nutrition, and HIV/AIDS. The pretest was conducted in both urban and rural areas to help gauge how respondents' reception of the SDHS teams might vary in different localities. On average, the Household Questionnaire took one hour to complete, the Woman's Questionnaire took two hours, the Man's Questionnaire took one hour, the Youth Questionnaire took 20 minutes, and the Older Adult Questionnaire took 30 minutes.

The second pretest was carried out in April-May 2006 after the review of the HIV testing protocol was completed at CDC Atlanta. This pretest combined interviews and collection of blood samples for anaemia and HIV tests.

Training

A total of 83 persons, 38 males and 45 females, were trained to be the 2006-07 SDHS fieldworkers. They were grouped in two classes. Many of the trainees had participated in both the first and second pretest. The training followed the standard DHS training procedures, including instructions on how to conduct interviews and how to fill in all five questionnaires, classroom demonstration and practice in administering the questionnaires, and tests. The participants also had a chance to practice interviewing in actual households and discuss their experience before the fieldwork began.

With respect to the biomarker data collection, the staff responsible for the anaemia and HIV testing received extensive classroom training plus additional field practice. As part of the training, they were given thorough training in informed consent procedures, how to take finger stick blood spot samples, and how to handle and package the dried blood spots. All staff received training in universal precautions and the disposal of hazardous waste. During the training, there were special lectures on the HIV/AIDS epidemic.

Fieldwork

Fieldwork for the 2006-07 SDHS was carried out by 10 mobile interviewing teams, each consisting of one supervisor, one field editor, three to four female interviewers, and one or two male interviewers. Two or three of the interviewers on each team were assigned to take the blood samples for the anaemia and HIV testing. Fieldwork commenced in July 2006 and was completed in February 2007.

1.10 HIV TESTING

The SDHS HIV testing protocol involved the collection of at least three blood spots from a finger prick (generally the same prick used to obtain the blood drop for anaemia testing) on a special filter paper card. The HIV testing in the SDHS was anonymous, i.e., it was conducted in such fashion that the results could not be linked to individual respondents. A unique random identification number (bar-code) was assigned to each eligible respondent consenting to the testing, and labels containing that number were affixed to the filter paper card, the questionnaire, and a field tracking form at the time of the collection of the sample. No other identifiers were linked to the dried blood spot (DBS) samples from SDHS respondents during the HIV testing.

Because of the anonymous nature of the testing approach in the SDHS, it was not possible to provide information on the results from the HIV testing conducted during the SDHS. In lieu of providing the SDHS test results, written and verbal information was provided on counselling and testing (VCT) sites where free confidential counselling and HIV testing were available during the survey. In addition, any person (whether or not they participated in the SDHS) approaching an SDHS team with a request about VCT was provided with information on the sites, in an effort to increase VCT usage in Swaziland.

1.11 DATA PROCESSING

All questionnaires for the SDHS were returned to CSO central office for data processing. The processing operation consisted of office editing, coding of open-ended questions, data entry, double-entry verification, and resolving inconsistencies found by computer programmes developed for the SDHS. The SDHS data entry and editing programmes used CSPro, a computer software package specifically designed for processing survey data such as that produced by DHS surveys. Data processing commenced in August 2006 and was completed in April 2007.

The HIV testing was carried out at the NRL between August 2006 and June 2007.

1.12 RESPONSE RATES

Table 1.2 shows the response rates for the SDHS 2006-07. The response rates are important because they may affect the reliability of the results. Of a total of 5,500 households selected in the sample, 5,086 were occupied at the time of the fieldwork. This difference between the number of selected households and the number of occupied households is due to structures being vacated or destroyed. Successful interviews were conducted in 4,843 households, yielding a response rate of 95 percent.

In the households interviewed in the survey, a total of 5,301 eligible women age 15-49 were identified. Interviews were completed with 4,987 of these women, yielding a 94 percent response rate. In the same households, a total of 4,675 eligible men age 15-49 were identified and interviews were completed with 4,156 of these men, yielding a male response rate of 89 percent. The response rates are slightly lower in the urban sample than in the rural sample, and lower among men than women. The principal reasons for non-response among both eligible men and women were refusal and the failure Table 1.2 Results of the household and individual interviews

Number of households, number of interviews, and response rates, according to residence (unweighted), Swaziland 2006-07

	Residence		
Result	Urban	Rural	Total
Household interviews			
Households selected	2,220	3,280	5,500
Households occupied	2,028	3,058	5,086
Households interviewed	1,880	2,963	4,843
Household response rate ¹	92.7	96.9	95.2
Interviews with women age 15-49			
Number of eligible women	1,682	3,619	5,301
interviewed	1,544	3,443	4,987
Eligible women response rate ²	91.8	95.1	94.1
Interviews with men age 15-49			
Number of eligible men	1,638	3,037	4,675
Number of eligible men interviewed	1,441	2,715	4,156
Eligible men response rate ²	88.0	89.4	88.9
¹ Households interviewed/households occupied ² Respondents interviewed/eligible respondents			

to find individuals at home despite repeated visits to the households. Men have lower response rates than women due to higher refusal rates, and more frequent and longer absence from the households, principally due to employment and their lifestyle (see Appendix A).

Table 1.3 shows the results of the household and individual interviews in households selected for youth and older adults. A total of 2,750 households were selected in the sample, of which 2,543 were occupied at the time of the fieldwork. This difference between the number of selected households and the number of occupied households is due to structures being vacated or destroyed. Successful interviews were conducted in 2,410 households, yielding a response rate of 95 percent.

In the households selected for the youth and older adult survey, a total of 477 eligible girls and 439 eligible boys age 12-14 were identified. Interviews were completed with 459 girls and 411 boys, yielding response rates of 96 percent and 94 percent, respectively. The response rates for girls are the same for urban and rural areas. For boys, the response rate is slightly lower in urban than in rural areas (89 percent compared with 94 percent).

A total of 693 eligible women age 50 and over were identified. Interviews were completed with 661 of these women, yielding a 95 percent response rate. In the same households, a total of 492 eligible men age 50 and over were identified and interviews were completed with 456 of these men, yielding a male response rate of 93 percent. The response rates are slightly lower in urban than in rural areas, and lower among men than women.

Table 1.3 Results of the household and individual interviews inhouseholds selected for youth and older adults survey					
Number of households, number of interviews, and response rates for subsample selected for the youth and older adults survey, according to residence (unweighted), Swaziland 2006-07					
	Resid	lence			
Result	Urban	Rural	Total		
Household interviews Households selected Households occupied Households interviewed	1,110 1,020 937	1,640 1,523 1,473	2,750 2,543 2,410		
Household response rate ¹	91.9	96.7	94.8		
Interviews with female youth 12-14Number of eligible female youth78399477Number of eligible female youth75384459					
Eligible female youth response rate ²	96.2	96.2	96.2		
Interviews with male youth 12-14 Number of eligible male youth Number of eligible male youth interviewed	62 55	377 356	439 411		
Eligible male youth response rate ²	88.7	94.4	93.6		
Interviews with women 50+ Number of eligible women 50+ Number of eligible women 50+ interviewed	114 104	579 557	693 661		
Eligible women 50+ response rate ²	91.2	96.2	95.4		
Interviews with men 50+ Number of eligible men 50+ 111 381 492 Number of eligible men 50+					
Eligible men 50+ response rate ²	86.5	94.5	92.7		
¹ Households interviewed/households occupied ² Respondents interviewed/eligible respondents					

Petronella Mamba

This chapter presents a description of the demographic and socioeconomic characteristics of the population in the households sampled in the 2006-07 SDHS. For the purpose of the 2006-07 SDHS, a household was defined as a person or a group of persons, related or unrelated, who live together and share a common source of food. The Household Questionnaire (see Appendix E) included a schedule collecting basic demographic and socioeconomic information (e.g., age, sex, education attainment, and current school attendance) for all usual residents and visitors of the household who spent the night preceding the interview. This method of data collection allows the analysis of the results for either the de jure (usual residents) or de facto (those who are there at the time of the survey) populations. The household questionnaire also obtained information on housing facilities (e.g., sources of water supply and sanitation facilities) and household possessions.

The information presented in this chapter is intended to facilitate interpretation of the key demographic, socioeconomic, and health indices presented later in the report. It is also intended to assist in the assessment of the representativeness of the survey sample.

2.1 **POPULATION BY AGE AND SEX**

Age and sex are important demographic variables and are the primary basis of demographic classification. Needs and services for a given population mostly depend on its age and sex structure. Age and sex structure have a strong bearing on the population's fertility, mortality, and nuptiality patterns. Table 2.1 gives the age and sex distribution of the de facto population by urban and rural residence. Eight in ten of the Swazi population live in the rural areas.

Table 2.1 Household population by age, sex, and residence									
Percent distribution of the de facto household population by five-year age groups, according to sex and residence, Swaziland 2006-07									
	Urban			Rural			Total		
Age	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
<5	12.0	12.0	12.0	16.2	14.2	15.2	15.3	13.8	14.5
5-9	10.0	10.3	10.2	16.6	14.0	15.2	15.2	13.2	14.1
10-14	10.3	10.1	10.2	17.1	15.8	16.4	15.7	14.6	15.1
15-19	9.8	10.9	10.4	14.4	11.8	13.0	13.5	11.6	12.5
20-24	11.8	12.6	12.2	8.9	8.9	8.9	9.5	9.7	9.6
25-29	11.7	10.8	11.2	5.5	5.8	5.6	6.8	6.8	6.8
30-34	8.6	8.8	8.7	3.6	4.7	4.2	4.7	5.5	5.1
35-39	7.4	6.8	7.1	3.2	4.2	3.7	4.1	4.7	4.4
40-44	5.2	5.2	5.2	2.3	3.7	3.0	2.9	4.0	3.5
45-49	4.3	3.8	4.0	2.3	3.4	2.9	2.7	3.5	3.1
50-54	3.7	3.0	3.3	2.3	3.3	2.8	2.6	3.3	2.9
55-59	2.5	2.3	2.4	1.8	2.2	2.0	2.0	2.2	2.1
60-64	1.7	1.3	1.5	2.3	2.7	2.5	2.2	2.4	2.3
65-69	0.6	0.9	0.8	1.3	1.8	1.6	1.1	1.7	1.4
70-74	0.1	0.5	0.3	1.1	1.3	1.2	0.9	1.1	1.0
75-79	0.1	0.4	0.3	0.6	0.9	0.8	0.5	0.8	0.7
80 +	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.5	1.3	0.9	0.5	1.1	0.8
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	2,259	2,488	4,747	8,345	9,520	17,865	10,604	12,008	22,612

There are more women than men in Swaziland (53 percent and 47 percent, respectively). The sex ratio (proportion of men out of 100 women) is 88. This is consistent with findings of the 1986 census (89) and the 1997 census (90). The sex ratio in the rural areas is lower than that in the urban areas (88 percent compared with 91 percent), which may be due to higher rural-urban migration among men than among women.

Swaziland's population is young, with 44 percent of the total population under 15 years of age, and less than 4 percent is 65 years or older. Figure 2.1 illustrates the age structure of the household population in a population pyramid. The two bottom bars of the pyramid that represent population 0-9 years are smaller than the bar for the next older age. This means that although fertility levels are still high, resulting in a wide base, the country has experienced significant fertility declines. The bars between age 20 and 45 for both males and females narrow rapidly with increasing age, reflecting high rates of mortality, probably due to AIDS-related factors. The proportion of women in the older age groups is much higher than the proportion of men. Because there is no evidence of significantly higher emigration among men, one may conclude that men have higher mortality levels.



Figure 2.1 Population Pyramid

2.2 HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION

Information on key aspects of the composition of households, including the sex of the head of the household and the size of the household, is presented in Table 2.2. These characteristics are important because they are associated with the welfare of the household. Female-headed households are, for example, typically poorer than male-headed households. Economic resources are often more limited in larger households. Moreover, where the size of the household is large, crowding also can lead to health problems.

Table 2.2 presents the distribution of households by the sex of heads of household and by household size in urban and rural areas. The average size of households according to residence is also
given. Households in Swaziland are almost as likely to be headed by a woman as by a man (48 percent compared with 52 percent). There has been an increasing trend in the proportion of households headed by a woman, from 40 percent in the 1986 census to 43 percent in the 1997 census. Rural households are more likely than urban households to be headed by a woman; 52 percent of households in rural areas are headed by a woman compared to 39 percent in urban areas. Both rural and urban areas showed an increase in the proportion of households headed by a woman. The 1997 census found that 49 percent of households in the rural areas and 31 percent of households in the urban areas were headed by a woman.

Generally, the size of a household has a negative correlation with socioeconomic status. However, it has also been found that there are significant benefits in having other members in a household. The overall mean size of households in 2006-07 is 4.6 persons; rural households are larger than urban households (5.4 and 3.0 persons per household, respectively). The mean household size is 5.3 persons in 1997, a drop from the 6.0 persons per household reported in the 1986 census. There are marked differences between rural and urban households. In the rural areas, 16 percent of households have nine or more members compared to only 3 percent in the urban areas. As expected, a large proportion (35 percent) of households in the urban areas has only one member. In contrast, one-person households account for only one-fifth of all households in Swaziland.

2.3 EDUCATION OF THE HOUSEHOLD POPULATION

Education is a key determinant of the lifestyle and status an individual enjoys in a society. Studies have consistently shown that educational attainment has a positive effect on health behaviours and attitudes. Results from the 2006-07 SDHS can be used to look at educational attainment among household members and school attendance, repetition, and drop-out rates among

Table 2.2 Household composition

Percent distribution of households by sex of head of household and by household size and by mean size of household according to residence, Swaziland 2006-07

	Resid	lence	
Characteristic	Urban	Rural	Total
Household headship			
Male	61.0	47.9	52.1
Female	39.0	52.1	47.9
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of usual members			
0	0.2	0.4	0.3
1	35.4	12.5	19.9
2	19.1	9.6	12.6
3	12.5	10.2	11.0
4	12.1	12.7	12.5
5	7.0	12.2	10.5
6	5.3	10.4	8.7
7	3.0	9.1	7.1
8	2.2	6.6	5.1
9+	3.3	16.4	12.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0
Mean size of households	3.0	5.4	4.6
Number of households	1,565	3,278	4,843
Note: Table is based on de ju usual residents.	re househ	old mem	bers, i.e.,

youth. In the analysis presented below, the official age for entry into the primary level is age six years. The official primary level of schooling consists of seven years (Grades 1-7) while the number of years assumed for completion of secondary school is five years.

2.3.1 Educational Attainment

The 2006-07 SDHS collected education data on the highest level completed for males and females age six years and over. Table 2.3.1 and 2.3.2 show that, in general, the proportion of males and females with no education has been declining over time and the proportion attaining higher levels has been increasing.

There are slight differentials between sexes in the levels of education attained, with men generally having higher levels. For example, the proportion of women with no education is 13 percent compared with 12 percent of men, and 5 percent of women have had higher than secondary level of education, compared to 6 percent of men.

There are large differentials by residence. For both rural men and women, urban residents consistently have higher levels of education. For instance, the median years completed for urban women is 7.8 years, whereas for women in rural areas it is only 4.7 years. For men, the corresponding proportion is 8.0 and 3.9 years, respectively. Across regions, men and women in Manzini are better educated than those in other regions. On the other hand, men and women in Lubombo are the least educated. As expected, educational attainment is positively related to the wealth status of the household. Women and men in wealthier households are better educated than those in poorer households.

Table 2.3.1 Educational attainment of the female household population

Percent distribution of the de facto female household populations age six and over by highest level of schooling attended or completed and median years completed, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	No	Some	Completed	Some	Completed	Tortion	Don't know/ missing	Total	Numbor	Median years
·	cudcation	primary	primary	secondary	secondary	Tertiary	missing	Total	Number	compicted
Age		~~ -								
6-9	16.2	82.7	0.2	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.7	100.0	1,274	0.3
10-14	2.3	85.3	6.6	5.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	100.0	1,754	3.7
15-19	2.7	27.4	14.6	50.1	4.3	0.6	0.3	100.0	1,392	7.3
20-24	6.0	16.8	10.4	44.7	16.9	5.0	0.3	100.0	1,161	8.4
25-29	6.9	14.4	9.8	34.4	22.6	11.2	0.7	100.0	821	9.1
30-34	8.2	16.3	12.4	34.2	15.7	12.5	0.8	100.0	663	8.6
35-39	11.1	22.3	11.8	29.3	11.5	12.7	1.2	100.0	569	7.7
40-44	15.5	25.7	8.3	29.2	8.3	11.0	1.9	100.0	483	6.9
45-49	22.4	25.0	11.9	25.1	6.3	8.1	1.2	100.0	415	6.2
50-54	28.4	30.9	13.6	16.7	2.7	6.8	0.9	100.0	392	4.8
55-59	26.8	36.1	11.1	14.5	2.0	7.9	1.6	100.0	262	3.9
60-64	47.7	36.0	5.5	5.0	1.1	3.0	1.9	100.0	293	0.4
65+	59.3	28.8	5.7	3.1	0.2	1.3	1.6	100.0	559	0.0
Residence										
Urban	7.7	27.6	9.0	29.1	13.5	12.5	0.7	100.0	2,134	7.8
Rural	15.0	45.5	8.9	22.1	5.2	2.5	0.8	100.0	7,906	4.7
Region										
Hhohho	14.1	37.3	9.1	25.5	7.0	6.2	0.8	100.0	2,615	5.7
Manzini	9.3	39.9	9.5	25.1	9.5	6.0	0.7	100.0	3,167	6.0
Shiselweni	13.0	45.6	8.8	23.6	5.8	2.7	0.5	100.0	2,313	4.9
Lubombo	19.8	46.0	7.6	18.7	4.1	2.7	1.1	100.0	1,944	4.0
Wealth guintile										
Lowest	26.8	52.1	7.7	10.8	2.0	0.0	0.5	100.0	1.946	2.4
Second	18.3	49.7	9.6	17.9	3.2	0.2	1.1	100.0	1,988	3.8
Middle	10.3	46.5	10.2	26.1	5.4	0.7	0.7	100.0	1.988	5.3
Fourth	8.0	37.2	9.0	33.4	9.0	2.7	0.8	100.0	2.037	6.5
Highest	4.7	24.2	7.9	29.2	14.5	18.8	0.8	100.0	2,081	8.8
Total	13.4	41.7	8.9	23.6	6.9	4.6	0.8	100.0	10,040	5.3

¹ Completed 7th grade at the primary level

² Completed 5th grade at the secondary level

Table 2.3.2 Educational attainment of the male household population

Percent distribution of the de facto male household populations age six and over by highest level of schooling attended or completed and median years completed, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		C		G			Don't			Median
Background	NO	Some	Completed	Some	Completed	Tortion	know/	Total	Number	years
Characteristic	education	primary	primary	secondary	secondary	Teruary	missing	TOLAI	Number	completed
Age										
6-9	19.9	79.3	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.7	100.0	1,314	0.1
10-14	3.4	89.7	5.0	1.8	0.1	0.0	0.1	100.0	1,661	3.0
15-19	3.4	39.7	13.8	39.4	3.4	0.1	0.2	100.0	1,427	6.5
20-24	5.1	20.0	9.9	39.0	20.1	5.3	0.7	100.0	1,011	8.6
25-29	7.8	17.4	7.5	30.1	25.7	11.0	0.5	100.0	719	8.9
30-34	9.2	18.9	10.1	21.4	24.7	14.7	0.9	100.0	496	9.3
35-39	11.5	20.5	10.1	23.3	13.9	19.6	1.2	100.0	431	8.4
40-44	19.1	16.3	10.2	22.0	11.7	20.0	0.6	100.0	306	8.3
45-49	20.4	22.9	9.2	21.1	10.6	15.4	0.3	100.0	285	6.7
50-54	24.9	22.7	7.6	21.7	7.6	13.6	1.9	100.0	273	6.2
55-59	23.5	33.7	11.6	17.3	1.7	11.2	1.0	100.0	210	4.6
60-64	35.0	29.8	11.6	10.8	3.2	7.4	2.2	100.0	233	3.5
65+	55.5	24.4	8.6	8.7	0.6	1.3	0.9	100.0	318	0.0
Residence										
Urban	7.7	29.5	7.1	24.3	16.0	14.9	0.5	100.0	1,946	8.0
Rural	13.5	50.9	8.1	18.0	6.1	2.8	0.6	100.0	6,738	3.9
Region										
Hhohho	13.2	41.0	7.9	21.2	9.2	6.8	0.7	100.0	2,285	5.3
Manzini	7.8	43.5	9.0	20.4	11.1	7.5	0.6	100.0	2,669	5.8
Shiselweni	13.1	51.1	7.6	19.5	6.1	2.5	0.1	100.0	1,940	4.0
Lubombo	16.6	50.9	6.6	15.6	5.2	4.0	1.0	100.0	1,790	3.4
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	24.3	58.5	6.2	8.7	1.4	0.0	0.8	100.0	1,646	2.0
Second	13.3	54.1	9.9	17.4	4.5	0.3	0.4	100.0	1,613	3.7
Middle	10.2	52.3	8.2	20.9	6.7	1.1	0.5	100.0	1,759	4.4
Fourth	9.6	42.0	8.3	25.4	10.3	3.8	0.7	100.0	1,782	5.7
Highest	5.0	26.4	7.0	23.4	17.1	20.5	0.5	100.0	1,884	9.0
Total	12.2	46.1	7.9	19.4	8.3	5.5	0.6	100.0	8,684	4.7
Note: Total includ ¹ Completed 7 th gra ² Completed 5 th gra	es one male v ade at the pri rade at the se	with inform mary level condary lev	nation missing vel	g on age						

2.3.2 School Attendance Rates

Table 2.4 presents primary school and secondary school net and gross attendance ratios (NAR and GAR) for the school year that started in 2005 by household residence and regions. The NAR for primary school is the percentage of the primary-school-age (6-12 years) population that is attending primary school. The NAR for secondary school is the percentage of the secondary-school-age (13-17 years) population that is attending secondary school. By definition, the NAR cannot exceed 100 percent. The GAR for primary school is the total number of primary school students, of any age, expressed as a percentage of the official primary-school-age population. The GAR for secondary school is the total number of secondary school is the total number of secondary school is the total number of overage and underage students at a given level of schooling, the GAR can exceed 100 percent. Youth are considered to be attending school currently if they attended formal academic school at any point during the given school year.

Table 2.4 School attendance ratios

Net attendance ratios (NAR) and gross attendance ratios (GAR) for the de facto household population by sex and level of schooling; and the gender parity index (GPI), according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Net attend	ance ratio ¹			Gross atten	dance ratio ²	
				Gender				Gender
Background	A.4	F	Tard	Parity	14-L-	F I .	Trul	Parity
characteristic	Male	Female	Total	Index	Male	Female	Total	Index
			PRIMAR	RY SCHOOL				
Residence								
Urban	87.7	84.6	86.1	0.96	113.0	99.7	106.1	0.88
Rural	82.1	85.7	83.9	1.05	125.0	118.6	121.8	0.95
Region								
Hhohho	82.0	89.2	85.6	1.09	123.7	117.5	120.6	0.95
Manzini	89.5	87.6	88.5	0.98	126.5	118.0	122.2	0.93
Shiselweni	75.5	80.5	77.9	1.07	112.7	110.5	111.6	0.98
Lubombo	83.8	84.4	84.1	1.01	131.5	116.2	123.8	0.88
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	73.4	79.8	76.6	1.09	118.3	113.7	116.0	0.96
Second	84.2	84.8	84.5	1.01	126.6	117.4	121.9	0.93
Middle	83.7	88.6	86.1	1.06	126.1	120.7	123.5	0.96
Fourth	85.6	88.4	87.0	1.03	127.5	117.5	122.5	0.92
Highest	91.6	88.0	89.8	0.96	117.2	106.9	112.0	0.91
Total	82.9	85.6	84.2	1.03	123.3	115.7	119.5	0.94
			SECOND/	ARY SCHOOL				
Residence								
Urban	52.2	54.2	53.2	1.04	83.1	83.9	83.5	1.01
Rural	27.1	38.1	32.5	1.41	54.1	55.5	54.8	1.03
Region								
Hhohho	32.1	43.5	37.7	1.36	58.5	63.9	61.1	1.09
Manzini	35.7	42.7	39.3	1.20	67.9	61.3	64.5	0.90
Shiselweni	30.3	39.1	34.6	1.29	57.8	58.6	58.2	1.01
Lubombo	22.7	35.1	28.6	1.55	45.1	53.8	49.2	1.19
Wealth guintile								
Lowest	11.7	20.2	15.9	1.73	27.2	29.9	28.5	1.10
Second	25.8	29.8	27.8	1.16	51.8	45.0	48.5	0.87
Middle	26.6	43.4	34.8	1.63	58.0	60.5	59.2	1.04
Fourth	35.7	48.5	42.1	1.36	64.2	76.6	70.4	1.19
Highest	59.5	61.2	60.4	1.03	97.4	87.7	92.3	0.90
Total	30.7	40.5	35.6	1.32	58.2	59.8	59.0	1.03

¹ The NAR for primary school is the percentage of the primary-school-age (6-12 years) population that is attending primary school. The NAR for secondary school is the percentage of the secondary-school-age (13-17 years) population that is attending secondary school. By definition the NAR cannot exceed 100 percent.

² The GAR for primary school is the total number of primary school students, expressed as a percentage of the official primary-school-age population. The GAR for secondary school is the total number of secondary school students, expressed as a percentage of the official secondary-school-age population. If there are significant numbers of overage and underage students at a given level of schooling, the GAR can exceed 100 percent. ³ The GPI for primary school is the ratio of the primary school NAR (GAR) for females to the NAR (GAR) for males. The GPI

for secondary school is the ratio of the secondary school NAR (GAR) for females to the NAR (GAR) for males.

The gender parity index (GPI) assesses sex-related differences in school attendance rates and is calculated by dividing the GAR for females by the GAR for males. A GPI of less than one indicates a gender disparity in favour of males, i.e., a higher proportion of males than females attends that level of schooling. A GPI greater than one indicates a gender disparity in favour of females. A GPI of one indicates parity or equality between the rates of participation for males and females.

Table 2.4 shows that for both boys and girls at primary school level, the overall net attendance ratio (NAR) is 84 percent; 83 percent for males and 86 percent for females. For males, those living in urban areas are much more likely to attend school than rural residents (88 percent compared with 82 percent). For females, however, attendance in the rural and urban areas is similar (86 percent and 85 percent, respectively).

It is worth noting that the GARs for both boys and girls at primary-school level are much higher than 100, signifying that the number of primary-school students of any age is larger than the official primary-school-age population. Across all subgroups of population, the GAR for boys is higher than for girls. The GPI for the GAR is consistently less than one, implying more boys are outside the primary-school age range.

At secondary level, the NARs are very low (36 percent); 31 percent for boys and 41 percent for girls. The ratio is lowest for boys in the rural areas (27 percent), in Lubombo (23 percent), and in the lowest wealth quintile (12 percent). The GPI for NAR at secondary school is 1.32, implying that girls of secondary-school age are more likely than boys in the same age group to attend secondary school. GAR at secondary level is only 59 percent, which implies that there is a significant number of secondary-school-age boys and girls who are not attending secondary school.

Figure 2.2 illustrates age-specific attendance rates. This includes the percentage of population age 5-24 years who attend school, regardless of the level attended (primary, secondary, or higher).





2.3.3 Grade Repetition and Dropout Rates

Repetition and dropout rates presented in Table 2.5 describe the flow of pupils through the educational system in Swaziland at the primary level. The repetition rates indicate the percentage of pupils who attended a particular grade during the school year that started in 2004 who again attended that

same class during the following school year. The dropout rates show the percentage of pupils in a grade during the school year that started in 2005 who no longer attended school the following school year.

The repetition rates generally decline from 23 percent in Grade 1 to 9 percent in Grade 7. There are differentials across subgroups of students, with boys, rural students, and students from households in the lowest wealth quintiles consistently having higher repetition rates than other students. For example, the repetition rates for boys range from 26 percent to 12 percent, while for girls the corresponding rates range from 20 percent to 7 percent. Students in Hhohho have the lowest repetition rates, while those in Lubombo have the highest repetition rates.

Table 2.5	Grade re	petition	and	dro	pout	rates

Repetition and dropout rates for the de facto household population age 5-24 who attended primary school in the previous school year by school grade, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background			Sc	hool gra	ade		
characteristic	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
	RI	EPETITIC	ON RAT	E1			
Sex							
Male	26.4	13.4	18.6	14.8	12.5	13.4	11.8
Female	19.7	8.6	13.9	11.3	10.7	10.4	6.7
Residence							
Urban	22.9	9.2	8.6	8.1	5.4	9.2	8.8
Rural	23.2	11.4	17.6	13.8	12.7	12.3	9.4
Region							
Hhohho	25.3	4.8	8.0	7.5	5.6	16.0	10.2
Manzini	19.9	16.3	16.5	14.1	10.7	9.0	7.6
Shiselweni	23.2	11.8	19.3	13.5	16.2	8.7	11.1
Lubombo	25.7	10.3	22.0	17.1	14.7	14.9	9.0
Wealth guintile							
Lowest	25.6	13.6	19.6	17.6	15.1	9.8	11.2
Second	22.7	12.5	15.2	11.5	13.3	14.0	10.8
Middle	23.5	12.7	17.4	11.1	14.8	16.2	6.9
Fourth	19.6	5.6	18.8	13.5	7.2	10.3	12.8
Highest	23.4	9.6	7.2	11.1	5.7	6.9	5.7
Total	23.2	11.2	16.3	13.0	11.6	11.8	9.3
	D	ROPOL	JT RATE	2			
Sov							
Male	34	5.0	31	32	31	77	8.0
Female	2.6	2.1	2.1	6.4	2.1 2.3	6.9	94
	2.0	2.1	2.1	0.1	1.5	0.5	5.1
Residence	0.7	2.2	0.0	6.6	2.7	0.1	0.0
Urban	0./	2.2	0.0	6.6	3./	9.1	8.9
Kurai	3.4	3.0	3.0	4.5	3./	7.0	0.0
Region							
Hhohho	2.8	0.6	1.0	0.8	3.0	3.9	4.1
Manzini	0.4	1.5	0.7	1.5	2.6	4.6	7.3
Shiselweni	6.7	10.8	6.9	14.3	6.2	15.7	13.9
Lubombo	2./	1.3	1.4	2.3	3.0	4.8	8.9
Wealth quintile							
Lowest	3.5	5.7	3.7	4.5	3.3	4.9	6.8
Second	4.2	4.6	3.6	7.5	2.4	10.2	9.8
Middle	2.5	2.4	3.1	5.1	4.8	7.0	10.1
Fourth	3.2	2.3	0.4	2.8	5.2	7.8	9.7
Highest	0.2	2.0	0.8	4.0	2.9	5.7	5.8
Total	3.0	3.7	2.6	4.8	3.7	7.3	8.6
¹ The repetition rate	e is the pe	ercentag	e of stu	idents ii	n a give	en grade	e in the

¹ The repetition rate is the percentage of students in a given grade in the previous school year who are repeating that grade in the current school year. ² The dropout rate is the percentage of students in a given grade in the previous school year who are not attending school in the current school year. The dropout rates are higher for boys than for girls in the lower grades, but boys' dropout rates are lower than girls' rates. in the higher grades. This may be due to more girls dropping out due to various reasons including a pregnancy. For both boys and girls, the dropout rates increase with grade. Also notable is that children in Shiselweni are more likely to drop out of school than children in other regions. In sum, in Swaziland on average one in three children who started Grade 1 will not complete Grade 7.

2.4 HOUSEHOLD ENVIRONMENT

The physical characteristics of the dwelling in which a household lives are important determinants of the health status of household members, especially children. They can also be used as indicators of the socio-economic status of households. The 2006-07 SDHS respondents were asked a number of questions about their household environment, including questions on the source of drinking water: type of sanitation facility; type of flooring; walls; and roof; and number of rooms in the dwelling. The results are presented both in terms of households and of their usual members.

2.4.1 Drinking Water

Increasing access to improved drinking water is one of the Millennium Development Goals that Swaziland, along with other nations worldwide. has adopted (United Nations General Assembly, 2001). Table 2.6 includes a number of indicators that are useful in monitoring household access to improved drinking water (WHO and UNICEF, 2005). The source of drinking water is an indicator of whether it is suitable for drinking. Sources which are likely to provide water suitable for drinking are identified as improved sources in Table 2.6. They include a piped source within the dwelling or plot, public tap, tube well or borehole, protected well or spring, and rainwater.¹ Lack of ready access to a water source may limit the quantity of suitable drinking water that is available to a household. Even if the water is obtained from an improved source, water that must be fetched from a source that is not immediately accessible to the household may be contaminated during transport or storage. Another factor in considering the accessibility of water sources is the fact that the burden of going for water often falls disproportionately on female members of the household. Finally, home water treatment can be effective in improving the quality of household drinking water.

Seven in ten households in Swaziland obtain water from improved sources. This proportion represents an improvement from the 1997 Population and Housing Census (56 percent). There is a wide variation between urban and rural households (92 percent and 59 percent, respectively). In the ten years since the 1997 Census, rural areas have shown a greater improvement in access to safe water than urban areas. According to the 1997 Population and Housing Census, the proportion of households with safe drinking water is 89 percent in urban areas and 40 percent in rural areas.

Water is available on the premises for 76 percent of households in the urban areas and 27 percent of households in rural areas. Overall, one in four households take 30 or more minutes to obtain water; 4 percent in the urban areas compared with 34 percent in the rural areas.

Getting water is a chore predominantly done by women. Water is collected by women for more than half of the population; 46 percent by women age 15 or older and 7 percent by female children under age 15. This is particularly true in the rural areas, where for 54 percent of the population's water is collected by women age 15 or older and 8 percent by female children under age 15.

¹ The categorisation into improved and non-improved follows that proposed by the WHO/UNICEF Joint Monitoring Programme for Water Supply and Sanitation (WHO and UNICEF, 2004).

Households were further asked if they treat the water before drinking it. A total of 86 percent of households do not treat the water in any way. The most common form of treatment is the use of bleach or chlorine (8 percent).

Table 2.6 Household drinking water

Percent distribution of households and de jure population by source, time to collect, and person who usually collects drinking water; and percentage of households and the de jure population by treatment of drinking water, according to residence, Swaziland 2006-07

		Household	Population			
Characteristic	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total
Source of drinking water						
Improved source	92.2	59.1	69.8	91.9	56.4	63.9
Piped water into dwelling/yard/plot	72.6	22.5	38.7	72.4	19.8	30.9
Public tap/standpipe	15.2	18.7	17.6	14.1	18.5	17.6
Tube well or borehole	2.5	9.0	6.9	3.0	8.6	7.4
Protected dug well	1.2	5.8	4.3	1.3	6.6	5.5
Protected spring	0.5	2.2	1.7	0.9	2.3	2.0
Rainwater	0.1	0.7	0.5	0.2	0.6	0.5
Non-improved source	7.4	40.6	29.9	7.8	43.3	35.8
Unprotected dug well	2.9	12.3	9.3	2.9	13.5	11.2
Unprotected spring	0.8	4.6	3.4	1.2	5.3	4.4
Tanker truck/cart with small tank	1.5	1.6	1.6	1.3	1.2	1.2
Surface water	2.2	22.0	15.6	2.3	23.3	18.9
Other	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.2	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Percentage using any improved source of						
drinking water	92.3	59.1	69.8	91.9	56.4	63.9
Time to obtain drinking water (round trin)						
Water on premises	75.9	27.3	43.0	75.4	24.0	34.8
Less than 30 minutes	19.4	38.0	32.0	20.2	40.0	35.8
30 minutes or longer	4 3	34.2	24.5	3.9	35.5	28.8
Don't know/missing	0.3	0.6	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Person who usually collects drinking						
Adult fomalo 15+	14.5	48.9	378	16.7	54.2	46.3
Adult male $15\pm$	7.0	40.9	10.2	3.0	7.4	40.5
Fomalo child under ago 15	7.0	6.3	4.5	J.J 1 /	7. 4 8.1	6.7
Malo child under ago 15	0.7	2.3	4.J 2.5	1.7	3.5	0.7
Any person	0.5	1.5	1.2	0.5	2.0	17
Other	0.4	0.8	0.6	0.5	0.9	0.7
Water on premises	75.9	27.3	43.0	75.4	24.0	34.8
Missing	0.3	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.1	0.1
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Water treatment prior to drinking ¹						
Boiled	2.0	3.4	3.0	2.0	2.9	2.7
Bleach/chlorine	7.9	8.3	8.2	8.6	8.1	8.2
Strained through cloth	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.1
Ceramic, sand, or other filter	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.4	0.4	0.4
Other	0.0	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.3	0.2
No treatment	84.9	86.6	86.0	84.7	87.5	86.9
Percentage using an appropriate treatment						
method ²	10.4	11.7	11.2	10.8	11.0	11.0
Number	1,565	3,278	4,843	4,705	17,598	22,302

2.4.2 Household Sanitation Facilities

Ensuring adequate sanitation facilities is another of the Millennium Development Goals which Swaziland shares with other countries. A household is classified as having an improved toilet if the toilet is used only by members of one household (i.e., it is not shared) and if the facility used by the household separates the waste from human contact (WHO/UNICEF Joint Monitoring Programme for Water Supply and Sanitation, 2004).

Proper sanitation facilities lead to improved hygiene practices, and ultimately low infant mortality rates. Normally, one would expect the urban areas to have better sanitation facilities, but according to the 2006-07 SDHS, rural households in Swaziland have better sanitation facilities than urban households; 52 percent of the rural households use improved, not shared facilities compared with 44 percent of urban households (Table 2.7). The proportion of households using a flush toilet has declined from 20 percent in the 1997 Population and Housing Census to 15 percent in the 2006-07 SDHS. The majority of households in the urban areas (53 percent) use shared facilities, compared with 22 percent in the rural areas. The proportion of households who have no toilet facility declined from 24 percent in 1997 to 18 percent in the 2006-07 SDHS.

Table 2.7 Household sanitation facilities

Percent distribution of households and de jure population by type of toilet/latrine facilities, according to residence, Swaziland 2006-07

Type of toilet/		Households	5		Population			
latrine facility	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total		
Improved, not shared facility	43.5	52.1	49.4	55.6	56.7	56.5		
Flush/pour flush	34.2	5.4	14.7	39.2	3.7	11.2		
Ordinary pit latrine	7.2	34.0	25.4	13.0	37.7	32.5		
Ventilated improved pit (VIP)								
latrine	2.1	12.7	9.3	3.4	15.3	12.8		
Non-improved facility	56.4	47.8	50.7	44.3	43.3	43.6		
Any facility shared with other								
households	53.1	21.9	32.0	42.3	18.3	23.4		
No facility/bush/field	2.5	25.6	18.2	1.7	24.7	19.9		
Other	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.1		
Missing	0.7	0.2	0.4	0.3	0.2	0.2		
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0		
Number	1,565	3,278	4,843	4,705	17,598	22,302		

2.4.3 Housing Characteristics

Table 2.8 presents information on a number of characteristics of the dwelling in which SDHS households live. These characteristics reflect the household's socioeconomic situation. They also may influence environmental conditions—for example, in the case of the use of biomass fuels, exposure to indoor pollution—that have a direct bearing on the health and welfare of household members.

The use of electricity as an energy source usually goes hand in hand with improved housing structures and a better standard of living. There have been a number of initiatives by the Government of Swaziland to bring electricity to rural areas in recent years. Clinics and schools are the first targets of the programme. Thirty-five percent of households reported having electricity. There are marked differences between urban and rural; only 22 percent of rural households reported using electricity compared with 63 percent of urban households.

Table 2.8 Housing characteristics

Percent distribution of households and de jure population by housing characteristics and percentage using solid fuel for cooking; and among those using solid fuels, percent distribution by type of fire/stove, according to residence, Swaziland 2006-07

Housing		Households			Population	
characteristic	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total
Electricity						
Yes	63.4	21.7	35.2	65.2	20.2	29.7
No	36.6	78.3	64.8	34.8	79.8	70.3
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Flooring material						
Earth, sand	1.2	3.8	3.0	1.4	3.2	2.8
Dung Wood/planks	0.4	12.0	8.2	0.5	12.0	9.6
Parquet or polished wood	0.4	0.0	0.1	0.3	0.0	0.1
Vinyl or asphalt strips	2.7	0.1	1.0	3.1	0.1	0.7
Ceramic tiles	9.6	2.5	4.8	12.6	2.2	4.4
Cement	80.3	80.4	80.3	75.9	81.4	80.2
Carpet Other/missing	4.9	1.1	2.3	5.4	1.0	1.9
	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.5	0.1	0.1
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Wall material	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.0
Cane/paim/trunks	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.2	0.2
Bamboo with mud	4.7	3.3	9.7	4.0	3.0	2.6
Stone with mud	4.6	11.5	9.3	5.1	11.8	10.3
Plywood	0.4	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.1	0.1
Réused wood	0.4	0.3	0.3	0.7	0.4	0.4
Cement	51.7	29.9	37.0	52.6	30.2	34.9
Stone with lime/ cement	2.2	5.9	4./	2.3	6.3	5.4
Bricks Cement blocks	3.9 27.5	3.Z 28.2	3.4 28.0	3.2 26.9	2./	2.8
Mud blocks	27.5	4.7	4.0	20.5	4.9	4.4
Wood planks/shingles	0.4	0.2	0.3	0.3	0.1	0.1
Other	0.3	0.4	0.3	0.3	0.2	0.2
Missing	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Roofing material						
Grass	0.4	16.9	11.5	0.5	17.4	13.8
Wood planks	0.2	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.0	0.0
Corrugated iron	81./ 10 E	80.6	80.9	82.6	80.5	80.9
Tiloc	5.6	0.5	3.0	6.6	0.1	1.9
Slate	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.0
Concrete	1.0	0.1	0.4	1.0	0.0	0.2
Other	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.1
Missing	0.2	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Rooms used for sleeping						
One	54.2	25.7	34.9	35.5	14.6	19.0
Two	25.3	32.2	30.0	30.3	29.6	29.8
Inree or more Missing	20.3	41.8	34.8	34.1 0.1	55.6	51.0
	0.2	0.5	0.5	0.1	0.2	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Place for cooking						
In the house	83.9	30.0	47.4	78.9	24.5	35.9
In a separate building	11.4	57.2	42.4	15.8	63.4	53.3
Outdoors	3.6	12.4	9.5	4.9	12.0	10.5
Missing	1.0	0.1	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.0
T . 1	1.4	0.4	0.0	0.4	0.1	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
					Conti	nued

Table 2.8—Continued								
Housing		Household	s		Population			
characteristic	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total		
Cooking fuel								
Electricity	41.0	8.1	18.7	40.0	5.2	12.6		
Gas	29.8	9.4	16.0	29.3	6.4	11.2		
Coal	0.8	0.1	0.3	0.7	0.1	0.2		
Charcoal	0.9	0.2	0.4	0.7	0.3	0.4		
Wood	11.4	78.3	56.7	17.4	86.2	71.7		
Paraffin	14.7	3.5	7.1	11.3	1.6	3.7		
No food cooked in household	1.2	0.4	0.6	0.4	0.1	0.2		
Other	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.1		
Missing	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.1		
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0		
Percentage using solid fuel for cooking	13.2	78.6	57.4	18.8	86.6	72.3		
Number of households	1,565	3,278	4,843	4,705	17,598	22,302		

The type of material used for flooring is an indicator of socioeconomic status, and to some extent determines the household's vulnerability to exposure to disease-causing agents. Four in five households have a cement floor. Cow dung is more prevalent in rural than in urban areas (12 percent compared with less than 1 percent), while ceramic tiles are more often in urban than in rural households (10 percent compared with 3 percent).

Good-quality walls ensure that household members are protected from harsh weather conditions, and therefore exposure to hazardous factors. According to the 2006-07 SDHS, cement is the most often used material for outer walls (37 percent), followed by cement blocks (28 percent). Urban houses are much more likely than rural houses to have cement walls (52 percent compared with 30 percent).

The most common form of roofing for both rural and urban areas is corrugated iron (81 percent). Grass is the second most preferred type of roofing material and is almost exclusively used in rural areas (17 percent). Asbestos is used in 4 percent of households, mostly in urban areas. Tiles are also used as roofing material; they are used in 6 percent of households in urban areas and 2 percent of households in rural areas.

Congestion is an undesirable condition that can have adverse health effects. The number of rooms used for sleeping is therefore an indicator of the level of crowding. Most households have either one room (35 percent) or three rooms or more (35 percent) for sleeping. However, in terms of the population, more than half (51 percent) of all the people are living in households where there are three or more rooms for sleeping. One may conclude that overcrowding is not yet a problem in Swaziland.

Describing the cooking place as being indoors or outdoors is helpful in understanding the level of food exposure to harmful elements. Nine in ten households cook indoors, with 47 percent cooking in the house and 42 percent in a separate building. The latter is more common in rural areas (57 percent) compared than in urban areas (11 percent).

The type of fuel used for cooking may have a direct effect on people's health status, and is also an indicator of a household's socioeconomic status. Fifty-seven percent of households, or 72 percent of the population, use wood for cooking. There are marked differentials in cooking fuel between rural and urban households; 78 percent of rural households use wood, while 41 percent of urban households use electricity and 30 percent use gas. A significant proportion of households in urban areas (15 percent) use paraffin for cooking.

Windows are important for health reasons as they provide ventilation and light. The results of the 2006-07 SDHS show that most houses in Swaziland have some type of windows (96 percent); the proportion is lower in rural areas than in urban areas (95 percent compared with 99 percent). Glass and curtains are common in both urban and rural areas (86-96 percent). Wooden windows are more common in rural than in urban areas (15 percent compared with 6 percent).

Table 2.9 Type of windows											
Percent distribution of households and de jure population using different types of windows, according to residence and region, Swaziland 2006-07											
		Household	5		Populatio	n					
Type of windows	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total					
Any windows	99.1	94.8	96.2	99.1	95.7	96.4					
Windows with glass	96.1	87.5	90.3	96.4	89.5	90.9					
Windows with screens	5.6	1.9	3.1	5.7	2.1	2.8					
Windows with curtains	94.9	86.0	88.9	95.0	88.2	89.6					
Wooden windows	5.7	14.5	11.6	5.9	15.8	13.7					
Other windows	3.7	4.0	3.9	4.0	4.2	4.1					
Number of households	1,565	3,278	4,843	4,705	17,598	22,302					

2.5 HOUSEHOLD POSSESSIONS

The availability of durable consumer goods is a good indicator of a household's socioeconomic status. Moreover, each particular item has specific benefits. For instance, having access to a radio or a television exposes household members to innovative ideas; a refrigerator prolongs the wholesomeness of foods; and a means of transport allows greater access to many services away from the local area. Table 2.10 shows the availability of selected consumer goods by residence.

The most popular household effects are a watch/clock and a radio (each 77 percent). These items are available in urban areas and in rural areas. Stoves are also available in the majority of households—62 percent of households have a stove. One in three households has a TV set and a refrigerator. The majority of households in Swaziland have access to communication network, because 60 percent have access to a mobile phone.

The most common means of transportation is a car or truck (19 percent), followed by bicycle (10 percent). The use of a motorcycle/scooter, tractor, and animal-drawn cart is very limited.

Six in ten households in Swaziland own agricultural land. However, as expected, there is a significant variation between rural and urban households; 17 percent of urban households have agricultural land compared with 80 percent of rural households. This differential is also observed on ownership of farm animals; 74 percent of households in rural areas have farm animals compared with 9 percent in urban areas.

More than half (52 percent) of households reported a household member with a bank account. Access to formal monetary services varies by residence; 69 percent in urban areas compared with 43 percent in rural areas.

Table 2.10 Household possessions

Percentage of households and de jure population possessing various household effects, means of transportation, agricultural land and livestock/farm animals by residence, Swaziland 2006-07

	Households				Population		
Possession	Urban	Rural	Total	Urban	Rural	Total	
Household effects							
Radio	82.1	73.7	76.5	84.0	75.7	77.4	
Television	54.4	26.4	35.4	62.1	28.0	35.2	
Mobile telephone	75.1	53.3	60.3	78.0	58.1	62.3	
Non-mobile telephone	20.1	8.7	12.4	28.0	9.8	13.6	
Refrigerator	51.1	26.4	34.4	58.8	28.4	34.8	
Stove	87.8	49.7	62.0	88.4	49.8	57.9	
Watch/clock	83.8	73.5	76.9	87.9	77.4	79.6	
Means of transport							
Bicycle	9.4	9.5	9.5	12.4	10.9	11.2	
Motorcycle/scooter	1.6	0.5	0.9	1.7	0.5	0.8	
Animal drawn cart	0.3	2.9	2.1	0.2	4.3	3.4	
Car/truck	24.5	15.6	18.5	32.2	17.1	20.3	
Tractor	0.6	4.9	3.5	0.7	6.7	5.5	
Ownership of agricultural land	16.5	79.5	59.1	21.6	86.1	72.5	
Ownership of farm animals ¹	8.8	74.2	53.1	15.2	84.3	69.7	
Household member with bank							
account	69.3	43.3	51.7	72.4	44.6	50.4	
Number	1,565	3,278	4,843	4,705	17,598	22,302	
¹ Cattle, cows, bulls, horses, donkeys	, mules, goat	ts, sheep, or	· chickens				

2.6 WEALTH INDEX

The wealth index is a background characteristic that is used throughout the report as a proxy for long-term standard of living of the household. It is based on the data on the household's ownership of consumer goods; dwelling characteristics; type of drinking water source; toilet facilities; and other characteristics that are related to a household's socioeconomic status. To construct the index, each of these assets was assigned a weight (factor score) generated through principal component analysis, and the resulting asset scores were standardized in relation to a standard normal distribution with a mean of zero and standard deviation of one (Gwatkin et al., 2000). Each household was then assigned a score for each asset, and the scores were summed for each household. Individuals were ranked according to the total score of the household in which they resided. The sample was then divided into quintiles from one (lowest) to five (highest). A single asset index was developed on the basis of data from the entire country sample and this index is used in all the tabulations presented.

Table 2.11 shows the distribution of the de jure household population into five wealth levels (quintiles) based on the wealth index by residence and region. This distribution indicates the degree to which wealth is evenly (or unevenly) distributed by geographic areas. Six in ten of the population residing in urban areas are from the richest quintile. On the other hand, half of rural residents are in the two poorest quintiles. In terms of households, 55 percent of households in the urban areas are in the highest quintile, compared with 13 percent of households in the rural areas.

Table 2.11 Wealth quintiles

Percent distribution of the de jure population and households by wealth quintiles, according to residence and region, Swaziland 2006-07 $\,$

Residence/		V	Vealth quint	ile			Number of
region	Lowest	Second	Middle	Fourth	Highest	Total	population
			POPUL	ATION			
Residence							_
Urban	1.3	3.5	11.1	25.9	58.2	100.0	4,705
Rural	25.0	24.4	22.4	18.4	9.8	100.0	17,598
Region							
Hhohho	15.2	18.2	21.2	20.3	25.1	100.0	5,830
Manzini	10.9	19.1	19.3	24.2	26.6	100.0	6,900
Shiselweni	26.8	22.8	23.8	19.0	7.6	100.0	5,121
Lubombo	32.6	20.7	15.2	14.1	17.5	100.0	4,451
Total	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	100.0	22,302
			HOUSEH	IOLD			
Residence							
Urban	0.9	2.7	11.5	29.9	55.0	100.0	1,565
Rural	24.7	23.2	20.9	18.2	12.9	100.0	3,278
Region							
Hhohho	12.2	14.9	18.9	23.2	30.7	100.0	1,370
Manzini	9.4	14.6	17.4	26.0	32.5	100.0	1,537
Shiselweni	26.3	21.9	21.9	19.3	10.7	100.0	931
Lubombo	26.6	17.1	13.5	16.7	26.2	100.0	1,005
Total	17.0	16.6	17.9	22.0	26.5	100.0	4,843

Among the four regions, households in Manzini and Hhohho are more likely to fall in the highest wealth quintile than those living in the other regions. In these regions, the proportion of households or population increases with the wealth quintile. Hhohho has the most even distribution of wealth, which may be explained by the fact that this region houses the Government headquarters, where the income of civil servants and other professionals is relatively evenly distributed. On the other hand, the Shiselweni and Lubombo regions have the highest proportion of the population in the lowest wealth quintile (26-27 percent). In Shiselweni, the proportion of households or population decreases with an increase in the wealth quintile. Lubombo presents the most skewed distribution of wealth, with 53 percent of its population in the two poorest quintiles and 18 percent of the population in the highest quintile. The situation in Lubombo may be explained by the fact that the only significant economic activity in this region is the sugar industry.

2.7 **BIRTH REGISTRATION**

The registration of births is the inscription of the facts of the birth into an official log kept at the registrar's office. A birth certificate is issued at the time of registration or later as proof of the registration of the birth. Birth registration is basic to ensuring a child's legal status and, thus, basic rights and services (UNICEF, 2006; United Nations General Assembly, 2002). The registration of vital events in most developing countries is a function of a number of socioeconomic factors. Registration of births is mandatory in Swaziland. However, for most families this is delayed until such time as it may be needed as a requirement to start schooling. Not all children who are registered may have a birth certificate since some certificates may have been lost or were never issued. However, all children with a certificate have been registered.

Table 2.11 presents the percentage of children under five years of age whose births were officially registered and the percentage who had a birth certificate at the time of the survey. Overall, 30 percent of births in the past five years were registered and 20 percent had a birth certificate. Older children are more likely than younger children to have been registered; 35 percent of children age 2-4 years were registered compared with 22 percent of children under age 2. The SDHS reveals that there is no difference in birth registration according to sex. Children in urban areas are more likely to be registered and have a birth certificate than rural children (38 percent compared with 28 percent). According to administrative regions, Hhohho has the highest proportion of registered births (35 percent), followed by Manzini (31 percent), and Shiselweni (28 percent). Lubombo has the lowest birth registration coverage (24 percent). Coverage of birth registration increases with wealth status; it ranges from 18 percent for children in the lowest wealth quintile to 50 percent for children in the highest wealth quintile.

Table 2.12 Birth registration of children under age five

	Percenta birt	age of childrei hs are registei	n whose red	
	Had a	Did not		
Background	birth	have a birth	Total	Number of
characteristic	certificate	certificate	registered	children
Age				
<2	11.7	10.0	21.6	1,265
2-4	25.4	9.8	35.1	1,953
Sex				
Male	19.9	9.9	29.8	1,600
Female	20.1	9.7	29.8	1,618
Residence				
Urban	29.2	8.9	38.1	555
Rural	18.1	10.0	28.1	2,664
Region				
Hhohho	24.9	10.1	35.0	835
Manzini	22.2	8.3	30.5	966
Shiselweni	16.5	11.5	28.0	779
Lubombo	14.5	9.8	24.3	638
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	8.9	8.9	17.7	745
Second	13.9	10.8	24.7	754
Middle	21.4	10.1	31.5	627
Fourth	22.1	10.8	32.8	601
Highest	41.8	8.4	50.2	491
T . I	20.0	0.0	20.0	2.240

Percentage of de jure children under five years of age whose births are registered with the civil authorities, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

CHARACTERISTICS OF RESPONDENTS

Henry Ginindza and Petronella Mamba

This chapter provides a profile of the respondents who were interviewed in the 2006-07 Swaziland DHS, including youth age 12-14, men and women age 15-49, and older adults age 50 and older. First, information is presented on a number of basic characteristics including age at the time of the survey, religion, marital status, residence, education, literacy, and media access. Then, the chapter explores adults' employment status, occupation, and earnings. An analysis of these variables provides the socioeconomic context within which demographic and reproductive health issues are examined in the subsequent chapters.

3.1 CHARACTERISTICS OF SURVEY RESPONDENTS

Table 3.1.1 presents the distribution of women and men age 15-49 by age, religion, marital status, urban-rural residence, region, education level, and wealth quintile. For both sexes, the proportion in each age group tends to decrease with increasing age. A high proportion of the respondents are young adults age 15-24 (47 percent of women and 53 percent of men). The majority of respondents are Zionists (37 percent each of women and men). One in four women and 18 percent of men are Protestants. A large proportion of men reported no religion.

Half of women have never been married, compared with 66 percent of men. Thirty-two percent of women and 23 percent of men are currently married. Ten percent of women and 6 percent of men are living together with their partners, 3 percent of women and 4 percent of men are divorced or separated, and 6 percent of women and 1 percent of men are widowed. Women and men are distributed almost equally by urban-rural residence and across regions.

Women are as likely as men to have no education. However, men are slightly more likely than women to have reached higher education levels. For instance, 21 percent of men have attended high school compared with 18 percent of women. Overall, slightly over 50 percent of the population have attained secondary education and above.

Table 3.1.2 shows the background characteristics of the 465 girls and 409 boys age 12-14 interviewed in the survey. The boys and girls are almost evenly distributed by age. About 88 percent of these boys and girls live in rural areas. Between 24-29 percent of boys and girls live in the Hhohho, Manzini, or Shiselweni regions, and only 20-21 percent live in the Lubombo region.

The distribution of the respondents by education is skewed, because of the small numbers of boys and girls age 12-14 who have no education and who have secondary or higher education. While girls age 12-14 are less likely than boys to be in lower primary school (28 percent of girls compared with 43 percent of boys), they are more likely than boys of the same age to attend higher primary school (61 percent of girls compared with 50 percent of boys).

Table 3.1.3 shows the distribution of women and men age 50 and older who were interviewed in the survey. It is interesting to note that 59 percent of women and 56 percent of men are 60 years or older. As in the case of younger populations, 87 percent of women and 82 percent of men live in the rural areas. Also, three in ten each of women and men are in Manzini, between 22-29 percent of women and men are in Hhohho and Shiselweni, and 19 percent or less are in Lubombo. Education among older adults is limited; 41 percent of women and 38 percent of men in this age group have had no education.

Table 3.1.1 B	Background	characteristics of res	pondents: \	Women and m	nen 15-49

		Women			Men	
Background	Weighted	Weighted	Unweighted	Weighted	Weighted	Unweighted
Characteristic	percent	number	number	percent	number	number
Age						
15-19	25.5	1,274	1,265	31.8	1,323	1,257
20-24	21.0	1,046	1,027	21.3	886	878
25-29	14.6	729	732	15.0	624	639
30-34	12.3	616	630	10.4	431	449
35-39	10.1	503	508	8.8	367	395
40-44	8.8	438	442	6.5	269	284
45-49	7.7	383	383	6.2	256	254
Religion						
Charismatic	17.8	887	898	10.8	448	443
Protestant	24.1	1,203	1,191	17.8	741	752
Roman Catholic	4.7	232	244	5.1	212	205
Pentecostal	3.8	191	195	2.4	99	103
Zionist	36.7	1,832	1,820	37.1	1,542	1,533
Apostolic Sect	7.3	365	356	6.1	252	248
None	4.0	197	203	18.7	775	780
Other	1.5	76	77	2.0	86	90
Marital status						
Never married	49.9	2,487	2,486	65.8	2,734	2,680
Married	31.9	1,589	1,581	23.3	970	1,032
Living together	9.5	473	488	6.0	249	249
Divorced/separated	3.2	161	159	3.5	145	141
Widowed	5.6	277	273	1.4	58	54
Residence						
Urban	26.7	1,330	1,544	28.4	1,181	1,441
Rural	73.3	3,657	3,443	71.6	2,975	2,715
Region						
Hhohho	26.9	1,340	1,263	26.5	1,099	1,019
Manzini	33.0	1,647	1,475	32.5	1,349	1,186
Shiselweni	20.7	1,033	1,083	20.3	843	838
Lubombo	19.4	966	1,166	20.8	865	1,113
Education						
No education	8.1	402	413	7.6	316	332
Lower primary	7.2	360	374	11.3	470	457
Higher primary	25.4	1,268	1,262	23.6	980	971
Secondary	33.9	1,693	1,647	28.6	1,191	1,180
High school	17.9	894	894	20.5	852	838
Tertiary	7.4	370	397	8.3	347	378
Wealth guintile						
Lowest	15.7	785	778	14.5	601	585
Second	17.3	862	857	16.0	665	639
Middle	19.4	968	934	20.6	856	787
Fourth	22.3	1,111	1,059	22.9	953	922
Highest	25.3	1,262	1,359	26.0	1,081	1,223
Total 15-49	100.0	4,987	4.987	100.0	4 1 5 6	4 156

completed. Total includes three women and two men with information missing on religion.

|--|

Percent distribution of girls and boys age 12-14 by selected background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	0 /	0	,	0		
		Girls age 12-1	4		Boys age 12-1	4
Background characteristic	Weighted percent	Weighted number	Unweighted number	Weighted percent	Weighted number	Unweighted number
Age	•			•		
12	31.3	146	152	33.8	138	139
13	33.1	154	146	31.9	130	130
14	35.5	165	161	34.3	140	142
Residence						
Urban	12.2	57	75	11.7	48	55
Rural	87.8	408	384	88.3	361	356
Region						
Hhohho	25.2	117	113	27.1	111	110
Manzini	29.5	137	130	28.7	117	112
Shiselweni	24.8	116	110	23.9	98	95
Lubombo	20.5	95	106	20.2	83	94
Education						
No education	*	7	9	*	13	13
Lower primary	27.7	129	125	42.6	174	176
Higher primary	60.6	282	280	49.5	202	201
Secondary +	(10.2)	47	45	*	20	21
Total 12-14	100.0	465	459	100.0	409	411

Note: Education categories refer to the highest level of education attended, whether or not that level was completed. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases.

Table 3.1.3 Background characteristics of respondents: Older adults age 50+

Percent distribution of women and men age 50 and over by selected background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07 $\,$

	١	Women age 50)+		Men age 50+	-
Background characteristic	Weighted percent	Weighted number	Unweighted number	Weighted percent	Weighted number	Unweighted number
Age						
50-54	24.6	164	164	26.0	116	126
55-59	16.8	112	111	18.0	80	87
60+	58.7	392	386	56.0	249	243
Residence						
Urban	12.9	86	104	17.7	79	96
Rural	87.1	583	557	82.3	365	360
Region						
Hhohho	25.0	167	158	28.6	127	125
Manzini	31.3	209	193	30.6	136	133
Shiselweni	27.8	186	186	22.0	98	100
Lubombo	15.9	107	124	18.9	84	98
Education						
No education	41.4	277	275	38.4	171	175
Lower primary	22.5	151	141	18.1	80	80
Higher primary	22.2	149	147	19.2	85	84
Secondary	9.0	60	60	13.5	60	63
High school +	(1.0)	31	37	3.1	47	53
Total 50+	100.0	669	661	100.0	444	456

Note: Education categories refer to the highest level of education attended, whether or not that level was completed. Figure in parentheses is based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

3.2 EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT BY BACKGROUND CHARACTERISTICS

Tables 3.2.1 and 3.2.2 present an overview of the relationship between the respondent's level of education and other background characteristics. Table 3.2.1 shows that younger people are better educated than older people; while 19 percent of women age 15-24 have attended high school, the corresponding proportion for women age 45-49 is only 5 percent. Urban women, women in Manzini and Hhohho, and women in the highest wealth quintile are better educated than other women. Among urban women, 24 percent have completed secondary education compared with 16 percent of their rural counterparts. Also, women in urban areas are four times more likely to have attained tertiary education (16 percent) compared with women in rural areas (4 percent). Across regions, women in Lubombo are the least educated.

Table 3.2.1 Educational attainment by background characteristics: Women 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by highest level of schooling attended or completed, and median years completed, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		F	lighest edu	cational level				Median	
Background	No	Lower	Higher		High			years	Number of
characteristic	education	primary	primary	Secondary	school	Tertiary	Total	completed	women
Age									
15-24	3.7	6.0	27.4	41.9	18.6	2.4	100.0	7.9	2,320
15-19	2.1	6.5	33.4	45.2	12.3	0.5	100.0	7.5	1,274
20-24	5.6	5.3	20.2	37.9	26.2	4.8	100.0	8.6	1,046
25-29	7.1	5.0	19.7	28.0	28.7	11.5	100.0	9.0	729
30-34	8.5	6.2	23.7	28.8	19.6	13.3	100.0	8.6	616
35-39	10.9	10.7	24.8	27.1	12.9	13.7	100.0	7.8	503
40-44	16.5	11.8	25.1	25.3	10.9	10.4	100.0	6.6	438
45-49	22.4	11.0	28.3	24.2	5.4	8.6	100.0	6.0	383
Residence									
Urban	5.1	3.9	17.5	32.7	24.4	16.4	100.0	9.3	1,330
Rural	9.2	8.4	28.3	34.4	15.6	4.2	100.0	7.4	3,657
Region									
Hhohho	8.1	5.7	23.4	35.9	17.4	9.5	100.0	8.3	1,340
Manzini	5.1	5.5	24.5	34.1	21.3	9.5	100.0	8.5	1,647
Shiselweni	5.9	7.0	28.3	36.2	18.5	4.2	100.0	7.8	1,033
Lubombo	15.4	12.5	26.8	28.6	12.4	4.4	100.0	6.5	966
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	18.9	18.1	33.5	22.5	7.0	0.0	100.0	5.4	785
Second	13.2	10.2	33.3	32.0	10.8	0.5	100.0	6.5	862
Middle	5.8	6.8	31.7	38.4	15.9	1.3	100.0	7.5	968
Fourth	4.6	3.7	21.8	42.4	23.9	3.7	100.0	8.7	1,111
Highest	2.6	1.8	13.4	31.5	26.0	24.7	100.0	10.1	1,262
Total	8.1	7.2	25.4	33.9	17.9	7.4	100.0	8.0	4,987

Table 3.2.2 shows that the pattern for men is similar to that for women. For example, urban men, men in Manzini and Hhohho, and men in the highest wealth quintile are also better educated than other men. The median years of schooling completed for women and men is also similar—8.0 years for women and 7.9 years for men.

Table 3.2.2 Educational attainment by background characteristics: Men 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by highest level of schooling attended or completed, and median years completed, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Н	lighest edu	cational level				Median	
Background	No	Lower	Higher		High			years	Number o
characteristic	education	primary	primary	Secondary	school	Tertiary	Total	completed	men
Age									
15-24	3.7	12.7	28.5	34.4	18.4	2.4	100.0	7.5	2,209
15-19	3.2	14.5	34.8	37.3	10.0	0.2	100.0	6.8	1,323
20-24	4.3	9.9	19.1	30.0	30.9	5.7	100.0	8.7	886
25-29	8.2	6.8	16.9	27.6	29.8	10.7	100.0	9.0	624
30-34	8.2	12.0	16.8	16.3	32.6	14.1	100.0	9.6	431
35-39	12.2	11.6	19.3	22.1	14.9	20.0	100.0	8.2	367
40-44	18.1	8.4	19.5	20.6	12.8	20.7	100.0	8.1	269
45-49	21.9	11.8	19.4	20.2	12.2	14.4	100.0	6.6	256
Residence									
Urban	6.2	6.2	15.1	27.1	27.2	18.1	100.0	9.5	1,181
Rural	8.2	13.3	27.0	29.3	17.8	4.5	100.0	7.2	2,975
Region									
Hhohho	8.5	8.6	20.6	30.9	21.8	9.6	100.0	8.4	1,099
Manzini	5.2	8.2	23.0	28.0	24.2	11.4	100.0	8.5	1,349
Shiselweni	5.6	14.6	25.9	31.2	19.0	3.6	100.0	7.4	843
Lubombo	12.2	16.5	25.9	24.3	14.5	6.6	100.0	6.4	865
Wealth guintile									
Lowest	17.5	25.1	32.7	18.3	6.4	0.0	100.0	4.7	601
Second	8.7	14.2	31.7	31.1	14.0	0.3	100.0	6.6	665
Middle	6.0	12.9	29.7	32.9	17.1	1.4	100.0	7.1	856
Fourth	5.9	8.1	21.4	33.6	25.2	5.7	100.0	8.4	953
Highest	4.2	3.3	10.7	25.2	30.8	25.7	100.0	11.0	1,081
Total 15-49	7.6	11.3	23.6	28.6	20.5	8.3	100.0	7.9	4,156

3.3 LITERACY

The ability to read and write is an important personal asset, allowing individuals increased opportunities in life. Knowing the distribution of the literate population can facilitate programme managers, especially in health and family planning, in designing messages to reach women and men. The 2006-07 SDHS assessed the ability to read among women and men who had never been to school or who had attended only the primary level by asking respondents to read a simple and short sentence.² Tables 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 show the percent distribution of female and male respondents, by level of literacy and percent literate according to background characteristics.

Overall, 91 percent of Swazi women age 15-49 are literate. Six in ten women have attended secondary or higher education and among those who have no education or had attended or are attending primary school, 32 percent can read a whole sentence or part of a sentence. Younger women, women in urban areas, and those who are in the highest wealth quintile are more likely to be literate than other women. The literacy rate is lowest among women in Lubombo.

Table 3.3.2 shows that the pattern for men is similar to that for women. For example, literacy rates are higher for younger men, urban men, and men in the highest wealth quintile than for other men. Across regions, men in Lubombo also have the lowest literacy rate.

² The sentence is: "The radio programme on health issues is brought to you by Muhle Dlamini."

Table 3.3.1 Literacy: Women 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by level of schooling attended and level of literacy, and percentage literate, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			No schoo	ling or prima					
	Secondary	Can read	Can read		Blind/	<u> </u>			
Background	school or	a whole	part of a	Cannot	visually			Percentage	
characteristic	higher	sentence	sentence	read at all	impaired	Missing	Total	literate ¹	Number
Age									
15-19	58.0	33.0	4.7	3.4	0.0	0.9	100.0	95.7	1,274
20-24	68.9	20.0	4.3	6.4	0.1	0.4	100.0	93.2	1,046
25-29	68.2	18.2	5.5	7.5	0.2	0.5	100.0	91.9	729
30-34	61.6	24.1	6.6	6.7	0.1	0.9	100.0	92.3	616
35-39	53.7	26.4	9.6	9.8	0.2	0.3	100.0	89.7	503
40-44	46.6	29.3	8.2	15.5	0.2	0.2	100.0	84.1	438
45-49	38.3	30.5	10.5	18.3	1.9	0.4	100.0	79.4	383
Residence									
Urban	73.5	16.2	4.4	4.9	0.0	1.1	100.0	94.0	1,330
Rural	54.1	29.3	6.9	9.0	0.3	0.4	100.0	90.3	3,657
Region									
Hhohho	62.8	23.0	6.8	7.0	0.0	0.4	100.0	92.6	1,340
Manzini	64.9	23.6	5.0	5.3	0.2	1.1	100.0	93.5	1,647
Shiselweni	58.9	28.0	5.9	6.1	0.8	0.2	100.0	92.8	1,033
Lubombo	45.3	31.2	7.8	15.3	0.2	0.2	100.0	84.3	966
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	29.5	36.3	12.8	20.9	0.1	0.3	100.0	78.6	785
Second	43.3	35.8	8.1	11.5	0.9	0.4	100.0	87.2	862
Middle	55.6	31.2	6.3	5.7	0.3	0.8	100.0	93.1	968
Fourth	70.0	21.6	3.7	4.3	0.1	0.3	100.0	95.3	1,111
Highest	82.2	12.0	2.9	2.1	0.0	0.8	100.0	97.1	1,262
Total	59.3	25.8	6.2	7.9	0.3	0.6	100.0	91.3	4,987

Table 3.3.2 Literacy: Men 15-49

Percent distribution of men age 15-49 by level of schooling attended and level of literacy, and percentage literate, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Secondary school or higher	Can read a whole sentence	Can read part of a sentence	Cannot read at all	No card with required language	Blind/ visually impaired	Missing	Total	Percentage literate ¹	Number
Аде										
15-19	47.5	34.5	8.6	8.9	0.1	0.1	0.4	100.0	90.5	1.323
20-24	66.6	17.3	7.3	8.0	0.3	0.0	0.4	100.0	91.3	886
25-29	68.1	17.2	7.0	7.0	0.3	0.1	0.2	100.0	92.3	624
30-34	63.0	19.4	7.9	9.3	0.0	0.2	0.3	100.0	90.2	431
35-39	57.0	22.6	10.0	10.0	0.0	0.0	0.4	100.0	89.6	367
40-44	54.0	19.8	8.7	17.0	0.5	0.0	0.0	100.0	82.5	269
45-49	46.9	21.5	11.1	19.1	0.0	0.8	0.6	100.0	79.5	256
Residence										
Urban	72.5	15.3	5.3	6.6	0.2	0.0	0.1	100.0	93.2	1,181
Rural	51.5	27.3	9.5	10.9	0.2	0.2	0.5	100.0	88.3	2,975
Region										
Hhohho	62.3	21.0	8.3	7.8	0.1	0.2	0.3	100.0	91.6	1,099
Manzini	63.6	20.8	6.3	8.5	0.3	0.2	0.3	100.0	90.7	1,349
Shiselweni	53.8	26.5	10.3	9.0	0.0	0.0	0.3	100.0	90.6	843
Lubombo	45.4	29.7	9.4	14.7	0.2	0.0	0.5	100.0	84.5	865
Wealth guintile										
Lowest	24.7	39.8	12.7	21.6	0.1	0.1	0.8	100.0	77.3	601
Second	45.4	32.3	9.6	11.9	0.2	0.3	0.4	100.0	87.3	665
Middle	51.4	28.0	10.2	9.9	0.2	0.1	0.1	100.0	89.6	856
Fourth	64.6	19.0	8.0	7.5	0.2	0.1	0.7	100.0	91.5	953
Highest	81.7	10.8	3.8	3.5	0.1	0.0	0.0	100.0	96.4	1,081
Total 15-49	57.5	23.9	8.3	9.7	0.2	0.1	0.4	100.0	89.6	4,156

The 2006-07 SDHS also assessed literacy among youth age 12-14 and older adults age 50 and older. Table 3.3.3 shows the extent of literacy among children age 12-14. Overall, 97 percent of girls age 12-14 and 88 percent of boys of the same age are literate. For both girls and boys, there are virtually no differences in literacy level across age, urban-rural residence, and region.

Table 3.3.3 Literacy: Youth age 12-14

Percent distribution of girls and boys age 12-14 by level of schooling attended and level of literacy, and percentage literate, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			No scho	oling or prin	nary school				
	Secondary	Can read	Can read		No card with				
Background	school or	a whole	part of a	Cannot	required			Percentage	
characteristic	higher	sentence	sentence	read at all	language	Missing	Total	literate	Number
			(GIRLS AGE 1	2-14				
Age									
12	0.6	75.0	21.3	3.1	0.0	0.0	100.0	96.9	146
13	7.8	79.9	8.7	3.0	0.0	0.6	100.0	96.4	154
14	20.8	68.8	7.2	2.8	0.0	0.5	100.0	96.8	165
Residence									
Urban	21.2	74.0	2.9	0.6	0.0	1.3	100.0	98.1	57
Rural	8.6	74.5	13.4	3.3	0.0	0.2	100.0	96.5	408
Region									
Hhohho	7.8	79.1	9.8	3.4	0.0	0.0	100.0	96.6	117
Manzini	13.4	71.7	13.4	0.9	0.0	0.5	100.0	98.5	137
Shiselweni	10.4	69.8	17.6	2.2	0.0	0.0	100.0	97.8	116
Lubombo	8.1	78.2	6.4	6.3	0.0	1.0	100.0	92.7	95
Total 12-14	10.2	74.4	12.1	3.0	0.0	0.4	100.0	96.7	465
			E	Boys Age 1	2-14				
Age									
12	0.0	65.5	16.1	17.8	0.6	0.0	100.0	81.6	138
13	3.9	74.5	14.5	7.1	0.0	0.0	100.0	92.9	130
14	10.5	63.7	14.5	10.6	0.0	0.7	100.0	88.7	140
Residence									
Urban	8.6	66.7	11.8	12.9	0.0	0.0	100.0	87.1	48
Rural	4.4	67.9	15.5	11.8	0.2	0.3	100.0	87.7	361
Region									
Hhohho	2.2	67.4	16.1	13.4	0.0	0.8	100.0	85.8	111
Manzini	3.9	71.9	13.2	11.1	0.0	0.0	100.0	88.9	117
Shiselweni	8.1	67.4	18.5	5.1	0.9	0.0	100.0	94.0	98
Lubombo	5.9	62.7	12.1	19.2	0.0	0.0	100.0	80.8	83
Total 12-14	4.9	67.7	15.0	11.9	0.2	0.2	100.0	87.6	409
¹ Refers to girls and	d boys who attend	ded seconda	ry school or	higher and tl	nose who can re	ad a whole	sentence o	or part of a sen	tence

Table 3.3.4 shows the extent of literacy among older adults age 50 and older. In this age group, men are more likely than women to be literate (61 percent compared with 51 percent, respectively). As is the case with the population under age 50, among older adults age 50 and older, those who are younger, living in urban areas, and in the highest wealth quintile are more likely to be literate than other respondents. The literacy rate is lowest among women age 50 and older in Lubombo (36 percent) and men age 50 and older in Shiselweni (55 percent).

Table 3.3.4 Literacy: Older adults age 50+

Percent distribution of women and men age 50+ by level of schooling attended and level of literacy, and percentage literate, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			No	schooling	or primary sch	ool		_		
	Secondary	Can read	Can read		No card with	Blind/				
Background	school or	a whole	part of a	Cannot	required	visually			Percentage	
characteristic	higher	sentence	sentence	read at all	language	impaired	Missing	lotal	literate'	Number
				WON	IEN AGE 50+					
Age										
50-54	22.1	30.1	15.6	26.9	0.8	3.9	0.6	100.0	67.9	164
55-59	26.2	31.6	13.4	24.2	0.0	4.5	0.0	100.0	71.3	112
60+	6.5	15.4	16.4	49.5	0.0	12.2	0.0	100.0	38.3	392
Residence										
Urban	34.8	34.7	12.5	14.0	0.0	3.9	0.0	100.0	82.1	86
Rural	10.5	19.8	16.2	43.5	0.2	9.6	0.2	100.0	46.5	583
Region										
Hhohho	16.9	26.1	12.5	36.5	0.7	6.7	0.5	100.0	55.5	167
Manzini	18.3	21.1	21.2	33.0	0.0	6.5	0.0	100.0	60.5	209
Shiselweni	9.0	21.4	15.1	39.9	0.0	14.7	0.0	100.0	45.5	186
Lubombo	7.5	16.8	11.2	57.6	0.0	6.9	0.0	100.0	35.5	107
Total 50+	13.6	21.7	15.7	39.7	0.2	8.9	0.1	100.0	51.1	669
				MEI	N AGE 50+					
Age										
50-54	43.4	17.1	12.6	20.3	0.9	4.9	0.8	100.0	73.1	116
55-59	31.1	27.9	17.0	17.3	0.0	6.7	0.0	100.0	76.0	80
60+	12.8	21.3	16.6	40.6	0.0	8.4	0.3	100.0	50.7	249
Residence										
Urban	51.9	22.8	13.3	7.9	0.0	4.1	0.0	100.0	88.0	79
Rural	18.0	21.1	16.1	36.2	0.3	7.9	0.4	100.0	55.2	365
Region										
Hhohho	25.2	17.6	17.2	34.2	0.0	5.2	0.7	100.0	59.9	127
Manzini	34.0	18.3	14.0	22.9	0.8	10.1	0.0	100.0	66.2	136
Shiselweni	14.6	23.3	16.8	36.7	0.0	8.6	0.0	100.0	54.7	98
Lubombo	17.3	29.9	14.6	33.3	0.0	4.0	0.9	100.0	61.8	84
Total 50+	24.0	21.4	15.6	31.2	0.2	7.2	0.4	100.0	61.0	444

3.4 ACCESS TO MASS MEDIA

Information access is essential in increasing people's knowledge and awareness of what is taking place around them, which may eventually affect their perceptions and behaviour. It is important to know the types of persons who are more or less likely to be reached by the media for purposes of planning programmes intended to spread information about health and family planning. In the survey, exposure to the media was assessed by asking how often a respondent reads a newspaper, watches television, or listens to a radio. Tables 3.4.1 to 3.4.4 show the percentage of females, males, youth, and older adults who were exposed to different types of media at least once a week by age, urban-rural residence, region, level of education, and wealth quintile.

Table 3.4.1 Exposure to mass media: Women 15-49

Percentage of women age 15-49 who are exposed to specific media on a weekly basis, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07 $\,$

	Reads a	Watches	Listens to	All three		
	newspaper	television	the radio	media	No media	
Background	at least					
characteristic	once a week	Number				
Age						
15-19	60.8	37.9	77.1	25.6	10.6	1,274
20-24	51.5	40.0	73.2	22.5	14.7	1,046
25-29	50.9	38.4	74.1	25.6	14.7	729
30-34	51.6	41.1	75.6	24.1	13.1	616
35-39	46.5	36.8	71.8	21.9	17.1	503
40-44	46.0	32.7	74.7	19.9	15.8	438
45-49	36.7	28.1	71.2	15.7	22.2	383
Desidence						
Kesidence	62.0	E7 4	75 5	26.0	0.2	1 220
Drual	63.9	37.4	/ 3.3	36.0	9.3	1,330
Kurai	47.2	30.3	/4.1	10.4	16.2	3,05/
Region						
Hhohho	57.1	42.2	77.2	27.2	11.6	1,340
Manzini	57.7	41.9	75.0	25.9	12.2	1,647
Shiselweni	42.4	30.4	73.1	18.2	17.3	1,033
Lubombo	43.7	31.0	71.2	18.0	18.8	966
Education						
No education	49	12.2	58.8	1.0	38.6	402
Lower primary	20.3	17.1	67.8	5.6	26.1	360
Higher primary	36.3	24.0	70.7	10.2	19.7	1.268
Secondary	59.5	40.2	79.3	26.0	9.8	1 693
High school	75.7	51.6	79.0	36.7	5.5	894
Tertiary	91.9	85.1	78.1	62.4	0.6	370
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	25.1	5.1	55.7	1.5	36.3	785
Second	35.1	9.5	69.8	4.3	21.2	862
Middle	48.4	18.3	75.8	9.7	14.2	968
Fourth	58.9	46.5	83.2	28.2	7.6	1,111
Highest	75.6	83.6	80.7	55.2	2.2	1,262
Total	51.7	37.5	74.5	23.1	14.4	4,987

Tables 3.4.1 and 3.4.2 show that in general, men are more exposed to mass media than women. The most popular mass media is radio broadcast, with 75 percent of women and 83 percent of men listening to the radio at least once a week. The next most accessed media is newspaper, with 52 percent of women and 61 percent of men reading a newspaper at least once a week. Thirty-eight percent of women and 45 percent of men watch television at least once a week. Overall, only 23 percent of women and 31 percent of men have access to all three types of media. Further, 14 percent of women and 7 percent of men have no contact with any media at any time of the week.

Younger women and men, those who live in urban areas, and those who live in Hhohho and Manzini are more likely to be exposed to mass media than other respondents. Access to mass media increases with education and wealth.

Table 3.4.2 Exposure to mass media: Men 15-49

Percentage of men age 15-49 who are exposed to specific media on a weekly basis, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Reads a	Watches	Listens to	All three		
	newspaper	television	the radio	media	No media	
Background	at least					
characteristic	once a week	Number				
Age						
15-19	59.0	42.5	82.5	26.5	6.4	1,323
20-24	63.3	46.6	81.9	30.7	6.7	886
25-29	66.4	46.7	85.6	32.0	5.1	624
30-34	63.5	51.8	86.0	39.0	4.8	431
35-39	58.4	43.1	82.7	30.9	8.9	367
40-44	55.8	44.3	83.0	33.0	10.2	269
45-49	53.2	40.9	78.9	31.9	15.0	256
Residence						
Urban	74.8	60.8	81.7	45.1	4.4	1,181
Rural	55.4	38.8	83.6	25.0	8.2	2,975
Region						
Hhohho	65.4	45.6	83.4	33.2	6.0	1,099
Manzini	67.2	49.6	82.9	35.0	6.5	1,349
Shiselweni	50.9	40.9	85.0	25.5	7.9	843
Lubombo	55.0	41.2	80.9	25.8	8.6	865
Education						
No education	8.0	21.9	74.7	3.1	21.7	316
Lower primary	21.5	25.7	80.3	7.5	15.5	470
Higher primary	47.4	32.9	83.1	17.5	9.1	980
Secondary	72.7	46.4	84.9	34.2	4.3	1,191
High school	86.9	60.1	85.8	49.2	1.3	852
Tertiary	95.9	84.9	80.9	66.9	0.7	347
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	31.9	15.5	77.6	8.2	17.5	601
Second	50.4	24.6	80.4	14.5	9.7	665
Middle	56.0	29.2	86.7	17.3	6.6	856
Fourth	65.5	50.1	84.2	32.6	5.5	953
Highest	83.2	82.2	83.7	62.0	1.5	1,081
Total 15-49	60.9	45.0	83.0	30.7	7.1	4,156

Table 3.4.3 shows the exposure to mass media among girls and boys age 12-14 interviewed in the survey. As in the case for women and men age 15-49, radio is the most popular media (60 percent of girls and 71 percent of boys). Overall, only 14 percent of girls age 12-14 and 15 percent of boys age 12-14 have access to all three types of media. In contrast, 19 percent of girls age 12-14 and 16 percent of boys age 12-14 have no contact with any media at least once a week.

The pattern of exposure to mass media for youth age 12-14 is similar to that of women and men age 15-49. Younger girls and boys, those who live in urban areas, and those who live in Hhohho and Manzini are more likely to be exposed to mass media than other respondents. Access to mass media increases with education.

Table 3.4.3 Exposure to mass media: Youth age 12-14

Percentage of girls and boys age 12-14 who are exposed to specific media on a weekly basis, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Reads a newspaper at least once a week	Watches television at least once a week	Listens to the radio at least once a week	All three media at least once a week	No media at least once a week	Number
		GIRLS A	AGE 12-14			
Age						
12	48.5	30.5	63.5	14.3	15.3	146
13	48.2	29.0	67.4	11.1	18.3	154
14	47.7	36.1	50.5	14.9	22.1	165
Residence	10.0	<u> </u>		10.0	10 E	
Urban	43.8	63.4	49.3	19.0	13.5	57
Rural	48./	27.6	61./	12./	19.5	408
Region	-0.0		60.0	10.6	10 -	
Hhonho	50.2	33.9	63.8	10.6	10./	11/
Manzini	54.0	33.6	55.3	16.5	20.2	137
Shiselweni	48.1	30.3	59.4	13.8	22.0	116
Lubombo	37.1	29.3	63.9	12.2	22.6	95
Education						
No education	*	*	*	*	*	7
Lower primary	39.9	17.4	62.7	8.5	24.0	129
Higher primary	60.9	36.9	70.1	18.3	9.4	282
Secondary +	(0.0)	(46.7)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(53.3)	47
Total 12-14	48.1	32.0	60.2	13.5	18.7	465
		BOYS A	GE 12-14			
Age						
12	42.5	31.6	76.8	16.8	14.6	138
13	41.6	32.4	67.8	14.5	19.2	130
14	34.0	37.7	67.5	12.4	15.4	140
Residence						
Urhan	(55.3)	(71.4)	(79.7)	(41.9)	(8.8)	48
Rural	37.2	29.0	69.6	11.0	17 3	361
Kurai	37.2	29.0	05.0	11.0	17.5	501
Region						
Hhohho	41.0	26.0	75.3	12.8	16.5	111
Manzini	53.7	36.8	69.4	20.9	13.9	117
Shiselweni	25.7	39.6	67.0	13.7	19.3	98
Lubombo	32.4	33.9	71.0	9.1	16.1	83
Education						
No education	*	*	*	*	*	13
Lower primary	35.0	26.1	71.2	8.3	18.7	174
Higher primary	48.8	37.8	78.5	22.3	12.4	202
Secondary +	*	*	*	*	*	20
Total 12-14	39.3	33.9	70.8	14.6	16.3	409
Note: Figures in paren is based on fewer than	theses are base 25 unweightee	d on 25-49 un d cases.	weighted case	s. An asterisk	indicates that a	an estimate

Table 3.4.4 presents the exposure to mass media among older adults age 50 and older interviewed in the survey. As in the case of younger respondents, radio is the most popular media (60 percent of women and 77 percent of men). Overall, only 9 percent of women and 14 percent of men age 50 and older have access to all three types of media. In addition, 35 percent of women and 20 percent of men age 50 and older have no contact with any media at any time of the week.

The pattern of exposure to mass media for older adults is similar to that of younger women and men, except there is no clear pattern by age. Women and men who live in urban areas and those who live in Hhohho and Manzini are more likely to be exposed to mass media than other respondents. Access to mass media increases with education.

background characte	eristics, Swaziland	2006-07	re exposed to	specific medi	a on a weeki	y 00313, t
Background	Reads a newspaper at least	Watches television at least	Listens to the radio at least	All three media at least	No media at least	
characteristic	once a week	once a week	once a week	once a week	once a week	Number
		WOMEN	N AGE 50+			
Age						
50-54	14.7	14.8	53.4	3.7	40.8	254
55-59	22.2	28.8	63.3	11.9	30.7	233
60+	23.1	19.4	62.6	12.1	31.3	179
Residence						
Urban	40.2	53.6	71.1	22.9	14.7	86
Rural	16.6	16.2	57.8	6.9	37.5	583
- •						
Region	0E 1	20.0	C 4 D	12.0	20.2	167
Hhonno	25.1	28.9	64.3	13.9	29.2	167
Manzini	23.0	24.5	64.2	11.0	31.2	209
Shiselweni	12.8	12.5	54.6	3.9	40.0	186
Lubombo	16./	16.8	51.2	6.0	40.2	107
Education						
No education	3.7	12.0	50.0	1.5	45.8	277
Lower primary	13.7	10.7	52.2	0.8	42.2	151
Higher primary	25.1	23.4	68.1	6.1	24.1	149
Secondary	61.5	47.9	89.9	41.0	5.6	60
High school +	(85.2)	(89.7)	(81.3)	(66.8)	2.0	31
Total 50+	19.7	21.0	59.5	9.0	34.6	669
		MEN ,	AGE 50+			
٨٥٥						
50-54	25.4	19.5	77 5	11.3	19.0	165
55-59	30.2	33.0	75.8	16.1	18.7	174
60±	30.2	23.0 21 O	76.7	13.4	22.4	105
00+	30.0	21.0	/0./	т.ст	22.T	105
Residence					_	
Urban	56.8	52.6	88.5	37.6	4.7	79
Rural	22.3	19.3	74.1	8.6	22.9	365
Region						
Hhohho	35.2	26.8	83.5	18.3	11.7	127
Manzini	32.3	32.8	80.0	16.4	16.3	136
Shiselweni	17.0	13.5	70.9	4.8	27.4	98
Lubombo	25.1	24.1	67.3	12.6	28.2	84
Education						
No adjugation	3.0	9.9	67.2	0.6	21 5	171
NO equication	J.U 15 Q	9.9	60 g	0.0	31.5 3E G	80
Lower primary	13.5	.∠ 20.2	09.0 97.5	0.0	25.0	85
Figher primary	50.5 57 g	29.2 41 5	07.J QE Q	15.5 01 Q	7./ 7.Q	60
Secondary	37.0 (01 A)	41.5 (90.4)	00.0 (00.8)	21.3 (70.3)	/.0 (0.0)	47
High school +	(91. 4)	(00.4)	(90.0)	(/0.5)	(0.0)	47
Total 50+	28.4	25.2	76.6	13.7	19.7	444

3.5 **EMPLOYMENT**

Male and female respondents age 15 and older were asked whether they were employed at the time of the survey and if not, whether they were employed in the 12 months preceding the survey. The measurement of employment, however, is difficult. The difficulty arises largely because some work, especially work on family farms, in family businesses, or in the informal sector, is often not perceived as employment, and hence not reported as such. To avoid underestimating respondents' employment, the 2006-07 SDHS asked respondents several questions to probe for their employment status and to ensure complete coverage of employment in both the formal and informal sectors. Respondents were asked a number of questions to elicit their current employment status and continuity of employment in the 12 months prior to the survey. Employed individuals are those who said that they are currently working (i.e., worked in the past 7 days) and those who worked at any time during the 12 months prior to the survey.

Tables 3.5.1 to 3.5.3 show the percent distribution of 2006-07 SDHS adult respondents according to current and recent employment. Table 3.5.1 and Figure 3.1 show that four in ten women age 15-49 are currently employed, 4 percent are not currently employed but worked in the past 12 months, and 53 percent did not work in the past 12 months. The proportion of women who are currently employed varies by age, ranging from 9 percent for women age 15-19 to 57 percent or higher for women age 30 and older.

Women who have never been married, have no children, and are living in rural areas are less likely than other women to be employed. Women who are divorced or separated are more likely to be employed than women who have never married or are currently married or living together (62 percent for divorced or separated women, 49 percent for women who are married or living together, and 28 percent for never married women). More than half of women who have three or more living children are employed compared with 20 percent of women who have no living children. Women who reside in urban areas are much more likely to be employed than rural women. In three of the four regions, Hhohho, Manzini, and Lubombo, four in ten women are employed. In Shiselweni, only 27 percent of women are currently employed. Employment of women does not vary much by education and wealth status except if they have tertiary education or are in the highest wealth quintile.

The age pattern of employment for men is the same as that for women; older men are more likely than younger men to be employed. However, the pattern of employment for men by marital status is the reverse of that for women; married men, those living with women as spouses, are more likely to be employed than men who are divorced or separated (81 percent compared with 69 percent). The likelihood that a man holds a job increases with the number of living children he has; 33 percent of men who have no living children are currently employed, and at least 74 percent of men who have children are employed. This may be due to the social expectation that mature men provide for their families by working. As in the case of women, men in Hhohho, Manzini, and Lubombo are more likely to be employed than those in Shiselweni (52 percent or higher compared with 38 percent). The relationship between employment and education for men is U-shaped; high among men with the least education, declining with increasing education to reach the lowest for men with secondary education, and increasing to the highest proportion for men in the lowest wealth quintile are employed compared with 64 percent of men in the highest wealth quintile.

Table 3.5.1 Employment status: Women 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by employment status, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			Not employed			
	Employed in	the 12 months	in the	M ¹ m ¹ m ¹		
Background	Currently	Not currently	preceding	/viissing/ don't		Number of
characteristic	employed ¹	employed	the survey	know	Total	women
Age						
15-19	9.1	2.4	83.0	5.5	100.0	1,274
20-24	33.9	5.8	57.1	3.2	100.0	1,046
25-29	48.5	4.9	43.9	2.8	100.0	729
30-34	57.2	5.5	35.5	1.9	100.0	616
40.44	01.0 59.9	3.3	32.0	2.6	100.0	203
40-44	50.0 62.4	3.9	33.1	2.1	100.0	430
	02.4	3.9	52.0	1.0	100.0	303
Marital status						
Never married	28.3	3.9	63.9	3.9	100.0	2,487
Married or living together	48./	4.3	43./	3.2	100.0	2,062
Divorced/separated/widowed	62.4	4.8	32.3	0.5	100.0	438
Number of living children						
0	19.6	4.1	71.4	4.9	100.0	1,601
1-2	45.2	4.7	47.7	2.4	100.0	1,754
3-4	54.9	3.2	39.5	2.3	100.0	887
5+	52.3	4.2	40.6	2.9	100.0	/45
Residence						
Urban	56.2	2.4	38.9	2.5	100.0	1,330
Rural	33.8	4.8	57.8	3.6	100.0	3,65/
Region						
Hhohho	42.6	3.3	50.0	4.1	100.0	1,340
Manzini	43.7	2.8	50.9	2.6	100.0	1,647
Shiselweni	26.7	4.0	65.7	3.6	100.0	1,033
Lubombo	42.9	8.0	46.0	3.0	100.0	966
Education						
No education	43.1	5.6	46.8	4.5	100.0	402
Lower primary	36.7	4.8	55.6	2.9	100.0	360
Higher primary	35.6	4.1	57.1	3.2	100.0	1,268
Secondary	34./	4.0	5/./	3./	100.0	1,693
High school	40.5	4.9	51.6	3.1	100.0	894
Teruary	/4./	1.5	22.4	1.5	100.0	370
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	29.0	5.4	59.8	5.8	100.0	785
Second	28.7	4.6	63.1	3.5	100.0	862
iviidale Fourth	33.Z	4.6	59.9 51.0	2.4 2 E	100.0	968 1 1 1 1
Highest	42.0 57.0	4.0 2.5	37.5	∠.⊃ 3.0	100.0	1,111
i nghest	57.0	2.5	57.5	5.0	100.0	1,202
Total 15-49	39.8	4.2	52.8	3.3	100.0	4,987

¹ "Currently employed" is defined as having done work in the past seven days. Includes persons who did not work in the past seven days but who are regularly employed and were absent from work for leave, illness, vacation, or any other such reason.



Figure 3.1 Women's Employment Status (past 12 months)

Comparisons between women and men show that women in general are less likely to be employed in the past 12 months than men (44 percent of men compared with 53 percent). The same is true for current employment; 40 percent for women and 50 percent for men.

Employment information on older adults age 50 and over is presented in Table 3.5.3. As expected, men are more likely to be employed than women (29 percent and 20 percent, respectively). For both women and men, employment decreases with age. While in general urban residents are more likely to be employed than rural residents, the difference for men is much more significant than for women. For men, the proportion working is 72 percent in urban areas and 20 percent in rural areas. For women, these proportions are 38 percent and 18 percent, respectively. For both men and women over 50 years old, the level of employment increases with an improvement in the level of education.

Table 3.5.2 Employment status: Men 15-49

Percent distribution of men age 15-49 by employment status, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	0,				
	Employed in preceding	the 12 months the survey	Not employed in the 12 months		
Background characteristic	Currently employed ¹	Not currently employed	preceding the survey	Total	Number of men
Age					
15-19	16.6	3.2	80.2	100.0	1.323
20-24	45.3	8.2	46.5	100.0	886
25-29	72.4	7.0	20.6	100.0	624
30-34	77.2	6.3	16.5	100.0	431
35-39	81.0	3.7	15.3	100.0	367
40-44	79.2	3.9	16.9	100.0	269
45-49	70.5	6.3	23.2	100.0	256
Marital status					
Never married	35.3	5.6	59.1	100.0	2.734
Married or living together	81.1	5.2	13.7	100.0	1,219
Divorced/separated/widowed	69.4	5.3	25.4	100.0	203
Number of living children					
0	32.7	5.3	61.9	100.0	2.500
1-2	77.7	6.0	16.3	100.0	835
3-4	73.8	5.9	20.3	100.0	424
5+	79.7	4.3	15.9	100.0	397
Residence					
Urban	69.6	3.2	27.2	100.0	1,181
Rural	42.8	6.3	50.8	100.0	2,975
Region					
Hhohho	55.3	5.2	39.5	100.0	1,099
Manzini	51.6	4.9	43.5	100.0	1,349
Shiselweni	38.4	4.6	57.0	100.0	843
Lubombo	54.1	7.4	38.4	100.0	865
Education					
No education	64.7	7.0	28.3	100.0	316
Lower primary	51.0	7.4	41.6	100.0	470
Higher primary	43.2	5.9	50.9	100.0	980
Secondary	41.0	4.5	54.6	100.0	1,191
High school	54.2	5.9	40.0	100.0	852
Tertiary	80.5	2.4	17.2	100.0	347
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	36.1	8.7	55.2	100.0	601
Second	39.0	7.0	54.0	100.0	665
Middle	45.0	6.9	48.1	100.0	856
Fourth	57.0	3.9	39.0	100.0	953
Highest	63.9	2.9	33.2	100.0	1,081
Total 15-49	50.4	5.4	44.1	100.0	4,156

¹ "Currently employed" is defined as having done work in the past seven days. Includes persons who did not work in the past seven days but who are regularly employed and were absent from work for leave, illness, vacation, or any other such reason.

Table 3.5.3 Employment status: Older adults age 50+

Percent distribution of women and men age 50+ by employment status, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	Employed in precedin Currently	the 12 months g the survey Not currently	Not employed in the 12 months preceding	Missing/ don't		
characteristic	employed	employed	the survey	know	Total	Number
		WOM	EN			
Age						
50-54	35.8	11.7	50.5	2.1	100.0	164
55-59	34.3	14.2	51.5	0.0	100.0	112
60+	9.9	12.6	76.4	1.1	100.0	392
Residence						
Urban	37.7	7.9	54.4	0.0	100.0	86
Rural	17.8	13.4	67.5	1.3	100.0	583
Region						
Hhohho	25.9	11.6	60.7	1.7	100.0	167
Manzini	24.4	12.4	62.9	0.3	100.0	209
Shiselweni	12.6	12.7	74.2	0.5	100.0	186
Lubombo	17.1	14.7	65.1	3.1	100.0	107
Education						
No education	11.6	12.7	73.8	1.9	100.0	277
Lower primary	15.6	11.6	71.8	1.0	100.0	151
Higher primary	23.6	15.7	60.1	0.6	100.0	149
Secondary	41.8	9.9	48.3	0.0	100.0	60
High school +	(64.7)	(8.5)	(26.8)	(0.0)	100.0	31
Total 50+	20.3	12.7	65.8	1.2	100.0	669
		MEN	١			
Δσρ						
50-54	53.9	15.6	29.2	1.2	100.0	116
55-59	38.5	10.8	49.7	1.1	100.0	80
60+	15.1	15.9	66.9	2.1	100.0	249
Residence						
Urban	71.8	5.4	21.6	1.3	100.0	79
Rural	20.3	17.0	61.0	1.8	100.0	365
Region						
Hhohho	33.1	15.0	49.5	2.5	100.0	127
Manzini	33.3	14.3	51.1	1.2	100.0	136
Shiselweni	15.8	16.1	66.2	2.0	100.0	98
Lubombo	33.3	14.4	51.2	1.0	100.0	84
Education						
No education	17.9	12.3	67.8	2.1	100.0	171
Lower primary	18.9	27.1	50.1	4.0	100.0	80
Higher primary	27.1	16.8	55.0	1.0	100.0	85
Secondary	46.7	10.9	42.3	0.0	100.0	60
High school +	(70.2)	(5.3)	(24.5)	(0.0)	100.0	47
Total 50+	29.4	14.9	54.0	1.7	100.0	444

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ "Currently employed" is defined as having done work in the past seven days. Includes persons who did not work in the past seven days but who are regularly employed and were absent from work for leave, illness, vacation, or any other such reason.

3.6 OCCUPATION

Respondents who were currently employed were asked to state their occupation, and the results are presented in Tables 3.6.1 to 3.6.3. There are six occupational categories under which those currently employed are classified. They are: professional, technical, and managerial; clerical; sales and services; skilled manual; unskilled manual; and agricultural. The vast majority of currently employed women work in sales and services (56 percent). The next most popular occupations for women are skilled manual labour (14 percent); professional, technical, and managerial (12 percent); and agriculture (9 percent). Seven percent of women are employed in clerical jobs.

Table 3.6.1 Occupation: Women 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 employed in the 12 months preceding the survey by occupation, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Professional/ technical/ managerial	Clerical	Sales and services	Skilled manual	Unskilled manual	Agriculture	Missing	Total	Number of women
Ago	0					0	0		
15 10	15	20	69.6	10.5	0.7	83	7.6	100.0	147
20-24	5.3	7.8	63.7	14.1	1.6	6.7	0.9	100.0	415
20-24	12.9	7.0	53.7	16.6	1.0	6.7	0.5	100.0	380
30-34	14.3	6.7	53.2	15.0	1.0	8.1	0.7	100.0	386
35-39	16.9	9.1	47.2	14.4	1.0	10.8	0.0	100.0	326
40-44	15.5	2.1 4.9	58.8	10.6	0.4	9.6	0.3	100.0	274
45-49	14.9	4.0	52.5	15.6	0.5	11.8	0.8	100.0	254
Marital status									
Novor married	8.1	8.2	60.4	15.2	13	5.2	17	100.0	803
Married or living together	15 5	5.0	52.9	12.2	1.5	10.0	1.7	100.0	1 004
Divorced/separated/widowed	10.2	4.9	56.8	14.9	0.2	12.4	0.9	100.0	294
North an af Bain an abilitaria									
Number of living children	0.4	61	50.2	14 5	1 /	6.0	26	100.0	270
0	9.4	7.0	59.2	14.5	1.4	6.9	2.0	100.0	5/9 975
1-2	13.1	7.0	55./ 52.1	14.5	1.1	0.5	0.2	100.0	0/3 516
5+	6.6	9.2 1.3	62.0	14.0	1.3	14.4	0.2	100.0	421
Desidence									
Residence	15 5	11.0	50.2	10.0	1 1	4.2	0.0	100.0	700
Driban	15.5	11.2	50.3	10.0	1.1	4.3	0.9	100.0	/ 00
Kurai	10.2	4.1	59.3	13.1	1.1	11.0	1.2	100.0	1,411
Region									
Hhohho	11.8	9.1	61.9	8.7	0.9	6.7	1.0	100.0	615
Manzini	14.5	6.8	50.6	22.2	1.3	3.6	1.0	100.0	766
Shiselweni	12.8	5.5	51.7	16.9	1.8	11.3	0.0	100.0	317
Lubombo	8.2	3.8	60.3	7.7	0.8	17.0	2.2	100.0	492
Education									
No education	0.7	0.0	63.6	9.5	2.1	23.4	0.6	100.0	196
Lower primary	0.5	0.0	64.7	14.5	1.2	18.3	0.7	100.0	149
Higher primary	1.1	2.2	66.2	17.0	0.1	12.0	1.4	100.0	504
Secondary	4.4	3.8	66.1	16.4	2.2	5.9	1.3	100.0	654
High school	12.2	11.2	51.8	18.4	0.9	4.0	1.6	100.0	406
Tertiary	63.3	22.6	11.5	2.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	100.0	282
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	0.5	2.4	60.8	13.4	0.4	21.3	1.2	100.0	270
Second	1.4	2.4	65.4	13.6	0.7	14.9	1.6	100.0	288
Middle	4.2	3.8	60.7	17.4	1.8	9.9	2.2	100.0	366
Fourth	7.4	4.8	56.8	21.0	1.7	6.8	1.4	100.0	517
Highest	27.4	12.3	48.1	9.0	0.8	2.2	0.2	100.0	751
Total	12.1	6.6	56.1	14.4	1.1	8.6	1.1	100.0	2,191

Women's occupations vary with their background characteristics. In general, professional, technical, and managerial jobs attract women with the highest education and in the highest wealth quintile, and work in sales and services attracts younger women and women with lower than tertiary education. Women in Lubombo are more likely than women in other regions to work in agriculture.

While women tend to be concentrated in selected types of occupations, men's choice of work is more varied. Men are almost evenly employed in sales and services and as skilled manual labourers (29 percent and 32 percent, respectively). Seventeen percent of men work in agriculture and 13 percent are employed in professional, technical, and managerial jobs.

Men's occupations also vary with their background characteristics. In general, professional, technical, and managerial jobs attract married men, men in urban areas, men with the highest education, and men in the highest wealth quintile. On the other hand, young men, rural men, men in Lubombo, men with less education, and those in the lower wealth quintiles tend to work in agriculture.

Table 3.6.2 Occupation: Men 15-49

Percent distribution of men age 15-49 employed in the 12 months preceding the survey by occupation, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Professional/ technical/ managerial	Clerical	Sales and services	Skilled manual	Unskilled manual	Agriculture	Missing	Total	Number of men
Age									
15-19	0.0	1.2	45.4	16.3	8.1	28.3	0.6	100.0	262
20-24	4.6	2.5	32.2	32.3	7.3	20.2	0.8	100.0	474
25-29	11.2	2.5	28.4	37.8	4.4	14.7	1.0	100.0	495
30-34	18.6	4.7	25.1	35.5	4.6	10.7	0.9	100.0	360
35-39	20.5	3.3	23.6	32.2	4.2	16.2	0.0	100.0	311
40-44	24.4	4.5	21.8	31.3	2.7	15.3	0.0	100.0	224
45-49	18.1	5.6	20.4	35.7	5.8	14.4	0.0	100.0	197
Marital status									
Never married	7.1	2.6	33.8	31.6	5.8	18.6	0.6	100.0	1,118
Married or living together	20.1	4.0	22.5	32.5	4.9	15.5	0.5	100.0	1,052
Divorced/separated/widowed	4.8	3.1	33.5	37.1	5.3	15.3	0.8	100.0	152
Number of living children									
0	6.7	2.0	33.6	30.9	5.9	20.2	0.7	100.0	951
1-2	17.9	3.6	25.8	33.5	4.7	13.5	0.9	100.0	700
3-4	19.0	4.6	22.1	31.5	6.9	15.9	0.0	100.0	337
5+	13.4	4.7	26.9	34.8	3.6	16.2	0.3	100.0	334
Residence									
Urban	18.4	4.8	26.1	31.8	4.3	14.2	0.4	100.0	860
Rural	9.6	2.3	30.1	32.6	6.0	18.6	0.7	100.0	1,462
Region									
Hooho	14 7	47	28.1	34.0	53	12.9	03	100.0	665
Manzini	15.1	2.9	20.1	36.7	5.4	9.8	0.5	100.0	762
Shiselweni	10.0	2.5	28.4	26.5	93	22.9	0.0	100.0	363
Lubombo	9.1	2.5	28.4	28.0	2.7	28.4	1.0	100.0	532
Education									
No oducation	0.5	0.0	34.2	28.8	53	30.8	0.4	100.0	227
Lower primary	2.2	0.0	33.5	20.0	J.J 7 5	33.6	0.4	100.0	275
Higher primary	2.2	0.5	31.1	37.8	8.0	18.7	0.0	100.0	481
Secondary	5.1	2.6	28.2	30.0	5.8	17.3	1.0	100.0	541
High school	13.0	2.0	31.0	35.2	4.2	8.5	0.9	100.0	511
Tertiary	63.5	6.1	12.1	16.3	0.3	1.7	0.0	100.0	287
Wealth quintile									
	2.2	0.8	30.6	30.0	5.0	28.3	2.2	100.0	269
Second	2.2	0.0	20.0	34.3	3.5 8.7	20.5	2.2	100.0	209
Middlo	2.5	2.5	29.0	34.3	7.1	18.8	0.5	100.0	444
Fourth	5.2	2.9	25.7	40.6	5.6	18.1	0.4	100.0	580
Highest	30.8	5.7	27.8	24.5	2.5	83	0.4	100.0	722
ingrest	50.0	3.1	27.0	41.5	2.5	0.5	0.1	100.0	122
Total 15-49	12.8	3.2	28.6	32.3	5.4	17.0	0.6	100.0	2,322

Table 3.6.3 shows the percent distribution of 2006-07 SDHS respondents age 50 and over according to current and recent employment. Analysis of the data is limited due to the small number of women and men age 50 years and over who were employed at the time of the survey. The most popular type of work for women age 50 years and over is in sales and services (54 percent), while for men it is working as a skilled manual labourer (33 percent).

Table 3.6.3 Occupation: Older adults age 50+

Percent distribution of women and men age 50+ employed in the 12 months preceding the survey by occupation, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Professional/ technical/		Sales and	Skilled	Unskilled				Number of
Background characteristic	managerial	Clerical	services	manual	manual	Agriculture	Missing	Total	men
				WOMEN					
Age									
50-54	12.4	7.3	53.1	13.2	0.0	14.0	0.0	100.0	78
55-59	15.9	8.0	54.1	11.8	0.0	10.2	0.0	100.0	54
60+	1.3	1.4	54.4	26.0	0.0	13.6	3.4	100.0	88
Residence									
Urban	(13.9)	(19.7)	(44.4)	(15.0)	(0.0)	(7.0)	(0,0)	100.0	39
Rural	7.7	1.9	55.9	18.7	0.0	14.2	1.7	100.0	181
Region									
Hhohho	14.3	6.0	50.1	16.7	0.0	12.9	0.0	100.0	63
Manzini	6.7	7.7	61.2	16.3	0.0	8.1	0.0	100.0	77
Shiselweni	(3.9)	(3.4)	(52.3)	(26.3)	(0.0)	(14.1)	(0.0)	100.0	47
Lubombo	(10.1)	(0.0)	(46.3)	(12.7)	(0.0)	(22.0)	(8.8)	100.0	34
Education									
No education	0.0	0.0	50.8	26.3	0.0	18.5	4.5	100.0	67
Lower primary	(1.4)	(0.0)	(72.6)	(11.0)	(0.0)	(15.0)	(0.0)	100.0	41
Higher primary	3.1	0.8	61.8	22.1	0.0	12.3	0.0	100.0	58
Secondary	31.6	20.1	34.8	8.6	0.0	4.9	0.0	100.0	54
High school +	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	23
Total 50+	8.8	5.1	53.9	18.0	0.0	12.9	1.4	100.0	221
				MEN					
Age									
50-54	13.7	5.3	27.4	34.7	3.0	15.9	0.0	100.0	80
55-59	(11.8)	(8.6)	(23.2)	(42.6)	(2.9)	(10.9)	(0.0)	100.0	39
60+	10.0	0.0	25.5	27.3	1.8	33.8	1.5	100.0	77
Residence									
Urban	19.2	4.7	21.9	43.6	2.2	8.3	0.0	100.0	61
Rural	8.6	3.5	27.6	28.8	2.7	28.0	0.8	100.0	136
Region									
Hhohho	10.4	4.4	25.9	34.8	4.5	20.0	0.0	100.0	61
Manzini	20.0	1.4	27.3	37.7	0.0	11.8	1.8	100.0	65
Shiselweni	(3.2)	(5.0)	(26.5)	(26.3)	(7.0)	(32.1)	(0.0)	100.0	31
Lubombo	(7.8)	(6.4)	(23.0)	(29.7)	(0.0)	(33.1)	(0.0)	100.0	40
Education									
No education	3.0	0.0	35.4	25.9	4.8	30.9	0.0	100.0	51
Lower primary	(3.2)	(0.0)	(28.3)	(37.1)	(3.1)	(28.3)	(0.0)	100.0	37
Higher primary	(11.3)	(0.0)	(23.7)	(44.9)	(0.0)	(20.1)	(0.0)	100.0	37
Secondary	23.6	11.0	17.7	31.1	1.9	13.1	1.6	100.0	70
High school +	(44.6)	(14.3)	(10.9)	(17.0)	(0.0)	(9.5)	(0.0)	100.0	36
Total 50+	11.9	3.9	25.8	33.4	2.5	21.9	0.6	100.0	197

Note: " Currently employed" includes women and men who indicated they were currently working at the time of the survey. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases.

Younger women are more likely to work in professional, technical, and managerial jobs, while older women tend to work as skilled manual labourers. Urban men are more likely than rural men to work as a professional, technician, or manager, while rural men are more likely than urban men to work in agriculture. Whereas 19 percent of urban men work in professional, technical, and managerial jobs, only 9 percent of men in rural areas have this type of occupation. On the other hand, 28 percent of rural men work in agriculture compared with only 8 percent of men in urban areas.

3.7 EARNINGS AND TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT

Table 3.7 presents the percent distribution of employed women and men age 15-49, by type of earnings and employer characteristics, according to type of employment (agricultural or non-agricultural). The majority of men and women, whether in agricultural or non-agricultural employment, receive cash income (91 percent of women and 88 percent of men). Men and women who work in agriculture are less likely than those who work in non-agricultural jobs to receive cash. For example, the proportion of women who earn cash in agricultural employment is 79 percent compared with 93 percent in non-agricultural work. Women working in agriculture are more likely not to be paid at all than to be paid in cash and in-kind. In fact, 10 percent of women and 25 percent of men who work in agriculture do not receive payment for their work.

Table 3.7 Type of employment: Women and men age 15-49

Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 employed in the 12 months preceding the survey by type of earnings, type of employer, and continuity of employment, according to type of employment (agricultural or non-agricultural), Swaziland 2006-07

		WOMEN			MEN	
Employment characteristic	Agricultural work	Non-agricultural work	Total	Agricultural work	Non-agricultural work	Total
Type of earnings						
Cash only	78.7	93.0	91.1	72.6	91.0	87.7
Cash and in-kind	6.0	3.2	3.4	1.9	3.7	3.4
In-kind only	4.8	0.7	1.1	0.4	0.8	0.8
Not paid	10.4	3.1	3.7	24.7	4.4	7.9
Missing	0.0	0.1	0.6	0.3	0.1	0.3
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Type of employer						
Employed by family member	6.9	4.1	4.4	18.1	7.5	9.4
Employed by non-family member	55.8	60.1	59.4	64.0	74.0	72.0
Self-employed	37.3	35.4	35.3	17.6	18.3	18.2
Missing	0.0	0.4	0.9	0.3	0.2	0.4
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Continuity of employment						
All year	39.3	78.8	74.8	33.9	61.9	56.9
Seasonal	51.2	12.9	16.2	45.3	16.7	21.6
Occasional	9.5	8.1	8.3	20.3	21.3	21.1
Missing	0.0	0.2	0.7	0.4	0.2	0.4
Total Number of respondents employed	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
during the past 12 months	188	1,978	2,191	394	1,914	2,322
Six in ten women and 72 percent of men are employed by a non-family member. Men are more likely than women to be employed by a family member (9 percent and 4 percent, respectively). The difference is more striking in agricultural work, with 18 percent of men working for a family member compared with 7 percent of women. Women are twice as likely as men to be self-employed (35 percent compared with 18 percent).

Women are more likely to work throughout the year than men. Three in four women hold a job all year compared with 57 percent of men. The agricultural sector is more likely to provide seasonal employment for both men (45 percent) and women (51 percent). On the other hand, work in the non-agricultural sector is more likely to provide income throughout the year (79 percent of women and 62 percent of men).

Figure 3.2 shows the distribution of women who have worked at any time during the 12 months preceding the survey by the type of earnings women receive (cash, in-kind, or both).



Figure 3.2 Type of Earnings of Women Employed in the Past 12 Months

SDHS 2006-07

Dudu Dlamini

4.1 INTRODUCTION

This chapter looks at a number of fertility indicators, including levels, patterns, and trends in both current and cumulative fertility; the length of birth intervals; and the age at which women initiate childbearing. Information on current and cumulative fertility is essential in monitoring population growth. The data on birth intervals are important since short intervals are strongly associated with childboard mortality. The age at which childbearing begins can also have a major impact on the health and wellbeing of both the mother and the child.

Data on fertility were collected in several ways. Each woman was asked about all of the births she had had in her lifetime. To ensure completeness of the responses, the duration, the month and year of termination, and the result of the pregnancy were recorded for each pregnancy. In addition, questions were asked separately about sons and daughters who live with the mother, those who live elsewhere, and those who have died. Subsequently, a list of all births was recorded along with name, age if still alive, and age at death if dead. Finally, information was collected on whether women were pregnant at the time of the survey.

4.2 CURRENT FERTILITY

The level of current fertility is one of the most important topics in this report because of its direct relevance to population policies and programmes. Current fertility can be measured using the age-specific fertility rate (ASFR), the total fertility rate (TFR), the general fertility rate (GFR), and the crude birth rate (CBR). The ASFR provides the age pattern of fertility, while the TFR refers to the number of live births that a woman would have had if she were subject to the current ASFRs throughout the reproductive ages (15-49 years). The GFR is expressed as the number of live births per 1,000 women of reproductive age, and the CBR is expressed as the number of live births per 1,000 population. The measures of fertility presented in this chapter refer to the period of three years prior to the survey. This generates a sufficient number of births to provide robust and current estimates.

Table 4.1 depicts measures of current fertility for the three years preceding the survey for the country as a whole and by urban and rural residence. These are the total fertility rate (TFR), general fertility rate (GFR), and crude birth rate (CBR). The survey results indicate that the TFR for Swaziland for the three years preceding the 2006-07 SDHS survey is 3.8 births per woman. As expected, fertility is considerably higher in rural areas (4.2 births per woman) than in urban areas (3.0 births per woman). As the ASFRs show, the pattern of higher rural fertility is prevalent in all age groups except age 40-49. The urban-rural difference in fertility is more pronounced

Table 4.1 Current fertility

Age-specific and total fertility rate, the general fertility rate, and the crude birth rate for the three years preceding the survey, by residence, Swaziland 2006-07

	Resid	lence	
Age group	Urban	Rural	Total
15-19	89	118	111
20-24	163	219	202
25-29	124	184	165
30-34	113	182	159
35-39	83	105	99
40-44	31	30	30
45-49	0	5	4
TFR	3.0	4.2	3.8
GFR	110	146	136
CBR	31.9	31.0	31.1

Note: Age-specific fertility rates are per 1,000 women. Rates for age group 45-49 may be slightly biased due to truncation. Rates are for the period 1-36 months prior to interview. TFR: Total fertility rate expressed per woman GFR: General fertility rate expressed per 1,000 women CBR: Crude birth rate expressed per 1,000 population for women in the age group 30-34 (113 births per 1,000 women in urban areas versus 182 births per 1,000 women in rural areas). The overall age pattern of fertility as reflected in the ASFRs indicates that childbearing begins early. Fertility is low among adolescents and increases to a peak of 202 births per 1,000 among women age 20-24 and declines thereafter.

The CBR in Swaziland is 31.1 births per 1,000 population. The overall GFR is 136 and is higher in the rural areas than in urban areas (146 and 110 births per 1,000 women, respectively).

Compared with other south-east African countries that have participated in the DHS programme, the TFR in Swaziland is the same as that in Zimbabwe and slightly higher than in Namibia and Lesotho.



Figure 4.1 Total Fertility Rates for Selected Countries in Southeast Africa

4.3 FERTILITY DIFFERENTIALS

Fertility is known to vary by residence, educational background, and other background characteristics of a woman. Table 4.2 shows several different indicators of fertility, mainly the total fertility rate, mean number of births to women age 40-49, and the percentage currently pregnant. The mean number of births to women age 40-49 is an indicator of cumulative fertility; it reflects the fertility performance of older women who are nearing the end of their reproductive period. If fertility remains stable over time, the two fertility measures, total fertility rate (TFR) and children ever born (CEB), tend to be very similar. The percentage pregnant provides a useful additional measure of current fertility, although it is recognized that it may not capture all pregnancies in an early stage.

Table 4.2 indicates that there are variations in the TFR by residence, region, education, and wealth quintile. Fertility is highest in the Shiselweni region with a TFR of 4.3 births per woman and lowest in Hhohho at 3.6 births per woman. TFR decreases gradually with increasing level of education; better educated women have fewer children than less educated women. Women with no education have on average 4.9 children compared with 2.4 children for women with tertiary education. Fertility varies

widely according to household wealth. Women in the highest wealth quintile have 2.9 children fewer than women in the lowest quintile (2.6 and 5.5 births per woman, respectively).

It has been noted that although the percentage currently pregnant is a useful measure of current fertility, not all women who are pregnant are likely to be captured because they may not be aware that they are pregnant or may be reluctant to disclose a pregnancy in the early stages. Six percent of women reported that they were pregnant at the time of the survey. Women who have lower primary education and those in the lowest wealth quintile are the most likely to be pregnant.

Table 4.2 also presents a crude assessment of trends in the various subgroups by comparing current fertility with a measure of completed fertility: the mean number of children ever born to women age 40-49. The mean number of children ever born to older women who are nearing the end of their reproductive period is an indicator of average completed fertility of women who began childbearing during the three decades preceding the survey. If fertility remained constant over time and the reported data on both children ever born and births during the three years preceding the survey are reasonably accurate, the TFR and the mean number of children ever born for women 40-49 are expected to be similar. When fertility levels have been falling, the TFR

Table 4.2 Fertility by background characteristics

Total fertility rate for the three years preceding the survey, percentage of women age 15-49 currently pregnant, and mean number of children ever born to women age 40-49 years, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Percentage	Mean number
		of women	of children
	Total	age 15-49	ever born
Background	fertility	currently	to women
characteristic	rate	pregnant	age 40-49
Residence			
Urban	3.0	5.6	4.0
Rural	4.2	5.6	5.8
Region			
Hhohho	3.6	5.1	5.2
Manzini	3.7	5.7	5.1
Shiselweni	4.3	5.7	5.5
Lubombo	4.0	5.9	5.6
Fducation			
No education	4.9	5.5	6.5
Lower primary	5.1	8.9	6.6
Higher primary	4.4	6.1	5.4
Secondary	3.9	4.6	5.0
High school	3.1	5.9	4.0
Tertiary	2.4	4.5	3.2
Wealth quintile			
Lowest	5.5	7.3	6.8
Second	4.9	6.1	6.0
Middle	3.9	5.2	5.6
Fourth	3.3	4.8	5.0
Highest	2.6	5.2	3.8
Total	3.8	5.6	5.3
Note: Total fertility prior to interview.	y rates are	for the perio	d 1-36 months

will be substantially lower than the mean number of children ever born among women age 40-49. The comparison suggests that fertility has fallen by 1.5 births during the past few decades, from 5.3 births per woman to 3.8. Fertility has declined in both urban and rural areas, in all regions, at all educational levels, and for all wealth quintiles. The difference between the level of current and completed fertility is highest in rural areas (1.6 births), the Hhohho and Lubombo regions (1.6 births), among women who have no education (1.6 births), and among women in the middle and fourth wealth quintiles (1.7 births).

Table 4.3 Tren	ds in age	e-specific f	ertility rate	<u>es</u>						
Age-specific for preceding the set the birth, Swaz	ertility 1 survey, b iland 200	rates for y mother': 06-07	five-year s age at th	periods le time of						
Mother's age	Numbe	er of years	preceding	g survey						
at birth	0-4	5-9	10-14	15-19						
15-19	111	126	137	148						
20-24	196	203	222	252						
25-29	172	207	223	233						
30-34	158	170	189	[191]						
35-39	104	116	[161]	-						
40-44	32	[65]	-	-						
45-49	[5]	-	-	-						
Note: Age-specific fertility rates are per 1,000 women. Estimates in brackets are truncated. Rates exclude the month of interview.										

4.4 FERTILITY TRENDS

Table 4.3 uses information from the retrospective birth histories obtained from the SDHS respondents to examine trends in age-specific fertility rates for successive five-year periods before the survey. To calculate these rates, births were classified according to the period of time in which the birth occurred and the mother's age at the time of birth. Because birth histories were not collected for women over age 50, the rates for older age groups become progressively more truncated for periods more distant from the survey date. For example, rates cannot be calculated for women age 45-49 for the period 5-9 years or more prior to the survey, because women in that age group would have been 50 years or older at the time of the survey.

Nonetheless, the results in Table 4.3 show that fertility has dropped substantially among all age groups over the past two decades. This decline is most obvious in the 15 years preceding the survey, with the largest decline observed between the two most recent five-year periods. Fertility decline is steepest among the cohort age 30-34, with a 60 percent decline between the period 15-19 years before the survey and the period 0-4 years before the survey.

Another way to examine fertility trends is to compare current estimates with earlier surveys. Table 4.4 and Figure 4.2 show the ASFRs for the 1986 and 1997 Population and Housing Censuses (PHC), 1991 Demographic and Housing Survey (DHS), and 2006-07 SDHS. Estimates prior to the SDHS were calculated using information on total number of children ever born and surviving. The data indicate that fertility has been declining rapidly in Swaziland, with the TFR falling from 6.4 in the 1986 PHC to 4.5 in 1997 PHC, and to 3.8 in the 2006-07 SDHS. This translates to a decrease of 2.6 births since 1986.

Table 4.4 Tr Age-specific total fertility survey, Swaz	<u>ends in fer</u> fertility ra rates for t ziland 198	<u>tility</u> ates (per he three 6, 1991,	1,000 w years pre 1997, ar	omen) and eceding the nd 2006-07
	1986	1991	1997	2006-07
Age group	PHC	DHS	PHC	SDHS
15-19	145	134	90	111
20-24	289	253	211	202
25-29	279	252	210	165
30-34	246	208	169	159
35-39	178	147	133	99
40-44	89	88	64	30
45-49	45	35	31	4
TFR	6.4	5.6	4.5	3.8
DHS = Den PHC = Pop	nographic	and Hou	sing Surv	ey

Sources: CSO, 1976 Population and Housing Census, Vol. 1; CSO, 1986 Population and Housing Census, Vol. 4; CSO, 1997 Population and Housing Census Vol. 4.

A substantial fertility decline has occurred in all age groups. Between 1986 and 1997, the largest decline took place among the younger age groups, but since 1997, larger declines in ASFR are observed among older women (Figure 4.2).



Figure 4.2 Trends in Fertility

4.5 CHILDREN EVER BORN AND LIVING

Table 4.5 presents the distribution of all women and currently married women by number of children ever born, according to five-year age groups. The table also shows the mean number of children ever born. Data on the number of children ever born reflect the accumulation of births to women over their entire reproductive years and therefore have limited reference to current fertility levels, particularly when a country has experienced a decline in fertility. Moreover, the data are subject to recall error, which is typically greater for older than younger women. Nevertheless, the information on children ever born (or parity) is useful in looking at a number of issues. The parity data show how average family size varies across age groups. The percentage of women in their forties who have never had children also provides an indicator of the level of primary infertility, or the inability to bear children. Comparison of the differences in the mean number of children ever born and surviving reflects the cumulative effects of mortality levels during the period in which women have been bearing children.

Table 4.5 shows the percent distribution of all women and currently married women by number of children ever born, mean number of children ever born, and mean number of children living. More than four-fifths of women age 15-19 (82 percent) have never given birth. However, this proportion declines to 11 percent for women age 25-29 and to 5 percent or less among women age 30 and above, indicating that childbearing among Swazi women is nearly universal. On average, Swazi women nearing the end of their reproductive years have attained a parity of 4.8 children. This is one child more than the total fertility rate, a difference brought about by the decline in fertility during the 1980s and 1990s.

The same pattern is replicated for currently married women, except that the mean number of children ever born is higher for currently married women (3.6 children) than for all women (2.3 children). The difference in the mean number of children ever born between all women and currently married women is due to a substantial proportion of young and unmarried women in the former category who exhibit lower fertility.

Table 4.5 Children ever born and living

Percent distribution of all women and currently married women age 15-49 by number of children ever born, mean number of children ever born, and mean number of living children, according to age group, Swaziland 2006-07

Age	0	1	2	3	Numbe 4	r of childr 5	en ever bo 6	orn 7	8	9	10+	Total	Number of women	Mean number of children ever born	Mean number of living children
							ALL	WOMEN							
15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 Total	81.5 29.2 10.8 3.7 4.8 3.3 4.6 30.1	16.0 41.0 23.7 11.1 7.3 5.1 6.9 19.3	2.5 23.6 28.8 23.8 11.9 8.9 5.7 15.2	0.0 4.9 21.5 26.6 16.2 11.0 8.3 10.7	0.0 1.3 9.1 13.0 18.0 14.1 13.2 7.3	0.0 0.0 4.9 10.7 14.0 12.9 11.5 5.5	0.0 0.9 7.2 12.4 13.4 12.5 4.4	0.0 0.0 0.3 2.0 7.5 10.5 11.4 2.8	0.0 0.0 1.5 4.6 10.2 7.9 2.2	0.0 0.0 0.1 1.9 4.1 9.2 1.3	0.0 0.0 0.2 1.4 6.4 8.7 1.4	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383 4,987	0.21 1.08 2.14 3.17 4.17 5.19 5.50 2.28	0.19 0.97 1.90 2.92 3.86 4.65 4.76 2.05
						CUR	RENTLY	MARRIED	WOMEN						
15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49	26.2 13.6 6.0 1.5 2.9 2.1 4.3	58.5 39.4 17.4 7.4 4.9 3.8 4.6	15.3 35.5 30.2 23.3 9.7 8.5 6.0	0.0 8.6 24.5 26.0 16.0 9.5 7.4	0.0 2.9 13.1 14.3 18.0 14.3 13.5	$\begin{array}{c} 0.0 \\ 0.0 \\ 7.0 \\ 12.3 \\ 14.6 \\ 14.6 \\ 12.7 \end{array}$	0.0 0.0 1.3 10.0 13.9 12.9 11.5	0.0 0.0 0.5 2.9 8.7 10.5 8.9	$\begin{array}{c} 0.0 \\ 0.0 \\ 2.1 \\ 6.9 \\ 12.0 \\ 10.7 \end{array}$	0.0 0.0 0.1 2.7 5.4 9.9	0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 6.5 10.5	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	88 343 388 379 334 291 238	0.89 1.48 2.50 3.49 4.59 5.44 5.79	0.83 1.31 2.24 3.23 4.25 4.93 5.12
Total	6.1	15.6	20.0	15.6	12.1	9.5	7.5	4.5	4.4	2.3	2.4	100.0	2,062	3.58	3.25

4.6 **BIRTH INTERVALS**

A birth interval is defined as the length of time between two successive live births. The study of birth intervals is important in understanding the health status of young children. Information on birth intervals provides insight into birth spacing patterns, which affect fertility as well as maternal, infant, and childhood mortality. Research has shown that short birth intervals are closely associated with poor health of children, especially during infancy. Children born too close to a previous birth, especially if the interval between the births is less than two years, are at increased risk of health problems and dying at an early age. Longer birth intervals, on the other hand, contribute to the improved health status of both mother and child.

Table 4.6 presents the distribution of second and higher-order births in the five years preceding the survey by the number of months since the previous birth, according to background characteristics. Data in Table 4.6 show that about 5 percent of births are less than 18 months apart and 16 percent have an interval of less than two years. Three in ten births are born 24-35 months after the previous birth, and 31 percent are at least three years apart.

Table 4.6 also presents the median number of months since the preceding birth. The median birth interval in Swaziland is 37.9 months. The median number of months since a preceding birth increases significantly with age, from 26.7 months among mothers age 15-19 to 42.1 months among mothers age 40-49. There are no marked differences in the length of the median birth interval by sex of the preceding birth, urban-rural residence, and region.

Studies have shown that the death of a preceding child leads to a shorter birth interval than when the preceding child survived. Data from the 2006-07 SDHS show that the median birth interval for births whose previous sibling is alive is about 10 months longer than for births whose previous sibling is dead (38.9 months and 29.1 months, respectively).

In general, the median birth interval increases with the mother's education and wealth status.

Table 4.6 Birth intervals

Percent distribution of non-first births in the five years preceding the survey by number of months since preceding birth, and median number of months since preceding birth, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background			Months	since prece	ding birth				Number of non-	Median number of months since preceding
characteristic	7-17	18-23	24-35	36-47	48-54	55-59	60+	Total	first births	birth
Age										
15-19	15.2	16.3	58.5	10.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	100.0	28	26.7
20-29	6.0	13.7	32.4	21.2	8.3	3.4	15.0	100.0	921	35.1
30-39	3.5	7.9	27.4	19.4	8.3	3.2	30.3	100.0	805	42.3
40-49	3.4	7.2	27.0	17.6	6.3	5.1	33.4	100.0	177	42.1
Birth order										
2-3	4.7	10.4	29.0	20.3	8.1	3.5	24.1	100.0	1,065	39.0
4-6	5.7	10.3	28.2	19.7	7.9	3.8	24.3	100.0	625	38.2
7+	3.4	13.5	40.7	19.2	7.7	2.1	13.4	100.0	241	33.5
Sex of preceding birth										
Male	4.0	11.6	31.9	19.7	7.9	2.7	22.2	100.0	952	36.7
Female	5.8	9.9	28.5	20.2	8.1	4.1	23.5	100.0	979	39.1
Survival of preceding birth										
Living •	3.5	10.2	30.0	20.5	8.2	3.6	24.0	100.0	1,725	38.9
Dead	16.3	15.5	31.8	15.2	6.5	1.9	12.7	100.0	206	29.1
Residence										
Urban	5.4	9.1	26.3	20.0	9.1	2.6	27.5	100.0	411	40.4
Rural	4.7	11.2	31.3	20.0	7.7	3.6	21.6	100.0	1,520	37.1
Region										
Hhohho	4.2	13.7	31.2	19.9	6.8	2.4	21.9	100.0	527	36.5
Manzini	5.2	8.5	29.6	20.0	10.3	3.2	23.1	100.0	577	38.6
Shiselweni	6.1	10.8	31.3	16.5	6.2	4.0	25.2	100.0	426	37.6
Lubombo	4.0	10.1	28.6	23.6	8.2	4.4	21.1	100.0	402	39.0
Education										
No education	7.8	11.0	32.1	22.6	8.3	6.0	12.2	100.0	217	35.7
Lower primary	4.0	12.8	28.6	19.9	7.2	3.1	24.3	100.0	194	38.1
Higher primary	4.9	11.3	34.0	20.3	6.0	3.1	20.4	100.0	525	35.9
Secondary	3.6	10.7	31.2	21.0	8.3	3.8	21.5	100.0	618	37.4
High school	5.4	9.1	24.1	13.1	12.2	2.4	33.8	100.0	270	46.8
Tertiary	6.4	8.2	20.4	24.7	5.9	0.9	33.4	100.0	108	43.8
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	5.5	13.3	30.6	21.6	7.6	4.1	17.4	100.0	420	36.2
Second	4.1	9.7	35.4	19.5	9.2	2.9	19.1	100.0	439	36.3
Middle	5.5	8.5	32.3	19.6	6.0	3.3	24.9	100.0	381	37.8
Fourth	4.1	13.0	26.9	16.8	9.0	4.3	25.9	100.0	360	39.8
Highest	5.3	9.0	23.8	22.4	8.0	2.4	29.0	100.0	331	42.1
Total	4.9	10.7	30.2	20.0	8.0	3.4	22.8	100.0	1,931	37.9

Note: First-order births are excluded. The interval for multiple births is the number of months since the preceding pregnancy that ended in a live birth.

4.7 AGE AT FIRST BIRTH

The age at which childbearing commences is an important determinant of the overall level of fertility as well as the health and welfare of the mother and the child. In some societies, postponement of first births due to an increase in age at marriage has contributed to overall fertility decline. Table 4.7 shows that women are gradually having children at an older age. The median age at first birth has increased from 18.9 years for women age 45-49 to 19.8 years for women age 20-24.

Overall, 6 percent of women age 25-49 have given birth by age 15 and 59 percent of women have become mothers by age 20. The increase in age at marriage can also be detected from the increase over time in the proportion of women who have given birth at age 15. Whereas 1 percent of women age 15-19 gave birth by age 15, the corresponding proportion for women age 45-49 is 12 percent.

Table 4.7 Age	at first birth	<u>1</u>													
Percentage of given birth, and	Percentage of women age 15-49 who gave birth by specific exact ages, percentage who have never given birth, and median age at first birth, according to current age, Swaziland 2006-07														
	Percentage Percentage who gave birth by exact age Percentage who gave birth by exact age														
Current age	15	18	20	22	25	given birth	of women	birth							
15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49	1.4 2.3 4.3 4.7 4.5 7.4 12.0	na 28.0 29.5 31.0 32.3 40.8 40.1	na 52.0 55.6 57.2 56.3 65.6 62.1	na na 71.1 73.2 75.5 79.2 79.1	na 84.6 87.1 86.5 89.4 88.5	81.5 29.2 10.8 3.7 4.8 3.3 4.6	1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383	a 19.8 19.5 19.4 19.4 18.7 18.9							
20-49	5.0	32.1	56.8	na	na	12.5	3,713	19.4							
na = Not appl a = Omitted b age group	25-496.033.758.774.986.95.92,66719.2na = Not applicable a = Omitted because less than 50 percent of women had a birth before reaching the beginning of the age group														

Table 4.8 presents trends in the median age at first birth across age cohorts for sub-groups of women. The measures are presented for women age 25-49 to ensure that half of the women have already had a birth. The median age at first birth does not vary significantly by urban-rural residence. For example, the median in rural areas is 18.9 years and in urban areas it is 20.1 years. This is true for all age groups. Regional variations are also small; the median age at first birth in Hhohho, Manzini and Shiselweni is 19.3 years or higher, while in Lubombo the median is 18.6 years.

The median age at first birth increases with the woman's level of education and wealth status. The median for women with tertiary education is 4.3 years higher than for women with no education (23.1 years and 17.8 years, respectively). The median age for women in the highest quintile is 2.2 years higher than for women in the lowest quintile (20.7 years and 18.5 years, respectively).

Table 4.8 Median age at first birth

Median age at first birth among women age 25-49 years, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background		(Current age	9		Women
characteristic	characteristic 25-29 30-3				45-49	age 25-49
Residence						
Urban	20.4	20.3	20.2	20.0	19.3	20.1
Rural	19.1	19.2	19.1	18.3	18.8	18.9
Pegion						
Hhohho	19.8	19.6	19.9	18.8	18.6	19.5
Manzini	19.0	19.8	19.5	18.8	18.7	19.5
Shiselweni	19.7	19.3	19.0	18.9	19.9	19.1
Lubombo	18.8	18.8	18.5	18.0	18.7	18.6
Education						
No education	18.0	17.7	18.2	16.8	18.7	17.8
lower primary	17.2	18.6	18.8	17.7	17.2	18.0
Higher primary	18.4	18.3	18.2	18.5	18.0	18.3
Secondary	18.7	19.3	19.3	19.0	19.4	19.1
High school	21.1	20.4	21.3	20.0	21.6	20.8
Tertiary	24.3	24.0	22.9	23.0	21.6	23.1
Wealth guintile						
Lowest	18.5	18.6	18.8	17.5	18.8	18.5
Second	18.7	18.7	18.7	18.3	18.7	18.6
Middle	18.9	19.3	18.8	18.2	18.6	18.8
Fourth	20.2	19.2	19.9	19.2	18.1	19.5
Highest	21.2	21.2	20.4	20.1	19.9	20.7
Total	19.5	19.4	19.4	18.7	18.9	19.2

4.8 TEENAGE PREGNANCY AND MOTHERHOOD

Teenage pregnancy is a major health concern because of its association with higher morbidity and mortality for both the mother and child. Childbearing during the teenage years also frequently has adverse social consequences, particularly on female educational attainment since women who become mothers in their teens are more likely to curtail education.

Table 4.9 shows the percentage of women age 15-19 who have given birth or who are pregnant with their first child. A total of 23 percent of teenagers have started childbearing; 19 percent have had a live birth and 4 percent are pregnant with their first child. While only 4 percent of women age 15 have started childbearing, 45 percent of women are either mothers or are pregnant with their first child by age 19. Rural women are more likely than urban teenagers to have started childbearing. However, the proportion of teenagers who are pregnant with their first child is slightly higher in urban areas than in rural areas (6 percent compared with 4 percent).

There are notable regional differences in the proportion of teenagers who have begun childbearing, ranging from 18 percent in Manzini to 27 percent in Lubombo. There is an inverse relationship between early childbearing and education. Teenagers with less education are more likely to start childbearing early than better educated women; 61 percent of teenagers who had no education had begun childbearing compared to 15 percent of those with high school education. It appears that even minimal education makes a difference in delaying pregnancy among teenagers; the proportion of teenagers who have begun childbearing is 36 percent for those with lower primary education and 29 percent for those with higher primary education. These proportions are significantly lower than for those with no education (61 percent). Teenagers in the lowest wealth quintile are more than twice as likely to start childbearing early than those in the highest wealth quintile (33 percent and 15 percent, respectively).

Table 4.9 Teenage pregnancy and motherhood

Percentage of women age 15-19 who have had a live birth or who are pregnant with their first child and percentage who have begun childbearing, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percent	age who:	Percentage	
		Are pregnant	who have	
Background	Have had	with first	begun	Number o
characteristic	a live birth	child	childbearing	women
Age				
15	2.5	1.7	4.2	248
16	6.8	4.2	11.0	273
17	16.4	6.0	22.4	268
18	29.3	3.3	32.6	241
19	39.4	5.0	44.5	245
Residence				
Urban	13.9	5.6	19.5	249
Rural	19.6	3.7	23.3	1,025
Region				
Hhohho	20.6	5.5	26.1	303
Manzini	14.9	3.4	18.3	415
Shiselweni	16.8	4.2	21.0	301
Lubombo	24.0	3.2	27.2	254
Education				
No education	(53.9)	(7.4)	(61.3)	27
Lower primary	31.0	4.5	35.5	82
Higher primary	23.9	4.9	28.8	425
Secondary	13.6	3.0	16.6	576
High school	10.0	5.1	15.1	157
Tertiary	*	*	*	6
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	26.6	5.9	32.5	212
Second	19.6	4.5	24.1	227
Middle	19.4	4.4	23.8	263
Fourth	16.7	3.6	20.3	309
Highest	12.3	2.3	14.6	262
Total	18.5	4.1	22.6	1,274

Marjorie Mavuso

This chapter presents the results of the 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) regarding the following: knowledge of specific contraceptive methods, brands of some methods, sources of methods and cost of methods, behaviour regarding contraceptive use, and attitudes towards use of contraception. The results are presented to show the perspectives of males and females in the reproductive age range, by age group. Because this is the first DHS survey in Swaziland and no comparable survey has ever been conducted in Swaziland, it is not possible to compare survey data. The findings are particularly important to Swaziland because they will contribute towards the evaluation of the national efforts in making family planning services available to the entire population of reproductive age. It will also contribute to better policy decisions regarding the unmet need for family planning, which will create further demand for quality family planning services.

5.1 KNOWLEDGE OF CONTRACEPTIVE METHODS

Information about contraception is a major determinant of positive attitudes towards family planning, method acquisition, and sustained contraceptive use. Couples who have adequate knowledge about the benefits of family planning are more likely to have a small family size and hence have better health outcomes compared with those who have less knowledge. In Swaziland, where patriarchy is the dominant form of social organisation, it is very important to ensure that men have adequate knowledge of family planning, because they influence reproductive health outcomes.

In the SDHS, male and female respondents age 15-49 years who were married or sexually active were asked a series of questions about contraceptive knowledge and use. They were first asked to name all of the family planning methods that they knew. For those methods they could not name, the interviewer described the method and further asked if the respondent had ever heard of the method. If the respondent remembered the method then it was added to the list of methods known by the respondent. The range of methods included two categories: traditional and modern methods. Modern methods included female and male sterilisation, the pill, IUD, injectables, implants, male and female condoms, diaphragm, foam/jelly, lactational amenorrhoea (LAM), and emergency contraception. Traditional methods included withdrawal, rhythm/Billings/mucus, and folk method.

Table 5.1 presents the percentage distribution of all married and sexually active women and men who knew any contraceptive method by each specific method. The data are presented by sex, for currently married and for sexually active unmarried respondents. Table 5.2 presents the contraceptive knowledge levels of all the respondents by selected demographic characteristics. There are 12 modern and three traditional methods of contraception listed. The data show that knowledge of at least one contraceptive method among women and men is universal in Swaziland, regardless of marital status. Of the 12 modern methods of contraception listed in the questionnaire, the most widely known method is male condom (99 percent for both males and females). The best known methods for female respondents are male condom (99 percent), injectables (96 percent), the pill (95 percent), and female condom (91 percent). For men, the best-known methods are male condom (99 percent), followed by female condom, the pill, and injectables (84 percent each).

Table 5.1 Knowledge of contraceptive methods

Percentage of all respondents, currently married respondents and sexually active unmarried respondents age 15-49 who know any contraceptive method, by specific method, Swaziland 2006-07

		Women			Men	
Method	All women	Currently married women	Sexually active unmarried woman	All men	Currently married men	Sexually active unmarried men
Any method	99.7	99.9	99.7	99.6	100.0	100.0
Any modern method	99.7	99.9	99.7	99.5	99.9	100.0
Female sterilisation	68.6	77.0	71.3	63.3	76.3	68.5
Male sterilisation	27.9	33.6	33.1	35.0	46.9	38.4
Pill	94.7	98.4	97.7	84.1	93.8	88.3
IUD	74.5	88.1	83.7	49.6	74.3	57.5
Injectables	95.9	98.5	99.2	83.7	96.1	91.4
Implants	3.7	4.6	3.3	4.2	7.1	4.3
Male condom	98.8	98.7	99.3	99.2	99.6	100.0
Female condom	91.3	92.7	93.6	84.1	88.3	90.5
Diaphragm	19.4	22.9	24.3	19.6	23.9	22.1
Foam/jelly	18.6	22.8	21.7	16.8	23.1	21.0
Lactational amenorrhoea (LAM)	58.3	73.2	64.1	33.0	54.2	33.4
Emergency contraception	25.7	24.8	37.6	21.8	27.0	31.2
Any traditional method	77.5	87.0	85.9	78.5	94.1	92.2
, Rhythm/Billings/mucus method	38.3	39.9	44.4	46.0	57.8	60.3
Withdrawal	70.3	82.7	81.2	73.5	92.1	87.9
Folk method	9.9	13.7	9.3	4.3	5.8	3.7
Mean number of methods known	8.0	8.7	8.6	7.2	8.7	8.0
Number of respondents	4,987	2,062	573	4,156	1,219	587
¹ Had last sexual intercourse within 3	0 days prece	eding the sur	vey			

Table 5.1 also shows that the least known methods (25 percent or less for all groups) include diaphragm, foam/jelly, and implants. Of note is that emergency contraception is more likely to be known by sexually active unmarried men and women (31 percent and 38 percent, respectively) than by married respondents.

Knowledge of traditional methods is relatively high (78 percent of all women and 79 percent of all men). Currently married respondents are only slightly more aware of traditional family planning methods than unmarried respondents. For example, knowledge of at least one traditional contraceptive method among married men is 94 percent compared with 92 percent of unmarried sexually active men. Knowledge of the withdrawal method is high among women and men (70 percent or higher). It is interesting to note that men are more likely to have heard of the rhythm/Billings/mucus method than women; 60 percent and 44 percent, respectively. Folk methods were mentioned by 10 percent or less of respondents, except among currently married women (14 percent).

Knowledge of contraceptives is also universal across all subgroups of population (see Table 5.2).

Table 5.2 Knowledge of contraceptive methods by background characteristics

Percentage of currently married women and currently married men age 15-49 who have heard of at least one contraceptive method and who have heard of at least one modern method by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Women			Men	
		Heard of			Heard of	
	Heard of	any		Heard of	any	
Background	any	modern		any	modérn	
characteristic	method	method ¹	Number	method	method ¹	Number
Age						
15-19	99.1	99.1	88	*	*	2
20-24	100.0	100.0	343	100.0	100.0	66
25-29	99.9	99.9	388	100.0	100.0	224
30-34	100.0	100.0	379	100.0	100.0	255
35-39	100.0	100.0	334	100.0	100.0	253
40-44	100.0	100.0	291	100.0	100.0	211
45-49	100.0	99.5	238	100.0	99.6	208
Residence						
Urban	99.9	99.9	542	100.0	100.0	490
Rural	99.9	99.9	1,520	100.0	99.9	729
Region						
Hhohho	99.9	99.9	600	100.0	99.8	389
Manzini	99.9	99.8	650	100.0	100.0	368
Shiselweni	100.0	100.0	363	100.0	100.0	175
Lubombo	100.0	100.0	449	100.0	100.0	287
Education						
No education	100.0	100.0	247	100.0	99.5	156
Lower primary	99.5	98.9	176	100.0	100.0	131
Higher primary	100.0	100.0	538	100.0	100.0	227
Secondary	100.0	100.0	600	100.0	100.0	257
High school	100.0	100.0	304	100.0	100.0	241
Tertiary	99.8	99.8	197	100.0	100.0	206
Wealth guintile						
Lowest	99.8	99.5	353	100.0	99.5	158
Second	100.0	100.0	369	100.0	100.0	163
Middle	100.0	100.0	379	100.0	100.0	189
Fourth	100.0	100.0	424	100.0	100.0	268
Highest	99.9	99.9	537	100.0	100.0	440
Total 15-49	99.9	99.9	2,062	100.0	99.9	1,219

Note: An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases.

¹ Female sterilisation, male sterilisation, pill, IUD, injectables, implants, male condom, female condom, lactational amenorrhea method (LAM), emergency contraception, and other modern methods

5.2 EVER USE OF CONTRACEPTION

All respondents who said they knew a method of contraception (traditional or modern), were asked if they had ever used the method listed. The data are presented in Tables 5.3.1 and 5.3.2. Table 5.3.1 shows that 71 percent of women have used any method and almost all of them (70 percent) used a modern method. Sexually active unmarried women are more likely to have used a family planning method than their married counterparts (92 percent and 89 percent, respectively). The method used most often is male condom (45 percent), followed by injectables (43 percent), and the pill (31 percent). Other methods that were regularly ever used by women are LAM (17 percent) and traditional methods (18 percent). The male condom was the most popular method ever used by sexually active unmarried women (73 percent), while injectables are most popular among currently married women (61 percent) (Figure 5.1).

Table 5.3.1 Ever use of contraception: Women

Percentage of all women, currently married women, and sexually active unmarried women age 15-49 who have ever used any contraceptive method by method, according to age, Swaziland 2006-07

								Moder	n method	1						Trad	itional me	thod	
Age	Any method	Any modern method	Female sterili- zation	Male sterili- zation	Pill	IUD	Inject- ables	Im- plants	Male con- dom	Female con- dom	Dia- phragm	Foam/ jelly	LAM	Emer- gency contra- ception	Any tradi- tional method	Rhythm/ Billings/ mucus method	With- drawal	Folk method	Number of women
									ALL W	Omen									
15-19	27.6	26.9	0.0	0.0	4.5	0.1	7.6	0.0	22.3	1.0	0.1	0.1	2.5	0.3	4.5	1.4	2.9	0.6	1,274
20-24	78.4	76.5	0.2	0.3	19.8	0.4	39.6	0.1	56.5	3.1	0.1	0.4	13.6	3.2	16.6	5.3	11.0	2.0	1,046
25-29	90.0	89.6	0.7	0.2	38.1	3.1	63.1	0.4	65.0	5.0	0.6	1.9	17.8	5.3	22.5	7.7	16.3	1.5	729
30-34	94.1	93.0	3.0	0.8	49.2	6.7	69.0	0.2	63.9	4.5	0.5	3.0	24.9	4.5	26.6	8.4	20.3	2.2	616
35-39	90.2	89.1	5.4	0.5	57.1	10.2	65.9	0.5	53.0	5.5	0.9	4.0	28.9	3.2	26.8	8.0	21.6	3.0	503
40-44	84.5	83.6	9.8	0.7	51.3	17.7	56.3	0.0	35.0	3.7	0.5	6.4	32.8	2.4	24.7	7.7	19.0	4.0	438
45-49	80.3	78.5	13.0	0.7	46.9	17.1	41.8	0.0	25.2	2.4	0.7	3.2	27.4	0.7	20.4	5.5	16.2	1.8	383
Total	71.0	69.8	2.9	0.4	30.8	5.3	42.8	0.1	45.3	3.3	0.4	2.0	17.1	2.6	17.6	5.6	13.0	1.8	4,987
								CURRE	NTLY MA	RRIED WO	Omen								
15-19	70.9	68.3	0.0	0.0	20.9	0.0	34.6	0.0	45.5	1.1	0.0	1.0	7.6	0.0	14.4	2.8	11.6	0.0	88
20-24	89.2	86.6	0.6	0.2	24.4	0.7	50.9	0.0	53.7	4.9	0.3	0.3	17.4	2.7	21.8	5.7	15.7	2.6	343
25-29	91.8	91.1	0.9	0.4	43.2	3.1	70.7	0.7	58.8	5.8	0.8	2.6	21.7	4.1	26.6	7.5	20.2	1.6	388
30-34	95.6	94.6	3.6	0.5	52.7	7.7	72.5	0.2	59.0	4.6	0.4	3.7	26.6	4.1	30.7	9.6	23.6	2.7	379
35-39	92.8	91.6	7.3	0.8	59.8	10.0	69.4	0.5	50.8	5.2	0.5	5.2	30.9	3.0	30.2	8.0	24.3	3.5	334
40-44	84.3	82.9	11.8	1.1	53.6	18.8	57.9	0.0	33.1	2.5	0.7	6.2	33.0	2.9	25.4	8.6	19.6	3.8	291
45-49	82.6	79.9	16.9	0.5	49.4	15.6	43.7	0.0	24.2	1.8	0.6	3.2	28.5	0.7	18.9	3.4	16.1	1.9	238
Total	89.2	87.7	5.8	0.5	45.8	8.2	61.0	0.2	48.5	4.2	0.5	3.3	25.2	2.9	25.6	7.2	19.8	2.5	2,062
							SEX	UALLY A	CTIVE UN	MARRIE) WOMEN	1							
15-19	80.1	80.1	0.0	0.0	12.7	0.0	23.2	0.0	69.1	2.7	1.0	0.0	3.9	1.6	11.6	4.6	9.4	0.8	98
20-24	93.1	91.3	0.0	1.2	26.6	1.1	49.2	0.0	74.1	5.4	0.0	0.7	16.7	5.2	23.4	10.1	15.9	1.1	193
25-29	98.5	98.5	0.0	0.0	41.5	4.9	70.6	0.0	85.8	5.5	0.0	2.9	14.4	11.3	30.2	11.8	23.4	2.0	112
30-34	96.7	96.7	4.3	1.2	50.2	4.9	66.2	0.1	77.3	6.4	1.2	1.7	24.3	5.6	18.7	8.1	14.7	1.1	77
35-39	(88.5)	(88.5)	(6.0)	(0.0)	(48.7)	(13.6)	(64.2)	(0.0)	(65.2)	(7.0)	(5.9)	(5.9)	(17.0)	(8.1)	(20.1)	(6.2)	(20.1)	(0.0)	45
40-44	(89.0)	(89.0)	(10.6)	(0.0)	(56.6)	(16.9)	(50.8)	(0.0)	(51.2)	(10.9)	(0.0)	(7.6)	(31.6)	(6.2)	(21.5)	(3.4)	(18.1)	(0.0)	31
45-49	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	16
Total	91.6	91.0	1.9	0.6	34.5	5.2	52.1	0.0	73.1	5.5	0.8	1.9	15.8	6.0	21.5	8.5	16.4	1.0	573

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases.

LAM = Lactational amenorrhea method

¹ Women who had sexual intercourse within 30 days preceding the survey

Ever use of contraception varies by age. Ever use of a modern contraceptive method is 28 percent for women age 15-19, rises sharply to reach a peak of 94 percent among women age 30-34, and then drops to 80 percent at age 45-49. The use of selected methods (e.g., female sterilisation, male sterilisation, and IUD) increases with age. Injectables are popular among women age 25-39 and male condoms are favoured by women age 25-34, especially those who are sexually active and unmarried.



Figure 5.1 Ever Use of Contraception among Women

Table 5.3.2 shows that 59 percent of men had ever used a method of contraception and 55 percent had used a modern method. As in the case of women, the level of ever use is higher among sexually active unmarried men than for currently married men. The most popular ever used method is the male condom. In both groups younger men reported less use of contraception. Ever use of contraception also varies by the man's age. Current use of any contraceptive method is 17 percent for men age 15-19, rises sharply to reach a peak of 88 percent among men age 30-34, and then declines to 78 percent at age 45-49. Male condoms are favoured by men age 25-34, especially those who are sexually active and unmarried. The use of traditional methods increases with age.

Table 5.3.2 Ever use of contraception: Men

Percentage of all men, currently married men, and sexually active unmarried men age 15-49 who have ever used any contraceptive method by method, according to age, Swaziland 2006-07

						Traditiona	l method				
			Moder	n method		Rhythm/					
		Any	Male		Any tradi-	Billings/					
	Any	modérn	sterili-	Male	tional	mucus	With-	Number of			
Age	method	method	zation	condom	method	method	drawal	men			
				ALL MEN	1						
15-19	16.6	15.5	0.4	15.1	3.3	1.8	1.9	1,323			
20-24	67.1	64.6	1.0	64.0	21.3	12.1	11.9	886			
25-29	85.3	81.3	0.6	81.0	36.3	19.4	25.5	624			
30-34	87.5	82.5	0.0	82.5	49.4	24.1	39.3	431			
35-39	83.4	75.5	1.1	74.7	51.5	22.7	43.4	367			
40-44	88.0	80.6	0.3	80.6	51.8	22.6	42.1	269			
45-49	78.1	66.6	2.4	65.1	53.4	21.7	44.0	256			
Total 15-49	59.3	55.4	0.7	55.0	27.4	13.4	20.3	4,156			
CURRENTLY MARRIED MEN											
15-19	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	2			
20-24	81.3	72.3	1.4	72.3	39.2	23.6	26.0	66			
25-29	91.2	83.4	1.0	82.9	47.1	27.0	31.1	224			
30-34	89.6	81.3	0.0	81.3	55.8	27.2	46.8	255			
35-39	85.4	76.6	1.6	75.4	56.8	24.9	47.9	253			
40-44	88.9	82.7	0.4	82.7	52.9	23.5	44.0	211			
45-49	80.3	68.5	2.4	66.6	55.9	22.3	45.2	208			
Total 15-49	86.9	78.3	1.1	77.6	53.0	25.0	42.2	1,219			
		SEXU	JALLY AC	CTIVE UNA	ARRIED M	EN ¹					
15-19	80.9	72.2	2.0	70.3	26.3	18.0	11.1	55			
20-24	92.2	91.0	0.0	91.0	37.3	22.7	19.7	202			
25-29	95.9	94.7	0.5	94.7	40.4	16.5	33.0	175			
30-34	97.6	96.6	0.0	96.6	55.8	32.4	36.0	83			
35-39	(94.1)	(94.1)	(0.0)	(94.1)	(40.1)	(11.2)	(35.8)	43			
40-44	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	18			
45-49	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	11			
Total 15-49	93.0	90.8	0.5	90.6	40.4	21.3	26.8	587			
Note: Figures ir estimate is based ¹ Men who had	n parenthe d on fewer sexual inte	eses are b than 25 u ercourse w	ased on inweighte ithin 30	25-49 un ed cases. days prece	weighted c ding the sur	ases. An as vey	terisk indi	cates that an			

5.3 CURRENT USE OF CONTRACEPTIVE METHODS

To measure the national contraceptive prevalence rate (CPR), women age 15-49 were asked to indicate whether they were currently using any method of contraception and to identify the method they were currently using. As shown in Table 5.4, the contraceptive prevalence for currently married women in Swaziland is 51 percent. Most current users use a modern method (48 percent). The group with the highest contraceptive prevalence is sexually active unmarried women (65 percent), which is due to their greater use of the male condom.

Injectables, male condom, and the pill are the most popular methods of contraception among currently married women (17 percent, 12 percent, and 10 percent, respectively). The use of contraceptives increases with age. For currently married women, the percentage who use a modern contraceptive method is 43 percent for women age 15-19, rises to 65 percent among women age 30-34, and then declines to 34 percent at age 45-49. The increase in use by age is notable for permanent or long-term methods, such as female sterilisation and IUD. Injectables and condoms are popular among women age 25-34.

						M	odern meth	nod					Tradi	itional me	thod			
Age	Any method	Any modern method	Female sterili- zation	Male sterili- zation	Pill	IUD	Inject- ables	lm- plants	Male condom	Female condom	LAM	Any tradi- tional method	Rhythm/ Billings/ mucus method	With- drawal	Folk method	Not currently using	Not urrently using Total	Number of women
								AL	L WOMEN	ı								
15-19	15.3	15.3	0.0	0.0	2.0	0.1	4.6	0.0	8.2	0.2	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	84.7	100.0	1,274
20-24	42.9	42.0	0.2	0.0	6.0	0.2	16.1	0.0	18.0	0.1	1.3	0.9	0.1	0.7	0.1	57.1	100.0	1,046
25-29	52.5	50.9	0.7	0.2	9.0	0.6	19.4	0.2	20.1	0.0	0.7	1.6	0.2	1.1	0.3	47.5	100.0	729
30-34	57.3	54.6	3.0	0.3	10.4	1.4	18.4	0.1	19.4	0.3	1.3	2.7	0.1	2.4	0.2	42.7	100.0	616
35-39	47.7	44.0	5.4	0.0	8.4	1.3	14.2	0.3	12.8	0.4	1.1	3.7	0.8	2.2	0.7	52.3	100.0	503
40-44	38.2 26.9	35.2	9.8 12.0	0.2	5.9	2.4	8.9	0.0	/.4	0.0	0.6	3.0	0.2	1.4	1.4	61.8 72.2	100.0	430 202
45-49	20.0	24.6	13.0	0.0	1.9	2.5	1.6	0.0	5./	0.0	0.0	2.2	0.0	2.2	0.0	/ 5.2	100.0	505
Total	37.9	36.3	2.9	0.1	5.9	0.9	12.0	0.1	13.6	0.1	0.8	1.6	0.2	1.1	0.3	62.1	100.0	4,987
							CU	JRRENTLY	MARRIED	WOMEN								
15-19	42.8	42.8	0.0	0.0	11.2	0.0	20.9	0.0	10.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	57.2	100.0	88
20-24	46.7	44.6	0.6	0.0	8.1	0.0	20.8	0.0	12.9	0.0	2.1	2.1	0.3	1.4	0.4	53.3	100.0	343
25-29	53.7	51.7	0.9	0.3	11.7	0.7	24.4	0.4	12.6	0.0	0.8	2.0	0.2	1.5	0.3	46.3	100.0	388
30-34	64.9	61.5	3.6	0.5	15.2	2.0	21.1	0.2	17.3	0.5	1.1	3.4	0.2	3.1	0.0	35.1	100.0	379
35-39	56.0	52.2	7.3	0.0	11.0	1.3	17.5	0.2	13.8	0.3	0.9	3.8	0.6	2.6	0.6	44.0	100.0	334
40-44	42.3	38.2	11.8	0.3	6.8	2.6	9.0	0.0	7.4	0.0	0.3	4.1	0.3	2.1	1.7	57.7	100.0	291
45-49	34.4	30.9	16.9	0.0	2.6	3.0	2.1	0.0	6.2	0.0	0.0	3.6	0.0	3.6	0.0	65.6	100.0	238
Total	50.6	47.7	5.8	0.2	9.9	1.4	17.2	0.1	12.2	0.1	0.9	2.9	0.3	2.2	0.4	49.4	100.0	2,062
							SEXUAL	LY ACTIV	e unmarf	RIED WOM	IEN ¹							
15-19	55.7	55.7	0.0	0.0	6.4	0.0	12.8	0.0	35.3	1.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	44.3	100.0	98
20-24	61.6	60.4	0.0	0.0	6.4	1.1	18.1	0.0	33.6	0.4	0.7	1.2	0.0	1.2	0.0	38.4	100.0	193
25-29	78.1	75.4	0.0	0.0	10.6	0.9	20.4	0.0	42.3	0.0	1.2	2.6	0.0	1.9	0.7	21.9	100.0	112
30-34	73.4	72.2	4.3	0.0	2.9	0.0	22.4	0.0	39.1	0.0	3.6	1.2	0.0	1.2	0.0	26.6	100.0	77
35-39	(57.7)	(51.0)	(6.0)	(0.0)	(7.4)	(4.4)	(13.7)	(0.0)	(19.4)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(6.7)	(1.8)	(4.9)	(0.0)	(42.3)	100.0	45
40-44	(59.0)	(59.0)	(10.6)	(0.0)	(19.0)	(0.0)	(13.6)	(0.0)	(15.8)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(41.0)	100.0	31
45-49	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	16
Total	64.5	62.0	1.0	0.0	7 5	0.0	172	0.0	22.0	0.4	1.0	1.0	0.1	1 0	0.1	25.5	100.0	572

Note: If more than one method is used, only the most effective method is considered in this tabulation. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases. LAM = Lactational amenorrhea method ¹ Women who have had sexual intercourse within 30 days preceding the survey

Figure 5.2 compares the modern contraceptive prevalence of all women in Swaziland with the prevalence in other countries in south-east Africa for which data are available. It is clear that contraceptive use in Swaziland is among the highest in the region, lower only than that in Namibia and Zimbabwe.

Table 5.5 and Figure 5.3 present the distribution of currently married women by level of contraceptive use, according to selected background characteristics. Contraceptive use among urban women (53 percent) is higher than among rural women (48 percent). The most popular methods for urban women are male condom (20 percent), injectables (14 percent), and the pill (11 percent). In the rural areas, women are more likely to use injectables (18 percent), followed by the pill (10 percent) and male condom (9 percent). The contraceptive prevalence rate is highest in Manzini and Hhohho regions (54 percent and 53 percent, respectively). The CPR is 48 percent in Lubombo and 46 percent in Shiselweni.



Figure 5.2 Contraceptive Prevalence of Modern Methods Among All Women for Selected Countries in Southeast Africa

Use of contraception is clearly related to a woman's education. Women with the least education are the least likely to use contraception (29 percent) and those with the highest education are the most likely to use some form of family planning (74 percent). When comparing CPR by parity, Table 5.5 shows that CPR for women with no children is lower than for those with 1-2 and 3-4 children (28 percent compared with 50 percent and 61 percent, respectively). Women with five or more children have a lower CPR (48 percent) than those with fewer children. The data also show that contraceptive use increases with increasing wealth status.

Table 5.5 Current use of contraception by background characteristics

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 by contraceptive method currently used, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			Modern method							Traditional method								
Background characteristic	Any method	Any modern od method	Female sterili- zation	Male sterili- zation	Pill	IUD	Inject- ables	lm- plants	Male con- dom	Female con- dom	LAM	Any tradi- tional method	Rhythm/ Billings/ mucus method	With- drawal	Folk method	Not currently using	Total	Number of women
Residence																		
Urban	58.1	55.8	8.2	0.5	10.6	1.9	13.7	0.6	19.8	0.0	0.4	2.4	0.7	1.7	0.0	41.9	100.0	542
Rural	48.0	44.8	4.9	0.1	9.6	1.2	18.4	0.0	9.4	0.2	1.1	3.1	0.1	2.4	0.6	52.0	100.0	1,520
Region																		
Hhohho	53.7	50.6	5.2	0.6	10.9	1.4	17.7	0.1	13.0	0.5	1.1	3.1	0.2	2.4	0.5	46.3	100.0	600
Manzini	52.5	49.3	5.2	0.0	10.4	1.9	15.1	0.4	15.7	0.0	0.6	3.3	0.3	2.9	0.1	47.5	100.0	650
Shiselweni	45.6	42.1	5.5	0.0	7.2	0.9	18.0	0.0	9.4	0.0	1.1	3.5	0.6	2.2	0.7	54.4	100.0	363
Lubombo	48.0	46.1	7.5	0.0	9.8	1.1	18.8	0.0	8.0	0.0	1.0	1.8	0.2	1.0	0.7	52.0	100.0	449
Highest educational level																		
No education	28.9	26.5	5.8	0.0	6.1	0.6	7.6	0.0	4.7	0.4	1.3	2.4	0.0	1.5	0.9	71.1	100.0	247
Lower primary	36.3	32.1	6.1	0.0	6.5	0.0	13.9	0.0	4.4	0.0	1.1	4.2	0.0	4.2	0.0	63.7	100.0	176
Higher primary	45.6	43.6	4.0	0.0	7.9	1.0	18.9	0.0	11.3	0.0	0.5	1.9	0.2	1.4	0.3	54.4	100.0	538
Secondary	56.1	52.8	4.3	0.0	11.5	1.2	21.1	0.0	12.9	0.2	1.6	3.3	0.3	2.5	0.5	43.9	100.0	600
High School	60.0	55.7	6.7	0.7	11.4	2.0	17.8	0.0	16.8	0.3	0.0	4.3	1.0	3.0	0.3	40.0	100.0	304
Tertiary	73.7	71.6	13.0	0.9	15.7	4.2	14.4	1.5	21.3	0.0	0.5	2.1	0.0	1.4	0.7	26.3	100.0	197
Number of living children																		
0	27.6	26.1	1.9	0.0	2.0	0.0	4.0	0.0	18.1	0.0	0.0	1.5	0.0	0.7	0.8	72.4	100.0	166
1-2	49.8	48.3	1.0	0.3	11.1	1.3	20.4	0.3	13.2	0.1	0.7	1.5	0.1	1.4	0.0	50.2	100.0	772
3-4	60.7	56.4	7.8	0.3	11.0	1.7	20.5	0.1	13.7	0.2	1.1	4.3	0.8	3.2	0.3	39.3	100.0	570
5+	48.3	44.3	11.4	0.0	9.4	1.7	13.2	0.0	7.2	0.2	1.3	4.0	0.0	2.9	1.1	51.7	100.0	554
Wealth guintile																		
lowest	37.2	35.7	2.3	0.0	5.5	0.0	20.8	0.0	4.4	0.0	2.8	1.5	0.0	0.9	0.5	62.8	100.0	353
Second	42.9	40.7	4.1	0.0	9.0	1.1	16.5	0.0	8.4	0.3	1.2	2.2	0.2	2.0	0.0	57.1	100.0	369
Middle	54.2	50.3	7.1	0.0	12.1	0.4	19.9	0.0	9.7	0.2	0.8	3.9	0.4	2.9	0.6	45.8	100.0	379
Fourth	50.7	47.2	4.5	0.0	10.1	1.9	16.1	0.0	14.4	0.2	0.0	3.5	0.2	2.7	0.5	49.3	100.0	424
Highest	62.2	59.0	9.2	0.7	11.6	2.8	14.2	0.6	19.7	0.0	0.2	3.2	0.4	2.3	0.6	37.8	100.0	537
Total	50.6	47.7	5.8	0.2	9.9	1.4	17.2	0.1	12.2	0.1	0.9	2.9	0.3	2.2	0.4	49.4	100.0	2,062

LAM = Lactational amenorrhea method



Figure 5.3 Contraceptive Prevalence Rates Among Currently Married Women Age 15-49

Table 5.6 and Figure 5.4 show that contraceptive use has declined slightly from 40 percent in 2002 to 38 percent in 2007. While male condom and injectables remain the most popular methods, decline in the use of these methods has contributed to the overall decline in contraceptive prevalence in the country.

Table 5.6 Trends in current use of contraception								
Percent distribution of v contraceptive method cur to several surveys	vomen age rrently used	e 15-49 by d, according						
	2002	2006-07						
Method	SCHS	SDHS						
Any method	40.1	37.9						
Any modern method	38.6	36.3						
Male condom	16.2	13.6						
Injectables	13.5	12.0						
Female sterilisation	2.2	2.9						
Pill	5.6	5.9						
IUD	0.9	1.9						
Other modern methods ¹								
Any traditional method	1.5	1.6						
Ŕhythm	0.4	0.2						
Withdrawal	0.6	1.1						
Other	0.5	0.3						
Not currently using	58.9	62.1						
Total	100.0	100.0						
Number of women	3,386	4,987						
¹ Male sterilisation, implants, female condom, lactational amenorrhea method (LAM), emergency contraception, and other modern methods SCHS = Swaziland Community Health Survey								



Figure 5.4 Trends in Current Contraceptive Use Among Currently Married Women

5.4 NUMBER OF CHILDREN AT FIRST USE OF CONTRACEPTION

Couples use family planning methods to either limit family size or delay the next birth. Couples using family planning as a means to control family size (i.e., to stop having children) adopt contraception when they have already had the number of children they want. When contraception is used to space births, couples may start to use family planning earlier with the intention of delaying a possible pregnancy. This may be done before a couple has had their desired number of children. In a culture where smaller family size is becoming the norm, young women adopt family planning at an earlier age than their older counterparts.

Women interviewed in the 2006-07 SDHS were asked how many children they had at the time they first used a method of family planning. Table 5.7 shows the percent distribution of women by number of living children at the time of first use of contraception, according to current age. Overall, 29 percent of women never used contraception, 14 percent started using a family planning method before they had a child, and the majority (34 percent) started after having one child.

Women start using contraception at a younger age; while 26 percent of women age 20-24 started using contraception before they had any children, the corresponding number for women age 30-34 is 7 percent, and for women 45-49 is 3 percent.

Table 5.7	Table 5.7 Number of children at first use of contraception										
Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by number of living children at the time of first use of contraception, according to current age, Swaziland 2006-07											
Number of living children at time of first use											
	Never			Number of							
Age	used	0	1	2	3	4+	Missing	Total	women		
15-19	72.4	17.2	9.6	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.2	100.0	1,274		
20-24	21.6	25.8	43.1	8.0	1.2	0.1	0.3	100.0	1,046		
25-29	10.0	13.4	54.7	15.9	3.6	2.3	0.1	100.0	729		
30-34	5.9	6.8	51.4	22.8	8.9	4.0	0.2	100.0	616		
35-39	9.8	7.8	36.6	20.2	12.9	12.1	0.5	100.0	503		
40-44	15.5	5.5	27.0	18.8	10.7	21.7	0.8	100.0	438		
45-49	19.7	3.1	23.1	14.1	9.8	29.0	1.2	100.0	383		
Total	29.0	14.1	33.7	11.7	4.9	6.2	0.4	100.0	4,987		

5.5 USE OF SOCIAL MARKETING BRANDS

The Swaziland family planning programme provides a variety of contraceptive pills, which includes the mini pills, the low dose combined, and the standard dose pills. Those women who reported being on the pill were asked to indicate which type of pill they were using. Table 5.8.1 shows that of the 292 women who are using the pill, 42 percent use Lo-femenal (a low dose combined pill), and 20 percent each use Ovral (standard dose combined pill) and other types of pill.

More than half of male respondents who reported using condoms as a method of contraception use Trust brand (53 percent), followed by the government-distributed condoms (21 percent). The other identifiable condom brand is Lovers, used by 5 percent of men (Table 5.8.2). The Trust and Lovers condoms are distributed by PSI through social marketing programmes and the government condom is distributed through a variety of distribution points including health facilities.

Table 5.8.1 Brand of	pills used
Percent distribution c by brand of pill used, 2006-07	of pill users Swaziland
Brand name	Percent
Lo-femenal	42.1
Ovral	20.1
Other	19.7
Don't know	13.7
Missing	4.5
Total Number of women	100.0 292

Table 5.8.2 Brand of used	condoms
Percent distribution male/female condom of condom used, 2006-07	of users of is by brand Swaziland
Brand name	Percent
Trust	53.1
Government	21.4
Lovers	5.0
Other	9.8
Don't know	9.1
Missing	1.6
Total	100.0
Number of women	685
ramber of women	005

5.6 **DISPOSAL OF CONDOMS**

Women who reported condom use were further asked how they disposed of the used condoms. Table 5.9 shows that 68 percent of women disposed of the condoms in a pit latrine, followed by flushing them in the toilet (13 percent). A smaller percentage (8 percent) burned the used condoms and 4 percent or less threw them away or buried them.

5.7 **KNOWLEDGE OF THE FERTILE PERIOD**

An elementary knowledge of reproductive physiology provides a useful background for successful practice of coitus-associated methods such as withdrawal and condoms. Such knowledge is particularly critical in the use of the rhythm method. The 2006-07 SDHS included a question designed to obtain information on the respondent's understanding of when a woman is most likely to become pregnant during the menstrual cycle.

Respondents were asked, "From one menstrual period to the next, are there certain days when a woman is more likely to get pregnant if she has sexual relations?" If the answer was "yes," they were further asked whether that time was just before her period begins, during her period, right after her period has ended, or halfway between two periods. Table 5.10 provides the results for women and men regardless of whether they are currently using the rhythm method or not.

It is important to note that a large proportion of women and men in Swaziland have no knowledge of the fertile period. One in four women (26 percent) and 29 percent of men do not know about the monthly fertile period. In addition, 28 percent of women and 20 percent of men can give no specific time, and 24 percent of women and 28 percent of men gave the wrong response, that a woman's fertile period is right after her menstrual period has ended. Only 9 percent of women and 7 percent of men correctly stated that the fertile period is halfway between two menstrual periods.

5.8 **TIMING OF STERILISATION**

Table 5.9 Mode of disposal of condoms

Percent distribution of users of male/female condoms by mode of disposal for used condoms. Swaziland 2006-07

Mode of disposal	Percent
Burn	8.4
Flush in toilet	13.0
Bury in hole	3.4
Throw away	3.6
Pit latrine	67.9
Other	2.5
Missing	1.3
Total	100.0
Number of women	685

Table 5.10 Knowledge of fertile period									
Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by knowledge of the fertile period during the ovulatory cycle, Swaziland 2006-07									
Perceived fertile period	Women	Men							
Just before her menstrual period begins	11.0	13.6							
During her menstrual period	1.6	2.4							
Right after her menstrual period has ended	23.9	27.8							
Halfway between two menstrual periods	9.1	7.0							
Other	0.0	0.3							
No specific time	27.9	19.7							
Don't know	26.3	29.1							
Missing	0.2	0.2							
Total Number	100.0 4,987	100.0 4,156							

Women who reported that they use female sterilisation as a contraceptive method were asked additional questions about how old they were when the procedure was performed. Overall, most women had a sterilisation operation when they were in their thirties, 33 percent at age 30-34, and 30 percent at age 35-39 (data not shown).

5.9 SOURCE OF CONTRACEPTION

Information on where women obtain their contraceptives is useful for family planning programme managers and implementers for logistic planning. In the SDHS, women who reported using a modern contraceptive method at the time of the survey were asked where they obtained the method the last time they acquired it. Since some women may not know in which category the source they use falls (e.g., government or private, health centre or clinic), interviewers were instructed to note the full name of the source or facility. Supervisors and field editors were told to verify that the name and source type were

consistent, asking informants in the clusters for the names of local family planning outlets, if necessary. This practice was designed to improve the accuracy of source reporting.

Table 5.11 shows that public (government) facilities provide contraceptives to 45 percent of users, while 14 percent are supplied through private medical sources, 9 percent through Missions, 9 percent through Non-Government Organisations (NGOs), and 22 percent through other private sources (e.g., shops). The most common single source of contraceptives in Swaziland is PHU/clinic, which supply about one-quarter of all users of modern methods (25 percent). Shops supply 15 percent of users, followed by government hospitals (9 percent).

As expected, government sources supply a larger proportion of users of longterm methods, such as female sterilisation, followed closely by Mission hospital/clinic (38 percent). PHU/clinic supplies most of the pills (42 percent) and injectables (44 percent). More than half of all condom users get their supplies from private, nonmedical sources, such as shops (38 percent).

5.10 COST OF CONTRACEPTIVES

One of the indicators of desire to use contraception is self-reliance, which is measured by the proportion of users who pay for the methods and services they are using. The cost of contraceptives can be a

Table 5.11 Source of modern contraception methods									
Percent distribution of users of most recent source of method	of modern 1, accordii	contrace	eptive me thod, Swa	thods age ziland 200	15-49 by 6-07				
Source	Female sterili- zation	Pill	Inject- ables	Male condom	Total				
Public Government hospital Government health centre PHU/clinic Mobile clinic RHM/CBD Other public	40.2 36.6 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	60.4 4.5 11.1 41.9 2.3 0.6 0.0	$68.1 \\ 9.6 \\ 11.9 \\ 44.4 \\ 2.2 \\ 0.0 \\ 0.0$	19.5 4.1 3.1 8.4 0.4 2.6 1.0	44.6 8.9 7.5 25.4 1.3 1.1 0.4				
Private medical Private hospital Pharmacy Private doctor Mobile clinic CBD Other private Mission	18.1 16.9 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 37.5	19.6 10.5 4.9 3.7 0.2 0.4 0.1 8.1	11.2 8.5 0.7 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.9	11.8 2.3 9.0 0.2 0.0 0.3 0.0 2.5	13.7 7.4 4.5 1.5 0.0 0.2 0.1 9.1				
Mission hospital/clinic Mission clinic NGO's FLAS Other NGO's	37.5 0.0 1.6 1.6 0.0	2.5 5.6 10.4 8.7 1.7	2.4 8.4 8.2 7.0 1.1	1.9 0.6 4.2 3.1 1.1	5.1 4.0 8.8 6.7 1.1				
Other Shop Friend/relative Don't know Missing	0.0 0.0 1.0 1.6	0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3	1.8 0.2 0.0 0.0 1.6	57.2 38.1 3.3 15.0 0.8	22.0 14.7 1.3 5.8 1.2				
Total Number of women	100.0 145	100.0 292	100.0 598	100.0 678	100.0 1,771				

¹ Total includes other modern methods but excludes lactational amenorrhea method (LAM).

PHU = Public Health Unit

RHM/CBD = Rural Health Motivators/ Community-based distributors

NGO = Non-governmental organisation FLAS = Family Life Association of Swaziland

deterrent to the use of contraception. In the 2006-07 SDHS, current users were asked where they obtained the current method the last time and how much they paid for the method and for services. Table 5.12 shows that overall, 38 percent of contraceptive users obtained their method free of charge. The proportion does not vary much across methods (31 percent to 38 percent), except female sterilisation (16 percent) which is the only contraceptive method that is supposed to be provided free of charge in public sector health facilities in Swaziland.

While government sources are supposed to provide the methods free of charge, only 48 percent of woman who obtained the method from a public source obtained the method for free. Nineteen percent of women who obtained their methods from a private facility did not pay for the methods and services. Data in the table also show that 20 percent of women who were sterilised in a government facility did not pay for the operation and other services. More than half of pill users (53 percent), 40 percent of users of injectables, and 79 percent of condom users obtained their methods from a public-sector facility free of charge.

Analysis of the cost of contraceptives is hampered by the large proportion of women who can not report the cost for specific methods. Female sterilisation was reported to cost on average (emalangeni) E67 in the public sector and E391 in the private sector. The pill costs E5 per package and injectables cost E2 in the private sector.

Table 5.12 Cost of modern contraceptive methods										
Percentage of current users of modern contraception age 15-49 who did not pay for the method and who do not know the cost of the method and the median cost of the method by current method, according to source of current method, Swaziland 2006-07										
	Female	9								
	sterili-			Male						
Source of method/cost	zation	Pill	Injectables	condom	Total ¹					
Public sector										
Percentage free	20.0	53.4	39.9	79.4	48.3					
Do not know cost	22.4	0.4	0.6	6.5	3.3					
Median cost (in Emalangeni) ¹	66.6	-	-	-	-					
Number of women	58	177	407	132	791					
Private medical sector/other										
Percentage free	13.6	13.9	22.3	19.4	18.6					
Do not know cost	29.4	6.2	4.3	26.9	19.6					
Median cost (in Emalangeni) ¹	390.9	5.0	1.7	-	-					
Number of women	87	116	191	546	980					
Total										
Percentage free	16.2	37.7	34.3	31.1	31.8					
Do not know cost	26.6	2.7	1.8	22.9	12.3					
Median cost (in Emalangeni) ¹	120	-	-	-	-					
Number of women	145	292	598	678	1,771					
Note: Table excludes other modern	methods	but excludes	s lactational	amenorrho	ea method					

(LAM). Costs are based on the last time current users obtained method. Costs include consultation costs, if any. For condom, costs are per package; for pills, per cycle. For sterilisation, data are based on women who received the operation in the 5 years before the survey.

the method free of charge)

5.11 INFORMED CHOICE

Current users of modern methods who are well informed about the side effects and problems associated with methods and know of a range of method options are better able to make an informed choice about the method they would like to use. Current users of various modern contraceptive methods were asked whether, at the time they adopted the particular method, they were informed about potential side effects or problems with the method. Table 5.13 shows the percentage of current users of modern methods who were informed about side effects or problems of the method used, informed about what to do if they experienced side effect, informed of other methods they could use, and informed that sterilisation is a permanent method. These are broken down by method type and source of the method.

Table 5.13 Informed choice

Among current users of modern methods age 15-49 who started the last episode of use within the five years preceding the survey, percentage who were informed about possible side effects or problems of that method, the percentage who were informed about what to do if they experienced side effects, and the percentage who were informed about other methods that could use, by method and source; and among sterilised women, the percentage who were informed that the method is permanent, by initial source of method, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among women who started last episode of modern contraceptive method within five years preceding the survey:									
			Percentage who	ne survey.						
	Percentage who	Percentage who were informed	were informed by a health or							
	were informed	about what to do if	family planning							
	or problems of	experienced	methods that	Number of						
Method/source	method used	side effects	could be used	women						
Method										
Female sterilisation	43.2	44.6	52.2	62						
Pill	53.2	46.6	68.3	260						
Injectables	61.5	59.4	69.7	529						
Other modern methods	na	na	(41.6)	47						
Initial source of method ¹										
Public	59.1	54.5	70.5	561						
Government hospital	61.6	60.8	76.7	91						
Government health centre	61.7	56.4	66.2	96						
PHU/clinic	57.9	52.7	70.0	354						
Other ²	*	*	*	19						
Private medical	60.5	59.3	68.3	123						
Private hospital	58.3	56.9	69.4	85						
Private doctor	*	*	*	19						
Other ³	*	*	*	18						
Mission	47.3	48.7	55.5	97						
Mission hospital/clinic	49.2	51.3	51.6	38						
Mission clinic	46.1	47.0	58.1	59						
NGO's	68.7	62.5	74.7	82						
FLAS	66.2	60.9	74.9	72						
Other ⁴	*	*	*	26						
Total	58.0	54.5	66.5	878						

Note: Table excludes users who obtained their method from friends/relatives. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighetd cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

PHU = Public Health Unit

NGO = Non-governmental organisation FLAS = Family Life Association of Swaziland

¹ Source at start of current episode of use

² Includes mobile clinic, rural health motivators/community-based distributors (RHM/CBD), and other public sources

³ Includes pharmacy, private mobile clinic, CBD and other private sources
⁴ Includes other NGOs, shop, friends/relatives, don't know and missing

The data indicate that 58 percent of women who started using a method in the five years preceding the survey were informed about side effects of the method, 55 percent were told about what action to take in case of problems, and 67 percent were informed of other available methods of contraception.

Users of injectables are more likely than women who were sterilised and users of the pill to be given the necessary information. On the other hand, women who were sterilised are the least likely to be informed of the side effects of the operation, what action to take in case of problems, and other choices of contraception. Comparison between the initial sources of the method shows that health providers in the public sector are more likely to provide information on the methods than in the private sector.

5.12 FUTURE USE OF CONTRACEPTION

An important indicator of the changing demand for family planning is the extent to which nonusers of contraception plan to use family planning in the future. Women who were not currently using a method of contraception were asked about their intention to use family planning in the future. A total of 62 percent of women indicate that they intend to use contraception in the future, 5 percent were not sure, and 32 percent do not plan to use contraception. The intention to use contraception in future is highest among women with one or two children (77 percent and 72 percent, respectively). The corresponding proportion among women with no children is 62 percent.

Table 5.14 Future use of contraception

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 who are not using a contraceptive method by intention to use in the future, according to number of living children, Swaziland 2006-07

		Number of living children							
Intention	0	1	2	3	4+	Total			
Intends to use	61.8	76.6	72.1	58.1	51.4	62.0			
Unsure	7.9	3.4	3.6	8.9	4.5	5.0			
Does not intend to use	30.2	19.3	23.9	33.0	43.0	32.4			
Missing	0.0	0.7	0.5	0.0	1.1	0.7			
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0			
Number of women	85	196	192	139	405	1,018			

5.13 REASONS FOR NON-USE OF CONTRACEPTION

An understanding of the reasons why people do not use family planning methods is critical to design programmes that are effective in reaching women with unmet need and to improve the quality of family planning services. Table 5.15 shows currently married nonusers who do not intend to use a contraceptive method in the future by the main reasons for not intending to use family planning. Around 59 percent cited fertility-related reasons for not intending to use contraception. In particular, 40 percent said that the main reason for not intending to use was because they believe that they are either menopausal or they have had a hysterectomy (23 percent), or they had low fertility or could not get pregnant (17 percent). In addition, 11 percent of married women not using a contraceptive method cited infrequent sex and 11 percent cited health concerns as their main reason for having no intention to use a method.

Table 5.15 Reason for not intending to use contraception in the future

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 who are not using contraception and who do not intend to use in the future by main reason for not intending to use, Swaziland 2006-07

Reason	Percent distribution
Fertility-related reasons	59.1
Infrequent sex/no sex	10.9
Menopausal/had hysterectomy	23.0
Subfecund/infecund	17.3
Wants as many children as possible	7.9
Opposition to use	11.7
Respondent opposed	2.1
Husband/partner opposed	8.3
Others opposed	0.1
Religious prohibition	1.2
Method-related reasons	23.2
Health concerns	10.9
Fear of side effects	8.3
Cost too much	0.4
Inconvenient to use	0.9
Interfere with body's normal process	2.7
Other	5.9
Other	3.9
Don't know	1.5
Missing	0.5
Total	100.0
Number of women	330

5.14 **PREFERRED METHOD OF CONTRACEPTION FOR** FUTURE USE

Demand for specific methods can be assessed by asking nonusers which methods they intend to use in the future. Table 5.16 presents information on method preference among currently married women who are not using a contraceptive method but say they intend to use in the future. Almost half (47 percent) of married women who intend to use a contraceptive but were not using one at the time of the survey say the method they intend to use is injectables. Fourteen percent of women intend to use the pill, and 14 percent intend to use condoms. Nine percent of women are unsure which method they intend to use.

5.15 **EXPOSURE TO FAMILY PLANNING MESSAGES**

The media can be a major source of family planning messages. Information about public exposure to messages on a particular type of media allows policymakers to use the most effective means of communication for various target groups in the population. To assess

of women got such information from newspapers or magazines.

the effectiveness of electronic and print sources on the dissemination of family planning information, respondents in the 2006-07 SDHS were asked if they had heard or seen family planning messages on the radio, or television, or read a family planning message in a newspaper or magazine in the six months leading up to the survey. They were also asked if they had seen messages on family planning in billboards, pamphlets, T-shirts, or other sources. The results for women are shown in Table 5.17.1. SDHS respondents were widely exposed to information about family planning. For example, 86 percent of women were exposed to any type of media. One-quarter of women were not exposed to a family planning message on any of these types of media in the months preceding the survey. Media messages about family planning information are largely accessed through radio with lesser access through the print media. For example, 69 percent of women had recently heard about family planning on the radio and only 33 percent

Exposure to media messages varies by the woman's background characteristics. For instance, younger women are less likely to have been exposed to any information than older women. Women age 15-19 are least likely of all age groups to be exposed to any media. Rural women and women who live in Shiselweni are less likely than other women to have access to media messages on family planning. The woman's education and wealth status has a positive relationship to the three media. Women in the lowest wealth quintile are the least likely to be exposed to any information on family planning, while women in the highest quintile are the most likely to be exposed to any messages on family planning.

Table 5.16 Preferred method of contraception for future use

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 who are not using a contraceptive method but who intend to use in the future by preferred method, Swaziland 2006-07

Method	Percent distribution
Female sterilisation	8.8
Pill	14.1
IUD	3.0
Injectables	47.4
Implants	0.2
Condom	13.5
Female condom	0.6
Diaphragm	0.5
Withdrawal	2.0
Other	1.5
Unsure	8.6
Total Number of women	100.0 631

Table 5.17.1 Exposure to family planning messages: Women 15-49

Percentage of women age 15-49 who heard or saw a family planning message on various media in the past six months, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Radio, television or newspaper/magazine											
			News-	None of	C	Other sources of family planning messages						Percentage exposed	
Background characteristic	Radio	Tele- vision	paper/ maga- zine	three media sources	Billboards	Posters	Pamphlets	T-shirts	Other	None of these five sources	to any information source	Number of women	
Age													
15-19	55.5	21.6	26.0	38.5	35.3	42.2	36.1	49.6	13.3	32.0	79.1	1,274	
20-24	73.4	31.2	34.3	22.4	48.6	52.7	50.3	59.7	17.2	22.2	89.6	1,046	
25-29	76.6	34.4	40.1	18.9	51.8	57.6	55.3	63.9	17.9	19.6	90.4	729	
30-34	73.1	32.6	36.7	22.1	47.0	53.3	50.4	54.8	16.8	25.0	87.5	616	
35-39	71.4	27.6	34.7	24.0	45.3	51.3	49.2	55.3	14.2	26.1	86.7	503	
40-44	74.1	30.1	35.7	22.4	43.8	51.6	45.3	55.4	17.2	28.5	87.2	438	
45-49	71.0	24.1	26.3	24.1	40.8	44.0	40.3	48.9	13.7	34.9	83.8	383	
Residence													
Urban	73.2	46.3	49.2	18.4	58.4	64.2	60.1	68.1	21.8	16.4	91.7	1,330	
Rural	67.3	21.9	26.9	29.1	39.0	44.7	41.0	50.8	13.5	30.3	83.7	3,657	
Region													
Hhohho	69.9	29.0	34.1	23.6	48.6	53.8	48.3	58.2	13.2	22.1	88.4	1,340	
Manzini	75.9	38.5	43.0	19.8	53.4	59.4	55.9	60.7	21.1	19.9	89.9	1,647	
Shiselweni	61.0	18.2	22.1	35.9	35.0	40.1	37.4	47.3	12.3	35.6	79.6	1,033	
Lubombo	64.2	21.1	25.5	30.7	31.9	38.8	35.6	51.4	13.5	34.5	82.0	966	
Education													
No education	60.1	9.0	5.8	39.1	14.6	18.1	18.8	20.7	3.9	64.1	69.9	402	
Lower primary	56.2	11.3	9.5	41.9	20.8	25.3	20.7	27.4	6.2	55.4	67.5	360	
Higher primary	61.9	15.9	17.5	35.0	30.7	36.2	31.2	45.4	10.6	35.7	80.4	1,268	
Secondary	73.4	30.6	36.5	22.1	49.5	54.5	51.3	62.7	16.9	18.1	90.1	1,693	
High School	76.7	42.4	53.5	16.0	61.6	70.4	65.3	72.8	23.3	9.2	95.5	894	
Tertiary	75.7	65.1	71.2	10.7	78.3	84.4	81.3	80.1	31.2	7.1	96.6	370	
Wealth quintile													
Lowest	53.1	6.0	11.7	45.3	23.9	28.3	24.3	33.6	6.7	47.5	71.1	785	
Second	64.7	8.2	18.7	33.4	29.3	36.0	36.3	46.7	12.0	36.7	80.9	862	
Middle	70.6	16.7	26.6	25.5	40.3	44.2	41.6	50.6	12.7	28.0	87.5	968	
Fourth	76.8	36.1	38.8	19.4	51.1	57.6	52.1	63.8	17.5	20.0	89.8	1,111	
Highest	73.4	58.2	55.4	16.2	63.7	70.3	64.5	71.4	24.5	11.4	93.6	1,262	
Total 15-49	68.9	28.4	32.9	26.3	44.1	49.9	46.1	55.5	15.7	26.6	85.8	4,987	

Table 5.17.2 shows the same information for men. In general, women have better exposure to family planning messages in the mass media than men. Table 5.17.2 also shows that differences in access to media among men are similar to that of women. For instance, younger men, men who live in rural areas, those with less education and men in the lower wealth quintiles are less likely to be exposed to media messages on family planning than other men.

Table 5.17.2 Exposure to family planning messages: Men 15-49

Percentage men age 15-49 who heard or saw a family planning message on various media and percentage who discussed the practice of family planning with a health worker or professional during the past six months, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Radio	Television	Newspaper/ magazine	None of these three media sources	Percent who discussed the practice of FP with a health professional	Number of men
Аде						
15-19	45.2	17.3	23.9	45.8	2.3	1.323
20-24	56.8	24.9	35.3	32.2	4.7	886
25-29	68.4	30.4	46.5	23.8	11.1	624
30-34	67.9	34.7	41.1	25.6	12.3	431
35-39	65.8	28.0	39.6	24.6	13.9	367
40-44	70.8	31.9	38.7	23.4	14.8	269
45-49	72.3	31.3	37.5	24.6	10.0	256
Residence						
Urban	62.0	38.3	47.6	25.6	11.3	1,181
Rural	57.4	20.3	29.6	35.8	6.0	2,975
Region						
Hhohho	58.5	26.9	37.6	32.2	7.8	1,099
Manzini	62.5	31.9	42.6	27.0	7.3	1,349
Shiselweni	54.3	17.0	24.4	39.7	6.2	843
Lubombo	57.1	21.7	28.8	36.2	8.8	865
Education						
No education	51.7	9.8	6.0	46.5	6.8	316
Lower primary	52.3	9.4	8.3	45.4	4.1	470
Higher primary	51.0	14.0	22.3	42.7	5.1	980
Secondary	60.1	25.0	37.3	29.6	6.6	1,191
High School	68.6	40.8	55.7	19.9	9.5	852
Tertiary	65.9	57.6	71.2	18.7	17.4	347
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	49.6	4.5	14.0	46.2	4.8	601
Second	54.0	11.2	26.0	40.3	3.2	665
Middle	59.9	15.9	29.8	33.9	5.4	856
Fourth	61.7	29.3	36.1	29.9	8.9	953
Highest	62.9	49.9	54.2	22.8	12.1	1,081
Total 15-49	58.7	25.4	34.7	32.9	7.5	4,156

5.16 CONTACT OF NONUSERS WITH FAMILY PLANNING PROVIDERS

Given the importance of family planning services to the improvement of mothers' and children's health, it is important to optimize every opportunity to meet a woman's family planning needs. In reality, however, health care providers often miss these opportunities. Information on missed opportunities was gathered by asking women if they had visited a health facility in the 12 months preceding the survey. Those who visited a health facility were asked whether anyone at the facility had discussed family planning with them during any of their visits. Women were also asked whether they had been visited by a RHM/CBD who talked with them about family planning in the 12 months preceding the survey.

The results of these questions for nonusers of contraception at the time of the survey are presented in Table 5.18. Only 7 percent of nonusers reported being visited by fieldworkers who discussed family planning issues. While 41 percent of nonusers visited a health facility during the 12 months preceding the survey, the majority of these women (30 percent) did not discuss family planning with any health care provider. In total, 84 percent of the women discussed family planning with neither a RHM/CBD nor a health professional at a health facility.

Table 5.18 Contact of nonusers with family planning providers

Among women age 15-49 who are not using contraception, the percentage who during the last 12 months were visited by a fieldworker who discussed family planning, the percentage who visited a health facility and discussed family planning, the percentage who visited a health facility but did not discuss family planning, and the percentage who neither discussed family planning with a fieldworker nor at a health facility, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage of women who were visited	Percent women w a health f the past 1. and v	tage of ho visited acility in 2 months vho: Did not	Percentage of women who neither discussed family planning	
Packground	by fieldworker	Discussed	discuss	with fieldworker	Number of
characteristic	family planning	planning	planning	health facility	women
		plaining	pianing		
15-19	3.1	3.7	25.1	94.0	1.078
20-24	7.6	16.5	30.3	78.3	598
25-29	8.1	19.2	38.5	76.5	346
30-34	10.6	20.4	33.8	73.4	263
35-39	9.2	19.3	32.8	75.2	263
40-44	8.1	12.6	24.0	80.8	270
45-49	10.5	5.1	33.1	87.0	280
Residence					
Urban	8.2	11.3	25.3	83.3	727
Rural	6.3	11.6	30.9	84.1	2,371
Region					
Hhohho	6.9	11.4	27.1	83.6	813
Manzini	8.2	9.9	21.4	84.2	1,000
Shiselweni	7.0	13.6	35.8	82.1	682
Lubombo	4.1	12.2	39.6	85.9	603
Education					
No education	5.2	10.6	33.1	86.3	292
Lower primary	7.8	13.1	33.1	82.9	253
Higher primary	7.0	12.4	29.6	83.2	840
Secondary	7.0	10.1	28.0	84.7	1,073
High school	5.7	12.8	28.4	83.4	488
Tertiary	8.9	12.1	32.7	81.0	152
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	5.9	10.9	36.8	85.5	574
Second	5.4	12.4	27.3	84.2	580
Middle	6.9	12.4	31.4	82.3	572
Fourth	8.0	12.1	28.5	83.1	685
Highest	/.3	10.1	25.2	84.6	688
Total	6.8	11.5	29.6	83.9	3,098

5.17 HUSBAND'S KNOWLEDGE OF HIS WIFE'S USE OF CONTRACEPTION

Concealing contraceptive use is an indication of absence of communication or disagreement on use of family planning. To shed light on the extent of communication on the use of contraception among married couples, married women who were using contraception at the time of the survey were asked whether their husband knew of their use. The majority of users (88 percent) reported that their husband or partner knows about their use of contraception (Table 5.19). There are small variations in the husband's awareness of contraceptive use by his spouse by background characteristics.

Women in urban areas and Manzini are more likely than other women to say that their husband is aware of their family planning status. The husband's knowledge of his wife's contraceptive use is directly related to the woman's education and somewhat to the woman's wealth status. For example, 84 percent of women with no education say that their husband/partner is aware that they use a contraceptive method compared with 94 percent of women with tertiary education. Table 5.19 Husband/partner's knowledge of women's use of contraception

Among currently married women age 15-49 who are using a method, percent distribution by whether they report that their husbands/partners know about their use, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Husband, of res C	/partner's k spondent's ontraceptio			
Background ch <u>aracteristic</u>	Knows ¹	Does not know	Unsure whether knows/ missing	Total	Number o
Age					
15-19	(87.3)	(10.3)	(2.5)	100.0	38
20-24	91.9	6.2	1.9	100.0	160
25-29	87.5	7.5	5.0	100.0	208
30-34	88.7	8.8	2.4	100.0	246
35-39	87.1	8.5	4.4	100.0	187
40-44	82.0	14.1	4.0	100.0	123
45-49	87.3	9.3	3.3	100.0	82
Residence					
Urban	91.5	5.7	2.8	100.0	315
Rural	86.1	10.1	3.7	100.0	729
Region					
Hhohho	85.5	9.3	5.1	100.0	322
Manzini	91.0	6.9	2.1	100.0	341
Shiselweni	86.3	10.5	3.3	100.0	165
Lubombo	87.0	9.8	3.2	100.0	215
Education					
No education	83.7	12.7	3.6	100.0	71
Lower primary	85.2	12.0	2.7	100.0	64
Higher primary	84.7	10.6	4.6	100.0	245
Secondary	86.7	9.5	3.8	100.0	336
High school	91.2	7.1	1.7	100.0	182
Tertiary	94.1	2.8	3.1	100.0	145
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	83.6	13.3	3.1	100.0	131
Second	83.3	14.4	2.4	100.0	158
Middle	80.5	11.4	8.1	100.0	205
Fourth	91.2	6.9	1.9	100.0	215
Highest	93.7	4.0	2.3	100.0	334
Tatal	87.7	8.8	3.5	100.0	1.044

5.18 MALE ATTITUDES ABOUT CONTRACEPTIVE USE

The 2006-07 SDHS assessed men's attitudes toward contraception by asking male respondents whether they agreed or disagreed with three statements about family planning use: 1) contraception is women's business and a man should not have to worry about it; 2) women who use contraception may become promiscuous; and 3) a woman is the one who gets pregnant so she should be the one to get sterilized. Results are shown in Table 5.20.

Overall, 12 percent of men say that contraception is a woman's issue. There are small variations to this statement according to the man's age and marital status. However, across regions, men in Lubombo are the most likely to agree with this statement (18 percent compared with 11 percent or less). The likelihood of men agreeing with this statement is inversely related to their education and wealth

status. For instance, 24 percent of men with no education believe that contraception is a woman's business compared with 3 percent of men with tertiary education.

More than six in ten men believe that a woman who uses contraception may become promiscuous. This sentiment varies across subgroups of men. Urban men and men who live in Lubombo are less likely to share this viewpoint. The relationship between men's education and wealth status and their likelihood of agreeing that a woman who uses contraception may become promiscuous is unclear. However, men with the highest education and men in the highest wealth quintile are least likely to disagree with this statement (47 percent and 57 percent, respectively).

Table 5.20 Male attitudes about the use of contraception

Among men age 15-49, percentage who believe that contraception is a woman's business and percentage who believe that a woman using contraception may become promiscuous according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

·			
		Believe a	
	Believe	woman using	
	contraception	contraception	
Background	is a woman's	may become	Number of
characteristic	business	promiscuous	men
Age			
15-19	14.3	64.4	1,323
20-24	11.0	67.3	886
25-29	9.8	66.3	624
30-34	11.5	63.6	431
35-39	10.7	54.1	367
40-44	13.5	54.8	269
45-49	14.3	53.6	256
Marital status			
Nover married	11.0	65.6	2 734
Married or living together	11.9	56.9	2,734
Diversed/separated/widewed	12.1	5.9	203
Divorced/separated/widowed	10.9	05.0	205
Residence			
Urban	8.8	58.1	1,181
Rural	13.6	65.0	2,975
Pegion			
Hhohho	10.6	64.0	1 099
Manzini	11.1	63.8	1 349
Shiselweni	10.0	62.7	843
Lubombo	18.4	60.9	865
Education			
No education	23.8	63.0	316
Lower primary	22.9	59.7	470
Higher primary	16.6	65.7	980
Secondary	9.2	66.4	1,191
High School	5.2	63.7	852
Tertiary	2.6	46.7	347
Wealth quintile			
Lowest	22.2	62.1	601
Second	14.2	64.0	665
Middle	10.8	65.3	856
Fourth	11.0	67.9	953
Highest	7.8	56.9	1,081
Total	12.2	63.0	4,156

Sri Poedjastoeti

This chapter addresses the principal factors, other than contraception, which affect a woman's risk of becoming pregnant. These factors include marriage, polygyny, sexual activity, postpartum amenorrhoea, abstinence from sexual activity, and onset of menopause. Direct measures of the beginning of exposure to pregnancy and the level of exposure are also measured in this chapter.

6.1 CURRENT MARITAL STATUS

Marriage is a primary indication of the regular exposure of women to the risk of pregnancy and therefore is important for the understanding of fertility. Populations in which age at first marriage is low tend to have early childbearing and high fertility.

Table 6.1.1 presents the percent distribution of women by marital status, according to age. The term "married" refers to legal or formal marriage, while "living together" designates an informal union in which a man and a woman live together, even if a formal civil, religious, or traditional ceremony has not occurred. In later tables that do not list "living together" as a separate category, these women are included in the "currently married" group. Respondents who are currently married, widowed, divorced, or separated are referred to as "ever married."

Table 6.1.1 Current marital status: Women and men 15-49											
Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 by current marital status, according to age, Swaziland 2006-07											
			Marit	al status				Percentage of respondents			
Age	Never married	Married	Living together	Divorced	Separated	Widowed	Total	currently in union	Number of respondents		
	WOMEN										
15-19	92.7	3.5	3.4	0.0	0.3	0.0	100.0	6.9	1,274		
20-24	65.6	19.7	13.1	0.0	1.3	0.3	100.0	32.8	1,046		
25-29	40.8	40.4	12.9	0.0	3.7	2.2	100.0	53.3	729		
30-34	26.4	49.6	11.9	0.7	4.0	7.4	100.0	61.5	616		
35-39	14.3	57.1	9.4	1.1	5.1	13.0	100.0	66.5	503		
40-44	12.5	56.3	10.2	1.3	4.7	14.9	100.0	66.6	438		
45-49	8.7	53.6	8.6	1.5	6.2	21.4	100.0	62.2	383		
Total 15-49	49.9	31.9	9.5	0.4	2.8	5.6	100.0	41.3	4,987		
				Ν	MEN						
15-19	99.8	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.0	100.0	0.1	1,323		
20-24	91.1	4.1	3.4	0.3	1.1	0.0	100.0	7.5	886		
25-29	58.9	22.6	13.2	1.0	3.5	0.7	100.0	35.9	624		
30-34	32.8	47.6	11.5	0.6	6.2	1.3	100.0	59.1	431		
35-39	19.4	58.9	10.1	1.4	5.0	5.3	100.0	69.0	367		
40-44	6.7	68.9	9.6	2.7	6.0	6.0	100.0	78.5	269		
45-49	3.1	72.4	8.9	2.1	8.4	5.1	100.0	81.3	256		
Total 15-49	65.8	23.3	6.0	0.7	2.8	1.4	100.0	29.3	4,156		

Half of women of childbearing age have never been married; 41 percent are either married or living together with a man; and the remaining 9 percent are either divorced, separated, or widowed. Nine percent of women age 45-49 have never been married, indicating that marriage is not as universal in Swaziland as in most African countries. Two in three men age 15-49 have never been married; three in ten men are currently married or living with a partner; and only 5 percent are

separated, divorced, or widowed. Compared with women, a greater proportion of men have never been married (16 percentage points more), while a smaller proportion are formerly married.

Table 6.1.2 presents the percent distribution of women and men age 50 and older by marital status, according to age. Six percent of women age 50 and older and 1 percent of men age 50 and older have never been married. In this age group, men are much more likely than women to be in a union. While four in ten women are either married or living together, the corresponding proportion for men is as many as eight in ten. On the other hand, women are much more likely than men to be widowed (49 percent compared with 13 percent).

Table 6.1.2 Current marital status: Women and men age 50+											
Percent distribution of women and men age 50+ by current marital status, according to age, Swaziland 2006-07											
				Percentage of respondents							
Age	Never married	Married	Living together	Divorced	Separated	Widowed	Total	currently in union	Number of respondents		
WOMEN AGE 50+											
50-54 55-59 60+	8.7 7.9 4.3	52.2 47.3 25.6	6.4 3.8 3.2	2.0 0.0 1.1	3.4 3.3 3.9	27.3 37.7 62.0	100.0 100.0 100.0	58.6 51.1 28.8	164 112 392		
MEN AGE 50+											
50-54 55-59 60+	1.9 1.6 0.9	77.3 76.8 72.7	9.1 5.5 3.1	0.0 0.4 0.8	5.2 5.7 5.7	6.6 10.1 16.9	100.0 100.0 100.0	86.3 82.3 75.8	116 80 249		
Total 50+	1.3	74.6	5.1	0.5	5.5	13.0	100.0	79.7	444		

6.2 POLYGYNY

Polygyny (having more than one wife) is common in Africa and has implications for frequency of sexual activity and fertility. Polygyny was measured by asking all currently married women whether their husbands or partners had other wives, and if so, how many. The extent of polygyny was measured by asking married women the question, "Besides yourself, does your husband/partner have any other wives or does he live with other women as if married?" For currently married men, the question was, "Do you have more than one wife or do you have more than one woman with whom you are living as if married?" If more than one, he was asked, "In total, how many wives do you have or other partners do you live with now as if married?" Table 6.2 shows the distribution of the women by the number of co-wives and the distribution of the men by the number of wives, according to background characteristics.

Two in three women reported having no co-wife, 18 percent of currently married women live in polygynous unions (having one or more co-wives), and 16 percent of women gave no response on polygyny status. The large proportion of women with information missing on whether they have cowives hinders the analysis somewhat. Older women are more likely to be in polygynous unions. Polygyny is more prevalent in rural than in urban areas. Analysis of regional distribution shows substantial variation, with Lubombo having the highest proportion of women in polygynous marriages (23 percent) and Manzini the lowest (15 percent). Women with no or low education and those who are in the lower wealth quintiles are more likely to live in polygynous marriages.

Data for currently married men show that 5 percent of men report having more than one wife. The pattern for men remains the same as that of women, reflecting similar regional and socioeconomic status differences.
Table 6.2 Polygyny: Women and men age 15-49

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 by number of co-wives, and percent distribution of curr	rently
married men age 15-49 by number of wives, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07	

			W	omen					Men		
Background		Number o	of co-wiv	es		Number of	Nu	mber of v	wives		Number
characteristic	0	1	2+	Missing	Total	women	1	2+	Missing	Total	of men
Age											
15-19	72.1	8.8	3.2	15.9	100.0	88	*	*	*	100.0	2
20-24	73.2	7.5	2.4	16.8	100.0	343	95.5	3.0	1.5	100.0	66
25-29	66.9	10.2	2.9	20.0	100.0	388	98.1	1.9	0.0	100.0	224
30-34	68.1	10.8	4.8	16.2	100.0	379	95.6	4.0	0.5	100.0	255
35-39	59.7	15.8	6.0	18.5	100.0	334	92.3	6.9	0.8	100.0	253
40-44	63.2	19.2	6.3	11.4	100.0	291	92.5	6.1	1.4	100.0	211
45-49	60.8	22.8	9.2	7.2	100.0	238	91.6	8.4	0.0	100.0	208
Residence											
Urban	71.2	7.7	2.8	18.2	100.0	542	95.9	3.3	0.8	100.0	490
Rural	64.1	15.5	5.6	14.8	100.0	1,520	93.0	6.6	0.4	100.0	729
Region											
Hhohho	68.4	13.6	4.7	13.3	100.0	600	93.0	6.4	0.6	100.0	389
Manzini	69.4	11.7	3.5	15.4	100.0	650	96.4	2.9	0.8	100.0	368
Shiselweni	70.9	13.1	5.6	10.4	100.0	363	95.8	3.3	0.9	100.0	175
Lubombo	53.9	16.0	6.6	23.6	100.0	449	91.9	8.0	0.1	100.0	287
Education											
No education	62.1	16.8	5.0	16.1	100.0	247	90.2	9.8	0.0	100.0	156
Lower primary	61.1	13.4	6.8	18.7	100.0	176	92.5	7.2	0.3	100.0	131
Higher primary	62.8	19.0	4.7	13.5	100.0	538	92.1	7.5	0.4	100.0	227
Secondary	63.8	11.8	6.8	17.6	100.0	600	93.1	6.3	0.6	100.0	257
High school	72.6	9.8	1.7	15.9	100.0	304	96.9	1.7	1.3	100.0	241
Tertiary	80.7	4.5	2.8	12.0	100.0	197	98.5	1.0	0.5	100.0	206
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	61.8	18.1	3.2	16.9	100.0	353	91.1	8.4	0.6	100.0	158
Second	60.0	15.5	6.0	18.5	100.0	369	92.4	6.9	0.7	100.0	163
Middle	66.1	11.7	8.8	13.5	100.0	379	91.2	8.2	0.6	100.0	189
Fourth	64.9	14.9	5.2	15.0	100.0	424	96.6	3.4	0.0	100.0	268
Highest	73.7	9.0	2.3	15.0	100.0	537	95.7	3.4	0.9	100.0	440
Total	66.0	13.4	4.9	15.7	100.0	2,062	94.1	5.3	0.6	100.0	1,219
Note: An asterisk i	ndicates	that an est	imate is l	based on fe	wer than	25 unweig	hted case	s.			

Data for currently married women age 50 and over and men age 50 and over are shown in Tables 6.3. Data in this table show that older women are more likely than younger women to be in a polygynous union (36 percent among women age 50 and over compared with 18 percent for women age 15-49). The corresponding figures for men are 19 percent and 5 percent, respectively. The differentials across subgroups remain the same as that of women and men 15-49, reflecting similar regional and educational differences.

Table 6.3 Number of co-wives: Women and men age 50+

Percent distribution of currently married women age 50+ by number of co-wives and percent distribution of currently married men age 50+ by number of wives, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			W	omen							
						Number			Men		
Background	N	lumber o	of co-wiv	es		of	Num wi	iber of ives			Number of men
characteristic	0	1	2+	Missing	Total	50+	1	2+	Missing	Total	50+
Age											
50-54	51.8	28.0	12.4	7.8	100.0	96	83.5	15.5	0.9	100.0	100
55-59	64.4	16.0	9.4	10.2	100.0	57	79.3	19.1	1.6	100.0	66
60+	56.6	22.3	15.8	5.4	100.0	113	78.2	20.3	1.6	100.0	188
Residence											
Urban	61.4	9.0	8.8	20.8	100.0	22	83.7	15.8	0.4	100.0	57
Rural	55.4	25.7	12.9	6.1	100.0	212	78.1	20.1	1.8	100.0	257
Region											
Hhohho	59.2	14.4	20.5	5.9	100.0	62	78.1	21.9	0.0	100.0	91
Manzini	58.2	25.4	8.0	8.4	100.0	72	81.0	16.8	2.2	100.0	88
Shiselweni	53.6	35.4	4.0	7.0	100.0	61	77.7	19.5	2.8	100.0	72
Lubombo	50.2	19.6	21.4	8.9	100.0	38	79.7	18.7	1.6	100.0	62
Education level											
No education	(58.3)	(19.3)	(20.8)	(1.6)	100.0	37	81.5	18.0	0.5	100.0	51
Lower primary	*	*	*	*	100.0	18	(74.8)	(25.2)	(0.0)	100.0	27
Higher primary	55.8	29.4	13.0	1.8	100.0	70	75.6	23.3	1.1	100.0	89
Secondary	57.1	21.1	11.2	10.5	100.0	83	79.6	19.7	0.8	100.0	120
High school	58.0	23.0	10.8	8.3	100.0	52	89.2	7.1	3.7	100.0	52
Tertiary	*	*	*	*	100.0	7	*	*	*	100.0	14
Total 50+	56.5	23.0	13.2	7.3	100.0	267	79.9	18.7	1.4	100.0	354

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases.

6.3 AGE AT FIRST MARRIAGE

Marriage is generally associated with fertility because it is correlated with exposure to risk of conception. The duration of exposure to the risk of pregnancy depends primarily on the age at which women first marry. Women who marry earlier, on average, have their first child earlier and give birth to more children, contributing to higher fertility rates.

Marriage occurs remarkably late in Swaziland. Only 15 percent of women age 25-49 marry before age 18 and 26 percent have married by age 20 (Table 6.4). The proportion of women marrying by each age appears to have declined over time. Among women age 45-49, 31 percent were married by age 20 compared with only 13 percent of women age 20-24. The median age at marriage among women increases from 23.3 years among women age 45-49 to 25.6 years among women age 30-34.

The lower panel of Table 6.4 shows the distribution among men. Only 7 percent of men age 25-49 were married before their 20th birthday, and 32 percent were married before age 25. The median age at marriage among men age 45-49 is 26.2 years, more than two years earlier than men age 30-34.

Table 6.4 Age at first marriage: Women and men age 15-49

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who were first married by specific exact ages and median age at first marriage, according to current age, Swaziland 2006-07

na 5.0 1 8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	na 3.0 6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	22 MEN na na 5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	25 na na 38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	92.7 65.6 40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	Number 1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383 3,713	age at first marriage a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
18 na 5.0 1 8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	20 WOI na 3.0 6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	22 MEN na na 5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	25 n na 38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	92.7 65.6 40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	Number 1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383 3,713	a a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
na 5.0 1 8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	WO/ na 3.0 6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	MEN na 5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	na na 38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	92.7 65.6 40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383 3,713	a a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
na 5.0 1 8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	na 3.0 6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	na na 5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	na na 38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	92.7 65.6 40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	1,274 1,046 729 616 503 438 383 3,713	a a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
5.0 1 8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	3.0 6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	na 5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	na 38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	65.6 40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	1,046 729 616 503 438 383 3,713	a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
8.4 1 13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	6.7 2 5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	5.8 4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	38.4 47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	40.8 26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	729 616 503 438 383 3,713	a 25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
13.9 2 18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	5.4 3 0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	4.5 0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	47.9 53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	26.4 14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	616 503 438 383 3,713	25.6 24.3 23.7 23.3 a
18.5 3 19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	0.7 4 4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	0.9 3.1 4.9 na 6.2	53.2 56.3 56.8 na 48.9	14.3 12.5 8.7 35.2	503 438 383 3,713	24.3 23.7 23.3 a
19.5 3 19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	4.4 4 1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	3.1 4.9 na 6.2	56.3 56.8 na 48.9	12.5 8.7 35.2	438 383 3,713	23.7 23.3 a
19.2 3 12.1 2 14.9 2	1.0 4 2.5 6.3 3	4.9 na 6.2	56.8 na 48.9	8.7 35.2	383 3,713	23.3 a
12.1 2 14.9 2	2.5 6.3 3	na 6.2	na 48 9	35.2	3,713	а
14.9 2	6.3 3	6.2	48.9			
			10.5	23.2	2,667	а
	M	N				
na	na	na	na	99.8	1,323	а
0.9	2.6	na	na	91.1	886	а
1.1	5.0 1	0.9	26.2	58.9	624	а
1.2	3.3 1	0.8	28.4	32.8	431	28.8
3.0 1	0.1 1	8.6	32.8	19.4	367	28.2
5.5 1	1.0 2	3.1	42.3	6.7	269	26.7
3.8	7.9 2	0.8	42.2	3.1	256	26.2
2.0	5.5	na	na	49.9	2,833	а
2.5	6.8 1	5.3	32.3	31.1	1,947	а
	0.9 1.1 1.2 3.0 1 5.5 1 3.8 2.0 2.5	110 110 0.9 2.6 1.1 5.0 1.2 3.3 3.0 10.1 5.5 11.0 2.8 7.9 2.0 5.5 2.5 6.8 1.	Ina Ina 0.9 2.6 na 1.1 5.0 10.9 1.2 3.3 10.8 3.0 10.1 18.6 5.5 11.0 23.1 3.8 7.9 20.8 2.0 5.5 na 2.5 6.8 15.3	11a 11a 11a 11a 0.9 2.6 na na 1.1 5.0 10.9 26.2 1.2 3.3 10.8 28.4 3.0 10.1 18.6 32.8 5.5 11.0 23.1 42.3 3.8 7.9 20.8 42.2 2.0 5.5 na na 2.5 6.8 15.3 32.3	1a $1a$ $1a$ 35.0 0.9 2.6 na na 91.1 1.1 5.0 10.9 26.2 58.9 1.2 3.3 10.8 28.4 32.8 3.0 10.1 18.6 32.8 19.4 5.5 11.0 23.1 42.3 6.7 3.8 7.9 20.8 42.2 3.1 2.0 5.5 na na 49.9 2.5 6.8 15.3 32.3 31.1 is defined as the age at which the respondent began line	11a $11a$ $11a$ 35.0 17.325 0.9 2.6 na na 91.1 886 1.1 5.0 10.9 26.2 58.9 624 1.2 3.3 10.8 28.4 32.8 431 3.0 10.1 18.6 32.8 19.4 367 5.5 11.0 23.1 42.3 6.7 269 3.8 7.9 20.8 42.2 3.1 256 2.0 5.5 na na 49.9 $2,833$ 2.5 6.8 15.3 32.3 31.1 $1,947$ is defined as the age at which the respondent began living with h

a = Not applicable due to censoringa = Omitted because less than 50 percent of the women married for the first time before reaching thebeginning of the age group

Table 6.5 shows the age at first marriage for women and men age 50 and older. The increase in age at marriage is again reflected in this table. Older adults marry at an earlier age than their younger counterparts. For example, 65 percent of women age 50 and over were married before age 25, compared with 49 percent of women age 25-49.

Table 6.5 Age	at first marri	age: Wome	n and men	age 50+				
Percentage of marriage, accord	women and rding to curre	men age 5 ent age, Sw	0+ who we aziland 200	ere first mar 16-07	ried by spe	ecific exact ag	es and med	ian age at first
	ſ	Percentage	first married	l by exact ag	ge:	Percentage never		Median age at first
Age	15	18	20	22	25	married	Number	marriage
				WOMEN				
50-54	8.6	21.3	33.2	44.7	60.8	8.7	164	22.6
55-59	1.8	13.8	22.5	35.8	61.3	7.9	112	23.7
60+	6.3	24.5	37.5	52.6	68.4	4.3	392	21.6
Total 50+	6.1	21.9	33.9	47.8	65.4	5.9	669	22.3
				MEN				
50-54	0.0	1.1	4.3	13.5	37.4	1.9	116	28.0
55-59	1.4	1.4	6.4	11.2	30.7	1.6	80	27.1
60+	0.4	3.1	6.4	13.9	29.5	0.9	249	28.8
Total 50+	0.5	2.3	5.8	13.3	31.8	1.3	444	28.3

Table 6.6 further examines the median age at first marriage for women and men age 30-49, by background characteristics. Urban women marry more than five years later than their rural counterparts. The variation by region is not large; women in Lubombo enter into marriage earlier than women in other regions. Large variations exist in the median age at first marriage by the woman's education and wealth index. Women who attended high school marry more than four years later than women with primary or less education, and women in the highest wealth quintile marry more than four years later than women in the lowest quintile.

In general, men age 30-49 marry 3.4 years later than women of the same age group. The 2006-07 SDHS shows little difference in the median age between men in the rural and urban areas (less than two years). As in the case of women, men in Lubombo marry earlier than men in other regions (26.3 years compared with 27.4 years or older). Men who are relatively poor or have little education marry earlier than other men. For instance, men with tertiary education marry almost five years later than men with no education.

Background		As	ge		Women	Men age
characteristic	30-34	35-39	40-44	45-49	age 30-49	30-49
Residence						
Urban	а	27.8	27.7	26.0	27.9	28.8
Rural	24.2	22.5	22.2	22.3	22.8	27.0
Region						
Hhohho	25.3	24.7	24.0	21.5	24.3	27.4
Manzini	25.5	25.0	25.2	23.6	24.7	28.7
Shiselweni	27.4	24.6	21.7	25.1	24.8	28.0
Lubombo	24.6	22.2	22.3	22.9	22.9	26.3
Education						
No education	22.8	22.7	20.0	20.9	21.6	25.4
Lower primary	а	21.9	22.7	20.6	22.0	27.6
Higher primary	21.9	21.7	20.6	23.6	21.9	25.7
Secondary	25.4	24.3	23.4	23.8	24.4	26.6
High school	28.2	26.1	26.0	25.0	26.2	29.1
Tertiary	26.4	27.3	29.2	25.8	26.8	30.0
Wealth guintile						
Lowest	25.0	22.1	20.0	23.1	22.1	26.1
Second	22.9	22.2	22.4	23.0	22.6	25.3
Middle	24.5	21.7	21.1	21.5	22.2	26.7
Fourth	а	24.8	24.6	22.3	24.9	28.4
Highest	25.5	27.5	25.9	25.9	26.2	28.8
Total	25.6	24.3	23.7	23.3	24.3	27.7

before reaching the beginning of the age group

6.4 AGE AT FIRST SEXUAL INTERCOURSE

Although age at marriage is often used as a proxy measure for the beginning of exposure to the risk of pregnancy, some women and men engage in sexual activity before marriage. The 2006-07 SDHS collected information on the timing of the first sexual intercourse for both men and women. The percentage of women and men who had had sexual intercourse by exact ages is given in Table 6.7.

Eleven percent of women age 25-49 had sex before age 15, while half had their first sex by their 18th birthday. Older women are more likely than younger women to have had their first sexual encounter at an earlier age. This is reflected in the median age at first sex, which is more than 18 years for those under age 35 and less than 18 years for women age 35 and above.

The data for the men show a later age at first sex at all age groups, compared with women. Thirty-one percent of men age 20-49 had sex before age 18, and 85 percent of men have had sex by age 25.

Table 6.7 Age at first sexual intercourse: Women and men age 15-49

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who had first sexual intercourse by specific exact ages, percentage who never had intercourse, and median age at first intercourse, according to current age, Swaziland 2006-07

	Perc	centage wh	o had first s	sexual interc	course	Percentage who never		Median
Age	15	18	20	<u>,e.</u> 22	25	_ naa intercourse	Number	age at first
Age	1.5	10	20			Intercourse	Number	Intercourse
				WOMEN				
15-19	7.4	na	na	na	na	58.6	1,274	а
20-24	6.4	46.3	73.1	na	na	10.0	1,046	18.2
25-29	7.5	47.8	71.1	81.6	86.9	2.4	729	18.1
30-34	8.1	47.4	69.9	80.7	85.8	1.0	616	18.2
35-39	10.7	52.2	75.1	83.5	88.8	0.2	503	17.8
40-44	12.7	51.3	69.9	78.2	81.5	0.3	438	17.9
45-49	17.5	54.4	72.0	80.7	86.0	0.6	383	17.6
20-49	9.3	49.0	72.0	81.6	85.5	3.6	3,713	18.1
25-49	10.5	50.1	71.5	na	na	1.1	2,667	18.0
15-24	6.9	na	na	na	na	36.7	2,320	19.0
				MEN				
15-19	4.9	na	na	na	na	78.4	1,323	а
20-24	4.7	36.7	64.2	na	na	21.3	886	18.8
25-29	3.2	31.0	59.2	79.4	90.0	5.6	624	19.3
30-34	3.7	31.1	53.8	70.7	87.0	2.4	431	19.2
35-39	2.6	29.2	54.8	78.5	89.7	1.1	367	19.5
40-44	2.5	26.1	50.3	72.5	86.1	0.0	269	20.0
45-49	4.2	22.9	51.7	71.6	84.3	0.3	256	19.8
20-49	3.7	31.4	57.9	75.3	85.0	8.4	2,833	19.2
25-49	3.2	28.9	55.0	na	na	2.6	1,947	19.5
15-24	4.8	na	na	na	na	55.5	2,209	а
na = Not an	nlicable due	to censorir	ισ					

a = Omitted because less than 50 percent of the respondents had intercourse for the first time beforereaching the beginning of the age group

Eight percent of women age 50 and over had sex before age 15 and almost half had their first sex by their 18th birthday (Table 6.8). Among women age 50 and over, older women tend to have had their first sexual encounter at a later age than younger women. The median age at first sex for women age 60 and over is one year later than for women age 50-54. The same pattern is observed among men; men age 60 and over had their first sex almost two years later than men age 50-54.

Table 6.8 Age at first sexual intercourse: Women and men age 50+

Percentage of women and men age 50+ who had first sexual intercourse by specific exact ages, percentage who never had intercourse, and median age at first intercourse, according to current age, Swaziland 2006-07

	Perce	entage who b	had first s y exact ag	exual inter e:	course	Percentage who never had		Median age at first
Age	15	18	20	22	25	intercourse	Number	intercourse
				WOMEN				
50-54	10.4	55.7	73.5	87.8	94.2	0.0	164	17.6
55-59	4.9	40.8	69.7	84.4	93.3	0.0	112	18.5
60+	8.6	43.4	59.7	80.4	88.2	0.6	392	18.6
Total 50+	8.4	46.0	64.8	82.9	90.5	0.4	669	18.3
				MEN				
50-54	1.4	22.4	42.9	68.7	83.0	0.0	116	20.4
55-59	1.2	9.4	34.9	53.8	73.2	0.0	80	21.3
60+	0.5	12.0	28.5	49.7	67.6	0.0	249	22.1
Total 50+	0.9	14.2	33.4	55.4	72.6	0.0	444	21.2

Table 6.9 shows the median age at first sex by background characteristics for women and men age 25-49 years. Women in the rural areas start sexual activity about one year earlier than their urban counterparts. There are no significant regional differences in the age at initiation of sexual intercourse, ranging from 17.6 years in Lubombo to 18.2 years in Hhohho and Manzini. Age at first sex increases with education and wealth status; women with high school education begin sexual activity at least two years later than those with no education and women in the lowest wealth quintiles start sexual activity at least one year earlier than those who are wealthy.

Background				Women age	Men age			
characteristic	20-24	25-29	30-34	35-39	40-44	45-49	25-49	25-49
Pasidanca								
Urban	18 5	18.6	18.4	18.8	18 5	18.8	18.6	194
Rural	18.1	17.9	18.0	17.5	17.6	17.2	17.7	19.5
Region								
Hhohho	18.1	18.3	17.7	18.5	18.4	17.5	18.2	19.5
Manzini	18.6	18.4	18.5	17.8	18.2	17.5	18.2	19.4
Shiselweni	18.2	17.9	18.2	17.6	17.5	17.6	17.8	19.2
Lubombo	17.6	17.8	18.0	17.4	16.9	17.6	17.6	19.6
Education								
No education	15.7	17.1	16.8	15.9	15.8	16.9	16.6	19.1
Lower primary	16.7	15.9	16.5	16.7	16.7	16.2	16.4	18.9
Higher primary	17.4	17.1	17.1	17.0	17.4	16.9	17.1	19.4
Secondary	18.1	17.9	18.0	17.7	18.4	18.1	18.0	19.2
High school	19.5	18.8	19.0	18.4	19.0	19.9	18.9	19.6
Tertiary	а	21.1	21.6	20.8	20.0	20.6	21.0	20.1
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	17.5	17.3	17.5	17.2	16.9	17.1	17.2	18.9
Second	17.5	17.7	17.2	17.6	16.9	17.4	17.5	19.1
Middle	18.3	17.7	17.9	17.3	17.5	17.2	17.7	19.6
Fourth	18.5	18.4	18.1	17.4	18.5	16.7	18.0	19.6
Highest	18.7	18.8	18.9	19.0	18.7	18.9	18.9	19.7
Total	18.2	18 1	18.2	178	179	17.6	18.0	19.5

The data for men show a different pattern than that for women, with almost no differences in the timing of first sexual activity between those in rural and urban areas and across regions. Like women, the median age at first sex among men increases with the level of education and wealth status.

6.5 RECENT SEXUAL ACTIVITY

In the absence of contraception, the chance of becoming pregnant is related to the frequency of sexual intercourse. Thus, the information on sexual activity can be used to refine measures of exposure to pregnancy. Women and men were asked how long ago their last sexual activity occurred. The responses to this question allow for an assessment of recent sexual activity (in the four weeks preceding the survey).

Tables 6.10.1 and 6.10.2 show the distribution of women and men, respectively, according to the timing of last sexual activity, by background characteristics. Eighteen percent of women age 15-49 and 31 percent of men age 15-49 have never had sexual intercourse. About four in ten of the female and male respondents had a recent (within the last four weeks) sexual encounter, and 13 percent of women and 9 percent of men report that their last sexual encounter occurred more than one year before the survey.

As expected, recent sexual activity is less common among the youngest age group (15-19); 13 percent of women and 4 percent of men in this age group did not have sex. Recent sexual activity is more common among the currently married, with 74 percent of women and 83 percent of men having had sex in the four weeks before the survey. Male-female differences are greatest for those formerly married: the proportion of men who report a recent sexual encounter is about twice that of women (38 percent and 20 percent, respectively). Urban women and men are more likely than those in rural areas to have recent sexual activity.

Table 6.10.3 presents recent sexual activity among older adults. Male-female differences are reflected in all subgroups of population; men are much more likely than women to report having recent sexual intercourse. Among older adults, recent sexual activity is less common among the oldest age group (60 and over). However, this group shows the largest male-female differences. While 7 percent of women age 60 and over had sex in the last four weeks, the corresponding proportion among men is 47 percent.

Table 6.10.1 Recent sexual activity: Women age 15-49

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 by timing of last sexual intercourse, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		ig of last se	exual Intercour	se	Never had		
Background	Within the	Within	One or		sexual		Number
characteristic	past 4 weeks	1 year'	more years	Missing	intercourse	lotal	womer
Age							
15-19	12.5	22.9	6.0	0.0	58.6	100.0	1,274
20-24	43.9	35.6	10.1	0.4	10.0	100.0	1,046
25-29	56.8	29.6	10.9	0.2	2.4	100.0	729
30-34	59.7	27.2	11.9	0.3	1.0	100.0	616
35-39	57.4	23.9	18.4	0.0	0.2	100.0	503
40-44	52.9	24.0	22.6	0.3	0.3	100.0	438
45-49	45.0	19.8	33.9	0.6	0.6	100.0	383
Marital status							
Never married	19.6	31.2	13.6	0.3	35.4	100.0	2,487
Married or living together	73.7	22.3	3.8	0.2	0.0	100.0	2,062
Divorced/separated/widowed	19.7	25.6	54.7	0.0	0.0	100.0	438
Marital duration ²							
0-4 years	77 2	22.0	0.6	0.2	0.0	100.0	416
5-9 years	79.1	17.2	3.6	0.2	0.0	100.0	340
10-14 years	71.8	26.4	1.8	0.0	0.0	100.0	251
15-19 years	75.5	20.1	3.4	0.0	0.0	100.0	239
20-24 years	62.8	26.4	10.8	0.0	0.0	100.0	200
$25 \pm vears$	68.8	20.3	10.0	0.7	0.0	100.0	181
Married more than once	71.6	26.1	2.3	0.0	0.0	100.0	189
	7.110	2011		0.0	0.0		.05
Kesidence	46.2	25.7	1 4 1	0.0	12.0	100.0	1 220
Urban Bural	46.3	25.7	14.1	0.0	13.9	100.0	1,330
Kurai	40.4	27.5	12.0	0.5	19.0	100.0	5,057
Region							
Hhohho	45.2	24.2	13.6	0.1	17.0	100.0	1,340
Manzini	40.0	28.0	14.3	0.2	17.5	100.0	1,647
Shiselweni	38.2	27.6	12.7	0.3	21.3	100.0	1,033
Lubombo	44.8	28.8	11.1	0.4	14.9	100.0	966
Education							
No education	48.3	29.9	19.2	0.3	2.3	100.0	402
Lower primary	43.5	31.5	15.3	0.6	9.1	100.0	360
Higher primary	40.8	27.3	12.6	0.1	19.2	100.0	1,268
Secondary	37.7	26.4	11.5	0.1	24.2	100.0	1,693
High school	41.4	28.4	13.0	0.1	17.2	100.0	894
Tertiary	58.5	18.3	13.9	0.9	8.3	100.0	370
Wealth guintile							
Lowest	38.0	32.4	13.5	0.6	15.6	100.0	785
Second	41.9	28.1	14.4	0.0	15.6	100.0	862
Middle	40.6	28.7	12.8	0.0	17.9	100.0	968
Fourth	40.9	25.2	13.2	0.2	20.5	100.0	1.111
Highest	46.5	23.3	12.3	0.3	17.6	100.0	1,262
	42.0	27.0	12.1	0.2	17.6	100.0	4 987

Table 6.10.2 Recent sexual activity: Men age 15-49

Percent distribution of men age 15-49 by timing of last sexual intercourse, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Timir	ng of last se	xual intercours	se	Never had		
Background	Within the	Within	One or		sexual		Number of
characteristic	past 4 weeks	1 year ¹	more years	Missing	intercourse	Total	men
Age							
15-19	4.2	10.6	6.8	0.0	78.4	100.0	1,323
20-24	28.5	34.6	15.5	0.1	21.3	100.0	886
25-29	58.5	25.4	10.1	0.3	5.6	100.0	624
30-34	68.0	23.4	6.0	0.2	2.4	100.0	431
35-39	71.3	18.0	9.2	0.5	1.1	100.0	367
40-44	74.7	17.6	6.8	0.9	0.0	100.0	269
45-49	67.9	21.6	8.0	2.2	0.3	100.0	256
Marital status							
Never married	18.7	22.3	12.3	0.1	46.7	100.0	2.734
Married or living together	83.3	15.4	0.4	0.9	0.0	100.0	1 219
Divorced/separated/widowed	38.0	38.2	23.9	0.0	0.0	100.0	203
Marital duration ²							
0-4 years	80 1	199	0.0	0.0	0.0	100.0	328
5-9 years	82.9	16.1	0.0	1.0	0.0	100.0	239
10-14 years	90.2	8.2	0.0	1.0	0.0	100.0	139
15-19 years	82.8	12.4	23	2.5	0.0	100.0	98
20-24 years	77.2	17.2	1.4	4.2	0.0	100.0	71
$25 \pm \text{years}$	(77.0)	(20.2)	(0.0)	(2.9)	(0.0)	100.0	32
Married more than once	86.0	13.2	0.4	0.3	0.0	100.0	312
Residence							
Urban	513	22.6	75	0.6	18.0	100.0	1 181
Rural	33.5	20.4	10.1	0.2	35.7	100.0	2,975
Region							
Hhohho	43.0	20.6	9.2	0.0	27.2	100.0	1 099
Manzini	37.2	22.5	10.3	0.0	29.7	100.0	1 349
Shiselweni	32.8	18.9	10.5	0.0	37.8	100.0	843
Lubombo	40.6	21.4	7.1	1.1	29.8	100.0	865
T-land and							
Education	19 C	24.0	12.0	0.4	10.0	100.0	216
	40.0	24.9	12.9	0.4	13.2	100.0	470
Higher primary	23.0 21.2	18.0	7.0	0.2	30.1 42.7	100.0	470
Secondary	21.2	20.8	8.6	0.1	42.7	100.0	1 101
High school	32.2	20.0	0.0	0.4	10.6	100.0	950
Tertiarv	42.4 69.4	24.0 15.7	5.9	0.2 1.4	7.6	100.0	652 347
7							
Wealth quintile	37.6	21.6	0.9	0.2	35.0	100.0	601
Second	30.7	∠1.0 10.0	9.0 10.2	0.2	39.5	100.0	665
Middle	31.7	73.5 73.1	9.9	0.1	35.1	100.0	856
Fourth	41.6	20.8	9.9	0.5	27.3	100.0	953
Highest	49.5	20.0	7.7	0.6	22.2	100.0	1,081
Total 15-49	38.6	21.0	9.4	0.3	30.7	100.0	4,156

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Excludes men who had sexual intercourse within the last 4 weeks

² Excludes men who are not currently married

Table 6.10.3 Recent sexual activity: Women and men age 50+

Percent distribution of women and men age 50+ by timing of last sexual intercourse, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Timi	ng of last se	exual intercours	e	Never had		
Background characteristic	Within the past 4 weeks	Within 1 vear ¹	One or more years	Missing	sexual intercourse	Total	Number of adults 50+
onaracteristic	pase i noons	- jea	WOMEN	11100118		, otai	uuule bo i
Age							
50-54	35.0	20.0	43.9	1.1	0.0	100.0	164
55-59	19.0	13.8	67.3	0.0	0.0	100.0	112
60+	7.4	4.7	86.6	0.6	0.6	100.0	392
Residence							
Urban	16.4	10.4	72.3	0.9	0.0	100.0	69
Rural	16.4	9.0	73.5	0.7	0.5	100.0	519
Region							
Hhohho	16.2	4.8	78.5	0.5	0.0	100.0	148
Manzini	16.4	11.3	71.3	0.9	0.0	100.0	181
Shiselweni	14.3	8.6	76.4	0.0	0.7	100.0	164
Lubombo	20.3	12.6	63.9	1.9	1.3	100.0	95
Education							
No education	10.6	10.4	78.1	1.0	0.0	100.0	277
Lower primary	10.1	11.6	78.0	0.4	0.0	100.0	151
Higher primary	22.9	6.6	69.0	0.6	0.8	100.0	149
Secondary	34.7	13.4	50.0	0.0	1.9	100.0	60
High school +	(27.3)	(8.6)	(64.2)	(0.0)	(0.0)	100.0	31
Total 50+	16.1	10.0	72.9	0.6	0.4	100.0	669
			MEN				
Age							
50-54	65.4	22.0	11.6	1.0	0.0	100.0	116
55-59	55.8	22.0	20.8	1.4	0.0	100.0	80
60+	46.5	18.2	34.9	0.3	0.0	100.0	249
Residence							
Urban	67.1	23.8	9.0	0.0	0.0	100.0	63
Rural	49.7	20.1	29.6	0.6	0.0	100.0	327
Region							
Hhohho	53.7	21.9	23.4	1.0	0.0	100.0	114
Manzini	49.8	18.4	31.8	0.0	0.0	100.0	117
Shiselweni	49.9	24.3	25.8	0.0	0.0	100.0	85
Lubombo	57.9	18.3	22.7	1.2	0.0	100.0	74
Education							
No education	39.8	23.8	35.9	0.5	0.0	100.0	171
Lower primary	57.0	18.8	24.2	0.0	0.0	100.0	80
Higher primary	59.8	17.1	23.2	0.0	0.0	100.0	85
Secondary	63.6	17.2	15.5	3.8	0.0	100.0	60
High school +	(68.5)	(16.6)	(14.8)	(0.0)	(0.0)	100.0	47
Total 50+	53.1	19.9	26.3	0.7	0.0	100.0	444

6.6 POSTPARTUM AMENORRHOEA, ABSTINENCE, AND INSUSCEPTIBILITY

Postpartum amenorrhoea refers to the interval between childbirth and the return of menstruation. The length and intensity of breastfeeding influence the duration of amenorrhoea, which offers protection from conception. Postpartum abstinence refers to the period between childbirth and the time when a woman resumes sexual activity. Delaying the resumption of sexual relations can also prolong protection. Women are considered to be insusceptible to pregnancy if they are not exposed to the risk of conception either because their menstrual period has not resumed since a birth or because they are abstaining from intercourse after childbirth.

Women who gave birth three years preceding the survey were asked about the duration of their periods of amenorrhoea and sexual abstinence following each birth. The results are presented in Table 6.11. Almost all women are insusceptible to pregnancy within the first two months following childbirth. After the second month, the contribution of abstinence gradually declines. At 10 to 11 months after birth, about half of all women are insusceptible, but only 19 percent are abstaining. The principal determinant of the length of the period of insusceptibility is postpartum amenorrhoea. The median duration of amenorrhoea is 6.9 months; of abstinence is 4.6 months; and of insusceptibility is 10.7 months.

	n .		
Table 6.11	Postpartum amenorrhoea,	. abstinence, an	d insusceptibility

Percentage of births in the three years preceding the survey for which mothers are postpartum amenorrhoeic, abstaining, and insusceptible, by number of months since birth, and median and mean durations, Swaziland 2006-07

Months	Percentage of b	irths for which	n the mother is:	Number of		
since birth	Amenorrhoeic	Abstaining	Insusceptible ¹	births		
< 2	65.5	93.7	96.8	67		
2-3	61.2	75.7	88.8	97		
4-5	57.9	50.9	76.4	113		
6-7	47.7	32.3	63.3	129		
8-9	48.7	17.9	52.8	84		
10-11	38.4	18.8	49.4	113		
12-13	37.2	24.8	49.8	110		
14-15	30.9	10.0	36.4	107		
16-17	25.2	9.3	31.4	86		
18-19	32.0	10.6	38.2	85		
20-21	17.2	7.3	22.9	73		
22-23	23.9	9.6	29.6	110		
24-25	18.0	7.5	24.3	88		
26-27	14.6	6.1	17.8	101		
28-29	22.8	4.0	24.5	95		
30-31	10.3	6.3	14.6	87		
32-33	14.4	3.7	18.1	87		
34-35	19.7	2.1	19.7	92		
Total	33.0	21.4	42.4	1,724		
Median	6.9	4.6	10.7	na		
Mean	12.1	8.1	15.4	na		
Note: Estimates are based on status at the time of the survey. na = Not applicable						

¹ Includes births for which mothers are either still amenorrhoeic or still abstaining (or both) following birth

Table 6.12 shows the median durations of postpartum amenorrhoea, abstinence, and insusceptibility by background characteristics of the respondents. Older women (age 30-49) have a longer median period of insusceptibility, mainly because of the longer duration of postpartum amenorrhoea (10.5 months compared with 5.6 months for women age 15-29). Women living in urban areas have a longer median duration of amenorrhoea and a longer period of insusceptibility. The period of insusceptibility varies considerably by region. The median duration in Manzini is almost double that of Lubombo (13.2 months and 7.6 months, respectively). The median duration of amenorrhoea has no clear relationship with the level of education and wealth status.

Table 6.12 Median duration of amenorrhoea, postpartum abstinence, and postpartum insusceptibility

Median number of months of postpartum amenorrhoea, postpartum abstinence, and postpartum insusceptibility following births in the three years preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Postpartum amenorrhoea	Postpartum abstinence	Postpartum insusceptibility ¹
Mother's age			1 /
15-29	5.6	4.6	9.9
30-49	10.5	4.6	12.3
Residence			
Urban	8.7	4.1	12.1
Rural	6.6	4.8	10.1
Region			
Hhohho	0.7	4.4	9.9
Manzini	7.4	3.9	13.2
Shiselweni	4.7	6.2	11.4
Lubombo	4.1	4.3	7.6
Education			
No education	3.9	4.5	13.7
Lower primary	7.1	4.4	7.9
Higher primary	0.7	4.4	10.4
Secondary	6.8	5.1	9.6
High school	6.7	4.7	8.8
Tertiary	4.7	1.1	13.4
Wealth guintile			
Lowest	3.9	4.9	11.1
Second	11.6	3.5	13.5
Middle	0.7	6.3	8.6
Fourth	7.1	5.1	9.3
Highest	4.9	3.7	13.2
Total	6.9	4.6	10.7
Note: Medians are based status).	on the status at t	he time of th	e survey (current

¹ Includes births for which mothers are either still amenorrhoeic or still abstaining (or both) following birth

6.7 TERMINATION OF EXPOSURE TO PREGNANCY

While the onset of infecundity is difficult to determine for an individual woman, there are ways of estimating it for a given population. One indicator of infecundity is the onset of menopause. In the context of the available survey data, women are considered menopausal if they are neither pregnant nor postpartum amenorrhoeic, but have not had a menstrual period in the six months preceding the survey. The prevalence of menopause increases with age, typically from around age 30.

Table 6.13 presents the indicator for women age 30-49, which ranges from 4 percent for women age 30-34 to 58 percent for women age 48-49. Overall, 13 percent of women age 30-49 were reported to be menopausal.

Table 6.13 Menopause

Percentage of women age 30-49 who are menopausal, by age, Swaziland 2006-07

Age	Percentage menopausal ¹	Number of women
30-34	4.1	616
35-39	4.2	503
40-41	7.3	183
42-43	12.0	175
44-45	21.2	160
46-47	36.0	180
48-49	57.8	122
Total	12.9	1,939

¹ Percentage of all women who are not pregnant and not postpartum amenorrhoeic whose last menstrual period occurred six or more months preceding the survey

Dudu Dlamini

The 2006-07 Swaziland DHS included several questions designed to ascertain women's fertility preferences. Women who were either not pregnant or unsure about their status were asked the question: "Would you like to have a (another) child or would you prefer not to have any (more) children?" A different question was posed for women who were pregnant at the time of the survey. Pregnant women were asked: "After the child you are expecting, would you like to have another child or would you prefer not to have any more children?" The women who indicated that they wanted another child were asked how long they would like to wait before the birth of the next child. Finally, women were asked the total number of children they would like to have, if they were to start childbearing afresh.

Given that men play a vital role in the realisation of reproductive goals, the 2006-07 SDHS also included questions that elicited information from men on fertility preferences.

The fertility preferences questions in the SDHS are hypothetical and, thus, respondents' answers have to be interpreted with some caution. Nevertheless, the data on fertility preferences have been shown to be a useful indicator of the direction that future fertility may take. In combination with data on contraceptive use, data on fertility preferences also allow estimation of the need for family planning, both for spacing and limiting births.

7.1 DESIRE FOR MORE CHILDREN

Data on the desire for more children can indicate the direction of future reproductive behaviour, provided that the required family planning services that assist in the realisation of fertility preferences are available, affordable, and accessible. Table 7.1 presents the distribution of currently married women and men age 15-49 by the desire for more children according to the number of living children. The results indicate that the majority of both women and men in Swaziland want to delay or limit the next birth. Women are more likely than men to prefer to limit births (68 percent and 52 percent, respectively).

Table 7.1 shows that the desire for more children is directly related to the number of living children a woman or man has. Eighty-two percent of married women who have no children want to have a child, with 57 percent desiring to do so soon. In contrast only 14 percent of women who already had four children expressed a desire for more, and this proportion decreases to two percent amongst women with six or more children.

The proportion of men desiring more children is significantly higher at all birth orders as compared with women. For example, among the SDHS respondents with two children, more than half of men want another child compared with 31 percent of women.

Table 7.1 Fertility preferences by number of living children

Percent distribution of currently married women and currently married men age 15-49 by desire for children, according to number of living children, Swaziland 2006-07

	Number of living children						Total	
Desire for children	0	1	2	3	4	5	6+	15-49
		W	DMEN ¹					
Have another soon ²	57.4	23.4	13.2	6.3	3.0	3.8	0.5	12.2
Have another later ³	21.7	38.3	17.6	9.5	10.6	5.4	1.6	15.1
Have another, undecided when	2.8	2.0	0.6	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.8
Undecided	0.9	2.4	2.4	1.3	1.5	1.7	0.0	1.5
Want no more	10.8	30.0	63.2	71.8	76.6	77.4	83.3	62.3
Sterilized ⁴	2.4	0.5	1.9	9.1	5.9	9.0	12.5	5.9
Declared infecund	3.9	3.3	1.1	1.4	2.4	2.1	1.7	2.1
Missing	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.6	0.0	0.1
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	131	347	426	343	251	201	363	2,062
		Ν	∕IEN⁵					
Have another soon ²	60.5	23.0	14.6	10.9	12.2	8.0	5.5	15.3
Have another later ³	22.0	52.9	34.8	22.7	19.2	13.4	11.3	26.5
Have another, undecided when	5.6	1.9	3.4	2.0	2.3	1.7	0.5	2.2
Undecided	3.9	1.7	3.4	4.8	4.4	1.7	3.2	3.3
Want no more	4.6	18.7	41.6	54.7	60.0	75.2	77.8	50.5
Sterilized ⁴	1.3	0.5	1.9	4.2	1.8	0.0	1.0	1.6
Declared infecund	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.0
Missing	2.1	1.2	0.2	0.7	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.6
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	70	203	249	181	152	96	268	1,219

¹ The number of living children includes current pregnancy for women.

² Wants next birth within 2 years

³ Wants to delay next birth for 2 or more years

⁴ Includes both female and male sterilization

⁵ The number of living children includes one additional child if respondent's wife is pregnant (or if any wife

is pregnant for men with more than one current wife).

7.2 DESIRE TO LIMIT CHILDBEARING BY BACKGROUND CHARACTERISTICS

Tables 7.2.1 and 7.2.2 present the percentages of currently married women and men who want no more children or are sterilized, by the number of living children, according to background characteristics. The results indicate that interest in limiting childbearing is widespread among married women and men, regardless of their socio-economic background.

Looking more closely at the differentials among women in Table 7.2.1, overall, the proportion wishing to limit childbearing is nearly identical for urban and rural women. However, urban women tend to express a desire to limit childbearing at lower parities than rural women. For example, among women with 0-2 children, 51 percent would like to limit childbearing in urban areas compared with 41 percent in rural areas. Looking at the regional patterns, the proportion seeking to limit childbearing is somewhat higher in Manzini than in the other regions among both women with 0-2 children and those with 3-4 children. Among lower parity women, the proportion desiring no more children generally increases with both education and wealth. In particular, among women with 3-4 children, the proportion wanting to limit childbearing is markedly higher among those with high school or tertiary education compared with less educated women.

Table 7.2.1 Desire to limit childbearing: Women

Percentage of currently married women age 15-49 who want no more children, by number of living children, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006

Background	Nu	mber of l children	iving		
characteristic	0-2	3-4	5+	Total	
				rotai	
Kesidence	F1 1	00.0	00.0	67.0	
Drugal	21.1	00.0 70.6	00.0	69.4	
Kulai	40.9	/0.0	95.0	00.4	
Region					
Hhohho	44.6	78.4	92.9	65.5	
Manzini	49.4	86.2	91.5	71.4	
Shiselweni	41.3	80.3	91.4	69.8	
Lubombo	38.3	79.6	94.2	66.0	
Highest educational level					
No education	36.3	73.8	90.5	69.5	
Lower primary	39.9	(64.8)	87.7	68.4	
Higher primary	43.9	80.9	93.9	70.7	
Secondary	44.1	79.3	93.5	66.7	
High school	48.2	91.4	100.0	(67.6)	
Tertiary	46.9	93.5	88.4	*	
Weelth mintile					
wealth quintile	46 5	(2)(00 7	CC 7	
Lowest	46.5	70.0	00./	70.2	
Second	30.2	/9.0	92.2	70.3	
Fourth	40.0	03.0	97.7	/6.0	
Fourth	43.5	01.3	91.0	64 7	
Fighest	44.9	00.9	92.5	64./	
Total 15-49	44.3	81.6	92.4	68.2	
Note: Women who have been sterilized are considered to want no more children. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.					

Table 7.2.2 Desire to limit childbearing: Men

Percentage of currently married men age 15-49 who want no more children, by number of living children, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006

Background	Nu	mber of li children¹	ving			
characteristic	0-2	3-4	5+	Total		
Residence						
Urban	32.1	70.6	82.4	55.3		
Rural	26.6	52.9	75.7	50.0		
Perion						
Hhohho	29.4	58.8	79.0	53.7		
Manzini	33.4	64.2	78.6	51.6		
Shiselweni	21.6	60.5	75.1	50.6		
Lubombo	25.2	58.2	77.3	51.7		
Highest educational level						
No education	(16.4)	48.8	68.8	474		
Lower primary	20.5	(50.0)	81.3	47.6		
Higher primary	33.4	54.2	75.1	54.3		
Secondary	20.6	60.7	75.8	50.9		
High school	29.1	67.9	(92.6)	50.2		
Tertiary	43.9	70.2	(83.7)	60.1		
Wealth quintile						
	20.4	(37.7)	673	42.1		
Second	20.4	(37.7)	74.6	49.0		
Middle	29.5	64.6	81.5	57.7		
Fourth	30.0	59.0	73.2	48.4		
Highest	29.8	72.6	85.2	56.8		
Total 15-49	29.0	60.2	77.9	52.1		
Note: Men who have been sterilized or who state in response to the question about desire for children that their wife has been sterilized are considered to want no more children. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.						

respondent's wife is pregnant (or if any wife is pregnant for men with more than one current wife).

Considering male preferences, men who reside in urban areas are slightly more likely than rural men to desire limiting childbearing. The largest urban-rural differential in the desire to limit childbearing is found among men with 3-4 children; 71 percent of urban men children want no more children compared with 53 percent of rural men. Although not uniform, the desire to limit childbearing among men tends to increase according to level of education and wealth.

Finally, the results in Tables 7.2.1 and 7.2.2 show that the desire to limit childbearing is higher for women than for men irrespective of both socio-economic characteristics and the number of living children. The differentials are especially large among women and men with no education and in the lowest wealth quintiles. For example, among those with no education, 47 percent of men do not want any more children compared with 70 percent of women. Similarly, 42 percent of men and 67 percent of women in the lowest wealth quintile want to limit childbearing.

7.3 NEED FOR FAMILY PLANNING SERVICES

SDHS results can be used to assess the extent of need for family planning services. For this purpose, women who want to postpone their next birth for two or more years or who want to stop childbearing altogether but are not using a contraceptive method are said to have an unmet need for family planning. Pregnant women are considered to have an unmet need for spacing or limiting if their pregnancy was mistimed or unwanted. Similarly, amenorrhoeic women are categorised as having unmet need if their last birth was mistimed or unwanted. Women who are currently using a

contraceptive method are said to have a met need for family planning. The total demand for family planning services comprises those in the met need and unmet need categories.

Table 7.3 presents data on the level of unmet need, met need, and the total demand for family planning services for currently married women age 15-49 by background characteristics. Close to a quarter (24 percent) of currently married women in Swaziland have an unmet need for family planning; 17 percent are in need because they want no more children and 7 percent because they would like to delay the next birth for two or more years. The total met need for family planning (i.e., the proportion currently using contraception) is 51 percent; 38 percent of married women are using contraception to limit the number of children and 13 percent for spacing purposes. Taking both the met and unmet need into account, the total demand for family planning among currently married women in Swaziland is 75 percent. About two-thirds of that demand is satisfied. If this demand is satisfied, the contraceptive prevalence in Swaziland among currently married women will be 75 percent instead of 51 percent.

Table 7.3 Need and demand for family planning among currently married women

Percentage of currently married women age 15-49 with unmet need for family planning, percentage with met need for family planning, the total demand for family planning, and the percentage of satisfied demand for contraception, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

-	Un fan	imet need i nily plannir	for ng ¹	Met plannin	need for fa g (currently	mily vusing) ²	Total demand for family planning		Total demand for family planning			Percentage	Number
Background characteristic	For spacing	For limiting	Total	For spacing	For limiting	Total	For spacing	For limiting	Total	of demand satisfied	of women		
Age													
15-19	16.7	9.0	25.7	24.9	17.9	42.8	41.5	26.9	68.4	62.5	88		
20-24	17.3	11.9	29.2	24.0	22.7	46.7	41.3	34.6	75.9	61.5	343		
25-29	10.5	14.3	24.7	19.6	34.1	53.7	30.1	48.3	78.4	68.5	388		
30-34	5.9	13.4	19.2	13.6	51.3	64.9	19.4	64.7	84.1	77.1	379		
35-39	2.9	21.5	24.5	6.6	49.4	56.0	9.5	70.9	80.5	69.6	334		
40-44	1.6	26.5	28.1	1.9	40.4	42.3	3.5	66.9	70.3	60.1	291		
45-49	0.4	16.5	16.9	1.3	33.1	34.4	1.7	49.7	51.4	67.0	238		
Residence													
Urban	5.9	14.0	19.8	15.8	42.3	58.1	21.7	56.2	77.9	74.5	542		
Rural	7.9	17.6	25.5	11.6	36.4	48.0	19.5	54.0	73.5	65.3	1,520		
Region													
Hhohho	7.8	12.6	20.3	14.4	39.3	53.7	22.2	51.9	74.0	72.5	600		
Manzini	5.4	17.9	23.3	13.3	39.2	52.5	18.7	57.1	75.8	69.3	650		
Shiselweni	6.9	19.6	26.4	10.8	34.8	45.6	17.6	54.4	72.0	63.3	363		
Lubombo	10.2	18.0	28.1	11.3	36.7	48.0	21.4	54.7	76.1	63.1	449		
Education													
No education	6.5	24.8	31.4	5.3	23.6	28.9	11.8	48.4	60.2	47.9	247		
Lower primary	11.6	20.8	32.4	8.9	27.4	36.3	20.4	48.2	68.6	52.8	176		
Higher primary	9.1	19.0	28.1	9.3	36.3	45.6	18.4	55.3	73.7	61.9	538		
Secondary	8.0	15.4	23.5	15.1	41.0	56.1	23.1	56.5	79.5	70.5	600		
High school	5.1	12.9	17.9	17.0	43.0	60.0	22.0	55.9	77.9	77.0	304		
Tertiary	1.7	5.8	7.4	21.1	52.5	73.7	22.8	58.3	81.1	90.9	197		
Wealth quintile													
Lowest	11.2	21.5	32.7	10.3	26.9	37.2	21.4	48.4	69.9	53.2	353		
Second	7.9	17.7	25.6	9.5	33.4	42.9	17.4	51.1	68.5	62.6	369		
Middle	5.9	18.4	24.2	10.4	43.8	54.2	16.2	62.2	78.4	69.1	379		
Fourth	7.0	17.2	24.2	13.6	37.2	50.7	20.6	54.3	74.9	67.7	424		
Highest	5.9	11.1	17.0	17.6	44.7	62.2	23.5	55.8	79.2	78.5	537		
Currently married	7.4	16.7	24.0	12.7	37.9	50.6	20.1	54.6	74.7	67.8	2,062		
Unmarried	2.6	3.0	5.5	10.6	18.3	28.9	13.2	21.2	34.4	83.9	2,925		
All women	4.6	8.6	13.2	11.5	26.4	37.9	16.1	35.0	51.1	74.2	4,987		

¹ Unmet need for spacing includes pregnant women whose pregnancy was mistimed; amenorrhoeic women who are not using family planning and whose last birth was mistimed, or whose last birth was unwanted but now say they want more children; and fecund women who are neither pregnant nor amenorrhoeic, who are not using any method of family planning, and say they want to wait 2 or more years for their next birth. Also included in unmet need for spacing are fecund women who are not using any method of family planning and say they are unsure whether they want another child or who want another child but are unsure when to have the birth. *Unmet need for limiting* refers to pregnant women whose pregnancy was unwanted; amenorrhoeic women who are not using family planning, whose last child was unwanted, and who do not want any more children; and fecund women who are neither pregnant nor amenorrhoeic, who are not using any method of family planning, and who want any more children; and fecund women who are neither pregnant nor amenorrhoeic, who are not using any method of family planning, and who do not want any more children; and fecund women who are neither pregnant nor amenorrhoeic, who are not using any method of family planning, and who want no more children.

² Using for spacing is defined as women who are using some method of family planning and say they want to have another child or are undecided whether to have another. Using for limiting is defined as women who are using and who want no more children. Note that the specific methods used are not taken into account here.

Overall, unmet need does not vary in a uniform manner with age. However, the need for spacing decreases with age, from a high of 17 percent among married women under age 25 to less than one percent in the 45-49 age group; the need for limiting increases from 9 percent among women age 15-19 to 27 percent of women age 40-44. Unmet need is higher among rural women (26 percent) than among women residing in urban areas (20 percent). Women in the Lubombo region have the highest level of unmet need (28 percent) and women in Hhohho the lowest (20 percent). Unmet need is more than four times higher for women with no education (31 percent) than for those with tertiary education (7 percent). The level of unmet need among women in the lowest wealth quintile (33 percent) is nearly twice that among women in the highest quintile (17 percent).

Table 7.3 shows that total demand for family planning, which includes both unmet and met need (contraceptive use), increases with age, peaking at 84 percent among women age 30-34 years. Seventy-seven percent of the demand among women in this age group is satisfied, which is the highest level of satisfied demand across all of the age groups. The total demand for family planning is both slightly greater and more likely to be satisfied among urban than rural women. Although the pattern is not uniform, the total demand for family planning tends to rise with both the education level and wealth quintile. A higher percentage of the demand is satisfied among those women who are more educated and those living in wealthier households than their more disadvantaged counterparts.

Table 7.3 also presents information on the overall level of need for family planning among unmarried women and all women. Women who are not currently married have lower unmet need than married women; 3 percent of currently unmarried women are in need of family planning for spacing and the same percentage are in need of family planning to limit childbearing. Among unmarried women, total demand for family planning is 34 percent, of which 84 percent is being met.

7.4 IDEAL NUMBER OF CHILDREN

This section discusses attitudes about the ideal number of children among women and men age 15-49. To obtain this information, respondents who had no children were asked how many children they would like to have if they could choose the number of children to have in their whole life. Those who had living children were asked about the number of children they would choose if they could start their childbearing again.

Table 7.4 shows the distribution of women and men by their ideal number of children, according to number of living children. In considering the results in Table 7.4, it is important to remember that, for several reasons, the ideal number of children may be fairly closely associated with the actual number of children a woman or a man has. First, women who want a large family tend to have more children than those preferring smaller families. Second, women and men may rationalize their ideal family size so that as the actual number of children increases, their preferred family size also increases. Furthermore, women or men with larger families are on average older than those with small families and may prefer a larger ideal family size because of attitudes that they acquired 20 to 30 years ago.

The results in Table 7.4 indicate that, in general, women in Swaziland do not want many children. Forty-one percent consider 2 children to be ideal, 19 percent prefer 3 children, and 15 percent favour 4 children. Only seven percent consider 5 or more children to be ideal. The mean ideal number of children among women ranges between 2.2 and 3.3 children, irrespective of the number of living children.

Table 7.4 Ideal number of children

Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 by ideal number of children, and mean ideal number of children for all respondents and for currently married respondents, according to number of living children, Swaziland 2006-07

	Number of living children							
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6+	Total
		W	OMEN ¹					
Ideal number of children								
	5.2	7 2	10.7	9.0	84	6.0	93	75
1	6.2	13.9	12.4	11.6	99	5.4	1.9	9.2
2	49.5	45.3	40.6	29.0	39.9	38.9	25.6	41.4
3	23.7	20.5	14.8	22.0	9.6	16.8	15.2	19.2
4	11.7	10.0	15.6	19.3	21.5	14.0	29.9	15.4
5	2.2	1.7	3.4	6.4	6.4	8.3	6.7	3.8
6+	1.3	1.0	1.9	1.9	3.9	6.9	9.6	2.7
Non-numeric responses	0.2	0.3	0.7	0.8	0.3	3.7	1.8	0.7
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	1,498	1,051	761	552	369	279	477	4,987
Mean ideal number of children for: ²								
All women	2.4	2.2	2.4	2.6	2.7	2.9	3.3	2.5
Number	1,495	1,047	756	548	368	268	469	4,951
Currently married women Number	2.6 131	2.5 347	2.5 423	2.7 341	2.7 251	3.0 193	3.3 356	2.7 2,041
		I	MEN ³					
Ideal number of children								
0	2.1	2.4	2.1	1.6	1.2	2.4	2.8	2.1
1	3.4	4.4	5.7	2.5	4.9	0.9	1.3	3.5
2	39.2	38.0	32.0	26.4	25.5	25.1	18.9	35.2
3	27.4	33.6	25.2	23.0	9.5	25.3	15.2	25.9
4	16.8	14.0	21.6	28.3	34.3	13.3	28.5	19.1
5	6.9	5.0	8.0	9.6	13.8	16.5	8.5	7.6
6+	3.7	2.4	5.1	7.8	10.0	11.2	22.9	5.8
Non-numeric responses	0.5	0.2	0.4	0.9	0.8	5.4	1.8	0.7
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	2,469	467	384	241	186	112	296	4,156
Mean ideal number of children for: ²								
All men	3.0	2.8	3.2	3.5	3.7	3.6	4.6	3.2
Number	2,457	466	382	239	185	106	291	4,127
Currently married men	2.7	2.9	3.2	3.4	3.7	3.7	4.8	3.6
Number	70	202	247	179	151	91	262	1,204

¹ The number of living children includes current pregnancy for women.

² Means are calculated excluding respondents who gave non-numeric responses.

³ The number of living children includes one additional child if respondent's wife is pregnant (or if any wife

is pregnant for men with more than one current wife).

In general, Swazi men desire more children than women. For example, one-third of men consider 4 or more children to be ideal compared with 22 percent of women. The greater desire for larger family size among men is further reflected in the mean ideal number of children, which is 3.2 children among men compared with 2.5 children among women. The results in Table 7.4 also show that the gap between women's and men's childbearing goals widens as the number of living children increases. Women with six or more children want an average of only 3.3 children while men of the same parity would prefer to have 4.6 children.

7.5 MEAN IDEAL NUMBER OF CHILDREN BY BACKGROUND CHARACTERISTICS

Table 7.5 shows the men ideal number of children by age and background characteristics for all women age 15-49. As expected, the mean ideal number of children tends to increase as age increases, ranging from 2.4 children among women in the youngest age group to 3.2 among those in the oldest. The mean ideal number of children among urban women is 2.3 compared with 2.6 among rural women. Looking at regional patterns, women from Manzini have the lowest ideal family size (2.4 children) and women from Lubombo the highest (2.7 children). Desired family size decreases as the level of education increases, from a high of 3.3 children among women with no education to a low of 2.2 for those with high school education. Women in the lowest wealth quintile desire 2.9 children, on average, compared with 2.4 for those in the highest quintile.

7.6 FERTILITY PLANNING STATUS

The issue of unplanned and unwanted fertility was further investigated in the 2006-07 SDHS by asking women who had births during the five years before the survey whether the births were wanted at the time (planned), wanted but at a later time (mistimed), or not wanted at all (unwanted). For women who were pregnant at the time of the interview, this question was also asked with reference to the current pregnancy. The procedure required the respondents to recall accurately their wishes at one or more points in the last five years. Care has to be exercised in interpreting the results because an unwanted conception may have become a cherished child, leading to the rationalisation of responses to these questions.

Table 7.6 shows the percent distribution of births in the five years preceding the SDHS by the planning status of the birth. The results indicate that there is a very high level of unplanned childbearing during this period in Swaziland. Overall, only one-third of births in the five years preceding the survey were wanted at the time that they were conceived. Twenty-seven percent of the births were mistimed, i.e., they were wanted later, and 37 percent of births were unwanted. In response to a similar question, Figure 7.1 shows that a nearly identical percentage of births during the

Table 7.5 Mean ideal number of children

Mean ideal number of children for all women age 15-49 by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background		Number of
characteristic	Mean	women ¹
Age		
15-19	2.4	1,270
20-24	2.3	1,042
25-29	2.3	727
30-34	2.5	611
35-39	2.8	498
40-44	3.1	429
45-49	3.2	374
Residence		
Urban	2.3	1,320
Rural	2.6	3,630
Region		
Hhohho	2.5	1,327
Manzini	2.4	1,639
Shiselweni	2.6	1,026
Lubombo	2.7	959
Education		
No education	3.3	395
Lower primary	3.0	356
Higher primary	2.6	1,258
Secondary	2.4	1,681
High school	2.2	893
Tertiary	2.3	368
Wealth quintile		
Lowest	2.9	780
Second	2.6	856
Middle	2.5	966
Fourth	2.4	1,099
Highest	2.4	1,250
Total	2.5	4,951
¹ Number of wor	men w	ho gave a
numeric response		

five-year period prior to the 1988 Swaziland Family Health Survey (SFHS) were reported by the mother as mistimed (26 percent) but only eight percent were reported as unwanted (Ministry of Health, 1990).

Interestingly, the results in Table 7.6 indicate a comparatively high rate of unplanned conceptions among first-order births and among births to women under age 20 at the time of the birth. One-third of all first-order births and 41 percent of births to women less than age 20 were, in fact, unwanted at the time they were conceived.

The proportion of non-first births which were unplanned at the time of conception increases with the child's birth order. Among fourth or higher-order births, for example, 70 percent were unplanned compared with 55 percent of second-order births. Considering the age patterns, more than half of recent births to women age 20-34 were unplanned, and 75 percent of births to women age 40-44 fell into this category.

Table 7.6 Fertility planning status

Percent distribution of births to women age 15-49 in the five years preceding the survey (including current pregnancies), by planning status of the birth, according to birth order and mother's age at birth, Swaziland 2006-07

		Planning sta	tus of birth			
Birth order and	Wanted	Wanted	Wanted			Number of
mother's age at birth	then	later	no more	Missing	Total	births
Birth order						
1	32.9	33.0	34.0	0.1	100.0	979
2	44.5	27.9	27.4	0.2	100.0	732
3	42.7	25.3	31.9	0.1	100.0	466
4+	30.1	20.1	49.7	0.1	100.0	930
Mother's age at birth						
<20	21.8	37.2	40.8	0.2	100.0	720
20-24	41.1	29.4	29.3	0.2	100.0	958
25-29	45.1	25.9	29.0	0.0	100.0	624
30-34	41.9	18.8	39.3	0.0	100.0	458
35-39	31.5	10.9	57.6	0.0	100.0	272
40-44	24.5	5.6	69.9	0.0	100.0	71
45-49	*	*	*	*	100.0	5
Total	36.3	26.8	36.9	0.1	100.0	3,108
Note: An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.						



Figure 7.1 Planning Status of Births, 1988 and 2006-07

7.7 WANTED FERTILITY RATES

Using information on whether births occurring in the five years before the survey were wanted or not, a total "wanted" fertility rate can be estimated. The wanted fertility rate is calculated in the same manner as the conventional total fertility rate, except that unwanted births are excluded. A birth is considered wanted if the number of living children at the time of conception was less than the ideal number of children reported by the respondent. The gap between wanted and actual fertility shows how successful women are in achieving their reproductive intentions.

The total wanted fertility rate and total fertility rate for the three years preceding the survey are presented in Table 7.7 by background characteristics. The total wanted fertility rate for all women is 2.1 births. Wanted fertility is highest among women with no education (3.0 births) and women in the lowest wealth quintile (2.8 births), and lowest among urban women (1.8 births) and women in the highest wealth quintile (1.8 births).

Overall, there is a difference of 1.7 births between the wanted fertility rate (2.1 births) and the total fertility rate (3.8 births). The gap between the wanted and actual fertility rates is greatest among rural women and women from the Lubombo region. On the other hand, women with a tertiary education are closest to achieving their fertility goals.

Table 7.7 Wanted fertility rates

Total wanted fertility rate and total fertility rate for the three years preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07						
	Total					
	wanted	Total				
Background	fertility	fertility				
characteristic	rate	rate				
Posidonco						
Urban	1.8	3.0				
Dibali	1.0	1.0				
Kuldi	2.2	4.2				
Region						
Hhohho	2.1	3.6				
Manzini	1.9	3.7				
Shiselweni	2.4	4.3				
Lubombo	2.0	4.0				
Eusoniso	2.0	1.0				
Education						
No education	3.0	4.9				
Lower primary	2.4	5.1				
Higher primary	2.2	4.4				
Secondary	1.9	3.9				
High school	1.9	3.1				
Tertiary	1.9	2.4				
/						
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	2.8	5.5				
Second	2.3	4.9				
Middle	2.0	3.9				
Fourth	1.9	3.3				
Highest	1.8	2.6				
Total	2.1	3.8				
Note: Rates are calculated based on births to women age 15-49 in the period 1-36 months preceding the survey. The total fertility rates are the same as those presented in Table 4.2.						

INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY

Sri Poedjastoeti

This chapter presents levels, trends, and differentials in neonatal, postneonatal, infant, child, and perinatal mortality. The information is relevant both for understanding population trends—for example, childhood mortality rates are in population projections—and for the planning and evaluation of health policies and programmes. Information on child mortality serves the needs of the health sector by identifying population groups that are at high risk. Because the government of Swaziland through the Ministry of Health and Social Welfare is undertaking a number of interventions aimed at reducing child mortality in the country, the analysis in this report provides an opportunity to evaluate the performance of such programs.

The data for mortality estimation were collected in the birth history section of the Women's Questionnaire. The birth history section began with questions about the respondent's experience with childbearing (i.e., the number of sons and daughters living with the mother, the number who live elsewhere, and the number who have died). These questions were followed by a retrospective birth history in which each respondent was asked to list each of her births, starting with the first birth. For each birth, data were obtained on sex, month and year of birth, survivorship status, and current age or, if the child was dead, age at death. This information is used to directly estimate mortality.

Because the primary cause of mortality changes as children age, the mortality rates presented are age-specific. They are defined as follows:

Neonatal mortality (NN): the probability of dying within the first month of life

Postneonatal mortality (PNN): the difference between infant and neonatal mortality

Infant mortality $(_1q_0)$: the probability of dying before the first birthday

Child mortality (4q1): the probability of dying between the first and fifth birthday

Under-five mortality $({}_{5}q_{0})$: the probability of dying between birth and the fifth birthday

All rates are expressed per 1,000 live births, except for child mortality, which is expressed per 1,000 children surviving to 12 months of age.

The quality of mortality estimates calculated from retrospective birth histories depends upon the completeness with which births and deaths are reported and recorded. Potentially the most serious data quality problem is the selective omission from the birth histories of births who did not survive, which can lead to underestimation of mortality rates. Other potential problems include displacement of birth dates, which may cause a distortion of mortality trends, and misreporting of the age at death, which may distort the age pattern of mortality. When selective omission of childhood deaths occurs, it is usually most severe for deaths in early infancy. If early neonatal deaths are selectively underreported, the result is an unusually low ratio of deaths occurring within seven days to all neonatal deaths, and an unusually low ratio of neonatal to infant deaths. Underreporting of early infant deaths is most commonly observed for births that occurred long before the survey; hence it is useful to examine the ratios over time.

8.1 DATA QUALITY

Because of the increase in infant and child mortality, a thorough review of the SDHS data was conducted. The accuracy of mortality estimates depends on the sampling and on non-sampling errors of the estimates. Sampling variability and sampling errors are discussed in detail in Appendix B.

Tables C.4-C.6 in Appendix C can be examined for evidence of the possible occurrence of these problems in the mortality data obtained in the 2006-07 SDHS. An unusual pattern in the distribution of births by calendar years is an indication of omission of children or age displacement. In the 2006-07 SDHS, women were asked detailed questions about their births since January 2001. Table C.4 shows that the overall percentage of births for which a month and year of birth was reported is 100 percent for both children who have died and children who are alive. However, there is some age displacement across this boundary for both living and dead children. Transference is proportionately higher for dead children than living children, and this displacement may affect mortality rates.

Underreporting of deaths is usually assumed to be higher for deaths that occur very early in infancy. Omission of deaths or misclassification of deaths as stillbirths is also common among women who have had several children or whose children died a long time ago. In order to assess the impact of omission on measures of child mortality, two indicators are used: 1) the percentage of deaths that occurred under seven days to the number that occurred under one month and 2) the percentage of neonatal to infant deaths. It is hypothesized that omission will be more prevalent among those who died immediately after birth than those who lived longer and that it will be more serious for events that took place in the distant past rather than those in the more recent past. Table C.5 shows data on age at death for early infant deaths. Underreporting of early neonatal deaths would result in an unusually low ratio of deaths within the first seven days of life to all neonatal deaths. Early infant deaths have not been severely underreported in the 2006-07 SDHS survey, as suggested by the high ratio of deaths in the first seven days of life to all neonatal deaths (81 percent in the five years preceding the survey).

Heaping of the age at death on certain digits is another problem that is inherent in most retrospective surveys. Misreporting of age at death will bias age-specific mortality estimates if the net result is the transference of deaths between age segments for which the rates are calculated. For example, child mortality may be overestimated relative to infant mortality if children who died in the first year of life are reported as having died at age one or older. In an effort to minimise misreporting of age at death, interviewers were instructed to record deaths under one month in days and deaths under two years in months. In addition, they were trained to probe deaths reported at exactly 1 year or 12 months to ensure that they had actually occurred at 12 months. The distribution of deaths under 2 years during the 20 years prior to the survey by month of death shows that there is some heaping at 3, 12, and 18 months of age with corresponding deficits in adjacent months (Table C.6). However, heaping is less pronounced for deaths in the five years preceding the survey, for which the most recent mortality rates are calculated.

8.2 LEVELS AND TRENDS IN INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY

Table 8.1 shows the trends in neonatal, postneonatal, infant, child, and under-five mortality rates for three successive five-year periods preceding the survey. For the most recent five-year period preceding the survey, infant mortality is 85 deaths per 1,000 live births, and under-five mortality is 120 deaths per 1,000 live births. This means that one in every seven children born in Swaziland dies before attaining his or her fifth birthday.

Table 8.1 Early childhood mortality rates								
Neonatal, postneonatal, infant, child, and under-five mortality rates for five-year periods preceding the survey, Swaziland 2006-07								
Years preceding the survey	Approximate calendar period	Neonatal mortality (NN)	Postneonatal mortality ¹ (PNN)	Infant mortality (1q0)	Child mortality (4q1)	Under-five mortality (5q0)		
0-4	2002-2006	22	64	85	38	120		
5-9	1997-2001	24	43	67	24	90		
10-14	1992-1996	21	18	39	22	60		
¹ Computed as the difference between the infant and neonatal mortality rates								

Figure 8.1 shows that Swaziland is among the countries with the highest infant mortality in south-eastern Africa. The infant mortality in Swaziland is only slightly lower than in Lesotho and Rwanda.

Figure 8.1 Infant Mortality Rates in Selected Sub-Saharan African Countries for 0-4 Years Preceding the Survey



Note: Rate for South Africa 10-years prior to the survey Source: ORC Macro, 2007. MEASURE DHS STATcompiler. http://www.measuredhs.com. Department of Health (DOH) [South Africa] and ORC Macro (Macro). 2004. South Africa Demographic and Health Survey 2003-2004 Preliminary Report. DOH and Macro: Pretoria, South Africa and Calverton, Maryland, U.S.A.

Looking at the age pattern of mortality during the five-year period immediately prior to the survey, 70 percent of the deaths took place during the first year of the child's life. Three-quarters of the deaths during infancy occurred during the postneonatal period, i.e., the child had survived at least one month before dying.

The trend in early childhood mortality since the early 1990s also can be examined by looking at changes in the mortality rates over the three successive five-year periods prior to the survey. From the SDHS results, there is evidence that child mortality may have doubled during that period. For example, as Figure 8.2 shows, the under-five mortality during the most recent period (2002-2006) is twice the level estimated for the period 10-14 years before the survey (1992-1996). Using indirect techniques, the 2000 MICS survey found a similar upward trend (Central Statistical Office, nd).

Figure 8.2 Neonatal, Postneonatal, Infant, Child, and Under-Five Mortality Rates for Five-Year Periods Preceding the Survey



Looking at the age pattern of mortality across the three periods shown in Table 8.1, there is also evidence of a shift to a greater concentration of deaths in the postneonatal period. While neonatal rates have remained virtually the same, there has been a substantial increase in mortality for older children, especially in the postneonatal rates, which have more than tripled.

Some caution needs to be used in interpreting the trend in mortality suggested by the SDHS results since, as discussed above, the problem of underreporting of deaths in birth history data tends to be greater for periods further removed from the survey date. However, the size of the increase in mortality and the change over time in the age pattern of mortality are not unexpected in view of the growth of the HIV epidemic over this period and its expected impact on child mortality.

8.3 SOCIO-ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC DIFFERENTIALS IN INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY

Differentials in early childhood mortality rates by selected socio-economic and demographic characteristics are presented in Tables 8.2 and 8.3. In order to ensure a sufficient number of births to study mortality differentials across the population subgroups, period-specific rates are presented for the ten-year period preceding the survey (approximately 1998 to 2007) in these tables. Differences in the mortality rates across the subgroups should, nevertheless, be interpreted cautiously because the sampling error remains comparatively large even for the ten-year rates (see Appendix B).

Socio-economic Differentials

The results in Table 8.2 indicate that the risk of dying early is virtually identical for urban and rural children. Overall, the under-five mortality rate is 105 deaths per 1,000 live births in rural areas and 107 in urban areas. The differentials in mortality levels are somewhat larger by region, especially during infancy. Neonatal mortality is lowest in Lubombo and Shiselweni, but postneonatal mortality is highest in these regions.

Table 8.2 Early childhood mortality rates by socio-economic characteristics

Neonatal, postneonatal, infant, child, and under-five mortality rates for the 10-year period preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Neonatal mortality (NN)	Postneonatal mortality ¹ (PNN)	Infant mortality (1q0)	$\begin{array}{c} Child \\ mortality \\ (_4q_1) \end{array}$	Under-five mortality $({}_5q_0)$				
Residence									
Urban	21	53	74	36	107				
Rural	23	54	78	30	105				
Region									
Hhohho	24	47	71	27	96				
Manzini	33	49	82	33	112				
Shiselweni	16	60	76	26	100				
Lubombo	15	63	78	39	115				
Mother's education									
No education	12	84	96	61	151				
Lower primary	6	29	35	45	78				
Higher primary	29	58	87	31	115				
Secondary	27	49	75	29	102				
High school	25	59	83	15	97				
Tertiary	16	32	48	5	53				
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	17	68	84	37	118				
Second	35	36	71	30	99				
Middle	16	50	65	34	97				
Fourth	18	61	79	37	114				
Highest	29	55	84	18	101				
¹ Computed as the different	¹ Computed as the difference between the infant and neonatal mortality rates								

As expected, a mother's education is inversely related to a child's risk of dying. Under-five mortality among children born to mothers with no education (151 deaths per 1,000 live births) is almost three times as high as that of children born to mothers with tertiary education (53 deaths per 1,000 live births). The relationship between wealth and mortality is not consistent, although children born to mothers in the highest wealth quintile are at much lower risk of dying between their first and fifth birthday than children born to mothers in the other quintiles.

Demographic Differentials

The demographic characteristics of both mother and child have been found to play an important role in the survival probability of children. Table 8.3 presents early childhood mortality rates by demographic characteristics (i.e., sex of child, mother's age at birth, birth order, previous birth interval, and birth size). The data show little difference in mortality between male and female children. Typically, the relationship between maternal age at birth and childhood mortality is generally U-shaped, being relatively higher among children born to mothers under age 20 and over age 40 than among mothers in the middle age groups (Table 8.3). This pattern is not present in Swaziland. While mortality rates do not vary much for children born to women under age 40, births to women age 40 and older have much higher mortality risks than births to younger women. The birth order of the child also has little influence on Swazi children's mortality risks.

Studies have found that short birth intervals significantly reduce a child's chance of survival. However, in Swaziland, children born within three years of a preceding birth have lower survival rates than children born with both a shorter or longer interval after the previous birth. A child's birth weight is also an important determinant of its survival chances. In the 2006-07 SDHS survey, mothers were asked whether their child was very large, larger than average, average, smaller than average, or small at birth since this has been found to be a good proxy for a child's weight. As expected, smaller babies have higher mortality rates than babies who are reported to be average or larger than average. For example, neonatal mortality for children regarded as very small or small is twice that of children reported as average or large in size.

Table 8.3 Early childhood mortality rates by demographic characteristics

Neonatal, postneonatal, infant, child, and under-five mortality rates for the 10-year period preceding the survey, by demographic characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Demographic	Neonatal mortality	Postneonatal mortality ¹	Infant mortality	Child mortality	Under-five mortality			
characteristic	(NN) [′]	(PNN)	$(_{1}q_{0})'$	(₄ q ₁)	$(_{5}q_{0})$			
Child's sex								
Male	23	58	80	30	108			
Female	23	50	73	32	103			
Mother's age at birth								
<20	18	55	73	36	107			
20-29	23	52	75	31	104			
30-39	26	50	76	23	98			
40-49	33	120	152	103	240			
Birth order								
1	22	54	76	34	107			
2-3	18	55	73	31	101			
4-6	32	50	82	28	107			
7+	23	59	82	34	114			
Previous birth interval ²								
<2 years	36	54	90	48	134			
2 years	26	50	76	34	108			
3 years	11	46	57	20	75			
4+ years	21	60	82	22	102			
Birth size ³								
Small/very small	34	76	110	na	na			
Average or larger	17	62	78	na	na			
na = Not applicable ¹ Computed as the difference between the infant and neonatal mortality rates ² Excludes first-order births ³ Rates for the five-year period before the survey								

8.4 **PERINATAL MORTALITY**

The 2006-07 SDHS asked women to report on any pregnancy loss that occurred in the five years preceding the survey. For each pregnancy that did not end in a live birth, the duration of pregnancy was recorded. Pregnancy losses occurring after seven completed months of gestation (stillbirths) plus deaths to live births within the first seven days of life (early neonatal deaths) constitute perinatal deaths. The distinction between a stillbirth and an early neonatal death may be a fine one, often depending on observing and then remembering sometimes faint signs of life after delivery. The causes of stillbirths and early neonatal deaths are closely linked, and examining just one or the other can understate the true level of mortality around delivery. In this report, perinatal deaths include pregnancy losses of at least seven months' gestation (stillbirths) and deaths to live births within the first seven days of life (early neonatal deaths). The perinatal mortality rate is the sum of stillbirths and early neonatal deaths divided by the sum of all stillbirths and live births.

Table 8.4 presents the number of stillbirths and early neonatal deaths, and the perinatal mortality rate for the five-year period preceding the survey. Perinatal mortality increases with mother's age at birth. It is significantly higher among women whose age at birth was 40 years or over. The variations in perinatal mortality by the other characteristics shown in Table 8.4 are generally small or do not exhibit a consistent pattern.

Table 8.4 Perinatal mortality

Number of stillbirths and early neonatal deaths, and the perinatal mortality rate for the five-year period preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Number of stillbirths ¹	Number of early neonatal deaths ²	Perinatal mortality rate ³	Number of pregnancies of 7+ months duration
Mother's age at birth				
<20	8	8	23	669
20-29	17	27	31	1,443
30-39	9	12	32	680
40-49	1	1	38	72
Previous pregnancy interval in months ⁴				
First pregnancy	12	15	30	887
<15 '	2	0	22	84
15-26	6	16	45	489
27-38	4	9	26	503
39+	12	9	23	901
Residence				
Urban	5	14	30	636
Rural	30	35	29	2,229
Region				
Hhohho	4	15	25	770
Manzini	9	17	29	879
Shiselweni	10	9	31	626
Lubombo	12	8	34	590
Mother's education				
No education	3	1	14	266
Lower primary	8	3	41	252
Higher primary	14	13	35	761
Secondary	7	21	29	958
High School	3	9	26	459
Tertiary	2	2	21	168
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	10	11	36	582
Second	11	11	36	614
Middle	8	10	31	562
Fourth	3	6	16	557
Highest	3	11	26	550
Total	35	49	29	2,864

² Early neonatal deaths are deaths at age 0-6 days among live-born children.

³ The sum of the number of stillbirths and early neonatal deaths divided by the number

of pregnancies of seven or more months' duration, expressed per 1000.

⁴ Categories correspond to birth intervals of <24 mos., 24-35 mos., 36-47 mos., and 48+ mos.

8.5 HIGH-RISK FERTILITY BEHAVIOUR

Findings from scientific studies have confirmed that there is a strong relationship between children's chances of dying and certain fertility behaviours. Typically, the probability of dying in early childhood is much greater if children are born to mothers who are too young or too old, if they are born after a short preceding birth interval, or if they are high-parity births. Very young mothers may experience difficult pregnancies and deliveries because of their physical immaturity. Older women may also experience age-related problems during pregnancies and delivery. In this analysis, a mother is considered to be "too young" if she is less than 18 years and "too old" if she is above 34 years at the time of delivery. A "short birth interval" is a birth occurring within 24 months of a previous birth.

Table 8.5 shows the distribution of children born in the five years preceding the survey by risk category. First births, which make up 22 percent of births, are considered "unavoidable" and are shown as a separate risk category. Including first births, more than half of births in Swaziland are in a "risk-free" category, while 47 percent are at an elevated risk avoidable death. Thirty-three percent of births are in a single high-risk category, and 15 percent are in a multiple high-risk category. The most

common single high-risk category is births of order 3 and higher (16 percent), while the most common multiple high-risk category is births of order 3 or higher born to mothers older than 34 years (9 percent).

The risk ratios displayed in the second column of Table 8.5 represent the increased risk of mortality among births in various high-risk categories relative to births with no high-risk characteristics. The most vulnerable births are those to women age 18 or younger, and births of order 3 or higher that were born less than 24 months after an older sibling. This group of children is 60 percent more likely to die than children not in any high-risk category. Four percent of births are in this category.

The last column in Table 8.5 looks to the future and addresses the question of how many currently married women have the potential for having a high-risk birth. The results were obtained by simulating the risk category into which a birth to a currently married woman would fall if she were to become pregnant at the time of the survey. The data in the table show that overall more than twothirds of currently married women have the potential of having a highrisk birth if they were to become pregnant. The risk is elevated for 29 percent of women because they would be both too old (age 34 or older) and have too many children (more than 3 children).

Table 8.5 High-risk fertility behaviour

Percent distribution of children born in the five years preceding the survey by category of elevated risk of mortality and the risk ratio, and percent distribution of currently married women by category of risk if they were to conceive a child at the time of the survey, Swaziland 2006-07

	Births in the preceding th	5 years e survey	Percentage of currently
Risk category	Percentage of births	Risk ratio	married women¹
Not in any high-risk category	30.9	1.00	27.6 ^a
Unavoidable risk category First-order births between ages 18 and 34 years	21.9	1.03	4.4
Single high-risk category Mother's age <18 Mother's age >34 Birth interval <24 months Birth order >3	10.2 0.8 5.3 16.3	1.37 * 1.11 1.04	0.4 6.9 7.4 13.6
Subtotal	32.6	1.14	28.3
Multiple high-risk category Age <18 and birth interval <24 months ² Age >34 and birth interval	0.3	*	0.2
<24 months Age >34 and birth order >3 Age >34 and birth interval	0.1 9.3	* 0.88	0.1 28.7
<24 months and birth order >3 Birth interval <24 months and birth order > 3	1.0	(1.35)	3.7
birth order >3	4.0	1.01	7.0
Subtotal	14./	1.11	39.7
In any avoidable high-risk category	47.2	1.13	68.0
Total Number of births/women	100.0 2,829	na na	100.0 2,062

Note: Risk ratio is the ratio of the proportion dead among births in a specific high-risk category to the proportion dead among births not in any high-risk category. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ Women are assigned to risk categories according to the status they would have at the birth of a child if they were to conceive at the time of the survey: current age less than 17 years and 3 months or older than 34 years and 2 months, latest birth less than 15 months ago, or latest birth being of order 3 or higher.

² Includes the category age <18 and birth order >3

^a Includes sterilised women

Nhlanhla M. Nhlabatsi

The health care that a mother receives during pregnancy, at the time of delivery, and soon after delivery is important for the survival and well-being of both the mother and her child. This chapter presents findings on several areas of importance to maternal health: antenatal, delivery, and postnatal care, and problems in accessing health care. These findings are important to policymakers and programme implementers in formulating programmes and policies, and in designing appropriate strategies and interventions to improve maternal and child health care services.

Information on antenatal care (ANC) is of great value both in identifying subgroups of women who do not utilize such services and in planning improvements in the services. The data on ANC from the 2006-07 SDHS provide details on the type of service provider, the number of ANC visits made, the stage of pregnancy at the time of the first and last visits, and the services and information provided during ANC, including whether a tetanus toxoid injection was received.

9.1 ANTENATAL CARE

The major objective of antenatal care is to identify and treat problems during pregnancy such as anaemia and infections. Antenatal care visits include screening for complications and advice on a range of issues such as place of delivery and referral of mothers with complications. In the SDHS, interviewers recorded the source of antenatal care and the person who provided that care for women's most recent births. If a woman received antenatal care from more than one provider, the provider with the highest qualifications was recorded. Table 9.1 shows the background characteristics of women who had live births in the five years preceding the survey according to the type of antenatal care provider.

Table 9.1 presents the distribution of women age 15-49 who had a live birth in the five years preceding the survey by antenatal care (ANC) provider during pregnancy for the most recent birth. The table also presents the percentage of women receiving antenatal care from a skilled provider for the most recent birth. Nearly all women in Swaziland (97 percent) receive antenatal care from a skilled provider such as a doctor, nurse, midwife, or nursing assistant. Nurses and midwives are the most common providers of antenatal care; three out of four women having a live birth in the previous five years received antenatal care from a nurse or midwife. Twelve percent of women received care from a nursing assistant, and only nine percent of women received ANC from a doctor.

Access to antenatal services offered by a skilled provider is nearly universal among 97 percent across all background characteristics. ANC services are accessed by all types of women, but there is a tendency for women of higher education levels and higher wealth quintiles to be more likely than women of lower education levels and lower wealth quintiles to see a doctor for ANC services. Eleven percent of women with a high school education and 31 percent of women with tertiary schooling received ANC from a doctor, while only three percent of women with no education did so.

Three percent of women did not receive any ANC services at all. While the importance of reaching these women is clear, the proportion is too small to draw any significant conclusions regarding the background characteristics of these women.

Table 9.1 Antenatal care provider

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 who had a live birth in the five years preceding the survey by antenatal care (ANC) provider during pregnancy for the most recent birth and the percentage receiving antenatal care from a skilled provider for the most recent birth, according to background characteristics, Swaziland, 2006-07

Packground		Nurse/	Nursing		No			Percentage receiving antenatal care	Number of
characteristic	Doctor	midwife	assistant	Other	one	Missing	Total	provider ¹	women
Mother's age at birth									
<20	5.9	80.3	11.5	0.2	2.2	0.0	100.0	97.6	481
20-34	9.5	74.5	13.1	0.2	2.6	0.1	100.0	97.1	1,382
35-49	9.3	77.3	9.5	0.5	3.2	0.3	100.0	96.0	271
Birth order									
1	9.3	76.0	13.1	0.0	1.6	0.0	100.0	98.4	652
2-3	8.2	77.1	12.3	0.3	1.9	0.1	100.0	97.6	835
4-5	8.2	74.4	13.1	0.2	4.1	0.0	100.0	95.6	349
6+	8.9	75.9	9.6	0.4	4.6	0.6	100.0	94.4	298
Residence									
Urban	11.8	74.1	12.3	0.0	1.6	0.2	100.0	98.2	496
Rural	7.7	76.8	12.3	0.3	2.9	0.1	100.0	96.7	1,638
Region									
Hhohho	9.5	76.4	11.3	0.2	2.4	0.2	100.0	97.3	572
Manzini	8.2	85.1	5.0	0.1	1.5	0.1	100.0	98.3	668
Shiselweni	6.4	70.1	19.1	0.0	4.4	0.0	100.0	95.6	460
Lubombo	10.5	68.6	17.5	0.7	2.5	0.2	100.0	96.6	434
Education									
No education	3.0	81.3	12.0	0.0	3.1	0.5	100.0	96.3	178
Lower primary	8.4	75.1	11.0	0.7	4.3	0.5	100.0	94.5	177
Higher primary	5.5	75.7	14.0	0.4	4.4	0.0	100.0	95.2	550
Secondary	7.3	78.3	12.3	0.2	1.7	0.1	100.0	97.9	716
High school	10.5	76.6	12.3	0.0	0.6	0.0	100.0	99.4	374
Tertiary	30.6	60.8	6.6	0.0	2.0	0.0	100.0	98.0	140
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	5.0	75.9	14.2	0.4	4.3	0.2	100.0	95.1	400
Second	5.8	75.8	13.3	0.8	4.2	0.2	100.0	94.8	429
Middle	7.0	76.7	13.8	0.0	2.5	0.0	100.0	97.5	419
Fourth	10.0	78.6	10.0	0.0	1.2	0.2	100.0	98.6	436
Highest	14.9	74.0	10.4	0.0	0.8	0.0	100.0	99.2	449
Total	8.6	76.2	12.3	0.2	2.6	0.1	100.0	97.1	2,134
Note: If more than one	e source of	ANC was	mentioned,	only the	provider	with the h	ighest qua	alifications is cons	sidered in this

tabulation. Other includes women receiving care from a traditional birth attendant or rural health motivator, a traditional healer, or another person.

¹ Skilled provider includes doctor, nurse, midwife, and nursing assistant

9.2 NUMBER OF ANC VISITS, TIMING OF FIRST VISIT, AND SOURCE WHERE ANC RECEIVED

Antenatal care is more beneficial in preventing adverse pregnancy outcomes when it is sought early in the pregnancy and is continued through to delivery. Health professionals recommend that the first antenatal visit should occur within the first three months of pregnancy and continue on a monthly basis through the 28th week of pregnancy and every two weeks up to the 36th week (or until birth). Under normal circumstances, WHO recommends that a woman without complications have at least four ANC visits, the first of which should take place during the first trimester.

Table 9.2 presents information on antenatal care visits. including the number of visits, the timing of the first visit, and the source where ANC was provided. Seventy-nine percent of women whose last birth occurred in the five years before the survey made four or more ANC visits during their pregnancy. However, half of women (48 percent) did not make their first visit until the second trimester, and only

one-quarter of women had their first ANC visit during their first trimester. Thus, the median number of months pregnant among those who go for their first ANC visit is five months. A large proportion of women continue to delay the initiation of antenatal care, thus missing out on potential benefits of early antenatal care services.

The public sector is still the main source of ANC services, serving two-thirds of women (68 percent). While urban and rural women are generally similar in their behaviour with regard to the timing and frequency of receiving ANC services, rural women are more likely than urban women to avail themselves of the public providers. Seventy-two percent of rural women received ANC from the public sector, while 57 percent of urban women did so. Ten percent of women utilize government hospitals, and the government public health units and clinics remain the most common source of ANC services, providing care to 46 percent of women. Fifteen percent of urban women utilize private providers of ANC services, and 6 percent of rural women do so.

9.3 COMPONENTS OF ANTENATAL CARE

Knowledge of the content of antenatal care is essential for assessing the quality of antenatal care services. Pregnancy complications are a primary source of maternal and child morbidity and mortality. Therefore, ensuring that pregnant women receive information on the signs of complications and testing for complications should be routinely included in all antenatal care visits. To help assess ANC services, respondents were asked whether they had been advised of complications, received certain drugs, or received certain screening tests during at least one of their antenatal visits.

Table 9.3 presents information on the percentage of women who took iron supplements, took intestinal parasite drugs, and received selected services during antenatal care visits during the pregnancy of their most recent birth in the last five years. Nine in ten women (88 percent) who had a live birth in the five years prior to the survey took

Table 9.2 Number of antenatal care visits, timing of first visit, and source where ANC received

Percent distribution of women age 15-49 who had a live birth in the five years preceding the survey by number of antenatal care (ANC) visits for the most recent live birth, and by the timing of the first visit, and percentage of women receiving antenatal care from various sources for most recent birth, according to residence, Swaziland 2006-07

Number and timing	Resic		
of ANC visits	Urban	Rural	Total
Number of ANC visits			
None	1.6	2.9	2.6
1	0.5	1.0	0.9
2-3	11 7	15.1	14.3
2 5 4+	84.1	77.8	79.3
Don't know/missing	2.1	3.2	3.0
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of months program at			
time of first ANC visit			
No antenatal care	1.6	2.9	2.6
<4	32.1	23.9	25.8
4-5	45.9	48.1	47.6
6-7	18.7	23.3	22.2
8+	1.5	1.2	1.3
Don't know/missing	0.1	0.6	0.5
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0
Place where ANC care received			
Public sector	57.2	71.7	68.3
Government hospital	10.3	10.5	10.4
Government health centre	8.4	14.2	12.8
PHU/clinic/other	39.6	48.5	46.4
Private medical sector	14.9	5.6	7.8
Mission	20.8	18.0	18.7
Hospital	11.8	4.8	6.5
Clinic/other	8.4	12.6	11.6
Other	0.5	0.6	0.6
NGO	6.8	3.0	39
Other ¹	0.5	11	0.9
Missing	0.0	0.1	0.1
Number of women	496	1.638	2.134
Madian months prognant at first visit		,	,
(for those with ANC)	4 7	E 1	FO
(IOF LIDSE WILL ANC)	4./	3.1 1 E 0 0	2.077
INUMBER OF WOMEN WITH AINC	40/	1,209	2,077
Note: Women may have received AN place, so percentages may not add to PHU= Public Health Unit NGO = Non-governmental organisatio	C care at 100. on	more tha	an one

iron tablets or syrup. While over 80 percent of women of all background characteristics shown in the table are provided iron tablets or syrup, receipt increases from eight in ten women to nine in ten women with increasing education and wealth quintile.

Table 9.3 Components of antenatal care

Among women age 15-49 with a live birth in the five years preceding the survey, the percentage who took iron tablets or syrup and drugs for intestinal parasites during the pregnancy of the most recent birth, and among women receiving antenatal care (ANC) for the most recent live birth in the five years preceding the survey, the percentage receiving specific antenatal services, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among wo the last fiv who di of	omen with a re years, the uring the pi their last b	a live birth in e percentage regnancy irth:	Among women who received antenatal care for their most r last five years, the percentage with selected serv				ir most rece cted services	ecent birth in the vices:		
Background characteristic	Took iron tablets or syrup	Took intestinal parasite drugs	Number of women with a live birth in the past five years	Informed of signs of pregnancy compli- cations	Weighed	Blood pressure measured	Urine sample taken	Blood sample taken	Physically examined	Number of women with ANC for their most recent birth	
Mother's age at birth											
<20	88.6	10.9	481	45.8	98.6	97.5	86.4	89.5	76.2	471	
20-34	88.3	10.5	1.382	54.1	99.1	98.0	92.5	92.6	78.8	1.344	
35-49	87.3	9.1	271	65.9	99.5	98.1	95.2	93.2	79.8	262	
Birth order											
1	89.3	10.8	652	51.0	98.9	98.2	89.2	91.4	77.1	641	
2-3	88.0	9.9	835	52.0	99.0	97.7	91.6	91.9	79.4	818	
4-5	88.6	9.9	349	57.1	99.2	97.7	92.2	92.6	78.1	335	
6+	86.1	11.6	298	60.7	99.5	98.3	95.3	92.6	78.0	282	
Residence											
Urban	88.1	7.5	496	61.3	99.4	99.1	96.8	96.0	85.0	487	
Rural	88.3	11.3	1,638	51.3	98.9	97.5	89.8	90.7	76.3	1,589	
Region											
Hhohho	90.8	8.0	572	55.7	99.1	97.9	92.1	95.2	78.7	557	
Manzini	90.2	8.5	668	54.3	99.6	98.4	95.8	96.5	79.4	657	
Shiselweni	87.3	15.7	460	58.0	99.3	98.8	86.5	90.1	84.4	440	
Lubombo	82.9	10.9	434	45.5	97.8	96.3	89.1	82.7	69.9	422	
Education											
No education	82.5	12.4	178	46.2	97.7	95.7	82.3	85.3	70.8	171	
Lower primary	85.3	14.1	177	53.3	98.6	96.3	85.7	86.4	71.2	168	
Higher primary	86.9	10.8	550	51.5	98.8	97.1	89.7	90.5	74.7	526	
Secondary	89.1	10.1	716	53.2	99.1	98.1	93.8	93.4	80.3	702	
High school	89.8	7.6	374	56.0	99.7	99.8	94.5	94.7	82.8	372	
Tertiary	95.9	10.7	140	68.1	100.0	100.0	96.7	97.6	88.4	137	
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	84.7	13.4	400	43.1	98.9	96.3	81.5	84.3	71.7	382	
Second	85.6	12.4	429	52.3	99.1	97.2	90.3	91.1	73.0	410	
Middle	88.0	9.4	419	54.4	98.4	97.8	92.3	92.7	81.8	409	
Fourth	91.1	9.7	436	55.4	99.4	98.5	95.4	95.1	78.8	430	
Highest	91.3	7.4	449	61.6	99.3	99.4	96.5	95.6	85.3	446	
Total	88.2	10.4	2,134	53.7	99.0	97.9	91.5	92.0	78.3	2,077	

Administration of intestinal parasite drugs is far less common than administration of iron supplementation, having been given to only one in ten women. Administration of drugs to combat intestinal parasites is most common in Shiselweni, where 16 percent of women took such drugs. Use of drugs to combat parasites shows a slight tendency to increase with decreasing wealth quintile, from 7 percent among women in the highest wealth quintile to 13 percent among women in the lowest wealth quintile.

Virtually all women who went for ANC services were weighed and had their blood pressure measured (99 percent and 98 percent, respectively). Blood and urine tests are a nearly universal component of ANC as well, each having been reported by 92 percent of women who received ANC services. However, blood and urine testing are less common among women as their educational level declines, as are physical examinations and being informed of pregnancy complications. While physical examinations are provided to eight in ten women overall, only seven in ten women with no education are given a physical examination. Being informed of the signs of pregnancy complications is the least frequently offered component of ANC, having been explained to only 54 percent of women who gave a birth in the five years prior to the survey. Only 46 percent of women under the age of 20 were informed of the signs of pregnancy complications.

The low proportion of women that are informed of the signs of pregnancy complications needs to be addressed; service providers should ensure that all women seeking ANC services receive comprehensive care. This is especially true as a substantial proportion of pregnant women in Swaziland continue to deliver at home, subjecting themselves to higher risks of mortality.

9.4 TETANUS TOXOID INJECTIONS

Neonatal tetanus is a leading cause of neonatal death in developing countries where a high proportion of deliveries are conducted either at home or in places where hygienic conditions may be poor. Tetanus toxoid (TT) vaccinations are given to pregnant women to prevent neonatal tetanus. If a woman has received no previous TT injections, a pregnant woman needs two doses of TT during pregnancy in order to be fully protected. However, if a woman was immunized before she became pregnant, she may require one or no TT injections during her pregnancy, depending on the number of injections she has received in the past, and the timing of the last injection. A total of five doses is required for a woman to have lifetime protection.

The 2006-07 SDHS collected data on whether or not women received at least two TT injections during pregnancy and whether or not the pregnancy was protected against neonatal tetanus for women's most recent live birth in the five years preceding the survey. Table 9.4 shows that 68 percent of women received two or more tetanus toxoid injections during their last pregnancy. This resulted in three-quarters of women with a live birth in the five years prior to the survey having protected their most recent birth against neonatal tetanus.

Table 9.4 Tetanus toxoid injections

Among mothers age 15-49 with a live birth in the five years preceding the survey, the percentage receiving two or more tetanus toxoid injections (TTI) during the pregnancy for the last live birth and the percentage whose last live birth was protected against neonatal tetanus, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Percentage receiving two or more injections during last pregnancy	Percentage whose last live birth was protected against neonatal tetanus ¹	Number of mothers
Mother's age at hirth			
<20	68.7	71.4	481
20-34	69.0	76.6	1.382
35-49	58.6	72.4	271
Birth order			
1	71.8	73.1	652
2-3	67.8	77.1	835
4-5	65.4	75.7	349
6+	60.4	71.6	298
Residence			
Urban	73.0	80.4	496
Rural	66.0	73.3	1,638
Region			
Hhohho	64.2	73.6	572
Manzini	72.6	77.4	668
Shiselweni	71.1	77.5	460
Lubombo	60.6	70.0	434
Education			
No education	56.7	64.2	178
Lower primary	63.6	72.7	177
Higher primary	63.2	71.3	550
Secondary	70.9	78.7	716
High school	71.1	77.1	374
Tertiary	77.3	80.2	140
Wealth quintile			
Lowest	61.7	69.5	400
Second	63.6	71.7	429
Middle	68.2	75.8	419
Fourth	73.9	80.2	436
Highest	70.0	76.8	449
Total	67.6	74.9	2,134

¹ Includes mothers with two injections during the pregnancy of her last birth, or two or more injections (the last within 3 years of the last live birth), or three or more injections (the last within 5 years of the last birth), or four or more injections (the last within ten years of the last live birth), or five or more injections prior to the last birth. While older women of higher parity are less likely than younger women to have received two doses of TT, they are also more likely to have received TT doses during earlier pregnancies, resulting in over 70 percent of women of all ages and parity having protected their babies against neonatal tetanus. However, women with less education are less likely to have TT coverage than women with more education. Approximately six in ten mothers (64 percent) with no education had babies that were protected against neonatal tetanus, while seven in ten mothers (72 percent) with primary education had babies that were protected, and nearly eight in ten mothers (78 percent) with secondary or higher education levels had babies that were protected against neonatal tetanus.

9.5 PLACE OF DELIVERY

Increasing the number of babies delivered in health facilities is an important factor in reducing the health risks to both the mother and the baby. Proper medical attention and hygienic conditions during delivery can reduce the risks of complications and infections that can cause morbidity and mortality to either the mother or the baby. Table 9.5 presents the percent distribution of live births born in the five years preceding the survey by place of delivery, according to background characteristics.

Forty-three percent of births are delivered at a public sector health facility, 27 percent at a mission, and 4 percent at a private sector health facility or at a non-governmental health facility. Thus, seventy-four percent of births in Swaziland are delivered at a health facility, while 25 percent are still delivered at home. The Swaziland Community Health Survey 2002 reported that in 1995, 44 percent of women delivered at home, and in 2002, 26 percent delivered at home (MOHSW, 2004).

Only one in ten urban births is delivered at home, while one in three rural births is delivered at home. The proportion of births delivered at home increases steadily with increasing birth order. While only 14 percent of first births are delivered at home, 25 percent of second and third births are delivered at home, 31 percent of fourth and fifth births are delivered at home, and 44 percent of birth orders six and higher are delivered at home.

The proportion of births born in a health facility rises steadily with increasing education and increasing wealth quintile of the mother. Only half of babies born to mothers in the lowest wealth quintile are born in a health facility, and this proportion rises steadily with increasing wealth quintile, reaching 92 percent among babies born to women in the highest wealth quintile. Similarly by education, only 57 percent of babies born to women with no education are born in a health facility, and this proportion rises steadily with increasing level of education, reaching 91 percent among babies born to women with high school education and 95 percent among babies born to women with tertiary education. Babies that received no ANC are the most likely to be delivered at home (65 percent).

Table 9.5 Place of delivery

Percent distribution of live births in the five years preceding the survey by place of delivery and percentage delivered in a health facility, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	ł	Health facilit	у						
		Private	sector						
Background characteristic	Public sector	Mission	Private medical/ NGO	Home	Other	Missing	Total	Percentage delivered in a health facility	Number of births
Mother's age at birth									
<20	40.3	34.1	2.0	23.3	0.3	0.0	100.0	76.4	661
20-34	45.6	24.9	4.6	24.2	0.5	0.2	100.0	75.1	1,852
35-49	35.0	24.2	4.5	35.8	0.3	0.3	100.0	63.7	315
Birth order									
1	47.1	34.6	3.7	14.0	0.4	0.1	100.0	85.4	890
2-3	45.0	24.0	5.4	25.0	0.5	0.1	100.0	74.5	1,072
4-5	41.5	23.5	2.9	31.3	0.3	0.4	100.0	68.0	475
6+	31.4	21.9	1.8	44.1	0.5	0.2	100.0	55.1	391
Antenatal care visits ¹									
None	23.8	10.0	0.0	64.5	1.7	0.0	100.0	33.8	55
1-3	39.7	23.6	2.8	33.1	0.7	0.0	100.0	66.1	325
4+	44.4	29.7	4.6	20.9	0.3	0.0	100.0	78.7	1,691
Don't know/missing	48.5	25.1	1.7	24.6	0.0	0.0	100.0	75.4	64
Residence									
Urban	45.1	35.3	8.4	11.0	0.2	0.1	100.0	88.8	630
Rural	42.7	24.6	2.7	29.4	0.5	0.2	100.0	70.0	2,199
Region									
Hhohho	63.5	9.3	5.7	21.2	0.1	0.1	100.0	78.6	766
Manzini	32.7	43.2	4.0	19.8	0.0	0.4	100.0	79.8	870
Shiselweni	57.2	5.8	2.0	33.8	1.1	0.0	100.0	65.1	615
Lubombo	17.1	48.6	3.6	29.8	0.8	0.1	100.0	69.3	577
Highest educational level									
No education	31.4	24.0	1.8	42.1	0.2	0.5	100.0	57.2	263
Lower primary	30.9	23.9	0.5	43.2	1.2	0.3	100.0	55.3	245
Higher primary	39.2	22.9	2.5	34.2	1.0	0.2	100.0	64.6	748
Secondary	46.8	30.6	2.1	20.4	0.2	0.0	100.0	79.5	951
High school	55.3	30.3	5.3	8.9	0.0	0.2	100.0	90.9	457
Tertiary	43.9	24.7	26.5	4.9	0.0	0.0	100.0	95.1	166
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	29.7	18.9	1.4	48.5	1.3	0.2	100.0	50.0	572
Second	40.1	23.9	1.4	33.9	0.3	0.4	100.0	65.4	603
Middle	51.8	24.3	2.3	21.3	0.3	0.0	100.0	78.5	554
Fourth	46.4	35.4	4.4	13.6	0.0	0.2	100.0	86.2	554
Highest	48.8	33.0	10.6	7.3	0.3	0.1	100.0	92.4	546
Total	43.2	27.0	4.0	25.3	0.4	0.2	100.0	74.1	2,829
¹ Includes only the most recent birth in the five years preceding the survey									

9.6 Assistance during Delivery

In addition to place of birth, assistance during childbirth is an important variable that influences the birth outcome and the health of the mother and the infant. The skills and performance of the birth attendant will affect whether or not hygienic practices are observed, and whether or not complications can be managed. Table 9.6 shows the percent distribution of live births in the five years preceding the survey by person providing assistance, according to background characteristics.
Table 9.6 Assistance during delivery

Percent distribution of live births in the five years preceding the survey by person providing assistance during delivery, percentage of birth assisted by a skilled provider, and percentage delivered by caesarean section, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Perse	on providii	ng assistance	during del	ivery					
Background characteristic	Doctor	Nurse/ midwife	Nursing assistant	Traditional birth attendant/ healer	Relative/ friends/ other	No one	Don't know/ missing	Total	Percentage delivered by a skilled provider ¹	Percentage delivered by C-section	Number of births
Mother's age at birth											
<20	11.9	59.3	5.1	5.1	16.7	1.9	0.1	100.0	76.2	8.1	661
20-34	12.2	57.8	5.4	5.5	15.2	3.7	0.2	100.0	75.4	7.5	1,852
35-49	13.6	44.6	5.4	5.0	17.4	13.8	0.3	100.0	63.5	9.9	315
Birth order											
1	15.5	64.8	5.4	3.1	10.2	0.9	0.2	100.0	85.6	10.6	890
2-3	12.1	56.6	6.0	6.7	15.9	2.7	0.1	100.0	74.7	7.4	1,072
4-5	9.2	53.8	4.6	7.0	17.8	7.2	0.4	100.0	67.6	4.8	475
6+	9.2	42.1	4.3	4.7	25.7	13.8	0.2	100.0	55.6	6.7	391
Place of delivery											
Health facility	16.5	76.2	6.9	0.0	0.2	0.2	0.0	100.0	99.5	10.6	2,097
Elsewhere	0.2	0.9	0.9	20.7	60.7	16.5	0.1	100.0	2.1	0.0	727
Residence											
Urban	17.5	63.0	7.6	2.7	6.9	2.1	0.1	100.0	88.1	8.4	630
Rural	10.7	54.9	4.7	6.1	18.3	5.1	0.2	100.0	70.3	7.7	2,199
Region											
Hhohho	13.1	60.0	5.1	4.6	13.6	3.3	0.2	100.0	78.3	8.4	766
Manzini	12.9	64.4	2.6	3.8	12.5	3.4	0.4	100.0	79.9	7.5	870
Shiselweni	9.3	50.3	6.4	8.3	21.3	4.4	0.0	100.0	65.9	7.6	615
Lubombo	13.4	47.6	8.5	5.4	17.7	7.3	0.1	100.0	69.5	8.1	577
Education											
No education	5.5	49.6	2.1	7.0	24.7	10.7	0.5	100.0	57.2	6.0	263
Lower primary	11.9	40.9	2.9	7.6	28.9	7.4	0.5	100.0	55.7	8.5	245
Higher primary	10.6	48.3	6.1	6.8	21.7	6.2	0.2	100.0	65.1	5.9	748
Secondary	11.8	61.8	5.8	5.3	12.2	3.1	0.0	100.0	79.4	8.3	951
High school	12.7	72.0	6.3	1.8	6.4	0.5	0.2	100.0	91.1	8.7	457
Tertiary	32.3	57.7	5.1	2.6	1.8	0.4	0.0	100.0	95.1	14.2	166
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	7.8	37.1	5.7	7.3	31.8	10.0	0.3	100.0	50.6	6.7	572
Second	10.1	52.3	3.6	7.5	20.8	5.3	0.3	100.0	66.0	8.0	603
Middle	11.4	59.8	6.8	5.6	13.6	2.8	0.0	100.0	77.9	7.9	554
Fourth	15.4	66.3	4.8	3.8	6.9	2.7	0.2	100.0	86.4	8.4	554
Highest	16.9	69.3	6.0	2.0	4.7	0.8	0.1	100.0	92.3	8.6	546
Total	12.3	56.7	5.3	5.3	15.8	4.4	0.2	100.0	74.3	7.9	2,829

Note: If the respondent mentioned more than one person attending during delivery, only the most qualified person is considered in this tabulation. Total includes five women with information missing on place of delivery.

¹ Skilled provider includes doctor, nurse, midwife, and nursing assistant

Seventy-four percent of births in the previous five years are delivered by a skilled provider (doctor, nurse, midwife, or nursing assistant); 12 percent by a doctor, 57 percent by nurses and midwives, and 5 percent by a nursing assistant. In the absence of a nurse or midwife, relatives or friends are the next most common person to assist a delivery (16 percent). Five percent of births are assisted by traditional birth attendants and 4 percent are assisted by no one.

The likelihood of being assisted by a doctor is higher among births to older women (age 35-49), first order births, births in urban areas, and births delivered in a health facility. Doctors are also more likely to deliver births to better educated women and women in the higher quintiles. For example, 6 percent of births to women of no education are assisted by a doctor compared with 32 percent of births to mothers with tertiary education. Similarly, 8 percent of births to women of the lowest wealth quintile are assisted by a doctor during delivery compared with 17 percent of births in the highest wealth quintile.

Relatives and friends play a key role in assisting delivery among births in all subgroups, but more importantly among higher order births, births in rural areas, to women with low education and in the lowest wealth quintiles. About one in five births in Shiselweni and Lubombo regions are assisted by a relative or friend.

Fourteen percent of births born to women age 35 and older and 14 percent of births of parity 6 and higher are born unassisted. One in ten births to women with no education and one in ten births to women in the lowest wealth quintile are born without the assistance of anyone. Most births delivered outside a health facility are assisted by a friend or relative (61 percent), 21 percent of births are assisted by a traditional birth attendant or healer, and 17 percent are delivered with no assistance.

Table 9.6 also presents data on prevalence of births by caesarean (C-) section. Eight percent of live births in the five years before the survey are delivered by C-section. The percentage may be more a reflection of the limited emergency obstetric care that is available in Swaziland, rather than the total percentage of pregnancies with complications for which C-section was indicated for assuring safe delivery and reducing the risk of maternal mortality.

9.7 POSTNATAL CARE

A large proportion of maternal and neonatal deaths occur during the first 48 hours after delivery. Thus, postnatal care is important for both the mother and the child to treat complications arising from the delivery, as well as to provide the mother with important information on how to care for herself and her child. It is recommended that all women receive a check on their health within two days of delivery. To assess the extent of postnatal care utilization, respondents were asked if, for the last birth in the five years preceding the survey, they had received a health check after the delivery, the timing of the first checkup, and the type of health provider performing the postnatal checkup. This information is presented according to background characteristics in Tables 9.7 and 9.8.

Most women in Swaziland (75 percent) do not receive a postnatal check. Only one in five women (22 percent) was examined within two days of delivering a live birth. Few women (2 percent) had a checkup up within 3 to 41 days of delivery. Rural women are more likely than urban women to not have a postnatal checkup (77 percent of rural and 67 percent of urban women receive no postnatal checkup). As with other health services surrounding childbirth, women of lower education levels and lower wealth quintiles are less likely than women of higher education and higher wealth quintiles to receive a postnatal checkup. The provider of postnatal checkup is as likely to be a nurse or midwife as a doctor. Eleven percent of women received a postnatal checkup from a nurse or midwife, and 11 percent received a postnatal checkup from a doctor (Table 9.8).

Table 9.7 Timing of first postnatal checkup

Among women age 15-49 giving birth in the five years preceding the survey, the percent distribution of the mother's first postnatal checkup for the last live birth by time after delivery, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Т	iming afte first po	r delivery c ostnatal che	of mother's eckup				
Background characteristic	Less than 4 hours	4-23 hours	1-2 days	3-41 days	Don't know/ missing	No postnatal checkup ¹	Total	Number of women
Mother's age at birth								
<20	7.6	4.2	5.8	1.8	0.9	79.7	100.0	481
20-34	11.7	3.8	7.8	1.6	1.1	74.0	100.0	1,382
35-49	11.6	4.6	9.4	3.3	0.9	70.3	100.0	271
Birth order								
1	9.4	4.7	5.7	1.4	1.2	77.7	100.0	652
2-3	11.7	3.3	8.8	2.5	0.8	72.9	100.0	835
4-5	9.4	4.6	8.7	0.6	0.9	75.7	100.0	349
6+	12.4	3.7	6.9	2.5	1.5	73.0	100.0	298
Residence								
Urban	16.3	6.2	9.2	0.6	0.9	66.7	100.0	496
Rural	9.0	3.3	7.1	2.2	1.1	77.3	100.0	1,638
Region								
Hhohho	11.4	3.9	7.4	1.4	1.6	74.4	100.0	572
Manzini	12.5	5.3	6.9	1.9	0.7	72.7	100.0	668
Shiselweni	9.2	27	99	2.8	11	74.3	100.0	460
Lubombo	8.7	3.6	6.3	1.5	0.7	79.2	100.0	434
Education								
No education	5.5	2.9	5.1	2.2	1.1	83.2	100.0	178
Lower primary	8.5	2.2	8.2	2.4	1.5	77.4	100.0	177
Higher primary	8.2	2.4	6.7	1.8	1.2	79.7	100.0	550
Secondary	11.6	4.3	6.1	1.8	1.1	75.0	100.0	716
High school	12.5	6.4	11.0	2.2	0.4	67.6	100.0	374
Tertiary	20.9	5.9	11.9	0.7	0.7	60.0	100.0	140
Wealth guintile								
lowest	5.8	1.7	6.1	2.4	2.1	81.9	100.0	400
Second	8.0	3.3	6.9	3.3	0.8	77.7	100.0	429
Middle	10.8	2.5	6.8	1.0	1.4	77.5	100.0	419
Fourth	15.4	5.3	8.4	1.5	0.2	69.2	100.0	436
Highest	13.2	6.9	9.4	1.2	0.7	68.6	100.0	449
Total	10.7	4.0	7.6	1.9	1.0	74.8	100.0	2,134
¹ Includes women who	received a c	heckup af	ter 41 days					

Table 9.8 Type of provider of first postnatal checkup

Among women age 15-49 giving birth in the five years preceding the survey, the percent distribution by type of provider of the mother's first postnatal health check for the last live birth, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Type of hea first	alth provider o postnatal cheo	of mother's ckup				
Background characteristic	Doctor	Nurse/ midwife	Nursing assistant	Other	Don't know/ missing	No postnatal checkup ¹	Total	Number of women
Mother's age at birth								
<20	8.5	9.6	1.7	0.5	0.0	79.7	100.0	481
20-34	11.4	11.8	2.3	0.3	0.1	74.0	100.0	1,382
35-49	13.7	13.1	2.1	0.8	0.0	70.3	100.0	271
Birth order								
1	10.9	9.4	1.7	0.3	0.0	77.7	100.0	652
2-3	12.7	11.5	2.6	0.4	0.0	72.9	100.0	835
4-5	6.5	14.5	2.7	0.3	0.3	75.7	100.0	349
6+	12.1	12.6	1.3	0.7	0.3	73.0	100.0	298
Residence								
Urban	16.4	12.4	4.2	0.3	0.0	66.7	100.0	496
Rural	9.4	11.2	1.5	0.4	0.1	77.3	100.0	1,638
Region								
Hhohho	11.8	10.2	3.1	0.5	0.0	74.4	100.0	572
Manzini	14.2	10.7	2.1	0.2	0.1	72.7	100.0	668
Shiselweni	10.4	12.5	2.3	0.5	0.0	74.3	100.0	460
Lubombo	5.9	13.3	0.9	0.4	0.2	79.2	100.0	434
Education								
No education	7.9	6.6	1.2	1.1	0.0	83.2	100.0	178
Lower primary	6.2	14.7	0.5	1.2	0.0	77.4	100.0	177
Higher primary	8.5	8.9	2.4	0.4	0.2	79.7	100.0	550
Secondary	10.4	12.5	1.9	0.0	0.1	75.0	100.0	716
High school	13.3	14.9	3.6	0.6	0.0	67.6	100.0	374
Tertiary	28.6	9.7	1.7	0.0	0.0	60.0	100.0	140
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	6.2	9.8	1.2	0.9	0.0	81.9	100.0	400
Second	7.9	11.6	2.3	0.2	0.2	77.7	100.0	429
Middle	9.8	10.2	2.5	0.0	0.0	77.5	100.0	419
Fourth	13.8	15.1	1.2	0.5	0.2	69.2	100.0	436
Highest	17.0	10.6	3.4	0.4	0.0	68.6	100.0	449
Total	11.1	11.5	2.1	0.4	0.1	74.8	100.0	2,134
¹ Includes women who re	eceived a che	ckup after 41	days					

9.8 **PROBLEMS IN ACCESSING HEALTH CARE**

Many factors can prevent women from getting medical advice or treatment for themselves when they are sick. Information on such factors is particularly important in understanding and addressing the barriers women may face in seeking care during pregnancy and at the time of delivery.

In the 2006-07 SDHS, women were asked whether each of the following factors would be a big problem or not a big problem in seeking medical care: getting permission to go for treatment, getting money for treatment, distance to a health facility, having to take transportation, not wanting to go alone, concern that there may not be a female health care provider available, concern that there may not be any health care provider available, and concern that there may be no drugs available.

Table 9.9 indicates that 78 percent of women had at least one problem accessing health care. The barriers to accessing health services are predominantly those related to service provision. Seven in ten women (69 percent) reported the unavailability of drugs as being a problem in accessing health care. The next most commonly reported perceived problem, cited by four in ten women, is the unavailability of a health care provider; whether or not the provider is female is of concern only to a minority of women (8 percent). About one-quarter of women have problems accessing health care because of the cost of services and the distance to a facility. Eighteen percent of women experience transport problems in

accessing health services. Other limitations of access are mentioned by a minority of women. Eleven percent report not wanting to go alone, and two percent report needing to get permission to go for health services.

Most problems in accessing health care services are more commonly experienced by rural women than by urban women, although the service provision concerns are still considered to be big problems by urban women as well. Distance, money, and transport are all more likely to be cited as problems by women in Shiselweni and Lubombo regions (cited by approximately one-third of women) than by women in Hhohho and Manzini. Women in Shiselweni and Lubombo are also especially likely to report not wanting to go alone as a big problem (14 and 21 percent, respectively). Nearly all the problems in accessing health services are experienced by a declining proportion of women as their education and wealth quintile increase.

Table 9.9 Problems in accessing health care

Percentage of women age 15-49 who reported that they have serious problems in accessing health care for themselves when they are sick, by type of problem, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Problems in accessing health care											
Background	Getting permission to go for	Getting money for	Distance to health	Having to take	Not wanting to go	Concern no female provider	Concern no provider	Concern no drugs	At least one problem accessing	Number of		
characteristic	treatment	treatment	facility	transport	alone	available	available	available	health care	women		
Age												
15-19	1.5	21.2	24.6	19.0	12.5	10.4	39.8	66.3	76.5	1,274		
20-34	1.8	24.6	22.8	17.8	9.7	6.4	39.9	68.7	77.6	2,391		
35-49	1.9	30.1	27.5	18.5	11.1	6.7	40.3	70.4	78.1	1,323		
Number of living children												
0	1.8	19.7	21.0	16.7	11.9	9.4	39.0	66.8	75.9	1,601		
1-2	1.4	22.4	22.7	16.8	9.0	6.1	39.6	67.0	75.5	1,754		
3-4	2.3	29.2	25.7	19.1	10.0	6.5	40.3	69.6	77.6	887		
5+	2.2	38.5	34.9	24.2	13.6	7.9	42.8	74.5	85.1	745		
Marital status												
Never married	1.4	23.2	22.7	17.1	10.4	8.0	40.5	67.6	76.4	2,487		
Married or living together	2.3	24.2	25.5	19.2	11.0	7.1	39.1	68.7	77.5	2,062		
Divorced/separated/widowed	1.4	41.3	30.1	20.6	11.4	6.3	41.1	73.0	83.1	438		
Employed last 12 months												
Not employed	1.8	27.6	26.7	20.2	11.4	8.3	41.9	70.0	79.3	2,796		
Employed for cash	1.8	21.3	20.6	15.3	9.0	6.1	36.8	66.0	74.2	2,072		
Employed not for cash	2.9	34.1	42.8	24.8	27.4	14.0	53.7	81.2	90.3	106		
Missing	5.5	34.9	22.0	26.6	17.3	0.0	22.5	48.3	77.7	13		
Residence												
Urban	2.2	15.2	7.1	5.1	5.2	4.6	33.5	58.5	65.1	1.330		
Rural	1.6	28.8	30.8	23.1	12.8	8.6	42.3	72.1	81.9	3,657		
Region										,		
Hhohho	0.9	17.5	17.0	12.8	5.6	5.8	42.6	69.4	76.0	1.340		
Manzini	2.0	20.9	18.1	13.3	6.6	5.5	31.1	59.7	69.2	1.647		
Shiselweni	1.2	34.0	33.8	23.6	14.3	8.4	50.3	78.1	86.5	1.033		
Lubombo	3.2	33.6	35.9	28.7	21.3	12.3	40.6	72.1	83.8	966		
Education												
No education	17	427	35.9	28.6	14.6	84	413	78.6	87.8	402		
Lower primary	2.9	42.6	38.5	30.5	19.2	11.2	42.7	71.8	85.3	360		
Higher primary	1.7	31.5	30.2	23.1	13.1	10.0	44.6	73.7	84.0	1.268		
Secondary	1.9	21.7	21.6	14.6	9.4	6.2	39.2	66.9	75.4	1,693		
High school	1.8	16.2	18.8	14.6	8.5	6.2	37.8	65.1	72.7	894		
Tertiary	0.6	4.7	6.4	4.5	2.6	3.2	29.4	52.5	56.9	370		
Wealth quintile												
Lowest	18	45.1	45.6	34.0	21.5	11.2	42.6	75.6	89.3	785		
Second	1.9	38.8	33.7	25.7	14.5	9.0	42.7	74.9	87.6	862		
Middle	1.9	27.4	28.9	21.2	8.6	8.0	45.2	73.1	80.6	968		
Fourth	2.3	16.3	17.4	12.9	8.9	6.0	38.6	67.5	75.0	1.111		
Highest	1.2	9.6	7.9	5.9	4.8	5.0	33.7	57.1	62.9	1.262		
Total	1.8	25.2	24.5	18.3	10.8	7.5	40.0	68.5	77.5	4.987		
Note: Total includes 13 women	with inform	ation missing	z on emplo	vment in l	ast 12 mo	nths	40.0	00.5	77.5	4,907		

Zodwa Dlamini-Mthethwa

This chapter presents findings on several areas of importance to child health and survival including information on birth weight and size at birth, the vaccination status of young children, and treatment practices among children suffering from the three childhood diseases that are among the most common causes of deaths among young children.

10.1 CHILD'S SIZE AT BIRTH

A child's birth weight or size at birth is an important indicator of the child's vulnerability to the risk of childhood illnesses and the chances of survival. Table 10.1 presents information on child's weight and size at birth for all births in the five years prior to the SDHS according to background characteristics. Birth weights were recorded in the SDHS for 84 percent of all births in the five years preceding the survey. These data were based on either a written record if available or the mother's recall. In addition to asking about birth weight, mothers were also asked if they had considered the child to be very small, smaller than average, average, or larger than average at birth. The mother's assessment of the baby's size at birth was obtained for 97 percent of all of the births. Although this size estimate is subjective, it has been shown to be a useful proxy for the birth weight (Blanc and Wardlaw, 2005).

Children whose birth weight is less than 2.5 kilogrammes, or children reported to be "very small" or "smaller than average" are considered to have a higher than average risk of early childhood death. Table 10.1 shows that, of all the children born in the last five years before the survey, 8 percent had a birth weight less than 2.5 kilogrammes. This represents an increase from 5 percent previously estimated through the 2000 Multiple Indicator Cluster Survey (CSO, nd). Low birth weight is most prevalent among babies born to women with no education (12 percent) while women with a tertiary education are least likely to have a baby weighing less than 2.5 kilogrammes (4 percent).

Data from the SDHS on the mothers' assessment of the birth size of their children are also presented in Table 10.1. Two percent of the children born during the five years preceding the survey were reported to be very small while 12 percent were said to be smaller than average. Similar to the pattern observed in the birth weight data, babies born to women with no education are most likely and babies born to women with a tertiary education are least likely to be reported as being very small or smaller than average at birth (18 percent and 8 percent, respectively).

10.2 VACCINATION COVERAGE

Universal immunisation of children against the vaccine-preventable diseases is crucial to reducing infant and child mortality. Thus, the SDHS information on vaccination coverage among young children is very helpful for programme planning and targeting resources to areas most in need.

10.2.1 Collection of Data

The 2006-07 SDHS collected the data on vaccination coverage for all living children born in the five years preceding the survey. Information on vaccination coverage was collected in two ways in the SDHS: from child health cards shown to the interviewer and from mothers' verbal reports. If the cards were available, the interviewer copied the vaccination dates directly onto the questionnaire. When there was no card for the child or if a vaccine had not been recorded on the card as being given, the respondent was asked to recall the vaccines given to her child.

Table 10.1 Child's weight and size at birth

Percent distribution of all live births in the five years preceding the survey with a reported birth weight by birth weight; percent distribution of all live births in the five years preceding the survey by mother's estimate of baby's size at birth; and percentage of all births with a reported birth weight, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Perc	cent									
	distribu	ution of			Percentage						
	births	with a			of births	Perc	ent distrib	ution of bi	rths by		
	reporte	ed birth			with a		size of c	hild at birth	ו		
	weig	ght ¹			reported		Smaller		Don't		
Background	Less than	2.5 kg		Number of	birth	Very	than	Average	know/		Number of
characteristic	2.5 kg	or more	Total	births	weight	small	average	or larger	missing	Total	births
Mother's age at birth											
<20	10.2	89.8	100.0	559	84.6	3.6	15.2	79.4	1.7	100.0	661
20-34	7.2	92.8	100.0	1,569	84.7	1.3	10.6	84.8	3.3	100.0	1,852
35-49	5.7	94.3	100.0	240	76.0	1.6	12.8	78.5	7.2	100.0	315
Birth order											
1	10.5	89.5	100.0	790	88.8	3.2	15.3	79.6	2.0	100.0	890
2-3	6.4	93.6	100.0	907	84.6	1.2	10.4	86.0	2.4	100.0	1.072
4-5	5.7	94.3	100.0	385	81.1	1.2	9.0	85.1	4.7	100.0	475
6+	7.6	92.4	100.0	285	72.8	1.5	11.9	79.0	7.5	100.0	391
Residence											
Urban	8.9	91.1	100.0	589	93.5	3.0	13.2	81.9	2.0	100.0	630
Rural	7.4	92.6	100.0	1,779	80.9	1.6	11.5	83.2	3.7	100.0	2,199
Region											
Hhohho	9.5	90.5	100.0	672	87.8	2.0	13.6	82.9	1.5	100.0	766
Manzini	7.1	92.9	100.0	784	90.1	2.3	12.9	82.4	2.4	100.0	870
Shiselweni	8.9	91.1	100.0	438	71.2	1.4	11.0	79.0	8.6	100.0	615
Lubombo	5.5	94.5	100.0	474	82.0	1.6	9.1	87.7	1.6	100.0	577
Mother's education											
No education	11.5	88.5	100.0	189	71.8	1.6	16.4	76.1	5.9	100.0	263
Lower primary	6.7	93.3	100.0	180	73.7	1.1	10.5	78.9	9.4	100.0	245
Higher primary	7.4	92.6	100.0	574	76.8	2.6	11.6	82.6	3.2	100.0	748
Secondary	8.1	91.9	100.0	835	87.8	2.2	10.8	84.8	2.3	100.0	951
High school	7.8	92.2	100.0	432	94.5	1.3	14.3	82.7	1.7	100.0	457
Tertiary	4.2	95.8	100.0	158	95.0	0.0	8.2	90.3	1.6	100.0	166
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	6.2	93.8	100.0	384	67.1	1.8	10.0	79.6	8.6	100.0	572
Second	6.2	93.8	100.0	476	78.8	1.0	13.9	81.6	3.4	100.0	603
Middle	7.4	92.6	100.0	485	87.6	2.1	10.0	85.8	2.1	100.0	554
Fourth	9.5	90.5	100.0	514	92.8	1.8	13.0	84.1	1.2	100.0	554
Highest	9.1	90.9	100.0	509	93.1	2.9	12.4	83.5	1.2	100.0	546
Total	7.8	92.2	100.0	2,368	83.7	1.9	11.9	82.9	3.3	100.0	2,829

128 | Child Health

10.2.2 Level and Trend in Vaccination Coverage

According to the guidelines developed by the World Health Organization, children are considered fully vaccinated when they have received by the age of 12 months a vaccination against tuberculosis (BCG); three doses of the diphtheria, pertussis (whooping cough), and tetanus (DPT) vaccine; three doses of the poliomyelitis (polio) vaccine; and one dose of the measles vaccine. BCG should be given at birth or at first clinical contact, DPT and polio require three vaccinations at approximately 6, 10, and 14 weeks of age, and measles should be given at or soon after reaching 9 months of age. In addition to this basic schedule of vaccinations, it is also recommended that babies in Swaziland be given a polio vaccination at the time of birth and three doses of the hepatitis B vaccine before reaching their first birthday.

Table 10.2 shows the percentage of children who have received the various vaccinations by source of information, that is, from a health card or mother's report. In order to focus on recent coverage levels, the table is restricted to children 12-23 months of age who are the youngest cohort of children to have reached the age by which they should be fully vaccinated.

Table 10.2 Vaccinations by source of information

Percentage of children age 12-23 months who received specific vaccines at any time before the survey, by source of information (vaccination card or mother's report), and percentage vaccinated by 12 months of age, Swaziland 2006-07

Source of			DPT			Po	olio1		Н	epatitis	В		All basic vaccina-	No vaccina-	Number - of
information	BCG	1	2	3	0	1	2	3	1	2	3	Measles	tions ²	tions	children
Vaccinated at any time before survey Health card Mother's report	83.9 13.3	83.7 12.2	83.7 10.7	82.4 9.2	83.8 9.2	83.9 13.0	83.9 11.3	82.9 4.4	83.1 12.4	83.1 11.5	82.1 9.0	79.4 12.1	78.3 3.4	0.0 2.5	447 84
Either source	97.2	96.0	94.5	91.7	93.1	97.0	95.2	87.3	95.5	94.6	91.1	91.5	81.7	2.5	531
Vaccinated by 12 months of age ³	97.0	95.4	93.8	90.2	92.8	96.3	94.6	85.9	95.2	94.0	89.6	82.7	73.7	2.9	531

¹ Polio 0 is the polio vaccination given at birth.

² BCG, measles, and three doses each of DPT and polio vaccine (excluding polio vaccine given at birth)

³ For children whose information was based on the mother's report, the proportion of vaccinations given during the first year of life was assumed to be the same as for children with a written record of vaccination.

Taking into account both the information on the child's health card and the mothers' report, the results in Table 10.2 indicate that 82 percent of children age 12-23 months received all recommended vaccinations, that is, a BCG and measles vaccination and three doses of the DPT and polio vaccines, at some point before the survey interview. Only 3 percent of the children had never been vaccinated against any of these childhood illnesses at the time of the SDHS. As Figure 10.1 shows, the proportion of children age 12-23 months fully immunised at the time of the SDHS was 17 percentage points higher than the rate (65 percent) prevailing at the time of the 2000 MICS survey (CSO, nd).



Looking at specific vaccines, BCG coverage among children age 12-23 months was nearly universal (97 percent) at the time of the SDHS. Coverage levels were also very high for the first DPT (96 percent) and polio doses (97 percent). The proportions of children receiving subsequent doses of the DPT and polio vaccines dropped off slightly, with 92 percent of children receiving the third DPT and 87 percent the third dose of polio. However, these rates were considerably higher than the rates observed in 2000, when only 78 percent of children had received the third DPT dose and 76 percent had received the third dose of polio (Figure 10.1). Ninety-two percent of children had received a measles vaccination at the time of the SDHS compared with 78 percent of children in 2000.

Table 10.2 also shows that 93 percent of children received a polio vaccination at birth. Ninety-six percent of children age 12-23 months have received the first hepatitis B vaccination and 91 percent have been given the third dose.

10.2.3 Vaccination Coverage by Background Characteristics

Table 10.3 presents vaccination coverage based on health card information and mothers' reports among children age 12-23 months by selected background characteristics. Caution should be exercised when interpreting these results since the number of children in some subgroups shown in the table is small and the differentials across subgroups are generally not large.

Table 10.3 shows that the proportion of children who are fully immunised increases with the child's birth order. Somewhat surprisingly, urban children are less likely to be fully immunised (78 percent) than rural children (83 percent). Also surprising is the fact that coverage levels are relatively low among children in the highest wealth quintile compared with other children. Considering the regional patterns, full vaccination coverage is lowest in Lubombo (76 percent) and highest in Hhohho (84 percent).

Table 10.3 Vaccinations by background characteristics

Percentage of children age 12-23 months who received specific vaccines at any time before the survey (according to a health card or the mother's report), and percentage with a vaccination card, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

BC Sex Male 97 Female 97 Birth order	CG	1	DPT										All basic	No	health	Number
BC Sex Male 97 Female 97 Birth order	CG	1	2			Po	lio 1		F	lepatitis	В		vaccina-	vaccina-	card	of
Sex Male 97 Female 97 Birth order	71		2	3	0	1	2	3	1	2	3	Measles	tions ²	tions	seen	children
Male 97 Female 97 Birth order	71															
Female 97 Birth order	/	96.7	95.7	93.4	92.9	96.8	95.6	87.7	96.4	95.3	92.0	91.5	81.8	2.4	84.2	272
Birth order	7.3	95.2	93.2	89.9	93.2	97.1	94.7	86.9	94.6	93.9	90.2	91.5	81.7	2.6	84.0	259
1 96	6.6	96.1	93.3	91.0	90.4	96.9	94.0	84.6	95.5	94.0	89.6	92.3	79.4	2.6	78.5	185
2-3 96	6.4	94.1	92.6	89.7	92.3	95.5	93.6	85.2	94.1	93.0	90.0	92.9	82.1	3.4	81.8	189
4-5 98	8.9	97.8	97.8	92.6	96.2	98.9	98.5	89.9	96.5	96.5	91.5	87.0	79.3	1.1	91.7	96
6+ 98	8.6	98.6	98.6	98.6	98.6	98.6	98.6	98.0	98.6	98.6	98.6	92.1	91.5	1.4	96.3	61
Residence																
Urban 96	6.6	96.4	94.3	90.8	94.6	97.0	94.2	79.3	94.8	94.0	91.5	94.8	77.7	2.7	75.3	103
Rural 97	7.3	95.9	94.5	91.9	92.7	96.9	95.4	89.2	95.7	94.7	91.0	90.7	82.7	2.4	86.2	428
Region																
Hhohho 97	7.2	95.9	94.5	93.1	94.5	97.2	96.6	89.3	95.9	95.9	93.1	93.7	84.3	2.8	86.8	149
Manzini 96	6.6	95.4	95.1	93.3	93.2	97.3	94.4	88.4	95.7	94.6	92.6	90.5	81.9	2.7	84.5	162
Shiselweni 97	7.2	96.7	96.7	92.6	93.3	97.6	96.6	87.5	95.2	95.2	92.4	91.6	83.7	2.4	83.5	111
Lubombo 97	7.9	96.2	91.2	86.4	90.7	95.4	93.0	82.8	95.2	92.2	84.8	90.0	76.1	1.8	80.5	110
Mother's																
education																
No education (95	5.2)	(93.1)	(91.4)	(90.5)	(93.0)	(91.4)	(90.5)	(85.2)	(93.1)	(91.4)	(89.5)	(84.4)	(76.5)	(4.8)	(80.8)	44
Lower primary 93	3.7	95.8	94.3	87.7	90.4	95.8	95.8	89.0	93.7	93.7	87.7	84.5	77.7	4.2	91.4	51
Higher primary 99	9.1	96.9	94.5	90.5	90.7	98.4	96.8	87.0	95.5	92.9	87.8	92.3	80.8	0.9	81.4	145
Secondary 97	7.0	95.1	94.5	93.8	94.2	97.2	94.3	89.0	95.5	95.5	93.5	91.9	83.8	2.6	85.9	175
High school 97	7.7	97.7	95.7	93.3	97.1	97.7	97.6	85.0	97.7	97.7	94.1	95.8	83.1	2.3	85.3	88
Tertiary (96	6.4) ((96.4)	(94.8)	(89.0)	(90.7)	(96.4)	(91.0)	(86.1)	(96.4)	(94.5)	(92.9)	(95.2)	(84.8)	(3.6)	(75.7)	29
Wealth quintile																
Lowest 97	7.2	96.4	93.5	91.7	93.4	97.3	96.3	90.4	94.4	94.4	89.8	89.4	82.3	1.8	89.1	108
Second 96	6.8	93.1	92.3	89.5	91.9	96.8	94.0	88.2	93.7	93.7	89.6	88.5	80.3	3.2	84.8	115
Middle 98	8.8	98.8	97.3	93.8	93.0	97.3	96.6	86.8	98.8	95.4	91.0	93.1	82.1	1.2	83.0	123
Fourth 98	8.0	97.0	97.0	94.4	93.9	98.0	96.9	89.2	95.7	95.4	94.3	94.3	85.6	2.0	85.5	95
Highest 94	4.7	94.2	91.7	88.8	93.2	95.2	91.7	81.1	94.7	94.0	91.3	92.9	78.5	4.5	77.3	90
Total 97	7.2	96.0	94.5	91.7	93.1	97.0	95.2	87.3	95.5	94.6	91.1	91.5	81.7	2.5	84.1	531

² BCG, measles, and three doses each of DPT and polio vaccine (excluding polio vaccine given at birth)

10.3 Acute Respiratory Infection and Fever

The 2006-07 SDHS collected information on the prevalence and treatment of acute respiratory infection among young children. Acute respiratory infection (ARI) is one of the leading causes of childhood morbidity and mortality. Early diagnosis and treatment with antibiotics can prevent a large proportion of deaths caused by ARI. In the 2006-07 SDHS, the prevalence of ARI was estimated by asking mothers whether their children under age five had been ill in the two weeks preceding the survey, with a cough accompanied by short, rapid breathing which the mother considered to be chest-related. These symptoms are compatible with ARI.

The SDHS also obtained information on the prevalence and treatment of fever. Fever is a symptom of malaria and other acute infections in children, and it is important that children with fever be evaluated promptly and treated appropriately. This section focuses on presenting basic information from the SDHS on the prevalence and treatment response to fever in young children. Additional information relevant to efforts in Swaziland to address the problem of malaria is discussed in Chapter 12.

Table 10.4 presents the proportions of children under five who were reported by their mother as experiencing fever or symptoms of ARI in the two weeks preceding the SDHS. When considering the information on ARI and fever prevalence, it should be remembered that the data are based on the mother's perception of illness without validation by medical personnel.

Overall, Table 10.4 shows that, in the two weeks prior to SDHS, eight children under age five experienced symptoms of ARI, and 28 percent had a fever. The likelihood that a child was ill either with the symptoms of an acute respiratory infection or fever during the period varies according to the child's age. The prevalence of ARI symptoms was highest among children age 6-35 months (10 percent). The prevalence of fever peaked at 41 percent among children age 6-11 months, and then fell to around half that level among children age 36-59 months. There was only a small difference in the prevalence of ARI symptoms between boys and girls. Boys, however, were much more likely than girls to have a fever (31 percent and 24 percent, respectively).

Rural children were more likely than children in urban areas to have been ill with ARI symptoms or fever during the two weeks prior to the SDHS. Prevalence of both illnesses is substantially higher in Lubombo than in the other regions. Although not uniform, the likelihood that a child had been ill with ARI symptoms or fever also decreased with the mother's education level and the wealth quintile.

Figure 10.2 presents information on actions that were taken to treat ARI symptoms and fever among young children. Among the children that

Table 10.4 Prevalence and treatment of fever and symptoms of ARI

Among children under age five, the percentage who had fever and who had symptoms of acute respiratory infection (ARI) in the two weeks preceding the survey, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage with		-
Background	symptoms	Percentage	Number of
characteristic	of ARI'	with fever	children
Age in months			
<6	6.6	28.7	265
6-11	10.2	41.2	301
12-23	9.8	35.0	531
24-35	9.9	24.7	483
36-47	6.2	20.5	492
48-59	7.5	20.2	480
Sex			
Male	9.1	30.7	1,290
Female	7.7	24.3	1,263
Residence			
Urban	5.7	17.6	557
Rural	9.1	30.3	1,996
Region			
Hhohho	6.5	22.4	694
Manzini	7.5	22.0	784
Shiselweni	5.9	24.0	558
Lubombo	15.0	46.6	517
Mother's education			
No education	11.5	33.5	232
Lower primary	7.0	33.3	224
Higher primary	11.3	31.7	668
Secondary	7.0	24.8	865
High school	7.1	26.5	405
Tertiary	4.3	10.9	159
Wealth guintile			
Lowest	10.4	33.6	516
Second	10.8	31.8	556
Middle	5.0	25.6	501
Fourth	7.1	23.7	490
Highest	8.2	22.2	490
Total	8.4	27.5	2,553
¹ Symptoms of ARI (co which was chest-related)	ugh accompan is considered a	ied by short, proxy for pneu	rapid breathing monia.

showed ARI symptoms, 73 percent of them received medical attention and 24 percent received antibiotics. Around six in ten children with fever received medical attention. Seventeen percent of children with fever were given antibiotics, and 1 percent were treated with an antimalarial drug.

Figure 10.2 Treatment Practises for Children III with the Symptoms of an Acute Respiratory Infection or a Fever



SDHS 2006-07

10.4 DIARRHOEAL DISEASE

Dehydration caused by severe diarrhoea is a major cause of morbidity and mortality among young children. Exposure to diarrhoea-causing agents is frequently related to the use of contaminated water and to unhygienic practises in food preparation and disposal of excreta.

10.4.1 Prevalence of Diarrhoea

Table 10.5 shows the percentage of children under five with diarrhoea and with diarrhoea with blood in the faeces in the two weeks preceding the survey, according to selected background characteristics. Blood in the faeces is a sign of dysentery. In interpreting the findings in Table 10.5, it should be borne in mind that prevalence of diarrhoea varies seasonally; the highest prevalence is observed in September through March during the rainy season. It is also important to recognize that the data are based on the mother's subjective assessment of the child's illness and, thus, may involve reporting error.

Among children under age five, the prevalence of diarrhoea was 13 percent, and 3 percent had diarrhoea with blood. Diarrhoeal illness is more common among children age 6-11 months (27 percent) and children age 12-23 months (22 percent) than among younger or older children. Additionally, diarrhoea prevalence is higher among male children, children living in households with an unimproved drinking water source or non-improved or shared toilet facilities, children from rural areas and from the Lubombo region, children whose mothers have less than a secondary education, and children in the lowest wealth quintile.

Table 10.5 Prevalence of diarrhoea

Percentage of children under age five who had diarrhoea in the two weeks preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Diarrho two prec the s	ea in the weeks eding survey	
Background characteristic	All diarrhoea	Diarrhoea with blood	Number of children
Age in months			
<6	10.8	0.7	265
6-11	27.3	4.5	301
12-23	21.9 13.7	5.Z 2.6	531 483
24-35 26 47	13./	5.0 1.5	403 402
48-59	5.0	2.3	492
Sex			
Male	15.5	3.3	1,290
Female	11.3	2.9	1,263
Source of drinking water ¹			
Improved	11.4	2.6	1,655
Not improved	17.2	4.0	898
Toilet facility ²			
Improved, not shared	11.4	2.8	1,306
Non-improved or shared	15.6	3.4	1,242
Residence			
Urban	9.3	1.8	557
Rural	14.6	3.5	1,996
Region	11.0	1 (604
Hhohno	11.0	1.0 0.3	694 784
Shicolwoni	12.5 14.4	2.3 5 1	70 4 558
Lubombo	17.4	4.1	517
r J. antion	1/.1		517
Education No education	16.1	4.0	232
Lower primary	17.1	4.7	232
Higher primary	16.0	3.9	668
Secondary	11.7	2.6	865
High school	13.6	2.8	405
Tertiary	2.8	0.0	159
Wealth quintile			
Lowest	23.0	5.3	516
Second	11.2	3.1	556
Middle	13.6	3.1	501
Fourth Highest	10.3	3.0	490 490
Total	13.4	3.1	2.553
			_/
Note: Total includes five 1 toilet facility. ¹ See Table 2.6 for definitio	births with	information ories.	i missing o

10.4.2 Treatment of Diarrhoea

To obtain some insight into whether or not diarrhoeal illnesses are being treated appropriately, mothers of children who had diarrhoea in the two weeks before the SDHS were asked about what was done to treat the illness. Table 10.6 provides information on a number of actions that mothers reported were taken when their child was ill.

The results in Table 10.6 indicate that health care providers are consulted in the majority of cases of diarrhoeal illness among young children. Seventy-two percent of the children who had diarrhoea were taken to a health provider for treatment.

A simple and effective response to dehydration caused by diarrhoea is a prompt increase in the child's fluid intake through some form of oral rehydration therapy (ORT). Table 10.6 shows that 89 percent of children ill with diarrhoea were given a solution prepared from an oral rehydration salts (ORS) packet or a homemade mixture usually prepared from sugar, salt, and water that is recommended to treat the diarrhoea. Ninety-one percent were treated with some form of ORT or increased fluids.

Table 10.6 Diarrhoea treatment

Among children under age five who had diarrhoea in the two weeks preceding the survey, the percentage for whom advice or treatment was sought from a health facility or provider, the percentage given oral rehydration therapy (ORT), the percentage given increased fluids, the percentage given ORT or increased fluids, and the percentage who were given other treatments, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage of children												
	with		Oral rehy	dration th	nerapy (OR	Γ)		C	ther treat	ments			
	diarrhoea		Recom-							Other/			
	taken to a		mended							unknown			
	health		home	Either		ORT or	Anti-	Anti-		pill,	Home		
	facility or	ORS	fluids	ORS or	Increased	increased	biotic	motility	Vitamin	syrup, or	remedy/	No	Number
Background characteristic	provider'	packets	(RHF) ²	KHF	fluids	fluids	drugs	drugs	A	injection	other	treatment	of children
Age in months													
<6	(53.9)	(78.9)	(4.2)	(82.8)	(18.2)	(82.8)	(7.4)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(20.8)	(7.9)	(16.0)	29
6-11	83.1	88.3	18.3	91.0	22.4	91.6	21.0	1.0	1.1	36.8	7.5	4.5	82
12-23	72.8	85.0	16.9	87.2	25.8	90.0	20.5	2.6	1.2	33.8	9.5	6.1	116
24-35	69.5	86.6	25.0	90.4	32.5	92.0	18.2	0.0	1.8	44.0	2.7	2.8	66
36-47	(61.9)	(78.3)	(29.6)	(86.7)	(33.7)	(91.1)	(15.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(17.0)	(3.8)	(8.9)	25
48-59	(68.3)	(90.7)	(31.4)	(94.2)	(25.8)	(94.2)	(14.5)	(0.0)	(4.1)	(33.5)	(12.6)	(5.8)	24
Sex													
Male	69.5	85.9	18.7	87.8	26.6	89.4	16.6	1.0	1.7	32.5	6.2	6.1	201
Female	75.4	85.0	21.1	90.3	25.7	92.1	20.6	1.3	0.8	36.4	9.0	6.2	143
Type of diarrhoea													
Non bloody	70.3	84.4	18.6	88.2	24.7	89.8	17.3	1.5	0.9	35.0	7.5	6.2	259
Bloody	80.4	89.7	24.2	91.9	30.5	94.1	22.3	0.0	2.6	33.2	7.3	4.7	79
Residence													
Urban	66.7	78.5	13.7	81.2	35.7	84.0	25.6	0.0	2.5	32.3	3.5	8.6	52
Rural	72.9	86.7	20.7	90.2	24.5	91.7	16.9	1.3	1.1	34.4	8.0	5.7	292
Region													
Hhohho	66.8	86.5	11.6	87.7	25.1	89.1	8.4	1.4	1.4	27.1	4.7	10.9	77
Manzini	71.4	82.8	22.7	88.3	24.0	90.7	29.3	1.0	0.0	24.7	7.0	4.6	96
Shiselweni	70.8	87.0	29.5	91.7	29.4	93.5	13.1	0.0	0.0	49.7	9.3	3.9	81
Lubombo	77.9	86.2	14.5	87.7	26.6	89.0	19.4	2.0	3.8	36.2	8.4	5.7	90
Mother's education													
primary ³	70.0	88.7	14.7	93.2	33.0	93.6	17.9	0.0	2.5	29.2	9,9	5.1	76
Higher primary	71.3	82.0	23.4	86.6	27.0	88.2	14.1	1.7	1.1	35.7	8.8	6.4	107
Secondary	79.9	85.6	21.4	86.9	19.4	89.6	20.7	0.0	0.4	34.8	7.5	7.7	101
High school/tertiary ³	62.0	87.4	16.3	90.5	27.9	92.5	22.1	3.4	1.8	36.3	1.4	4.2	59
Wealth quintile													
Lowest	71.6	84.4	18.2	88.5	22.4	89.4	11.8	0.0	1.8	34.6	12.2	8.6	119
Second	75.2	90.0	21.1	95.5	35.7	96.0	20.6	2.9	0.0	33.2	9.7	2.4	62
Middle	77.5	90.8	28.7	91.9	23.3	93.5	22.1	1.6	1.6	42.1	4.9	3.4	68
Fourth	72.8	81.0	18.2	82.8	25.3	87.4	17.7	1.9	0.7	31.1	0.0	7.8	50
Highest	(58.4)	(79.0)	(9.1)	(82.3)	(28.6)	(84.8)	(27.0)	(0.0)	(2.1)	(25.1)	(3.3)	(6.6)	43
Total	71.9	85.5	19.7	88.8	26.2	90.6	18.2	1.1	1.3	34.1	7.4	6.1	343

Note: ORT includes solution prepared from oral rehydration salt (ORS) and recommended home fluids (RHF). Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ Excludes pharmacy, shop, and traditional practitioner

² The recommended home fluids are the sugar-salt-solutions (SSS).

³ Education levels were combined due to the small number of cases.

Antibiotics and other medications are generally not recommended for use in treating diarrhoea among young children. However, Table 10.6 shows that antibiotics were given to 18 percent of the children with diarrhoea, and 34 percent were given other drugs. Seven percent received various home remedies. Only 6 percent of the children with diarrhoea were not taken to a health provider or given any treatment.

Table 10.6 also provides information on differences in consultation and treatment practices when a child had diarrhoea across population subgroups. Consultations with health providers were most frequent when the child was 6-11 months of age (83 percent) and had bloody stools (80 percent). The lowest levels of ORT usage were in urban areas (81 percent) and the fourth and fifth wealth quintiles (83 percent and 81 percent, respectively). The low rate of urban ORT use is offset partially by the fact that urban mothers were more likely than rural mothers to increase the fluids children with diarrhoea were given. The highest level of use of antibiotics was reported in the Manzini region.

10.4.3 Feeding Practices

Mothers are encouraged to continue feeding children with diarrhoea normally and to increase the amount of fluids. These practises are promoted to reduce dehydration and minimize the adverse consequences of diarrhoea on the child's nutritional status.

To assess changes in feeding practices, if any, mothers of children who had diarrhoea during the two weeks before the SDHS were asked whether they gave the child less, the same amount, or more fluids and food than usual when their child was ill. Table 10.7 shows the percent distribution of children under five who had diarrhoea by feeding practices, according to background characteristics. Twenty-six percent of the children who had diarrhoea in the two weeks preceding the survey were offered increased fluids. In the case of 55 percent of the children, mothers continued to feed the child either the same or more food compared with their normal amount or fed the child only somewhat less than the normal amount. The proportion of children whose mothers reported they both increased fluids given to the child and continued feeding is relatively low (15 percent). However, around nine in ten children either received some form of ORT or were given increased fluids and continued feeding.

Table 10.7 Feeding practices during diarrhoea

Percent distribution of children under age five who had diarrhoea in the two weeks preceding the survey by amount of liquids and food offered compared with normal practice, the percentage of children given increased fluids and continued feeding during the diarrhoea episode, and the percentage of children who continued feeding and were given ORT and/or increased fluids during the episode of diarrhoea, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Am	ount of li	quids off	ered				Ar	mount of f	ood offer	be			Percentage given	Percentage given ORT	Number
Background	More	Same as usual	Some- what less	Much less	None	Don't know/ missing	Total	More	Same as usual	Some- what less	Much	None	Never gave food	Total	fluids and continued feeding ^{1,2}	fluids and continued feeding ³	children with diarrhoea
Age in months	more	ubuui	1000	1000	Home		rotai	more	usuu	1000	1000	Tione	1004	- otai			
<6	(18.2)	(42.0)	(25.4)	(10.2)	$(4 \ 2)$	(0, 0)	100.0	(7.2)	(19.4)	(19.0)	$(14 \ 9)$	(8.0)	(31.4)	100.0	(11.1)	(82.8)	29
6-11	22.4	27.4	32.7	14.7	2.8	0.0	100.0	3.9	13.4	27.8	20.2	27.2	7.4	100.0	9.8	91.6	82
12-23	25.8	33.8	27.2	11.4	1.5	0.3	100.0	2.7	21.4	32.6	23.9	16.3	3.0	100.0	15.7	90.0	116
24-35	32.5	43.0	12.4	9.1	0.0	3.0	100.0	8.1	20.8	33.8	21.4	15.9	0.0	100.0	20.7	92.0	66
36-47	(33.7)	(38.6)	(17.1)	(7.5)	(0.0)	(3.1)	100.0	(4.3)	(25.2)	(38.7)	(15.3)	(16.5)	(0.0)	100.0	(17.4)	(91.1)	25
48-59	*	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	*	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	*	*	24
Sex																	
Male	26.6	36.7	23.1	12.5	0.9	0.2	100.0	5.1	20.6	32.3	20.2	15.6	6.1	100.0	16.9	89.4	201
Female	25.7	31.2	28.4	8.6	3.5	2.6	100.0	3.3	18.2	29.9	21.7	21.7	5.1	100.0	12.2	92.1	143
Type of diarrhoea																	
Non bloody	24.7	35.1	24.8	12.1	2.0	1.4	100.0	5.5	20.0	32.4	20.7	14.6	6.8	100.0	15.0	89.8	259
Bloody	30.5	32.8	28.6	6.0	2.1	0.0	100.0	0.8	19.7	27.5	21.2	28.4	2.4	100.0	14.2	94.1	79
Residence																	
Urban	35.7	29.3	19.6	13.9	0.7	0.7	100.0	4.0	23.3	24.6	26.7	16.9	4.5	100.0	17.0	84.0	52
Rural	24.5	35.3	26.3	10.3	2.2	1.3	100.0	4.4	19.0	32.5	19.8	18.3	5.9	100.0	14.6	91.7	292
Region																	
Hhohho	25.1	33.3	27.1	10.8	1.1	2.6	100.0	7.1	19.9	25.9	22.0	21.3	3.9	100.0	14.9	89.1	77
Manzini	24.0	41.4	23.5	9.5	1.2	0.4	100.0	5.7	25.5	32.6	21.2	15.0	0.0	100.0	14.7	90.7	96
Shiselweni	29.4	28.0	31.4	9.2	2.1	0.0	100.0	1.0	17.1	35.7	19.3	15.0	12.0	100.0	20.2	93.5	81
Lubombo	26.6	33.6	20.3	13.9	3.6	1.9	100.0	3.6	15.4	30.6	20.9	21.7	7.7	100.0	10.5	89.0	90
Mother's education																	
No education/ Lower primary ⁴	33.0	18.6	30.2	14.6	2.6	1.0	100.0	2.4	15.8	32.2	22.1	20.9	6.6	100.0	21.8	93.6	76
Higher primary	27.0	39.9	23.2	6.4	3.5	0.0	100.0	2.5	18.7	26.8	26.6	20.3	5.1	100.0	13.5	88.2	107
Secondary	19.4	41.5	22.1	14.5	1.2	1.3	100.0	4.6	20.0	32.9	16.7	18.2	7.5	100.0	11.9	89.6	101
High school/ tertiary ⁴	27.9	32.5	28.3	8.0	0.0	3.4	100.0	9.7	25.7	35.6	16.0	10.6	2.5	100.0	14.0	92.5	59
Wealth guintile																	
Lowest	22.4	35.4	30.1	10.1	1.4	0.7	100.0	2.3	15.2	30.7	22.4	19.1	10.3	100.0	15.1	89.4	119
Second	35.7	31.0	19.2	9.1	3.5	1.5	100.0	6.9	21.5	31.3	13.7	23.7	2.9	100.0	21.2	96.0	62
Middle	23.3	31.0	25.7	16.8	2.7	0.5	100.0	3.7	17.7	37.1	25.7	13.5	2.5	100.0	8.3	93.5	68
Fourth	25.3	47.3	21.5	4.2	1.7	0.0	100.0	6.6	25.3	32.3	23.9	11.8	0.0	100.0	17.3	87.4	50
Highest	(28.6)	(27.3)	(24.8)	(14.0)	(0.8)	(4.6)	100.0	(5.0)	(25.7)	(22.8)	(15.5)	(22.0)	(9.0)	100.0	(13.2)	(84.8)	43
Total	26.2	34.4	25.3	10.9	2.0	1.2	100.0	4.4	19.6	31.3	20.9	18.1	5.7	100.0	14.9	90.6	343

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ Equivalent to the UNICEF/WHO indicator "Home management of diarrhoea." MICS Indicator 34

² Continued feeding practises includes children who were given more, same as usual, or somewhat less food during the diarrhoea episode.

³ Equivalent to UNICEF MICS Indicator 35 ⁴ Education levels were combined due to the small number of cases.

10.5 KNOWLEDGE OF ORS PACKETS

As discussed above, a solution prepared from ORS packets is very effective in preventing dehydration when a child has diarrhoea. To ascertain how wide-spread knowledge of ORS is in Swaziland, mothers who gave birth during the five years before the SDHS were asked whether they know about oral rehydration salts (ORS). Table 10.8 shows that nearly all mothers (98 percent) know about ORS packets. This suggests that the health education campaign around issues of diarrhoea has been very successful.

10.6 STOOL DISPOSAL

If human faeces are left uncontained, disease may spread by direct contact or by animal contact with the faeces. Hence, the proper disposal of children's stools is extremely important in preventing the spread of disease. Table 10.9 presents information on the disposal of the stools of the youngest living child under age five, by background characteristics. Stools are disposed of appropriately for nearly two-thirds of children. However, stools are left in the open in the case of one-fifth of children, and they were dumped into a ditch or drain or thrown in the garbage in the case of 14 percent of the children.

The older the child the greater is the likelihood that the child's stools will be disposed of safely. As expected, households with non-improved or shared toilet facilities are less likely than those with improved and non-shared facilities to safely dispose of children's stools (53 percent and 76 percent, respectively). Given the fact that urban households have better sanitation facilities than rural areas, it is not surprising that the percentage of children whose stools were safely disposed of is substantially higher in urban areas (80 Table 10.8 Knowledge of ORS packets or prepackaged liquids

Percentage of mothers age 15-49 who gave birth in the five years preceding the survey who know about ORS packets or ORS pre-packaged liquids for treatment of diarrhoea, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic Age	Percentage of women who know about ORS packets or ORS pre-packaged liquids	Number of women
15-19	97.7	232
20-24	99.1	654
25-34	97.9	850
35-49	97.8	398
Residence Urban	97.8	496
Nurdi	90.5	1,030
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo Mother's education No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	97.6 98.4 98.7 98.2 97.0 94.9 98.5 99.5 98.4 95.7	572 668 460 434 178 177 550 716 374 140
Wealth quintile Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	98.0 98.7 97.9 98.5 97.9	400 429 419 436 449
Total	98.2	2,134
ORS = Oral rehydrat	ion salts	

percent) than in rural areas (62 percent). Safe stool disposal practises are reported least often in the Lubombo region (55 percent) and most often in Manzini (73 percent). The likelihood of safe stool disposal practises increases with the educational status of the mothers and the wealth quintile.

Table 10.9 Disposal of children's stools

Percent distribution of youngest children under age five living with the mother by the manner of disposal of the child's last faecal matter, and percentage of children whose stools are disposed of safely, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

					Percentage					
		Man	ner of dis	sposal of chi	ldren's stoo	ols			of children	
	Child								whose	
	used	Put/rinsed		Put/rinsed	Thrown	Left			stools are	
Background	toilet or	into toilet		into drain	into	in the			disposed	Number of
characteristic	latrine	or latrine	Buried	or ditch	garbage	open	Missing	Total	of safely ¹	mothers
Age in months										
<6	5.1	44.5	2.4	18.7	10.3	18.0	0.9	100.0	52.0	260
6-11	5.7	50.8	3.7	15.5	6.8	17.2	0.3	100.0	60.1	292
12-23	9.4	49.0	7.9	7.5	7.3	18.0	0.9	100.0	66.3	476
24-35	17.1	41.9	10.7	3.1	2.9	23.0	1.4	100.0	69.7	324
36-47	32.8	30.2	6.9	2.1	2.2	23.7	2.0	100.0	69.9	274
48-59	47.7	23.2	4.7	2.7	1.1	17.7	2.9	100.0	75.6	179
Toilet facility										
Improved, not shared ²	22.4	48.6	5.1	6.2	5.2	11.1	1.4	100.0	76.1	951
Non-improved or shared	10.6	34.5	8.0	10.7	5.9	29.2	1.2	100.0	53.1	851
Residence										
Urban	27.0	52.7	0.5	7.8	5.7	4.2	2.1	100.0	80.2	357
Rural	14.4	39.3	7.9	8.4	5.4	23.4	1.1	100.0	61.6	1,449
Region										
Hhohho	18.7	40.4	5.5	11.7	5.5	16.5	1.7	100.0	64.6	486
Manzini	15.6	52.2	5.5	5.2	5.0	15.3	1.2	100.0	73.3	545
Shiselweni	19.8	37.5	7.6	9.1	5.4	20.3	0.5	100.0	64.8	409
Lubombo	13.2	33.9	7.8	7.5	6.3	29.5	1.8	100.0	54.8	366
Mother's education										
No education	9.8	29.0	9.3	5.9	7.1	35.3	3.6	100.0	48.1	157
Lower primary	13.0	28.2	11.7	10.0	4.6	30.6	2.0	100.0	52.8	157
Higher primary	14.2	40.2	7.4	8.3	5.3	24.1	0.5	100.0	61.8	473
Secondary	16.4	47.2	6.0	8.7	4.0	16.3	1.3	100.0	69.7	601
High school	20.0	47.9	3.7	9.2	6.0	11.8	1.3	100.0	71.7	300
Tertiary	37.0	42.5	0.9	5.2	11.2	3.0	0.3	100.0	80.3	118
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	6.4	24.6	11.0	11.0	8.4	37.2	1.3	100.0	42.0	374
Second	15.0	40.0	7.2	7.2	5.8	24.0	0.7	100.0	62.2	388
Middle	15.2	45.0	6.1	10.7	3.6	18.0	1.3	100.0	66.3	364
Fourth	19.6	51.9	6.2	5.6	2.9	13.2	0.6	100.0	77.7	353
Highest	30.1	50.1	1.0	6.8	6.5	2.9	2.6	100.0	81.2	326
Total	16.9	42.0	6.4	8.3	5.5	19.6	1.3	100.0	65.3	1,806

Note: Total includes three births with information missing on toilet facility.

¹ Includes child using toilet/latrine, put/rinsed stools into toilet or latrine, and buried

² Non-shared facilities that are of the types: flush or pour flush toilet and ordinary or ventilated improved privy

NUTRITION OF CHILDREN AND ADULTS

Nelisiwe Sikhosana

This chapter first considers information from the 2006-07 SDHS relating to children's nutrition. Anthropometric measures of the nutritional status for children under age five are presented first. Breast-feeding and infant and young child feeding practices (IYCF) are then described. Data on anaemia prevalence among children under age 15 are reviewed. The chapter also looks at several summary indicators relating to micronutrient intake and supplementation among children under age five. The chapter next addresses questions relating to the nutritional status of adults including the prevalence of malnutrition and anaemia. The chapter also presents information for mothers of young children on the diversity of foods consumed during the 24-hour period before the survey and on micronutrient intake and supplementation among childbearing women.

11.1 NUTRITIONAL STATUS OF CHILDREN

Anthropometric data on height and weight collected in the 2006-07 SDHS permit the measurement and evaluation of the nutritional status of young children in Swaziland. This evaluation allows identification of subgroups of the child population that are at increased risk of faltered growth, disease, impaired mental development, and death.

11.1.1 Measurement of Nutritional Status among Young Children

In the 2006-07 SDHS, height and weight data were obtained for all children under age six living in the households selected for the SDHS sample, regardless of whether their mother was interviewed in the survey. Weight measurements were obtained using lightweight, bathroom-type scales with a digital screen designed and manufactured under the guidance of UNICEF. Height measurements were carried out using a measuring board produced by Shorr Productions. Children younger than 24 months were measured lying down (recumbent length) on the board, while standing height was measured for older children.

The height and weight data obtained in the SDHS were used to compute the three separate indices of children's nutritional status shown in Table 11.1: height-for-age, weight-for-height, and weight-for-age. The indices are calculated using new growth standards generated by WHO from data collected in a Multicentre Growth Reference Study (WHO, 2006). The study, whose sample included 8,440 children in six countries, was designed to provide standards for how children grow under optimal conditions. Children who fall more than two standard deviations below (-2 SD) the WHO Child Growth reference population median are considered undernourished, while those who fall more than three standard deviations below (-3 SD) the reference median are considered severely undernourished.

11.1.2 Results of Data Collection

Although data were collected for all children under age six, the analysis is limited to children under age five. Height and weight measurements were obtained for 94 percent of the 3,301 children under age five who were present in SDHS households at the time of the survey (see Table C.3). Of these children, 11 percent were considered to have implausibly high or low values for the height or weight measures or lacked data on the child's age in months (not shown in table). The following analysis focuses on the children for whom complete and plausible anthropometric and age data were collected.

Table 11.1 Nutritional status of children

Percentage of children under five years classified as malnourished according to three anthropometric indices of nutritional status: height-for-age, weight-for-height, and weight-for-age, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	He	eight-for-age			Weight-fo	or-height		Weight-for-age				
Background characteristic	Percentage below -3 SD	Percentage below -2 SD ¹	Mean Z- score (SD)	Percentage below -3 SD	Percentage below -2 SD ¹	Percentage above +2 SD	Mean Z- score (SD)	Percentage below -3 SD	Percentage below -2 SD ¹	Percentage above +2 SD	Mean Z- score (SD)	Number of children
Age in months												
<6	5 1	19.7	-0.3	1.0	29	22.3	0.9	0.0	53	5 5	0.3	222
6-8	4 7	12.3	-0.5	1.0	4.0	11.0	0.5	1.8	5.2	4.6	0.0	172
9-11	5.9	17.7	-0.5	2.4	7.1	12.3	0.4	1.0	8.4	3.6	-0.0	145
12-17	10.6	28.4	-1.2	11	3.8	12.3	0.6	0.8	6.7	5.0	-0.1	305
18-23	19.1	42.9	-1.7	1.2	3.5	11.5	0.7	1.3	7.5	2.3	-0.3	272
24-35	12.8	37.6	-1.6	0.5	0.9	11.3	0.7	0.9	4.6	1.5	-0.3	583
36-47	10.7	29.7	-1.5	0.9	2.2	8.7	0.6	0.5	4.5	1.0	-0.5	587
48-59	8.0	24.8	-1.3	0.5	1.5	7.0	0.5	0.7	5.0	1.1	-0.5	655
Sex	12.0	22.2	1.2		2.4	11.0	0.0	0.0		2.2	0.2	1 450
Male	12.0	32.2	-1.3	1.1	3.1	11.0	0.6	0.8	5./	2.2	-0.3	1,453
Female	0.0	25.6	-1.1	0.7	1.9	10.6	0.6	0.0	5.1	2.5	-0.2	1,400
Birth interval in months ²												
First birth ³	10.5	27.4	-1.3	1.0	2.2	10.4	0.6	0.4	5.0	1.5	-0.3	639
<24	12.0	34.2	-1.3	0.4	1.7	9.1	0.6	1.1	7.4	1.8	-0.3	235
24-47	7.9	29.4	-1.3	0.8	2.4	10.9	0.6	0.7	5.1	2.8	-0.3	762
48+	8.6	22.0	-1.0	0.9	3.5	11.6	0.6	0.7	3.8	2.5	-0.2	515
Size at birth ²												
Very small	(13.8)	(39.8)	(-1.7)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(6.5)	(0.4)	(0.0)	(7.0)	(0.0)	(-0.7)	38
Small	18.8	42.8	-1.7	1.4	2.5	8.1	0.4	1.4	10.3	1.0	-0.7	258
Average or larger	7.8	24.9	-1.1	0.7	2.6	11.4	0.6	0.5	4.2	2.6	-0.2	1,786
Missing	10.1	33.0	-1.3	2.8	2.8	6.7	0.3	2.8	4.7	0.0	-0.5	64
- Mother's interview status												
Interviewed Not interviewed but in	9.3	27.6	-1.2	0.8	2.5	10.7	0.6	0.7	5.0	2.2	-0.3	2,152
household	5.6	25.9	-0.9	3.7	6.8	12.1	0.6	0.0	3.9	7.9	-0.1	78
the household ⁴	13.8	33.3	-1.4	0.8	1.9	10.9	0.6	1.3	6.8	2.0	0.4	711
Mother's nutritional status⁵												
Thin (BMI<18.5)	(22.5)	(44.0)	(-1.6)	(5.1)	(9.7)	(5.5)	(0.0)	(5.1)	(19.8)	(0.0)	(-0.9)	34
Normal (BMI 18.5-24.9) Overwieght/obese	10.1	28.5	-1.2	1.2	3.3	7.7	0.4	0.7	5.2	1.5	-0.4	949
(BMI ≥25)	8.1	26.2	-1.2	0.5	1.8	13.4	0.7	0.5	4.4	2.8	-0.2	1,185
Missing	6.3	29.2	-0.8	0.0	3.5	12.3	0.7	0.0	4.5	11.6	0.1	53
Residence												
Urban	6.7	23.1	-0.8	0.8	3.2	14.9	0.7	0.0	4.5	5.1	-0.0	483
Rural	11.0	30.0	-1.3	0.9	2.3	10.0	0.6	1.0	5.6	1.8	-0.3	2,457
Region												
Hhohho	11.2	31.6	-13	13	31	14 1	07	0.8	6.7	2.8	-0.3	755
Manzini	10.0	29.5	-1.2	11	2.3	9.4	0.6	1.0	5.7	2.0	-0.3	869
Shiselweni	11.1	28.9	-1.3	0.8	2.1	8.5	0.5	0.6	5.2	2.5	-0.4	745
Lubombo	8.4	24.4	-1.2	0.2	2.5	11.6	0.6	0.7	3.7	1.9	-0.2	571
Mother's education	10.2	27 5	4 -	1 1	2.0	0.1	0.5	07	c 7	0.0	0.0	044
INO EQUCATION	10.3	37.5	-1.5	1.1	2.0	8.1 C 2	0.5	0./	b./	0.0	-0.6	211
Lower primary	11.4	32.1	-1.5	1.ŏ 1.0	5.ð	6.3 0.1	0.4	2.3	4.6	0.6	-0.5	210
Figner primary	12.8	33.3 25.9	-1.3	1.0	∠.ŏ 2.0	9.1	0.5	0.6	0.1 4 7	1.9	-0.4	593 720
Secondary High school	0.ŏ 0.1	20.0 10.0	-1.2	1.0	∠.ŏ 1 1	10.4	0.5	0.4	4./	1./	-0.3	/ 32
Tortion/	0.1 2.2	19.0	-0.8	0.0	1.1	10.4	0.0	0.4	4.4	5.0	0.1	332 120
renuary	5.2	10.5	-0.0	0.0	1.0	19.0	1.0	0.0	0.9	9.4	0.5	150
											Con	tinued

Table 11.1—Continued												
	Hei	ght-for-age			Weight-for	-height			Weight-fo	or-age		
	-		Mean				Mean				Mean	
	Percentage	Percentage	Z-	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Z-	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Z-	Number
Background	below	below	score	below	below	above	score	below	below	above	score	of
characteristic	-3 SD	-2 SD1	(SD)	-3 SD	-2 SD1	+2 SD	(SD)	-3 SD	-2 SD1	+2 SD	(SD)	children
Wealth quintile												
Lowest	13.6	38.3	-1.5	1.0	2.6	9.2	0.5	1.2	7.5	1.3	-0.5	682
Second	11.8	32.3	-1.4	0.9	2.5	8.9	0.6	0.4	4.4	1.1	(0.4)	693
Middle	9.3	26.5	-1.3	1.2	3.2	11.5	0.6	0.8	5.3	2.4	(0.3)	580
Fourth	10.0	25.3	-1.2	0.7	2.0	11.9	0.7	1.1	5.5	2.5	(0.2)	543
Highest	4.4	16.6	-0.7	0.4	1.9	13.9	0.7	0.3	3.8	5.6	0.1	442
Total	10.3	28.9	-1.2	0.9	2.5	10.8	0.6	0.8	5.4	2.3	(0.3)	2,940

Note: Table is based on children who slept in the household the night before the interview. Each of the indices is expressed in standard deviation units (SD) from the median of the WHO Child Growth Standards. Table is based on children with valid dates of birth (month and year) and valid measurement of both height and weight. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted number of children.

¹ Includes children who are below -3 standard deviations (SD) from the International Reference Population median

² Excludes children whose mothers were not interviewed

³ First-born twins (triplets, etc.) are counted as first births because they do not have a previous birth interval.

⁴ Includes children whose mothers are deceased

⁵ Excludes children whose mothers were not weighed and measured. Mother's nutritional status in terms of BMI (Body Mass Index) is presented in Table 11.10

⁶ For women who were not interviewed, information is taken from the Household Questionnaire. Excludes children whose mothers were not listed in the Household Questionnaire.

11.1.3 Nutritional Status Indices

Height-for-age

A child who is below -2 SD from the median of the WHO reference population in terms of height-for-age is considered stunted or short for his/her age. Stunting is an indicator of linear growth retardation. It reflects failure to receive adequate nutrition over a long period of time and is also affected by recurrent and chronic illness. The height-for-age index, therefore, provides a measure of the long-term effects of malnutrition in a population and is not sensitive to recent, short-term changes in dietary intake.

At the national level, 29 percent of children under five are stunted, while the proportion severely stunted is 10 percent. Stunting is highest (43 percent) among children age 18-23 months and lowest (12 percent) among children age 6-8 months (Table 11.1). The proportion stunted among male children (32 percent) is higher than that among female children (26 percent).

The stunting level varies markedly with both the birth interval and the size of the child at birth. Around one-third of children born less than 24 months after an older sibling are stunted compared with just over one-fifth of children born 48 months or more after their older brother or sister. Forty-three percent of children reported by their mothers as small at birth are stunted compared with 25 percent of children reported as being average or large at birth.

Urban children (23 percent) are less likely to be stunted than rural children (30 percent). Looking at regional patterns, Hhohho region (32 percent) has the highest proportion of stunted children, while Lubombo region has the lowest (24 percent). Education and wealth are both inversely related to stunting levels. For example, children of mothers with tertiary education have the lowest level of stunting (11 percent), while children whose mothers have no education have the highest level of stunting (38 percent).

Weight-for-height

The weight-for-height index measures body mass in relation to body height or length and describes current nutritional status. Children whose weight-for-height is below minus two standard deviations (-2 SD) from the WHO Child Growth Standards reference population median are considered to be wasted, i.e., too thin for their height. Wasting represents the failure to receive adequate nutrition in the period immediately preceding the survey and may be the result of inadequate food intake or a recent episode of illness causing loss of weight and the onset of malnutrition.

Nationally, as Table 11.1 shows, 3 percent of children are wasted, and the proportion of severely wasted children is 1 percent. The wasting level peaks at 7 percent among children age 9-11 months. Other differences in the wasting level are generally minor. For example, 3 percent of urban children are wasted compared with 2 percent of rural children.

The weight-for-height index can also be used to assess the extent to which children's weight-forheight exceeds that considered normal. Children whose weight-for-height falls above plus two standard deviations (+2 SD) from the WHO reference population median are considered too heavy for their height.

Nationally, 11 percent of children are too heavy for their height. The proportion of children considered too heavy decreases with age. It is somewhat higher among urban than rural children. Children whose mothers have a tertiary education are more than twice as likely as children whose mothers never attended school to be too heavy (20 percent and 8 percent, respectively).

Weight-for-age

Weight-for-age is a composite index of height-for-age and weight-for-height. It takes into account both acute and chronic malnutrition. Children whose weight-for-age is below minus two standard deviations (-2 SD) from the WHO reference population median are classified as underweight. Children whose weight-for-age is below minus three standard deviations (-3 SD) are considered severely underweight.

The prevalence of underweight children nationally is 5 percent, and the prevalence of severely underweight children is 1 percent (Table 11.1). The proportion underweight increases with age, peaking at 8 percent among children age 9-11 months.

Table 11.1 also shows the proportion of children whose weight-for-age falls above plus two standard deviations (+2 SD) from the WHO reference population median; these children are considered to be overweight. Nationally, only 2 percent of children are overweight for their age.

11.2 INITIATION OF BREASTFEEDING

Early initiation of breastfeeding is encouraged for a number of reasons. Mothers benefit from early suckling because it stimulates breast milk production and facilitates the release of oxytocin, which helps the contraction of the uterus and reduces postpartum blood loss. The first breast milk contains colostrum, which is highly nutritious and has antibodies that protect the newborn from diseases. Early initiation of breastfeeding also fosters bonding between mother and child.

Table 11.2 shows the percentage of all children born in the five years before the survey by breastfeeding status and background characteristics. For last-born children in this period who were ever breastfed, the table also considers the proportions breastfed in the first hour and the first day after birth and the proportion given a prelacteal feed, i.e., the proportion receiving something other than breast milk

during the first three days after birth. The practice of giving prelacteal feeds is discouraged because it limits the frequency of suckling by the infant and exposes the baby to the risk of infection.

Overall, 87 percent of children were breastfed at some point (i.e., ever breastfed). Although most children were breastfed, children whose delivery was assisted by a health professional or who were born in a health facility are more likely to have been breastfed than children whose delivery was assisted by a traditional birth attendant or other person, or children born at home.

Looking at the timing of the first feeding, 67 percent of last-born children were breastfed within one hour of birth, and 85 percent were breastfed within one day after delivery. Differentials in the timing of the initiation of breastfeeding by sex and urban-rural residence are small. However, breastfeeding was initiated somewhat earlier for infants in Hhohho and Manzini than for infants in Shiselweni and Lubombo. The likelihood that breastfeeding was initiated shortly after birth tends to increase with the mother's education and wealth quintile. Breastfeeding was more likely to be initiated early among children delivered with the assistance of a health professional or born in a health facility than among children whose delivery was assisted by a traditional birth attendant or other person, or children born at home.

The proportion of infants who received a prelacteal feed during the first three days of life was 19 percent. Mothers in Lubombo region (27 percent) were more likely to practice prelacteal feeding than mothers in the other regions. Children delivered at home were more than twice as likely as those born in a health facility to receive a prelacteal feed (29 percent and 14 percent, respectively).

Table 11.2 Initial breastfeeding

Percentage of children born in the five years preceding the survey who were ever breastfed, and for last-born children in the five years preceding the survey ever breastfed, the percentage who started breastfeeding within one hour and within one day of birth and the percentage who received a prelacteal feed, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Breastfeed children b	ling among orn in past	ig : st Among last-born children ever breastfed				
	five	years Number of	Percentage who started	Percentage who started	Percentage who	Number of last-born	
	Percentage	children	breastfeeding	breastfeeding	received a	children	
Background	ever	born in past	within 1 hour	within 1 day	prelacteal	ever	
characteristic	breastfed	five years	of birth	of birth'	feed ²	breastfed	
Sex							
Male	86.7	1,428	64.9	83.7	20.6	1,026	
Female	87.1	1,401	68.7	87.3	17.4	958	
Residence							
Urban	85.7	630	67.9	88.7	16.5	439	
Rural	87.2	2,199	66.4	84.5	19.8	1,545	
Region							
Hhohho	88.0	766	70.9	90.7	13.5	534	
Manzini	85.2	870	73.5	88.7	16.4	601	
Shiselweni	86.7	615	60.9	78.8	21.8	431	
Lubombo	88.2	577	57.5	80.8	27.2	418	
Mother's education							
No education	85.9	263	65.5	84.4	20.5	172	
Lower primary	86.2	245	65.8	82.0	22.2	173	
Higher primary	87.5	748	67.3	84.0	19.6	525	
Secondary	87.2	951	67.2	86.5	18.9	659	
High school	86./	45/	64.1	85.8	16.6	335	
Tertiary	85.5	166	/1.1	90.9	17.6	121	
Assistance at delivery							
Health professional ³	91.0	2,102	68.7	87.3	15.6	1,488	
I raditional birth attendant	74.1	149	56.0	78.3	22.0	106	
Other	/4.3	448	60.8	/8./	32.4	295	
ino one	60.2	125	00.1	04.1	29.0	95	
Place of delivery							
Health facility	90.7	1,332	70.0	89.0	14.3	929	
At home	75.5	715	61.1	79.4	29.4	489	
Other	91.3	//8	66.1	84./	18.0	566	
Wealth quintile							
Lowest	82.4	572	60.2	79.6	25.6	385	
Second	86.5	603	68.7	87.2	18.3	406	
Middle	88.1	554	65.4	83.6	16.7	393	
FOURTH	90.0	554	69.2	85.1 01.2	17.0	400	
rignest	07.0	540	09./	91.3	10.0	401	
Total	86.9	2,829	66.7	85.4	19.1	1,984	

Note: Table is based on births in the past five years whether the children were living or dead at the time of interview. Total includes seven unweighted children with information missing on assistance at delivery and six unweighted children with information missing on place of delivery.

¹ Includes children who started breastfeeding within one hour of birth

² Children given something other than breast milk during the first three days of life

³ Doctor, nurse/midwife, or nursing assistant

11.3 BREASTFEEDING STATUS BY AGE

UNICEF and WHO recommend that children be exclusively breastfed during the first 6 months of life and that children be given solid or semi-solid complementary foods in addition to continued breastfeeding from age 6 to 24 months (or more), when the child is fully weaned. Information on complementary feeding was obtained for the youngest child born in the three-year period before the

SDHS by asking mothers about the foods and liquids given to the child the day and night before the survey.

Exclusive breastfeeding is recommended because breast milk is uncontaminated and contains all the nutrients necessary for children in the first few months of life. In addition, the mother's antibodies in breast milk provide immunity to disease. Early supplementation is discouraged for several reasons. First, it exposes infants to pathogens and increases the risk of infection. Second, it decreases infants' intake of breast milk and therefore suckling, which reduces breast milk production. Third, in low-resource settings, supplementary food is often nutritionally inferior.

Table 11.3 presents the percent distribution of youngest children under three years living with the mother by breastfeeding status and the percentage of children under three years using a bottle with a nipple, according to age in months. Overall, the prevalence of exclusive breastfeeding during the first six months is 32 percent. While slightly more than half (53 percent) of infants less than one month are receiving only breast milk, only 17 percent of children age 4-5 months are exclusively breastfed.

Table 11.3 Breastfeeding status by age

Percent distribution of youngest children under three years who are living with their mother by breastfeeding status and the percentage currently breastfeeding; and the percentage of all children under three years using a bottle with a nipple, according to age in months, Swaziland 2006-07

			Breastfeeding and consuming:					Number of			
Age in months	Not breast- feeding	Exclusively breastfed	Plain water only	Non-milk liquids/ juice	Other milk	Comple- mentary foods	Total	Percentage currently breast- feeding	youngest children under three years	Percentage using a bottle with a nipple ¹	Number of children
0-1 2-3	10.8 9.4	53.1 36.1	8.9 4.4	4.2 1.7	4.3 12.4	18.8 36.0	100.0 100.0	89.2 90.6	64 90	26.9 31.5	65 93
4-5 6-8	10.3 18.4	16.7	4.4	0.0	3.6	64.9 75.5	100.0	89.7 81.6	107 157	29.1 34.4	108 160
9-11	15.4	0.0	0.0	1.0	0.0	83.6	100.0	84.6	135	17.7	141
12-17 18-23	27.8 61.9	0.6 0.0	0.9 0.0	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	70.7 38.1	100.0 100.0	72.2 38.1	260 216	20.7 10.3	283 248
24-35	96.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.8	100.0	3.8	324	4.3	483
0-3	9.9	43.2	6.3	2.7	9.0	28.9	100.0	90.1	153	29.6	158
0-5 6-9	10.1 18.5	32.3 3.1	$5.5 \\ 0.8$	1.6 1.1	6.8 0.0	43.7 76.5	100.0 100.0	89.9 81.5	260 192	29.4 31.4	265 199
12-15	21.6	0.8	1.2	0.0	0.0	76.4	100.0	78.4	194	21.3	206
12-23	43.2	0.3	0.5	0.0	0.0	56.0	100.0	56.8	476	15.8	531
20-23	69.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	30.7	100.0	30.7	144	8.3	167

Note: Breastfeeding status refers to a 24-hour period (yesterday and the past night). Children who are classified as breastfeeding and consuming plain water only consumed no liquid or solid supplements. The categories not breastfeeding, exclusively breastfed, breastfeeding and consuming plain water, non-milk liquids/juice, other milk, and complementary foods (solids and semi-solids) are hierarchical and mutually exclusive, and their percentages add to 100 percent. Thus children who receive breast milk and non-milk liquids and who do not receive complementary foods are classified in the non-milk liquid category even though they may also get plain water. Any children who get complementary foods are classified in that category as long as they are breastfeeding as well.

¹ Based on all children under three years

Figure 11.1 shows that complementary feeding starts early. Nineteen percent of infants less than one month, 36 percent of infants 2-3 months, and 65 percent of infants 4-5 months are given complementary foods (semi-solids and solids) in addition to breast milk. Although many children receive complementary foods too early, complementary feeding is started for some children too late. All children age 6-9 months should receive complementary foods, but Table 11.3 shows that only 77 percent of children in this age group are actually consuming complementary foods.



Figure 11.1 Infant Feeding Practices by Age

Bottle-feeding is still common in Swaziland; 29 percent of infants less than six months are fed with a bottle with a nipple. The use of a bottle with a nipple, regardless of the contents (breast milk, formula, or any other liquid), requires hygienic handling to avoid contamination that may cause infection in the infant.

11.4 DURATION AND FREQUENCY OF BREASTFEEDING

Table 11.4 presents information on the duration of breastfeeding among children born in the last three years, and on the frequency of breastfeeding among children under six months of age. The estimates of the median and mean durations of breastfeeding are based on current status data, that is, the proportion of children born in the three years preceding the survey who were being breastfeed at the time of the survey.

The median duration of any breastfeeding in Swaziland is almost 17 months (Table 11.4). Reflecting the tendency to initiate complementary feeds early, the median duration of exclusive breastfeeding is much shorter (0.7 months). The median duration of predominant breastfeeding (exclusive breastfeeding or breastfeeding in combination with plain water, water-based liquids, or juices) is 1.6 months. These durations do not vary much by sex of the child, educational attainment of the mother, household wealth, or urban-rural residence.

It is important for an infant to breastfeed frequently as this improves milk production. Almost all breastfeeding children less than six months of age (97 percent) were breastfed at least six times during the 24 hours preceding the survey, which meets the WHO/UNICEF recommendations for optimal breastfeeding. The mean number of daytime feeds is 8.3, while the mean number of nighttime feeds is 6.9.

Table 11.4 Median duration and frequency of breastfeeding

Median duration of any breastfeeding, exclusive breastfeeding, and predominant breastfeeding among children born in the three years preceding the survey, percentage of breastfeeding children under six months living with the mother who were breastfed six or more times in the 24 hours preceding the survey, and mean number of feeds (day/night), by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

				Frequency of breastfeeding among children under six months ²					
	Median dura among childre	tion (months) of en born in the p	breastfeeding ast three years ¹	Percentage breastfed 6+	Mean	Mean			
Background	Any	Exclusive	Predominant	times in past	number of	number of	Number of		
characteristic	breastfeeding	breastfeeding	breastfeeding ³	24 hours	day feeds	night feeds	children		
Sex									
Male	16.9	0.9	1.6	96.1	7.7	6.7	122		
Female	16.5	0.7	1.4	97.0	8.9	7.1	107		
Residence									
Urban	17.0	0.6	0.7	91.6	7.3	6.7	49		
Rural	16.7	1.0	1.8	97.8	8.5	7.0	181		
Region									
Hhohho	17.8	1.5	2.1	97.1	8.0	8.0	61		
Manzini	16.1	0.5	0.6	93.4	7.9	6.5	63		
Shiselweni	15.7	1.5	1.8	98.4	8.0	5.6	54		
Lubombo	16.6	1.5	1.8	97.6	9.4	7.6	51		
Mother's education									
No education	(18.0)	(2.0)	(2.3)	(100.0)	(9.4)	(7.6)	30		
Lower primary	*	*	*	*	*	*	15		
Higher primary	16.7	0.9	2.0	97.3	8.4	5.9	57		
Secondary	16.6	0.7	1.0	96.4	7.9	7.2	76		
High school	(16.0)	(1.3)	(1.9)	(98.1)	(8.2)	(7.1)	44		
Tertiary	*	*	*	*	*	*	7		
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	17.2	1.9	2.3	98.4	8.3	6.3	54		
Second	(17.6)	(1.1)	(2.1)	(100.0)	(9.5)	(7.9)	47		
Middle	(16.9)	(0.7)	(0.9)	(100.0)	(8.6)	(7.1)	43		
Fourth	(16.3)	(0.6)	(1.1)	(91.7)	(7.5)	(6.9)	52		
Highest	(13.9)	(0.6)	(0.6)	(91.3)	(7.3)	(6.2)	33		
Total	16.7	0.7	1.6	96.5	8.3	6.9	229		
Mean for all children	15.7	2.6	3.1	na	na	na	na		

Note: Median and mean durations are based on current status. Includes children living and deceased at the time of the survey. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted children. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted children and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ It is assumed that non-last-born children and last-born children not currently living with the mother are not currently breastfeeding.

² Excludes children without a valid answer on the number of times breastfed

³ Either exclusively breastfed or received breast milk and plain water, and/or non-milk liquids only

11.5 DIETARY DIVERSITY AMONG YOUNG CHILDREN

In the 2006-07 SDHS, women who had at least one child under the age of three living with them were asked questions about the types of foods and liquids their youngest child had consumed during a 24-hour period prior to the survey. Mothers were also asked about the number of times the child had eaten solid or semi-solid foods during the period.

The results of these questions are subject to a number of limitations. First, the results do not apply to the full universe of young children. Some children under age three were excluded from consideration because they were not the youngest child under age three or because they were not living with the mother. The dietary data also are subject to recall errors on the mother's part. In addition, the mother may not be able to report fully on the child's intake of food and liquids if the child was fed by other individuals during the period. Despite these problems, the SDHS data on the types of foods and liquids young children are consuming are useful in assessing the diversity of children's diets.

11.5.1 Foods and Liquids Consumed by Infants and Young Children

Appropriate nutrition includes feeding children a variety of foods to ensure that nutrient requirements are met. Vitamin A-rich fruits and vegetables should be consumed daily. Although eating a range of fruits and vegetables, especially those rich in vitamin A, is important, studies have shown that plant-based complementary foods by themselves are insufficient to meet the needs for certain micronutrients (WHO/UNICEF, 1998). Therefore, it has been advised that meat, poultry, fish, or eggs should be eaten daily, or as often as possible. Fat is also important in the diets of infants and young children because it provides essential fatty acids, facilitates absorption of fat-soluble vitamins (such as vitamin A), and enhances dietary energy density and palatability. Tea and coffee contain compounds that inhibit iron absorption and are not recommended for children. Sugary drinks and excessive juice consumption should be avoided because, other than energy, they contribute little to the diet and as a result decrease the child's appetite for more nutritious foods (PAHO/WHO, 2003).

Table 11.5 is based on information reported by mothers on the foods and liquids consumed by their youngest child during the 24-hour period prior to the survey. As expected, the proportion of children who consumed foods or liquids included in the various food groups generally increased with the age of the child. Children still being breastfed are less likely to consume the various types of foods than children who are not being breastfed.

Table 11.5 Foods and liquids consumed by children in the day and night preceding the interview

Percentage of youngest children under three years living with the mother who consumed specific foods in the day and night preceding the interview, by breastfeeding status and age, Swaziland 2006-07

						Solid	or semi	-solid foo	ods						
	Infant formula	Liquids Other milk ¹	Other liquids ²	Fortified baby foods	Food made from grains ³	Fruits and vegetables rich in vitamin A ⁴ BREAS	Other fruits and vege- tables	Food made from roots and tubers NG CHIL	Food made from legumes and nuts .DREN	Meat, fish, poultry, and eggs	Cheese, yogurt, other milk product	Any solid or semi- solid food	Food made with oil, fat and butter	Sugary foods	Number of children
0-1	10.3	8.1	4.7	8.6	12.3	0.0	2.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	1.6	21.0	0.0	1.6	57
2-3 4-5	21.0	20.1	15.0	30.4	37.3 70.9	2.0	1. 4 3.0	0.0	2.5	2.5 14 3	9.0 13.7	39.7 72.4	13.4	0.9 13 5	96
6-8	16.7	26.0	32.9	22.3	91.1	40.2	16.2	23.7	15.0	25.1	31.3	92.5	43.9	27.6	128
9-11	12.4	24.9	58.1	20.5	95.4	61.7	29.0	36.5	22.6	46.7	43.5	97.6	60.4	31.8	114
12-17	11.4	23.1	67.6	8.5	94.7	76.8	35.7	32.9	28.7	51.7	35.1	97.9	70.2	43.9	188
18-23 24-35	4.0 *	19.8 *	70.0 *	11.4 *	98.7 *	83.3 *	36.1 *	32.2 *	31.6 *	59.4 *	26.1 *	100.0	60.5 *	49.1 *	82 12
6-23	11.8	23.7	57.2	15.1	94.6	65.4	29.4	31.3	24.4	45.2	34.6	96.8	59.9	37.9	512
Total	14.2	23.9	43.1	16.1	79.4	47.3	21.0	22.8	19.2	33.7	27.4	82.0	43.4	28.6	759
						NON-BRI	EASTFEE	DING C	HILDREN						
12-17 18-23	34.2 12.3	55.6 38.0	68.6 78.0	13.9 6.1	97.1 97.9	69.0 70.3	39.5 33.8	43.5 29.4	22.3 34.4	56.3 53.9	55.0 34.5	97.1 97.9	68.1 70.3	38.7 50.9	72 133
24-35	0.6	30.5	02.9	4.1	90.5	/2.0	37.2	31.3	31.9	50.9	39.0	90./	//.1	20.5	312
6-23	32.4	52.2	70.5	14.5	98.1	66.3	34.3	34.1	27.7	50.0	41.7	98.1	65.1	43.9	255
Total	21.1	42.4	74.7	9.6	95.7	66.8	34.7	31.1	28.7	52.5	38.8	96.4	68.8	48.7	593

Note: Breastfeeding status and food consumed refer to a 24-hour period (yesterday and the past night). An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted children and has been suppressed.

¹ Other milk includes fresh, tinned, and powdered cow or other animal milk.

² Doesn't include plain water

³ Includes fortified baby food, porridge, and gruel

⁴ Includes pumpkin, carrots, red sweet potatoes; dark green leafy vegetables such as cassava leaves, spinach, okra, and blackjack and pumpkin leaves; fruits such as mangoes, papayas, oranges, and guavas

The results in Table 11.5 document the early introduction of solid and semi-solid foods into the diets of infants in Swaziland. For example, 40 percent of breastfeeding infants age 2-3 months are receiving solid and semi-solid foods, with 37 percent given food made from grain, 22 percent given infant formula, and 13 percent given fortified baby foods. The table also highlights other issues relating to young children's diets. Of particular concern is the fact that around one-third of children age 6-23 months, whether breastfeeding or not, did not consume any vitamin A-rich food during the 24-hour period before the survey. Consumption of meat, fish, poultry and eggs and cheese, yogurt and other milk products also is important for balanced physical and mental development. However, many children in Swaziland are not consuming these foods on a daily basis. For example, among non-breastfeeding children age 6-23 months, only half ate meat, fish, poultry, or eggs at least once in the 24 hours prior to the survey and only 42 percent consumed cheese, yogurt, or other milk products.

11.5.2 Infant and Young Child Feeding (IYCF) Practices

Appropriate infant and young child feeding (IYCF) practices include introduction of solid/semisolid foods at age 6 months and increasing the amount and variety of foods as the child gets older, while maintaining frequent breastfeeding. Guidelines have been established with respect to these practices for children age 6-23 months (PAHO/WHO, 2003; WHO, 2005).

Table 11.6 presents several summary IYCF indicators. The indicators take into account the percentage of children for whom feeding practices met minimum standards with respect to food diversity (i.e., the number of food groups consumed) and the consumption of breast milk or other milk or milk products. Breastfed children are considered fed according to the minimum standards if they consume foods from at least three food groups.¹ Non-breastfed children are considered fed in accordance with the minimum standards if they consume milk or milk products and four food groups (including milk products).

According to the results presented in Figure 11.2, 70 percent of children age 6-23 months were fed according to minimum standards with respect to food diversity. Among breastfed children age 6-23 months, about three-quarters are fed according to minimum standards (at least three food groups), while among non-breastfed children age 6-23 months, 60 percent are fed according to the minimum standards (at least four food groups).

Table 11.6 shows the variation in the proportion of children fed according to the IYCF diversity standards by background characteristics. The results indicate that boys and girls are equally likely to be fed according to the minimum food diversity standards. Looking at age, the main difference in the proportion fed according to the minimum standards is between children age 6-8 months (50 percent) and children 9 months and older (72-78 percent). Urban children (76 percent) are somewhat more likely than rural children (68 percent) to be fed according minimum diversity standards. The proportion fed according to the minimum standards is lowest in Shiselweni (62 percent) and highest in Manzini (76 percent). Although not uniform, the proportion fed according the minimum standards tends to rise with mother's level of education and wealth quintile.

¹ Food groups used in the assessment of minimum standard of feeding practices include: infant formula, milk other than breast milk, cheese or yogurt or other milk products; foods made from grains, roots, and tubers including porridge and fortified baby food from grains; fruits and vegetables rich in vitamin A; other fruits and vegetables; eggs; meat, poultry, fish, and shellfish (and organ meats); beans, peas, and nuts; and foods made with oil, fat, or butter.

Table 11.6 Infant and young child feeding (IYCF) practices

Percentage of youngest children age 6-23 months living with their mother who are fed according to three IYCF feeding practices based on number of food groups consumed and number of times fed during the day and night preceding the survey, by breastfeeding status and background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Amonş children perce	g breastfed 6-23 months, ntage fed:	Among 6-23 m	non-breast nonths, per	fed children centage fed:	Among all children 6-23 months, percentage fed:		
		Number of			Number of	Breast		Number of
		breastfed	Milk		non-breastfed	milk or	3 + or	all children
Background	3 + food	children	or milk	4+ food	children	milk	4 + food	6-23
characteristic	groups	5-23 months	products ²	groups	6-23 months	products	groups ³	months
Age								
6-8	52.6	128	92.9	(40.3)	29	98.7	50.4	157
9-11	77.2	114	80.9	*	21	97.1	72.8	135
12-17	81.7	188	74.8	66.6	72	93.0	77.5	260
18-23	87.2	82	53.8	62.3	133	71.4	71.8	216
Sex								
Male	74.3	267	71.5	60.8	131	90.7	69.9	398
Female	74.4	245	60.9	59.0	125	86.8	69.2	369
Residence								
Urban	81.7	107	79.7	61.8	46	93.9	75.7	153
Rural	72.4	405	63.4	59.5	209	87.5	68.0	615
Region								
Hhohho	72.4	140	55.7	53.5	61	86.6	66.7	201
Manzini	78.3	160	79.7	70.2	83	93.0	75.5	243
Shiselweni	66.1	102	74.0	55.9	60	90.4	62.3	163
Lubombo	78.8	110	47.9	55.3	51	83.6	71.4	160
Mother's education								
No education	(62.3)	46	20.7	*	11	84.5	56.2	57
Lower primary	(70.7)	48	44.2	*	21	83.0	67.3	69
Higher primary	73.0	153	58.5	44.1	63	87.9	64.6	215
Secondary	75.3	173	66.7	61.4	94	88.2	70.4	267
High school	82.9	77	84.4	(73.5)	49	94.0	79.3	125
Tertiary	*	16	97.8	*	17	(98.9)	(84.8)	34
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	67.3	119	62.7	53.9	53	88.5	63.2	171
Second	76.5	121	48.0	(56.3)	48	85.3	70.8	169
Middle	70.9	108	62.4	59.7	61	86.4	66.9	170
Fourth	78.9	90	72.0	(58.6)	45	90.7	72.2	135
Highest	81.5	73	88.2	71.4	49	95.3	77.5	122
Total	74.3	512	66.3	59.9	255	88.8	69.5	767

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted children. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted children and has been suppressed.

¹ Food groups: a) infant formula, milk other than breast milk, cheese or yogurt or other milk products; b) foods made from grains, roots, and tubers, including porridge, fortified baby food from grains; c) vitamin A-rich fruits and vegetables; d) other fruits and vegetables; e) eggs; f) meat, poultry, fish, and shellfish (and organ meats); g) legumes and nuts; h) foods made with oil, fat, butter

 $^{\rm 2}$ Includes commercial infant formula, fresh, tinned and powdered animal milk, and cheese, yogurt, and other milk products

³ 3+ food groups for breastfed children and 4+ food groups for non-breastfed children



Figure 11.2 Percentage of Children Age 6-23 Months Who Received Food From the Recommended Minimum Number of Food Groups (Daily)

11.6 USE OF IODIZED SALT

Iodine is an important micronutrient. Dietary deficiency of iodine constitutes a major, global public health concern. A lack of sufficient iodine is known to cause goitre, cretinism (a severe form of neurological defect), spontaneous abortion, premature birth, infertility, stillbirth, and increased child mortality. Iodine deficiency disorder (IDD) is the single most common cause of preventable mental retardation and brain damage in the world.

In the 2006-07 SDHS, a rapid test was used to determine the presence or absence of iodine in the salt used for cooking in the household. The test kit consisted of ampoules of a stabilized starch solution and a weak acid-based solution. A drop of the starch solution was squeezed onto a salt sample from the household. A change in colour indicated the presence of iodine.

Table 11.7 shows that salt was tested in 93 percent of the households sampled in the 2006-07 SDHS. The overall percentage of households using iodized salt is 80 percent. The largest differential in household use of iodized salt is between households in the lowest wealth quintiles and those in the highest wealth quintile (76 percent and 83 percent, respectively).

Table 11.7 Presence of iodized salt in household

Among all households, percentage tested for iodine content and percentage with no salt; and among households with salt tested, percent distribution by level of iodine in salt (parts per million or ppm), according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

-								
	Amor househo percer	ng all Ilds, the ntage		Among dis				
Background	With salt	With no	Number of	None	Inadequate	Adequate		Number of
characteristic	tested	salt	households	(0 ppm)	(<15 ppm)	(15+ ppm)	Total	households
Residence								
Urban	93.1	6.9	1,565	3.0	15.3	81.7	100.0	1,457
Rural	93.1	6.9	3,278	2.4	18.5	79.1	100.0	3,052
Region								
Hhohho	95.1	4.9	1,370	1.8	14.8	83.4	100.0	1,303
Manzini	94.4	5.6	1,537	3.1	19.0	77.9	100.0	1,451
Shiselweni	90.1	9.9	931	3.3	16.8	79.9	100.0	839
Lubombo	91.2	8.8	1,005	2.3	19.5	78.2	100.0	916
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	89.6	10.4	824	2.9	20.8	76.3	100.0	738
Second	93.1	6.9	805	2.8	20.2	77.0	100.0	749
Middle	93.3	6.7	866	2.5	19.8	77.7	100.0	808
Fourth	93.3	6.7	1,064	2.5	15.0	82.5	100.0	993
Highest	95.1	4.9	1,284	2.5	14.2	83.3	100.0	1,221
Total	93.1	6.9	4,843	2.6	17.5	79.9	100.0	4,509

11.7 PREVALENCE OF ANAEMIA IN CHILDREN

Anaemia, a low level of haemoglobin in the blood, decreases the amount of oxygen reaching the tissues and organs of the body and reduces their capacity to function. It is associated with impaired cognitive and motor development in children. Although there are many causes of anaemia, inadequate intake of iron, folate, vitamin B_{12} , or other nutrients usually accounts for the majority of cases in most populations. However, malaria accounts for a significant proportion of anaemia in children under five in malaria-endemic areas. Other causes of anaemia include thalassemia, sickle cell disease, and intestinal worm infestation. Promotion of the use of insecticide-treated bednets and deworming medication every six months for children under age five are some of the important measures to reduce anaemia prevalence among children.

The procedures used in collecting information on anaemia levels among children, women, and men are described in Chapter 1. This section focuses on presenting the results for children from whom samples were obtained for haemoglobin measurement. Given that haemoglobin requirements differ substantially depending on altitude, the anaemia data have been adjusted for altitude using the formulas recommended by the U.S. Centres for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC, 1998).

11.7.1 Children Age 6-59 Months

Table 11.8.1 shows the percentage of children age 6-59 months classified as having anaemia, by background characteristics. Overall, 42 percent of children 6-59 months have some degree of anaemia. About one in five of these children are mildly anaemic, 19 percent have moderate anaemia, and less than 1 percent have severe anaemia. There is an association between the age of a child and the prevalence of anaemia. Children less than two years of age are affected more by anaemia, compared with children two

years and above. Severe anaemia, which has a serious effect on the health of an individual, is highest among children age 12-17 months (3 percent).

Boys were found to be anaemic slightly more often than girls (44 percent and 40 percent, respectively). The anaemia rate is higher among children living in urban areas (50 percent) than in rural areas (40 percent). Anaemia prevalence among children varies across regions, ranging from 38 percent in Lubombo to 45 percent in Manzini region. The variation in anaemia rates by mother's education and wealth quintile is not uniform; however, children whose mothers have tertiary education are markedly less likely to be anaemic than other children.

Table 11.8.1 Prevalence of anaemia	a in children 6-59	months			
Percentage of children age 6-59 n Swaziland 2006-07	nonths classified	as having anae	mia, by bac	kground cł	naracteristics,
	Anaemia stat	tus by haemoglo	bin level		
Background characteristic	Mild (10.0-10.9 g/dl)	Moderate (7.0-9.9 g/dl)	Severe (below 7.0 g/dl)	Any anaemia	Number of children
Age in months	((
6-8	31.6	32.1	1.4	65.2	148
9-11	33.2	35.2	0.9	69.3	145
12-17	24.0	36.4	3.1	63.6	318
18-23	24.9	38.7	1.3	64.9	266
24-35	23.9	18.1	0.6	42.6	564
36-47	17.6	7.4	0.2	25.2	590
48-59	16.7	7.9	0.0	24.6	650
Sex					
Male	22.3	20.4	0.7	43.5	1,325
Female	21.3	18.0	0.9	40.1	1,356
Mother's interview status					
Interviewed	22.6	20.8	0.9	44.3	1,883
Not interviewed but in household	27.8	24.4	0.0	52.2	68
Not interviewed, and not in the	10.2	147	0.0	24 5	720
nousenoid	19.2	14./	0.6	34.5	/30
Residence	27.1	22.4	0.0	50.0	200
Urban	27.1	22.1	0.8	50.0	396
Kurai	20.9	18./	0.8	40.4	2,285
Region	22.0	10.1	0.0	12.0	60 7
Hnonno	22.9	19.1	0.8	42.8	69/
Manzini	24.1	20.1	0.9	45.1	//4
Lubombo	21.0 171	10.2	0.2	40.2	529
Acther/c cducation ²	17.1	19.5	1.5	37.7	525
No aducation	20.6	10 E	1 0	40.2	170
Lower primary	20.0	23.0	0.5	40.5	1/9
Higher primary	24.7	23.0	0.5	43.6	539
Secondary	23.5	22.5	13	46.8	649
High school	27.5	19.8	0.3	47.6	286
Tertiary	18.1	10.3	0.0	28.5	105
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	21.2	21.1	1.2	43.4	641
Second	21.6	16.5	0.7	38.7	647
Middle	21.0	22.3	0.7	44.0	533
Fourth	24.4	18.3	0.6	43.2	489
Highest	21.1	17.5	0.8	39.4	371
Total	21.8	19.2	0.8	41.8	2,681

Note: Table is based on children who slept in the household the night before the interview. Prevalence of anaemia, based on haemoglobin levels, is adjusted for altitude using CDC formulas (CDC, 1998). Haemoglobin is measured in grams per decilitre (g/dl). Total includes one child with information missing on mother's education.

¹ Includes children whose mothers are dead

² For women who were not interviewed, information is taken from the Household Questionnaire. Excludes children whose mothers are not listed in the Household Questionnaire

11.7.2 Children Age 5-11 and 12-14 Years

Tables 11.8.2 and 11.8.3 show the prevalence of anaemia in children 5-11 years. The proportion of children with some degree of anaemia is 18 percent, and less than 1 percent of children are severely anaemic. The national prevalence of anaemia among children 12-14 years is virtually identical to that among children age 5-11, and a majority of these children are mildly anaemic (17 percent).

Variations in the prevalence of anaemia by background characteristics among the children in these age groups are generally similar to those observed among children age 6-59 months.

Percentage of children age 5-11 Swaziland 2006-07	years classified	as having ana	emia, by∣	background cl	naracteristics,
	Ana hae	emia status by moglobin level			
Background characteristic	Mild (10.5-11.4 g/dl)	Moderate (7.5-10.4 g/dl)	Severe (below 7.5 g/dl)	Any anaemia (<12.5 g/dl)	Number of children
Sex					
Male	12.7	6.0	0.6	19.2	1,018
Female	11.1	5.3	0.3	16.7	1,048
Mother's interview status					
Interviewed	11.7	4.9	0.6	17.3	1,078
Not interviewed but in					
household	10.8	6.9	0.0	17.6	81
Not interviewed, and not in the					
household ¹	12.2	6.4	0.2	18.8	907
Residence					
Urban	13.9	6.1	0.8	20.9	256
Rural	11.6	5.6	0.4	17.5	1,811
Region					
Hhohho	10.2	4.9	0.4	15.6	509
Manzini	14.1	5.8	0.4	20.2	551
Shiselweni	12.4	6.7	0.7	19.7	561
Lubombo	10.4	5.0	0.2	15.6	446
Mother's education ¹					
No education	11.7	5.8	0.0	17.5	180
Lower primary	18.4	8.8	0.6	27.8	129
Higher primary	9.9	3.7	0.0	13.6	324
Secondary	11.4	3.7	0.4	15.4	286
High school	8.8	7.9	2.2	18.9	168
Tertiary	15.1	1.9	1.7	18.6	70
Living arrangements					
Living with both parents	13.2	5.2	0.2	18.6	397
Living with father/not mother	11.1	3.6	0.7	15.4	130
Living with mother/not father	10.8	5.1	0.8	16.6	756
Not living with either parent ²	12.3	6.7	0.1	19.1 Con	741 ntinued

Table 11.8.2—Continued									
	Ana	emia status by							
	haemoglobin level (5-11)								
			Severe	Any					
Background	Mild	Moderate	(below	anaemia	Number of				
characteristic	(10.5-11.4 g/dl)	(7.5-10.4 g/dl)	7.5 g/dl)	(<12.5 g/dl)	children				
Orphanhood status									
Both parents alive	12.3	5.8	0.4	18.5	1,551				
Mother dead/ father alive	11.3	7.9	0.0	19.3	106				
Father dead/ mother alive	10.3	3.9	0.6	14.9	334				
Both parents dead	11.7	6.1	0.0	17.7	75				
OVC status									
Orphan ³	10.7	5.1	0.4	16.2	516				
Vulnerable ⁴	10.9	4.7	0.0	15.6	256				
Orphan and vulnerable⁵	12.4	2.5	0.0	14.9	91				
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	12.5	5.8	0.5	18.8	1,386				
Total	11.9	5.6	0.4	17.9	2.067				

Note: Table is based on children who slept in the household the night before the interview. Prevalence of anaemia is based on haemoglobin levels and is adjusted for altitude using CDC formulas (CDC, 1998). Haemoglobin in measured in grams per decilitre (g/dl). Total includes one child with information missing on mother's interview status, two children with information missing on mother's education and 42 children with information missing on living arrangements

¹ For women who are not interviewed, information is taken from the Household Questionnaire. Excludes

children whose mothers are not listed in the Household Questionnaire

² Includes children whose mothers are dead

³ Children with one or both parents dead

⁴ Children who have a very sick parent, or who live in a household where an adult has been very sick, or has died in the past 12 months

⁵ Children who are orphans and/or vulnerable

Table 11.8.3 Prevalence of anaemia in children 12-14 years							
Percentage of children age 12 Swaziland 2006-07	2-14 years classifie	ed as having a	naemia, by	background c	haracteristics,		
	Anaemia status by haemoglobin level (12-14)						
Background characteristic	Mild (10.0-11.9 g/dl)	Moderate (7.0-9.9 g/dl)	Severe (below 7.0 g/dl)	Any anaemia (<12.0 g/dl)	Number of children		
Sex Male Female	15.0 17.9	0.9 1.1	0.2 0.0	16.1 19.0	421 469		
Residence Urban Rural	16.5 16.5	1.3 1.0	0.0 0.1	17.8 17.6	91 798		
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	14.9 17.3 18.9 14.4	1.2 1.8 0.6 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5	16.1 19.1 19.5 15.0	228 266 227 169		
Mother's education ¹ No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	13.3 18.4 15.6 16.4 (15.0) (11.5)	$\begin{array}{c} 0.0 \\ 1.9 \\ 1.0 \\ 1.1 \\ (2.4) \\ (4.4) \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ (0.0)\\ (0.0)\\ (0.0)\end{array}$	13.3 20.3 16.6 17.5 (17.4) (15.9) Cont	80 67 136 101 48 26 inued		

	Anaemia status by haemoglobin level (12-14)				
Background _characteristic	Mild (10.0-11.9 g/dl)	Moderate (7.0-9.9 g/dl)	Severe (below 7.0 g/dl)	Any anaemia (<12.0 g/dl)	Number of children
Living arrangement Living with both parents Living with father/not mother Living with mother/not father Not living with either parent ²	12.9 12.5 16.6 17.8	1.8 1.6 0.7 0.5	0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0	14.7 15.4 17.3 18.3	151 72 309 331
Orphanhood status Both parents alive Mother dead/father alive Father dead/mother alive Both parents dead	15.9 20.0 18.1 13.3	1.1 0.0 1.5 0.0	0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0	17.2 20.0 19.6 13.3	557 79 186 68
OVC status Orphan ³ Vulnerable ⁴ Orphan and vulnerable ⁵ Neither orphan nor vulnerable	17.6 20.1 (19.4) 15.3	0.8 0.0 (0.0) 1.2	0.0 0.0 (0.0) 0.2	18.4 20.1 (19.4) 16.8	333 110 51 499
Total	16.5	1.0	0.1	17.6	890

Note: Table is based on children who slept in the household the night before the interview. Prevalence of anaemia is based on haemoglobin levels and is adjusted for altitude using CDC formulas (CDC, 1998). Haemoglobin is measured in grams per decilitre (g/dl). Total includes six children with information missing on mother's education and 26 children with information missing on living arrangement

¹ For women who were not interviewed, information is taken from the Household Questionnaire. Excludes children whose mothers are not listed in the Household Questionnaire.

² Includes children whose mothers are deceased

³ Children with one or both parents dead

⁴ Children who have a very sick parent. or who live in a household where an adult has been very sick, or has died in the past 12 months

⁵ Children who are orphans and/or vulnerable

11.8 MICRONUTRIENT INTAKE AMONG CHILDREN

A serious contributor to childhood morbidity and mortality is micronutrient deficiency. Children can receive micronutrients from foods, food fortification, and direct supplementation. Table 11.9 looks at measures relating to intake of several key micronutrients among children.

11.8.1 Consumption of Vitamin A-rich and Iron-rich Foods

Both vitamin A and iron are important to a child's healthy development. Vitamin A is an essential micronutrient for the immune system and plays an important role in maintaining the epithelial tissue in the body. Severe vitamin A deficiency (VAD) can cause eye damage. VAD can also increase severity of infections such as measles and diarrhoeal diseases in children and slow recovery from illness. Vitamin A is found in breast milk, other milks, liver, eggs, fish, butter, red palm oil, mangoes, papayas, carrots, pumpkins, and dark green leafy vegetables. The liver can store an adequate amount of the vitamin for four to six months. Periodic dosing (usually every six months) of vitamin A supplements is one method of ensuring that children at risk do not develop VAD.

Iron is essential for cognitive development. Low iron intake also contributes to anaemia. Iron requirements are greatest between the ages of 6 and 11 months, when growth is extremely rapid.
Table 11.9 Micronutrient intake among children

Among youngest children age 6-35 months living with their mother, the percentage who consumed vitamin A-rich foods and iron-rich foods in the day and night preceding the survey; and among all children age 6-59 months, percentage given vitamin A supplements in the six months preceding the survey, and among all children age 6-59 months, percentage given vitamin A supplements in in the six months preceding the survey; and among all children age 6-59 months who live in households that were tested for iodized salt, percentage who live in households with adequately iodized salt, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among yo 6-35 n t	oungest child nonths living he mother:	ren age with	Amon	g all children	age 6-59 mo	nths:	Among chi 6-59 month household for iodiz	ldren age ns living in ls tested ed salt
	Percentage who consumed foods rich	Percentage who consumed foods rich		Percentage given vitamin A supple-	Percentage given iron supple-	Percentage given deworming medica-		Percentage living in house- holds with	
	in vitamin	in iron	Number	ments	ments	tion	Number	adequately	Number
Background	A in past 24	in past	0t childron	in past	in past 7 days	in past 6 months ³	0t childron	iodized	0t childron
	nours	24 Hours	children	0 montris	7 uays	0 months	children	Salt	children
Age in months	49.4	24.4	157	86.2	15	10.6	160	79.7	148
9-11	76.7	46.2	135	87.6	2.3	21.0	141	76.9	130
12-17	85.0	53.0	260	90.7	2.5	40.9	283	76.7	272
18-23	85.0	56.0	216	86.5	3.2	49.2	203	77.4	231
24-35	86.3	593	324	85.2	23	57.1	483	77.8	460
36-47	na	na	na	70.8	17	52.7	492	77.3	474
48-59	na	na	na	72.6	1.5	51.6	480	81.5	447
Sex									
Male	81.7	51.0	567	80.4	2.2	46.8	1.149	77.3	1.094
Female	76.5	50.0	524	80.6	1.8	46.5	1,138	79.4	1,067
Breastfeeding status									
Breastfeeding	76.2	45.8	525	90.3	2.2	29.4	539	77.8	507
Not breastfeeding	81.7	55.0	559	78.3	2.1	53.4	1.579	78.5	1.494
Missing	*	*	8	69.6	0.7	38.8	´170	78.9	[′] 161
Mother's age at birth									
15-19	77.1	46.9	243	80.9	1.9	38.0	539	76.2	500
20-29	77.9	50.1	559	79.8	1.4	50.4	1.142	80.3	1.091
30-39	84.5	54.3	268	81.8	3.1	48.6	553	76.5	520
40-49	*	*	22	77.2	5.3	34.1	54	77.4	49
Residence									
Urban	80.5	60.4	209	75.8	1.7	58.5	494	76.3	468
Rural	78.9	48.2	883	81.8	2.1	43.4	1,793	78.9	1,693
Region									
Hhohho	83.7	52.7	278	83.2	2.4	50.8	622	84.3	610
Manzini	77.2	53.9	350	82.5	2.0	52.2	702	73.1	665
Shiselweni	77.1	46.6	251	80.1	1.9	40.2	500	77.5	457
Lubombo	79.2	46.7	213	74.2	1.7	39.7	463	78.8	430
Mother's education									
No education	78.4	45.9	81	71.2	1.7	29.8	199	78.5	192
Lower primary	84.1	41.6	98	79.2	0.6	34.4	207	76.1	192
Higher primary	74.8	44.3	299	82.6	2.4	40.3	606	79.7	573
Secondary	79.3	52.3	371	81.5	2.3	49.5	775	74.2	732
High school	81.6	57.1	180	82.5	1.9	57.0	353	83.2	327
Tertiary	86.2	70.6	63	76.0	1.9	72.8	150	85.8	145
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	75.1	36.1	245	81.1	1.5	33.3	456	75.6	418
Second	82.4	46.1	240	79.1	3.7	38.6	502	78.3	476
Middle	76.5	50.6	224	82.9	1.1	45.0	451	75.6	427
Fourth	78.3	56.8	198	83.7	2.1	55.0	429	81.9	408
Highest	85.0	68./	184	/6.0	1.5	62.9	449	80.4	432
Total	79.2	50.5	1,092	80.5	2.0	46.7	2,288	78.3	2,161

Note: Information on vitamin A and iron supplements and deworming medication is based on mother's recall. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted children and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ Includes meat (and organ meat), fish, poultry, eggs, pumpkin, red or yellow yams or squash, carrots, red sweet potatoes, dark green leafy vegetables, mango, papaya, and other locally grown fruits and vegetables that are rich in vitamin A

² Includes meat, (including organ meat)

³ Deworming for intestinal parasites is commonly done for helminthes and for schistosomiasis.
⁴ Salt containing 15 parts per million of iodine or more. Excludes children in households in which salt was not tested

The 2006-07 SDHS collected information from mothers on the consumption of foods rich in vitamin A and iron by children under three years. The data were collected for the youngest child under three years, with the reference period being the day and night preceding the interview. The results in Table 11.9 indicate that eight in ten children under three years receive foods rich in vitamin A, while half are getting foods rich in iron.

The largest variation in consumption of vitamin A-rich foods is by children's age. The proportion consuming fruits and vegetables rich in vitamin A increases rapidly with age, from 49 percent among children age 6-8 months to 85 percent among children age 12-17 months. Other differences in the consumption of foods rich in vitamin A across subgroups are typically modest, with between 75 and 85 percent of children in all subgroups consuming vitamin A-rich foods.

Differences in the consumption of foods rich in iron across the subgroups are typically larger than differences in the consumption of food rich in vitamin A (Table 11.9). By age, for example, the proportion consuming iron-rich foods ranges from 24 percent among children age 6-8 months to 59 percent among children age 24-35 months. Less than half of rural children consumed foods rich in iron compared with 60 percent of urban children. The proportion consuming iron-rich foods varies from 46 percent among children whose mothers never attended school to 71 percent among children whose mothers achieved a tertiary education. Similarly, the proportion of children consuming iron-rich foods increases markedly by wealth quintile, from 36 percent among children living in households in the lowest quintile to 69 percent among those in the highest quintile.

The 2006-07 SDHS also collected data on vitamin A and iron supplementation. As shown in Table 11.9, eight in ten children age 6-59 months received vitamin A supplements in the six months preceding the survey. The proportion receiving supplements peaks at 91 percent among children age 12-17 months before falling to around 70 percent among children age 36-59 months. Reflecting age differences, breastfeeding children (90 percent) are more likely to have received vitamin A supplements than non-breastfeeding children (78 percent). Rural children (82 percent) are slightly more likely than urban children (76 percent) to have received a supplement. Vitamin A supplementation is highest among children in Hhohho region (83 percent) and lowest among those in the Lubombo region (74 percent).

In contrast to the comparatively high level of vitamin A supplementation, only 2 percent of young children were reported as having received iron supplements in the seven days prior to the survey.

Infection with helminths or intestinal worms has been shown to have an adverse impact on the physical development of children and is associated with high levels of iron deficiency anaemia and other nutritional deficiencies (Awasthi et al., 2003). Regular treatment with deworming medications is a simple, cost-effective measure to address these infections. Table 11.9 shows that 47 percent of children age 6-59 months in Swaziland received deworming medication in the 6 months prior to the survey. The proportion of children who received the medication increases with children's age, from 11 percent among children age 6-8 months to a peak of 57 percent among children age 24-35 months. The proportion receiving medication is higher among urban children (59 percent) than rural children (43 percent). Around half of children in Manzini and Hhohho received deworming medication in the six months before the survey compared with around 40 percent of children in Lubombo and Shiselweni. The likelihood that a child has received deworming medication is directly related to the mother's level of education and the wealth quintile of the household.

Inadequate amounts of iodine in the diet are related to serious health risks for young children. The survey results show that 78 percent of children age 6-59 months live in households with adequately

iodized salt. Manzini had the lowest proportion of children living in households using adequately iodized salt (73 percent).

11.9 NUTRITIONAL STATUS OF WOMEN AND MEN

Anthropometric data on height and weight were collected for adults as well as for children in the 2006-07 SDHS. Using these data, two indicators of nutritional status are presented: the percentage of women age 15-49 with very short stature (less than 145 cm) and the body mass index (BMI) for women and men age 15-49. The body mass index (BMI), or the Quetelet index, is used to measure thinness and obesity. BMI is defined as weight in kilogrammes divided by height squared in metres (kg/m²). A cutoff point of 18.5 is used to define thinness or acute undernutrition, and a BMI of 25.0 or above usually indicates overweight or obesity.

Tables 11.10.1 and 11.10.2 present the mean values of the two indicators of nutritional status and the proportions of women and men falling into high-risk categories, by background characteristics. Respondents for whom there was no information on height and/or weight and for whom a BMI could not be estimated are excluded from this analysis. The height analysis is based on 4,855 women; the BMI analysis is based on 4,519 women and 3,969 men.

Table 11.10.1 Nutritional status of women

Among women age 15-49, the percentage with height under 145 cm, mean body mass index (BMI), and the percentage with specific BMI levels, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

						Body Ma	ass Index ¹				
						Thin		Ov	erweight/ob	ese	
	He	ight	Mean	Normal			<17	≥25.0			
Background characteristic	Percent- age below 145 cm	Number of women	Body Mass Index (BMI)	18.5-24.9 (total normal)	<18.5 (total thin)	17.0-18.4 (mildly thin)	(moder- ately and severely thin)	(total over- weight or obese)	25.0-29.9 (over- weight)	≥30.0 (obese)	Number of women
Age											
15-19 20-29 30-39	1.6 1.1 1.1	1,253 1,724 1,080	23.1 25.3 28.7	68.7 52.0 29.8	7.0 2.5 1.4	5.4 2.3 1.2	1.6 0.2 0.2	24.3 45.5 68.9	19.0 31.3 30.7	5.3 14.2 38.2	1,179 1,536 1,017
40-49	1.6	797	30.2	22.7	1.1	0.9	0.2	76.1	28.4	47.7	788
Residence											
Urban Rural	0.8 1.5	1,269 3,585	26.9 26.2	41.5 47.9	3.0 3.2	2.5 2.6	0.6 0.6	55.5 48.8	28.0 27.3	27.6 21.6	1,183 3,336
Region											
Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	1.1 1.6 1.0	1,299 1,603 1,013	26.8 26.3 26.3 26.1	46.1 44.6 47.0 48.5	2.0 3.5 3.6 3.7	1.8 2.9 3.1 2.7	0.2 0.7 0.5	52.0 51.9 49.4 47.8	28.4 28.1 26.5 26.1	23.6 23.8 22.9 21.7	1,209 1,494 945 870
	1.5	940	20.1	40.5	5.7	2.7	1.0	47.0	20.1	21.7	070
No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	3.4 2.3 1.8 0.8 0.4 0.6	389 353 1,242 1,649 864 359	27.1 26.2 25.9 26.3 26.2 28.4	43.9 43.3 50.2 47.5 45.8 33.4	3.1 4.6 3.7 2.8 3.4 1.0	2.4 3.2 3.0 2.2 3.3 1.0	0.6 1.4 0.8 0.6 0.1 0.0	53.1 52.1 46.1 49.7 50.8 65.6	25.8 29.8 25.8 27.1 29.0 30.8	27.2 22.3 20.3 22.6 21.8 34.8	359 319 1,155 1,544 802 341
Wealth quintile											
Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	1.9 1.4 1.6 1.0 0.8	770 841 946 1,085 1,212	24.7 25.6 26.3 26.7 27.7	56.3 50.5 48.7 43.6 37.7	4.6 3.9 2.9 2.8 2.3	3.4 3.1 2.7 2.5 1.8	1.2 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.5	39.1 45.6 48.4 53.6 60.0	25.6 27.5 26.5 29.4 27.5	13.4 18.1 21.8 24.2 32.6	697 778 885 1,017 1,141
Total	1.3	4,855	26.4	46.2	3.2	2.6	0.6	50.6	27.5	23.1	4,519

Note: The Body Mass Index (BMI) is expressed as the ratio of weight in kilogrammes to the square of height in metres (kg/m^2). ¹ Excludes pregnant women and women with a birth in the preceding 2 months

Table 11.10.1 shows that at the national level, 1 percent of women fall below the 145 cm cutoff point for height. There are only minor variations in this indicator across subgroups, with the highest level (3 percent) among women with no education.

The BMI results indicate that only a few women are too thin or malnourished (BMI <18.5). Overall, 3 percent of women age 15-49 are in this category, with less than 1 percent classified as moderately or severely thin (BMI <17). Somewhat surprising, the level of malnutrition among men is higher than that among women. Table 11.10.2 shows that 10 percent of men are assessed as too thin, and 3 percent are considered to be moderately or severely thin. Among both women and men, those age 15-19 and those in the lowest wealth quintile are most likely to be undernourished.

				Bo	ody Mass In	dex			
				Thin	·	Ove			
Background characteristic	Mean Body Mass Index (BMI)	<u>Normal</u> 18.5-24.9 (total normal)	<18.5 (total thin)	17.0-18.4 (mildly thin)	<17 (moder- ately and severely thin)	≥25.0 (total over- weight or obese)	25.0-29.9 (over- weight)	≥30.0 (obese)	Number men
Age									
15-19	20.2	74.8	22.6	15.8	6.8	2.6	2.0	0.6	1,290
20-29	22.5	81.7	4.0	3.6	0.5	14.2	12.2	2.1	1,430
30-39	24.0	60.9	3.8	2.9	0.8	35.3	26.7	8.7	757
40-49	24.5	56.3	4.5	3.1	1.4	39.2	28.8	10.5	493
Residence									
Urban	23.4	66.3	6.4	4.8	1.6	27.4	19.5	7.8	1,110
Rural	21.8	74.7	11.5	8.4	3.2	13.8	11.4	2.4	2,860
Region									
Hhohho	22.4	70.5	9.5	6.9	2.7	19.9	15.6	4.4	1,056
Manzini	22.5	73.4	8.3	6.1	2.2	18.4	13.7	4.6	1,275
Shiselweni	21.7	74.1	12.8	9.6	3.3	13.0	10.8	2.2	814
Lubombo	22.3	71.4	10.8	7.7	3.1	17.8	14.0	3.8	825
Education									
No education	22.4	76.6	7.6	5.8	1.8	15.7	12.2	3.5	296
Lower primary	21.4	73.5	15.1	10.3	4.7	11.5	10.8	0.7	448
Higher primary	21.4	73.9	14.7	9.7	5.0	11.4	9.0	2.4	959
Secondary	21.9	76.5	9.9	8.0	1.9	13.6	10.6	2.9	1,136
High school	23.0	73.2	4.9	4.0	0.9	21.9	17.4	4.5	802
Tertiary	25.3	46.1	5.2	3.7	1.4	48.7	33.9	14.8	328
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	21.1	77.9	15.8	11.1	4.7	6.3	5.3	1.0	584
Second	21.4	76.7	13.7	9.7	3.9	9.6	8.1	1.5	641
Middle	21.7	76.1	11.1	8.3	2.8	12.8	11.3	1.5	824
Fourth	22.4	74.8	7.2	5.0	2.2	18.1	15.4	2.7	893
Highest	23.8	61.3	6.3	5.1	1.3	32.3	22.4	10.0	1,027
Total 15-49	22.3	72.4	10.1	7.4	2.7	17.6	13.7	3.9	3 969

Looking at men and women at the other end of the BMI range, 14 percent of men are considered overweight (BMI 25-29.9), while 4 percent are classified as obese (BMI >30). Among women, 28 percent are overweight, while 23 percent are obese. Among both women and men, the proportion overweight or obese increases with age, peaking at 76 percent among women age 40-49 and 39 percent among men in the same age group. Regardless of gender, urban residents are more likely to be overweight or obese than their rural counterparts. Among both women and men, the likelihood of being overweight or obese is

directly related to household wealth quintile. For example, men in the highest wealth quintile are five times as likely to be overweight or obese as men in the lowest quintile.

11.10 FOODS CONSUMED BY MOTHERS

The quality and quantity of foods that mothers consume influences their health and that of their children, especially the health of breastfeeding children. The 2006-07 SDHS included questions on the type of foods consumed by mothers of children under age three during the day and night preceding the interview.

The results in Table 11.11 indicate that most mothers consume foods made from grains (95 percent) on a daily basis, somewhat more than seven in ten consume fruits/vegetables rich in vitamin A (74 percent) and foods made with oil/fat or butter (72 percent), and 57 percent consume meat/fish/ shellfish or poultry/eggs. Thirty-seven percent eat fruits and vegetables not classified as rich in vitamin A, 34 percent eat foods made from legumes, 31 percent eat foods from roots/tubers, and 24 percent consume cheese or yogurt. Four in ten women eat some type of sugary food. Tea/coffee (60 percent) are the most commonly consumed beverages. Only 17 percent of women reported drinking milk.

Table 11.11 Foods consumed by mothers in the day and night preceding the interview

Among mothers age 15-49 with a child under three years living with the mother, the percentage who consumed specific types of foods in the day and night preceding the interview, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

					Solid or semi-solid foods									
		Liquids		Foods made	Foods made from	Foods made	Meat/ fish/ shellfish/		Vitamin A-rich fruits/	Other fruits/	Other solid or semi-	Foods made with		Number
Background characteristic	Milk	Tea/ coffee	Other liquids	from grains	roots/ tubers	from legumes	poultry/ eggs	Cheese/ yogurt	vege- tables	vege- tables	solid food	oil/fat/ butter	Sugary foods	of women
Age														
15-19 20-29 30-39 40-49	17.7 16.5 18.3 24.0	58.8 61.6 57.6 50.4	44.3 58.1 50.5 62.0	97.0 94.8 94.3 95.8	28.9 33.1 29.1 30.4	35.7 32.8 36.9 35.7	55.7 59.0 55.0 54.1	22.7 24.3 23.9 27.0	75.9 72.2 77.1 76.7	29.2 37.1 39.4 43.7	45.7 50.8 50.9 53.2	75.8 72.3 70.1 63.3	43.1 41.1 38.8 28.0	198 733 368 53
Residence														
Urban Rural	20.4 16.7	71.3 56.7	69.6 50.3	97.1 94.5	40.7 28.9	31.9 35.1	71.2 53.7	36.1 21.1	71.4 74.9	47.4 34.2	68.1 45.7	73.1 71.6	44.2 39.2	271 1,081
Region														
Hhohho	17.2	69.3	56.2	93.8	31.8	37.4	58.5	24.5	77.7	38.3	58.0	68.8	45.0	348
Manzini	17.6	64.8	52.8	96.0	33.6	31.0	62.3	29.5	73.7	42.9	54.3	79.8	40.2	429
Shiselweni	24.4	55.1	50.5	94.4 05.7	28.7	33.5	53.5	23.5	72.3	32.3	40.7	65.5 70.6	44.6	308
	9.0	44.0	57.0	93.7	29.9	37.2	51.0	15.0	72.9	50.4	44.2	/0.0	29.0	207
Education	7.2	22 C	49.0	02.1	10.0	22.2	F1 F	10.0	CO 4	20.2	46 7	54.0	20.0	111
Ino education	7.3 14.6	33.0 45.8	40.0 30.1	93.1	19.9	32.3	21.5 42.5	9.5	69.4 79.7	29.3	40.7	54.9 70.1	29.9	114
Higher primary	14.0	40.0 52.6	49.8	94.4	25.2	37.0	42.J 52.0	20.4	70.3	34.5	43.6	70.1	20.J 40.4	360
Secondary	16.2	66.3	56.2	95.4	33.6	32.0	58.8	24.9	74.6	35.2	52.8	74.3	44.4	460
High school	22.8	70.8	61.4	97.6	39.4	35.1	66.0	30.9	76.9	47.4	56.3	74.5	40.2	232
Tertiary	45.4	79.0	73.2	96.0	57.8	32.8	76.2	60.2	82.0	61.2	70.5	83.4	51.2	72
Wealth quintile														
Lowest	14.1	35.1	48.1	94.6	19.6	33.9	41.4	15.0	73.8	29.6	32.7	69.8	29.1	304
Second	11.5	54.2	48.3	94.8	25.2	36.0	50.3	14.9	76.8	33.2	46.2	75.3	38.5	293
Middle	14.9	64.1	51.4	95.5	33.3	40.2	56.5	23.2	73.3	33.2	50.2	71.1	45.9	273
Fourth Highest	22.6 27.0	/4./ 77.2	55.5 71.8	95.8 94.2	36.5 46.7	32.3 28.6	67.0 77.2	29.9 42.8	70.1 77.4	40.6 51.5	59.5 68.2	68.1 75.7	44.5 45 7	258 224
Total	17.4	59.6	54.1	95.0	31.3	34.4	57.2	24.1	74.2	36.8	50.2	71.9	40.2	1,352

Note: Foods consumed in the past 24-hour period (yesterday and the past night).

¹ Includes pumpkin, carrots, red sweet potatoes; dark green leafy vegetables such as cassava leaves, spinach, okra, and blackjack and pumpkin leaves; fruits such as mangoes, papayas, oranges, and guavas

11.11 PREVALENCE OF ANAEMIA IN WOMEN AND MEN

The 2006-07 SDHS collected information on the prevalence of anaemia among women and men age 15 and older. The anaemia results for women and men age 15-49 are presented in Tables 11.12.1 and 11.12.2. Tables 11.12.3 and 11.12.4 present the anaemia results for women and men age 50 and older.

In these tables, women and men are classified into three groups based on the haemoglobin levels measured in the survey: mild anaemia (10.0-10.9 g/dl for pregnant women, 10.0-11.9 g/dl for non-pregnant women, and 12.0-12.9 g/dl for men), moderate anaemia (7.0-9.9 g/dl for women and 9.0-11.9 g/dl for men), and severe anaemia (less than 7.0 g/dl for women and less than 9.0 g/dl for men). Appropriate adjustments in these cutoff points were made for respondents living at altitudes above 1,000 metres and respondents who smoke because both of these groups require more haemoglobin in their blood (Centres for Disease Control and Prevention, 1998).²

Table 11.12.1 shows that, overall, 30 percent of women have some degree of anaemia, with the majority of these women classified as mildly anaemic (23 percent). Less than 1 percent were considered severely anaemic. Generally, differences in the levels of anaemia among women by background characteristics are small. However, pregnant women are more likely to be anaemic (40 percent) than women who are breastfeeding (29 percent) and women who are neither pregnant nor breastfeeding (30 percent). This could be as a result of the high demand of iron and folate during pregnancy.

characteristics, Swazil	and 2006-0	15-49 wiu 07	n anaemi	а, ру ра	ackgrour
	Ana	aemia status	by		
	hae	moglobin ie	evel		Numbe
Background	Mild _.	Moderate	Severe	Any .	ot
characteristic	anaemia	anaemia	anaemia	anaemia	wome
Age					
15-19	21.9	6.1	0.2	28.2	1,207
20-29	23.7	7.8	0.2	31.7	1,622
30-39	23.0	9.0	0.3	32.3	1,014
40-49	20.2	7.8	0.6	28.6	756
Number of children					
ever born	20.0		0.0	00 F	1 204
0	20.9	/.3	0.3	28.5	1,394
1	23.9	6.9	0.4	31.2	86Z
2-3	23.1	8.5 0.2	0.4	32.1	1,195
4-5	26.0 10.3	0.5 6 0	0.0	34.3 26.2	200 562
0+	19.5	0.9	0.2	20.5	J02
Maternity status				10.0	
Pregnant	23.5	16.3	0.4	40.2	252
Breastfeeding	23.0	5.6	0.1	28.7	2 (19
Neither	22.3	/.4	0.3	30.1	3,627
Smoking status					
Smokes cigarettes/					
tobacco	19.6	10.0	0.0	29.6	102
Does not smoke	22.6	7.6	0.3	30.4	4,496
Residence					
Urban	25.0	10.3	0.6	35.8	1,131
Rural	21.7	6.7	0.2	28.6	3,467
Region					
Hhohho	20.2	8.2	0.1	28.5	1,226
Manzini	24.2	8.7	0.5	33.3	1,505
Shiselweni	24.9	7.1	0.1	32.2	968
Lubombo	20.3	5.5	0.4	26.2	900
Education					
No education	22.8	8.5	0.1	31.3	381
Lower primary	22.4	6.3	0.1	28.8	344
Higher primary	22.0	7.3	0.4	29.7	1,209
Secondary	23.2	7.6	0.3	31.1	1,575
High school	23.8	8.5	0.2	32.4	790
Tertiary	17.3	7.2	0.8	25.2	300
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	21.4	5.1	0.1	26.7	753
Second	19.6	6.7	0.1	26.5	822
Middle	23.7	8.1	0.2	32.0	916
Fourth	24.1	8.7	0.4	33.2	1,025
Highest	23.0	8.5	0.5	32.0	1,082
Total 15-49	22.5	7.6	0.3	30.4	4,598

2 Haemoglobin measurements that are not adjusted for the altitude of the enumeration area or the smoking status of the respondent yield a nearly imperceptible difference in the level of anaemia compared with the adjusted estimates (30.3 percent instead of 30.4 percent for women and 13.0 percent instead of 13.2 percent for men).

The results in Table 11.12.2 indicate that men age 15-49 are substantially less likely than women of the same age to be anaemic. At the national level, 13 percent of these men are anaemic, while less than 1 percent are severely anaemic. Variations in anaemia levels by background characteristics are generally small. However, rates tend to be substantially higher among men with less than a primary education compared with men with a high school or tertiary education.

_

.

2006-07		cinia, by ba		laracteristic	s, swaznanu						
Anaemia status by haemoglobin level											
Background	Mild	Moderate	Severe	Any	Number of						
characteristic	anaemia	anaemia	anaemia	anaemia	men						
Age											
15-19	11.1	5.1	0.2	16.3	1,243						
20-29	5.1	3.1	0.3	8.4	1,284						
30-39	8.3	6.8	0.9	16.0	669						
40-49	7.0	5.9	1.2	14.1	445						
Smoking status											
Smokes cigarettes/tobacco	7.0	5.2	1.2	13.4	602						
Does not smoke	8.1	4.7	0.4	13.2	3,039						
Residence											
Urban	6.7	4.3	0.4	11.4	952						
Rural	8.4	5.0	0.5	13.8	2,689						
Region											
Hhohho	7.3	4.3	0.4	12.0	963						
Manzini	8.8	5.2	0.8	14.8	1,162						
Shiselweni	7.7	5.0	0.2	12.9	752						
Lubombo	7.7	4.5	0.4	12.6	765						
Highest educational level											
No education	9.2	7.1	0.1	16.3	277						
Lower primary	10.1	5.8	0.0	15.9	418						
Higher primary	10.5	5.5	1.0	17.0	894						
Secondary	8.0	4.1	0.3	12.5	1,058						
High school	4.4	4.4	0.7	9.5	728						
Tertiary	4.1	1.9	0.3	6.2	267						
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	8.5	5.1	0.2	13.7	564						
Second	7.3	5.5	0.7	13.5	600						
Middle	10.7	4.7	0.4	15.8	772						
Fourth	7.2	5.9	0.7	13.8	815						
Highest	6.4	3.1	0.4	9.9	890						
Total 15-49	7.9	4.8	0.5	13.2	3,642						

Tables 11.12.3 and 11.12.4 show the anaemia rates for women and men age 50 and older. The pattern is the reverse of that observed for women and men age 15-49. Men age 50 and older are more likely (31 percent) to have some degree of anaemia than women the same age (21 percent). Moreover, while none of the women age 50 and older have severe anaemia, 2 percent of men in this age category are severely anaemic. Interestingly, the prevalence of anaemia among older women tends to decline with age, while the level among men increases.

Т

Table 11.12.3 Prevalence of anaemia in women age 50 and older

Percentage of women age 50+ with anaemia, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07 $\,$

	Anaemia Haemogl	status by obin level		
Background	Mild	Moderate	Any	Number of
characteristic	anaemia	anaemia	anaemia	women
Age				
50-54	21.5	3.7	25.1	151
55-59	16.8	0.9	17.7	100
60+	16.5	4.2	20.7	361
Residence				
Urban	17.1	2.8	19.9	75
Rural	17.9	3.6	21.5	537
Region				
Hhohho	14.3	4.8	19.1	149
Manzini	23.3	3.1	26.3	189
Shiselweni	12.9	2.5	15.4	177
Lubombo	21.4	4.3	25.7	96
Education				
No education	18.7	4.5	23.2	254
Lower primary	15.9	3.8	19.7	143
Higher primary	19.5	1.2	20.7	138
Secondary	16.8	4.0	20.9	53
High school	*		*	8
Tertiary	*		*	15
Total 50+	17.8	3.5	21.3	612

Note: Prevalence is adjusted for altitude and for smoking status if known using CDC formulas (CDC, 1998). An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted women and has been suppressed.

Percentage of me 2006-07	n age 50+ with	1 anaemia, by	background	characteristics	, Swaziland						
Anaemia status by haemoglobin level (Men 50+)											
Background characteristic	Mild (12.0-12.9 g/dl)	Moderate (9.0-11.9 g/dl)	Severe (below 9.0 g/dl)	Any anaemia (<13.0 g/dl)	Number of men						
Age											
50-54	10.3	14.7	1.0	26.1	102						
55-59	16.1	7.3	1.7	25.1	68						
60+	18.3	14.2	2.0	34.6	223						
Residence											
Urban	15.7	12.1	0.0	27.8	66						
Rural	15.9	13.3	2.1	31.3	327						
Region											
Hhohho	11.8	21.3	1.1	34.2	112						
Manzini	19.5	12.5	2.1	34.0	125						
Shiselweni	16.4	9.2	2.1	27.7	86						
Lubombo	15.3	6.2	1.5	23.0	71						
Education											
No education	13.6	14.8	1.4	29.8	156						
Lower primary	16.9	15.2	2.6	34.7	73						
Higher primary	17.0	13.9	1.5	32.4	77						
Secondary	21.9	6.7	3.0	31.6	50						
High school	*	*	*	*	11						
Tertiary	(10.4)	(6.5)	(0.0)	(16.9)	25						
Total 50+	15.9	13.1	1.7	30.7	393						

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicate that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted men and has been suppressed.

11.12 MICRONUTRIENT INTAKE AMONG MOTHERS

Adequate micronutrient intake by women has important benefits for both women and their children. Breastfeeding children benefit from micronutrient supplementation that mothers receive, especially vitamin A. Iron supplementation of women during pregnancy protects mother and infant against anaemia. It is estimated that one-fifth of perinatal mortality and one-tenth of maternal mortality are attributable to iron deficiency anaemia. Anaemia also results in an increased risk of premature delivery and low birth weight. Finally, iodine deficiency is also related to a number of adverse pregnancy outcomes.

Table 11.13 includes a number of measures that are useful in assessing the extent to which women are receiving adequate intake of vitamin A, iron during pregnancy, and iodine. The first indicators focus on the percentages of women with children under age three who reported that they consumed foods rich in vitamin A and iron during the 24-hour period prior to the interview. The results indicate that, in general, 88 percent of mothers with young children consume vitamin A-rich foods and 57 percent consume iron-rich foods on a daily basis. No major differences are apparent in the consumption of vitamin A-rich foods and iron-rich foods by age. Urban residents are more likely than rural residents to consume foods with these essential micronutrients, with the urban-rural differential being especially notable with respect to the consumption of iron-rich foods. The consumption of vitamin A-rich foods increases from 84 percent among mothers in households in the lowest wealth quintile to 94 percent among mothers in households in the lowest wealth quintile to 77 percent among those in the highest wealth quintile.

Besides improving food intake, supplementation is an important strategy for addressing micronutrient deficiency. Postpartum supplementation with vitamin A is important to reduce the proportion of women experiencing night blindness. Overall, 44 percent of women who had a birth in five-years prior to the SDHS reported that they had received a vitamin A capsule in the two months following the birth of their last child. Night blindness affects a relatively small proportion of women in Swaziland. Table 11.13 shows that, while 8 percent of mothers reported having some difficulty in seeing at night during their last pregnancy, the majority of these women also had difficulty seeing in the daytime; the adjusted proportion of women suffering from night blindness during pregnancy is 2 percent.

Iron supplementation during pregnancy is important to avoid the problems iron deficiency poses for both the woman and her foetus. The SDHS results in Table 11.13 indicate that the majority of women receive iron supplements during pregnancy; seven in ten mothers of children born in the five-year period prior to the SDHS reported they took iron tablets or syrup during pregnancy. About one-third of the mothers took supplements for at least 90 days during their pregnancy.

Infection with intestinal worms is a common cause of iron deficiency anaemia in pregnant women. Thus, the provision of deworming medications can be important in reducing the risk of anaemia among pregnant women. Table 11.13 shows that only 10 percent of women who had a birth during the five years before the survey took deworming medications during their pregnancy. Younger mothers (15 percent) and mothers in the Shiselweni region (16 percent) were the most likely to have received deworming medication.

Finally, Table 11.13 shows that 78 percent of women with a child born in the five years preceding the SDHS were living in households with adequately iodized salt.

Table 11.13 Micronutrient intake among mothers

Among women age 15-49 with a child under age three years living with them, the percentage who consumed vitamin A-rich foods and iron-rich foods in the 24 hours preceding the survey; among women age 15-49 with a child born in the past five years, the percentage who received a vitamin A dose in the first two months after the birth of the last child; among mothers age 15-49 who during the pregnancy for the last child born in the five years prior to the survey, the percentage who suffered from night blindness, the percentage who took iron tablets or syrup for specific numbers of days, and the percentage who took deworming medication; and among women age 15-49 with a child born in the past five years, who live in households that were tested for iodized salt, the percentage who live in households with adequately iodized salt, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

						Among w	omen wi	ith a chil	d born in	the pas	t five years	5		Among wor child born i five years, y	nen with a n the past vho live in
	Amon child u livi	g women v inder three ng with the	with a e years em		Percent suffere	age who d night				•	*	Per- centage of women		households that were tested for iodized salt	
Per- centage Per- who con- centage				Per- centage who	pregna last	child	Nur tabl	Number of days women took iron tablets or syrup during pregnancy for last child						Per- centage living in house-	
Background characteristic	sumed vitamin A-rich foods	who con- sumed iron-rich foods	Number of women	received vitamin A dose post- partum	Night blind- ness reported	Night blind- ness adjusted	None	<60	60-89	90+	Don't know/ missing	during preg- nancy for last child	Number of women	holds with adequately iodized salt	Number of women
Age															
15-19	87.7	55.7	198	49.7	7.7	0.8	10.6	25.4	8.5	36.2	19.3	14.6	232	77.7	219
20-29	86.6	59.0	733	43.8	7.6	2.1	9.4	30.6	5.9	34.4	19.7	9.5	1,142	78.6	1,082
30-39	89.3	55.0	368	41.3	9.0	1.3	11.3	31.8	5.7	30.7	20.5	10.8	612	79.2	577
40-49	87.7	54.1	53	40.8	11.7	3.4	7.8	34.4	6.2	34.1	17.5	9.0	149	75.2	143
Residence															
Urban	91.2	71.2	271	42.4	6.1	1.4	8.6	20.8	3.4	37.8	29.4	7.5	496	77.3	475
Rural	86.6	53.7	1,081	43.9	8.9	2.0	10.4	33.6	7.0	32.2	16.8	11.3	1,638	78.7	1,547
Region															
Hhohho	88.9	58.5	348	39.9	9.7	1.7	7.0	25.9	8.4	32.1	26.5	8.0	572	84.2	559
Manzini	87.4	62.3	429	44.7	7.8	1.5	8.5	21.2	6.6	45.9	17.7	8.5	668	73.9	636
Shiselweni	85.8	53.5	308	39.8	3.4	1.0	10.3	41.2	2.9	29.4	16.1	15.7	460	79.4	421
Lubombo	88.1	51.6	267	50.4	12.4	3.4	15.6	40.3	5.7	20.7	17.8	10.9	434	76.4	406
Education															
No education	85.5	51.5	114	48.4	15.6	5.2	14.6	32.3	5.1	26.0	22.0	12.4	178	76.9	170
Lower primary	87.8	42.5	114	48.2	11.3	1.0	14.1	31.0	4.1	35.5	15.2	14.1	177	77.3	166
Higher primary	84.3	52.0	360	42.2	8.2	2.0	12.5	32.1	7.0	30.1	18.4	10.8	550	79.8	522
Secondary	89.4	58.8	460	42.9	7.5	1.0	8.3	31.9	6.9	34.8	18.1	10.1	716	74.9	677
High school	87.2	66.0	232	41.0	5.9	1.8	8.0	29.3	5.6	35.4	21.7	7.6	374	81.5	352
Tertiary	95.7	76.2	72	46.4	6.3	2.1	2.2	19.9	4.2	42.5	31.3	10.7	140	85.7	135
Wealth quintile															
Lowest	83.7	41.4	304	42.6	10.0	3.0	13.5	36.2	5.4	29.8	15.2	13.4	400	76.2	366
Second	86.8	50.3	293	42.7	10.8	3.1	13.4	29.6	7.0	32.9	17.2	12.4	429	76.9	405
Middle	87.8	56.5	273	41.9	9.5	1.3	9.6	31.5	6.4	31.4	21.1	9.4	419	75.5	400
Fourth	87.1	67.0	258	46.2	4.7	0.4	7.5	32.7	6.7	36.8	16.3	9.7	436	81.0	414
Highest	93.9	77.2	224	44.1	6.6	1.4	6.2	23.9	5.3	36.3	28.4	7.4	449	81.8	436
Total	87.5	57.2	1,352	43.5	8.3	1.8	9.9	30.6	6.1	33.5	19.8	10.4	2,134	78.4	2,022

¹ Includes meat (and organ meat), fish, poultry, eggs, pumpkin, squash, carrots, red sweet potatoes, cassava leaves, spinach, okra, blackjack, pumpkin leaves, mangoes, paw paw, oranges, and guavas

² Includes meat (and organ meat), fish, poultry, eggs

³ In the first two months after delivery

⁴ Women who reported night blindness but did not report difficulty with vision during the day

⁵ Deworming for intestinal parasites is commonly done for helminthes and for schistosomiasis

⁶ Salt containing 15 ppm of iodine or more. Excludes women in households where salt was not tested.

MALARIA AND OTHER HEALTH ISSUES

Africa Magongo

The 2006-07 SDHS collected data to monitor several malaria control programme initiatives, particularly the possession and use of bednets and the coverage of indoor residual house spraying. In addition, the survey obtained information on the prevalence of male circumcision and attitudes concerning it, which has been shown in several recent studies to be related to lower rates of HIV transmission. Finally, the SDHS also included questions on a number of other important health-related issues including the level of awareness and stigma associated with tuberculosis, the prevalence of smoking and alcohol use, and the coverage of health insurance. This chapter considers the information obtained in the SDHS on these topics.

12.1 MALARIA

Thirty percent of the population in Swaziland is estimated to be at risk of malaria and around 10,000 people are infected with malaria annually (Kunene, 2006). The distribution of malaria varies across the regions, with malaria prevalent in all of the Lubombo region, three-quarters of Manzini, and parts of Shiselweni and Hhohho. Malaria also varies seasonally, peaking in March and April during the rainy season.

The Swaziland government is committed to the control and prevention of malaria. Four interventions are outlined in the National Malaria Control Program (NMCP): 1) indoor residual spraying of houses; 2) clinical management of malaria cases; 3) distribution of insecticide-treated nets (ITNs) among pregnant women and children under five in the most affected areas; and 4) distribution of antimalarial drugs among pregnant women. As a means of providing information on these interventions, the 2006-07 SDHS household survey included questions on ownership of bednets, use of bednets by pregnant women and young children, prophylactic use of antimalarial drugs during pregnancy, and prompt treatment of fever among children under age five.

12.1.1 Ownership and Use of Mosquito Nets

Significant advances have been made in the prevention of malaria through the use of insecticidetreated bednets (ITN). Pyrethroids, the chemicals currently used in many countries including Swaziland to treat bednets, mimic the insecticidal compounds of natural pyrethrum. Synthetic pyrethroids have low mammalian toxicity; are repellents, highly toxic to mosquitoes, and odorless; and have low volatility with long persistence. Use of treated bednets has been shown to significantly reduce malaria transmission.

The Government of Swaziland is committed to reaching the Abuja declaration of ensuring that 60 percent of communities have ITNs. To assess progress in achieving the goal, the NMCP had previously conducted periodic surveys to determine net coverage and usage in communities in the sentinel regions targeted through the Roll Back Malaria (RBM) campaign where nets were distributed. The SDHS results presented in Tables 12.1 through 12.3 provide information on ownership of bednets and on the use of the nets by young children and pregnant women for the country as a whole.

Table 12.1 shows the percentages of households owning various types of mosquito nets (treated or untreated) and the average number of nets per household by background characteristics. Overall, 6 percent of households owned some type of mosquito net. Two percent of households owned more than one net. Virtually all of the households with nets had an ever-treated net, i.e., a net that had been pretreated with insecticide or a non-pretreated net that the household had soaked in insecticide at least once. A somewhat smaller proportion of households (4 percent) owned an ITN. A net is considered to be an insecticide-treated net if it was: (1) a factory-treated net that does not require any further treatment; (2) a pretreated net obtained within the past 12 months; or (3) a net that has been soaked with insecticide within the past 12 months.

Table 12.1 Ownership of mosquito nets

Percentage of households with at least one and more than one mosquito net (treated or untreated), ever-treated mosquito net, and insecticide-treated net (ITN), and the average number of nets per household, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Any ty	pe of mos	quito net	Ever-treated mosquito net ¹ Insecticide-treated mosquito						
Background characteristic	Percent- age with at least one	Percent- age with more than one	Average number of nets per household	Percent- age with at least one	Percent- age with more than one	Average number of ever-treated nets per household	Percent- age with at least one	Percent- age with more than one	Average number of ITNs per household	Number of households
Residence										
Urban	4.9	1.5	0.1	4.7	1.3	0.1	3.2	0.9	0.0	1,565
Rural	6.7	1.8	0.1	6.5	1.7	0.1	5.0	1.3	0.1	3,278
Region										
Hhohho	2.4	0.8	0.0	2.4	0.8	0.0	1.6	0.7	0.0	1,370
Manzini	3.0	0.7	0.0	2.9	0.6	0.0	2.2	0.6	0.0	1,537
Shiselweni	3.0	0.7	0.0	3.0	0.7	0.0	2.5	0.7	0.0	931
Lubombo	18.8	5.3	0.2	17.9	5.0	0.2	13.2	3.1	0.2	1,005
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	9.0	2.8	0.1	8.7	2.8	0.1	7.3	2.4	0.1	824
Second	6.3	1.6	0.1	6.3	1.4	0.1	4.2	1.0	0.1	805
Middle	4.1	1.0	0.1	3.8	1.0	0.0	2.4	0.7	0.0	866
Fourth	4.3	1.2	0.1	4.1	1.0	0.1	3.5	0.9	0.0	1,064
Highest	6.9	1.9	0.1	6.7	1.8	0.1	4.7	1.1	0.1	1,284
Total	6.1	1.7	0.1	5.9	1.6	0.1	4.4	1.2	0.1	4,843

¹ An ever-treated net is a pretreated or a non-pretreated net which has subsequently been soaked with insecticide at any time. ² An insecticide-treated net (ITN) is 1) a factory-treated net that does not require any further treatment, 2) a pretreated net obtained within the past 12 months, or 3) a net that has been soaked with insecticide within the past 12 months.

Rural households are slightly more likely to own any type of mosquito net than urban households. The Lubombo region has the highest level of ownership of mosquito nets in all categories. Almost one fifth of households in Lubombo own some type of mosquito net; 18 percent have at least one ever-treated mosquito net, and 13 percent have an ITN. It should be noted that Lubombo has the sentinel sites where ITNs are being distributed by the NMCP as part of the RBM campaign.

Tables 12.2 and 12.3 provide information on the percentages of children under five years of age and of all women and pregnant women who slept under a mosquito net (treated or untreated) on the night before the survey, by background characteristics. Overall, net usage is quite low, with less than 1 percent of children and pregnant women sleeping under any type of net on the night before the survey. The Lubombo region has the highest proportions of net usage; however, even in this region, only 2 percent of children under age 5 and 3 percent of pregnant women sleept under an ITN on the night before the survey.

Table 12.2 Use of mosquito nets by children

Percentage of children under five years of age who slept under a mosquito net (treated or untreated), an ever-treated mosquito net, and an insecticidetreated net (ITN) the night before the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	
	who slept	who slept	who slept	
Deal and and	under	under an	under	NL school of
Background	any net	ever-treated	an IIIN laat nimht?	Number of
characteristic	last night	net last night.	last night-	children
Age in months				
<1	1.6	1.5	1.2	648
1	0.9	0.9	0.7	629
2	0.7	0.7	0.6	636
3	0.3	0.3	0.3	657
4	0.1	0.1	0.0	699
Sex				
Male	0.8	0.8	0.6	1,619
Female	0.6	0.6	0.5	1,649
Residence				
Urban	1.1	0.9	0.8	567
Rural	0.7	0.7	0.5	2,702
Region				
Hhohho	0.1	0.1	0.0	850
Manzini	0.4	0.3	0.3	972
Shiselweni	0.8	0.8	0.7	796
Lubombo	2.0	2.0	1.5	650
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	1.1	1.1	0.8	746
Second	0.5	0.5	0.3	757
Middle	0.6	0.6	0.4	642
Fourth	0.4	0.4	0.4	611
Highest	1.2	1.0	0.9	512
Total	0.7	0.7	0.6	3,268

¹ An ever-treated net is a pretreated or a non-pretreated net which has subsequently been soaked with insecticide at any time.

 2 An insecticide-treated net (ITN) is 1) a factory-treated net that does not require any further treatment, 2) a pretreated net obtained within the past 12 months, or 3) a net that has been soaked with insecticide within the past 12 months.

Table 12.3 Use of mosquito nets by pregnant women

Percentage of all women age 15-49 and pregnant women age 15-49 who slept under a mosquito net (treated or untreated), an ever-treated mosquito net, and an insecticide-treated net (ITN) the night before the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percer	ntage of all we	omen age 1	5-49 who	Percentage of pregnant women age 15-49 who				
Background characteristic	Slept under any net last night	Slept under an ever- treated net last night ¹	Slept under an ITN last night ²	Number of women	Slept under any net last night	Slept under an ever- treated net last night ¹	Slept under an ITN last night ²	Number of women	
Residence			0				0		
Urban	0.7	0.6	0.5	1.464	0.8	0.8	0.8	78	
Rural	0.3	0.3	0.2	4,040	1.0	1.0	1.0	218	
Region									
Hhohho	0.1	0.1	0.0	1,478	0.0	0.0	0.0	74	
Manzini	0.2	0.2	0.1	1,816	0.0	0.0	0.0	98	
Shiselweni	0.2	0.2	0.2	1,143	1.5	1.5	1.5	63	
Lubombo	1.2	1.1	1.0	1,067	3.0	3.0	3.0	61	
Education									
No education	0.0	0.0	0.0	412	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	26	
Lower primary	0.9	0.9	0.9	429	(4.4)	(4.4)	(4.4)	27	
Higher primary	0.3	0.3	0.3	1,480	1.9	1.9	1.9	85	
Secondary	0.3	0.3	0.2	1,841	0.0	0.0	0.0	89	
High school	0.5	0.5	0.3	964	(0.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	44	
Tertiary	0.0	0.0	0.0	379	*	*	*	25	
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	0.4	0.4	0.4	860	2.0	2.0	2.0	61	
Second	0.3	0.3	0.0	948	0.0	0.0	0.0	56	
Middle	0.3	0.3	0.3	1,072	0.0	0.0	0.0	53	
Fourth	0.4	0.4	0.4	1,213	2.3	2.3	2.3	57	
Highest	0.5	0.4	0.3	1,411	0.4	0.4	0.4	69	
Total	0.4	0.4	0.3	5,503	0.9	0.9	0.9	296	

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ An ever-treated net is a pretreated or a non-pretreated net which has subsequently been soaked with insecticide at any time.

 2 An insecticide-treated net (ITN) is 1) a factory-treated net that does not require any further treatment, 2) a pretreated net obtained within the past 12 months, or 3) a net that has been soaked with insecticide within the past 12 months.

12.1.2 Intermittent Preventive Treatment (IPT) by Women during Pregnancy

Malaria during pregnancy is common among women living in countries that are malaria endemic. It is a contributory factor to low birth weight, infant mortality, maternal anaemia, spontaneous abortion, and still birth. The NMCP in Swaziland recommends Intermittent Preventative Treatment (IPT) with chloroquine for pregnant women during antenatal visits as a prophylactic measure during the high malaria transmission period in high malaria areas. The National Malaria Control Program (NMCP) recommends that pregnant women in high malaria areas who come for antenatal care receive prophylactic treatment of an antimalaria drug, usually chloroquine, once at the beginning of the second trimester of pregnancy and once at the beginning of their last trimester.

Table 12.4 provides information on the percentages of women who took any antimalarial drugs for prevention, who took chloroquine, and who received two or more doses of chloroquine for the last live birth in the last two years preceding the survey by background characteristics. Overall, 7 percent of women with a live birth in the two years prior to the survey report that they took antimalarial drugs for prevention. Most women were not able to identify the drug they received. Less than 1 percent of women reported that they received two or more doses of chloroquine during pregnancy and, thus, were classified as receiving Intermittent Preventative Treatment.

Women in the Lubombo region were considerably more likely than women in other regions to have taken an antimalarial drug during pregnancy. Although they were the most likely to have used an antimalarial for prevention, less than 1 percent of women in the Lubombo region reported receiving chloroquine at least twice during pregnancy and were thus considered to have received IPT.

Table 12.4 Prophylactic use of antimalarial drugs and use of Intermittent Preventive Treatment (IPT) by women during pregnancy

Percentages of women who took any antimalarial drugs for prevention, who took chloroquine, and who received Intermittent Preventive Treatment (IPT) during the pregnancy for their last live birth in the two years preceding the survey, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

				Number of women with a
	Percentage	Chloro	quine	live birth in the
	who took any	Percentage	Percentage	two years
Background	antimalarial	who took	who took	preceding
characteristic	drug	chloroquine	2 + doses	the survey
Residence				
Urban	5.2	1.6	1.2	253
Rural	7.5	0.7	0.3	910
Region				
Hhohho	2.6	0.4	0.0	312
Manzini	6.7	1.0	0.6	354
Shiselweni	5.6	0.0	0.0	247
Lubombo	14.5	2.2	1.4	250
Education				
No education	10.6	0.5	0.5	98
Lower primary	10.3	0.9	0.9	93
Higher primary	7.4	0.6	0.0	317
Secondary	6.3	1.1	0.7	400
High school	5.6	1.1	0.5	203
Tertiary	3.2	0.9	0.9	52
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	9.0	0.8	0.3	254
Second	5.2	0.7	0.7	243
Middle	4.1	0.5	0.0	247
Fourth	9.1	1.0	1.0	223
Highest	7.9	1.5	0.5	197
Total	7.0	0.9	0.5	1,163

12.1.3 Prompt Treatment of Fever in Children

Fever among children in malaria areas is mostly indicative of malaria. It is very important that children with symptoms of fever in such areas be treated promptly and symptomatically for malaria.

Table 12.5 shows the percentage of children under age five with fever in the two weeks preceding the survey, and among children with fever, the percentage who took antimalarial drugs, by background characteristics. More than a quarter (28 percent) of the children had had a fever in the two weeks preceding the survey. Fever was more prevalent among children in the Lubombo region than among children in other population subgroups. Most of these children with fever were not given an antimalarial drug to treat the fever. In interpreting these results, it should be noted that the SDHS fieldwork did not occur during the period of high malaria transmission.

Table 12.5 Prevalence and prompt treatment of fever

Percentage of children under age five with fever in the two weeks preceding the survey, and among children with fever, the percentage who took antimalarial drugs and the percentage who took the drugs the same or next day following the onset of fever, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among childre age five	en under e:	Among chil age five w	dren under /ith fever:
	Percentage with		Percentage	
	fever in the two		who took	
Background	weeks preceding	Number of	antimalarial	Number of
characteristic	the survey	children	drugs	children
Age (in months)				
<12	35.3	566	0.4	200
12-23	35.0	531	1.5	186
24-35	24.7	483	0.7	119
36-47	20.5	492	0.0	101
48-59	20.2	480	0.0	97
Sex of preceding birth				
Male	30.7	1,290	0.6	396
Female	24.3	1,263	0.6	307
Residence				
Urban	17.6	557	1.7	98
Rural	30.3	1 <i>,</i> 996	0.5	605
Region				
Hhohho	22.4	694	1.1	156
Manzini	22.0	784	0.0	173
Shiselweni	24.0	558	0.0	134
Lubombo	46.6	517	1.2	241
Mother's education				
No education	33.5	232	0.0	78
Lower primary	33.3	224	0.0	75
Higher primary	31.7	668	0.6	212
Secondary	24.8	865	1.6	214
High school	26.5	405	0.0	107
Tertiary	10.9	159	*	17
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	33.6	516	0.0	173
Second	31.8	556	0.5	177
Middle	25.6	501	0.0	128
Fourth	23.7	490	1.4	116
Highest	22.2	490	1.9	109
Total	27.5	2,553	0.6	703
Note: An asterisk indicates cases and has been suppre	s that an estimate is k essed.	based on few	er than 25 unv	veighted

12.1.4 Indoor Residual Spraying

Indoor residual spraying is another component of efforts to control malaria transmission in Swaziland. To obtain information on the prevalence of indoor residual spraying, all households interviewed in the SDHS were asked if the interior walls of their dwelling had been sprayed against mosquitoes during the year before the survey and, if yes, who had sprayed the dwelling and how many months it had been since the dwelling had been sprayed.

Table 12.6 shows that 12 percent of households reported that the interior walls of their dwelling had been sprayed, principally as part of a government programme. Indoor spraying rates do not vary much by urban-rural residence. The prevalence of indoor spraying varies from just over 1 percent in Manzini and Shiselweni to 46 percent in Lubombo. Households in the lowest wealth quintile are most likely to report that their house had been sprayed within the year prior to the survey.

Table 12.6 Interior wall of dwelling sprayed against mosquitoes										
Percentage of households reporting interior walls were sprayed against mosquitoes in the period 0-11 months prior to the survey, by the organisation or individual last spraying the walls, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006										
	Percentage of households reporting interior walls	e of lds ng Percentage of households reporting ralls interior walls sprayed by:								
	sprayed			Household	Don't					
Background	against	Government	Private	member/	know/	Number of				
characteristics	mosquitoes	programme	company	other	missing	households				
Residence										
Urban	10.6	7.5	2.3	0.3	0.5	1,565				
Rural	12.4	11.4	0.5	0.2	0.3	3,278				
Region										
Hhohho	5.9	5.1	0.5	0.2	0.1	1,370				
Manzini	1.1	0.1	0.6	0.4	0.0	1,537				
Shiselweni	1.4	1.4	0.0	0.0	0.0	931				
Lubombo	45.8	40.6	3.5	0.2	1.5	1,005				
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	19.5	18.2	0.8	0.0	0.5	824				
Second	14.4	13.8	0.1	0.0	0.5	805				
Middle	7.8	7.2	0.1	0.3	0.1	866				
Fourth	7.5	6.8	0.3	0.2	0.2	1,064				
Highest	11.4	7.5	3.0	0.6	0.4	1,284				
Total	11.8	10.2	1.1	0.2	0.3	4,843				

12.2 MALE CIRCUMCISION

Male circumcision involves the removal of some or all of the foreskin of the penis. Male circumcision is assumed to decrease the risk of HIV infection, in part because of physiological differences that reduce the susceptibility to HIV infection among circumcised men. Several recent studies in sub-Saharan Africa, including clinical trials conducted in South Africa, Kenya, and Uganda (Auvert et al., 2005; and NIAID, 2006), have documented that the protective effect of male circumcision may be significant.

In 2007, the Government of the Kingdom of Swaziland introduced a policy on male circumcision, which goal is to halt the spread of HIV infection to achieve an HIV-free generation in Swaziland. To meet this objective, male circumcision services, as part of the national comprehensive HIV prevention package, will be available to men of all ages. However, to maximize the public health benefit for HIV prevention, the primary targets of the services are men who are HIV-negative, age 15-24, and newborn babies.

The 2006-07 SDHS collected information on the prevalence of male circumcision and on attitudes relating to the practise. Table 12.7 provides information on the percentage of men age 15-49 circumcised according to selected background characteristics. The table also shows the percent distribution of circumcised men by the age when they were circumcised.

T

		Circumcised men: age at circumcision							
Background characteristic	Percentage circumcised	Number of men	Below age 13	13-19 years old	20 or more years	Missing	Total	Number o men circumcise	
Age									
15-19	4.2	1,323	84.2	8.8	na	7.0	100.0	55	
20-24	6.5	886	74.9	9.1	12.3	3.7	100.0	58	
25-29	7.9	624	72.1	11.7	16.2	0.0	100.0	49	
30-34	9.9	431	(55.3)	(24.1)	(20.6)	(0.0)	100.0	43	
35-39	19.7	367	56.9	16.4	25.6	1.1	100.0	72	
40-44	12.5	269	(50.7)	(20.3)	(29.0)	(0.0)	100.0	34	
45-49	11.9	256	(38.9)	(7.4)	(50.0)	(3.6)	100.0	30	
Residence									
Urban	13.3	1,181	67.5	8.8	23.7	0.0	100.0	157	
Rural	6.2	2,975	61.3	18.1	16.4	4.3	100.0	184	
Region									
Hhohho	9.2	1,099	66.0	13.9	18.4	1.6	100.0	101	
Manzini	9.2	1,349	69.6	7.9	22.6	0.0	100.0	124	
Shiselweni	6.7	843	54.2	27.3	11.1	7.4	100.0	57	
Lubombo	6.9	865	58.9	13.3	24.4	3.4	100.0	59	
Education									
No education	10.0	316	(48.8)	(12.6)	(35.1)	(3.5)	100.0	32	
Lower primary	8.0	470	(61.7)	(19.2)	(14.3)	(4.8)	100.0	38	
Higher primary	6.7	980	65.2	14.7	13.9	6.1	100.0	66	
Secondary +	8.6	2,389	66.6	12.7	20.2	0.5	100.0	206	
Wealth quintile			((2.2.1)		<i></i>			
Lowest	5.5	601	(42.8)	(29.1)	(16.3)	(11.7)	100.0	33	
Second	6.3	665	(70.6)	(7.8)	(19.3)	(2.2)	100.0	42	
Middle	6.1	856	(69.6)	(16.9)	(11.4)	(2.1)	100.0	52	
Fourth	9.0	953	67.7	14.5	16.5	1.4	100.0	86	
Highest	11.9	1,081	62.8	10.2	26.4	0.6	100.0	128	
Total 15-49	8.2	4,156	64.1	13.8	19.8	2.3	100.0	341	

Eight percent of men age 15-49 are circumcised. Older men are markedly more likely than younger men to have been circumcised, with the rate peaking at 20 percent among men age 35-39 years. Urban men (13 percent) are more than twice as likely to be circumcised compared with rural men (6 percent). The circumcision rate among men is slightly higher in the Hhohho and Manzini regions compared with the rate in Shiselweni and Lubombo. Twelve percent of men in the highest wealth quintile are circumcised compared with 6 percent of men in the bottom three wealth quintiles.

Slightly less than two-thirds of men who were circumcised were less than 13 years old when the circumcision was performed, 14 percent were circumcised between the ages of 13 and 19, and 20 percent were circumcised at age 20 or older. Older men typically report being circumcised at older ages than younger men.

Table 12.8 provides information on men age 15-49 who are not circumcised and who want to be circumcised in the future, according to background characteristics. Four in ten men age 15-49 who are not yet circumcised indicate that they are interested in being circumcised in the future. Looking at the variation with a man's age, the percentage interested in circumcision peaks at just over 50 percent among men age 25-34 years. Urban men are somewhat more likely than rural men to say they want to be circumcised (49 percent and 41 percent, respectively). Men from Shiselweni are noticeably less likely than men from the other regions to want to be circumcised. Men with a secondary or higher education and men in the fourth and fifth wealth quintiles are somewhat more likely to be interested in having a circumcision performed than more disadvantaged men.

Table 12.8 Desire to be circumcised

Distribution of men age 15-49 who are not circumcised by desire to be circumcised in the future, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	E					
Background characteristic	Want to be circumcised	Do not want to be	Don't know	Missing	Total	Number of uncircumcised men
Age						
15-19	36.1	61.4	2.5	0.0	100.0	1,268
20-24	45.2	51.6	3.2	0.0	100.0	828
25-29	51.7	45.5	2.5	0.2	100.0	574
30-34	51.3	46.1	2.5	0.1	100.0	388
35-39	46.0	49.9	3.6	0.4	100.0	295
40-44	39.8	58.2	2.0	0.0	100.0	235
45-49	37.6	57.1	5.3	0.0	100.0	226
Residence						
Urban	49.1	47.4	3.3	0.2	100.0	1,024
Rural	40.9	56.4	2.7	0.0	100.0	2,791
Region						
Hhohho	44.5	52.2	3.2	0.1	100.0	998
Manzini	46.4	50.1	3.5	0.0	100.0	1,224
Shiselweni	36.2	61.1	2.6	0.1	100.0	787
Lubombo	42.9	55.2	1.9	0.0	100.0	805
Education						
No education	36.5	59.6	3.8	0.0	100.0	285
Lower primary	35.6	60.6	3.8	0.0	100.0	432
Higher primary	37.4	60.0	2.6	0.0	100.0	915
Secondary +	47.8	49.4	2.7	0.1	100.0	2,183
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	35.8	62.2	2.1	0.0	100.0	569
Second	36.9	59.9	3.2	0.0	100.0	623
Middle	43.8	53.5	2.7	0.0	100.0	804
Fourth	46.8	50.0	3.2	0.1	100.0	866
Highest	47.5	49.2	3.1	0.2	100.0	952
Total 15-49	43.1	54.0	2.9	0.1	100.0	3,815

The SDHS also included several questions to ascertain the reasons men have for wanting and not wanting to be circumcised (data not shown in table). The majority of men who already are circumcised cite health/hygiene (74 percent) as the principal reason for the decision to be circumcised. Health/hygiene is also the factor motivating the vast majority of men who had not yet been circumcised but said they would like to have the procedure performed (96 percent). Men who do not want to be circumcised most often mention the pain (52 percent) involved in the procedure as the reason they do not want to be circumcised. Other reasons these men cited included concern about the physical changes involved in the procedure (11 percent), tradition/religion (10 percent), fear (6 percent), and older age (6 percent).

12.3 HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE

Health insurance can enhance an individual's access to health care. Tables 12.9.1 and 12.9.2 show that only a small minority of women and men age 15-49 in Swaziland are covered by any type of health insurance. Men are somewhat more likely than women to have coverage (8 percent and 5 percent, respectively). Among men, health insurance coverage increases markedly with age while the pattern is less uniform among women. Among both women and men, coverage is most frequent for urban residents, those with a tertiary education, and those in the highest wealth quintile.

Table 12.9.1 Health insurance coverage: Women										
Percentage of wome according to backgro	Percentage of women age 15-49 with specific types of health insurance coverage, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006									
Background characteristic	Employer- based	Self	Employer and self	Other	None	Number				
Age										
15-19	0.8	0.9	0.3	1.2	96.8	1,274				
20-24	0.9	1.0	0.3	0.5	97.3	1,046				
25-29	0.2	1.1	0.5	0.3	97.8	729				
30-34	2.2	2.6	2.3	0.6	92.5	616				
35-39	2.4	2.5	3.6	0.3	91.2	503				
40-44	1.3	2.1	1.6	0.4	94.5	438				
45-49	1.4	3.3	1.4	0.1	93.7	383				
Residence										
Urban	2.9	4.2	2.7	1.9	88.4	1,330				
Rural	0.6	0.7	0.5	0.2	98.1	3,657				
Region										
Hhohho	1.0	2.0	1.9	1.0	94.2	1.340				
Manzini	1.3	2.6	1.4	0.4	94.3	1,647				
Shiselweni	0.4	0.2	0.2	0.1	99.1	1,033				
Lubombo	2.1	0.9	0.4	1.1	95.5	966				
Education										
No education	0.4	0.4	0.0	0.0	99.2	402				
Lower primary	0.8	0.0	0.3	0.1	98.8	360				
Higher primary	0.8	0.2	0.3	0.0	98.7	1,268				
Secondary	0.9	1.2	0.4	0.5	96.9	1,693				
High school	1.6	1.8	1.7	1.5	93.5	894				
Tertiary	3.9	10.7	7.3	2.3	75.7	370				
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.0	99.5	785				
Second	0.0	0.3	0.0	0.0	99.7	862				
Middle	0.4	0.3	0.1	0.5	98.7	968				
Fourth	0.9	0.9	0.5	0.1	97.7	1,111				
Highest	3.4	5.0	3.7	2.1	85.9	1,262				
Total	1.2	1.6	1.1	0.6	95.5	4,987				

Table 12.9.2 Health insurance coverage: Men

Percentage of men age 15-49 with specific types of health insurance coverage, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006

Background	Employer-		Employer			
characteristic	based	Self	and self	Other	None	Number
Age						
15-19	0.4	0.7	0.0	2.6	96.3	1,323
20-24	1.2	0.9	0.4	2.7	94.8	886
25-29	6.1	1.3	1.2	0.9	90.5	624
30-34	5.4	0.8	1.0	1.5	91.3	431
35-39	7.4	2.2	4.1	0.8	85.6	367
40-44	11.2	1.9	3.0	2.8	81.1	269
45-49	8.7	3.6	3.5	1.3	82.9	256
Residence						
Urban	9.1	2.7	2.7	4.4	81.1	1,181
Rural	1.7	0.6	0.5	1.1	96.1	2,975
Region						
Hhohho	4.2	1.3	1.3	1.6	91.7	1,099
Manzini	2.8	1.7	1.2	3.4	90.8	1,349
Shiselweni	1.2	0.5	0.7	0.2	97.4	843
Lubombo	7.4	1.1	1.3	2.1	88.1	865
Education						
No education	5.0	0.9	0.8	0.0	93.3	316
Lower primary	2.6	0.3	0.2	0.4	96.5	470
Higher primary	2.8	0.6	0.4	0.6	95.7	980
Secondary	2.6	0.8	0.3	2.4	93.9	1,191
High school	4.6	1.5	1.2	3.0	89.7	852
Tertiary	9.1	5.5	7.8	6.2	71.3	347
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	0.9	0.5	0.0	0.7	97.9	601
Second	0.9	0.0	0.3	0.3	98.5	665
Middle	1.8	0.4	0.5	0.6	96.7	856
Fourth	4.1	0.8	0.3	1.2	93.6	953
Highest	8.5	3.4	3.5	5.7	78.9	1,081
Total 15-49	3.8	1.2	1.1	2.0	91.8	4,156

12.4 KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES TOWARDS TUBERCULOSIS

Tuberculosis (TB) is considered to be among the top public health problems in Swaziland. The SDHS obtained information from respondents about whether they had heard about TB and, if so, how it was transmitted. Respondents who knew about TB were also asked if they believed it could be cured. In addition, to assess attitudes toward the illness, respondents knowing about TB were questioned about whether or not they would want to keep it secret if a family member had TB.

According to the results in Tables 12.10.1 and 12.10.2, virtually all women and men age 15-49 in Swaziland have heard about TB. Around eight in ten women and men who had heard of TB also correctly identify that TB can be spread through the air when an infected individual coughs or sneezes. Among those knowing about TB, 91 percent of women and 87 percent of men believe it can be cured. Regardless of their sex, urban residents are somewhat more knowledgeable than rural residents about the way TB is transmitted and the fact that TB is curable. Knowledge levels tend to rise with education and wealth among both women and men.

The SDHS also found that relatively little stigma is attached to TB, as evidenced by the fact that if a family member had TB, only one in ten women and men say they would prefer to keep it a secret. There was little variation in this percentage by background characteristics.

Table 12.10.1 Knowledge and attitudes concerning tuberculosis: Women

Percentage of women age 15-49 who have heard of tuberculosis (TB), and among women who have heard of TB, the percentage who know that TB is spread through the air by coughing, the percentage who believe that TB can be cured, and the percentage who would want to keep secret that a family member has TB, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006

			Among respondents who have heard of TB					
			Percentage		Percentage			
	Among all re	espondents	who report that	Percentage	who would			
	Percentage		TB is spread	who believe	want a family			
Background	who have		through the air	that TB can	member's TB			
characteristic	heard of TB	Number	by coughing	be cured	kept secret	Number		
Age								
15-19	95.9	1,274	80.2	81.1	17.0	1,221		
20-24	98.3	1,046	81.9	92.4	9.1	1,028		
25-29	98.6	729	84.9	94.2	8.1	719		
30-34	98.2	616	86.9	96.3	6.4	605		
35-39	98.3	503	83.1	94.2	9.4	494		
40-44	98.6	438	82.4	94.3	5.1	432		
45-49	97.2	383	77.5	94.5	7.8	372		
Residence								
Urban	98.7	1,330	87.2	93.4	8.3	1,312		
Rural	97.3	3,657	80.6	89.9	10.9	3,558		
Region								
Hhohho	97.7	1,340	83.7	91.2	11.3	1,310		
Manzini	97.6	1,647	86.3	91.9	9.1	1,608		
Shiselweni	97.8	1,033	79.7	89.8	10.7	1,011		
Lubombo	97.5	966	76.8	89.5	9.9	942		
Education								
No education	95.2	402	64.2	85.6	11.5	383		
Lower primary	92.7	360	69.3	86.2	13.4	333		
Higher primary	97.2	1,268	78.3	88.9	14.0	1,233		
Secondary	98.4	1,693	85.9	90.5	9.6	1,665		
High school	99.6	894	89.3	95.6	6.6	891		
Tertiary	98.9	370	94.3	96.6	4.7	366		
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	95.5	785	70.8	87.1	13.3	749		
Second	96.4	862	78.0	89.7	10.9	831		
Middle	98.2	968	83.7	91.4	10.1	951		
Fourth	98.3	1,111	85.2	91.2	10.0	1,092		
Highest	98.9	1,262	88.8	93.0	8.0	1,248		
Total	97.7	4,987	82.4	90.8	10.2	4,871		

Table 12.10.2 Knowledge and attitudes concerning tuberculosis: Men

Percentage of men age 15-49 who have heard of tuberculosis (TB), and among men who have heard of TB, the percentage who know that TB is spread through the air by coughing, the percentage who believe that TB can be cured, and the percentage who would want to keep secret that a family member has TB, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006

			Among respondents who have heard of TB:					
			Percentage		Percentage			
	Among all re	spondents	who report that	Percentage	who would			
	Percentage		TB is spread	who believe	want a family			
Background	who have		through the air	that TB can	member's TB			
characteristic	heard of TB	Number	by coughing	be cured	kept secret	Number		
Age								
15-19	96.7	1,323	79.1	75.5	16.2	1,279		
20-24	98.0	886	80.4	87.7	9.7	869		
25-29	98.9	624	80.6	92.2	7.6	617		
30-34	98.4	431	80.2	95.0	5.6	424		
35-39	98.3	367	80.3	94.7	4.5	361		
40-44	99.3	269	74.7	92.3	7.3	267		
45-49	99.7	256	68.7	95.0	6.4	255		
Residence								
Urban	98.7	1,181	83.7	90.8	8.1	1,166		
Rural	97.7	2,975	76.9	85.0	11.0	2,906		
Region								
Hhohho	98.4	1,099	79.6	90.3	8.7	1,082		
Manzini	98.5	1,349	80.6	84.1	9.6	1,328		
Shiselweni	97.1	843	77.8	85.3	11.0	819		
Lubombo	97.5	865	76.2	87.5	12.2	843		
Education								
No education	95.2	316	52.7	82.7	10.9	301		
Lower primary	95.1	470	61.1	79.5	14.9	447		
Higher primary	97.1	980	73.9	80.6	12.8	952		
Secondary	99.0	1,191	84.1	87.4	9.4	1,179		
High school	99.6	852	89.3	93.3	7.3	848		
Tertiary	99.5	347	94.7	98.0	6.0	345		
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	96.2	601	66.5	84.9	12.1	578		
Second	97.8	665	74.7	82.6	12.0	651		
Middle	97.7	856	78.1	84.5	11.5	836		
Fourth	97.8	953	80.0	86.7	10.5	932		
Highest	99.4	1,081	87.6	91.9	6.6	1,075		
Total 15-49	98.0	4,156	78.9	86.7	10.2	4,072		

12.5 USE OF TOBACCO

The use of tobacco negatively affects a person's health. Moreover, even if an individual does not smoke tobacco but other household members do within the home, all members of the household are exposed to second-hand tobacco smoke or "environmental" tobacco smoke (ETS). ETS contributes to a number of adverse health effects including increased risk of respiratory and cardiovascular illnesses, especially for young children (WHO, 1999).

The 2006-07 SDHS collected information on women's and men's use of tobacco. Table 12.10 presents these findings.

Overall, 2 percent of women age 15-49 smoke cigarettes or use some form of tobacco, compared with 22 percent of men. The small number of women who reported tobacco use were as likely to use some other form of tobacco as to smoke cigarettes. Among men, 14 percent smoke cigarettes and 8 percent use other forms of tobacco. Among men who smoke cigarettes, 24 percent smoked 1-2 cigarettes in the 24 hours preceding the survey, 35 percent smoked 3-5 cigarettes, and 31 percent smoked 6 or more cigarettes (data not shown).

Table 12.11 shows that, among women, tobacco use increases with age, although even among women age 40-49, only 6 percent report tobacco use. Tobacco use also rises with age among men, with the age differential being more pronounced among men than women. Around one-third of men age 35-49 use tobacco compared with 3 percent of men age 15-19. Tobacco use does not vary by urban-rural residence. For both women and men, use is highest among those with no education and those in the lowest wealth quintile.

Table 12.11 Use of tobacco

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who smoke cigarettes or a pipe or use other tobacco products, according to background characteristics and maternity status, Swaziland 2006

			Women					Men		
				Does					Does not	
			Other	not use	Number of			Other	use	Number
Background characteristic	Cigarettes	Pipe	tobacco	tobacco	women	Cigarettes	Pipe	tobacco	tobacco	of men
Age										
15-19	0.3	0.0	0.2	99.6	1,274	2.2	0.2	1.3	97.3	1,323
20-24	1.2	0.2	0.3	98.6	1,046	12.6	1.1	5.7	85.7	886
25-29	0.9	0.1	0.6	98.4	729	17.1	1.5	8.8	79.3	624
30-34	1.6	0.0	0.9	97.6	616	22.6	2.0	11.8	72.5	431
35-39	2.1	0.0	1.5	96.7	503	26.4	2.3	11.6	68.4	367
40-44	1.8	0.0	3.6	94.4	438	25.5	1.9	12.2	68.2	269
45-49	1.4	0.0	4.4	94.3	383	25.5	5.3	9.6	69.0	256
Maternity status										
Pregnant	1.3	0.0	0.6	98.0	279	na	na	na	na	na
Breastfeeding (not pregnant)	0.3	0.0	0.3	99.2	766	na	na	na	na	na
Neither	1.3	0.1	1.3	97.5	3,942	na	na	na	na	na
Residence										
Urban	2.2	0.1	0.3	97.7	1.330	15.0	0.8	6.4	83.0	1.181
Rural	0.7	0.0	1.4	97.9	3,657	13.4	1.6	6.7	83.5	2,975
Pagion					,					,
Hooho	17	0.1	0.9	97 5	1 340	15.8	11	74	81.4	1 099
Manzini	1.7	0.1	0.5	97.5	1,540	14.4	2.1	5.5	83.6	1 349
Shiselweni	0.5	0.1	2.0	97.5	1,047	11 1	14	6.0	85.5	843
Lubombo	0.9	0.0	1.0	97.8	966	13.1	0.6	7.8	83.4	865
	015	0.0		5710	500	1911	0.0	/10	0011	000
Education	1.0	0.0	F 0	02.2	402	24.1	4.0	10.4	<u> </u>	210
No education	1.9	0.0	2.0	92.3	402	24.1	4.0	12.4	09./ 70.2	310
Higher primary	0.7	0.0	2.0	90.5	1 268	14.0	1.7	7.7	/ 9.2	470
Secondary	0.7	0.1	0.4	90.2	1,200	12.4	2.0	7.7 5.1	86.4	1 1 9 0 0
High school	1.4	0.0	0.4	98.4	894	12.1	0.0	5.1	85.4	852
Tertiary	2.5	0.1	0.2	97.5	370	15.1	0.5	14	84.6	347
	2.5	0.0	0.0	57.5	570	15.1	0.5	1.1	01.0	517
Wealth quintile	o -	0.0	2.6	0.6 7		47.0	4.0	12.0	76 7	604
Lowest	0./	0.0	2.6	96.7	/85	17.2	1.6	12.9	/6./	601
Second	1.0	0.0	1.1	9/./	862	13.2	1.5	7.4	83.5	665
/vildale	0.7	0.0	1.3	90.1	900	14.1	1.0	6.9	02.0	020
FOURIN	1.1	0.0	0.6	98.5 07 7	1,111	13.0	1.4	5.0	04.0 86.5	953
rignest	1.9	0.2	0.5	97.7	1,202	12.3	0.7	3./	00.0	1,001
Total	1.1	0.1	1.1	97.8	4,987	13.8	1.4	6.6	83.4	4,156
na = Not applicable										

Rejoice Nkambule

13.1 INTRODUCTION

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) is caused by a human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) that weakens the immune system, making the body susceptible to and unable to recover from other opportunistic diseases that lead to death. The predominant mode of HIV transmission is through heterosexual contact, followed by perinatal transmission, in which the mother passes the virus to the child during pregnancy, delivery, or breastfeeding. Other modes of transmission are through infected blood, unsafe injections, and various skin-piercing practices.

The future course of Swaziland's AIDS epidemic depends on a number of variables including levels of HIV/AIDS-related knowledge in the general population; social stigmatisation; risk behaviour modification; access to high-quality services for sexually transmitted infections (STI); provision and uptake of HIV testing and counselling; and access to care and antiretroviral therapy (ART), including prevention and treatment of opportunistic infections. The principal objective of this chapter is to establish the prevalence of relevant knowledge, perceptions, and behaviours at the national level and also within geographic and socioeconomic subpopulations. In this way, prevention programmes can target those groups of individuals most in need of information and most at risk of HIV infection.

In this chapter, indicators for HIV/AIDS knowledge, attitudes, and behaviour are presented for the general adult population, including women and men age 15-49 and those age 50 and over. The chapter then focuses on HIV/AIDS knowledge and patterns of sexual activity among young people, as they are the main target of many HIV prevention efforts.

13.2 HIV/AIDS KNOWLEDGE, TRANSMISSION, AND PREVENTION

13.2.1 Awareness of HIV and AIDS

SDHS respondents were asked whether they had heard of HIV or AIDS. Those who reported having heard of HIV or AIDS were asked a number of questions about whether and how HIV/AIDS could be avoided.

Table 13.1 shows that knowledge of AIDS in Swaziland is universal. Practically all women and men age 15-49 have heard about AIDS. Among older adults age 50 and over, 96 percent women and 97 percent of men have heard about AIDS. The results show that there are almost no differences in knowledge of AIDS by age, marital status, urban-rural residence, region, education level, or wealth index.

Table 13.1 Knowledge of AIDS

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who have heard of AIDS by background characteristics and percentage of women and men age 50 and over who have heard of AIDS, Swaziland 2006-07

	Wo	men	М	en
Background	Has heard	Number of	Has heard	Number of
characteristic	of AIDS	women	of AIDS	men
Age				
15-24	99.8	2,320	99.0	2,209
15-19	99.8	1,274	98.6	1,323
20-24	99.9	1,046	99.6	886
25-29	99.8	729	99.5	624
30-39	99.6	1,118	99.8	798
40-49	99.6	820	99.8	525
Marital status				
Never married	99.9	2,487	99.1	2,734
Ever had sex	100.0	1,607	99.6	1,458
Never had sex	99.7	880	98.6	1,276
Married/living together	99.6	2,062	99.7	1,219
Divorced/separated/widowed	100.0	438	100.0	203
Residence				
Urban	100.0	1,330	99.6	1,181
Rural	99.7	3,657	99.2	2,975
Region				
Hhohho	99.9	1,340	99.7	1,099
Manzini	99.7	1,647	99.5	1,349
Shiselweni	99.7	1,033	99.2	843
Lubombo	99.8	966	98.8	865
Education				
No education	98.6	402	97.8	316
Lower primary	99.3	360	97.5	470
Higher primary	99.8	1,268	99.3	980
Secondary	99.9	1,693	99.8	1,191
High school	100.0	894	100.0	852
Tertiary	100.0	370	99.9	347
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	99.0	785	98.5	601
Second	99.9	862	99.5	665
Middle	99.9	968	98.8	856
Fourth	99.9	1,111	99.7	953
Highest	100.0	1,262	99.7	1,081
Total 15-49	99.8	4,987	99.3	4,156
Total 50+	96.2	669	97.4	444

13.2.2 Knowledge of HIV Prevention

HIV among adults is most commonly transmitted by heterosexual contact between an infected partner and a non-infected partner. Consequently, HIV prevention programmes focus their messages and efforts on three important types of behaviour: use of condoms; limiting the number of sexual partners or staying faithful to one partner; and, for young persons, delaying sexual debut (abstinence). To ascertain whether the programmes have been effective in communicating these messages, SDHS respondents were specifically asked whether it is possible to reduce the chances of getting HIV by using a condom at every sexual encounter, limiting sexual intercourse to one uninfected partner, and abstaining from sex.

Table 13.2 shows levels of knowledge of the various HIV prevention methods by background characteristics. The data indicate that knowledge of HIV prevention methods is generally high among women and men age 15-49—more than 80 percent for each of the stipulated methods—but lower among women and men age 50 and over. The level of knowledge among women age 15-49 is generally higher than that among men age 15-49. However, older women are less knowledgeable than older men.

Table 13.2 Knowledge of HIV prevention methods

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who, in response to prompted questions, say that people can reduce the risk of getting the AIDS virus by using condoms every time they have sexual intercourse, by having one sex partner who is not infected and has no other partners, and by abstaining from sexual intercourse, by background characteristics, and percentage of women and men age 50 and over who know the various HIV prevention methods, Swaziland 2006-07

			Women					Men		
			Using							
			condoms					Using		
		1 :	and				1 :	condoms		
		Limiung	limiting				Limiung	and limiting		
		sexual	intorcourco	Abstaining			sexual	intorcourco	Abstaining	
		to ono	to ono	from			to ono	to ono	from	
Background	Using	uninfected	uninfected		Number of	Using	uninfected	uninfected		Number of
characteristic	condoms ¹	nartner ²	nartner ^{1,2}	intercourse	women	condoms ¹	nartner ²	nartner ^{1,2}	intercourse	men
·	condoms	partitei	partitei	Intercourse	wonnen	condoms	partitei	partici	Intercourse	men
Age			0 - 4			0 - 1	00.0			
15-24	88./	92.3	85.1	93.8	2,320	87.1	90.6	83.0	93.2	2,209
15-19	86.9	90./	82.7	93.4	1,2/4	86.4	89.2	81./	92.8	1,323
20-24	91.0	94.2	88.0	94.2	1,046	88.3	92.6	84.8	93.9	886
25-29	94.2	94.3	90.4	94.0	/29	87.2	91.3	83.1	93.8	624
30-39	92.5	93.1	88.4	95.5	1,118	88.2	92.8	85.0	93./	/98
40-49	90.0	93.0	86.2	94.4	820	85.6	90.0	81.6	91.4	525
Marital status										
Never married	89.5	92.7	85.7	94.3	2,487	87.3	90.6	83.0	93.5	2,734
Ever had sex	92.0	93.9	88.4	95.1	1,607	89.0	92.1	85.4	94.5	1,458
Never had sex	85.0	90.6	80.8	93.0	880	85.3	88.8	80.2	92.4	1,276
Married/living together Divorced/separated/	91.7	93.5	88.4	94.2	2,062	86.8	91.8	83.5	92.9	1,219
widowed	91.5	91.0	84.8	94.4	438	87.8	92.7	84.2	89.9	203
Residence										
Urban	93.6	95.3	90.7	95.7	1,330	88.6	91.4	84.4	93.9	1,181
Rural	89.4	92.0	85.3	93.8	3,657	86.6	90.9	82.7	92.9	2,975
Region										
Hhohho	91.6	93.8	88.9	94.4	1.340	88.3	93.7	85.3	94.9	1.099
Manzini	90.9	92.7	86.8	96.0	1.647	86.9	89.1	81.9	94.2	1.349
Shiselweni	91.2	93.1	87.2	92.1	1.033	90.1	91.1	86.4	92.5	843
Lubombo	88.0	91.6	83.4	93.8	966	83.3	90.5	79.5	90.1	865
Education										
No education	84 8	85.5	77 7	88.8	402	76.2	85.2	71.0	84.6	316
Lower primary	84.6	85.8	77 7	90.3	360	79.6	82.9	73.7	88.7	470
Higher primary	89.7	91.4	85.4	93.3	1 268	85.0	90.0	80.2	90.7	980
Secondary	91.6	94.4	88.4	95.0	1 693	89.4	92.6	86.1	96.1	1 191
High school	93.6	96.4	91.1	97.4	894	92.4	95.0	89.6	97.0	852
Tertiary	93.9	97.1	92.3	97.0	370	92.7	95.3	89.8	94.4	347
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	85.1	88.6	79.6	90.6	785	80.3	86.9	75 5	89.3	601
Second	90.1	91.3	85.7	93.6	862	85.4	90.1	81 7	93.0	665
Middle	89.5	92.0	85.1	94.8	968	89.0	92.2	86.4	93.1	856
Fourth	92.3	94.4	89.1	94.8	1 1 1 1	88.9	91.4	84 2	94.5	953
Highest	93.5	95.9	91.3	96.3	1,262	89.0	92.6	85.1	94.3	1,081
	00.0		0.6.0		=	0= 0	01.0			
Total 15-49	90.6	92.9	86.8	94.3	4,987	87.2	91.0	83.2	93.2	4,156
Total 50+	69.9	76.7	61.5	83.0	669	71.0	83.1	65.6	85.1	444
¹ Using condoms every time	they have se	ual intercou	Irse							

² Partner who has no other partners

There are differentials in knowledge of prevention methods according to level of education and wealth quintile. For example, while 78 percent of women and 71 percent of men with no education know that using condoms and limiting sex to one uninfected partner are ways to avoid HIV transmission, these proportions increase to 92 percent for women and 90 percent for men with tertiary education. A similar growth pattern is seen by wealth quintile. Women and men living in households in the lowest wealth quintile have lower levels of knowledge of HIV prevention methods than those living in households in the highest wealth quintile.

13.2.3 Rejection of Misconceptions about HIV/AIDS

In addition to knowing about effective ways to avoid contracting HIV, it is also useful to be able to identify incorrect beliefs about AIDS to eliminate misconceptions. Common misconceptions about HIV and AIDS include the idea that HIV-infected people always appear ill, and the belief that the virus can be transmitted through mosquito or other insect bites, by sharing food with someone who is infected, or by witchcraft or other supernatural means. Other misconceptions include the belief that the virus cannot be transmitted through anal or oral sex and that a person cannot be infected by being exposed to open wounds or sores. Respondents were asked about these misconceptions and the findings are presented in Tables 13.3.1 and 13.3.2.

The results indicate that a high proportion of the Swazi population age 15-49 lack accurate knowledge about the ways in which HIV can and cannot be transmitted. The percentages who correctly say that a healthy-looking person can have HIV, and reject the two most common local misconceptions about the transmission of HIV, are 58 percent for women and 59 percent for men. The figures are lower for persons age 50 and over, 24 percent for women and 31 percent for men. However, it is worth noting that for the indicator about knowing that a healthy-looking person can have HIV, there is a generally high level of knowledge, above 90 percent for those age 15-49 and 79-86 percent for those age 50 and over. The level of education attained and household wealth status both appear to be strongly related to accurate knowledge about ways in which HIV can and cannot be transmitted. The lower the education level and wealth quintile, the lower the level of accurate knowledge about HIV transmission.

About six in ten women and men are aware that HIV can be transmitted through anal sex or oral sex. Correct knowledge with respect to these types of transmission increases with age, education, and wealth status. Urban respondents are more knowledgeable than rural respondents, but there are no significant differences across regions. Older adults (age 50 and over) are less likely to know that the AIDS virus can be transmitted by having anal sex or oral sex.

Almost all women and men say that a person can be infected with the AIDS virus from open wounds or sores of an infected person (96 percent for both women and men). The proportions are lower for older adults (80 percent for women and 84 percent for men).

About six in ten women and men say that HIV cannot be transmitted through oral and anal sex. Knowledge of these types of transmission increases with age, education and wealth status. Urban respondents are more knowledgeable than rural respondents, but there are no significant differences across regions. Older adults (age 50 or older) are less likely to know that having anal sex or oral sex can transmit HIV.

The data in Tables 13.3.1 and 13.3.2 also provide an assessment of the level of comprehensive knowledge of HIV prevention and transmission. Comprehensive knowledge is defined as knowing that consistent use of condoms during sexual intercourse and having just one uninfected faithful partner can reduce the chances of getting HIV, knowing that a healthy-looking person can have HIV and rejecting the two most common local misconceptions about HIV transmission or prevention: that HIV can be transmitted by mosquito bites and by sharing food with a person who has HIV or AIDS. The results indicate that 52 percent of women and 51 percent of men age 15-49 have comprehensive knowledge of HIV prevention and transmission. Comprehensive knowledge levels are lower for those age 50 and over, 21 percent for women and 25 percent for men. The urban population has a higher level of the comprehensive knowledge of HIV than the rural population, and level of education and wealth quintile are directly related to level of comprehensive knowledge of HIV prevention and transmission.

Table 13.3.1 Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS: Women

Percentage of women age 15-49 who say that a healthy-looking person can have the AIDS virus and who, in response to prompted questions, correctly reject local misconceptions about AIDS transmission or prevention, and the percentage with a comprehensive knowledge about AIDS by background characteristics, and percentage of women age 50 and over rejecting local misconceptions and having comprehensive knowledge about AIDS, Swaziland 2006-07

			Percer	ntage of resp	ondents who say	that:				
				A person	A healthy-			A person		
				cannot	looking			can		
	А		AIDS	become	person can			become	Percentage	
	healthy-	AIDS	cannot be	infected	have the	A person	A person	infected	with a	
	looking	cannot	trans-	by sharing	AIDS virus and	can	can	by being	compre-	
	person	be trans-	mitted by	food with	who reject	become	become	exposed	hensive	
	can have	mitted by	super-	a person	the two most	infected	infected	to open	knowledge	Number
Background	the AIDS	mosquito	natural	who has	common local	by having	by having	wounds/	about	of
characteristic	virus	bites	means	AIDS	misconceptions	anal sex	oral sex	sores	AIDS	women
Age										
15-24	96.0	66.7	93.2	85.6	59.7	51.1	57.6	95.6	52.1	2,320
15-19	94.6	68.8	92.8	86.7	60.9	46.9	52.3	95.3	52.0	1,274
20-24	97.7	64.1	93.8	84.2	58.3	56.3	64.0	95.9	52.2	1,046
25-29	98.3	67.5	92.6	85.2	61.2	62.8	67.4	95.7	57.5	729
30-39	96.7	65.9	92.6	80.5	56.3	66.0	70.9	96.5	52.2	1,118
40-49	93.8	61.1	88.7	72.5	49.6	59.4	67.9	95.4	45.9	820
Marital status										
Never married	95.9	69.6	93.6	87.0	62.6	53.2	60.3	95.6	55.3	2,487
Ever had sex	96.5	66.8	93.6	85.9	60.2	55.6	64.1	95.6	54.6	1,607
Never had sex	95.0	74.7	93.6	89.1	67.0	48.9	53.4	95.4	56.6	880
Married/living										
together	96.2	62.0	91.1	77.4	52.3	61.6	66.3	95.9	48.6	2,062
Divorced/separated/										
widowed	96.8	61.2	89.8	77.7	53.1	63.0	70.7	96.4	47.6	438
Residence										
Urban	98.5	74.2	94.1	87.0	68.2	68.4	70.5	97.4	62.6	1,330
Rural	95.3	62.6	91.6	80.5	53.6	53.6	61.2	95.2	48.0	3,657
Region										
Hhohho	97.2	69.8	93.6	82.9	61.2	58.1	64.8	96.4	55.7	1.340
Manzini	97.0	69.8	93.5	84.6	62.4	60.8	65.6	95.6	56.1	1.647
Shiselweni	95.0	57.0	90.3	82.8	49.9	53.4	59.6	95.5	45.8	1.033
Lubombo	94.4	62.3	90.3	76.6	52.2	55.7	63.2	95.5	45.8	966
Education										
No education	87.8	40.6	80.7	56.0	20.0	47.8	58.0	80.5	26.2	402
Lower primary	07.0	40.0 E1.0	84.2	50.9	29.9	47.0 EQ 1	50.0 63.2	09.5	20.5	260
Lower primary Higher primary	07.0	54.0	04.2	79.2	45.6	JO.1 40.5	56.8	95.0	29.0	1 268
Socondany	94.7	70.3	90.9	79.3 87.3	43.0	49.J 56.2	62.8	90.0	56.5	1,200
High school	90.0	80.0	94.7	80.8	74.1	64.4	69.6	90.0	68.9	804
Tortion	99.5	80.0	90.7	04.8	25.5	84.0	84.8	97.1	80.5	370
rentary	99.0	09.0	55.4	94.0	05.5	04.0	04.0	37.4	00.5	370
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	89.4	51.4	85.4	69.5	39.9	46.7	55.5	93.3	34.8	785
Second	95.3	58.4	91.2	77.8	47.9	50.7	56.9	95.1	42.1	862
Middle	97.1	64.1	93.7	81.5	55.2	53.8	62.9	96.9	50.0	968
Fourth	97.3	70.5	93.5	87.3	63.5	59.2	65.3	96.2	56.9	1,111
Highest	99.1	76.5	95.0	89.2	71.5	70.3	72.7	96.6	66.2	1,262
Total 15-49	96.1	65.7	92.3	82.2	57.5	57.5	63.7	95.8	51.9	4,987
Total 50+	78.9	39.7	72.8	44.2	23.7	41.7	48.4	80.3	20.6	669

¹ Two most common local misconceptions: AIDS can be transmitted by mosquito bites and by sharing food with a person who has AIDS. ² Comprehensive knowledge means knowing that consistent use of condom during sexual intercourse and having just one uninfected faithful partner can reduce the chance of getting the AIDS virus, knowing that a healthy-looking person can have the AIDS virus, and rejecting the two most common local misconceptions about AIDS transmission or prevention.

Table 13.3.2 Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS: Men

Percentage of men age 15-49 who say that a healthy-looking person can have the AIDS virus and who, in response to prompted questions, correctly reject local misconceptions about AIDS transmission or prevention, and the percentage with a comprehensive knowledge about AIDS by background characteristics, and percentage of men age 50 and over rejecting local misconceptions and having comprehensive knowledge about AIDS, Swaziland 2006-07

			Percer	tage of resp	ondents who say	/ that:				
				A person	A healthy-			A person		
				cannot	looking			can		
			AIDS	become	person can			become		
	A healthy-	AIDS	cannot	infected	have the	A person	A person	infected	Percentage	
	looking	cannot	be trans-	by sharing	AIDS virus and	can	can	by being	with a	
	person	be trans-	mitted by	food with	who reject	become	become	exposed	compre-	
	can have	mitted by	super-	a person	the two most	infected	infected	to open	hensive	
Background	the AIDS	mosquito	natural	who has	common local	by having	by having	wounds/	about	Numbor
characteristic	virus	bites	means	AIDS	misconceptions	anal sex	oral sex	sores	AIDS	of men
	mas	Ditteb	mound	7 1100	mbeoneeptionb	und best	orarben	55165	,	01111011
Age	04.0	69.2	02.1	94.0	60.2	E7 0	60.4	06.4	E 2 2	2 200
15-24	94.9	68.5	92.1	82.6	50.5	54.0	56.1	90.4	52.5	2,209
20-24	97.0	67.7	94.0	86.0	62.1	61.5	66.9	97.0	55.2	886
25-29	98.4	64.3	95.1	85.8	59.8	61.5	71.2	95.8	53.5	624
30-39	96.6	66.3	90.5	80.6	59.0	63.6	71.5	94.8	52.2	798
40-49	94.2	59.5	87.8	73.7	49.4	57.6	65.5	94.6	43.5	525
Marital status										
Never married	95.2	67.7	92.2	83.9	60.2	58.2	62.7	96.2	52.3	2.734
Ever had sex	97.2	66.4	93.0	83.9	60.2	62.2	68.3	97.2	53.8	1.458
Never had sex	92.9	69.2	91.2	83.8	60.2	53.6	56.4	95.0	50.7	1,276
Married/living together	96.8	65.5	91.6	81.4	58.0	62.1	69.1	94.9	51.7	1,219
Divorced/separated/										
widowed	95.7	49.7	86.1	66.7	40.5	51.4	67.2	94.5	36.4	203
Residence										
Urban	97.2	73.7	93.0	87.5	67.1	67.9	70.4	96.8	58.7	1,181
Rural	95.1	63.1	91.2	80.2	55.3	55.5	62.6	95.3	48.5	2,975
Region										
Hhohho	97.0	69.3	94.2	84.0	61.0	61.9	69.8	95.7	54.3	1,099
Manzini	96.2	68.0	91.7	84.1	61.3	60.0	67.3	96.5	52.7	1,349
Shiselweni	94.5	59.5	89.6	81.2	53.5	57.6	59.6	95.4	48.6	843
Lubombo	94.2	65.6	90.6	78.5	56.4	55.1	59.8	94.9	48.3	865
Education										
No education	87.7	34.8	82.2	52.9	23.6	46.9	60.6	88.7	18.5	316
Lower primary	88.1	42.1	82.8	62.9	31.8	45.3	58.2	92.9	27.3	470
Higher primary	94.3	62.3	91.3	79.7	52.2	50.5	58.8	95.6	43.9	980
Secondary	98.2	69.9	95.4	89.7	64.6	58.4	62.3	96.7	55.6	1,191
High school	99.3	81.1	94.9	92.6	/5.6	/2.2	/3.0	98.1	/0.0	852
Tertiary	99.4	88.6	93.1	92.0	82.6	82.5	83.2	97.3	/4.8	34/
Wealth quintile	~~ <i>i</i>				20 -			00.0		604
Lowest	92.4	50.2	87.5	66.1	39.5	48.8	58.2	93.6	32.5	601
Second	94.9	59.8	91.3	80.9	52.6	53.8	61.8	95.8	45.5	665
Middle	94./	61.8	90.4	83.1	55.2	56.5	61.8	95.6	49.6	856
Fourth	97.2	80.0	93.0	04.Z 80.0	00.4 74.1	20.4 70.2	03.0 71.8	96.5	55.U 65.4	955
i lighest	<i>37.</i> 4	00.9	99.7	09.9	/ 4.1	/0.5	/1.0	50.4	05.4	1,001
Total 15-49		66.1	01 7	02.2		50.0	64.9	05.0	F1 4	4.150
Total 50+	95./ 85.8	66.1 44.4	91./ 75.5	82.3 55.7	58.6 21.2	59.0 40.5	64.8 54.0	95.8 82.5	51.4	4,156
	0.00	44.4	/ J.J	JJ./	31.2	40.J	34.9	05.5	24.0	++4

¹ Two most common local misconceptions: AIDS can be transmitted by mosquito bites and by sharing food with a person who has AIDS. ² Comprehensive knowledge means knowing that consistent use of condom during sexual intercourse and having just one uninfected faithful partner can reduce the chance of getting the AIDS virus, knowing that a healthy-looking person can have the AIDS virus, and rejecting the two most common local misconceptions about AIDS transmission or prevention.

13.3 KNOWLEDGE OF PREVENTION OF MOTHER-TO-CHILD TRANSMISSION OF HIV

Increasing the level of knowledge about the transmission of HIV from mother to child, and increasing the knowledge that use of antiretroviral drugs during pregnancy can reduce the risk of transmission, are critical to reducing mother-to-child transmission of HIV (MTCT). To assess MTCT knowledge, respondents were asked if HIV can be transmitted from a mother to a child through breastfeeding, and whether a mother with HIV can reduce the risk of transmission to the baby by taking certain drugs during pregnancy.

Table 13.4 shows that a relatively high proportion of women and men age 15-49 are aware that HIV can be transmitted by breastfeeding and that the risk of mother-to-child transmission can be reduced by taking special drugs during pregnancy. Nevertheless, 24 percent of women and 36 percent of men are not aware of this mode of transmission. The level of awareness is lower among women and men age 50 and over. The fact that the risk of mother-to-child transmission of HIV can be reduced by the mother taking special drugs during pregnancy is more widely known among those with higher education than it is among those with less education, although it is still known to the majority of people.

Table 13.4 Knowledge of prevention of mother-to-child transmission of HIV

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who know that HIV can be transmitted from mother to child by breastfeeding and that the risk of mother-to-child transmission (MTCT) of HIV can be reduced by mother taking special drugs during pregnancy, by background characteristics, and percentage of women and men age 50 and over who know about prevention of mother-to-child transmission of HIV, Swaziland 2006-07

		Won	nen			М	en	
Background characteristic	HIV can be transmitted by breast- feeding	Risk of MTCT can be reduced by mother taking special drugs during pregnancy	HIV can be transmitted by breastfeeding and risk of MTCT can be reduced by mother taking special drugs during pregnancy	Number of women	HIV can be transmitted by breast- feeding	Risk of MTCT can be reduced by mother taking special drugs during pregnancy	HIV can be transmitted by breastfeeding and risk of MTCT can be reduced by mother taking special drugs during pregnancy	Number of men
Age								
15-24	84.5	82.1	73.2	2,320	75.7	75.5	61.1	2,209
15-19	82.5	76.1	67.1	1,274	76.1	74.0	60.5	1,323
20-24	86.8	89.5	80.6	1,046	75.2	77.6	62.0	886
25-29	85.3	90.0	80.3	729	72.0	82.6	64.6	624
30-39	85.6	88.2	78.9	1,118	78.0	83.7	69.8	798
40-49	83.1	83.9	74.8	820	75.3	80.3	63.8	525
Marital status								
Never married	84.4	82.3	73.4	2,487	75.4	76.6	61.9	2,734
Ever had sex	85.0	87.0	77.5	1,607	75.5	79.4	63.9	1,458
Never had sex	83.2	73.8	65.9	880	75.3	73.4	59.5	1,276
Married/living together	84.8	8/./	/8.5	2,062	/5.5	83./	67.4	1,219
Divorced/separated/	04.0	06 5		420	77.0	77 6	64.0	202
widowed	84.9	86.5	/6.5	438	//.6	//.6	64.9	203
Currently pregnant	0 C T	00.4	01.2	270				
Pregnant	86./	88.4	81.3	2/9	na	na	na	na
Not pregnant or not sure	84.5	84./	/5.5	4,708	na	na	na	na
Residence	07.0	00.0	01.2	4 220		oo -	<i></i>	4 4 0 4
Urban	87.6	89.3	81.3	1,330	74.4	83./	66.6	1,181
Rurai	03.3	03.3	/ 3.0	3,657	76.0	/0.0	62.4	2,975
Region	05 7	0.6 7	77 4	1 2 4 0	75.0	00.2	64.0	1 000
Hnonno	85./	86./	//.4	1,340	75.0	80.3	64.9	1,099
Shisolwoni	00.Z	03.4 84.0	/0.5 72.4	1,047	73.4	/9.0	64.3 62.4	1,349
Lubombo	82.9	82.6	73.4	966	77.2	75.5	62.3	865
Education	02.2	02.0	71.4	500	//.2	75.5	02.5	005
No aducation	91 /	79 5	60.2	402	72.6	60.8	574	216
Lower primary	80.6	78.4	69.0	360	75.3	09.0 71.4	59.8	470
Higher primary	83.9	80.7	71.3	1 268	78.7	74.4	62.3	980
Secondary	83.3	86.5	76.2	1.693	74.7	81.3	64.6	1.191
High school	89.0	89.6	82.8	894	73.8	82.5	64.5	852
Tertiary	89.4	94.0	86.0	370	76.8	90.8	72.7	347
Wealth guintile								
Lowest	83.2	80.9	70.9	785	77.1	71.0	59.8	601
Second	83.8	83.8	74.2	862	78.4	76.7	63.3	665
Middle	84.7	82.3	74.2	968	76.4	76.0	63.1	856
Fourth	83.1	84.3	75.1	1,111	74.1	80.1	63.2	953
Highest	87.3	90.7	81.7	1,262	73.5	85.2	66.7	1,081
Total 15-49	84.6	84.9	75.8	4,987	75.5	78.7	63.6	4,156
Total 50+	73.8	63.5	57.0	669	69.0	62.3	50.6	444
na = Not applicable								

13.4 ATTITUDES TOWARDS PEOPLE LIVING WITH AIDS

Widespread stigma and discrimination in a population can adversely affect both people's willingness to be tested for HIV and their adherence to antiretroviral therapy. Reduction of stigma and discrimination in a population is, thus, an important indicator of the success of programmes targeting HIV and AIDS prevention and control.

To assess the level of stigma, survey respondents who had heard of AIDS were asked if they would be willing to care for a relative sick with AIDS in their own household, if they would be willing to buy fresh vegetables from a market vendor who had HIV, if they thought a female teacher who has HIV but is not sick should be allowed to continue teaching, and if they would want to keep a family member's HIV status secret. Tables 13.5.1 and 13.5.2 show the results for women and men.

Table 13.5.1 Accepting attitudes towards those living with HIV/AIDS: Women

Among women age 15-49 who have heard of AIDS, percentage expressing specific accepting attitudes towards people with AIDS, and among women age 50 and over, percentage expressing accepting attitudes towards people with AIDS, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Percentage of	respondents who:			
		Would	Say that a female	Would not		
	Are willing	buy fresh	teacher with the	want to keep	Percentage	
	to care for a	vegetables	AIDS virus and is	secret that a	expressing	Number of
	with the AIDS	shonkeener	he allowed	member got	attitudes on	women who
Background	virus in own	who has the	to continue	infected with	all four	have heard
characteristic	household	AIDS virus	teaching	the AIDS virus	indicators	of AIDS
Age						
15-24	89.5	72.4	90.2	63.8	42.5	2,316
15-19	88.5	68.2	88.2	63.8	40.7	1,271
20-24	90.7	77.5	92.7	63.7	44.7	1,045
25-29	93.3	79.2	92.3	60.0	45.3	728
30-39	94.6	77.4	91.7	58.8	42.9	1,114
40-49	94.3	70.8	88.7	59.4	40.9	817
Marital status						
Never married	90.7	74.1	91.0	62.4	43.0	2,484
Ever had sex	91.9	74.8	91.7	60.3	42.5	1,607
Never had sex	88.5	72.8	89.7	66.2	43.8	877
Married/living together Divorced/separated/	93.0	74.8	90.6	60.9	42.6	2,053
widowed	94.5	72.9	88.4	57.5	41.9	438
Residence						
Urban	92.6	81.1	94.8	62.8	48.3	1,330
Rural	91.8	71.8	89.1	60.9	40.7	3,645
Region						
Hhohho	92.3	77.5	91.7	62.0	45.3	1,339
Manzini	91.8	77.1	93.9	61.9	44.7	1,642
Shiselweni	91.5	67.4	87.4	63.2	39.8	1,031
Lubombo	92.6	72.4	87.0	57.7	39.0	964
Education						
No education	91.1	64.6	79.9	59.3	36.9	397
Lower primary	90.8	59.4	77.8	59.7	31.8	357
Higher primary	91.3	64.3	87.4	58.7	35.8	1,266
Secondary	92.3	77.8	92.8	65.9	46.6	1,692
High school	93.5	85.7	98.1	61.9	52.0	894
Tertiary	91.7	89.3	97.4	52.5	42.8	370
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	91.6	63.1	80.9	56.9	34.7	777
Second	91.1	69.2	89.6	61.2	37.7	860
Middle	93.0	70.9	90.3	62.6	42.5	967
Fourth	91.4	/9.0	92.8	64.3	4/.4	1,109
Hignest	92.6	83.1	95.6	60./	47.2	1,261
Total 15-49	92.0	74.3	90.6	61.4	42.7	4,975
Total 50+	90.0	51.3	69.6	60.2	25.8	644

Table 13.5.2 Accepting attitudes towards those living with HIV/AIDS: Men

Among men age 15-49 who have heard of HIV/AIDS, percentage expressing specific accepting attitudes towards people with HIV/AIDS, and among men age 50 and over, percentage expressing accepting attitudes towards people with AIDS, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

-	I	Percentage of	respondents who):		
Background characteristic	Are willing to care for a family member with the AIDS virus in own household	Would buy fresh vegetables from shopkeeper who has the AIDS virus	Say that a female teacher with the AIDS virus and is not sick should be allowed to continue teaching	Would not want to keep secret that a family member got infected with the AIDS virus	Percentage expressing acceptance attitudes on all four indicators	Number of men who have heard of AIDS
Age			0			
15-24 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-39 40-49	89.6 88.0 91.9 92.7 94.6 94.3	77.5 74.7 81.6 84.8 78.8 71.0	87.4 85.4 90.5 93.8 91.9 87.9	65.5 64.7 66.7 64.4 64.7 62.0	46.2 43.3 50.5 50.5 47.7 42.0	2,187 1,305 883 621 797 524
Marital status						
Never married Ever had sex Never had sex Married/living together Divorced/separated/ widowed	90.2 91.3 89.0 94.8 91.6	78.2 79.5 76.7 78.9 69.7	88.2 89.1 87.2 92.6 83.8	65.7 64.6 67.0 63.2 61.4	46.8 47.0 46.7 46.7 42.3	2,710 1,452 1,258 1,215 203
Residence						
Urban Rural	94.0 90.7	83.8 75.7	94.1 87.4	61.3 66.2	46.8 46.5	1,177 2,951
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	92.6 93.0 89.9 90.0	82.0 78.9 72.0 77.5	91.5 89.9 88.2 86.5	66.1 64.1 65.3 63.5	50.2 46.7 45.2 43.1	1,096 1,341 837 854
Education						
No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	88.4 87.9 91.9 91.5 94.2 93.2	54.3 57.7 71.8 84.7 89.7 91.8	73.9 75.0 85.8 94.2 96.0 98.8	62.6 63.6 66.8 66.8 64.9 55.2	29.5 32.8 44.6 52.0 54.7 46.8	310 458 974 1,189 852 346
Wealth guintile						
Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	88.6 91.6 90.2 93.2 93.1	64.7 75.1 75.8 80.4 86.8	78.6 86.5 88.8 91.3 95.6	68.5 65.7 62.6 65.8 62.9	40.5 45.1 43.8 49.1 50.8	592 662 845 950 1,078
Total 15-49	91.6	78.0	89.3	64.8	46.6	4,128
Total 50+	89.7	50.4	70.8	66.9	29.4	433

Willingness to care for a family member with HIV in one's own household is almost universal; over 90 percent of women and men report they are willing to do so. Willingness for a female teacher to continue teaching in spite of being HIV positive is also high. However, when asked whether they would be willing to buy fresh vegetables from a person with HIV, willingness varied substantially by level of education. Only about six in ten women and men with lower levels of education reported that they would buy vegetables from a person with HIV, while nearly nine in ten women and men with higher levels of education would do so. The percentage of the population that would not want to keep the HIV-positive status of a family member secret is generally between 60 and 70 percent across all background characteristics. Looking at all four specified stigma indicators together, the percentage of women and men age 15-49 expressing accepting attitudes is fairly low, 43 percent for women and 47 percent for men. For

women and men age 50 and over, the proportions expressing accepting attitudes for all four indicators are even smaller.

13.5 ATTITUDES TOWARDS NEGOTIATING SAFER SEX

The high levels of sexual transmission of HIV make negotiating safer sex indispensable, especially in marital unions where women's status is compromised by societal expectations, thereby increasing their vulnerability to HIV transmission.

Table 13.6 shows that 96 percent of women and 97 percent of men believe that, if a wife knows that her husband has an STI, she is justified in refusing to have sex with him or asking him to wear a condom. While requesting the use of a condom is justifiable to nearly all women and men, refusing to have sex is not considered justifiable to one-third of women and one-quarter of men.

Porcentage of women and	mon ago 15.40	who bolio	vo that if a h	usband bas a	sovually trans	mitted dise	aso his wife	is justified in
refusing to have sexual inte	ercourse with hi	m or asking	that they us	e a condom, l	by background	d characteri	stics, Swazila	and 2006-07
	Women					N	len	
Background characteristic	Refusing to have sexual intercourse	Asking that they use a condom	Refusing sexual intercourse or asking that they use a condom	Number of women	Refusing to have sexual intercourse	Asking that they use a condom	Refusing sexual intercourse or asking that they use a condom	Number of men
Δσο								
15-24 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-39 40-49	65.1 63.2 67.4 70.7 68.7 65.5	93.3 91.9 95.1 94.0 94.6 94.5	95.0 94.2 96.0 96.5 95.8 95.6	2,320 1,274 1,046 729 1,118 820	71.3 70.1 73.1 78.0 78.9 76.1	95.7 95.6 95.9 95.9 96.0 95.4	97.1 97.0 97.4 98.0 97.4 97.0	2,209 1,323 886 624 798 525
Marital status								
Never married Ever had sex Never had sex Married/living together Divorced/separated/ widowed	66.9 68.2 64.5 66.8	93.9 95.2 91.5 93.5 95.9	95.4 96.4 93.6 95.3 97.1	2,487 1,607 880 2,062 438	72.5 73.6 71.2 78.1 77.4	95.7 96.3 95.0 96.2 93.8	97.4 98.0 96.7 97.2 97.1	2,734 1,458 1,276 1,219 203
Residence Urban Rural	71.8 64.9	96.0 93.1	97.7 94.7	1,330 3,657	77.0 73.3	96.6 95.4	97.7 97.2	1,181 2,975
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	66.7 67.6 65.4 67.0	93.2 93.6 94.2 95.0	95.0 95.3 95.8 96.4	1,340 1,647 1,033 966	74.0 76.1 72.0 74.4	95.7 96.9 95.5 94.3	97.2 98.1 97.2 96.2	1,099 1,349 843 865
Education								
No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	57.9 56.2 63.5 66.6 73.4 82.6	90.4 89.4 92.3 95.1 95.4 98.4	93.7 90.9 93.7 96.4 97.4 99.2	402 360 1,268 1,693 894 370	73.1 66.7 71.4 73.2 81.7 80.4	94.3 93.8 96.2 95.6 96.3 97.4	95.6 95.1 97.6 97.5 98.3 98.1	316 470 980 1,191 852 347
Total 15-49	66.8	93.9	95.5	4,987	74.4	95.8	97.3	4,156

13.6 ATTITUDES TOWARDS CONDOM EDUCATION FOR YOUTH

Condom use is one of the main strategies for combating the spread of HIV. However, educating youth about condoms is sometimes controversial, with some saying it promotes early sexual experimentation. To gauge attitudes towards condom education, SDHS respondents were asked if they thought that children age 12-14 should be taught about using a condom to avoid HIV. The results are shown in Table 13.7. Because the question was asked to ascertain adult opinion, results are tabulated for respondents age 18-49. The data show that a high proportion of adults (74 percent of women and 72 percent of men) agree that children age 12-14 years should be taught about using condoms to avoid HIV. This level of approval is fairly consistent across background characteristics.

13.7 HIGHER-RISK SEX

Information on sexual behaviour is important in designing and monitoring intervention programmes to control the spread of HIV. The 2006-07 SDHS included questions on respondents' sexual partners during their lifetime and over the 12 months preceding the survey. For male respondents, an additional question was asked on whether they paid for sex during the 12 months preceding the interview. Information on the use of condoms at the last sexual intercourse with each type of partner was collected for women and men. These questions are sensitive, and it is recognized that some respondents may have been reluctant to provide information on recent sexual behaviour.

13.7.1 Multiple Partners and Condom Use

Tables 13.8.1 and 13.8.2 show the proportion of women and men age 15-49 and those age 50 and over, who had sexual intercourse with more than one partner in the preceding 12 months, and the proportion who had higher-risk sexual intercourse (sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner) by background characteristics.

Table 13.7 Adult support of education about condom use to prevent AIDS

Percentage of women and men age 18-49 who agree that children age 12-14 years should be taught about using a condom to avoid AIDS, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Won	nen	Men			
Background	Percentage		Percentage			
characteristic	who agree	Number	who agree	Number		
Age						
18-24	76.5	1,531	73.0	1,342		
18-19	71.0	485	69.0	456		
20-24	79.1	1,046	75.0	886		
25-29	77.4	729	75.8	624		
30-39	74.0	1,118	71.9	798		
40-49	65.3	820	64.1	525		
Marital status						
Never married	76.9	1,720	73.3	1,867		
Married or living together	71.0	2,040	69.8	1,219		
widowed	74 5	438	70.5	203		
Pesidence	7 1.5	150	70.5	205		
Urban	77.8	1 195	74 5	1 048		
Rural	72.2	3,003	70.6	2.241		
Region		,		,		
Hhohho	75.9	1 1 4 9	73.2	908		
Manzini	73.8	1.389	70.7	1.084		
Shiselweni	74.8	853	69.8	622		
Lubombo	69.9	809	73.5	675		
Education						
No education	64.5	389	62.1	297		
Lower primary	63.8	307	70.3	322		
Higher primary	73.0	966	67.7	627		
Secondary	75.1	1,324	72.8	880		
High school	79.0	843	77.6	816		
Tertiary	77.5	369	73.2	347		
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	68.9	646	68.5	442		
Second	70.4	716	69.8	495		
Middle	74.2	805	71.5	651		
Fourth	73.5	928	71.0	769		
Highest	78.8	1,103	75.4	932		
Total 18-49	73.8	4,199	71.8	3,289		

Table 13.8.1 Multiple sexual partners and higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months: Women

Among women age 15-49 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who had intercourse with more than one partner and the percentage who had higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months; and among those having higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage reporting that a condom was used at last higher-risk intercourse; and the mean number of sexual partners during her lifetime for women who ever had sexual intercourse, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among we	Among women who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months:			en who r risk in the onths:	Among women who ever had sexual intercourse	
Background characteristic	Percentage who had 2+ partners in the past 12 months	Percentage who had higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months ¹	Number of women	Percentage who reported using a condom at last higher-risk intercourse ¹	Number of women	Mean number of sexual partners in lifetime	Number of women
Age 15-24 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-39 40-49	3.8 3.8 3.8 2.6 1.4 0.3	68.5 82.2 61.1 40.9 27.8 19.4	1,285 451 834 630 945 584	54.2 51.9 55.8 62.7 53.6 42.4	880 371 510 257 262 113	1.9 1.5 2.1 2.5 2.7 2.7	1,431 521 911 689 1,069 774
Marital status Never married Married or living together Divorced/separated/widowed	4.3 0.9 3.7	98.8 3.9 93.7	1,265 1,980 198	55.4 44.5 53.6	1,249 78 186	2.3 2.2 3.4	1,545 1,997 421
Residence Urban Rural	4.0 1.7	48.6 42.2	957 2,486	64.2 50.4	465 1,048	2.7 2.3	1,099 2,864
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	1.7 3.2 1.9 2.2	39.4 45.9 50.1 40.9	929 1,121 682 711	56.4 60.6 52.6 44.2	366 515 342 291	2.6 2.3 2.3 2.2	1,052 1,321 799 791
Education No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	2.7 1.3 2.6 2.1 2.8 2.0	30.2 39.8 42.0 48.4 53.3 31.5	314 270 865 1,086 624 284	37.2 36.0 46.7 56.7 67.0 69.3	95 107 363 526 333 89	2.5 2.5 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.7	374 317 992 1,239 715 325
Wealth quintile Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	1.6 1.3 2.0 4.3 2.1	40.3 41.0 48.0 48.3 41.6	553 603 671 734 882	35.7 48.1 51.8 60.3 67.5	223 247 322 355 367	2.3 2.2 2.4 2.3 2.6	635 701 774 848 1,005
Total 15-49 Total 50 +	2.3 1.2	43.9 11.8	3,443 175	54.6 *	1,513 21	2.4 2.2	3,963 652

The 2006-07 SDHS also assessed condom use among women and men with multiple partners or higher-risk sex in the 12 months preceding the survey. While truly effective protection requires condom use at every sexual encounter, the sexual encounters addressed in Tables 13.8.1 and 13.8.2 are those considered to pose the greatest risk of HIV transmission. Respondents who had more than one sex partner or had sex with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner (higher-risk sexual intercourse) were also asked whether they used a condom at the last such encounter. Respondents were asked to provide the total number of sexual partners they had in their lifetime. From this, the mean number of lifetime sexual partners was calculated for women and men in Tables 13.8.1 and 13.8.2.
Table 13.8.2 Multiple sexual partners and higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months: Men

Among men age 15-49 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who had intercourse with more than one partner and the percentage who had higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, and among those having higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage reporting that a condom was used at last higher-risk intercourse, and the mean number of sexual partners during his lifetime for men who ever had sexual intercourse, by background characteristics, and percentage of men age 50 and over reporting higher-risk sexual intercourse and condom use during last higher-risk intercourse and mean number of lifetime sexual partners among older men who ever had sexual intercourse, Swaziland 2006-07

	Among men who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months:		Among men 2+ partner past 12 m	Among men who had 2+ partners in the past 12 months:		who had ntercourse 2 months:	Among men who ever had sexual intercourse		
Background characteristic	Percentage who had 2+ partners in the past 12 months	Percentage who had higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months ¹	Number of men	Percentage who reported using a condom during last sexual intercourse	Number of men	Percentage who reported using a condom at last higher-risk intercourse ¹	Number of men	Mean number of sexual partners in lifetime	Number of men
Age									
15-24	28.5	91.9	755	66.7	215	70.4	694	4.0	948
15-19	25.7	97.5	196	(74.8)	50	68.8	191	2.7	281
20-24	29.5	90.0	559	64.3	165	71.1	503	4.5	667
25-29	26.8	63.9	523	61.2	140	71.0	334	6.3	554
30-39	19.3	40.7	723	50.3	139	65.0	294	8.0	720
40-49	15.1	25.0	477	26.2	72	53.1	120	10.0	460
Marital status									
Never married	29.4	97.8	1.120	70.2	330	69.5	1.096	5.3	1.388
Married or living together	17.9	17.7	1,203	33.7	215	70.2	212	7.8	1,110
Divorced/separated/			,						,
widowed	14.8	86.6	155	(64.9)	23	52.3	134	9.1	184
Residence				· · · ·					
Urban	21.4	53.1	873	63.9	186	74 2	463	6.8	887
Rural	23.7	61.0	1 605	52.4	381	65.1	979	6.5	1 796
Degion	23.7	01.0	1,005	52.1	501	05.1	575	0.5	1,7 50
Heebee	19.0	51.2	600	54.6	122	72.2	250	65	722
Manzini	10.9	62.1	807	54.0	132	60.0	539	0.5	/ 22
Shicolwoni	23.4	64.8	426	03.0 59.1	203	64.2	209	6.0	904 500
Jubamba	23.9	04.0 E4.4	430	30.1 4E 1	104	62.6	203	0.0	500
	23.4	34.4	220	45.1	120	05.0	292	7.0	557
Education				(
No education	17.1	40.2	233	(32.3)	40	54.9	93	8.0	256
Lower primary	17.6	56.7	264	32.7	46	52.5	150	6.9	280
Higher primary	22.3	60.4	483	49.8	108	57.4	292	6.2	536
Secondary	25.7	66.3	631	62.8	162	70.7	418	6.8	694
High school	27.1	65.2	5/2	66.1	155	//./	3/3	5.4	627
Tertiary	18.9	39.3	295	57.9	56	85.0	116	7.9	290
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	22.8	56.1	326	42.8	74	55.9	183	7.1	369
Second	24.6	60.0	338	49.8	83	57.6	203	7.3	383
Middle	23.0	65.7	469	49.9	108	65.3	309	5.9	525
Fourth	22.3	61.4	594	65.0	133	71.1	364	5.4	642
Highest	22.5	51.1	752	62.2	169	78.6	384	7.5	763
Total 15-49	22.9	58.2	2,478	56.2	567	68.0	1,442	6.6	2,683
Total 50 +	10.1	9.9	324	(19.7)	33	(35.3)	32	9.9	375

Sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner

Two percent of women and 23 percent of men age 15-49 who had sex in the 12 months preceding the survey had sex with two or more partners. Figures are half that for those age 50 and over (1 percent of women and 10 percent of men). Just over half of women and men age 15-49 with two or more partners reported using a condom the last time they had sex (55 percent of women and 68 percent of men).

Sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner is not uncommon. Forty-four percent of women and 58 percent of men age 15-49 who had sex in the 12 months preceding the survey reported having had sex with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner. This higher-risk sexual behaviour is less common among adults age 50 and over (12 percent of women and 10 percent of men).

While condom use is common with higher-risk partners, it is far from universal. Half of women age 15-49 (55 percent) and two-thirds of men age 15-49 (68 percent) who had sex with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner in the 12 months preceding the survey used a condom the last time they had sex with such a partner.

Looking at marital status, by definition, all sexual activity among women and men who have never married is higher-risk sex. Among married women and men age 15-49 who had sex in the previous 12 months, 4 percent of women and 18 percent of men engaged in higher-risk sex. Never-married women are somewhat more likely than married women to use condoms during higher-risk sex (55 and 45 percent, respectively). However, never-married men and married men are equally likely to use a condom during higher-risk sex (70 percent). Divorced, separated, and widowed men are the least likely to use a condom during higher-risk sex (52 percent).

There is a general increase in both higher-risk sex and condom use during higher-risk sex with increasing level of education and increasing household wealth quintile. It is worth noting, however, that engagement in higher-risk sex drops among women and men with tertiary education, to 32 percent among women and 39 percent among men.

The mean number of lifetime sexual partners among people age 15-49 is 2.4 for women and 6.6 for men. Among men age 50 and over, the number increases to 10.

Very few men in Swaziland reported paying for sex in the 12 months preceding the survey (data not shown).

13.7.2 Condom Use and Knowledge of Source

Condom use among the sexually active population plays an important role in preventing the transmission of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, as well as unwanted pregnancies. In the 2006-07 SDHS, men age 15-49 who used condoms during their most recent sexual intercourse (within the 12 months prior to interview) were asked to identify the specific brand of condom used, the number of condoms they obtained the last time they obtained condoms, the source where the condoms were obtained, and the usual manner in which the condoms were disposed of.

Results indicate that 80 percent of men who use condoms use either Trust brand condoms (43 percent) or government-issued condoms (37 percent) (Table 13.9). In terms of the number of condoms obtained, 53 percent obtained three to six condoms the last time they obtained condoms, and 36 percent obtained seven or more. Shops are the most common source for condoms (44 percent of men); health facilities are the second most common source (16 percent of men). Twothirds of men reported disposing of used condoms in pit lattings. Flush toilats were the part most commonly used mode

Table 13.9 Condom use characteristics among men

Among men 15-49 who used a condom at last sexual intercourse in the 12 months before the survey, percentage using specific condom brands and percent distribution by the number of condoms obtained the last time, the source where the condoms were obtained, and the usual mode of disposal for used condoms, Swaziland 2006-07

Condom use characteristic	Percentage of men
Brand	0111011
Covernment condoms	36.8
Trust	42.9
Other brands	9.0
Don't know/missing	11.4
Number of condoms obtained	
the last time	
1	1.1
2	2.8
3	35.1
4	4.1
5	4.6
6	9.0
7+	36.3
Don't know/missing	7.0
Last source where condom obtained	
Hospital/ health centre/PHU clinic	15.5
RHM/CBD/mobile clinic	7.9
Hospital/clinic/private doctor	2.8
CBD/mobile clinic	0.6
Pharmacy	3.1
Other	1.7
Mission	2.0
NGO	2.4
Shop	43.7
Other	17.7
Don't know/missing	2.6
Usual mode of disposal	
Pit latrine	66.5
Flush in toilet	12.6
Bury	5.9
Burned	5.9
Thrown away	4.6
Other	1.1
Missing	3.4
Total	100.0
Number of men	1,197

latrines. Flush toilets were the next most commonly used mode of disposal (13 percent of men).

Consistent use of condoms requires, among other things, knowing where to get them. Men and women age 15-49 were asked whether they know of a place they can get male condoms and whether they know of a place they can get female condoms. Table 13.10 shows the percent distribution of women and men by knowledge of condoms and a source for condoms.

There is generally a high level awareness of male condoms and where to obtain them among both women and men. Only 11 percent of women and 10 percent of men knowing about condoms but do not know where to get them. However, knowledge of the female condom is low. About half of women and men age 15-49 have heard of the female condom, but do not know where to get them (45 percent of women and 56 percent of men).

Table 13.10 Knowledge of a source for male and female condoms								
Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 by knowledge of male and female condoms and a source for these condoms, Swaziland 2006-07								
	Wo	men	M	en				
Knowledge of condom	Male	Female	Male	Female				
and condom source	condom	condom	condom	condom				
Knows of condom and a condom source	87.8	46.1	88.9	28.1				
Knows of condom, does not know condom source	11.0	45.2	10.3	56.0				
Does not know about condom	1.2	8.7	0.8	15.9				
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0				
Number	4,987	4,987	4,156	4,156				

13.8 COVERAGE OF HIV TESTING AND COUNSELLING

Knowledge of HIV status enables HIV-negative individuals to make specific decisions that can reduce the risk of contracting HIV. For those who are HIV positive, knowledge of their HIV status allows them to take action to protect their sexual partners, to access treatment, and to plan for the future.

To assess the awareness and coverage of HIV testing services, SDHS respondents were asked whether they had ever been tested for HIV. Respondents who had had an HIV test were asked how long ago their most recent test occurred, whether they had received the results of their most recent test, and where they had been tested. Respondents who had never been tested were asked if they know a place they can go to get tested. Tables 13.11.1 and 13.11.2 present the results of these questions.

Respondents were asked if they know where to get an HIV test. The results indicate a generally high level of knowledge of where an HIV test can be obtained. Nine in ten women (92 percent) and eight in ten men (78 percent) age 15-49 know where to go for an HIV test. Older adults are somewhat less likely to know a place to get an HIV test (seven in ten women and men).

Table 13.11.1 Coverage of prior HIV testing: Women

Percentage of women age 15-49 who know where to get an HIV test, percent distribution of women age 15-49 by testing status and whether they received the results of the last test, the percentage of women ever tested, and the percentage of women age 15-49 who received their test results the last time they were tested for HIV in the past 12 months, and the percentage of women age 50 and over who know source for HIV testing and who have been tested and received results, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage	Percent d status and	istribution of v l by whether t results of the	women by they receiv last test	testing ed the		Percentage who received results from	
	who know	Ever tested	Ever tested			Dorcontago	last HIV test	
Background	get an HIV	received	receive	Never		ever	the past	Number of
characteristic	test	results	results	tested ¹	Total	tested	12 months	women
Age								
15-24	87.1	27.7	5.1	67.3	100.0	32.7	18.1	2,320
15-19	80.6	15.8	3.1	81.1	100.0	18.9	10.0	1,274
20-24	95.0	42.1	7.4	50.5	100.0	49.5	27.9	1,046
25-29	96.6	47.0	6.1	46.9	100.0	53.1	29.7	729
30-39	97.0	45.9	5.5	48.6	100.0	51.4	25.9	1,118
40-49	93.8	35.3	2.4	62.2	100.0	37.8	20.5	820
Marital status								
Never married	87.9	27.8	4.4	67.8	100.0	32.2	17.0	2,487
Ever had sex	94.0	39.9	6.2	53.9	100.0	46.1	24.7	1,607
Never had sex	76.6	5.8	1.0	93.2	100.0	6.8	2.9	880
Married/living together Divorced/separated/	95.7	43.1	5.8	51.1	100.0	48.9	26.7	2,062
widowed	95.6	47.0	3.6	49.4	100.0	50.6	27.4	438
Residence								
Urban	95.5	42.5	5.2	52.3	100.0	47.7	24.1	1.330
Rural	90.5	33.4	4.8	61.8	100.0	38.2	21.1	3,657
Region								
Hhohho	93.2	34.6	5.1	60.4	100.0	39.6	19.7	1.340
Manzini	91.8	39.4	4.5	56.1	100.0	43.9	24.2	1,647
Shiselweni	88.6	31.6	5.1	63.3	100.0	36.7	21.0	1,033
Lubombo	93.3	36.1	5.1	58.8	100.0	41.2	22.2	966
Education								
No education	89.4	29.4	6.3	64.3	100.0	35.7	19.0	402
Lower primary	86.8	32.5	5.2	62.3	100.0	37.7	16.2	360
Higher primary	88.1	32.1	4.4	63.5	100.0	36.5	21.5	1,268
Secondary	92.0	34.5	4.2	61.3	100.0	38.7	21.0	1,693
High school	97.0	40.1	6.4	53.5	100.0	46.5	26.1	894
Tertiary	98.7	54.7	4.2	41.1	100.0	58.9	26.4	370
Wealth guintile								
Lowest	88.6	30.8	5.5	63.7	100.0	36.3	20.1	785
Second	90.5	33.6	5.1	61.3	100.0	38.7	20.9	862
Middle	89.2	33.5	5.5	61.0	100.0	39.0	22.1	968
Fourth	93.3	36.6	4.9	58.5	100.0	41.5	22.4	1,111
Highest	95.4	41.7	3.8	54.5	100.0	45.5	23.3	1,262
Total 15-49	91.8	35.8	4.9	59.3	100.0	40.7	21.9	4,987
Total 50+	71.1	15.6	2.4	82.0	100.0	18.0	10.2	669
¹ Includes "don't know/m	issing"							

Among the population age 15-49 in Swaziland, 36 percent of women and 17 percent of men reported having ever been tested and receiving test results for HIV at some time. One in five women (22 percent) and one in ten men (9 percent) were tested and received the results in the 12 months preceding the survey. These figures indicate that about half of the population ever tested for HIV were tested in the 12 months before the survey.

Table 13.11.2 Coverage of prior HIV testing: Men

Percentage of men age 15-49 who know where to get an HIV test, percent distribution of men age 15-49 by testing status and whether they received the results of the last test, the percentage of men ever tested, and the percentage of men age 15-49 who received their test results the last time they were tested for HIV in the past 12 months, and the percentage of men age 50 and over who know source for HIV testing and who have been tested and received results, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage	Percent distribution of men by testing status and by whether they received the results of the last test					Percentage who received results from	
	who know	Ever tested	Ever tested				last HIV test	
	where to	and	did not			Percentage	taken in	
Background	get an HIV	received	receive	Never		ever	the past	Number of
characteristic	test	results	results	tested	lotal	tested	12 months	men
Age								
15-24	69.7	7.1	0.9	92.0	100.0	8.0	3.9	2,209
15-19	61.6	3.0	0.5	96.5	100.0	3.5	1.8	1,323
20-24	81.7	13.2	1.5	85.3	100.0	14.7	6.9	886
25-29	88.0	25.8	2.5	71.6	100.0	28.4	13.1	624
30-39	88.2	29.7	2.3	68.0	100.0	32.0	15.7	798
40-49	86.3	29.5	1.6	68.9	100.0	31.1	15.1	525
Marital status								
Never married	72.7	10.7	1.1	88.1	100.0	11.9	5.4	2,734
Ever had sex	81.9	16.8	1.6	81.6	100.0	18.4	8.4	1,458
Never had sex	62.2	3.8	0.7	95.6	100.0	4.4	2.0	1,276
Married/living together	89.0	29.8	1.9	68.3	100.0	31.7	15.9	1,219
Divorced/separated/								
widowed	85.5	25.9	4.2	69.9	100.0	30.1	14.5	203
Residence								
Urban	89.9	23.9	1.7	74.3	100.0	25.7	12.8	1.181
Rural	73.4	14.3	1.4	84.2	100.0	15.8	7.4	2,975
Pagion								,
Hoobo	82.0	178	14	80.9	100.0	191	8.6	1 099
Manzini	77.7	17.0	1.7	70.0	100.0	20.1	0.0	1,033
Shiselweni	69.0	11.5	1.5	87.1	100.0	12.9	6.7	843
Lubombo	82.5	19.3	1.4	78.9	100.0	21.5	11 1	865
	02.5	15.5	1.5	70.5	100.0	21.1	11.1	005
Education	69.4	10.1	1 0	70.0	100.0	20.4	11 /	210
No education	66.4	19.1	1.3	/9.0	100.0	20.4	11.4	310
Lower primary	67.0	10.4	1.0	07.9	100.0	12.1)./ 6 E	4/0
Figher primary	07.0 90.1	10.5	1.4	00.Z	100.0	11.0	6.5	900
Secondary High school	00.1	12.0	0.9	74.0	100.0	13.5	0.5	1,191
Tortiany	91.5	23.0	2.0	74.9	100.0	25.1	11.1 21 7	052 347
	50.0	44.0	2.5	55.5	100.0	40.5	21.7	J+/
Wealth quintile	<i></i>	o =			100.0	10.0		604
Lowest	66.6	8.5	2.3	89.2	100.0	10.8	5.0	601
Second	69.9	13.5	1.4	85.1	100.0	14.9	7.4	665
Middle	/3.1	13.4	1.3	85.3	100.0	14./	7.2	856
Fourth	80.2	17.6	1.2	81.2	100.0	18.8	9./	953
Highest	91.6	26.4	1.6	/2.0	100.0	28.0	12.8	1,081
Total 15-49	78.1	17.1	1.5	81.4	100.0	18.6	8.9	4,156
Total 50+	67.7	17.2	3.2	79.6	100.0	20.4	9.8	444
¹ Includes "don't know/m	issing"							

Overall, six in ten women age 15-49 and eight in ten men age 15-49 have never been tested for HIV. About eight in ten women and men age 50 and over have never been tested for HIV. Among both women and men, higher testing rates are observed among urban residents. Substantially higher testing rates are seen among those with higher education and those in the highest wealth quintile.

Adults age 15 and older who reported receiving the results of their last HIV test were asked how long it took to receive the results. Table 13.12 shows that the majority of the population tested received the HIV test results on the same day as the test: 75 percent for women and 59 percent for men age 15-49, and 70 percent for women and 66 percent for men age 50 and over. A sizable proportion received their results within one week of the test: 14-17 percent for women and 22-25 percent for men.

Table 13.12 Time to get HIV test result								
Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 and age 50+ who received the results of the last HIV test by the time it took to get the results, Swaziland 2006-07								
Time taken to get	Wo	men	М	en				
HIV test results	15-49	50+	15-49	50+				
Same day	74.7	69.5	58.5	65.5				
Within a week	14.3	17.2	22.1	25.2				
Within a month	8.1	11.2	13.3	4.8				
More than one month	2.9	2.1	6.1	4.5				
T . 1	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0				
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0				
Number	1,217	104	709	76				

Screening for HIV in pregnant women is a tool for reducing the transmission of HIV from mother to child. Table 13.13 shows that among women who gave birth in the two years preceding the survey, 65 percent received HIV counselling during antenatal care for their most recent birth. Half of the women who gave birth during the two-year period (54 percent) voluntarily accepted an offer of an HIV test and received the test results. The proportion of women who were tested and received the test results increases with level of education and household wealth quintile. There is a substantial gap in receipt of HIV screening services by urban-rural residence. Among pregnant women, 39 percent of those in rural areas were counselled, offered an HIV test, accepted the test, and received the test results, compared with 53 percent in urban areas.

Table 13.13 Pregnant women counselled and tested for HIV

Among all women age 15-49 who gave birth in the two years preceding the survey, the percentage who received HIV counselling during antenatal care for their most recent birth, and percentage who accepted an offer of HIV testing by whether they received their test results, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage who received HIV	Percentage offered and an HIV te antenat and v	who were d accepted est during tal care who ² :	Percentage who were counselled, were offered and accepted an HIV test,	Number of women who
Packground	counselling	Did not Possived receive		and who	gave birth in
characteristic	antenatal care ¹	results	results	results ²	vears ³
Δσe					
15-24	59.9	52.5	6.7	39.8	581
15-19	53.7	51.9	6.1	36.8	202
20-24	63.2	52.8	7.1	41.4	379
25-29	70.8	54.6	5.7	46.7	256
30-39	67.9	55.0	5.8	42.2	269
40-49	(69.5)	(57.7)	(2.3)	(50.7)	41
Residence					
Urban	78.2	62.8	5.8	53.1	246
Rural	60.8	51.3	6.2	39.4	901
Region					
Hhohho	62.5	41.5	4.8	32.0	311
Manzini	75.2	69.8	4.4	57.5	348
Shiselweni	66.0	54.0	8.3	43.6	247
Lubombo	50.4	46.0	7.9	32.4	241
Education					
No education	50.2	43.5	7.4	25.1	97
Lower primary	51.8	35.3	5.6	28.4	91
Higher primary	59.1	50.3	6.6	38.8	315
Secondary	67.7	58.9	4.5	46.5	393
High school	76.3	59.5	7.6	51.2	200
Tertiary	77.8	65.1	7.7	54.4	51
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	52.7	42.9	7.3	30.3	251
Second	61.3	51.9	5.4	41.1	240
Middle	67.6	51.2	6.9	41.1	245
Fourth	70.3	62.8	6.4	48.6	218
Highest	73.5	63.2	4.2	53.7	193
Total 15-49	64.6	53.7	6.1	42.3	1,147

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ In this context, "counselled" means that someone talked with the respondent about all three of the following topics: 1) babies getting the AIDS virus from their mother, 2) preventing the virus, and 3) getting tested for the virus.

² Only women who were offered the test are included here; women who were either required to take the test or asked for the test are excluded from the numerator of this measure..
³ Denominator for percentages includes women who did not receive antenatal care for their last birth in the past two years.

13.9 SELF-REPORTING OF SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED INFECTIONS

In the 2006-07 SDHS, respondents who had ever had sex were asked if they had contracted a disease through sexual contact in the past 12 months, or if they had exhibited either of two symptoms associated with STIs (a bad-smelling, abnormal discharge from the vagina or penis, or a genital sore or ulcer). Table 13.14 shows the self-reported prevalence of STIs and STI symptoms for women and men.

Table 13.14 Self-reported prevalence of sexually transmitted infections (STIs) and STI symptoms

Among women and men age 15-49 who ever had sexual intercourse, the percentage who reported having an STI and/or symptoms of an STI in the past 12 months, and the percentage of women and men age 50 and over ever sexually active reporting an STI and/or symptoms of an STI, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Women					Men				
		Bad smelling/			Number of women		Bad smelling/			Number of men who
		abnormal		STI/genital	who ever		abnormal		STI/genital	ever had
Background		genital	Genital	discharge/sore	had sexual		genital	Genital	discharge/sore	sexual
characteristic	STI	discharge	sore/ulcer	or ulcer	intercourse	STI	discharge	sore/ulcer	or ulcer	intercourse
Age										
15-24	5.7	8.0	7.5	13.0	1,468	7.4	5.8	6.1	10.9	983
15-19	3.2	7.2	5.7	10.8	527	3.5	6.0	4.8	8.9	286
20-24	7.1	8.5	8.5	14.2	941	9.0	5.8	6.7	11.7	697
25-29	9.3	9.2	8.4	14.8	711	12.5	8.1	9.4	16.3	589
30-39	6.2	5.4	7.2	11.6	1,111	7.8	5.5	7.3	10.5	784
40-49	2.9	4.5	4.6	6.4	817	4.0	3.2	4.7	7.1	524
Marital status										
Never married	5.1	6.5	5.8	10.9	1,607	7.9	5.6	6.2	11.2	1,458
Married or living										
together	7.1	7.8	8.3	13.0	2,062	7.0	5.4	6.5	10.0	1,219
Divorced/separated/										
widowed	3.5	3.6	5.2	7.5	438	14.0	8.8	14.0	18.2	203
Residence										
Urban	5.5	5.8	5.2	9.7	1,145	7.9	5.3	5.1	9.4	968
Rural	6.1	7.3	7.7	12.4	2,962	7.9	5.9	7.7	12.1	1,912
Region										
Hhohho	5.6	6.4	6.0	10.0	1,113	7.2	4.8	6.8	10.3	800
Manzini	6.3	6.7	5.9	10.8	1,359	8.9	6.2	6.1	10.9	948
Shiselweni	5.4	5.9	7.9	12.0	813	7.8	6.2	7.0	11.9	525
Lubombo	6.1	8.6	9.2	14.7	822	7.5	5.8	8.1	12.2	607
Education										
No education	6.3	8.9	10.1	14.8	393	5.6	4.8	6.3	8.4	275
Lower primary	6.6	9.2	9.9	15.1	327	10.6	8.1	11.3	16.1	300
Higher primary	6.9	8.3	9.3	14.4	1,025	9.0	8.8	6.9	13.6	562
Secondary	6.0	6.6	5.8	11.0	1,282	8.0	5.1	7.8	12.3	737
High school	5.9	5.4	5.6	9.7	741	8.6	4.9	6.1	10.1	685
Tertiary	1.4	1.8	1.5	2.8	339	3.8	2.1	2.5	4.5	320
Total 15-49	5.9	6.9	7.0	11.6	4,107	7.9	5.7	6.9	11.2	2,880
Total 50+	0.5	0.9	1.0	1.6	667	1.4	1.3	1.3	2.6	444

Results show that about 11 percent of both women and men who have ever been sexually active had an STI and/or an STI symptom in the 12 months prior to the survey. Prevalence of an STI or an STI symptom peaks among women (15 percent) and men (16 percent) age 25-29; prevalence is also high among divorced/separated/widowed men (18 percent).

SDHS respondents who reported having an STI or symptoms of an STI in the past 12 months were asked if they sought any advice or treatment for their symptoms and where such advice or treatment was sought. The results in Figure 13.1 indicate that more than 70 percent of both women and men age 15-49 sought advice or treatment from a health facility or health professional. About half of the women and men who did not seek advice or treatment reported that treatment was not necessary (Table 13.15).

Figure 13.1 Women and Men Seeking Advice or Treatment for STIs



SDHS 2006-07

Table 13.15 Reason for not seeking treatment for STIs							
Percent distribution of women and men age 15-49 who did not seek treatment for an STI experienced in the past 12 months by the main reason for not seeking treatment, Swaziland 2006-07							
Reason for not seeking treatment	Women	Men					
Not necessary	52.2	47.6					
Expensive	21.5	10.5					
Religious prohibition	1.5	6.2					
Other	24.8	20.4					
Missing	0.0	15.4					
lotal	100.0	100.0					
Number	101	60					

Eight in ten women and seven in ten men informed their partners about their STI or STI symptoms (Table 13.16). While the majority of women and men who had an STI or STI symptom took some action to avoid infecting their partner, many did not. Fifty-seven percent of women and 69 percent of men used medicine and 39 percent of women and 53 percent of men stopped having sex. Only about one-third of respondents resorted to using condoms to avoid infecting their partners (33 percent of women and 38 percent of men).

Table 13.16 Actions taken when had STI/STI symptoms							
Percentage of women and men 15-49 reporting an STI or symptoms of an STI in the past 12 months who took specific actions, Swaziland 2006-07							
Action taken	Women	Men					
Informed all partners about problem Informed some but not all partners	79.6 0.2	70.7 0.5					
Took action to avoid infecting partner68.481.3Used medicine56.769.1Stopped having sex39.053.3Used condom32.737.6							
Number 477 323							

13.10 PREVALENCE OF MEDICAL INJECTIONS

Non-sterile injections can pose a risk of infection with HIV and other diseases. To measure the potential risk of HIV transmission through medical injections, respondents in the 2006-07 SDHS were asked if they had received an injection in the past 12 months and, if so, the number of injections. The results indicate that more women (37 percent) than men (23 percent) reported receiving a medical injection in the past 12 months. The average number of injections received per person during this period (including people who received no injections at all) is 1.1 injections per woman age 15-49 and 0.7 injections per man age 15-49. There were no substantial differentials by background characteristics.

Table 13.17 Prevalence of medical injections

Percentage of women and men age 15-49 who received at least one medical injection in the past 12 months, the average number of medical injections per person in the past 12 months, and among those who received a medical injection, the percentage of last medical injections for which the syringe and needle were taken from a new, unopened package, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Women					Men				
Background characteristic	Percentage who received medical injection in past 12 months	Average number of medical injections per person in past 12 months	Number of women	For last injection, syringe and needle were taken from new, unopened package	Number of women who received medical injection in past 12 months	Percentage who received medical injection in past 12 months	Average number of medical injections per person in past 12 months	Number of men	For last injection, syringe and needle were taken from new, unopened package	Number of men who received medical injection in past 12 months
Age										
15-24	33.4	0.8	2,320	96.3	774	18.2	0.3	2,209	93.9	401
15-19	27.2	0.6	1,274	95.6	347	16.5	0.3	1,323	95.0	219
20-24	40.8	1.1	1,046	96.7	427	20.6	0.4	886	92.7	183
25-29	46.5	1.4	729	97.0	339	29.5	0.7	624	95.5	184
30-39	41.9	1.4	1,118	97.6	468	27.4	1.6	798	92.1	219
40-49	33.1	1.3	820	93.9	272	26.1	1.2	525	90.4	137
Residence										
Urban	38.1	1.3	1,330	95.5	507	24.6	1.0	1,181	95.1	290
Rural	36.8	1.1	3,657	96.7	1,346	21.9	0.6	2,975	92.5	651
Region										
Hhohho	37.2	1.0	1,340	96.5	499	23.8	0.8	1,099	94.9	261
Manzini	34.1	1.1	1,647	96.7	562	21.3	0.6	1,349	96.6	287
Shiselweni	40.1	1.1	1,033	95.8	414	22.3	0.7	843	88.1	188
Lubombo	39.1	1.3	966	96.3	378	23.7	0.7	865	91.4	205
Education										
No education	31.6	1.0	402	93.8	127	22.5	1.3	316	88.2	71
Lower primary	33.0	0.9	360	97.8	119	18.9	0.5	470	94.7	89
Higher primary	37.4	1.2	1,268	97.2	475	21.5	0.5	980	93.7	211
Secondary	37.3	1.1	1,693	96.1	631	24.0	0.6	1,191	92.4	285
High school	38.9	1.1	894	97.7	348	24.0	1.0	852	96.1	204
Tertiary	41.5	1.4	370	93.0	153	23.2	1.0	347	91.5	81
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	34.3	1.1	785	96.7	269	21.2	0.7	601	91.8	128
Second	35.0	1.0	862	96.1	301	22.0	0.6	665	88.8	147
Middle	39.0	1.0	968	97.5	378	20.3	0.6	856	94.6	174
Fourth	38.3	1.1	1,111	96.7	425	23.6	0.7	953	95.2	224
Highest	37.9	1.3	1,262	95.2	479	24.8	0.9	1,081	94.1	268
Total 15-49	37.1	1.1	4,987	96.4	1,853	22.7	0.7	4,156	93.3	941
Note : Medical injecti	ons are those	given by a d	loctor, nur	se, pharmacist	t, dentist, or (other health	worker.			

Respondents who had an injection in the past 12 months were asked where they obtained their last injection. The information is summarized in Figure 13.2. Results indicate that approximately two-thirds of women and men received their medical injections at a public medical facility, and one-third received their injections at a private medical facility. Those who had received injections were further asked if the syringe and needle were taken from a new, previously unopened package. Table 13.17 shows that a majority (over 90 percent) of those who received injections in the previous 12 months were

administered injections with a syringe and needle taken from a new, unopened package. This is observed across all types of health facilities.

Those who had received injections were further asked if the syringe and needle were taken from a new, previously unopened package. Table 13.17 shows that a majority (over 90 percent) of those who received injections in the previous 12 months were administered injections with a syringe and needle taken from a new, unopened package. This is observed across all types of health facilities.



Figure 13.2 Type of Facility Where Last Medical Injection Was Received

13.11 HIV/AIDS KNOWLEDGE AND SEXUAL BEHAVIOUR AMONG YOUTH

This section addresses HIV and AIDS-related knowledge and sexual behaviour among youth age 15-24. Special attention is paid to this group because it accounts for half of all new HIV infections worldwide (Ross et al., 2006). In addition to knowledge of HIV transmission, data are presented on age at first sex, condom use, age differences between sexual partners, and sex within the context of alcohol use. The section concludes with data on HIV testing among youth.

13.11.1 HIV/AIDS-Related Knowledge among Young Adults

Knowledge of how HIV is transmitted is crucial in enabling young people to avoid contracting the virus. Young people are often at greater risk because they may have shorter relationships and with more partners, or engage in other risky behaviours. As discussed earlier, comprehensive knowledge is defined as knowing that: 1) people can reduce their chances of getting HIV by having sex with only one uninfected, faithful partner and by using condoms consistently, 2) a healthy-looking person can have HIV, and 3) HIV cannot be transmitted by mosquito bites or by sharing food with a person who has HIV.

Young respondents were asked the same set of questions on facts and beliefs about HIV transmission as other respondents. Information on the age group's overall level of knowledge of major methods of avoiding HIV and rejection of major misconceptions were discussed previously in Tables

13.3.1 and 13.3.2. Table 13.18 presents the composite indicator, comprehensive knowledge, for young people, by background characteristics.

The results show that the proportion of young women and men with comprehensive knowledge of HIV and AIDS is low, 52 percent for both women and men. Among young women, comprehensive knowledge is higher among young people in urban areas than those in rural areas. Comprehensive knowledge increases with level of education and household wealth quintile among both women and men.

Table 13.18 Comprehensive knowledge about AIDS and knowledge of a source for condoms among youth

Percentage of young women and young men age 15-24 with comprehensive knowledge about AIDS and percentage with knowledge of a source for condoms, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Women		Men				
Background characteristic	Percentage with comprehensive knowledge of AIDS ¹	Percentage who know a condom source ²	Number of women	Percentage with comprehensive knowledge of AIDS ¹	Percentage who know a condom source ²	Number of men		
Age 15-19 15-17 18-19 20-24 20-22 23-24	52.0 51.4 52.9 52.2 53.7 49.5	80.3 76.0 87.1 91.7 92.3 90.7	1,274 788 485 1,046 668 379	50.4 46.3 58.1 55.2 55.3 55.0	84.2 80.9 90.6 93.8 94.0 93.3	1,323 867 456 886 582 304		
Marital status Never married Ever had sex Never had sex Ever married	54.7 53.4 56.3 41.2	84.3 90.2 77.2 90.1	1,867 1,016 851 452	52.6 55.2 50.6 46.4	87.9 94.2 83.2 92.6	2,128 902 1,226 81		
Residence Urban Rural	61.0 49.4	88.8 84.4	543 1,776	58.7 50.7	92.1 87.0	447 1,762		
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	54.9 54.6 48.2 48.5	84.8 83.1 87.5 87.8	574 780 520 446	57.2 51.7 50.0 50.5	86.8 89.9 88.0 86.5	509 737 521 443		
Education No education Lower primary Higher primary Secondary High school Tertiary	21.5 26.9 38.6 57.8 69.9 77.5	77.7 73.2 81.4 87.5 91.1 92.9	86 138 636 972 431 57	16.8 19.8 47.1 59.7 73.8 71.0	77.0 73.7 85.0 93.0 95.2 91.7	81 280 629 760 405 53		
Wealth quintile Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	38.8 48.2 50.3 55.5 62.8	78.4 86.1 87.8 87.0 86.2	378 414 462 537 528	38.3 48.1 53.4 54.0 64.9	83.9 84.7 86.3 90.5 94.0	357 406 518 504 425		
Total	52.1	85.4	2,320	52.3	88.1	2,209		

¹ Comprehensive knowledge means knowing that consistent use of condoms during sexual intercourse and having just one uninfected faithful partner can reduce the chances of getting the AIDS virus, knowing that a healthy-looking person can have the AIDS virus, and rejecting the two most common local misconceptions about AIDS transmission or prevention. The components of comprehensive knowledge are presented in Tables 13.2, 13.3.1, and 13.3.2.

² Friends, family members, and home are not considered a source for condoms.

13.11.2 Knowledge of Condom Sources among Young Adults

Condom use among young adults plays an important role in preventing the transmission of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, as well as preventing unwanted pregnancies. Knowledge of a source for condoms enables young adults to obtain and use condoms. Table 13.18 shows that 85 percent of young women and 88 percent of young men know a source where they can get condoms. The proportion of young people who know where to get condoms increases with level of education and wealth quintile.

13.11.3 Age at First Sex

Since HIV transmission in Swaziland occurs predominantly through heterosexual intercourse between an infected and a non-infected person, age at first intercourse marks the point at which most individuals first risk exposure to the virus. Table 13.19 shows the proportion of women and men in the 15-24 age cohort who had sex before age 15 and before age 18. Seven percent of young women and

Table 13.19 Age at first sexual intercourse among youth									
Percentage of young women and of young men age 15-24 who had sexual intercourse before age 15 and percentage of young women and of young men age 18-24 who had sexual intercourse before age 18, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07									
	Women age 15-24		Women a	Women age 18-24		e 15-24	Men age 18-24		
Background	Percentage who had sexual intercourse before	Number of	Percentage who had sexual intercourse before	Number of	Percentage who had sexual intercourse before	Number of	Percentage who had sexual intercourse before	Number of	
characteristic	age 15	women	age 18	women	age 15	men	age 18	men	
Age									
15-19	7.4	1,274	na	na	4.9	1,323	na	na	
15-17	7.8	788	na	na	4.9	867	na	na	
18-19	6.7	485	51.1	485	4.9	456	29.3	456	
20-24	6.4	1,046	46.3	1,046	4.7	886	36.7	886	
20-22	7.6	668	46.3	668	5.3	582	37.0	582	
23-24	4.2	379	46.4	379	3.5	304	36.2	304	
Marital status									
Never married	5.8	1.867	41.7	1.100	4.8	2.128	33.6	1.261	
Ever married	11.6	452	63.6	431	5.7	81	42.9	81	
Knows condom source ¹									
Yes	7.0	1 982	48.2	1 382	49	1 945	34.9	1 244	
No	6.7	338	44.2	149	4.2	264	25.4	98	
Desidence	0.7	550	11.2	115		201	25.1	50	
Linhan	4.0	E 4 2	111	400	F 7	447	27 5	214	
Dural	4.9	1 776	44.1	409	3.7	44/	37.3	314 1 0 2 9	
	7.5	1,770	49.2	1,123	4.0	1,702	33.2	1,020	
Region	0.1		40.0	202	4 -	-00	247	247	
Hnonno	8.1	5/4	48.2	382	4./	509	34./	317	
Manzini	5.4	/80	44./	521	4.8	/3/	35.0	4/2	
Shiselweni	5.8	520	44.9	340	3.6	521	33.1	300	
Lubombo	9.5	446	56.6	288	6.3	443	33.4	253	
Education									
No education	37.8	86	81.3	72	13.3	81	38.2	61	
Lower primary	17.5	138	69.7	86	6.1	280	39.0	133	
Higher primary	8.8	636	64.5	334	4.4	629	32.3	276	
Secondary	4.1	972	47.2	603	3.6	760	32.5	449	
High school	2.0	431	27.5	380	4.4	405	33.5	370	
Tertiary	0.0	57	16.5	56	9.5	53	45.9	53	
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	11.7	378	55.4	240	5.1	357	33.6	198	
Second	9.0	414	55.8	269	4.2	406	28.2	235	
Middle	5.2	462	49.6	299	5.1	518	32.9	314	
Fourth	5.5	537	44.0	354	4.3	504	39.1	320	
Highest	4.9	528	39.4	369	5.3	425	35.5	275	
Total	6.9	2,320	47.8	1,531	4.8	2,209	34.2	1,342	
¹ Friends, family members,	and home ar	e not conside	ered a source	for condoms.					
na = Not available									

5 percent of young men had sex by age 15 while 48 percent of young women and 34 percent of young men had sex by age 18, which indicates that young women start having sexual intercourse at a younger age than young men. For both women and men, these proportions are higher among ever-married respondents than never-married respondents. The proportion of young people who had sex before the ages of 15 and 18 decreases dramatically with increasing education.

Figure 13.3 shows the distribution of young people by sexual practices, abstinence, being faithful to one partner, and using condoms.



Figure 13.3 Abstinence, Being Faithful, and Condom Use (ABC) among Young Women and Men

13.11.4 Condom Use at First Sex

Consistent condom use is promoted by HIV control programmes to reduce the risk of sexual transmission of HIV among sexually active young adults. Young people who use condoms at first sex are more likely to maintain condom use later in life. Condom use at first sex serves as an indicator of reduced risk of exposure to HIV at the beginning of sexual activity.

Table 13.20 shows that, among young people age 15-24 who have ever had sex, 43 percent of women and 49 percent of men used condoms during first sexual intercourse. Never-married young women and men were more likely than ever-married young women and men to report using a condom the first time they had sex. Knowledge of condom source among young men is associated with higher use. Higher educational attainment, higher wealth quintile, and urban residence positively influence the likelihood that young women and men will use condoms the first time they have sexual intercourse.

Table 13.20 Condom use at first sexual intercourse among youth

Among young women and young men age 15-24 who have ever had sexual intercourse, percentage who used a condom the first time they had sexual intercourse, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	Porcontago who	Number of		Number of
Background	Porcontago who			riannoer or
Background	reicentage who	women who	Percentage who	men who
Background	used a condom	have ever	used a condom	have ever
Ducingiounia	at first sexual	had sexual	at first sexual	had sexual
characteristic	intercourse	intercourse	intercourse	intercourse
Age				
15-19	52.7	527	52.3	286
15-17	50.3	214	50.1	103
18-19	54.3	313	53.6	183
20-24	37.9	941	48.0	697
20-22	42.0	592	49.1	432
23-24	31.1	349	46.3	266
Marital status				
Never married	47.3	1.016	50.3	902
Ever married	34.1	452	37.3	81
Knows condom source ¹				
Yes	43.2	1.324	50.2	925
No	43.1	144	34.6	58
Residence				
Urban	52.4	372	56.7	247
Rural	40.1	1,097	46.7	736
Region		,		
Hhohho	46.8	359	47.0	221
Manzini	45.7	499	56.7	358
Shiselweni	39.1	306	46.4	209
Lubombo	39.1	304	41.2	196
Education				
No education	27.4	78	37.2	46
lower primary	32.5	105	40.3	117
Higher primary	35.9	395	39.6	216
Secondary	45.8	563	49.7	315
High school	54.1	286	59.7	251
Tertiary	(60.1)	42	(73.9)	38
Wealth guintile				
lowest	30.9	257	40.9	147
Second	34.8	282	37.6	154
Middle	45.3	292	46.1	228
Fourth	51.9	318	55.9	255
Highest	50.1	319	59.6	199
Total	43.2	1,468	49.3	983

13.11.5 Abstinence and Premarital Sex

Premarital sex and the length of the interval between sexual initiation and marriage (or living together) are among the factors that predispose people to HIV infection. Table 13.21 focuses on nevermarried young people and shows the percentage who have never had sex, the percentage who had sex in the 12 months preceding the survey, and among those, the percentage who used a condom the last time they had sex. The data show that 46 percent of young women and 58 percent of young men reported that they had never had sex, and the proportion is somewhat higher among young people in rural areas. Among those who reported having sex in the 12 months preceding the survey, more young men (70 percent) than young women (54 percent) reported using a condom during last sexual intercourse. The percentage using condoms increases with increasing level of education and wealth quintile.

Table 13.21 Premarital sexual intercourse and condom use during premarital sexual intercourse among youth

Among never-married women and men age 15-24, the percentage who have never had sexual intercourse, the percentage who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, and, among those who had premarital sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who used a condom at the last sexual intercourse, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			women					Men		
Background	Percentage who have never had sexual	Percentage who had sexual intercourse in past	Number of never- married	Percentage who used condom at last sexual	Number of	Percentage who have never had sexual	Percentage who had sexual intercourse in past	Number of never- married	Percentage who used condom at last sexual	Number
characteristic	intercourse	12 months	women	intercourse	women	intercourse	12 months	men	intercourse	men
Аде										
15-19	63.2	30.4	1.181	52.1	359	78.6	14.6	1.320	68.6	193
15-17	74.9	20.5	767	50.2	157	88.1	7.4	867	64.4	65
18-19	41.5	48.8	414	53.5	202	60.3	28.3	453	70.7	128
20-24	15.3	69.6	686	55.6	478	23.4	59.9	807	71.0	484
20-22	16.2	68.2	468	55.6	319	27.2	56.6	554	68.8	313
23-24	13.4	72.7	218	55.5	159	15.1	67.3	254	75.2	171
Knows condom source ¹										
Yes	41.8	48.4	1,574	54.5	762	54.6	34.6	1,870	71.3	646
No	66.2	25.5	293	50.2	75	79.8	11.9	258	(49.4)	31
Residence										
Urban	40.9	48.5	420	63.6	204	47.1	41.6	425	80.3	177
Rural	47.0	43.8	1,447	51.0	633	60.3	29.4	1,703	66.8	500
Region										
Hhohho	493	42.4	436	578	185	593	30.1	486	81.6	146
Manzini	44.4	43.0	632	55.5	272	53.2	34.1	712	73.2	243
Shiselweni	46.7	45.3	458	54.4	207	61.2	29.1	510	61.6	148
Lubombo	41.5	50.8	342	47.5	174	58.8	33.2	419	62.8	139
Education										
No education	(16.8)	(73.1)	46	(35.6)	34	48.2	37.7	73	(49.0)	27
Lower primary	32.8	56.7	100	42.0	57	62.5	29.8	261	63.5	78
Higher primary	49.0	41.6	493	48.5	205	67.3	25.9	614	63.7	159
Secondary	50.7	41.1	807	52.0	331	60.7	29.4	733	69.8	215
High school	38.8	49.1	374	67.1	184	39.1	42.8	396	79.3	169
Tertiary	(32.3)	(56.4)	47	(81.6)	27	29.0	54.5	52	(97.4)	28
Wealth guintile										
lowest	43.8	43.9	277	37.3	122	63.0	28.4	334	60.7	95
Second	39.7	51.8	333	49.5	172	63.9	26.8	395	65.1	106
Middle	45.3	46.4	375	55.7	174	57.3	31.9	506	64.9	161
Fourth	48.9	42.3	449	56.1	190	52.6	35.3	473	76.1	167
Highest	48.1	41.4	433	66.1	180	53.6	35.4	420	79.6	149
Total	45.6	44.8	1,867	54.1	837	57.6	31.8	2,128	70.3	677

¹ Friends, family members, and home are not considered a source for condoms.

13.11.6 Higher-Risk Sexual Intercourse and Condom Use among Young People

Tables 13.22.1 and 13.22.2 focus on young women and men age 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months. They show the proportion who engaged in higher-risk sex (i.e., sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner) in the past 12 months, and of those, the proportion who used a condom at last higher-risk sex. As noted previously, by definition, sexual intercourse among never-married young people is considered higher-risk sex.

Table 13.22.1 Higher-risk sexual intercourse among youth and condom use at last higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months: Women

Among young women age 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who had higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, and among those, the percentage reporting that a condom was used at last higher-risk intercourse, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	D	Women 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in past 12 months		nonths
Background	vho had higher-risk intercourse in past	Number of	Percentage who reported using a condom at last higher-risk	Number of
characteristic	12 months ¹	women	intercourse ¹	women
Ago				
15-19	82.2	451	51.9	371
15-17	89.4	179	50.0	160
18-19	77.5	272	53.3	211
20-24	61.1	834	55.8	510
20-22	63.4	517	56.1	328
23-24	57.4	317	55.3	182
25 21	57.1	517	55.5	102
Marital status				
Never married	99.3	837	54.1	832
Ever married	10.9	447	(56.1)	49
1 2				
Knows condom source ²	60.0	4.466	- 1 0	000
Yes	68.8	1,166	54.8	802
No	66.3	119	4/.8	/9
Residence				
Urban	67.5	324	64.4	219
Rural	68.9	960	50.8	662
Region				
Hhohho	61.4	322	58.9	198
Manzini	69.2	416	56.9	288
Shiselweni	78.3	269	53.5	210
Lubombo	66.3	278	45.5	184
Education				
No education	54 7	73	$(44 \ 4)$	40
Lower primary	67.4	93	39.4	63
Higher primary	63.8	348	48.9	222
Secondary	68.4	493	52.2	337
High school	79.0	240	67.4	190
Tertiary	76.7	36	(77.7)	28
,				
Wealth quintile		22 ·	a a =	100
Lowest	58.7	221	38.5	130
Second	69.3	254	49.1	1/6
Middle	69.2	261	55.6	181
Fourth	/3.8	2/7	56.5	205
Highest	69.8	271	65.9	189
Total 15-24	68.5	1,285	54.2	880

¹ Sexual intercourse with a non-marital, non-cohabiting partner

² Friends, family members, and home are not considered a source for condoms.

Table 13.22.2 Higher-risk sexual intercourse among youth and condom use at last higher-risk intercourse in the past 12 months: Men

Among young men age 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who had higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, and among those, the percentage reporting that a condom was used at last higher-risk intercourse, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Men 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in past 12 months Percentage		Men 15-24 who had higher-risk intercourse past 12 months Percentage		
	who had higher-risk intercourse		who reported using a condom at last		
Background	in past	Number of	higher-risk	Number of	
characteristic	12 months	men	intercourse	men	
Age					
15-19	97.5	196	68.8	191	
15-17	100.0	65	64.4	65	
18-19	96.3	131	71.0	126	
20-24	90.0	559	71.1	503	
20-22	92.9	341	68.5	317	
23-24	85.4	218	75.5	187	
Marital status					
Never married	98.1	677	70.3	664	
Ever married	38.1	78	74.2	30	
Knows condom source ²					
Yes	92.3	718	71.5	663	
No	(84.7)	37	(48.8)	31	
Residence					
Urban	90.6	199	80.0	181	
Rural	92.4	556	67.1	513	
Region					
Hhohho	89.1	169	82.1	151	
Manzini	93.9	268	73.6	252	
Shiselweni	96.1	158	60.5	152	
Lubombo	87.4	160	63.0	140	
Education					
No education	(85.0)	36	(49.7)	30	
Lower primary	83.0	95	62.5	79	
Higher primary	91.9	173	64.1	159	
Secondary	94.3	242	70.9	228	
High school	94.1	179	78.6	169	
Tertiary	(96.3)	30	(97.4)	29	
Wealth quintile					
Lowest	85.9	117	60.7	101	
Second	92.4	117	64.2	108	
Middle	94.7	171	65.7	162	
Fourth	88.7	197	76.7	175	
Highest	97.2	153	79.4	149	
Total 15-24	91.9	755	70.4	694	

Among sexually active young people age 15-24, 69 percent of women and 92 percent of men reported engaging in higher-risk sexual intercourse in the 12 months preceding the survey. Fifty-four percent of these women and 70 percent of the men used a condom at last higher-risk sexual intercourse. The age pattern in higher-risk sexual behaviour for women and men age 15-24 is a reflection of their age pattern of entry into marriage. The proportion who engage in higher-risk sexual intercourse declines with age, reflecting the increased proportion of men and women who are married or living with a sexual partner. The likelihood of engaging in higher-risk sexual intercourse increases with level of education and

wealth quintile, especially among women. Among young men, the likelihood of engaging in higher-risk sex is high for most background characteristics. Among both young women and young men, use of condoms at last higher-risk sexual intercourse increases with level of education and wealth quintile.

13.11.7 Cross-Generational Sexual Partners

To examine age differences between sexual partners, women age 15-19 who had higher-risk sex in the 12 months preceding the survey were asked the age of all their partners. In the event they did not know a partner's exact age, they were asked if the partner was older or younger than they were, and if older, whether the partner was 10 or more years older. The results are shown in Table 13.23. Seven percent of young women who had engaged in higher-risk sex in the past 12 months reported that they had sexual intercourse with a man who was 10 or more years older. In general, this proportion is higher among older girls, girls living in rural areas, and in Hhohho. The likelihood of having higher-risk sexual intercourse with a man ten or more years older seems to decrease with increasing education.

13.11.8 Drunkenness during Sexual Intercourse among Young People

Engaging in sexual intercourse while under the influence of alcohol can impair judgment, compromise power relations, and increase risky sexual behaviour. Respondents who had sex in the past 12 months were asked (for each partner) if they or their partner drank alcohol the last time they had sexual intercourse with that partner, and whether they or their partner was drunk. As shown in Table 13.24, the overall prevalence of sexual intercourse when the respondent or the respondent's partner was drunk is low for both women and men (2 percent for women and 3 percent for men).

Table 13.23 Age mixing in sexual relationships among	
women age 15-19	

Percentage of women age 15-19 who had higher-risk sexual intercourse in the past 12 months with a man who was 10 or more years older than themselves, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	Percentage of women who had higher-risk intercourse with a man 10+	Number of women who had higher-risk intercourse in the past 12
characteristic	years older ¹	months ¹
Age		
15-17	5.1	160
18-19	8.7	211
Marital status		
Never married	6.8	358
Ever married	*	13
Knows condom source ²		
Yes	7.6	330
No	(3.5)	40
Residence		
Urban	5.7	84
Rural	7.6	286
Region		
Hhohho	10.6	76
Manzini	7.0	124
Shiselweni	5.6	85
Lubombo	5.8	85
Education		
No education	*	15
Lower primary	13.5	34
Higher primary	8.6	124
Secondary	8.1	139
High school	0.0	56
Tertiary	*	3
Wealth quintile		
Lowest	5.6	63
Second	5.6	76
Middle	2.2	/δ 00
Fourth	13.2	90
Figuest	0.0	04
Total 15-19	7.1	371
Note: Figures in parer unweighted cases. An aste based on fewer than 25 suppressed. ¹ Sexual intercourse with partner	ntheses are bas erisk indicates tha unweighted cases n a non-marital,	ed on 25-49 t an estimate is 5 and has been non-cohabiting

² Friends, family members, and home are not considered a source for condoms.

Table 13.24 Drunkenness during sexual intercourse among youth

Among all young women and young men age 15-24, the percentage who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months while being drunk and percentage who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months when drunk or with a partner who was drunk, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Women			Men	
		Percentage who			Percentage who	
	Percentage	had sexual		Percentage	had sexual	
	who had sexual	intercourse in the		who had sexual	intercourse in the	
	intercourse	nast 12 months		intercourse	nast 12 months	
	in the past	when drunk or		in the past	when drunk or	
Background	12 months	with a partner	Number of	12 months	with a partner	Number of
characteristic	when drunk	who was drunk	women	when drunk	who was drunk	men
Age						
15-19	0.0	1.0	1,274	0.9	1.0	1,323
15-17	0.0	1.0	788	0.6	0.6	867
18-19	0.0	0.8	485	1.6	1.9	456
20-24	0.6	3.8	1,046	5.9	6.2	886
20-22	0.7	3.3	668	6.1	6.2	582
23-24	0.6	4.5	379	5.6	6.0	304
Marital status						
Never married	0.1	1.7	1,867	2.8	3.0	2,128
Ever married	1.0	4.4	452	5.4	5.4	[′] 81
Knows condom source						
Yes	0.3	2.5	1,982	3.3	3.4	1,945
No	0.0	0.7	338	0.2	0.6	264
Residence						
Urban	0.4	2.7	543	4.3	4.6	447
Rural	0.3	2.1	1,776	2.6	2.7	1,762
Region						
Hhohho	0.3	2.5	574	3.9	3.9	509
Manzini	0.1	1.7	780	3.7	3.8	737
Shiselweni	0.4	2.8	520	1.6	1.8	521
Lubombo	0.4	2.1	446	2.2	2.4	443
Education						
No education	2.6	6.9	86	2.9	2.9	81
Lower primary	0.0	3.0	138	0.7	0.7	280
Higher primary	0.1	1.9	636	2.3	2.3	629
Secondary	0.1	1.9	972	4.2	4.6	760
High school	0.6	2.1	431	3.3	3.6	405
Tertiary	0.0	3.0	57	0.0	0.0	53
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	0.6	2.2	378	1.7	1.7	357
Second	0.2	2.9	414	2.8	3.1	406
Middle	0.2	2.5	462	3.6	3.6	518
Fourth	0.3	1.6	537	3.2	3.4	504
Highest	0.1	2.1	528	2.9	3.3	425
Total 15-24	0.3	2.2	2,320	2.9	3.1	2,209
¹ Friends, family member	rs, and home are i	not considered a sc	ource for conc	loms.		

13.11.9 HIV Testing and Counselling among Young People

Knowledge of one's own HIV sero-status can motivate a person to practice safe sexual behaviour to avoid transmitting the virus to others. Table 13.25 shows for young women and young men age 15-24 who had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who reported having an HIV test in the past 12 months and received the results of the test. Young women are about four times as likely as young men to have been tested for HIV (28 percent and 7 percent, respectively). While there are no substantial differences in HIV testing levels by most background characteristics, older youth and those who have ever been married are more likely than other youth to have been tested for HIV.

Table 13.25 Recent HIV tests among youth

Among young women and young men age 15-24 who have had sexual intercourse in the past 12 months, the percentage who have had an HIV test in the past 12 months and received the results of the test, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Wome	en	Men			
	Percentage who have been tested for HIV and received results		Percentage who have been tested for HIV and received results			
Background characteristic	in the past 12 months	Number of women	in the past 12 months	Number of men		
Age						
15-19	22.5	451	4.3	196		
15-17	18.3	179	1.9	65		
18-19	25.3	272	5.4	131		
20-24	30.7	834	7.3	559		
20-22	31.7	517	5.0	341		
23-24	29.0	317	10.9	218		
Marital status						
Never married	26.4	837	5.8	677		
Ever married	30.6	447	13.2	78		
Knows condom source ¹						
Yes	28.1	1,166	6.4	718		
No	25.2	119	(8.8)	37		
Residence						
Urban	27.6	324	5.4	199		
Rural	27.9	960	6.9	556		
Region						
Hhohho	23.1	322	3.7	169		
Manzini	30.7	416	7.9	268		
Shiselweni	32.3	269	6.3	158		
Lubombo	24.8	278	7.5	160		
Education						
No education	21.3	73	(6.6)	36		
Lower primary	16.7	93	8.3	95		
Higher primary	28.9	348	5.0	173		
Secondary	26.2	493	3.5	242		
High school	35.0	240	10.5	179		
Tertiary	(33.3)	36	(10.3)	30		
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	25.9	221	5.8	117		
Second	26.5	254	9.4	117		
Middle	29.3	261	6.5	171		
Fourth	30.8	277	6.5	197		
Highest	26.2	271	5.0	153		
Total 15-24	27.8	1,285	6.5	755		

¹ Friends, family members, and home are not considered a source for condoms.

Rachel Masuku

The 2006-07 SDHS is the first national survey in Swaziland to include HIV testing. A description of the procedures that were followed in collecting the blood samples and conducting the HIV testing is included in Chapter 1. This chapter presents information on the coverage of HIV testing among the eligible population age 2 and older, the prevalence of HIV in the individuals who were tested, and the factors associated with HIV infection in the population.

In Swaziland, as in most of sub-Saharan Africa, national HIV prevalence estimates have been derived primarily from sentinel surveillance of pregnant women. Currently, the national sentinel surveillance system consists of 17 sites in government and mission health facilities selected to represent the different groups, regions, and rural and urban populations in the country.

While the rate of HIV infection in pregnant women has been shown to be a reasonable proxy for the level in the combined male and female adult population in a number of settings (WHO and UNAIDS, 2000), there are several well-recognized limitations in estimating the HIV rate in the general adult population from data derived exclusively from pregnant women attending selected antenatal clinics. First, the ANC data do not capture any information on HIV prevalence in non-pregnant women, nor in women who either do not attend a clinic for pregnancy care or receive antenatal care at facilities not represented in the surveillance system. Pregnant women also are more at risk for HIV infection than women who may be avoiding both HIV and pregnancy through the use of condoms or women who are less sexually active and are therefore less likely to become pregnant or be exposed to HIV infection. In addition, there may be biases in the ANC surveillance data because HIV infection reduces fertility and because knowledge of HIV status may influence fertility choices. Finally, the rates among pregnant women are not a good proxy for male HIV rates.

Thus, the 2006-07 SDHS offers a valuable new resource to complement the ANC surveillance. The HIV prevalence data from the SDHS provide important information to plan the national response, evaluate programme impact, and measure progress on the National HIV/AIDS Strategic Plan 2006-2008. The understanding of the distribution of HIV within the population and the analysis of social, biological, and behavioural factors associated with HIV infection offer new insights about the HIV pandemic in Swaziland that may lead to more precisely targeted messages and interventions.

14.1 COVERAGE OF HIV TESTING

All women and men age 15-49 living in the households selected for the 2006/07 SDHS were eligible for the HIV testing component. Children age 2 to 14 years and older adults age 50 years and above in half the households selected for the SDHS sample were also eligible for the HIV testing.

Table 14.1 shows the coverage rates for HIV testing among eligible respondents by reason for not being tested by age and sex. HIV tests were conducted for 85 percent of the 15,144 eligible persons age 2 years and above. Among the reproductive age group (i.e., 15-49) HIV tests were carried out for 87 percent of the 5,301 eligible women and 78 percent of the 4,675 eligible men.

Table 14.1 Coverage of HIV testing among the population age 2 years and older by age

Percent distribution of population age 2 years and older eligible for HIV testing by testing status, according to residence and region unweighted), Swaziland 2006-07

		Testing				
		Defender	Absent at			
	DBS	Refused to	the time	Other/		
Age	tested ¹	blood ²	collection	missing ³	Total	Number
2-4	86.8	8.2	2.5	2.5	100.0	485
5-9	92.1	4.3	2.2	1.4	100.0	719
10-14	91.7	4.3	1.5	2.6	100.0	817
15-19	90.4	6.6	1.1	1.9	100.0	1,332
20-24	84.0	9.6	1.9	1.8	100.0	1,095
30-34	86.1	12.1	1.0	2.1	100.0	662
35-39	86.7	10.2	1.1	2.0	100.0	548
40-44	85.0	11.4	1.7	1.9	100.0	474
45-49	89.9	7.3	1.0	1.8	100.0	396
50-54	88.2	10.0	1.2	0.6	100.0	170
55-59	88.2	10.1	0.0	1.7	100.0	119
60+	86.1	7.9	0./	5.2	100.0	404
Total 2+	88.1	8.4	1.5	2.1	100.0	8,015
Total 15-49	87.2	9.5	1.4	1.8	100.0	5,301
		M	EN			
2-4	88.9	7.9	1.8	1.4	100.0	442
5-9	89.7	6.1	1.9	2.3	100.0	789
10-14	89.2	7.3	1.9	1.6	100.0	731
15-19	8/./	8.9	1.8	1.6	100.0	1,354
20-24	74.2 73.2	10.0	4.0	3.1 3.8	100.0	739
30-34	72.5	20.7	39	2.0	100.0	516
35-39	72.5	21.5	2.4	3.5	100.0	451
40-44	72.3	22.2	2.5	3.1	100.0	325
45-49	77.5	17.6	1.8	3.2	100.0	284
50-54	78.7	13.2	2.2	5.9	100.0	136
55-59	//.9	18.9	0.0	3.2	100.0	95
	05.5	11.1	1.1	4.2	100.0	201
Total 2+	81.1	13./	2.6	2./	100.0	7,129
Total 15-49	//.6	16.6	3.0	2.8	100.0	4,675
		TO	TAL			
2-4	87.8	8.1	2.2	1.9	100.0	927
5-9 10 14	90.8	5.2	2.1	1.9	100.0	1,508
15-19	89 O	7.8	1.7	2.1	100.0	2 686
20-24	80.7	14.0	2.9	2.4	100.0	2,101
25-29	78.8	15.3	3.0	2.9	100.0	1,533
30-34	80.1	15.4	2.4	2.0	100.0	1,178
35-39	80.3	15.3	1.7	2.7	100.0	999
40-44	79.8	15.8	2.0	2.4	100.0	799
45-49	84.7	11.6	1.3	2.4	100.0	680
50-54 55-59	04.U 83.6	11.4	1.6	2.9 2 2	100.0	3Ub 214
60+	85.1	9.2	0.0	4.8	100.0	665
Total 2+	84.8	10.9	2.0	2.3	100.0	15,144
Total 15-49	82.7	12.8	2.2	2.3	100.0	9,976

¹ Includes all dried blood samples (DBS) tested at the laboratory and for which there is a result, i.e., positive, negative, or indeterminate. Indeterminate means that the sample went through the entire algorithm, but the final result was inconclusive.

² For children age 2-14, "refused" refers to the refusal by the parent to allow the DBS sample to be collected. For never-married youth, either the parent or the youth themselves may have refused.

³ Includes: 1) other results of blood collection (e.g., technical problem in the field), 2) lost specimens, 3) non-corresponding bar codes, 4) other lab results such as blood not tested for technical reason, not enough blood to complete the algorithm, etc. and 5) persons for whom a final result of the testing is missing

Based on the reason for non-response, respondents who were not tested are divided into three categories:

- Those who refused testing when asked for informed consent by the technician (11 percent for individuals age 2 years and above and 13 percent for those age 15-49). There were more refusals among men (17 percent) than women (10 percent) for the age group 15-49.
- Those who were interviewed in the survey, but who were not at home when the technician arrived for testing and were not found on callbacks (2 percent for both persons age 2 years above and for persons age 15-49).
- Those for whom test results are missing for some other reason, such as they were incapable of giving consent for testing, there was a mismatch between the questionnaire and the blood sample, or there was a technical problem in taking blood (2 percent for both persons age 2 years and above and for persons age 15-49 years).

Looking at age patterns, coverage rates were at or near 90 percent among males age 2-19 years before falling steeply to a level of 74 percent in the 20-24 cohort. Coverage continued to fall gradually to a low of 72 percent among men in the 40-44 age group, before rising to 84 percent among men age 60 and older. Among women, coverage rates exceeded 90 percent for those age 5-19 years and ranged between 85 and 90 percent in the other age groups.

Table 14.2 shows coverage rates for HIV testing by residence, education, and wealth. Rural residents were more likely to be tested than their urban counterparts. For women, the rates in urban and rural areas were 80 percent and 91 percent, respectively. Among men, coverage rates were 72 percent for the urban residents and 85 percent for rural dwellers. Differences in HIV testing coverage by region are comparatively small; the highest rate was 91 percent for Shiselweni and the lowest was 86 percent for Manzini. Considering the relationship with education, those with little or no education are more likely to have been tested while men and women with high school and tertiary education were least likely to be tested.

Additional tables describing the relationship between participation in the HIV testing and characteristics related to HIV risk are presented in Appendix A (see Tables A.3-A.6). Overall, the results in those tables do not show a systematic relationship between participation in the test and variables associated with higher risk of HIV infection. The results from a multivariate analysis investigating the effect of non-response on HIV prevalence are summarized in Appendix D. This analysis also supports the conclusion that non-response did not introduce significant bias in the HIV prevalence results. Table 14.2 Coverage of HIV testing among population age 2 years and older by selected background characteristics

Percent distribution of population age 2 years and older eligible for HIV testing by testing status, according to selected background characteristics (unweighted), Swaziland 2006-07

		Testing	g status			
			Absent at			
		Refused to	the time			
Background	DBS	provide	of blood	Other/		
characteristic	tested ¹	blood ²	collection	missing ³	Total	Number
Residence						
Urban	79.7	16.0	1.9	2.4	100.0	2,168
Rural	91.2	5.5	1.4	1.9	100.0	5,847
Region						
Hhohho	86.9	9.9	1.6	1.6	100.0	2,013
Manzini	86.3	9.8	1./	2.3	100.0	2,317
Shiselweni	91.3	6.5	1.0	1.1	100.0	1,836
Lubombo	88.4	6.8	1./	3.1	100.0	1,849
Education	00.1	6.0	1.0	2.2	100.0	1 400
No education	88.I	6.9	1.6	3.3	100.0	1,498
Lower primary	91.6	4.1	1./	2.6	100.0	1,43/
Figner primary	91.0	2./	0./	1./	100.0	1,//4
Secondary Lich school	09.1	0.0	1.0	1.4	100.0	1,039
Tortion	02.4 71.7	14.0	1.0	1./	100.0	960
Teruary	/ 1./	23.4	1.9	1.1	100.0	47 J
Wealth quintile	00.4	1.0	0.0		100.0	4 200
Lowest	92.1	4.8	0.9	2.2	100.0	1,289
Secona	91.3	5.0	2.0	1./	100.0	1,297
Fourth	90.0	0.5	1.5	2.4	100.0	1,372
Highost	77.8	17.8	1.5	1.0	100.0	1,475
Tignesc	77.0	17.0	1.9	2.5	100.0	1,050
Total	88.1	8.4	1.5	2.1	100.0	8,015
		N	IEN			
Residence						
Urban	71.7	22.6	2.9	2.8	100.0	2,071
Rural	85.0	10.0	2.4	2.6	100.0	5,058
Region						
Hhohho	79.9	15.0	2.3	2.7	100.0	1,759
Manzini	79.1	15.2	3.3	2.5	100.0	2,023
Shiselweni	83.5	12.8	2.6	1.1	100.0	1,559
Lubombo	82.4	11.4	2.0	4.1	100.0	1,788
Education						
No education	84.9	10.3	1.7	3.2	100.0	1,315
Lower primary	86.7	8.5	2.1	2.7	100.0	1,552
Higher primary	83.3	12.1	2.5	2.0	100.0	1,416
Secondary	80.3	14.8	2.5	2.5	100.0	1,385
High school	74.6	18.4	4.2	2.8	100.0	967
Tertiary	63.0	30.9	3.3	2.9	100.0	486
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	86.5	7.9	2.5	3.1	100.0	1,057
Second	81.9	11.4	2.8	3.8	100.0	1,024
Middle	83.1	12.1	2.7	2.1	100.0	1,167
Fourth	/7.8	17.6	2.1	2.5	100.0	1,333
Hignest	/1.9	22.3	3.1	2./	100.0	1,/18
Total	81.1	13.7	2.6	2.7	100.0	7,129
					C	Continued

Table 14.2—Continued								
		Testing						
			Absent at					
		Refused to	the time					
Background	DBS	provide	of blood	Other/				
characteristic	tested ¹	blood ²	collection	missing ³	Total	Number		
		TC	DTAL					
Residence								
Urban	75.8	19.2	2.4	2.6	100.0	4,239		
Rural	88.3	7.6	1.9	2.2	100.0	10,905		
Region								
Hhohho	83.6	12.3	1.9	2.1	100.0	3.772		
Manzini	82.9	12.3	2.4	2.4	100.0	4,340		
Shiselweni	87.7	9.4	1.7	1.1	100.0	3,395		
Lubombo	85.5	9.0	1.9	3.6	100.0	3,637		
Education								
No education	86.6	8.5	1.6	3.3	100.0	2.813		
Lower primary	89.1	6.4	1.9	2.6	100.0	2,989		
Higher primary	88.1	8.6	1.5	1.8	100.0	3,190		
Secondary	85.3	10.9	2.0	1.8	100.0	3,224		
High school	78.5	16.2	3.0	2.3	100.0	1,947		
Tertiary	67.3	28.2	2.6	2.0	100.0	959		
Wealth guintile								
lowest	89.6	6.2	1.6	2.6	100.0	2.346		
Second	87.2	7.8	2.4	2.6	100.0	2.321		
Middle	86.8	8.9	1.9	2.3	100.0	2.539		
Fourth	83.5	12.6	1.8	2.1	100.0	2.808		
Highest	74.9	20.0	2.5	2.6	100.0	3,548		
Total	84.8	10.9	2.0	2.3	100.0	15,144		

Note: Totals include 18 respondents for whom information on education level is missing (12 women and 6 men).

¹ Includes all dried blood samples (DBS) tested at the laboratory and for which there is a result, i.e., positive, negative, or indeterminate. Indeterminate means that the sample went through the entire algorithm, but the final result was inconclusive.

² For children (age 2-14), "refused" refers to the refusal by the parent to allow the DBS sample to be collected. For never-married youth, either the parent or the youth themselves may have refused.

³ Includes: 1) other results of blood collection (e.g., technical problem in the field), 2) lost specimens, 3) non-corresponding bar codes, and 4) other lab results such as blood not tested for technical reason, not enough blood to complete the algorithm, etc. and 5) persons for whom a final result of the testing is missing

14.2 HIV PREVALENCE

14.2.1 HIV Prevalence by Age

The 2006-07 SDHS found that 19 percent of the population age 2 years and older and 26 percent of the population age 15-49 is living with HIV/AIDS (Table 14.3). HIV prevalence is higher among women than men (22 percent and 15 percent, respectively).

Looking at the age pattern, Table 14.3 shows that HIV prevalence is 5 percent among the population age 2-4 and declines gradually to 3 percent in the 10-14 age group. The prevalence among women age 15-19 is 10 percent compared with 2 percent among men in the same age. Prevalence rises sharply with age among women age 15 years and older, peaking at 49 percent among those in the 25-29 age group before falling to a level of 7 percent among those age 60 years and older. Among men age 15 years and older, the HIV rate rises more gradually with age to a peak at age 35-39 (45 percent), before declining to 13 percent among men age 60 years and older.

Table 14.3 HIV prevalence among population age 2 years and older by age

Among the de facto population age 2 years and older who were tested, the percentage HIV-1 positive, by age, Swaziland 2006-07

	Won	Women Men		en	То	tal		
	Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV			
Age	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number		
2-4	4.8	427	5.5	393	5.1	820		
5-9	3.6	670	4.8	697	4.2	1,367		
10-14	3.3	741	1.9	651	2.6	1,392		
15-19	10.1	1,151	1.9	1,272	5.8	2,423		
20-24	38.4	922	12.4	779	26.5	1,701		
25-29	49.2	648	27.8	553	39.3	1,201		
30-34	45.2	536	43.7	380	44.6	916		
35-39	37.7	441	44.9	321	40.8	762		
40-44	27.9	382	40.7	230	32.7	612		
45-49	21.4	342	27.9	229	24.0	571		
50-54	24.3	144	28.3	106	26.0	250		
55-59	9.6	102	17.4	70	12.7	172		
60+	7.0	342	13.3	227	9.5	569		
Total 2+	22.1	6,850	14.9	5,906	18.8	12,756		
Total 15-49	31.1	4,424	19.7	3,763	25.9	8,187		
Total 50+	11.7	588	17.9	402	14.2	990		
¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1. For population age 12 and older, only individuals who were interviewed and tested are considered in the calculation of the HIV rate.								

14.2.2 HIV Prevalence by Residence, Region, and Wealth

Table 14.4 indicates that generally urban residents have a significantly higher risk of HIV infection than rural residents. Much of that greater risk can be attributed to the fact that prevalence among the population of reproductive age is substantially higher in urban areas compared with rural areas. Prevalence among urban women age 15-49 is 37 percent compared with 29 percent for rural women in the same age group, translating to a 1.3 urban-rural risk ratio of HIV infection. For men age 15-49, the risk associated with urban residence is slightly greater than that observed among women. Twenty-six percent of urban men are HIV positive compared with 17 percent of rural men, representing an urban-rural risk ratio of 1.5. Among older adults and children age 2-14, HIV prevalence is not significantly higher in urban than in rural areas.

Table 14.4 HIV prevalence among the population age 2 years and older by residence, region, and wealth quintile

Percentage HIV positive among population age 2 and older who were tested by residence, region, and wealth quintile, according to age and sex, Swaziland 2006-07

	2-14	years ¹	15-49	years ¹	50 years a	nd older ¹	То	tal
	Percentage	1	Percentage	1	Percentage		Percentage	
Background	HIV	NL	HIV	NI SEC.	HIV	NI SILS	HIV	NI SILS
characteristic	positive	Number	positive-	Number	positive-	Number	positive	Number
			V	NOMEN				
Residence								
Urban	4.2	300	36.8	1,171	12.5	80	29.3	1,551
Rural	3.7	1,541	29.1	3,254	11.5	509	20.0	5,303
Region								
Hhohho	4.1	472	33.8	1,193	11.2	148	24.2	1,814
Manzini	5.5	527	30.4	1,459	13.2	182	22.9	2,168
Lubombo	1.9	403	29.1	917	/./	104	10./	1,544
	5.1	370	51.0	033	10.2	55	22.0	1,520
	1.0	267	31.6	711	12.8	153	22.0	1 1 3 0
Second	3.1	207	32.1	775	10.6	135	22.0	1,130
Middle	5.1	221	31.5	873	8.8	116	24.5	1,210
Fourth	6.3	214	31.8	991	12.4	116	26.0	1,321
Highest	4.3	192	29.4	1,075	12.5	67	24.9	1,333
Total	3.7	1,841	31.2	4,425	11.7	588	22.1	6,854
				MEN				
Residence	2 7	224	25.5	1 071	10 5	75	21.4	1 270
Urban Rural	3./	234	25.5 173	1,071	18.5	229	21.4	1,379 4 541
	4.0	1,312	17.5	2,099	17.7	323	12.9	4,541
Kegion	26	442	22.1	1 002	20.7	117	174	1 560
Manzini	3.0	445	23.1 18.4	1,002	20.7	117	17.4	1,302
Shiselweni	5.0	452	16.0	767	95	85	11.9	1 304
Lubombo	3.8	359	20.9	776	15.6	76	15.5	1,211
Wealth quintile								,
Lowest	5.0	232	19.8	561	12.3	125	15.0	918
Second	2.7	183	19.8	607	27.2	77	16.9	868
Middle	2.3	204	17.0	787	20.3	62	14.3	1,053
Fourth	3.3	184	21.1	856	22.6	74	18.3	1,114
Highest	3.0	151	20.4	959	9.9	67	17.6	1,177
Total	4.0	1,746	19.7	3,770	17.8	404	14.9	5,921
				TOTAL				
Residence								
Urban	4.0	534	31.4	2,242	15.4	155	25.6	2,930
Rural	3.8	3,053	23.8	5,953	14.0	838	16.8	9,844
Region								
Hhohho	3.9	915	28.9	2,195	15.4	265	21.0	3,375
Manzini	4.3	1,020	24.9	2,683	16.9	309	19.1	4,012
Shiselweni	3.6	915	23.1	1,685	8.3	248	15.6	2,848
Lubombo	3.5	737	26.2	1,632	15.9	171	18.9	2,539
Wealth quintile								
Lowest	2.8	499	26.4	1,272	13.1	277	18.9	2,048
Second	2.9	40/	26./	1,382	16.6	214	20.8	2,003
Fourth	3.8 4 9	425 308	24.6 26.8	1,000	12.8 16.3	1/ð 100	19.7	2,263
Highest	3.7	343	25.0	2,033	11.2	134	21.5	2,510
	0.7	515	_3.1	_,555			_ <i>9</i>	_,510
Total	3.9	3,587	25.9	8,195	14.2	993	18.8	12,774
1 Foutho populatio	امام امسط	an indudad	and, da faata	املم ما ممير مما	م وارب میں م وا وور م و	intom	مدامسم اممنيما	I

 1 For the population 12 and older, includes only de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. 2 HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

The HIV epidemic also exhibits some degree of regional heterogeneity, with the prevalence rate in the population age 2 and older ranging from 16 percent in Shiselweni to 21 percent in Hhohho. The regional differential is especially marked in the case of older adults; 8 percent of the population age 50 and older is HIV positive in Shiselweni compared with 15-17 percent in the other three regions.

Table 14.4 also shows that the proportion of HIV positive does not vary in a uniform manner with the wealth quintile.

14.2.3 HIV Prevalence by Education and Employment

Table 14.5 examines the relationship between HIV prevalence and education and employment for women and men age 15 years and above. Among women age 15-49, the HIV prevalence rate is lowest among those with a tertiary education (27 percent) and highest among those with a lower primary education (34 percent). Among men, the educational differentials are larger than among women. The HIV infection rate is highest among those with no education (31 percent) while men with higher primary and secondary education have the lowest infection rates (16 percent and 17 percent, respectively).

Table 14.5 HIV prevalence by education and employment status: Women and men age 15 and older

Percentage HIV positive among population age 15 and older who were tested by selected education and employment status, according to age and sex, Swaziland 2006-07

	15-49 years		50 years a	and older	Total		
	Percentage		Percentage		Percentage		
Background	HIV	N 1	HIV	NI 1	HIV		
characteristic	positive	Number	positive	Number	positive	Number	
		WOMEN	N				
Education							
No education	29.6	1,347	*	0	29.6	1,347	
Lower primary	33.8	785	8.5	136	30.1	921	
Higher primary	33.3	795	12.4	135	30.2	930	
Secondary	30.5	779	8.8	51	29.2	830	
High school	30.1	511	*	8	29.6	519	
Tertiary	26.8	177	*	15	25.8	192	
Employment (past 12 months)							
Not employed	26.2	2,361	10.8	390	24.0	2,752	
Employed	38.1	1,919	13.4	190	35.9	2,110	
Missing	20.0	143	10.0	7	19.5	[′] 151	
Total	31.1	4,424	11.7	588	28.9	5,012	
		MEN					
Education							
No education	30.7	286	*	0	30.7	286	
Lower primary	22.5	424	34.2	74	24.3	498	
Higher primary	16.1	915	17.2	79	16.2	994	
Secondary	17.1	1,097	14.2	51	17.0	1,148	
High school	20.6	756	17.5	11	20.6	767	
Tertiary	23.5	286	10.7	27	22.4	313	
Employment (past 12 months)							
Not employed	9.7	1.708	15.1	211	10.3	1,919	
Employed	28.0	2.054	20.5	184	27.4	2.239	
Missing	*	1	*	7	*	8	
Total	19.7	3,763	17.9	402	19.5	4,165	
		,			Cor	tinued	

	15 /9 voars		50 years and older		Total	
Background characteristic	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number
		TOTAL				
Education						
No education	29.8	1,632	*	0	29.8	1,632
Lower primary	29.9	1,209	17.6	211	28.0	1,419
Higher primary	24.1	1,710	14.2	214	23.0	1,924
Secondary	22.7	1,876	11.5	101	22.1	1,977
High school	24.4	1,267	10.2	19	24.2	1,286
Tertiary	24.8	463	11.5	42	23.7	504
Employment (past 12 months)						
Not employed	19.3	4,069	12.3	601	18.4	4,670
Employed 2	32.9	3,973	16.9	375	31.5	4,348
Missing	19.8	144	23.0	14	20.1	159
Total	25.9	8,187	14.2	990	24.6	9,177

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Totals include 5 respondents for whom information on education level is missing (4 women and 1 man). An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed. ¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

Among the population age 15-49, women and men who are employed have higher infection rates than their counterparts who are not employed (38 percent compared with 26 percent among women and 28 percent compared with 10 percent for men). Similarly, among older adults, employed women and men have higher infection rates than their unemployed counterparts.

14.2.4 HIV Prevalence by Sociodemographic Characteristics

Tables 14.6.1 through 14.6.3 present the relationship between HIV prevalence and a number of other sociodemographic variables for women, men, and the total population age 15 years and older, respectively. Looking at the patterns for women, marital status is strongly related to HIV prevalence. For example, women age 15-49 who are widowed or who are divorced or separated have significantly higher rates (56 percent and 51 percent, respectively) than those who are married or living together (33 percent). HIV rates are lowest for women in this age group who have never been in a union (26 percent). The patterns among older women are generally similar, with divorced, separated, and widowed women having higher HIV prevalence than other women. A sizeable proportion (5 percent) of women age 15 and older who said that they never had sex were HIV positive; this suggests that some women may have failed to report sexual activity or that there has been some degree of nonsexual transmission of HIV, e.g., through blood transfusion or unsterile injections.

Among currently married women, HIV infection does not vary much by type of union. Women who are in a polygynous union have the same prevalence rate as women who are not in a polygamous union. Somewhat surprisingly, women who are not in any form of union have an equally high prevalence rate. The highest prevalence is found among women who are uncertain if their husband (partner) has another wife (partner).

Table 14.6.1 HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women age 15 and older

Percentage HIV positive among women age 15 and older who were tested, by demographic characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	15-49 years		50 years and older		Total	
	Percentage		Percentage		Percentage	
Demographic	HIV		HIV		HIV	
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number
Marital status						
Never married	25.9	2,213	(8.7)	33	25.6	2,247
Ever had sex	37.1	1,433	(9.1)	32	36.5	1,465
Never had sex	5.2	780	*	1	5.2	781
Married/living together	32.5	1,811	8.1	236	29.7	2,047
Divorced or separated	51.3	146	(22.6)	28	46.7	174
Widowed	55.7	254	13.9	291	33.4	545
Type of union						
In polygynous union	30.9	340	5.1	17	29.7	357
Not in polygynous union	31.1	1,193	15.2	93	29.9	1,286
Not currently in union	30.2	2,613	11.2	473	27.3	3,085
Don't know/missing	40.6	277	*	6	40.1	283
Times slept away from home in past 12 months						
None	29.2	1.231	10.4	208	26.5	1.439
1-2	25.4	[′] 713	16.6	93	24.3	[′] 806
3-4	31.3	503	14.8	72	29.2	575
5+	34.3	1.962	9.9	210	32.0	2.172
Missing	(27.6)	41	*	9	(27.6)	[′] 51
Time away in past 12 months						
Away for more than one month	38.5	628	15.4	91	35.6	718
Away for less than one month	30.3	2,549	11.6	285	28.4	2,834
Not away	29.3	1,236	10.4	208	26.6	1,445
Missing	(17.4)	[′] 36	*	6	(17.3)	42
Currently pregnant						
Pregnant	37.7	241	-	-	-	-
Not pregnant or not sure	30.8	4,183	-	-	-	-
ANC for last birth in the past 3 years						
ANC provided by the public sector ANC provided by other than the public	38.7	994	-	-	-	-
sector	34.5	380	-	-	-	-
No ANC/no birth in past 3 years	28.3	3,049	-	-	-	-
Total	31.1	4,424	11.7	588	28.9	5,012

respondents for whom information on receipt of ANC for last birth is missing. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

In the 2006-07 SDHS respondents were asked whether they spent any time in the past 12 months away from home, and in the same time period, whether they were away from home for more than one month. The survey results show that, in general, women who sleep away from home more frequently have higher prevalence rates than women who stay at home. For example, women age 15-49 who slept away from home five or more times have a prevalence rate of 34 percent compared with 25 percent for women who slept away from home only once or twice. Similarly, women who were away for more than one month have a higher prevalence rate than women who were never away.

HIV prevalence among women who were pregnant at the time of the SDHS interview was 38 percent. The prevalence rate among women who received antenatal care (ANC) at a public sector provider prior to a live birth in the three-year period before the survey was 39 percent. Both these figures

compare fairly well with results from the 2006 Sentinel Surveillance, which obtained a rate of 39 percent among pregnant women attending antenatal care at public facilities.

The relationships between HIV prevalence and the various sociodemographic characteristics among men are generally similar to the patterns observed among women (Table 14.6.2). Men who are widowed or divorced or separated have the highest HIV prevalence levels. Around 2 percent of nevermarried men who say they never had sex also are infected, which may be a result of misreporting of sexual activity or due to nonsexual transmission of HIV. Considering the type of current union, around one in two men who were in polygynous unions was infected with HIV.

	15-49	years	50 years a	nd older	Total	
Demographic	Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV	
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number
Marital status						
Never married	9.9	2,520	*	6	10.0	2,526
Ever had sex	16.9	1,329	*	6	17.0	1,335
Never had sex	2.1	1,191	*	0	2.1	1,191
Married/living together	36.3	1,059	16.0	318	31.6	1,377
Divorced or separated	54.5	132	(18.6)	27	48.5	159
Widowed	67.5	52	(26.8)	52	47.1	104
Type of union						
In polygynous union	50.0	54	32.4	13	46.6	66
Not in polygynous union	35.6	999	23.5	64	34.8	1,063
Not currently in union	13.2	2,704	16.1	317	13.5	3,021
Don't know/missing	*	7	*	8	*	14
Times slept away from home in						
Nono	15.0	1 351	15.6	136	15.8	1 487
1_2	14.4	477	18.9	60	14.9	537
3 4	18.3	403	14.3	43	17.9	445
5+	25.2	1 505	19.6	158	24.7	1 664
Missing	(17.7)	27	*	5	(22.9)	32
Time away in past 12 months						
Away for more than one month	24.4	585	21.9	70	24.1	655
Away for less than one month	21.0	1 797	17.8	194	20.7	1 991
Not away	15.9	1 356	15.6	136	15.9	1 493
Missing	(18.5)	25	*	2	*	27
Male circumcision						
Circumcised	21.8	306	-	-	-	-
Not circumcised	19.5	3.457	-	-	-	_
. tot carearnensed	19.5	5,157				
Total	19.7	3,763	17.9	402	19.5	4,165

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

As expected, men who sleep away from home more frequently have higher infection rates; 25 percent of men age 15-49 who slept away from home five or more times in the 12 months preceding the survey were infected compared with 16 percent who did not sleep away from home. Similarly, men who are away from home for comparatively long periods of time (always more than one month) have a somewhat greater risk of HIV infection than those who are never away and those who are away for less than one month at a time.

Table 14.6.3 HIV prevalence by demographic characteristics: Women and men age 15 and older

Percentage HIV positive among women and men age 15 and older who were tested, by demographic characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	15-49	years	50 years a	nd older	Total	
Demographic characteristic	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number	Percentage HIV positive ¹	Number
Marital status						
Never married	17.4	4,733	(13.5)	39	17.3	4,772
Ever had sex	27.4	2,762	(13.9)	38	27.2	2,800
Never had sex	3.3	1,971	*	1	3.3	1,972
Married/living together	33.9	2,870	12.6	554	30.5	3,423
Divorced or separated	52.9	278	20.7	55	47.5	333
Widowed	57.7	306	15.8	343	35.6	648
Type of union						
In polygynous union	33.5	394	(17.0)	30	32.3	423
Not in polygynous union	33.1	2,192	18.6	157	32.2	2,349
Not currently in union	21.5	5,317	13.1	790	20.5	6,107
Don't know/missing	40.7	284	*	14	39.7	298
Times slept away from home in						
past 12 months						
None	22.2	2,582	12.4	345	21.1	2,927
1-2	21.0	1,190	17.5	153	20.6	1,343
3-4	25.5	906	14.6	115	24.3	1,021
5+	30.4	3,467	14.1	369	28.8	3,836
Missing	(27.6)	41	*	9	(27.6)	51
Time away in past 12 months						
Away for more than one month	31.7	1,213	18.2	161	30.1	1,374
Away for less than one month	26.5	4,346	14.1	479	25.2	4,825
Not away	22.3	2,592	12.4	345	21.1	2,937
Missing	(17.4)	36	*	6	(17.3)	42
Total	25.9	8,187	14.2	990	24.6	9,177

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

14.2.5 HIV Prevalence by Sexual Behaviour Indicators

Tables 14.7.1 through 14.7.3 examine the variation in prevalence of HIV infection by sexual behaviour indicators among the ever sexually active population age 15 years and older. In reviewing the results, it is important to remember that responses about sexual risk behaviour may be subject to reporting bias. Also, sexual behaviour in the past 12 months preceding the survey may not adequately reflect lifetime sexual risk.

behaviour characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07							
	15-49	years	50 years a	and older	To	tal	
Council la ale antionne	Percentage		Percentage		Percentage		
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Numbe	
Age at first sexual intercourse					1		
<16	37.4	907	15.5	137	34.5	1,044	
16-17	35.8	1,131	10.3	138	33.0	1,269	
18-19	37.6	814	7.5	112	33.9	926	
20+	32.2	483	12.7	196	26.6	679	
Missing	42.3	305	*	1	42.2	306	
Higher-risk intercourse in past							
Had higher-risk intercourse	42.1	1,365	(29.8)	17	42.0	1,383	
Had sexual intercourse, not higher							
risk	31.6	1,696	9.0	141	29.8	1,837	
No sexual intercourse in past	20.0	F7 0	11.0	426	27.4	1 00 4	
12 months	38.8	5/8	11.9	426	27.4	1,004	
Number of sexual partners in past 12 months							
0	38.8	577	11.8	424	27.3	1,001	
1	35.8	2,989	11.4	156	34.6	3,145	
2	52.3	68	*	1	51.4	69	
3+	*	4	*	1	*	5	
Missing	*	1	*	2	*	4	
Number of higher-risk partners in past 12 months ³							
0	33.4	2,274	11.2	567	29.0	2,842	
1	41.8	1,305	29.8	17	41.7	1,322	
2	47.6	58	na	na	na	na	
3+	64.5	2	na	na	na	na	
Condom use							
Ever used a condom	42.7	1,999	na	na	na	na	
Never used a condom	29.4	1,632	na	na	na	na	
Missing	*	8	na	na	na	na	
Condom use at last sexual							
intercourse in past 12 months							
Used condom	44.4	1,118	(22.4)	25	43.9	1,143	
Did not use condom	31.6	1,941	9.1	133	30.2	2,075	
No sexual intercourse in past				10.5	o= 4		
12 months	38.8	578	11.9	426	27.4	1,004	
Missing	*	2	*	0	*	2	
Condom use at last higher-risk intercourse in past 12 months ²							
Used condom	44.9	730	*	4	44.8	734	
Did not use condom	39.0	635	*	13	38.8	648	
No higher-risk intercourse/no							
intercourse past 12 months	33.4	2,274	11.2	567	29.0	2,842	
Number of lifetime partners							
1	22.9	1,249	7.5	234	20.5	1,483	
2	38.3	1,062	10.7	195	34.0	1,257	
3-4	46.9	938	15.5	104	43.8	1,042	
5-9	53.9	236	(30.7)	33	51.0	268	
10+	57.9	44	*	8	51.9	52	
Missing	44.7	111	*	11	42.8	122	
Total	36.7	3.640	11.7	584	33.2	4.224	

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

² Sexual intercourse with a partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

³ A partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

Table 14.7.2 HIV	prevalence b	y sexual behaviour: Men age 15 and older

Percentage HIV positive among ever sexually active men age 15 and older who were tested for HIV, by sexual

	15-49 years		50 years a	and older	To	otal
Sovual babaviour	Percentage		Percentage		Percentage	
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number
Age at first sexual intercourse						
<16	18.8	380	*	20	18.7	400
16-17	31.7	627	(14.7)	37	30.7	664
18-19	24.4	712	22.9	76	24.2	788
20+	32.2	835	17.0	261	28.6	1,096
Missing	(21.6)	18	*	0	(21.6)	18
Higher-risk intercourse in past 12 months ²						
Had higher-risk intercourse	26.9	1.307	(30.3)	33	26.9	1.340
Had sexual intercourse, not higher risk	34.2	911	14.5	260	29.8	1,172
No sexual intercourse in past						.,
12 months	15.2	353	22.7	101	16.8	453
Number of sexual partners in past 12 months						
0	14.9	345	22.7	101	16.6	446
1	28.0	1.707	14.6	259	26.2	1.966
2	35.9	456	*	23	35.6	479
3+	38.0	50	*	11	36.7	61
Missing	(34.4)	12	*	1	*	13
Number of higher-risk partners in past 12 months						
0	28.9	1,264	16.8	361	26.2	1,625
1	26.4	976	(30.3)	33	26.5	1,009
2	27.1	292	na	na	27.1	292
3+	(36.2)	39	na	na	36.2	39
Condom use						
Ever used a condom	30.7	2,020	na	na	na	na
Never used a condom	17.6	550	na	na	na	na
Missing	*	1	na	na	na	na
Condom use at last sexual intercourse in past 12 months						
Used condom	28.3	1,047	(31.9)	44	28.5	1,091
Did not use condom	31.3	1,171	13.5	249	28.1	1,420
No sexual intercourse in past 12						
months	15.2	353	22.7	101	16.8	453
Condom use at last higher-risk intercourse in past 12 months ²						
Used condom	25.0	857	*	12	25.2	869
Did not use condom	30.4	450	*	21	30.2	471
No higher-risk intercourse/no						
intercourse past 12 months	28.9	1,264	16.8	361	26.2	1,625
Number of lifetime partners						
1	6.2	322	*	12	6.2	334
2	14.7	319	(9.6)	35	14.2	354
3-4	28.2	637	25.4	64	28.0	701
5-9	30.7	656	18.3	108	29.0	764
10+	45.9	478	17.9	118	40.3	596
Missing	30.9	159	16.0	57	27.0	215
Total	27.9	2,571	17.9	394	26.5	2,965

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed. na = Not applicable

¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

² Sexual intercourse with a partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

³ A partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

For women, there is a clear pattern of higher HIV prevalence with earlier sexual debut. Women age 15-49 years who started having sex at an early age (before age 16) have higher HIV prevalence than those with a later sexual debut (37 percent compared with 32 percent). A similar pattern is also noted for women age 50 years and above (16 percent compared with 13 percent). This pattern is not evident among men.

Having a higher-risk sexual partner (non-marital, non-cohabiting partner) in the 12 months preceding the survey increases the risk of infection. Forty-two percent of women age 15-49 years who had higher-risk sex are infected with HIV compared with 32 percent of women who are sexually active but did not have a higher-risk partner. In contrast, men age 15-49 years reporting a higher-risk partner in the past year have a slightly lower HIV prevalence than sexually active men who did not have a higher- risk partner (27 percent and 34 percent, respectively).

Condoms, when used properly, are an effective way of preventing the transmission of HIV and other STIs. Although this would suggest that HIV rates should be lower among condom users, there are a number of factors that may influence the direction of the relationship. For example, condom use rates may be higher among individuals who are infected because they are seeking to protect an uninfected partner. Also, reported condom use cannot be assumed to be "correct condom use." Thus, it is not surprising that the association between condom use and infection levels is not uniform. Infection rates among men who used condoms at the last sexual encounter and at last higher-risk intercourse in the year before the survey are slightly lower compared with the infection rates for men who were also in the same situation but failed to use condoms. Among women, the opposite pattern is observed: condom use in the past year is associated with markedly higher levels of HIV infection.

The risk of contracting HIV is assumed to increase with the number of lifetime partners that an individual has. The SDHS results support this assumption. The HIV infection rate increases from 23 percent among women age 15-49 who have had only one partner to 58 percent among women who report having had ten or more sexual partners. Similarly, the HIV rate among men age 15-49 rises sharply with the number of partners, from 6 percent among men with one partner to 46 percent among men having ten or more partners.
Table 14.7.3 HIV	prevalence by	/ sexual behaviour: Women and men age 15 and older	
		0	

Percentage HIV positive among ever sexually active women and men age 15 and older who were tested for HIV, by sexual behaviour characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	15-49 years		50 years a	nd older	Total	
Sovual bohaviour	Percentage	/	Percentage		Percentage	
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number
Age at first sexual intercourse	31.0	1 287	15 7	157	30.2	1 444
16 17	31.3	1,207	13.7	176	30.2	1,444
18-19	31.4	1,750	13.7	188	29.5	1,955
20+	32.2	1,320	15.7	458	27.8	1,775
Missing	41.2	323	*	1	41.1	324
Higher-risk intercourse in past		525		·		521
Had higher-risk intercourse	34 7	2 672	(30.1)	50	34.6	2 723
Had sexual intercourse not higher risk	32.5	2,607	12.6	402	29.8	3,009
No sexual intercourse in past	52.5	2,007	12.0	102	25.0	5,005
12 months	29.9	931	14.0	526	24.1	1.458
Number of sexual partners in past 12 months						,
0	29.8	922	13.9	525	24.0	1.447
1	33.0	4,696	13.4	415	31.4	5,111
2	38.0	524	*	24	37.6	548
3+	41.4	55	*	11	39.2	66
Missing	(36.6)	13	*	3	*	17
Number of higher-risk partners in past 12 months ³						
0	31.8	3,538	13.4	928	28.0	4,467
1	35.2	2,281	(30.1)	50	35.1	2,331
2	30.5	350	na	na	na	na
3+	37.9	41	na	na	na	na
Condom use						
Ever used a condom	36.7	4,019	na	na	na	na
Never used a condom	26.4	2,182	na	na	na	na
Missing	6.4	10	na	na	na	na
Condom use at last sexual intercourse in past 12 months						
Used condom	36.6	2,165	28.5	69	36.4	2,234
Did not use condom	31.5	3,113	12.0	383	29.4	3,495
No sexual intercourse in past						
12 months	29.9	931	14.0	526	24.1	1,458
Missing	*	2	*	0	*	2
Condom use at last higher-risk intercourse in past 12 months ²						
Used condom	34.1	1,587	*	16	34.1	1,603
Did not use condom	35.4	1,086	(28.1)	34	35.2	1,119
No higher-risk intercourse/	21.0	2 5 2 0	12.4	020	20.0	4 467
no intercourse past 12 months	31.8	3,538	13.4	928	28.0	4,467
Number of lifetime partners					. – .	
	19.5	1,571	/.5	246	17.9	1,817
2	32.8	1,382	10.5	229	29./	1,611
3-4 5-0	39.3	1,5/5	19.3	168	3/.4	1,/43
3-9 10 l	30.0 46.0	892 500	21.2	141	34./ 41.2	1,033
Nissing	40.9	022 070	10.1 17.1	67	41.5	040 227
Total	33.0	6 211	14.2	978	30.5	7 189
iotui	55.0	0,411	17.4	570	50.5	7,105

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Totals include 2 male respondents for whom information on number of sexual partners in the past 12 months is missing and 4 female respondents for whom information on condom use is missing. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

² Sexual intercourse with a partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey. ³ A partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent. For respondents age 15-49, refers to any of three most recent partners in the 12-month period before the survey. For respondents age 15-49, refers to last partner in the 12-month period before the survey.

14.3 HIV PREVALENCE BY OTHER CHARACTERISTICS RELATED TO HIV RISK

Table 14.8 presents the variation in HIV prevalence with a number of other characteristics related to HIV risk among men and women age 15 years and older who ever had sex. As expected, women and men with a history of a sexually transmitted infection (STI) or STI symptoms have higher rates of HIV infection than those with none. For example, among women age 15-49, 54 percent who report having an STI or STI symptoms are HIV positive, compared with 34 percent of women who did not have an STI or STI symptoms.

Table 14.8 HIV prevalence by other characteristics related to HIV risk: Women and men age 15 and older

Percentage HIV positive among ever sexually active women and men age 15 and older who were tested for HIV, by whether had an STI in the past 12 months and by prior testing for HIV, Swaziland 2006-07

	15-49 years		50 years a	and older	Total	
	Percentage HIV	<u>, </u>	Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV	
Characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number
		WOMEN				
Sexually transmitted infection in past 12 months						
Had STI or STI symptoms	53.6	439	*	10	52.8	449
No STI, no symptoms	33.5	2,593	11.3	123	32.5	2,717
Don't know/missing	37.9	608	11.7	451	26.8	1,058
Prior HIV testing						
Ever tested	39.8	1,735	24.1	106	38.9	1,841
Received results	39.4	1,556	20.4	93	38.4	1,649
Nover tested	42.0	1/9	80	13	43.1	192
Missing	*	20	0.9 *	20	(33.5)	2,343
Total	36.7	3 640	11 7	584	33.2	4 224
	50.7	5,010	11.7	501	55.2	1,221
		MEN				
Sexually transmitted infection in past 12 months						
Had STI or STI symptoms	48.4	314	*	11	48.5	325
No STI, no symptoms	27.0	1,882	15.6	250	25.7	2,132
Don't know/missing	15.0	3/5	19.5	133	16.2	509
Prior HIV testing						
Ever tested	38.2	625	33.1	80	37.7	705
Received results	37.0	575	27.1	66	36.0	641
Did not receive results	52.0	1 0 2 7	* 140	14	54.2	64
Missing	24.5	1,937	14.2	304 10	23.1	2,241
			. – .	10		15
lotal	27.9	2,571	17.9	394	26.5	2,965
		TOTAL				
Sexually transmitted infection in past 12 months						
Had STI or STI symptoms	51.4	752	*	21	51.0	774
No STI, no symptoms	30.8	4,476	14.2	373	29.5	4,848
Don't know/missing	29.2	983	13.5	584	23.4	1,567
Prior HIV testing						
Ever tested	39.4	2,360	28.0	186	38.5	2,546
Received results	38.8	2,131	23.2	159	37.7	2,290
Did not receive results	44.6	229	(56.8)	26	45.9	256
Never tested	29.0	3,821	11.1	/63	26.0	4,584
ivussing	(50.0)	29	(10.0)	30	29.8	60
Total	33.0	6,211	14.2	978	30.5	7,189

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ HIV positive refers only to those infected with HIV-1.

The uptake of HIV testing in Swaziland remains well below 40 percent in the adult population (see Chapter 13). As might be expected from this finding, women and men who have been tested for HIV have higher rates of HIV infection than those who have never been tested. For example, 38 percent of men who have been tested for HIV are positive, compared with 25 percent of men who have never been tested.

Table 14.9 provides further information on the relationship between prior HIV testing and the HIV status of women and men in Swaziland. The results suggest that the majority (61 percent) of individuals who are HIV positive are not aware of their status. Among those infected with the virus, women are much more likely to have been tested previously than are men (56 percent and 71 percent, respectively).

Table 14.9 Prior HIV testing by curre	nt HIV statu	5				
Percent distribution of women and whether HIV positive or negative, Swa	men age 15 aziland 2006	-49 by HIV	testing statu	is prior to t	he survey, a	according to
	15-49	9 years	50 years	50 years and older		otal
HIV testing prior	HIV	HIV	HIV	HIV	HIV	HIV
to the survey	positive	negative	positive	negative	positive	negative
		WOMEN				
Previously tested, received result of						
last test	44.0	31.9	27.7	14.2	43.2	29.3
Previously tested, did not receive						
result of last test	6.6	4.0	9.5	1.3	6.7	3.6
Not previously tested	48.6	63.8	59.8	80.9	49.1	66.3
Missing	0.8	0.3	3.0	3.5	0.9	0.8
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	1,378	3,046	69	520	1,446	3,565
		MEN				
Previously tested, received result of						
last test	28.8	13.2	24.8	14.6	28.5	13.3
Previously tested, did not receive						
result of last test	3.5	1.1	11.8	1.6	4.2	1.1
Not previously tested	67.2	85.0	62.1	81.1	66.8	84.6
Missing	0.4	0.8	1.3	2.8	0.5	1.0
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	741	3,022	72	330	813	3,352
		TOTAL				
Previously tested, received result of						
last test	38.7	22.6	26.2	14.4	37.9	21.6
Previously tested, did not receive						
result of last test	5.5	2.6	10.7	1.4	5.8	2.4
Not previously tested	55.1	74.3	61.0	81.0	55.5	75.2
Missing	0.7	0.5	2.2	3.2	0.8	0.9
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number	2,119	6,068	141	850	2,260	6,917
¹ HIV positive refers only to individua	ls infected w	ith HIV-1.				

14.4 HIV PREVALENCE AND MALE CIRCUMCISION

As discussed in Chapter 12, male circumcision is considered to have a protective effect for HIV infection, in part because of physiological differences that increase the susceptibility to HIV infection among uncircumcised men. As Table 14.10 shows, the relationship between HIV prevalence and circumcision status is not in the expected direction. Circumcised men have a slightly higher HIV infection rate than men who are not circumcised (22 percent compared with 20 percent). It is worth noting that the relationship between male circumcision and HIV infection may be confounded by the fact that the circumcision may not involve the full removal of the foreskin, which provides partial protection. As is the case with other findings, additional analysis is needed to determine if this lack of a relationship between male circumcision and HIV infection is a result of confounding factors or represents the true situation.

14.5 HIV PREVALENCE AMONG YOUTH

Young people living with HIV are more likely to have been more recently infected compared with adults. Consequently, statistics on variation of HIV prevalence among youth are critical in understanding the patterns of recent HIV infections.

Table 14.11 presents HIV prevalence among youth by several demographic and socioeconomic characteristics. Overall, 14 Table 14.10 HIV prevalence by male circumcision

Among men age 15-49 who were tested for HIV, the percentage HIV positive by whether circumcised or not, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Circun	ncised	Not circumcised			
	Percentage		Percentage			
Background	HIV		HIV			
characteristic	positive	Number	positive	Number		
Age						
15-19	(0.0)	53	2.0	1,218		
20-24	(8.8)	53	12.6	727		
25-29	(26.2)	46	27.9	507		
30-34	(26.5)	39	45.7	341		
35-39	45.3	61	44.8	260		
40-44	(22.8)	29	43.2	201		
45-49	(22.4)	26	28.5	203		
Residence						
Urban	24.5	140	25.7	930		
Rural	19.6	165	17.2	2,527		
Region						
Hhohho	23.2	92	23.1	909		
Manzini	21.7	113	18.1	1,110		
Shiselweni	(15.2)	51	16.2	712		
Lubombo	(26.3)	50	20.6	726		
Education						
No education	(30.9)	29	31.1	256		
Primary	18.2	97	18.1	1,240		
Secondary	25.4	139	18.1	1,718		
More than secondary	(12.3)	41	25.0	243		
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	(20.3)	32	19.8	529		
Second	(23.1)	39	19.6	568		
Middle	(17.0)	47	17.0	738		
Fourth	37.4	76	19.6	775		
Highest	13.3	112	21.3	847		
Total 15-49	21.8	306	19.5	3,457		
Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.						

percent of youth are infected with HIV. Prevalence of HIV is nearly four times higher among young women than among young men (23 percent compared with 6 percent).

HIV rates are higher among married or cohabiting youth than among unmarried youth. As expected, young pregnant women have a higher infection rate than young non-pregnant women (35 percent compared with 22 percent). HIV prevalence among youth living in urban areas is slightly higher than that of rural areas (18 percent compared with 13 percent). Youth in the Hhohho region have the highest HIV prevalence compared with those from other regions.

The prevalence of HIV among the small numbers of youth with no education is more than five times higher than that of youth with more than secondary education (32 percent compared with 6 percent). Among young women with no education, one in two is infected, while 13 percent of young men with no education are infected.

Table 14.11 HIV prevalence by background characteristics: Young people age 15-24

Percentage HIV positive among women and men age 15-24 who were tested for HIV, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Wor	nen	Me	en	Total	
Background	Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV		Percentage HIV	
characteristic	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Number	positive ¹	Numbe
Age						
15-19	10.1	1.151	1.9	1.271	5.8	2.422
15-17	6.2	717	1.4	836	3.6	1.553
18-19	16.4	435	2.7	435	9.6	870
20-24	38.4	922	12.3	780	26.5	1,702
20-22	35.6	583	9.1	527	23.0	1,110
23-24	43.3	339	19.1	252	33.0	592
Marital status						
Never married	17.8	1.670	4.9	1.980	10.8	3.650
Ever had sex	28.3	915	8.6	824	19.0	1.739
Never had sex	5.0	756	2.1	1.156	3.3	1.912
Married/living together	42.2	384	29.9	59	40.6	443
Divorced/separated/widowed	*	19	*	12	(56.7)	31
Currently pregnant						
Pregnant	34.8	142	na	na	na	na
Not pregnant or not sure	21.8	1 931	na	na	na	na
	21.0	1,551	na	na	na	nu
Residence	27.0	196	7.2	410	17.0	000
Drum	27.0	400	7.2	412	17.9	2 2 2 2
Kurai	21.3	1,30/	5.5	1,030	13.3	3,220
Region						
Hhohho	27.8	516	5.5	483	17.0	998
Manzini	20.7	696	6.2	673	13.5	1,369
Shiselweni	21.9	459	5.3	486	13.4	945
Lubombo	20.5	403	6.3	409	13.4	812
Education						
No education	49.5	80	12.8	76	31.6	156
Primary	26.1	705	5.3	850	14.7	1,555
Secondary	19.4	1,245	6.0	1,086	13.2	2,331
More than secondary	(11.1)	44	(0.0)	39	5.9	83
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	24.7	338	7.5	341	16.1	679
Second	23.0	375	5.9	377	14.4	751
Middle	23.5	416	5.2	486	13.6	902
Fourth	21.8	489	7.3	464	14.7	953
Highest	21.2	455	3.4	384	13.0	839
Total	22.7	2,074	5.9	2,051	14.3	4.124

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na = Not applicable

¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

Table 14.12 presents HIV prevalence rates by sexual behaviour indicators among youth age 15-24 who ever had sexual intercourse. Young women whose first sex was with a man ten or more years older have a higher prevalence of HIV (40 percent) compared with those whose first partner was less than ten years older (31 percent). Although the numbers are small, especially among women, there is a marked increase in the infection rates among both female and male youth who had two or more partners in the 12 months prior to the survey.

Young women who said that a condom was used during their first sexual encounter have a lower prevalence of HIV (29 percent) than those who did not use a condom (35 percent). The same is true for young men age 15-24: those who used a condom at first sex have a lower prevalence of HIV (8 percent) than those who did not use a condom (12 percent). Use of a condom at last sexual intercourse is associated with a substantially lower infection rate among young men and a somewhat higher infection rate among young women.

Table 14.12 HIV prevalence by sexual behaviour: Young people age 15-24

Percentage HIV positive among ever sexually active women and men age 15-24 who were tested for HIV, by sexual behaviour, Swaziland 2006-07

	Women		М	en	Total	
	Percentage		Percentage		Percentage	
Sexual behaviour	HIV positivo1	Number	HIV positivo1	Number	HIV positivo1	Number
	positive	Number	positive	Number	positive	Number
Relative age of first sexual partner	20.0	100				
10+ years older/same age/	39.9	133	na	na	na	na
vounger/don't know	31.0	1.113	na	na	na	na
Missing	47.3	72	na	na	na	na
Higher-risk intercourse in past 12 months ²						
Had higher-risk intercourse Had sexual intercourse, not higher	31.6	794	11.0	631	22.5	1,425
risk	39.1	359	23.7	57	37.0	416
No sexual intercourse in past	25.2	100	5.0	207	145	272
12 months	25.3	166	5.9	207	14.5	3/3
Number of sexual partners in past						
0	25.3	166	5.9	207	14.5	373
1	33.4	1,108	9.7	489	26.1	1,596
2	(44.2)	42	16.4	171	21.8	213
3+	*	3	(29.7)	26	(34.5)	29
Number of higher-risk partners in past 12 months ³						
0	34.7	524	9.7	264	26.3	788
1	30.9	753	8.8	447	22.7	1,200
2	(42.6)	38	14.9	159	20.3	197
3+	*	2	(27.0)	25	(29.2)	27
Condom use	27.2	700	44 -	600	a . a	4 4 7 4
Ever used a condom	37.3	/89	11.5	682	25.3	1,4/1
Missing	20.3	525 4	0.0 *	213	21.0	/30
Condom use at first sex				0		•
Used condom	29.0	568	8.3	419	20.2	987
Did not use condom	35.2	733	12.2	467	26.3	1,200
Condom use at last sexual intercourse in past 12 months						
Used condom	35.8	502	9.5	444	23.5	946
Did not use condom	32.5	650	16.7	244	28.2	894
No sexual intercourse in past 12 months	25.3	166	5.9	207	14.5	373
Total	32.8	1,318	10.6	895	23.9	2,213

Note: Table is based on de facto household members who were interviewed and tested. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

na=Not applicable

¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

 $^{\rm 2}$ Sexual intercourse with a partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent

³ A partner who was neither a spouse nor lived with the respondent, among the last three partners in the past 12 months

14.6 HIV PREVALENCE AMONG COUPLES

Both partners were tested in a total of 701 cohabiting couples in the SDHS. Results presented in Table 14.13 indicate that, among 55 percent of the cohabiting couples, both partners were HIV negative. Both partners were HIV positive among 29 percent of the couples. In eight percent of the couples, the male partner was infected and the female partner was not, while in nine percent, the female partner was infected and the male partner was not.

Table 14.13 HIV prevalence among of	couples					
Percent distribution of couples living according to background characteristi	in the same cs, Swazilane	e household, k d 2006-07	ooth of whom v	vere tested f	or HIV, by	' HIV status,
Background characteristic	Both HIV positive ¹	Man HIV positive ¹ , woman HIV negative	Woman HIV positive ¹ , man HIV negative	Both HIV negative	Total	Number
Woman's age						
15-19	22.7	12.2	15.0	50.1	100.0	46
20-29	36.0	6.4	10.2	47.3	100.0	316
30-39	23.8	9.3	7.7	59.1	100.0	242
40-49	20.7	5.4	3.0	70.8	100.0	97
Man's age						
15-19	*	*	*	*	100.0	1
20-29	28.9	5.2	15.5	50.4	100.0	172
30-39	36.8	8.5	6.5	48.2	100.0	286
40-49	19.4	8.5	6.5	65.6	100.0	242
Age difference between partners						
Woman older	*	*	*	*	100.0	22
Same age/man older by 0-4 years	27.5	4.5	10.0	58.0	100.0	271
Man older by 5-9 years	28.4	9.6	6.3	55.7	100.0	277
Man older by 10-14 years	24.0	8.5	11.2	56.3	100.0	102
Man older by 15+ years	51.7	16.9	9.4	21.9	100.0	29
Type of union						
Monogamous	26.6	5.8	9.7	57.9	100.0	525
Polygynous	35.8	11.1	5.6	47.5	100.0	67
Don't know/missing	35.2	14.5	5.8	44.5	100.0	109
Residence						
Urban	33.3	7.1	11.9	47.7	100.0	231
Rural	26.6	7.9	7.1	58.4	100.0	470
Region						
Hhohho	29.9	7.8	8.2	54.2	100.0	217
Manzini	29.0	5.4	8.6	57.0	100.0	230
Shiselweni	26.6	9.4	9.1	55.0	100.0	111
Lubombo	28.6	9.9	9.3	52.2	100.0	143
Woman's education						
No education	23.3	7.4	16.1	53.2	100.0	90
Primary	32.3	8.1	10.0	49.5	100.0	229
Secondary	31.6	9.0	6.5	52.9	100.0	306
More than secondary	13./	1.2	4./	80.4	100.0	/6
Man's education	o= 0	10.0	0.0		100.0	
No education	27.0	13.2	9.0	50.8	100.0	91
Primary	28.3	8.6	10.5	52.6	100.0	219
Secondary	34.3	5.0	0.D E 4	51.4 70.6	100.0	2//
More than secondary	10.1	0.0	5.4	70.0	100.0	115
Wealth quintile	21 7	10.1	10.0	57.0	100.0	120
Socond	21./	10.1	10.0	57.0 45.7	100.0	120
Middlo	24.4 27.2	62	0.5	4J./ 58.9	100.0	109
Fourth	27.2	0.3 5 0	/./ 8 7	26.0 46.4	100.0	134
Highest	23.9	6.6	8.2	61.3	100.0	224
T . I	20.0		0.2		100.0	= 0.1
Iotal	28.8	/./	δ./	54.8	100.0	/01
Note: The table is based on couples f	for which a v	alid test result	(positive or neg	ative) is avail	lable for b	oth partners.

Note: The table is based on couples for which a valid test result (positive or negative) is available for both partners. An asterisk indicates that a figure is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed. ¹ HIV positive refers only to individuals infected with HIV-1.

Ann A. Way

Earlier in this report, estimates of mortality during the first years of life were presented and discussed. This chapter examines the data relating to adult mortality collected in the 2006-07 Swaziland SDHS. The chapter specifically considers information obtained in the survey on maternal mortality, that is, the level of adult female mortality related to pregnancy and childbearing.

15.1 DATA

To obtain data on adult and maternal mortality, the 2006-07 SDHS questionnaire included a sibling survivorship history, which obtained a detailed account of the survivorship of all of the live-born children of the respondent's mother (i.e., maternal siblings). To obtain the sibling history, each respondent was first asked to give the total number of her mother's live births. The respondent was next asked to provide a list of all of the children born to her mother starting with the first-born. Then the respondent was asked whether each of these siblings was still alive at the survey date. For living siblings, current age was collected; for deceased siblings, age at death and years since death were collected. Interviewers were instructed that when a respondent could not provide precise information on age at death or years since death, approximate but quantitative answers were acceptable. For sisters who died at ages 12 years or above, three questions were used to determine whether the death was maternity-related: "*Was [NAME OF SISTER] pregnant when she died?*" and if negative, "*Did she die within two months after the end of a pregnancy or childbirth?*" An additional question determined whether the death was due to an accident or other violent act. These data allow direct estimation of overall adult mortality (by age and sex) and maternal mortality.

The estimation of adult and maternal mortality requires reasonably accurate reporting of the number of sisters and brothers the respondent ever had, the number who died, and (for maternal mortality) the number of sisters who have died of maternity-related causes. There is no definitive procedure for establishing the completeness or accuracy of retrospective data on sibling survivorship. Table 15.1 examines several indicators of the quality of the sibling survivorship data from the SDHS, including the completeness of the reporting of sibling survivorship, the current age for surviving siblings, and the age at death and years since death for deceased siblings.

Table 15.1 Completeness of information on siblings									
Number of siblings reported by female survey respondents age 15-49 and completeness of reported data on age, age at death (AD), and years since death (YSD), Swaziland 2006-07									
	Females Males Total								
	Number	Percentage	Number	Percentage	Number	Percentage			
All siblings	12,774	100.0	12,820	100.0	25,594	100.0			
Surviving	10,871	85.1	10,722	83.6	21,592	84.4			
Deceased	1,886	14.8	2,084	16.3	3,970	15.5			
Information missing	17	0.1	15	0.1	32	0.1			
Surviving siblings	10,871	100.0	10,722	100.0	21,592	100.0			
Age reported	10,822	99.6	10,665	99.5	21,487	99.5			
Age missing	49	0.4	57	0.5	105	0.5			
Deceased siblings	1,886	100.0	2,084	100.0	3,970	100.0			
AD and YSD reported	1,818	96.4	1,982	95.1	3,800	95.7			
Missing only AD	30	1.6	48	2.3	78	2.0			
Missing only YSD	14	0.7	23	1.1	37	0.9			
Missing both	25	1.3	31	1.5	55	1.4			

Of the 25,594 siblings reported in the sibling histories of SDHS respondents, survival status was not reported for 32 (less than 0.1 percent). Among surviving siblings, current ages (used to estimate exposure to death) were reported for virtually all surviving siblings (99.5 percent). Among deceased siblings, complete reporting of age at death and years since death was also nearly universal. For 96 percent of deceased siblings, both age at death and years since the death (or year of death) were reported. Both age at death and the years since death were missing for only around 1 percent of deceased siblings. Rather than exclude siblings with missing data from further analysis, information on the birth order of siblings in conjunction with other information was used to impute the missing data.¹ The sibling survivorship data, including cases with imputed values, were used in the direct estimation of adult and maternal mortality.

15.2 DIRECT ESTIMATES OF ADULT MORTALITY

The direct approach to estimating adult mortality employs information on the age of surviving siblings, the age at death of siblings who died, and the number of years since the sibling died. This approach allows the data to be aggregated to determine the number of person-years of exposure to mortality risk and the number of sibling deaths occurring in defined calendar periods. Adult mortality rates are obtained by dividing female or male adult deaths in the given calendar periods by person-years of exposure to death.

Table 15.2 shows age-specific mortality rates for men and women age 15-49 for the period 0-6 years before the 2006-07 SDHS. These results allow an assessment of the recent level of mortality in the population of reproductive age in Swaziland. Because the number of deaths on which the age-specific rates are based is not very large (between 75 and 340 unweighted deaths per age group for the total population), the estimated age-specific rates are subject to considerable sampling variation.

The results in Table 15.2 indicate that overall mortality is virtually identical among women and men in the reproductive-age population (14.4 deaths per 1,000 years of exposure, respectively). Considering the pattern within age groups, female mortality is substantially higher than male mortality among those under age 30. The pattern is reversed for older men and women, with male mortality levels being higher than female mortality, particularly in the 40-49 age group (Figure 15.1).

Table 15.2 Adult mortality rates

Age-specific mortality rates for women and men age 15-49 based on the survivorship of sisters and brothers of survey respondents for the period 0-6 years preceding the survey, Swaziland 2006-07

-								
Age	Deaths	Exposure	Mortality rates					
Age	Dearins	Exposure	Tates					
WOMEN								
15-19	49	11,972	4.1					
20-24	146	12,335	11.9					
25-29	218	10,651	20.5					
30-34	155	8,644	18.0					
35-39	139	6,383	21.8					
40-44	80	4,074	19.7					
45-49	54	2,399	22.5					
		*						
Total	841	56,458	14.4 ^a					
	ME	N						
15-19	26	11,960	2.2					
20-24	72	12,688	5.7					
25-29	127	10,481	12.1					
30-34	187	8,399	22.2					
35-39	151	6,230	24.2					
40-44	127	3,889	32.5					
45-49	83	2,231	37.0					
		,						
15-49	771	55,878	14.4 ^a					
^a Rates are a	ige-standardis	ed.						

¹ The imputation procedure is based on the assumption that the reported birth ordering of siblings in the history is correct. The first step is to calculate birth dates. For each living sibling with a reported age and each dead sibling with complete information on both age at death and years since death, the birth date was calculated. For a sibling missing these data, a birth date was imputed within the range defined by the birth dates of the bracketing siblings. In the case of living siblings, an age was then calculated from the imputed birth date. In the case of dead siblings, if either the age at death or years since death was reported, that information was combined with the birth date to produce the information missing. If both pieces of information were missing, the distribution of the ages at death for siblings for whom the years since death was unreported, but age at death was reported, was used as a basis for imputing the age at death.



Figure 15.1 Age-Specific Mortality Rates by Sex

15.3 DIRECT ESTIMATES OF MATERNAL MORTALITY

Maternal deaths are a subset of all female deaths and are associated with pregnancy and childbearing. Two survey methods are generally used to estimate maternal mortality in developing countries: the indirect sisterhood method (Graham et al., 1989) and a direct variant of the sisterhood method (Rutenberg and Sullivan, 1991). In this report, the direct estimation procedure is applied.

Age-specific estimates of maternal mortality from the reported survivorship of sisters are shown in Table 15.3 for the period 0-6 years before the survey. These rates were calculated by dividing the number of maternal deaths by woman-years of exposure. To remove the effect of truncation bias (the upper boundary for eligibility for women interviewed in the survey is 49 years), the overall rate for women age 15-49 was standardised by the age distribution of survey respondents. Maternal deaths were defined as any death that was reported as occurring during pregnancy, childbirth, or within two months after the birth or termination of a pregnancy.² Estimates of maternal mortality are therefore based solely on the timing of the death in relationship to pregnancy.

² This time-dependent definition includes all deaths that occurred during pregnancy and two months after pregnancy, even if the death was due to non-maternal causes. However, this definition is unlikely to result in overreporting of maternal deaths because most deaths to women during the two-month period are due to maternal causes, and maternal deaths are more likely to be underreported than overreported.

The results in Table 15.3 indicate that the rate of mortality associated with pregnancy and childbearing is 0.8 maternal deaths per 1,000 woman-years of exposure. The estimated age-specific mortality rates increase with age to a peak in the 35-39 age group. However, the age-specific pattern should be interpreted with caution because of the small number of events—only 48 maternal deaths for women of all ages. Maternal deaths represent 6 percent of all deaths to women age 15-49 during the period 0-6 years preceding the survey (48 maternal deaths/841 female deaths). The low proportion of maternal deaths (e.g., AIDS-related deaths) or to underreporting of maternal deaths in the survey.

The maternal mortality rate can be converted to a maternal mortality ratio by dividing the rate by the general fertility rate during the period 0-6 years prior to the 2006-07 SDHS. The maternal mortality ratio is expressed per 100,000 live births in order to emphasise the obstetrical risk of pregnancy and childbearing. The estimate of the maternal mortality ratio for the period prior to the survey is 589 deaths per 100,000 live births, i.e., for every 1,000 births in Swaziland, there are just under six maternal deaths.

Table 15.3 Maternal mortality

Maternal mortality rates for the period 0-6 years preceding the survey, based on the survivorship of sisters of survey respondents, Swaziland 2006-07

			Mortality			
	Maternal	Exposure	rates			
Age	deaths	(years)	(1,000)			
15-19	2	11,972	0.13			
20-24	9	12,335	0.75			
25-29	9	10,650	0.83			
30-34	11	8,644	1.26			
35-39	11	6,383	1.77			
40-44	6	4,074	1.42			
45-49	0	2,399	0.00			
Total 15-49	48	56,458	0.8			
General fertility rate ¹ 0.131						
Maternal mortality ratio ² 589						

¹ Expressed per 1,000 woman-years of exposure ² Expressed per 100,000 live births; calculated as

maternal mortality rate divided by the general fertility

rate

^a Rates are age-standardised.

It should be noted that maternal mortality is a difficult indicator to measure because of the large sample sizes required to calculate an accurate estimate. (The fact that the maternal mortality ratio is expressed per 100,000 live births demonstrates that it is a relatively rare event.) As a result, the maternal mortality estimates are subject to large sampling errors.

Rachel Masuku

In addition to information on women's education, employment status, and control of earnings, the 2006-07 SDHS also obtained information on other measures of women's status and empowerment. In particular, questions were asked about women's participation in specific household decisions, their degree of acceptance of wife beating, and their opinions about when a wife should be able to refuse sex with her husband. The data provide insight into women's control over their lives and environment as well as their attitudes toward traditional gender roles. These are important aspects of women's empowerment and helpful in understanding demographics and health behaviour.

The above questions are used to define three indicators of women's empowerment: women's participation in decisionmaking, women's degree of acceptance of wife beating, and women's degree of acceptance of a wife's right to refuse sex with her husband. The first measure requires little explanation, since the ability to make decisions about one's own life is of obvious importance to practical empowerment. The other two measures derive from the notion that gender equity is essential to empowerment. Responses indicating a view that the beating of wives by husbands is justified reflect a sanction of women's lower status, both absolutely and relative to men. Although such attitudes do not necessarily signify approval of men beating their wives, they do signify women's acceptance of norms that give men the right to discipline women with force. Similarly, beliefs about whether and when a woman can refuse sex with her husband reflect issues of gender equity regarding sexual rights and bodily integrity. Besides providing an important measure of empowerment, the information about women's attitudes toward sexual rights will be useful for improving and monitoring reproductive health programmes that depend on women's willingness and ability to control their own sexual lives.

Employed women who earn cash for their work were asked who the main decisionmaker is with regard to the use of their earnings. This information indicates women's control over their own earnings. In addition, they were asked who the main decisionmaker is regarding the use of their husband's earnings.

This information not only allows an evaluation of the relative importance of women's earnings in the household economy, but has implications for the empowerment of women. It is expected that employment and earnings are more likely to empower women if women perceive their earnings to be important for meeting the needs of their households.

16.1 EMPLOYMENT AND FORM OF EARNINGS

Respondents were asked a number of questions to elicit their employment status at the time of the survey and the continuity of their employment in the 12 months prior to the survey. The measurement of women's employment is difficult because some of the activities that women do, especially work on family farms, family businesses, or in the informal sector, are often not perceived by women themselves as employment and hence are not reported as such. To avoid underestimating women's employment, in the 2006-07 SDHS women were asked several questions to ascertain their employment status. First women were asked, "Aside from your own housework, are you currently working?" Women who answered "no" to this question were then asked, "As you know, some women take up jobs for which they are paid in cash or kind. Others sell things, have a small business, or work on the family farm or in the family business. Are your currently doing any of these things or any other work?" Women who answered

"no" to this question were asked, "*Have you done any work in the last 12 months?*" Women are considered currently employed if they answered "yes" to either of the first two questions. Women who answered "yes" to the third question are not currently employed but have worked in the past 12 months. All employed women were asked their occupation; whether they were paid in cash, in kind, or not at all; and for whom they worked.

Table 16.1 shows the percent distribution of women and men age 15-49, by employment status and form of payment, according to age. Half of women (53 percent) and 86 percent of men are currently employed. Employment among women increases with age. The proportion of women who are employed is lowest among those in the age group 15-19 and increases gradually with age. The low percentage employed is expected at young ages because many in that age cohort are still in school. The proportion of men employed peaks in age group 35-39 and declines with increasing age.

Table 16.1 also shows that most women receive cash earnings (93 percent); 89 percent receive cash only and 4 percent receive payment in cash and in kind. For men, the corresponding proportions are 94 percent and 4 percent, respectively. No men reported receiving only in-kind payment, compared with 2 percent of women.

Table 16.1 Employment and cash earnings

Percentage of currently married women and men age 15-49 who were employed at any time in the past 12 months and the percent distribution of currently married women and men employed in the past 12 months by type of earnings, according to age, Swaziland 2006-07

	Current ⁱ respoi	y married ndents:	Percent distribution of currently married respondents employed in the past 12 months, by type of earnings						
Age	Percentage employed	Number of respondents	Cash only	Cash and in kind	In kind only	Not paid	Missing	Total	Number of respondents
		•	·	WOMEN					
15-19	15.0	88	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	13
20-24	37.9	343	92.7	2.2	1.8	3.2	0.0	100.0	130
25-29	49.3	388	88.4	4.9	2.1	3.9	0.8	100.0	191
30-34	59.5	379	88.9	3.7	0.4	6.6	0.4	100.0	226
35-39	61.0	334	90.6	3.2	1.7	4.6	0.0	100.0	204
40-44	61.5	291	88.2	4.9	2.2	3.8	1.0	100.0	179
45-49	63.4	238	88.1	5.0	1.1	5.9	0.0	100.0	151
Total 15-49	53.1	2,062	89.3	4.0	1.5	4.9	0.4	100.0	1,094
				MEN					
15-19	*	2	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	1
20-24	83.1	66	98.5	0.0	0.0	1.5	0.0	100.0	55
25-29	88.1	224	94.5	2.9	0.0	2.6	0.0	100.0	197
30-34	86.9	255	93.9	4.1	0.0	1.4	0.6	100.0	221
35-39	89.0	253	93.2	3.5	0.0	2.8	0.5	100.0	226
40-44	87.8	211	93.9	4.1	0.0	2.0	0.0	100.0	185
45-49	80.2	208	89.9	5.3	0.0	4.7	0.0	100.0	167
Total 15-49	86.3	1,219	93.5	3.7	0.0	2.6	0.2	100.0	1,052
Note: An aster	isk indicates th	nat an estimate	is based o	on fewer thar	n 25 unweig	ted case	s and has be	en suppre	essed.

16.1.1 Women's Control Over Their Own Earnings and Relative Magnitude of Women's Earnings

Table 16.2.1 shows how women's degree of control over the use of their earnings varies by background characteristics. The data show that two in three (65 percent) of women decide for themselves how their earnings are used, 28 percent make the decisions jointly with their husband, and 4 percent reported that decisions are mainly made by their husband. Respondents' degree of control over the use of their earnings varies by background characteristics.

Table 16.2.1 Control over women's cash earnings and relative magnitude of women's earnings: Women

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 who received cash earnings for employment in the 12 months preceding the survey by person who decides how wife's cash earnings are used and by whether she earned more or less than her husband, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Person who decides how the wife's cash Women's cash earnir earnings are used: husband's cas					n earning nd's cash	earnings compared with J's cash earnings:														
Background characteristic	Mainly wife	Wife and husband jointly	Mainly husband	Other	Missing	Total	More	Less	About the same	Husband/ partner has no earnings	Don't know/ missing	Total	Number of women							
Age																				
15-19	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	*	*	*	*	*	100.0	12							
20-24	55.4	37.5	5.6	0.0	1.6	100.0	13.1	72.6	4.1	7.2	3.0	100.0	123							
25-29	64.4	29.1	4.5	0.0	2.0	100.0	11.7	71.4	2.9	10.5	3.5	100.0	178							
30-34	65.8	27.6	3.7	0.0	2.9	100.0	10.9	70.4	5.5	7.4	5.8	100.0	209							
35-39	/1./	23.4	4.2	0.0	0./	100.0	13.1	69.9	4.1	9.5	3.5	100.0	191							
40-44	6/.3	23.1	5.1	0.0	4.4	100.0	9.8	64./	3.6	15.3	6.5	100.0	167							
45-49	63.0	31.2	3.3	0.8	1./	100.0	10.9	55.1	3.6	24./	5./	100.0	141							
Number of living children																				
0	57.4	35.5	5.5	0.0	1.7	100.0	19.2	65.1	6.3	6.6	2.9	100.0	70							
1-2	60.0	33.0	4.9	0.0	2.0	100.0	12.2	70.7	5.4	8.2	3.6	100.0	380							
3-4	68.2	26.0	3.2	0.0	2.6	100.0	12.7	69.3	2.9	10.5	4.6	100.0	307							
5+	70.8	22.2	4.3	0.4	2.2	100.0	7.6	62.2	2.6	20.8	6.8	100.0	264							
Residence																				
Urban	60.8	32.1	3.7	0.0	3.4	100.0	11.7	72.4	5.5	4.3	6.0	100.0	356							
Rural	67.4	26.2	4.6	0.2	1.6	100.0	11.6	65.2	3.1	16.2	4.0	100.0	664							
Region																				
Hhohho	61.3	31.7	5.5	0.0	1.5	100.0	9.5	68.4	3.0	15.4	3.7	100.0	313							
Manzini	67.3	26.4	3.0	0.0	3.2	100.0	13.6	71.3	3.5	6.3	5.3	100.0	354							
Shiselweni	68.7	25.2	2.3	0.0	3.8	100.0	10.2	60.4	4.4	18.7	6.2	100.0	136							
Lubombo	64.6	28.3	6.0	0.5	0.6	100.0	12.4	65.5	5.8	12.2	4.1	100.0	217							
Education	60.4	ac -	2.6	0.6	0.0	100.0	12.0	60.6	2 -	10.4	2.4	100.0	407							
No education	69.1 71.0	26.7	3.6	0.6	0.0	100.0	13.0	68.6 (0.1	2.5	12.4	3.4	100.0	18/							
Lower primary	71.0	20.2	5./	0.0	3.1	100.0	8.5	69.1	3./	12.8	5.9	100.0	106							
Figner primary	/ I.Z	23.0	4.4	0.0	0.0	100.0	9.5	67.0	4.0	10.0	3.4 4.2	100.0	205							
High school	50.8	22.0	4.2	0.0	2.2	100.0	12.9	68.0	2.9	11.0 9.7	4.5 5.9	100.0	234							
Tertiary	56.1	34.0	3.0	0.0	5.7	100.0	8.0	72.0	4.2 7 0	0.7 4 7	5.0 7.4	100.0	95							
Teruary	50.1	54.0	5.5	0.0	0.0	100.0	0.0	72.0	7.5	4./	7.4	100.0	55							
Wealth quintile																				
Lowest	72.0	19.0	7.2	0.0	1.8	100.0	7.5	57.8	2.8	25.7	6.2	100.0	119							
Second	68.9	24.7	5.4	0.0	0.9	100.0	8.2	65.3	2.1	22.2	2.2	100.0	135							
Middle	73.6	19.4	2.6	0.8	3.6	100.0	7.6	69.1	2.8	14.3	6.3	100.0	151							
Fourth	70.0	22.4	4.1	0.0	3.4	100.0	13.5	69.5	2.7	8.0	6.3	100.0	243							
Highest	54.8	40.0	3.8	0.0	1.4	100.0	14.6	70.0	6.3	5.7	3.4	100.0	373							
Total	65.1	28.3	4.3	0.1	2.2	100.0	11.6	67.7	4.0	12.0	4.7	100.0	1,021							
Note: An asterisk inc	licates tha	t an estima	ate is basec	l on fewe	er than 25	unweighte	ed cases a	nd has b	een supp	Note: An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.										

Older women and women with more children are more likely than other women to decide for themselves how their earnings are spent. Rural women are somewhat more independent in making their own decisions than urban women (67 percent and 61 percent, respectively). On the other hand, urban women are somewhat more likely than rural women to report that they make decisions about how the money they earn will be used jointly with their husband or partner. The percentage of women who make independent decisions on their earnings does not vary widely across regions. It ranges from 61 percent in Hhohho to 69 percent in Shiselweni. Women in Hhohho are most likely to decide jointly with their husband or partner on how to spend the money they earn.

It is interesting to note that better educated women and women who live in households in the higher wealth quintiles are more likely to say that decisions on use of their earnings are shared with their husbands. For example, while 34 percent of women with tertiary education decide jointly with their husband or partner how their earnings are used, the proportion among women with no education is 27 percent.

Table 16.2.1 also shows the women's perception of the magnitude of their earnings relative to those of their husband or partner by background characteristics. Sixty-eight percent of women report that their cash earnings are less than their husband's, 12 percent say that their earnings are more than their husband's, and 4 percent say that their earnings match their husband's. In addition, 12 percent of women say that their husband has no cash earnings. The data show that women with more children, those who live in rural areas, women with less education, and women in households in the lowest wealth quintiles are more likely to say that their husband does not earn cash income.

16.1.2 Control over Husband's Earnings

Table 16.2.2 shows women's and men's answers to questions about who decides how men's cash earnings are spent, by background characteristics. Overall, almost half (48 percent) of women say that these decisions are mainly made by their husbands, 38 percent say they make the decisions jointly with their husband, and 11 percent say that they are the main decisionmaker regarding their husband's income.

The background characteristics of the women do not show a clear pattern regarding who makes decisions on the husband's earnings. However, the proportion of women who report joint decisionmaking regarding their husband's earnings decreases with age and number of children. Women in Hhohho are most likely and women in Shiselweni are least likely to decide jointly with their husband or partner how to spend the money the husband earns. Table 16.2.2 also shows that women in households in the lowest wealth quintile are more likely to say that the use of their husband's earnings is decided by the husband and the least likely to say that the decision is made jointly. Women in the highest wealth quintile have the opposite pattern: they are more likely to say that the decision on the use of their husband's earnings is made jointly and the least likely to say that the decision is made mainly by the husband.

Table 16.2.2 also shows the husband's perspective on who makes decisions about the men's earnings. In general, 56 percent of men say that decisions are mainly made jointly with their wives, 37 percent say they make the decisions, and 6 percent say that their wives are the main decisionmaker regarding their income. As in the case of married women, the background characteristics of married men show no clear pattern regarding who makes decisions about their earnings.

Table 16.2.2 Control over men's cash earnings

Women Men Husband Husband Background Mainly and wife Mainly Mainly and wife Mainly Other Missing characteristic wife jointly husband Other Missing Total Number wife jointly husband Total Number Age 100.0 10 15-19 100.0 1 1.7 20-24 10.1 46.3 41.2 0.7 100.0 110 2.1 53.2 44.7 0.0 0.0 100.0 54 25-29 10.1 45.2 42.4 0.0 2.2 100.0 158 7.0 51.8 40.6 0.0 0.6 100.0 192 30-34 10.136.2 50.1 0.4 3.2 100.0191 6.4 55.8 37.0 0.6 0.2 100.0 217 14.0 36.7 0.0 0.0 100.0 171 5.7 58.6 34.4 0.0 100.0 218 35-39 49.3 1.3 40-44 8.3 30.5 56.0 0.0 5.3 100.0 140 4.8 59.2 36.0 0.0 0.0100.0 182 36.8 45-49 13.9 35.4 47.1 0.0 3.6 100.0 100 4.8 57.20.6 0.6 100.0 159 Number of living children 11.6 47.5 39.0 0.0 1.9 100.0 62 2.5 62.7 33.0 0.0 1.8 100.0 85 0 1-2 8.9 54.3 36.5 380 8.6 42.4 46.6 0.2 2.2 100.0 346 0.00.3 100.0 3-4 12.5 37.6 0.3 3.0 100.0 271 3.5 61.2 33.9 0.8 0.5 100.0 268 46.6 5 +12.4 29.9 54.9 0.0 2.8 100.0 203 4.1 52.7 42.8 0.0 0.4 100.0 290 Residence 10.3 39.9 100.0 100.0 Urban 46.2 0.0 336 4.1 56.0 39.5 0.0 0.4 469 3.6 Rural 11.2 37.5 49.1 0.3 1.9 100.0 545 6.9 56.7 35.4 0.4 0.6 100.0 554 Region 7.6 Hhohho 43.5 47.1 0.0 1.8 100.0 262 3.9 53.6 41.8 0.0 0.6 100.0 324 12.9 38.0 45.9 0.0 322 7.3 57.8 34.4 Manzini 3.2 100.0 0.4 0.1 100.0 331 Shiselweni 11.4 32.6 51.3 0.0 4.7 100.0 110 10.2 58.3 31.5 0.0 0.0 100.0 123 188 3.2 100.0 Lubombo 11.8 35.5 50.7 0.9 1.3 100.0 57.2 38.0 0.4 1.2 244 Education No education 12.3 42.5 44.0 0.5 0.7 100.0 158 7.0 43.0 49.1 0.0 0.9 100.0 114 3.7 29.6 27.0 90 13.1 56.2 0.0100.0 5.4 64.5 0.00.5 100.0 100 Lower primary Higher primary 11.8 34.3 52.6 0.5 0.7 100.0 165 5.4 59.4 34.6 0.6 0.0 100.0 177 Secondary 10.1 42.7 45.3 0.0 1.9 100.0 206 5.0 53.8 40.2 0.0 1.0 100.0 220 High school 40.0 0.0 173 11.5 44.4 4.1 100.0 5.4 53.6 40.2 0.6 0.2 100.0 209 100.0 89 100.0 Tertiary 5.0 37.5 51.1 0.0 6.4 6.0 62.9 30.6 0.0 0.5 202 Wealth quintile Lowest 11.0 25.8 60.6 0.02.5 100.0 86 9.3 53.1 33.9 2.4 1.2 100.0 92 100.0 100 3.9 0.0 Second 10.936.2 50.8 0.8 1.2 67.6 28.5 0.0100.0 114 Middle 10.0 28.5 55.6 0.6 5.2 100.0 126 7.0 55.0 37.2 0.0 0.8 100.0 147 Fourth 13.2 33.3 50.4 0.0 3.2 100.0 221 6.4 48.9 44.3 0.0 0.4 100.0 251 Highest 9.7 49.0 0.01.5 348 4.3 59.0 36.3 0.0419 39.7 100.00.5 100.0Total 15-49 10.9 38.4 48.0 0.2 2.5 100.0 881 37.3 0.2 0.5 5.6 56.4 100.0 1,023

Percent distributions of currently married women age 15-49 whose husbands receive cash earnings and of currently married men age 15-49 who receive cash earnings, by person who decides how men's cash earnings are used, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Note: An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed. na = Not applicable

Table 16.3 shows that the majority of currently married women say that they decide themselves how their earnings are used, regardless of the amount they earn relative to their husband's earnings. For example, 59 percent of women who earn more than their husband or partner decide on their own how to spend their own earnings, 70 percent of women who earn less than their husband or partner decide on their own, and 63 percent of women with husbands who have no income decide themselves. Women who earn the same amount as their husband or partner are more likely to make joint decisions on the use of both their earnings and those of their husband or partner than women who earn either more or less than their husbands.

Husbands or partners are much more likely to make sole decisions on the use of their own earnings when their wife or partner has no cash earnings (68 percent) or when the wife or partner has less income (51 percent). The predominance of men in decisionmaking regarding their own income is shown by the high percentage of women who say that their husband or partner is the main decisionmaker in the use of their income even if the woman's income is more than that of her husband or partner.

Table 16.3 Women's control over their own earnings and over those of their husbands

Percent distributions of currently married women age 15-49 with cash earnings in the past 12 months by person who decides how the woman's cash earnings are used and of currently married women age 15-49 whose husbands have cash earnings by person who decides how the husband's cash earnings are used, according to the relation between woman's and husband's cash earnings, Swaziland 2006-07

	Person who decides how the wife's cash earnings are used:						Person who decides how husband's cash earnings are used:							
		Wife							Wife					
M/omorale consistent valation	Matalia	and	A 4					Mainler	and	1.4 a tal				Niuminau
to husband's earnings	wife	jointly	husband	Other	Missing	Total	Number	wife	jointly	husband	Other	Missing	Total	of women
More than husband	59.0	34.4	6.6	0.0	0.0	100.0	119	9.4	47.1	43.5	0.0	0.0	100.0	108
Less than husband	69.9	25.3	4.8	0.0	0.0	100.0	691	11.4	37.1	51.3	0.2	0.0	100.0	687
Same as husband	(33.5)	(63.8)	(2.8)	(0.0)	(0.0)	100.0	41	(5.1)	(67.8)	(27.0)	(0.0)	(0.0)	100.0	41
Husband has no cash earnings/did not work Woman has no cash	63.2	35.2	1.6	0.0	0.0	100.0	123	na	na	na	na	na	na	0
earnings	na	na	na	na	na	na	0	1.4	27.0	67.7	2.5	1.4	100.0	66
Woman did not work in														
past 12 months	na	na	na	na	na	na	0	5.8	38.8	52.1	0.7	2.6	100.0	827
Don't know/missing	(42.2)	(8.1)	(0.0)	(2.4)	(47.2)	100.0	48	(12.0)	(11.6)	(27.3)	(0.0)	(49.1)	100.0	46
Total ¹	65.1	28.3	4.3	0.1	2.2	100.0	1,021	8.1	38.2	50.6	0.5	2.5	100.0	1,774

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

na = Not applicable

¹ Excludes cases where a woman or her husband/partner has no earnings and includes cases where a woman does not know whether she earned more or less than her husband/partner

16.2 WOMAN'S PARTICIPATION IN DECISIONMAKING

The ability of women to make decisions that affect the circumstances of their own lives is an essential aspect of empowerment. In order to assess women's decisionmaking autonomy, information was collected on women's participation in five different types of decisions: on the respondent's own health care, on making large household purchases, on making household purchases for daily needs, on visits to the woman's family or relatives, and on what food should be cooked each day.

Table 16.4 shows the percent distribution of women according to who in the household usually has the final say on each of these decisions. The data show that for two of the four decisions (respondent's own health care and making household purchases for daily needs), the women themselves are the main decisionmakers. For making large household purchases, 42 percent of women say that the decision is made jointly with their husbands or partners and 35 percent say that the decision is made mainly by their husbands or partners. Decisions to visit the woman's family or relatives are more likely to be made by husbands (45 percent).

Table 16.4	Women's	partici	pation	in	decisionma	king
						0

Percent distribution of currently married women by person who usually makes decisions about four kinds of issues, Swaziland 2006-07

Decision	Mainly wife	Wife and husband jointly	Mainly husband	Someone else	Other	Missing	Total	Number of women
Own health care	36.2	31.8	28.5	0.9	0.2	2.3	100.0	2,062
Major household purchases	18.9	42.2	35.4	0.9	0.2	2.2	100.0	2,062
Purchases of daily household needs	56.5	23.6	16.4	1.2	0.1	2.2	100.0	2,062
Visits to her family or relatives	20.3	31.1	44.9	0.8	0.5	2.3	100.0	2,062

Table 16.5 shows the percentage of women who report that they decide alone or jointly about specific household decisions, according to background characteristics. The results indicate that the majority of currently married women participate in making decisions on purchases for daily household needs (80 percent), their own health care (68 percent), and major household purchases (61 percent). It is in the decisions regarding visits to her family or relatives that women are less likely to have any say (51 percent). Overall, 36 percent of currently married women participate in all of the four specified decisions and only 11 percent say that they do not participate in any of the decisions.

The degree of independence in making household decisions increases with age and number of children. Urban women, women who earn cash, and the most educated women are more likely to have a final say in all given decisions. Across regions, women in Manzini are the most likely to have participated in all household decisions, while women in Lubombo are the least likely to participate in decisionmaking (42 percent compared with 25 percent).

Table 16.5 Women's participation in decisionmaking by background characteristics											
Percentage of currently married their husband, by background cha	Percentage of currently married women age 15-49 who usually make specific decisions either by themselves or jointly with their husband, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07										
Background characteristic	Own health care	Making major household purchases	Making purchases for daily household needs	Visits to her family or relatives	Percentage who participate in all four decisions	Percentage who participate in none of the four decisions	Number of women				
Age											
15-19	60.7	48.8	74.0	30.7	20.2	19.7	88				
20-24	67.8	55.1	75.8	51.3	32.7	11.0	343				
25-29	66.7	55.9	78.2	49.2	32.5	12.0	388				
30-34	65.0	65.3	79.9	48.2	33.9	12.2	379				
35-39	69.9	62.8	84.0	56.4	37.4	6.8	334				
40-44	68.5	64.0	81.0	53.8	37.8	11.0	291				
45-49	74.6	70.4	85.5	57.7	48.2	7.1	238				
Employment (past 12 months)											
Not employed	62.7	53.6	75.9	48.7	30.8	14.0	902				
Employed for cash	74.3	68.3	84.4	54.7	41.4	7.5	1,021				
Employed not for cash	60.0	57.3	76.5	33.7	18.0	10.7	69				
Missing	53.1	56.8	75.6	55.0	30.3	13.3	70				
Number of living children											
0	64.1	59.8	75.8	48.7	32.2	17.2	166				
1-2	68.5	60.1	81.1	50.8	36.1	9.2	772				
3-4	70.0	61.5	79.2	52.9	37.4	11.7	570				
5+	66.5	62.6	81.0	51.5	34.2	9.5	554				
Residence											
Urban	74.9	69.5	78.6	62.2	48.1	12.0	542				
Rural	65.6	58.1	80.7	47.5	31.2	10.1	1,520				
Region											
Hhohho	69.6	58.8	79.5	53.2	36.9	10.6	600				
Manzini	71.7	64.7	81.1	57.0	41.5	10.6	650				
Shiselweni	67.4	61.6	79.1	53.8	36.5	12.6	363				
Lubombo	61.1	58.6	80.3	38.9	24.7	9.1	449				
Education											
No education	66.6	60.7	78.5	47.2	33.7	10.1	385				
Lower primary	59.9	52.8	78.2	52.3	28.4	12.1	253				
Higher primary	70.1	59.7	81.4	48.6	32.5	9.0	467				
Secondary	72.0	62.5	84.4	55.8	39.0	8.5	478				
High school	65.0	64.7	77.1	50.6	38.1	14.4	338				
Tertiary	73.1	68.7	76.1	57.4	46.8	13.1	142				
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	60.1	50.3	75.4	42.3	25.7	12.8	353				
Second	65.7	56.3	80.2	43.0	28.1	11.4	369				
Middle	67.3	57.7	78.8	50.0	32.2	12.1	379				
Fourth	68.2	63.7	79.5	53.9	36.7	10.3	424				
Highest	75.3	71.9	84.5	62.1	48.9	7.8	537				
Total	68.0	61.1	80.1	51.4	35.6	10.6	2,062				



Figure 16.1 Number of Decisions in Which Married Women Participate

16.3 ATTITUDES TOWARDS WIFE BEATING

To assess women's degree of acceptance of wife beating, the 2006-07 SDHS asked women, "Sometimes a husband is annoyed or angered by things which his wife does. In your opinion, is a husband justified in hitting or beating his wife in the following situations?" The six situations presented to women for their opinion are: if she burns the food, if she argues with him, if she goes out without telling him, if she neglects the children, if she refuses to have sex with him, and if she has sex with other men.

The first six columns in Table 16.6.1 show how acceptance of wife beating varies for each reason. The last column gives the percentages of women who feel that wife beating is justified for at least one of the given reasons. A woman who believes that a husband is justified in hitting or beating his wife for any reason at all may believe herself to be of low status, both absolutely and relative to men. Such a perception could act as a barrier to accessing health care for her and her children, could affect her attitude toward contraceptive use, and could impact her general well being.

Table 16.6.1 shows that approximately four in ten women believe that a husband is justified in beating his wife for at least one of the six specified reasons. As head of household, a man is traditionally an important figure in Swazi family life. Hence, a woman who argues with her husband is considered disrespectful. Traditional customs teach women to be submissive and tolerant of marital problems including wife beating, so it is encouraging to note that the majority of women in Swaziland do not subscribe to that notion. Thirty-three percent of women believe that a husband is justified in beating his wife if she has sex with other men; 17 percent think that a husband is justified in beating his wife if she argues with him.

Table 16.6.1 Attitude toward wife beating: Women

Percentage of all women age 15-49 who agree that a husband is justified in hitting or beating his wife for specific reasons, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Refuseswho agréeBaums the with foodCoces out without himkelfaceswithout helfaceswithout helfaceswithout helfaceswith thimwith the menwith the menJand 120def set 12with the Jand 12with the Jand 12with the Jand 12with the Jand 12with the Jand 12with to Jand 12Jand 120def set 12with to Jand 12with to Jand 13with to Jand 13 <th></th> <th>Hus</th> <th>band is ju</th> <th>she:</th> <th colspan="3">Percentage</th>		Hus	band is ju	she:	Percentage				
Codes outUnitate intercourse with out lease secual tellingwith at lease secual tellingwith at lease secual tellingBackground characteristicBurns the foodWith at with himwith himmethodAge totaSecual tellingSecual tellingHas sex with himmenrone specifiedNumberAge 25-292.21.77.810.82.334.840.11.04630-342.91.912.04.46.73.226.329.061633-391.79.75.84.81.922.828.050.3340-441.611.05.85.53.722.926.643843-492.814.58.77.15.626.133.343.22.632Polyced3.618.711.813.53.637.343.22.6322.632Employed for cash1.913.95.47.42.925.830.22.072Employed not for cash5.42.909.115.43.634.334.02.062Diver married3.019.110.914.82.537.142.32.487Marid statusTotalTotal3.019.110.914.82.537.142.32.477Marid of bing together2.615.37.73.63.540.546.61.601 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>Refuses</td> <td></td> <td>who agree</td> <td></td>				<u> </u>		Refuses		who agree	
Background Burns the food vith him Vith him Vith him Vith him Vith him Vith him Vith him Specified hitercorse Vith vith him Specified reason 15-19 4.9 28.0 18.1 22.2 4.0 4.7. 54.3 1.274 20-24 2.2 17.7 7.8 10.8 2.3 34.8 40.1 1.046 25-29 1.9 12.0 4.4 6.7 3.2 26.3 29.9 729 30-34 2.9 11.3 4.6 5.9 3.3 25.0 29.0 616 35.39 1.7 9.7 5.8 4.8 1.9 22.8 28.0 53.3 Polyment (past 12 months) 5 8.7 7.1 5.6 26.1 33.3 383 Employed for cash 1.9 13.9 5.4 7.4 2.9 25.8 30.2 2.072 Employed for for cash 5.4 2.9 16.6 7.3 6.8 24.9 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td>Arguos</td> <td>Goes out</td> <td>Noglacts</td> <td>to have</td> <td>Has sov</td> <td>with at least</td> <td></td>			Arguos	Goes out	Noglacts	to have	Has sov	with at least	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Background	Burns the	with	telling	the	intercourse	with other	specified	
Age 15-194.928.018.122.24.047.754.31,27420-242.217.77.810.82.334.840.11,04625-291.912.04.46.73.226.329.061635.391.79.75.84.81.922.828.050340-441.611.05.85.53.722.926.643843-492.814.58.77.15.626.133.3383Employed for cash1.913.95.47.42.922.830.22,072Employed for cash5.42.99.115.43.644.248.7106Missing2.923.016.016.64.338.544.0177Maried or living together2.615.37.87.53.629.134.02,062Divorced/separated/widowed3.213.96.67.36.824.931.5438Number of living thildren03.62.013.416.73.540.54.61,0111.22.916.78.010.13.030.935.21,7543.43.112.96.37.42.72.83.657ResidenceUban03.62.013.03.937.243.23,657ResidenceUban1.71.731.83.2	characteristic	food	him	him	children	with him	men	reason	Number
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Age								
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	15-19	4.9	28.0	18.1	22.2	4.0	47.7	54.3	1,274
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	20-24	2.2	17.7	7.8	10.8	2.3	34.8	40.1	1,046
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	25-29	1.9	12.0	4.4	6.7	3.2	26.3	29.9	729
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	30-34	2.9	11.3	4.6	5.9	3.3	25.0	29.0	616
40-44 45-491.011.05.85.35.722.926.6433Employment (past 12 months)Not employed3.618.711.813.53.637.343.22.632Employed for cash1.913.95.42.925.830.22.072Employed not for cash5.429.09.115.43.644.248.7106Maried status $under married$ 3.019.110.914.82.537.142.32.487Never married3.019.110.914.82.537.142.32.487Married or living together2.615.37.87.53.624.931.5438Number of living children $under de $	35-39	1./	9./	5.8	4.8	1.9	22.8	28.0	503
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	40-44	1.6	11.0	5.8 9.7	5.5 7 1	3./	22.9	26.6	438
Employment (past 12 months) Not employed 3.6 18.7 11.8 13.5 3.6 37.3 43.2 2,632 Employed for cash 1.9 13.9 5.4 7.4 2.9 25.8 30.2 2,072 Employed not for cash 5.4 29.0 9.1 15.4 3.6 44.2 48.7 106 Missing 2.9 23.0 16.0 16.6 4.3 38.5 44.0 177 Marial status	43-49	2.0	14.5	0./	7.1	5.0	20.1	55.5	202
Note thip loyed temployed for cash employed not for cash3.0 5.410.7 911.6 713.3 7.43.4 2.92.5.8 2.930.2 2.02.072 2.0Employed not for cash Missing5.4 2.92.9 2.3.016.016.64.3 4.338.544.0177Marital status Marited or living together Divorced/separated/widowed3.0 2.219.1 1.910.914.8 1.82.5 2.537.1 3.642.3 2.4872.487 2.487Number of living children 03.6 2.2.02.2.0 1.3.416.7 1.3.93.6.8 6.624.9 2.331.543.8Number of living children 03.6 2.2.013.4 1.6.716.7 3.540.5 4.6.61.601 1.3.01-2 3.42.9 	Employment (past 12 months)	2.6	10 7	11.0	10 5	2.6	27.2	42.2	2 (2 2
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Employed for cash	3.0	10./	11.0 5.4	13.5	3.0	37.3	43.2	2,632
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Employed for Cash Employed not for cash	1.9 5.4	29.0	5.4 9.1	7.4 15.4	2.9	23.0 44.2	30.2 48.7	2,072
Marital status Never married 3.0 19.1 10.9 14.8 2.5 37.1 42.3 2,487 Married or living together 2.6 15.3 7.8 7.5 3.6 29.1 34.0 2,062 Divorced/separated/widowed 3.2 13.9 6.6 7.3 6.8 24.9 31.5 438 Number of living children 0 3.6 22.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1,754 3.4 3.1 12.9 6.3 7.4 2.7 25.7 30.9 887 5+ 1.2 12.2 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Residence Urban 3.1 17.3 10.8 11.3 3.7 37.9 45.2 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9	Missing	29	23.0	16.0	16.6	43	38.5	44.0	177
Marrial status Very married 3.0 19.1 10.9 14.8 2.5 37.1 42.3 2,487 Married or living together 2.6 15.3 7.8 7.5 3.6 29.1 34.0 2,062 Divorced/separated/widowed 3.2 13.9 6.6 7.3 6.8 24.9 31.5 438 Number of living children U U 1.2 2.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1,754 3.4 3.1 12.9 6.3 7.4 2.7 25.7 30.9 887 5 + 1.2 12.2 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Region 3.0 27.9 3		2.5	25.0	10.0	10.0	1.5	50.5	11.0	.,,
Narried or living together 2.6 15.1 10.5 14.0 2.3 37.1 42.3 2.407 Married or living children 3.2 13.9 6.6 7.3 6.8 24.9 31.5 438 Number of living children 0 3.6 22.0 13.4 16.7 3.5 40.5 46.6 1.601 1-2 2.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1.754 3.4 3.1 12.9 6.3 7.4 2.7 25.7 30.9 887 5+ 1.2 12.2 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Region	Marital status	2.0	10.1	10.0	1/9	25	271	12.2	2 4 9 7
Named of singlogand 2.5 1.5 7.3 6.6 2.4 9 3.5 2.402 Divorced/separated/widowed 3.2 13.9 6.6 7.3 6.8 24.9 31.5 438 Number of living children 0 3.6 22.0 13.4 16.7 3.5 40.5 46.6 1,601 1-2 2.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1,754 3.4 3.1 12.9 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Region	Married or living together	2.6	15.1	7.8	7.5	2.5	37.1 29.1	42.3	2,407
Number of living children 0 3.6 22.0 13.4 16.7 3.5 40.5 46.6 1,601 1-2 2.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1,754 3-4 3.1 12.9 6.3 7.4 2.7 25.7 30.9 887 5+ 1.2 12.2 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 10.1 13.0 3.0 27.9 32.1 1,340 Mazini 2.0 13.0 6.3 9.1 3.0 27.9 32.1 1,340 Mazini 2.0 13.5 7.7 9.3 2.2 28.7 31.7 1,647 Shiselweni 3.1 17.3 10.8 5.1 40.8 48.9 966 Education 3 3 17.8 8.4 11.1 3.8 32.7 37.3 884	Divorced/separated/widowed	3.2	13.9	6.6	7.3	6.8	24.9	31.5	438
Residence 3.6 22.0 13.4 16.7 3.5 40.5 46.6 1,601 1-2 2.9 16.7 8.0 10.1 3.0 30.9 35.2 1,754 3-4 3.1 12.9 6.3 7.4 2.7 25.7 30.9 887 5+ 1.2 12.2 6.8 6.0 4.5 28.9 34.2 745 Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Region	Number of living children	5.2	15.5	0.0	7.5	0.0	21.5	51.5	150
0 1.0		3.6	22.0	13/	16.7	35	40.5	16.6	1 601
12^{-2} 2.5^{-1} 10.7^{-1} 0.3^{-1} 10.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} 20.7^{-1} 30.7^{-1} </td <td>1_2</td> <td>2.0</td> <td>16.7</td> <td>8.0</td> <td>10.7</td> <td>3.0</td> <td>30.9</td> <td>35.2</td> <td>1,001</td>	1_2	2.0	16.7	8.0	10.7	3.0	30.9	35.2	1,001
5+1.212.26.86.04.528.934.2745Residence $Urban$ 1.89.34.06.11.620.523.41,330Rural3.319.911.113.03.937.243.23,657Region $Urban$ 1.89.34.06.11.620.523.41,330Hhoho2.013.06.39.13.027.932.11,340Marzini2.013.57.79.32.228.731.71,647Shiselweni3.117.310.811.33.737.945.21,033Lubombo5.528.514.216.85.140.848.9966Education N <	3-4	3.1	12.9	6.3	7.4	2.7	25.7	30.9	887
Residence Urban 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Region Hhohho 2.0 13.0 6.3 9.1 3.0 27.9 32.1 1,340 Mazzini 2.0 13.5 7.7 9.3 2.2 28.7 31.7 1,647 Shiselweni 3.1 17.3 10.8 11.3 3.7 37.9 45.2 1,033 Lubombo 5.5 28.5 14.2 16.8 5.1 40.8 48.9 966 Education 84 11.1 3.8 32.7 37.3 884 Lower primary 4.3 26.5 13.9 14.2 5.0 39.3 45.9 525 Higher primary 2.5	5+	1.2	12.2	6.8	6.0	4.5	28.9	34.2	745
Burble of the second system 1.8 9.3 4.0 6.1 1.6 20.5 23.4 1,330 Rural 3.3 19.9 11.1 13.0 3.9 37.2 43.2 3,657 Region	Residence								
Bits	Urban	18	93	4.0	61	16	20.5	23.4	1 330
Region	Rural	3.3	19.9	11.1	13.0	3.9	37.2	43.2	3,657
Hoho2.013.06.39.13.027.932.11,340Manzini2.013.57.79.32.228.731.71,647Shiselweni3.117.310.811.33.737.945.21,033Lubombo5.528.514.216.85.140.848.9966EducationNo education3.817.88.411.13.832.737.3884Lower primary4.326.513.914.25.039.345.9525Higher primary3.118.610.813.04.237.143.41,167Secondary2.515.39.110.02.732.036.51,220High school1.914.67.49.62.127.832.8803Tertiary1.58.54.57.81.823.427.4387Weath quintileLowest4.726.713.917.86.942.449.9785Second3.021.911.913.44.740.647.4862Middle3.216.310.710.72.834.839.9968Fourth2.815.88.611.22.232.436.91,111Highest1.49.54.05.61.620.123.51,262	Pagion								,
Manzini 2.0 13.0 0.3 7.7 9.3 2.2 28.7 31.7 1,647 Shiselweni 3.1 17.3 10.8 11.3 3.7 37.9 45.2 1,033 Lubombo 5.5 28.5 14.2 16.8 5.1 40.8 48.9 966 Education 3.8 17.8 8.4 11.1 3.8 32.7 37.3 884 Lower primary 4.3 26.5 13.9 14.2 5.0 39.3 45.9 525 Higher primary 3.1 18.6 10.8 13.0 4.2 37.1 43.4 1,167 Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 1,220 High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintile 2.0 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862	Hoobo	2.0	13.0	63	9.1	3.0	27.9	32.1	1 340
Andread 1.0 1.1 <th1.1< th=""> 1.1 1.1 <t< td=""><td>Manzini</td><td>2.0</td><td>13.5</td><td>77</td><td>93</td><td>2.0</td><td>28.7</td><td>31.7</td><td>1,540</td></t<></th1.1<>	Manzini	2.0	13.5	77	93	2.0	28.7	31.7	1,540
Lubombo5.528.514.216.85.140.848.9966EducationNo education3.817.88.411.13.832.737.3884Lower primary4.326.513.914.25.039.345.9525Higher primary3.118.610.813.04.237.143.41,167Secondary2.515.39.110.02.732.036.51,220High school1.914.67.49.62.127.832.8803Tertiary1.58.54.57.81.823.427.4387Wealth quintileLowest4.726.713.917.86.942.449.9785Second3.021.911.913.44.740.647.4862Middle3.216.310.710.72.834.839.9968Fourth2.815.88.611.22.232.436.91,111Highest1.49.54.05.61.620.123.51,262	Shiselweni	3.1	17.3	10.8	11.3	3.7	37.9	45.2	1.033
Education 3.8 17.8 8.4 11.1 3.8 32.7 37.3 884 Lower primary 4.3 26.5 13.9 14.2 5.0 39.3 45.9 525 Higher primary 3.1 18.6 10.8 13.0 4.2 37.1 43.4 1,167 Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 1,220 High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintile 20 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862 Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 1,111 Highest 1.4 9.5	Lubombo	5.5	28.5	14.2	16.8	5.1	40.8	48.9	966
No education 3.8 17.8 8.4 11.1 3.8 32.7 37.3 884 Lower primary 4.3 26.5 13.9 14.2 5.0 39.3 45.9 525 Higher primary 3.1 18.6 10.8 13.0 4.2 37.1 43.4 1,167 Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 1,220 High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintile Use	Education								
Lower primary 4.3 26.5 13.9 14.2 5.0 39.3 45.9 525 Higher primary 3.1 18.6 10.8 13.0 4.2 37.1 43.4 $1,167$ Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 $1,220$ High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintileLowest 4.7 26.7 13.9 17.8 6.9 42.4 49.9 785 Second 3.0 21.9 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862 Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 $1,111$ Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 $1,262$ Total 2.9 17.1 9.2 11.1 3.3 32.7 37.9 4.987	No education	3.8	17.8	8.4	11.1	3.8	32.7	37.3	884
Higher primary 3.1 18.6 10.8 13.0 4.2 37.1 43.4 $1,167$ Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 $1,220$ High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintileLowest 4.7 26.7 13.9 17.8 6.9 42.4 49.9 785 Second 3.0 21.9 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862 Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 $1,111$ Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 $1,262$	Lower primary	4.3	26.5	13.9	14.2	5.0	39.3	45.9	525
Secondary 2.5 15.3 9.1 10.0 2.7 32.0 36.5 1,220 High school 1.9 14.6 7.4 9.6 2.1 27.8 32.8 803 Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintile Use <	Higher primary	3.1	18.6	10.8	13.0	4.2	37.1	43.4	1,167
High school1.914.67.49.62.127.832.8803Tertiary1.58.54.57.81.823.427.4387Wealth quintileLowest4.726.713.917.86.942.449.9785Second3.021.911.913.44.740.647.4862Middle3.216.310.710.72.834.839.9968Fourth2.815.88.611.22.232.436.91,111Highest1.49.54.05.61.620.123.51,262Total2.917.19.211.13.332.737.94.987	Secondary	2.5	15.3	9.1	10.0	2.7	32.0	36.5	1,220
Tertiary 1.5 8.5 4.5 7.8 1.8 23.4 27.4 387 Wealth quintile	High school	1.9	14.6	7.4	9.6	2.1	27.8	32.8	803
Wealth quintile 4.7 26.7 13.9 17.8 6.9 42.4 49.9 785 Second 3.0 21.9 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862 Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 1,111 Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 1,262	Tertiary	1.5	8.5	4.5	7.8	1.8	23.4	27.4	387
Lowest4.726.713.917.86.942.449.9785Second3.021.911.913.44.740.647.4862Middle3.216.310.710.72.834.839.9968Fourth2.815.88.611.22.232.436.91,111Highest1.49.54.05.61.620.123.51,262	Wealth quintile								
Second 3.0 21.9 11.9 13.4 4.7 40.6 47.4 862 Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 1,111 Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 1,262	Lowest	4.7	26.7	13.9	17.8	6.9	42.4	49.9	785
Middle 3.2 16.3 10.7 10.7 2.8 34.8 39.9 968 Fourth 2.8 15.8 8.6 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 1,111 Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 1,262 Total 2.9 17.1 9.2 11.1 3.3 32.7 37.9 4.987	Second	3.0	21.9	11.9	13.4	4.7	40.6	47.4	862
Found 2.0 15.0 0.0 11.2 2.2 32.4 36.9 1,111 Highest 1.4 9.5 4.0 5.6 1.6 20.1 23.5 1,262 Total 2.9 17.1 9.2 11.1 3.3 32.7 37.9 4.987	Middle	3.2	16.3	10./	10./	2.8	34.8	39.9	968
Trightst 1.4 3.5 4.0 3.0 1.0 20.1 23.5 1,202 Total 2.9 17.1 9.2 11.1 3.3 32.7 37.9 4.987	Highest	2.0 1 4	15.0	0.0 4 0	5.6	2.2 1.6	32.4 20.1	20.9 23 5	1,111 1,262
Total 2.9 17.1 9.2 11.1 3.3 32.7 37.9 4.987	riighest	1.7	9.5	4.0	5.0	1.0	20.1	23.3	1,202
	Total	2.9	17.1	9.2	11.1	3.3	32.7	37.9	4,987

Table 16.6.1 also shows the attitudes towards wife beating by the respondent's background characteristics. The percentage of women who agree with at least one of the specified reasons justifying wife beating is higher among younger women and women with no children. Women who are employed for cash (30 percent); women who are divorced, separated, or widowed (32 percent); and women who live in urban areas (23 percent) are less likely to agree with at least one of the reasons for wife beating than those who are not employed (43 percent), or employed but not for cash (49 percent), never married (42 percent), or live in rural areas (43 percent).

Differentials by region and wealth status are also notable; women in the Shiselweni (45 percent) and Lubombo (49 percent) regions and women in the lowest and second wealth quintiles (50 percent and 47 percent, respectively) are more likely to agree with at least one of the specified reasons for wife beating than those who live in the Manzini and Hhohho regions (32 percent each) and women in the highest wealth quintile (24 percent).

Men share similar views with women on the subject of wife beating (see Table 16.6.2). Two in five men believe that a husband is justified in beating his wife for at least one of the six specified reasons. As is true among women, three in ten men believe that a husband is justified in beating his wife if she has sex with other men. As with women, younger men and men with no children are more likely to agree with at least one of the specified reasons justifying wife beating than older men and men with any children. Unemployed men are much more likely than men who are employed for cash to agree with any reason to beat a wife (48 percent compared with 34 percent). Forty-five percent of rural men agree with at least one of the specified reasons justifying wife beating compared with 31 percent of urban men.

Table 16.6.2 Attitude toward wife beating: Men

Percentage of all men age 15-49 who agree that a husband is justified in hitting or beating his wife for specific reasons, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	H	usband is j						
			Goes out		Refuses to have		Percentage who agree	
		Argues	without		sexual	Has sex	with at least	
Background	Burns	with	telling	Neglects	intercourse	with other	one specified	ł
characteristic	the food	him	him	the children	with him	men	reason	Number
Age								
15-19	8.1	34.5	23.7	25.9	5.4	46.1	58.9	1,323
20-24	3.0	24.5	15.3	14.9	2.9	27.3	41.6	886
25-29	1.1	16.4	9.6	9.6	2.6	20.6	31.5	624
30-34	2.0	14./	10.5	8.2	2.5	18.9	29.1	431
35-39	1.0	8./	/./	6.9	2.2	14.4	21.9	367
40-44	2.4	14.3	0.3	0.3	2.2	13.0	24.0	269
43-49	5.5	15.0	0.0	5.0	5.5	19.4	27.0	250
Employment (past 12 months)			10 -	10.0		26.2	10.0	1.000
Not employed	5.7	27.7	18.5	18.9	4.2	36.3	48.2	1,833
Employed for cash	2.5	17.9	11.6	11.3	3.0	22.3	33.5	2,114
Employed not for cash	6.6	26.8	16./	21.4	5./	31.6	46.1	201
Marital status								
Never married	5.3	27.2	17.9	19.1	4.1	34.3	46.8	2,734
Married or living together	1.9	13.0	8.7	7.0	2.4	18.6	27.7	1,219
Divorced/separated/widowed	3.0	19.4	10.9	10.9	6.1	18.1	34.4	203
Number of living children								
0	5.7	28.5	19.0	20.3	4.4	36.7	49.3	2,500
1-2	1.4	14.0	8.6	8.3	2.2	17.1	27.3	835
3-4	1.8	14.2	8.0	6.3	2.9	17.9	27.3	424
5+	2.8	13.4	9.5	7.1	3.5	16.4	27.8	397
Residence								
Urban	1.8	14.1	9.5	9.6	2.5	20.8	30.5	1,181
Rural	5.1	26.1	17.0	17.4	4.2	32.1	44.6	2,975
Region								
Hhohho	2.4	17.6	12.0	13.3	3.0	25.8	35.4	1,099
Manzini	4.2	21.7	15.0	15.4	3.1	28.5	39.8	1,349
Shiselweni	4.6	23.6	15.0	14.6	3.6	29.8	41.0	843
Lubombo	6.0	29.7	18.3	17.8	5.6	32.8	48.1	865
Education								
No education	4.1	21.1	11.5	12.2	6.1	24.2	37.8	316
Lower primary	7.5	29.7	22.0	22.7	6.9	36.5	48.7	470
Higher primary	6.5	31.1	20.5	20.2	6.0	36.1	50.7	980
Secondary	3.8	23.8	15.2	15.5	2.4	31.8	43.7	1,191
High school	1.5	14.3	9.8	10.1	1.1	20.6	30.3	852
Tertiary	1.0	7.7	4.1	5.1	1.5	13.0	18.6	347
							(ontinued

Table 16.6.2—Continued										
Background	Burns	Argues with	Goes out without telling	Neglects	Refuses to have sexual intercourse	Has sex with other	Percentage who agree with at least one specified			
characteristic	the food	him	him	the children	with him	men	reason	Number		
Wealth guintile										
Lowest	6.0	33.0	20.0	20.5	5.4	36.9	53.1	601		
Second	4.9	29.2	20.2	20.7	4.2	35.9	47.7	665		
Middle	6.1	25.1	16.0	18.5	4.4	30.4	43.8	856		
Fourth	3.9	20.3	13.4	13.2	3.7	27.8	38.1	953		
Highest	1.4	13.1	9.2	8.0	1.8	20.0	29.0	1,081		
Total 15-49	4.2	22.7	14.9	15.2	3.7	28.9	40.6	4,156		
Note: Total includes eight men with information missing on employment.										

Poorer men and men with limited education are more likely to accept wife beating than wealthier men and better educated men. Acceptance of wife beating also varies by region. The percentage of men who accept wife beating for any of the specified reasons ranges from 35 percent in Hhohho to 48 percent in Lubombo.

16.4 ATTITUDES TOWARDS REFUSING SEX WITH HUSBAND

The extent of control women have over when and with whom they have sex has important implications for demographic and health outcomes. To measure women's agreement with the idea that a woman has the right to refuse to have sex with her husband, the 2006-07 SDHS asked respondents whether a wife is justified in refusing to have sex with her husband under five circumstances: she knows her husband has a sexually transmitted disease, she knows her husband has had sex with other women, she has recently given birth, she is tired or not in the mood, and she is feeling unwell. These five circumstances have been chosen because they are effective in combining issues of women's rights and consequences for women's health.

Table 16.7.1 shows that about two in three women agree to each of the reasons for a woman to refuse to have sexual relations with her husband, 38 percent agree with all of the given reasons, and 5 percent disagree with all of the reasons. The least acceptable reason for a wife to refuse sex with her husband is when she feels tired or not in the mood (65 percent). The most accepted reasons among women for refusing to have sex are if the wife has recently given birth (79 percent) and if the wife is feeling unwell (74 percent). Women age 15-19, women who are not employed, women with no children, women who live in rural areas, women with no education, and women in the poorest quintiles are the most likely to agree with none of the reasons for refusing sex. This indicates that these women are less empowered than other women.

Table 16.7.1 Attitude toward refusing sexual intercourse with husband: Women

Percentage of all women age 15-49 who believe that a wife is justified in refusing to have sexual intercourse with her husband in specific circumstances, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	W	ife is justified ir with her h	n refusing ii usband if s					
Declarated	Knows husband has a sexually	Knows husband has intercourse	Has recently	Is tired or not	la fa alima	Percentage who agree with all of	Percentage who agree with none of	
characteristic	disease	women	birth	mood	unwell	reasons	reasons	Number
15-19	63.2	69.2	73.6	66.3	75.0	36.8	6.7	1.274
20-24	67.4	69.1	79.6	67.5	76.5	38.1	4.7	1.046
25-29	70.7	67.5	82.8	68.1	76.9	41.0	4.7	729
30-34	69.3	66.9	79.3	62.3	71.5	39.2	4.6	616
35-39	67.9	65.4	80.1	63.3	73.2	38.2	5.2	503
40-44	64.5	65.2	79.1	57.1	67.8	31.6	5.6	438
45-49	66.7	63.0	81.6	62.7	72.7	34.5	4.4	383
Employment (past 12 months)								
Not employed	65.7	66.5	77.3	64.7	73.1	36.1	5.7	2,632
Employed for cash	67.8	68.5	81.2	65.7	75.1	39.7	5.1	2,072
Employed not for cash	67.6	69.6	67.1	62.9	77.9	29.7	2.1	106
Missing	69.5	67.7	77.0	61.2	77.2	36.6	4.3	177
Marital status								
Never married	66.9	69.5	77.8	68.6	76.5	40.2	5.4	2,487
Married or living together	66.8	65.4	79.2	61.0	72.1	34.8	5.3	2,062
Divorced/separated/widowed	66.2	65.3	80.7	62.8	71.2	34.7	5.0	438
Number of living children								
0	66.5	70.2	74.6	68.0	76.4	39.3	6.1	1,601
1-2	68.0	68.1	81.7	66.6	76.4	38.8	4.2	1,754
3-4	68.7	65.1	79.9	62.2	71.1	36.2	5.5	887
5+	62.4	62.7	78.6	57.7	67.9	31.8	5.8	745
Residence								
Urban	71.8	69.6	81.6	71.7	78.7	42.6	3.0	1,330
Rural	64.9	66.6	77.6	62.5	72.5	35.6	6.1	3,657
Region								
Hhohho	66.7	67.5	76.4	59.9	70.7	36.5	6.6	1,340
Manzini	67.6	67.1	80.5	69.1	76.2	40.0	5.0	1,647
Shiselweni	65.4	68.3	78.5	64.2	72.8	38.4	6.2	1,033
Lubombo	67.0	67.0	78.8	65.6	77.1	33.7	3.0	966
Education								
No education	65.4	65.0	77.7	63.8	73.4	35.2	6.3	884
Lower primary	65.7	69.7	80.5	65.6	77.4	37.2	4.5	525
Higher primary	63.8	65.5	76.1	60.5	71.2	34.1	6.2	1,167
Secondary	67.0	66.3	79.1	66.2	74.3	37.6	5.2	1,220
High school	69.7	69.5	78.2	63.8	72.3	39.8	5.1	803
Tertiary	/3.8	/4.8	85./	/8.0	84.2	48.5	2.4	38/
Wealth quintile	-0.0	60.0			-0.0		6.0	
Lowest	59.6	60.8	/5.5	58.7	/0.3	30.3	6.3	/85
Second	63.1	65.0	77.2	60.0	/2.3	33.4	/.1	862
Middle	65.2	66.3	/6.8	62.9	/0.5	37.5	6.6 5.2	968
Fourth	00.9 72 1	/U.4 71 5	/0.0 92.0	00.4 72 F	/ D. I 70.0	39.3 42 0	5.3 2.4	1,111
riignesi	/ 3.1	/1.5	02.9	/ 2.3	79.9	43.2	2.4	1,202
Total	66.8	67.4	78.7	64.9	74.2	37.5	5.3	4,987

Table 16.7.2 shows that men tend to differ somewhat from women in their opinions regarding women refusing sex. According to men, the most accepted reasons for a wife to refuse to have sex with her husband are if the wife knows that her husband has a sexually transmitted disease (74 percent) or if the wife feels tired or not in the mood (73 percent). Men are less likely to agree that a wife is justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when the wife knows that her husband has intercourse with other women (63 percent). This is because although polygyny is slowly declining in Swaziland, some Swazi men still believe that it is acceptable for a man to have multiple partners. Eight percent of men do not agree with any of the reasons justifying a wife refusing to have sex with her husband.

Table 16.7.2 Attitude toward refusing sexual intercourse with husband: Men

Percentage of all men age 15-49 who believe that a wife is justified in refusing to have sexual intercourse with her husband in specific circumstances, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Wife is justifie hu	ed in refusing in with her usband if she:	tercourse			
Background	Knows husband has a sexually transmitted	Knows husband has intercourse with other	ls tired or not in the	Percentage who agree with all of the specified	Percentage who agree with none of the specified	
characteristic	disease	women	mood	reasons	reasons	Number
Age						
15-19	70.1	65.3	70.2	42.1	8.6	1,323
20-24	73.1	62.2	74.4	44.4	8.3	886
25-29	78.0	63.6	75.5	46.5	5.4	624
30-34	78.5	57.3	71.4	42.9	9.1	431
35-39	79.3	66.6 E 4 1	77.0	50.0 20 F	6.0	367
40-44 45-49	73.2	54.1 60.1	75.9	59.5 45.3	9.0	269
15 15	, 5.2	00.1	, 5.5	15.5	5.5	200
Employment (past 12 months)						
Not employed	72.5	65.6	72.1	45.0	8.2	1,833
Employed for cash	//.0	60./	/4.4	44.3	/.5	2,114
Employed not for cash	62.9	56.3	69./	33.6	11.1	201
Marital status						
Never married	72.5	63.7	72.5	43.5	8.4	2,734
Married or living together	78.1	61.2	74.6	45.5	7.0	1,219
Divorced/separated/widowed	77.4	56.8	73.2	42.7	7.5	203
Number of living children	71.6	64.0	71 7	42.2	0 5	2 500
0	77.8	64.0 61.4	76.2	43.2	0.D 7 3	2,500
3-4	79.7	593	75.2	40.3	7.3 5.4	424
5+	78.7	60.3	73.2	44.2	8.5	397
Residence	77.0	(2.2.2	74.0	45.0	7 1	1 1 0 1
Orban Rural	73.3	62.4	74.0 72.5	45.9	7.1 8.3	2 975
Kulai	73.5	02.4	72.5	-3.5	0.5	2,575
Region						
Hhohho	74.0	63.8	74.1	44.3	7.5	1,099
Manzini	76.1	63.5	73.2	45.7	7.2	1,349
Shiselweni	72.0	64.6 57.0	/2.8	44.0	9.0	843
Euboliibo	/4.4	37.9	/ 2.1	41.5	0.0	005
Education						
No education	73.1	58.2	72.6	41.0	9.6	316
Lower primary	66.7	54.6	65.1	33.9	13.3	470
Higher primary	71.4	57.5	67.8	37.7	9.6	980
Secondary High school	/3.2	66.8	70.8	46.0	6.9	1,191
Tertiary	80.4	68.5	79.0 78.1	52.5 51.7	4.0 6.0	052 347
Tertury	00.1	00.5	70.1	51.7	0.0	517
Wealth quintile						
Lowest	67.6	59.5	68.8	37.6	9.9	601
Second	75.2	63.8	74.5	45.4	8.0	665
Midale	/5.2	59.6	/2.8 72.9	43.8 12 2	8.9 7 7	856 052
Highest	77.5	66.6	75.2	47.8	6.3	555 1.081
	,,	00.0	, 3.2		0.0	1,001
Total 15-49	74.4	62.6	73.1	44.1	8.0	4,156
Note: Total includes eight men w	vith information	missing on emp	loyment.			

There are small differences by background characteristics in the proportion of men who agree with all of the reasons for a wife to refuse sex. However, unemployed men and men who are employed but receive no cash payment, better educated men, and men who are in the wealthiest households are more likely to agree with all of the reasons for refusing sex.

16.5 WOMEN'S EMPOWERMENT INDICATORS

The three sets of empowerment indicators, namely women's participation in making household decisions, their attitude toward wife beating, and their attitude toward a wife's right to refuse sexual intercourse with her husband/partner, can be summarized into three separate indices. The first index shows the number of decisions (see Table 16.4 for the list of decisions) in which women participate alone or jointly with their husband/partner. This index ranges in value from 0 to 4 and is positively related to women's empowerment. It reflects the degree of decisionmaking control that women are able to exercise in areas that affect their own lives and environments.

The second index, which ranges in value from 0 to 6, is the total number of reasons (see Table 16.6.1 for the list of reasons) for which the respondent feels that a husband is justified in beating his wife. A lower score on this indicator is interpreted as reflecting a greater sense of entitlement and self-esteem and a higher status of women.

The final index, which ranges in value from 0 to 5, is the number of circumstances (see Table 16.7.1 for the list of the circumstances) in which the respondent feels that a woman is justified in refusing sexual intercourse with her husband or partner. This indicator reflects perceptions of sexual roles and women's rights over their bodies and relates positively to women's sense of self and empowerment.

Table 16.8 shows how these three indicators relate to each other. In general, the expectation is that women who participate in making household decisions are also more likely to have egalitarian gender beliefs. Greater decisionmaking participation is normally associated with disapproval of wife beating and vice versa. Data in Table 16.8 show that women who participate in 3-4 decisions are more likely than other women to disagree with wife beating and to agree with the woman's right to refuse sex with her husband.

The second panel in Table 16.8 shows that participation in making household decisions declines as the number of justifications for wife beating increases. In general, disapproval of wife beating is associated with agreement of a woman's right to refuse sex with her husband.

Decisionmaking participation is also usually associated with agreement that there is no justification for wife beating and that a wife can refuse sex with her husband. It is surprising, however, that almost the same percentage of women participate in all four decisions (40 percent) as agree that a woman may refuse to have sex with her husband for one or more reasons (37 percent and lower). The majority of women are against wife beating regardless of their stand on a woman's right to refuse sex with her husband.

Table 16.8 Indicators of women's empowerment

Percentage of women age 15-49 who participate in all decisionmaking, percentage who disagree with all reasons for justifying wife beating, and percentage who agree with all reasons for refusing sexual intercourse with husband, by value on each of the indicators of women's empowerment, Swaziland 2006-07

	Currently wom	married 1en		Percentage	
Empowerment indicator	Percentage who participate in all decision- making	Number of women	Percentage who disagree with all the reasons justifying wife beating	who agree with all the reasons for refusing sexual intercourse with husband	Number of women
Number of decisions in which women					
participate ¹					
0	0.0	219	61.7	33.8	219
1-2	0.0	612	59.0	30.6	612
3-4	59.7	1,231	70.2	37.1	1,231
Number of reasons for which wife beating is justified ²					
0	40.0	1,361	100.0	38.4	3 <i>,</i> 095
1-2	30.2	527	0.0	35.9	1,361
3-4	17.9	133	0.0	37.4	437
5-6	18.4	41	0.0	32.2	94
Number of reasons given for refusing to have sexual intercourse with husband ³					
0	37.0	108	61.2	0.0	264
1-2	26.5	443	58.8	0.0	968
3-4	36.4	792	62.4	0.0	1,885
5	40.2	718	63.5	100.0	1,870

² See Table 16.6.1 for the list of reasons ³ See Table 16.7.1 for the list of reasons

16.6 CURRENT USE OF CONTRACEPTION BY WOMEN'S STATUS

Table 16.9 shows the distribution of currently married women by contraceptive method use, according to the three empowerment indicators. The data indicate that there is a positive relationship between women's status and use of contraception. Contraceptive use is highest among women who participate in 3-4 household decisions (53 percent), who agree with none of the reasons justifying wife beating (54 percent), and who believe that a wife can refuse sexual intercourse with her partner for all of the five specified reasons (55 percent).

Table 16.9 Current use of contraception by women's status

Percent distribution of currently married women age 15-49 by current contraceptive method, according to selected indicators of women's status, Swaziland 2006-07

				Moderr	n methods					
					Temporary	/				
		Any	Female	Male	modern		Any	Not		
Empowerment	Any	modern	sterili-	sterili-	female	Male	traditional	currently		Number of
indicator	method	method	zation	zation	methods ¹	condom	method	using	Total	women
Number of decisions in										
which women participate ²										
0	51.0	47.5	3.1	0.0	29.4	15.0	3.5	49.0	100.0	219
1-2	46.2	42.7	4.8	0.2	27.9	9.8	3.5	53.8	100.0	612
3-4	52.8	50.2	6.7	0.2	30.5	12.8	2.6	47.2	100.0	1,231
Number of reasons for which										
wife beating is justified ³										
0	53.7	50.4	6.6	0.3	30.2	13.3	3.3	46.3	100.0	1,361
1-2	45.6	43.5	4.9	0.0	28.1	10.5	2.1	54.4	100.0	527
3-4	43.1	40.2	2.9	0.0	30.0	7.3	2.9	56.9	100.0	133
5-6	(40.0)	(37.4)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(28.6)	(8.8)	(2.5)	(60.0)	100.0	41
Number of reasons given for										
refusing to have sexual										
intercourse with husband ⁴										
0	49.0	44.0	6.7	0.0	28.2	9.1	5.0	51.0	100.0	108
1-2	50.6	46.8	4.4	0.0	31.0	11.5	3.8	49.4	100.0	443
3-4	47.1	45.4	6.4	0.3	27.4	11.3	1.7	52.9	100.0	792
5	54.8	51.4	5.8	0.2	31.4	14.0	3.4	45.2	100.0	718
Total	50.6	47.7	5.8	0.2	29.6	12.2	2.9	49.4	100.0	2,062

Note: If more than one method is used, only the most effective method is considered in this tabulation. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Pill, IUD, injectables, implants, female condom, diaphragm, foam/jelly, and lactational amenorrhoea method

² The decisions are: own health care, making major household purchases, making purchases for daily household needs, and visits to her family or relatives.

³ The reasons are: burns the food, argues with him, goes out with telling him, neglects the children, and refuses to have sexual intercourse with him.

⁴ The reasons are: knows husband has sexually transmitted disease, knows husband has intercourse with other women, and is tired or not in the mood.

16.7 IDEAL FAMILY SIZE AND UNMET NEED BY WOMEN'S STATUS

Table 16.10 shows how women's ideal family size and their unmet need for family planning vary by women's status indicators. The data indicate that unmet need for family planning is lowest for women who participate in most household decisionmaking, although there is no clear pattern in the relationship between the number of decisions a woman participates in and her unmet need for family planning. Table 16.10 shows that unmet need for family planning increases with the number of reasons for wife beating a woman agrees with. Interestingly, the data indicate that unmet need for family planning is lowest among women who agreed with none of the specified reasons that a wife can refuse sex with her husband.

Table 16.10 Women's empowerment and ideal number of children and unmet need for family planning

Mean ideal number of children for women age 15-49 and the percentage of currently married women age 15-49 with an unmet need for family planning, by indicators of women's empowerment, Swaziland 2006-07

Empowerment	Mean ideal	Number of	Percer marrie ur far	- Number of		
indicator	children ¹	women	spacing	limiting	Total	women
Number of decisions in which women participate ³						
0	2.7	214	6.3	19.0	25.3	219
1-2	2.9	606	10.6	19.3	29.9	612
3-4	2.7	1,221	6.0	14.9	20.9	1,231
Number of reasons for which wife beating is justified ⁴						
0	2.5	3,068	6.1	15.7	21.8	1,361
1-2	2.6	1,354	9.2	18.8	28.0	527
3-4	2.5	436	12.7	18.1	30.9	133
5-6	2.9	94	(8.0)	(16.4)	(24.4)	41
Number of reasons given for refusing to have sexual intercourse with husband ⁵						
0	2.6	264	5.4	14.0	19.4	108
1-2	2.7	956	8.9	17.4	26.3	443
3-4	2.5	1,870	8.1	17.1	25.2	792
5	2.4	1,861	5.9	16.1	22.0	718
Total	2.5	4,951	7.4	16.7	24.0	2,062

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Mean excludes respondents who gave non-numeric responses.

² See Table 7.3.1 for the definition of unmet need for family planning

³ Restricted to currently married women. The decisions are: own health care, making major household purchases, making purchases for daily household needs, and visits to her family or relatives.

⁴ The reasons are: burns the food, argues with him, goes out with telling him, neglects the children, and refuses to have sexual intercourse with him.

⁵ The reasons are: knows husband has sexually transmitted disease, knows husband has intercourse with other women, and is tired or not in the mood.

16.8 WOMEN'S STATUS AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH CARE

Table 16.11 indicates that there are no differences in access to antenatal care by women's empowerment status. However, women who participate in 3-4 decisions are more likely to receive assistance from health personnel during delivery than women who have no say in decisionmaking (77 percent and 67 percent, respectively). Similarly, women who agreed with all five reasons for refusing intercourse with a husband are the least likely to seek delivery assistance from health personnel than women who agreed with none of the specified reasons (78 percent and 73 percent, respectively).

Although the proportion of women who received postnatal care within the first two days after delivery is generally low, it is highest among women who participate in 3-4 decisions (27 percent), and among women who agreed with all five reasons for refusing intercourse with a husband (27 percent).

Table 16.11 Reproductive health care by women's empowerment

Percentage of women age 15-49 with a live birth in the five years preceding the survey who received antenatal care, delivery assistance, and postnatal care from health personnel for the most recent birth, by indicators of women's empowerment, Swaziland 2006-07

Empowerment indicator	Received antenatal care from health personnel ¹	Received delivery assistance from health personnel	Received postnatal care from health personnel within the first two days of delivery	Number of women with a child born in the past five years
Number of decisions in which women participate ²				
	94 5	67.4	21.6	137
1-2	97.8	73.8	20.6	387
3-4	97.7	76.6	26.7	661
Number of reasons for which wife beating is justified ³				
0	97.4	78.0	23.6	1,309
1-2	96.0	73.4	19.0	611
3-4	97.7	66.7	19.8	169
5-6	(100.0)	72.9	25.2	45
Number of reasons given for refusing to have sexual intercourse with husband ⁴				
0	97.5	66.5	24.6	112
1-2	97.1	67.7	16.7	434
3-4	97.0	77.1	19.7	812
5	97.0	79.9	27.1	776
Total	97.1	75.6	22.1	2,134

Note: "Health personnel" includes doctor, nurse, midwife, or nursing assistant. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Includes deliveries in a health facility and not in a health facility

² Restricted to currently married women. The decisions are: own health care, making major household purchases, making purchases for daily household needs, and visits to her family or relatives.

³ The reasons are: burns the food, argues with him, goes out with telling him, neglects the children, and refuses to have sexual intercourse with him.

⁴ The reasons are: knows husband has sexually transmitted disease, knows husband has intercourse with other women, and is tired or not in the mood.

16.9 EARLY CHILDHOOD MORTALITY RATES BY WOMEN'S STATUS

Empowerment is a woman's ability to access information, make decisions, and act effectively in their own interest or in the interest of those who depend on them. It follows that if women, who are primary caretakers of children, are empowered, the health and survival of their children will be enhanced.

Table 16.12 shows information on the impact of women's empowerment on infant and child mortality. Surprisingly, the data show that women who have no final say in any decision in the household have a lower infant mortality rate than those who have a say in five decisions (28 deaths per 1,000 live births compared with 38 deaths per 1,000 live births). Also worth noting is that infant mortality rates are highest for children whose mothers participate in 1-2 and 3-4 of the specified decisions (99 and 74 deaths per 1,000 live births, respectively).

In general, there is no clear pattern in the relationship between the indicators of women's empowerment and infant and under-five mortality. However, child mortality (deaths among children age 1-4 years) is highest among women who have the lowest status, as measured by each of the three empowerment indicators. Deaths among children whose mothers participate in household decisionmaking decreases steadily as mothers have greater decisionmaking authority. For example, the level of child mortality among children whose mothers participate in 1-2 decisions is 33 deaths per 1,000,¹ declining to 26 deaths per 1,000 for children whose mothers participate in 3-4 decisions and further declining to 21 deaths per 1,000 for children whose mothers participate in all five specified household decisions. A similar pattern is noted for child mortality by mother's right to refuse to have sex with her husband. Children whose mothers agreed to none of the specified reasons for a wife refusing sex with her husband have a mortality rate of 44 deaths per 1,000 live births, compared with 25 deaths per 1,000 live births for children whose mothers agreed to all five reasons for a wife to refuse having sex with her husband.

Table 16.12 Early childhood mortality rates by women's status

	Infant mortality	Child mortality	Under-five mortality
Empowerment indicator	(₁ q ₀)	(₄ q ₁)	$(_{5}q_{0})$
Number of decisions in which women participate ¹			
0	28	51	78
1-2	99	33	128
3-4	74	26	98
5	38	21	57
Number of reasons given for refusing to have sexual intercourse with husband ²			
0	60	44	101
1-2	80	37	114
3	47	23	69
4+	76	25	100
Number of reasons for which wife beating is justified ³			
0	65	27	90
1-2	93	39	129
3-4	105	35	137
5	58	50	106

¹ Restricted to currently married women. The decisions are: own health care, making major household purchases, making purchases for daily household needs, and visits to her family or relatives.

 2 The reasons are: burns the food, argues with him, goes out with telling him, neglects the children, and refuses to have sexual intercourse with him.

³ The reasons are: knows husband has sexually transmitted disease, knows husband has intercourse with other women, and is tired or not in the mood.

¹ For child mortality, the rate is based on children alive at age 1 year, not children born alive.

ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Amos Zwane

The HIV/AIDS epidemic has led to an increasing number of orphaned and vulnerable children in Swaziland. Traditional ways of caring for orphaned and vulnerable children are being eroded by the impact of HIV/AIDS. This poses challenges to communities, to find solutions to the problem of the everincreasing number of children and families left vulnerable by HIV/AIDS. For this reason, the 2006-07 SDHS sought to determine the number of OVCs and to assess the burden they pose for households in Swaziland.

In this chapter, an orphan is defined as a child below the age of 18 years with one or both parents dead. A vulnerable child is a child below the age of 18 years whose parent is very sick, or who lives in a household where an adult is very sick, or who lives in a household in which a very sick adult died in the 12 months preceding the survey. An adult is considered very sick if he/she is too ill to work or undertake other normal activities for a period of at least three months.

In reviewing the 2006-07 SDHS results, it is important to remember that the survey obtained information only for OVCs living in households. Children who are living in institutions or other non-household settings are not included in the OVC results. Thus, the SDHS results should be considered as a minimum estimate of the problem of OVCs in Swaziland.

17.1 CHILDREN'S LIVING ARRANGEMENTS AND ORPHANHOOD

The household questionnaire collected information on living arrangements and parental survival status of children under age 18 in the households included in the SDHS sample. These data are presented by background characteristics in Table 17.1 for de jure children under age 18, i.e., for children under age 18 who were usual residents in the households selected for the SDHS sample. The table also includes information on the living arrangements and parental survival status for all de jure children under age 15.

The results in the table indicate that, in Swaziland, only 22 percent of children under age 18 are living in a household with both of their parents while about one-third are not living with either parent. Most children who are living with a single parent live with their mother (38 percent) rather than their father (6 percent). Orphanhood is common. Just under one in four children has lost one of their parents. Four percent of children under age 18 are double orphans, that is, both their parents are dead. Children are twice as likely to have lost their father as their mother (18 percent and 9 percent, respectively).

Children's living arrangements vary with several of the background characteristics in Table 17.1. For example, the percentage of children not living with either parent increases with age. On the other hand, Table 17.1 also shows that the sex is not a factor in children's living arrangements, with boys and girls equally likely to be living apart from their parents. Children from rural areas are more likely not to be living with parents than their counterparts in urban areas (36 percent and 24 percent, respectively). The percentage of children not living with either parent ranges from a high of 40 percent in the Shiselweni region to 31 percent in the Hhohho region.

Table 17.1 Children's living arrangements and orphanhood

Percent distribution of de jure children under age 18 by living arrangements and survival status of parents, and the percentage of children not living with a biological parent, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Living	g with	Living	g with		Not livi	ng with ei	ther par	ent		Percent- age not	
	Living with	moth not f	er but ather	father mo	but not ther		Only	Only	р., I	Information missing on		living with a	
Background characteristic	both parents	Father alive	Father dead	Mother alive	Mother dead	Both alive	tather alive	mother alive	Both dead	father or mother	Total	parent	of children
Age													
0-4	25.3	46.8	2.8	2.6	0.3	17.1	1.5	2.0	0.4	1.3	100.0	22.3	3,219
<2	25.7	60.2	2.1	0.7	0.0	8.9	0.8	0.4	0.1	1.2	100.0	11.3	1,265
2-4	25.1	38.1	3.2	3.7	0.4	22.4	1.9	3.1	0.6	1.3	100.0	29.4	1,953
5-9	22.1	28.6	7.9	4.7	1.2	21.0	3.4	6.0	2.9	2.2	100.0	35.6	3,149
10-14	20.1	22.3	10.5	5.1	2.4	18.3	4.5	7.2	7.5	2.1	100.0	39.7	3,369
15-17	19.1	18.0	12.4	4.0	2.6	19.0	4.5	8.2	8.3	3.8	100.0	43.8	1,752
Sex													
Male	21.9	30.0	8.0	4.5	1.6	18.3	3.4	5.7	4.3	2.4	100.0	34.1	5,746
Female	22.1	30.5	7.8	3.8	1.3	19.3	3.3	5.5	4.5	1.9	100.0	34.5	5,742
Residence													
Urban	31.4	29.3	7.6	5.9	1.6	13.1	2.3	3.7	3.7	1.6	100.0	24.3	1,787
Rural	20.2	30.4	8.0	3.8	1.5	19.9	3.6	5.9	4.5	2.2	100.0	36.1	9,701
Region													
Hhohho	26.5	28.7	7.2	4.8	1.6	17.9	3.0	4.7	3.9	1.7	100.0	31.2	2,867
Manzini	20.6	31.9	8.3	4.3	1.8	18.2	3.4	5.9	3.9	1.8	100.0	33.2	3,419
Shiselweni	17.6	31.4	7.2	2.9	1.0	21.5	4.0	6.1	5.9	2.3	100.0	39.9	2,861
Lubombo	23.8	28.2	9.1	4.6	1.4	17.5	3.1	5.6	3.8	2.9	100.0	32.9	2,342
Wealth quintile													
Lowest	23.1	25.8	9.3	3.6	1.6	19.5	3.9	5.4	4.9	2.9	100.0	36.6	2,593
Second	19.1	30.6	8.9	3.3	1.4	19.7	3.3	6.5	4.8	2.4	100.0	36.7	2,555
Middle	19.1	34.1	8.8	3.4	1.2	18.2	3.6	5.8	3.9	1.9	100.0	33.4	2,399
Fourth	17.5	35.8	5.8	4.6	1.3	20.4	3.0	5.6	4.4	1.7	100.0	35.1	2,156
Highest	33.7	24.3	5.8	6.5	2.1	15.3	2.8	4.4	3.8	1.5	100.0	27.8	1,785
Total <15	22.5	32.4	7.1	4.1	1.3	18.8	3.2	5.1	3.7	1.8	100.0	32.6	9,736
Total <18	22.0	30.2	7.9	4.1	1.5	18.8	3.4	5.6	4.4	2.1	100.0	34.3	11,488

17.2 ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Orphanhood clearly represents a serious social, emotional, and economic burden for children. Children whose parents are ill for an extended period or who live in households where other adults suffer from chronic illness also can experience significant hardships, as serious illness may limit the resources available to feed, clothe, and educate a family's youngest members. Table 17.2 considers the prevalence of orphans and of children who are vulnerable because of the chronic illness of a parent or the chronic illness or recent death of a chronically ill adult in their household. The table presents these results for de jure children under age 18 by background characteristics and for the total population of de jure children under age 15.

Overall, 23 percent of children under age 18 are orphans, and 12 percent are considered to be vulnerable children. Looking more closely at the factors contributing to a child's vulnerability, four percent of children under age 18 had a parent who was very sick, five percent lived in a household in which at least one adult (a parent or other household member) had been very sick, and six percent lived in a household where at least one adult had been very sick and died during the 12 months preceding the survey.

Table 17.2 Orphans and vulnerable children (OVC)

Percentage of de jure children under age 18 years who are orphans or made vulnerable due to illness among adult household members, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Pe	ercentage of childre	en who:	Vulnerable children		
Background _characteristic	Orphan children Percentage of children with one or both parents dead	Have a very sick parent for at least 3 months in the past 12 months ¹	Live in a household where at least 1 adult has been very sick for at least 3 months in the past 12 months ²	Live in a household where at least 1 adult died in the past 12 months and had been very sick for at least 3 months before he/she died ²	Percentage of children who have a very sick parent OR live in a household where an adult has been very sick OR died in the past 12 months (vulnerable children)	OVC children Percentage of children who are orphans and/or vulnerable	Number of children
Δσο	•		•				
0-4	7.1	3.1	5.4	5.9	12.2	17.9	3.219
<2	3.3	2.6	5.3	6.2	12.0	14.7	1.265
2-4	9.6	3.4	5.5	5.6	12.4	19.9	1,953
5-9	22.0	4.0	5.4	5.6	11.9	29.7	3,149
10-14	32.7	3.6	4.6	5.8	11.4	39.1	3,369
15-17	37.0	3.4	5.1	4.8	10.6	42.6	1,752
Sex							
Male	23.6	3.5	5.0	5.7	11.7	31.3	5,746
Female	22.9	3.6	5.3	5.5	11.6	31.0	5,742
Residence							
Urban	19.1	2.0	3.1	2.1	5.7	22.9	1,787
Rural	24.0	3.8	5.5	6.2	12.8	32.6	9,701
Region							
Hhohho	20.6	2.7	4.1	4.5	9.4	27.2	2,867
Manzini	23.7	2.9	4.2	7.6	12.3	31.8	3,419
Shiselweni	25.0	2.6	5.0	5.9	11.0	32.3	2,861
Lubombo	23.6	6.7	8.0	3.7	14.2	33.6	2,342
Wealth guintile							
Lowest	25.6	6.5	8.1	7.6	16.9	36.8	2,593
Second	25.5	3.2	5.3	6.9	13.3	34.5	2,555
Middle	24.0	2.7	4.6	5.2	10.8	31.8	2,399
Fourth	20.4	2.9	4.4	4.9	10.0	27.2	2,156
Highest	19.0	1.8	2.3	2.2	4.9	21.8	1,785
Total <15	20.8	3.6	5.1	5.7	11.8	29.1	9,736
Total <18	23.3	3.5	5.1	5.6	11.7	31.1	11,488

Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household. Very sick means person was too sick to work or do normal activities.

¹ Whether or not lives in same household as child

² Person age 18-59 years

Table 17.2 also shows that, taken together, three in ten children under age 18 in Swaziland are orphaned or vulnerable. The percentage of children who were orphaned or vulnerable increases rapidly with age, from 18 percent of children under 5 years to 43 percent of children in the age group 15-17 years. The table further illustrates that rural children are more likely to be orphaned and/or vulnerable than urban children (33 percent and 23 percent, respectively). The Lubombo region has the highest percentage of children orphaned or vulnerable (34 percent) while the Hhohho region has the lowest percentage (27 percent). The percentage of children who are orphaned or vulnerable decreases as the wealth quintile increases, from 37 percent among children in the lowest wealth quintile to 22 percent among those in the highest quintile.

17.3 SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC SITUATION OF ORPHANED AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Information collected in the SDHS can be used to look at several important aspects of the social and economic situation of orphaned and vulnerable children, including information on school attendance, possession of items considered basic for meeting a child's material needs, residence with siblings, and nutritional status. These results provide a means for assessing the impact on children's welfare of the chronic illness and/or death of parents or other adult household members. The results also can assist in the monitoring and evaluating of OVC programmes (UNICEF, 2005).

17.3.1 School Attendance by Survivorship of Parents and OVC Status

Orphaned and vulnerable children may be at a greater risk of dropping out of school; this can be caused by lack of money to pay school fees or the need to stay at home to care for the sick parent or sibling. Table 17.3 considers school attendance rates among de jure children age 10-14 years by background characteristics. The first several columns of the table contrast the situation among the two groups of children at the extremes of the orphanhood continuum—children whose parents are both dead and children whose parents are both alive and the child is living with at least one parent. The final columns compare school attendance for the entire population of OVCs to that of children who are neither orphaned nor vulnerable.

Table 17.3 School attendance by survivorship of parents and by OVC status

For de jure children 10-14 years of age, the percentage attending school by parental survival and by OVC status and the ratios of the percentages attending, by parental survival and OVC status, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percenta	ge attendin of j	g school by sur parents	rvivorship						
	Both		Both parents alive and living with at			Per	rcentage at by OV	tending schoo C status	ol	
Background	parents		least one			OV	С	Non (OVC	
characteristic	dead	Number	parent	Number	Ratio ¹	Percentage	Number	Percentage	Number	Ratio ²
Sex										
Male	94.7	122	91.6	788	1.03	92.6	615	90.5	1,027	1.02
Female	85.6	131	93.7	812	0.91	91.8	703	92.8	1,024	0.99
Residence										
Urban	(87.8)	32	95.8	257	0.92	91.5	156	93.0	318	0.98
Rural	90.3	221	92.1	1,343	0.98	92.2	1,162	91.3	1,733	1.01
Region										
Hhohho	90.5	64	93.6	413	0.97	93.6	290	93.3	532	1.00
Manzini	87.3	60	96.8	481	0.90	93.9	395	93.7	610	1.00
Shiselweni	87.8	96	85.2	374	1.03	89.6	354	85.0	507	1.05
Lubombo	(100.0)	33	93.9	332	1.07	91.4	279	94.4	402	0.97
Wealth guintile										
Lowest	91.2	66	85.6	322	1.07	92.0	343	87.2	410	1.06
Second	85.9	73	91.4	338	0.94	88.8	347	91.3	432	0.97
Middle	(95.7)	48	94.5	347	1.01	95.6	284	91.4	438	1.05
Fourth	(89.2)	31	95.8	311	0.93	92.5	197	93.2	425	0.99
Highest	(89.0)	36	96.6	282	0.92	93.5	147	95.5	346	0.98
Total	90.0	253	92.7	1,600	0.97	92.2	1,318	91.6	2,051	1.01

Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. ¹ Ratio of the percentage with both parents dead to the percentage with both parents alive and living with a parent

² Ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC

There is only a minor difference in school attendance according to the survivorship status of parents; 90 percent of children whose mother and father are dead are currently attending school compared with 93 of children whose parents are both alive and the child is living with at least one parent. The rate of school attendance among children who are orphaned and vulnerable is virtually identical to the rate of attendance among non-OVC children.

17.3.2 Basic Material Needs

The 2006-07 SDHS sought information on the availability of basic minimum material needs of the children. Children were considered to have their basic material needs met if they had a pair of shoes, two set of clothes, and at least one meal per day. The survey results in Table 17.4 show that these three basic material needs were met for 71 percent of all children age 5-17 years. The table also indicates that children were least likely to have a pair of shoes (73 percent) and most likely to have at least a meal a day (95 percent).

Table 17.4 Possession of basic material needs by orphans and vulnerable children

Among de jure children age 5-17 years, the percentage possessing three minimum basic material needs,¹ the percentage of OVC and non-OVC who possess all three basic material needs, and the ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Among chi perce	ldren 5-17 entage poss	years of ag essing:	ge					
		Two sets	At least	All three	Number	Percentag	ic needs,			
Background		of	one meal	basic	of	OVC		Non OVC		
characteristic	Shoes	clothes	per day	needs	children	Percentage	Number	Percentage	Number	Ratio ²
Age										
5-9	71.2	84.6	94.1	69.2	3,149	56.2	936	74.6	2,213	0.75
10-14	72.1	86.6	96.8	69.7	3,369	59.7	1,318	76.2	2,051	0.78
15-17	79.0	88.2	94.0	77.0	1,752	69.7	747	82.4	1,006	0.85
Sex										
Male	71.6	84.6	95.0	69.0	4,146	59.7	1,490	74.1	2,656	0.81
Female	74.8	87.8	95.4	73.1	4,124	62.4	1,511	79.3	2,613	0.79
Residence										
Urban	87.1	91.7	95.0	86.2	1,233	76.5	351	90.1	881	0.85
Rural	70.8	85.2	95.2	68.4	7,037	59.0	2,649	74.0	4,388	0.80
Region										
Hhohho	76.0	87.1	94.5	74.8	2,031	63.7	649	80.1	1,382	0.79
Manzini	80.2	89.6	95.8	78.1	2,453	71.1	905	82.2	1,547	0.86
Shiselweni	67.1	83.4	96.0	63.9	2,083	53.0	777	70.3	1,306	0.75
Lubombo	67.4	83.6	94.3	65.2	1,703	54.4	669	72.1	1,034	0.75
Wealth quintile										
Lowest	49.7	74.8	93.6	46.3	1,848	38.6	781	51.9	1,067	0.74
Second	66.5	84.1	96.1	64.0	1,800	51.8	724	72.1	1,076	0.72
Middle	78.9	88.1	94.2	76.4	1,772	69.8	655	80.3	1,117	0.87
Fourth	86.1	92.5	96.7	84.6	1,555	79.9	486	86.7	1,069	0.92
Highest	93.0	95.1	95.9	92.7	1,294	87.8	355	94.6	939	0.93
Total	73.2	86.2	95.2	71.0	8,270	61.1	3,001	76.7	5,269	0.80

Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household.

¹ Shoes, two sets of clothing, and at least one meal per day

² Ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC

Boys are somewhat less likely than girls to have all three basic material needs met (69 percent and 73 percent, respectively). Children in rural areas are less likely to have all basic needs met compared with children in urban areas (68 percent and 86 percent, respectively). Children in the highest wealth quintile were twice as likely as children in the lowest quintile to have all basic needs met.

The table further shows that OVCs are less likely to have basic material needs met than non-OVCs (61 percent and 77 percent, respectively). Examining the ratio of the percentage of children with basic needs met shows that the inequalities between OVCs and non-OVCs are greater among children age 5-9 years and children age 10-14 years than among children age 15-17 years. The gap between OVCs and non-OVCs is also less for urban children and children living in Manzini than for other children. The gap between OVCs and non-OVCs with respect to the possession of basic material needs decreases with wealth.

17.4 ORPHANS NOT LIVING WITH SIBLINGS

Sibling interrelationships may be very close in situations where a parent dies, and maintaining these relationships can be helpful for children dealing with the loss of a parent. Table 17.5 presents information on the proportion of orphans under the age of 18 with one or more siblings also under age 18 who are not living with all of these other siblings.

Around three in ten orphans under the age of 18 are not living with all their siblings under the age of 18 years. The likelihood that an orphan is not living with all of his or her siblings increases with age. Maternal orphans are more likely to live apart from their siblings than paternal orphans or double orphans, i.e., children whose mother and father are both deceased. Urban orphans are somewhat more likely to be living apart from their siblings than rural orphans. The Shiselweni Table 17.5 Orphan not living with siblings

Among orphans under age 18 years who have one or more siblings under age 18 years, the percentage who do not live with all their siblings under age 18, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Percentage of orphans not living with all siblings	Number of orphans with one or more siblings					
Age 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-17	21.2 20.8 30.7 36.7	127 450 755 430					
Sex Male Female	29.2 28.7	870 891					
Orphanhood status Maternal orphan Paternal orphan Both parents dead	35.4 23.9 39.0	370 1,087 304					
Residence Urban Rural	34.3 28.3	191 1,570					
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	33.0 30.0 21.4 33.6	362 534 497 368					
Wealth quintile Lowest Second Middle Fourth Highest	24.7 25.2 25.4 35.2 45.9	451 443 399 275 193					
Total	29.0	1,761					
Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household.							

region has the lowest percentage of orphans less than 18 years of age living away from other siblings (21 percent). Orphans in the highest wealth quintile are more than twice as likely as those in the lowest quintile to live apart from their siblings.

17.5 UNDERWEIGHT ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

Table 17.6 shows the nutritional status of children under five years of age according to orphanhood status. The results indicate that OVCs are disadvantaged as compared to non-OVCs in terms of nutrition status. Overall, 11 percent of OVCs were underweight as compared with seven percent of non-OVCs. An examination of the ratios of the percentage underweight among OVCs compared with non-OVCs indicates that, overall, the small numbers of urban OVCs and OVCs in the highest wealth quintile are the most disadvantaged compared to non-OVCs. The likelihood that OVCs are disadvantaged increases with age. OVCs are more likely to be disadvantaged compared with non-OVCs if they are girls than if they are boys and if they live in Shiselweni and Lubombo than if they live in Manzini and Hhohho.
Table 17.6 Underweight orphans and vulnerable children

Percentage of de jure children under age five years who slept in the household the night before who are underweight, total and by OVC status, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

		Underweight by OVC status					
	of children under 5	Number	0\	/C	Non	OVC	
Background characteristic	who are underweight ¹	of children	Percentage underweight ¹	Number of OVC	Percentage underweight	Number of non OVC	Ratio ²
Age							
< 1 year	3.8	514	3.3	67	3.9	446	0.84
1-2 years	10.2	1,135	14.8	186	9.3	948	1.59
3-4 years	6.7	1,210	9.9	255	5.9	955	1.69
Sex							
Male	7.3	1,421	8.8	274	7.0	1,147	1.25
Female	7.8	1,437	13.2	235	6.8	1,203	1.94
Residence							
Urban	4.5	466	17.0	50	3.0	416	5.67
Rural	8.2	2,393	10.1	458	7.7	1,934	1.31
Region							
Hhohho	8.9	736	11.9	118	8.3	617	1.44
Manzini	7.6	851	10.1	156	7.1	695	1.43
Shiselweni	7.7	727	12.0	135	6.7	591	1.78
Lubombo	5.6	545	9.0	99	4.8	447	1.86
Wealth guintile							
Lowest	11.2	675	14.9	163	10.0	512	1.49
Second	7.8	679	10.8	125	7.2	554	1.50
Middle	6.7	560	7.6	99	6.5	461	1.16
Fourth	6.6	527	7.6	92	6.3	435	1.20
Highest	3.8	417	(9.2)	29	3.4	388	2.73
Total	7.6	2,859	10.8	509	6.9	2,350	1.57

Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household and who also slept in the household the night preceding the interview. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Two or more standard deviations below mean on the WHO Child Growth Standards for weight for age

² Ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC

17.6 EARLY SEXUAL INTERCOURSE

Orphaned or vulnerable children may be exposed to greater risks of sexual abuse and exploitation than non-OVCs. In particular, girls may be forced into the sex trade in exchange for shelter and protection, due to lack of adult or family guidance to help them protect themselves.

Table 17.7 shows the percentage of children who have had sexual intercourse before the age of 15 according to OVC status. The table shows that early sexual intercourse is more frequent among girls if they are OVCs than if they are non-OVCs. Among boys, however, the pattern is reversed. The ratio of the percentage of OVCs to the percentage of non-OVCs is 1.39 for girls compared with 0.77 for boys.

Table 17.7 Sexual intercourse before age 15 by OVC status

Percentage of de jure children age 15-17 who had sexual intercourse before exact age 15 by OVC status, and ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC by OVC status, according to sex, Swaziland 2006-07

	Wome	Men			
	Percentage who had sexual intercourse		Percentage who had sexual intercourse		
OVC status	before exact age 15	Number of women	before exact age 15	Number of men	
OVC Non-OVC	9.0 6.4	323 440	4.2 5.4	352 504	
Total	7.5	763	4.9	856	
Ratio ¹	1.39	na	0.77	na	

Note: Table is based only on children who usually live in the household and who also slept in the household the night preceding the interview. na = Non applicable

¹ Ratio of the percentage for OVC to the percentage for non OVC

17.7 SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession planning is important to make sure that children will continue to get suitable care and support if the primary caregiver dies. Identifying someone who will be responsible for a child if the primary caregiver dies or falls ill is one way to ensure a better future for children.

Table 17.8 shows the percentage of women and men age 15-49 who are primary caregivers of children under 18 years. The table shows that, in Swaziland, 53 percent of women and men report that they are primary caregivers. Among the caregivers, 27 percent indicate that they have made succession plans. Male caregivers are more likely to report succession planning than female caregivers. Caregivers in urban areas are more likely to have made succession plans than those in rural areas. Caregivers in the Shiselweni region are the least likely and caregivers in the Manzini region are the most likely to undertake succession planning. The table further shows that increased education and wealth positively influence succession planning.

Table 17.8 Succession planning

Percentage of de facto women and men age 15-49 who are the primary caregivers of children under age 18 years, and among the primary caregivers, the percentage who have made arrangements for someone else to care for the children in the event of their own inability to do so due to illness or death, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Percentage of women and men who are primary caregivers	Number of women and men 15-49	caregivers who have made succession arrangements	Number o primary caregivers
Age				
15-19	9.1	2,596	36.1	236
20-29	53.9	3,285	28.6	1,771
30-39	87.6	1,917	25.5	1,679
40-49	87.4	1,345	25.7	1,176
Sex				
Men	42.2	4,156	32.3	1,752
Women	62.4	4,987	24.3	3,111
Residence				
Urban	59.2	2,511	34.3	1,487
Rural	50.9	6,632	24.1	3,375
Region				
Hhohho	56.5	2,440	27.0	1,379
Manzini	52.4	2,996	30.1	1,571
Shiselweni	48.5	1,877	22.4	910
Lubombo	54.8	1,831	27.3	1,003
Education				
No education	67.6	719	19.4	486
Lower primary	53.2	830	21.8	441
Higher primary	49.9	2,249	22.8	1,122
Secondary	47.7	2,883	25.8	1,377
High school	52.5	1,746	30.0	917
Tertiary	72.5	717	47.3	520
Wealth quintile				
Lowest	53.8	1,386	17.7	746
Second	51.3	1,527	21.5	784
Middle	50.8	1,824	26.6	927
Fourth	51.7	2,063	28.6	1,068
Highest	57.1	2,343	35.2	1,339
Total 15-49	53.2	9,143	27.2	4,863

17.8 WIDOWS DISPOSSESSED OF PROPERTY

Property grabbing, a practice where relatives of the deceased come and claim the land and other property, is a serious problem for widows and child-headed households. Traditional law in many rural areas dictates that women and children cannot inherit property. Property grabbing has a number of negative consequences, particularly for girls and women. This can worsen the vulnerability of people who care for children and the children themselves. It is therefore important to improve laws, including enforcement mechanisms, to ensure the right of women and children to inherit property after the death of a husband or father (UNICEF, 2005).

Table 17.9 shows the percentage of women 15-49 who have ever been widowed and the percentage of ever-widowed women who have been dispossessed of property. Altogether six percent of women surveyed have been widowed. Over half of everwidowed women said that they had been dispossessed of their property. This proportion is highest among the women with no education and decreases with increasing level of education. A similar relationship is observed with the wealth status: the higher the wealth quintile the less likely women are to have been dispossessed of property.

17.9 EXTERNAL SUPPORT FOR VERY SICK PERSONS

When an adult member of a household falls chronically ill or dies, it can have a devastating effect on the remaining members of the household, particularly Table 17.9 Widows dispossessed of property

Percentage of de facto women age 15-49 who have ever been widowed, and the percentage of ever-widowed women who have been dispossessed of property, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

			Among o widowed v	ever- vomen:
	Percentage		Percentage	
	of ever-	Number	who were	Number
Background	widowed	of	dispossessed	of
characteristic	women	women	of property	women
Age				
15-19	0.0	1,274	na	0
20-29	1.3	1,775	*	23
30-39	10.8	1,118	50.8	121
40-49	19.7	820	53.0	162
Current marital status				
Married	1.4	2,062	(72.6)	28
Widowed	100.0	277	49.7	277
Age of voungest child				
No children	0.7	1,501	*	10
< 18 years	7.9	3,347	50.4	263
18+ years	23.2	 139	(68.2)	32
Residence				
Urban	5.2	1 330	51.6	69
Rural	6.5	3.657	51.8	236
Degion	010	5,007	5110	
Kegion	6.0	1 2 4 0	E1 0	01
Manzini	6.0 5.4	1,340	51.0	01
Shisolwoni	5.4	1,047	52.9	64
Lubombo	7.5	966	53.7	72
	7.5	500	55.7	12
Education	12.2	402	74.0	50
No education	13.3	402	/4.9	53
Lower primary	13.4	360	53.5	48
Figher primary	0.5	1,200	40.0	00
High school	4.9	1,095	30.0 (26.1)	03 27
Tortian	3.0	370	(20.1)	13
	5.5	370		15
Wealth quintile	0.0		60.0	
Lowest	9.3	/85	60.9	/3
Second	/.5	862 069	00.1 F2.2	04
Milaale	/.1	968 1 1 1 1	52.3	09 E1
FOUITI	4.0	1,111	(33.0)	21 40
rignest	3.0	1,202	43.0	40
Total	6.1	4,987	51.8	305
Note: Table is based or	nly on womer	n who slep	t in the hous	ehold the

Note: Table is based only on women who slept in the household the night preceding the interview. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed, ¹ Dispossessed of property indicates that none of the late husband's assets went to the respondent.

children. The SDHS collected information on the extent to which free external care and support are reaching these households. This information was obtained by asking households in which someone aged 18 to 59 years had been chronically ill for three months of the past 12 months, or had died after a chronic illness in the past 12 months, whether or not the household had received free medical, emotional, or material support to care for these persons. The results are shown in Table 17.10.

Table 17.10 External support for very sick persons

Percentage of women and men age 18-59 who have been either very sick or who died within the past 12 months after being very sick whose households received certain free basic external support to care for them within the past year, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage of very sick persons whose households received:										
Background characteristic	Medical support at least once a month during illness	Emotional support in the past 30 days ¹	Social/ material support in the past 30 days ²	At least one type of support in the past 30 days	All three types of support in the past 30 days	None of the three types of support	Number of persons				
Age											
18-29	13.7	9.8	11.2	25.6	3.1	74.4	111				
30-39	13.9	3.7	5.9	15.8	0.7	84.2	116				
40-49	19.9	7.7	6.3	24.3	1.8	75.7	113				
50-59	21.2	8.2	4.5	23.9	1.9	76.1	77				
Sex											
Male	14.1	5.7	6.3	19.9	0.5	80.1	193				
Female	19.2	8.5	7.8	24.3	3.0	75.7	223				
Residence											
Urban	17.3	2.2	4.5	17.3	0.0	82.7	58				
Rural	16.8	8.1	7.6	23.0	2.2	77.0	358				
Region											
Hhohho	20.4	5.9	9.5	24.1	2.8	75.9	111				
Manzini	15.4	9.3	6.5	22.1	2.2	77.9	117				
Shiselweni	14.6	6.6	4.9	20.6	1.2	79.4	96				
Lubombo	16.7	7.0	7.5	21.9	0.9	78.1	93				
Wealth quintile											
Lowest	16.2	7.2	7.2	23.4	2.4	76.6	133				
Second	19.3	5.2	7.4	24.2	0.0	75.8	103				
Middle	28.4	16.9	12.5	34.0	4.8	66.0	77				
Fourth	8.1	1.4	4.9	11.6	1.4	88.4	61				
Highest	(4.6)	(3.1)	(0.0)	(7.7)	(0.0)	(92.3)	43				
Total	16.9	7.2	7.1	22.2	1.9	77.8	416				

Note: Table is based only on women and men who usually live in the household and who were very sick (unable to work or do normal activities) in the past 12 months or who died in the past 12 months and were very sick at least 3 of the 12 months before death. Support refers to the past 30 days for living persons and in the 30 days preceding death for dead persons. Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases.

¹ Support such as companionship, counselling from a trained counsellor, or spiritual support for which there was no payment

² Support such as help with household work, training for a caregiver, legal services, clothing, food, or financial support for which there was no payment

Overall, a majority (78 percent) of the households that had cared for a chronically ill person or had lost a member to chronic illness in the 12 months prior to the SDHS had not received any of these three forms of free external support. When assistance was received, it was most likely to have been in the form of medical support (17 percent). Households were equally likely to receive emotional support and social or material support (7 percent each). Very sick persons were somewhat more likely to receive at least one type of support if they were females than if they were males. Very sick persons in the fourth and highest wealth quintiles were much less likely to receive external support than other persons.

17.10 EXTERNAL SUPPORT FOR ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

OVCs are generally cared for by their families, which in turn often depend on community assistance to survive. Table 17.11 shows the percentage of orphans and vulnerable children under 18 years of age whose household received free basic external support to care for the child in the last 12 months. The results in the table suggest that support is not readily available for the majority of OVCs. Fifty-nine percent of OVCs received no external support to assist in their care. Around one-third of OVCs received school-related assistance. Considerably fewer were given social/material support (8 percent) or emotional support (5 percent). The likelihood of receiving assistance generally increased with the child's age. OVCs are more likely to get support when they stay in a rural area than in an urban area and when they live in Shiselweni and Lubombo than in the Manzini and Hhohho regions. The likelihood of receiving support decreased with wealth quintile.

Table 17.11 External support for orphans and vulnerable children

Percentage of orphans and vulnerable children under age 18 years whose household received certain free basic external support to care for the child in the past 12 months, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percentage of orphans and vulnerable children whose households received:								
				School-					
			Social/	related					
	Medical	Emotional	material	assistance in					
	support in	support in	support in	the	At least one	All of the	None of the	Number of	
Background	the past 12	the past 3	the past 3	past 12	type	types of	types of	OVC	
characteristic	months	months ²	months ³	months⁴	of support ²	support	support	children	
Age									
0-4	5.6	3.8	4.1	na	11.7	0.0	88.3	575	
5-9	6.1	4.9	8.9	29.3	38.6	0.2	61.4	936	
10-14	4.9	4.4	8.8	47.1	51.5	0.3	48.5	1,318	
15-17	4.8	5.5	7.9	42.8	48.9	0.1	51.1	747	
Sex									
Male	5.2	4.6	7.7	34.0	41.8	0.2	58.2	1,796	
Female	5.4	4.7	8.0	34.0	40.6	0.2	59.4	1,780	
Residence									
Urban	3.8	2.5	6.3	20.1	28.6	0.0	71.4	409	
Rural	5.5	4.9	8.1	35.8	42.8	0.2	57.2	3,167	
Region									
Hhohho	4.6	5.2	4.6	27.2	34.1	0.0	65.9	779	
Manzini	5.4	4.5	9.0	30.3	38.1	0.3	61.9	1,088	
Shiselweni	5.2	3.4	6.5	41.4	48.1	0.0	51.9	923	
Lubombo	6.0	5.7	11.1	37.1	44.5	0.5	55.5	786	
Wealth quintile									
Lowest	6.9	4.5	8.3	40.0	47.0	0.3	53.0	955	
Second	4.1	4.6	9.3	37.0	43.5	0.0	56.5	881	
Middle	5.7	4.4	8.9	37.2	44.0	0.1	56.0	763	
Fourth	4.8	3.4	5.8	25.9	33.9	0.1	66.1	588	
Highest	4.5	7.3	4.6	18.2	27.2	0.5	72.8	389	
Total	5.3	4.6	7.9	34.0	41.2	0.2	58.8	3,575	

Note: Table is based on de jure household members, i.e., usual household members.

na = Not applicable

¹ Medical care, supplies, or medicine

² Companionship, counselling from a trained counsellor, or spiritual support for which there was no payment

³ Help with household work, training for a caregiver, legal services, clothing, food, or financial support for which there was no payment

⁴ Allowance, free admission, books, or supplies for which there was no payment. Percentage calculated for age 5-17 years ⁵ Four types of support for those ages 5-17, three types of support (i.e., excluding school support) received by those age 0-4 years

Africa Magongo and Nelisiwe Sikhosana

With the increasing number of HIV infections among adults, children are becoming more at risk of contracting the disease. It is estimated that the total number of children living with HIV increased from 1.5 million [1.3-1.9 million] in 2001 to 2.5 million [2.2-2.6 million] in 2007 worldwide. However, new infections among children are estimated to have declined from 460,000 [420,000-510,000] in 2001 to 420,000 [390,000-470,000] in 2007. Deaths due to AIDS among children had increased from 330,000 [380,000-560,000] in 2001 to 360,000 [350,000-540,000] in 2005, but have begun to decline to an estimated 330,000 [310,000-380,000] in 2007. Nearly 90 percent of all HIV-positive children live in sub-Saharan Africa (UNAIDS, 2007).

There are two ways by which children may be infected with HIV. The first is vertical, meaning mother-to-child transmission. The second is sexual activity, which for young children is usually assumed to be forced and to have occurred before the child is aware of the consequences. Another mode of transmission that has been observed is through unsafe medical equipment and practices (Gisselquist et al., 2002). The risk of HIV infection may occur as a result of exposure to infection or a lack of protection from infection (Brookes et al., 2004).

The main objective for interviewing children age 12-14 years in the 2006-07 SDHS was to identify social and community risk factors that predispose children to HIV infection and to examine the exposure to risk factors and behaviour in relation to social, economic, and cultural contexts.

A separate questionnaire was designed for these children, referred to in the survey as youth. In the absence of indicators of HIV infection in children, the questions asked to the youth were guided by literature indicating that there are several areas which may be important in defining the indicators. They are: risk for children of sexual abuse, initiation of sex and pregnancy in children, level of knowledge about sex, sexual abuse and HIV, and impact of mass media on knowledge of HIV (Brookes et al., 2004). In the SDHS, in addition to their background characteristics, children age 12-14 were asked questions about care and protection, media exposure, knowledge and attitudes about sex, and knowledge of AIDS. While the data would be informative, no questions on sexual abuse were included in the survey due to legal and ethical reasons.

Prior to conducting interviews, informed consent was obtained from parents or guardians and from the youth. Boys and girls who consented to the interview were also asked to give blood for HIV testing. Interviews with the youth were conducted in half of the households (2,750 households) selected randomly from households covered in the SDHS. All boys and girls age 12-14 were eligible for individual interview. In the households selected for youth survey, a total of 876 persons age 12-14 (477 girls and 439 boys) were identified. Interviews were completed with 459 of the girls and 411 of the boys.

This chapter begins by describing the relationship of the caregiver(s) whom the youth reported look after them when they are at home, patterns of adult supervision at school, knowledge and attitudes about sex, knowledge about HIV/AIDS and other HIV/AIDS-related issues, exposure to HIV/AIDS knowledge, and the youth's opinion on available information about HIV/AIDS. The chapter also discusses the youth's attitudes about dating and decisions regarding sex and their knowledge of various modes to prevent AIDS infection. The HIV status of the youth is presented in Chapter 14.

18.1 CAREGIVER

Table 18.1 shows the relationship of the youth with their caregivers. The entries are not mutually exclusive; a child may have more than one person who looks after him or her when he/she is at home. A high proportion of boys and girls age 12-14 are being looked after by their biological mothers (55 percent) when they are at home, 27 percent by their grandmother, and 26 percent by their biological fathers.

There are some variations in the caregivers of children age 12-14 by various background characteristics. Children who live in Lubombo are more likely than those in other regions to mention their biological mother and father as their main caregivers. Children who live with both parents are more likely to mention their mothers than their fathers as their caregivers (92 percent compared with 73 percent).

It is worth highlighting the role of grandmothers in giving care to children, even when both parents are still alive (21 percent). Half of children who are not living with either parent are being taken care of by their grandmothers. Most of these children are orphans whose parents are dead (49 percent).

Table 18.1 Relationship of caregiver(s)

Percentage of children age 12-14 by the person(s) whom they report look after them when they are at home according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	Biologia	cal parent	Grand	parent Grand-	Sibli	ing	Other mer	family nber	Non-fa mem	amily ber	Don't know/	Number of
characteristic	Father	Mother	mother	father	Brother	Sister	Female	Male	Female	Male	missing	children
Sex												
Female	22.6	54.5	27.0	4.7	3.8	1.5	13.7	4.6	5.7	1.2	0.2	465
Male	30.0	55.0	26.1	5.8	3.0	3.2	9.4	8.0	5.8	1.6	0.0	409
Residence												
Urban	28.1	56.8	26.0	2.5	1.5	1.1	17.0	6.3	5.8	2.1	0.0	104
Rural	25.8	54.5	26.7	5.6	3.7	2.4	11.0	6.2	5.8	1.3	0.1	769
Region												
Hhohho	27.0	54.6	17.8	3.5	4.5	1.6	15.1	6.0	6.5	1.5	0.4	228
Manzini	21.6	49.9	32.2	6.1	2.2	2.4	11.8	6.8	4.7	1.6	0.0	255
Shiselweni	23.3	53.4	33.4	7.4	2.1	2.4	7.7	6.3	6.4	1.8	0.0	213
Lubombo	34.6	63.6	21.7	3.6	5.3	2.9	12.1	5.4	5.5	0.4	0.0	178
Living arrangements												
Living with both parents	73.1	92.4	5.2	1.8	0.8	1.5	3.1	0.7	1.5	0.0	0.0	151
Living with father/not mother	69.4	19.9	14.8	7.8	2.9	0.0	23.4	5.9	1.3	0.0	0.0	71
Living with mother/not father	14.6	93.4	10.6	2.0	2.5	2.3	2.8	3.1	2.8	0.0	0.0	295
Not living with either parent	7.1	14.1	50.0	7.5	5.8	3.3	21.1	11.1	11.5	3.0	0.3	332
Missing	(6.9)	(11.4)	(66.6)	(26.6)	(0.0)	(0.0)	(11.0)	(11.2)	(3.5)	(9.6)	(0.0)	25
Orphanhood status												
Both parents alive	35.9	64.8	21.2	4.0	2.3	1.4	10.4	4.6	5.3	1.0	0.2	552
Mother dead/father alive	32.6	10.1	44.6	11.3	4.2	1.6	20.2	9.2	5.7	3.4	0.0	73
Father dead/ mother alive	2.9	61.5	26.9	5.6	5.4	3.8	7.9	6.6	4.5	1.1	0.0	180
Both parents dead	1.2	4.0	49.1	7.5	6.1	6.2	22.9	14.9	13.1	3.1	0.0	69
OVC status												
Orphan ¹	9.3	37.5	35.7	7.3	5.3	3.8	13.9	9.0	6.6	2.1	0.0	322
Vulnerable ²	(26.0)	(63.3)	(22.1)	(0.0)	(3.6)	(2.5)	(9.3)	(6.8)	(2.5)	(2.5)	(0.0)	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	36.4	64.0	21.7	4.2	2.2	1.3	10.4	4.6	5.3	0.9	0.2	533
Total	26.1	54.8	26.6	5.2	3.4	2.3	11.7	6.2	5.8	1.4	0.1	874

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

Virtually no child age 12-14 reported having no caregiver. A majority (57 percent) have one person who takes care of them, 37 percent have two caregivers, and only 6 percent have three or more people taking care of them when they are at home (Table 18.2). Small differentials are observed across subgroups of children, except by orphanhood status. Orphans are more likely to say that they have one caregiver, while children who are neither orphan nor vulnerable are more likely to have more than one caregiver.

Table 18.2 Number of caregivers

Percent distribution of children age 12-14 by the number of persons who look after the child at home according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background	Nu	imber of p look aft€		Number of children		
characteristic	None	1	2	3	Total	age 12-14
Sex						
Female	0.3	61.5	31.9	6.3	100.0	465
Male	0.0	51.9	43.1	5.0	100.0	409
Residence						
Urban	0.0	53.2	39.3	7.6	100.0	104
Rural	0.2	57.5	36.9	5.5	100.0	769
Region						
Hhohho	0.5	61.3	34.1	4.1	100.0	228
Manzini	0.0	61.0	32.7	6.3	100.0	255
Shiselweni	0.0	58.8	35.4	5.8	100.0	213
Lubombo	0.0	43.6	49.5	6.9	100.0	178
Living arrangements						
Living with both parents	0.0	22.8	71.8	5.4	100.0	151
Living with father/not mother	0.0	57.8	36.0	6.1	100.0	71
Living with mother/not father	0.0	68.4	27.2	4.4	100.0	295
Not living with either parent	0.4	62.6	30.2	6.8	100.0	332
Missing	(0.0)	(52.6)	(40.8)	(6.6)	100.0	25
Orphanhood status						
Both parents alive	0.0	49.4	46.1	4.6	100.0	552
Mother dead/father alive	0.0	60.6	33.2	6.2	100.0	73
Father dead/mother alive	0.0	76.3	15.8	7.8	100.0	180
Both parents dead	1.8	63.7	25.9	8.6	100.0	69
OVC status						
Orphan ¹	0.4	70.0	21.9	7.6	100.0	322
Vulnerable ²	(0.0)	(62.3)	(31.6)	(6.1)	100.0	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	100.0	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	0.0	49.4	46.2	4.4	100.0	533
Total	0.1	57.0	37.2	5.7	100.0	874

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

 $^{\rm 2}$ Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

18.2 SUPERVISION GOING TO AND FROM SCHOOL AND AT SCHOOL

Another risk for children happens when they are on their way to and from school, and at school. Respondents to the youth survey in the SDHS were asked whether they are accompanied by an adult when going to and from school. To study the extent of protection at school, they were also asked whether a teacher or another adult always supervises their safety.

Some parents or guardians take the responsibility of accompanying their children to and from school. Table 18.3 shows that a majority (83 percent) of youths walk to school, 8 percent are always accompanied by an adult when going to school, and 5 percent are accompanied by an adult on their way home from school. Youth in the urban areas are more likely to be accompanied by an adult going to and coming from school, while rural children are much more likely to walk. For example, 88 percent of rural children walk to school compared with 50 percent of urban children.

Supervision of youth also occurs within the school premises. In general, 68 percent of children age 12-14 report that a teacher or other adult is always present in classroom, 65 percent say that a teacher or other adult always watches children coming to or leaving school, and 63 percent say that a teacher or an adult always checks that no unauthorized person enters the school. Only 31 percent of children report that toilets are monitored by a teacher or an adult. There are marginal differentials across subgroups of children.

Table 18.3 Adult supervision going to and at school

Percentage of children age 12-14 reporting caregiver or other adult accompanies child to and from school each day, percentage walking to school, percentage reporting that at school an adult is always in classroom, always watches children entering or exiting school, monitors the toilets, and checks that no unauthorized individuals enter school, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Adult	always		At school an adult:				
	accompa	nies child			Watches		Checks for	
					children		unauthorized	
	From	From	Child	ls always	entering/		individual	
Background	home to	school to	walks to	in	existing	Monitors	entering	Number of
characteristic	school	home	school	classroom	school	toilets	school	children
Sex								
Female	8.0	5.0	81.0	65.6	62.9	30.8	61.9	446
Male	7.0	3.9	85.9	69.8	68.0	32.1	63.3	384
Residence								
Urban	15.2	6.4	50.1	67.6	68.1	26.9	63.2	100
Rural	6.5	4.2	87.8	67.5	64.9	32.0	62.4	730
Region								
Hhohho	9.0	4.8	83.4	69.6	59.9	28.9	61.5	209
Manzini	11.1	6.5	75.6	71.5	68.1	28.5	63.2	240
Shiselweni	5.0	3.9	87.8	61.2	71.3	38.7	68.3	210
Lubombo	3.9	1.9	88.4	67.2	60.2	29.7	55.7	171
Living arrangements								
Living with both parents	8.9	6.2	84.7	67.2	68.1	29.3	66.0	142
Living with father/not mother	6.3	3.4	82.9	75.1	68.1	39.0	64.6	68
Living with mother/not father	6.7	3.5	78.7	67.0	67.7	25.7	61.3	289
Not living with either parent	8.2	4.6	86.2	66.9	61.0	36.0	60.1	310
Missing	(3.9)	(8.7)	(93.6)	(62.3)	(66.5)	(31.5)	(84.8)	21
Orphanhood status								
Both parents alive	8.0	5.4	80.6	66.3	67.5	30.8	63.0	524
Mother dead/father alive	2.9	2.9	88.3	69.2	64.5	31.5	61.2	70
Father dead/mother alive	7.6	1.7	87.1	71.8	61.8	26.2	60.7	172
Both parents dead	9.1	6.2	89.8	64.4	57.2	50.8	64.7	64
OVC status								
Orphan ¹	6.8	2.9	87.9	69.6	61.5	32.5	61.7	306
Vulnerable ²	(3.7)	(0.0)	(93.9)	(67.6)	(62.5)	(32.8)	(68.8)	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	8.3	5.6	79.9	66.5	67.6	30.5	63.1	506
Total	7.5	4.5	83.3	67.5	65.3	31.4	62.5	830

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

18.3 KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES ABOUT SEX

Children benefit from the knowledge of the physiology of human reproduction and the means to protect oneself against sexual or reproductive problems and diseases. Better knowledge is expected to lead to correct attitudes and responsible reproductive health behaviour. In the SDHS, children age 12-14 were asked if they know the meaning of sex and whether their parents or caregiver had talked to them about sex and sexual abuse.

Table 18.4 shows the knowledge and attitudes about sex among girls and boys age 12-14 years. Six in ten youth (61 percent) say that they know the meaning of having sex. Girls and urban residents are more knowledgeable of the meaning of having sex than boys. Sixty-three percent of girls and 59 percent of boys report knowing the meaning of having sex, and 74 percent of youth in urban areas know the meaning of having sex compared with 60 percent of rural youth. With regard to regional variations, knowledge about sex ranges from 65 percent in Lubombo to 54 percent in Hhohho.

Table 18.4 Knowledge and attitudes about sex

Percentage of children age 12-14 who know the meaning of having sex and who attended life skills course, and, among children who know the meaning of having sex, percentage whose parent or caregiver have talked to the child about sex and sexual abuse, according to background characteristics, Swaziland, 2006-07

	Knows the	Atte skill	Attended life skills course		Parents/ caregiver	Parents/ caregiver talked	Number of children knowing meaning of
Background characteristic	meaning of having sex	At school	Somewhere else	Number of children	talked about sex	about sex abuse	meaning of having sex
Sex							
Female	63.3	38.6	5.1	465	46.7	53.1	295
Male	59.0	33.7	4.8	409	24.7	31.4	241
Residence							
Urban	73.6	45.0	5.4	104	47.3	55.1	77
Rural	59.7	35.1	4.9	769	35.0	41.3	459
Region							
Hhohho	53.8	31.6	4.1	228	38.6	45.1	123
Manzini	62.5	35.7	5.8	255	38.9	47.0	159
Shiselweni	64.6	39.1	4.0	213	37.3	38.7	138
Lubombo	65.4	40.0	6.2	178	31.4	41.6	116
Living arrangements							
Living with both parents	58.8	30.8	5.8	151	38.7	50.2	89
Living with father/not mother	56.1	41.0	7.1	71	15.5	23.5	40
Living with mother/not father	64.3	37.4	4.1	295	40.8	47.5	189
Not living with either parent	61.2	37.8	4.5	332	37.0	40.1	204
Missing	*	*	*	*	*	*	15
Orphanhood status							
Both parents alive	61.1	37.1	6.5	552	37.9	45.3	337
Mother dead/father alive	64.3	42.3	1.1	73	27.7	28.6	47
Father dead/mother alive	59.0	33.7	2.6	180	37.7	48.8	106
Both parents dead	66.2	30.9	3.6	69	(35.6)	(30.6)	46
OVC status							
Orphan ¹	61.8	35.0	2.5	322	34.9	39.8	199
Vulnerable ²	45.3	40.0	2.5	32	*	*	15
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	14	*	*	6
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	61.5	36.9	6.5	533	37.9	45.2	328
Total	61.3	36.3	5.0	874	36.8	43.3	536
Note: An asterisk indicates that an	estimate is base	ed on fewer	than 25 unweig	ghted cases and	l has been su	ppressed.	

Girls and boys age 12-14 were asked if they had attended life skills courses in school or in any environment. Thirty-six percent of these children indicated receiving life skills from school, while 5 percent received it somewhere else. Girls are more likely than boys to report attending life skills courses at school (39 percent compared with 34 percent), and children in urban areas are more likely than rural children to have taken life skills courses in school (45 percent and 35 percent, respectively).

The subject of sex and sexual abuse is discussed by some parents or caregivers with the youth. The data show that 37 percent of youth talked about sex and 43 percent talked about sexual abuse with their parents. Girls are much more likely to have been told about sex and sexual abuse than boys. For instance, while almost half (47 percent) of girls have talked about sex with their parents or caregiver, only one in four boys (25 percent) discussed sex with their parents or caregiver. Once again, children in the urban areas are more likely to have discussed the two subjects with their parents or caregivers than those in the rural areas.

Knowledge about HIV transmission and ways to prevent it are not useful if people have no control of their involvement in sex practices. To assess their attitudes towards safer sex, persons age 12-14 who had indicated that they know the meaning of sex were asked if it is acceptable to have many boyfriends or girlfriends. They were also asked their opinion regarding a girl's refusal to have sex. In general, 13 percent say that a girl cannot refuse sex if a boy proposes love, and 11 percent say that a girl cannot refuse sex if a boy gives presents. Boys are more likely than girls to agree with these statements. For example, 17 percent of boys say that a girl cannot refuse sex if a boy proposes love, compared with 9 percent of girls. Boys think that they are much more in control over when, where, and how the couple should have sex (25 percent of boys compared with 9 percent of girls). Less than 1 percent of both girls and boys agreed that a boy can have multiple girlfriends or a girl can have multiple boyfriends.



Figure 18.1 Attitudes about Dating and Decisions to Have Sex

SDHS 2006-07

18.4 KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES ABOUT HIV/AIDS

Virtually all children age 12-14 have heard of HIV/AIDS (97 percent) and there are no major variations in the knowledge by their background characteristics. Among children who have heard about HIV/AIDS, 84 percent believe it is possible to avoid or reduce the chances of getting AIDS and 82 percent know that a healthy-looking person can have AIDS. This belief and knowledge are higher among girls than boys. For instance, 87 percent of girls and 80 percent of boys believe that there are ways to avoid or reduce the chances of getting AIDS. Knowledge of AIDS is higher among children who live in urban areas than in rural areas (87 percent and 83 percent, respectively), as indicated in Table 18.5.

Table 18.5 Knowledge about HIV/AIDS

Percentage of children age 12-14 who have heard about HIV/AIDS and, among those having heard of AIDS, percentage who believe it is possible to avoid or reduce the chances of getting AIDS and who know that a healthy person can have AIDS, Swaziland 2006-07

, , ,					
			Among chile heard abou	dren age 12-1 It AIDS, perce	4 who have
Background characteristic	Heard about AIDS	Number of children	Believe it is possible to avoid or reduce the chances of getting AIDS	Know a healthy- looking person can have AIDS	Number of children who have heard about AIDS
Sex					
Female	97.8	465	86.8	83.9	455
Male	96.5	409	80.3	79.7	394
Residence					
Urban	98.9	104	87.3	85.2	103
Rural	97.0	769	83.3	81.5	746
Region					
Hhohho	95.1	228	81.8	80.0	217
Manzini	98.5	255	85.4	84.6	251
Shiselweni	99.1	213	87.4	84.8	211
Lubombo	95.9	178	79.2	77.1	171
Living arrangements					
Living with both parents	95.8	151	81.8	78.4	145
Living with father/not mother	98.5	71	79.8	80.0	70
Living with mother/not father	97.7	295	87.7	83.9	288
Not living with either parent	97.3	332	81.9	83.0	323
Missing	(94.9)	25	(84.2)	(73.3)	24
Orphanhood status					
Both parents alive	96.8	552	83.5	82.5	534
Mother dead/father alive	100.0	73	90.4	76.9	73
Father dead/mother alive	97.3	180	83.6	83.1	175
Both parents dead	97.2	69	78.7	80.2	67
OVC status					
Orphan ¹	97.9	322	84.1	81.1	315
Vulnerable ²	(90.8)	32	(91.0)	(86.5)	29
Orphan and vulnerable	*	14	*	*	13
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	97.2	533	83.3	82.6	518
Total	97.2	874	83.7	82.0	850

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

Figure 18.2 shows the percentage of children age 12-14 who know about AIDS, and who mention without prompting the various ways a person can avoid or reduce the chances of getting AIDS. Overall, 64 percent of children mention abstaining from sex as a way of reducing the chances of getting AIDS, 47 percent mention the use of condoms, and 19 percent mention avoiding blood transfusions. One in six children (15 percent) say that the chances of contracting AIDS can be reduced or avoided by being faithful to one sexual partner. There are small differentials in the responses given by girls and boys.



Figure 18.2 Knowledge of Various Modes to Avoid AIDS

Table 18.6 presents the children's knowledge about issues related to HIV/AIDS. Knowledge of male and female condoms is widespread among children age 12-14; 77 percent of these children indicate that they have heard about male condoms and 43 percent have heard about female condoms. Boys are more likely than girls to have heard of male condoms (85 percent compared with 71 percent). However, girls are more likely than boys to have heard of female condoms (48 percent compared with 37 percent). As observed in the previous findings, children in the urban areas are more likely than rural children to have heard about male and female condoms. For male condoms, the proportion is 88 percent in urban areas and 76 percent in rural areas.

When asked whether boys and girls their age should be taught how to use condoms to avoid getting AIDS, 37 percent of those who know about AIDS and condoms give a positive response. A large proportion (62 percent) of children believe that children their age should be taught in school about delaying sex until they get married to avoid getting AIDS.

Table 18.6 Knowledge about HIV/AIDS-related issues

Among children age 12-14 years, percentage who have heard about male and female condoms and, among those having heard of AIDS and about either the male or female condom, percentage who believe children their age should be taught about using a condom to avoid AIDS, and among children age 12-14 knowing about AIDS and about the meaning of having sex, percentage who believe children their age should be taught in school about waiting until they get married before having sex to avoid AIDS, by background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Heard about male condom	Heard about female condom	Number of children	Among children knowing about AIDS and condoms, percentage believing children their age should be taught to use condoms to avoid AIDS	Number of children knowing about AIDS and about condoms	Percentage who believe children their age should be taught in school about waiting until they get married before having sex to avoid AIDS	Number of children who have heard about AIDS
Sex							
Female Male	70.7 84.8	47.9 36.9	465 409	38.4 36.2	346 345	64.0 58.8	455 394
Residence							
Urban	87.6	56.2	104	42.1	93	73.6	103
Rural	75.9	40.9	769	36.5	597	59.9	746
Region							
Hhohho	73.5	39.7	228	35.4	170	54.8	217
Manzini	79.4	46.4	255	42.0	210	62.2	251
Shiselweni	79.3	38.8	213	36.3	173	64.2	211
Lubombo	76.6	46.2	178	33.6	138	66.1	171
Living arrangements							
Living with both parents	74.9	45.7	151	29.7	117	60.3	145
Living with father/not mother	72.3	39.4	71	44.2	54	55.6	70
Living with mother/not father	78.9	42.8	295	36.7	237	64.7	288
Not living with either parent	78.5	43.0	332	39.2	264	60.9	323
Missing	(69.9)	(29.4)	25	44.7	18	57.9	24
Orphanhood status							
Both parents alive	77.1	43.3	552	33.0	440	61.7	534
Mother dead/father alive	77.6	35.8	73	49.9	57	62.9	73
Father dead/mother alive	77.7	44.7	180	40.8	140	58.7	175
Both parents dead	77.2	40.5	69	49.6	54	66.6	67
OVC status							
Orphan ¹	77.6	41.8	322	44.8	251	61.3	315
Vulnerable ²	(65.6)	(38.9)	32	*	23	(49.9)	29
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	14	*	10	*	13
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	77.9	43.5	533	33.3	427	61.9	518
Total	77.3	42.7	874	37.3	691	61.6	850

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

² Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

18.5 EXPOSURE TO MEDIA MESSAGES ON HIV/AIDS

Access to information is essential in increasing knowledge and awareness of what is taking place around one, so as to influence one's perceptions and behaviour. Children age 12-14 were asked if they had received information through mass media; the findings are presented in Table 18.7. The most popular media is the radio (70 percent). Between 33 percent and 36 percent of children received HIV/AIDS information from television, newspapers, leaflets, posters, and billboards. In general, girls are more likely than boys to be exposed to HIV/AIDS information through any media. Urban children are also more exposed to HIV/AIDS information than rural children. With regard to regional variations, children in the Manzini region are more likely to be exposed to such information than in other regions. There are no major variations according to the child's living arrangements, orphanhood status, and OVC status.

Table 18.7 Exposure to information on HIV/AIDS through mass media

Percentage of children age 12-14 who reported receiving HIV/AIDS information through various mass media sources, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	Television	Radio	Newspaper	Magazine	Leaflets	Posters	Billboards	Number
 Sov								
Female	37 5	72.0	40.0	25.5	37.2	36.4	37.2	465
Male	31.9	68.1	31.0	22.3	30.0	35.3	28.3	409
Residence								
Urban	67.9	79.8	59.4	43.0	51.2	61.2	62.3	104
Rural	30.4	68.9	32.6	21.4	31.5	32.4	29.0	769
Region								
Hhohho	35.7	68.0	33.8	17.8	31.9	32.5	30.1	228
Manzini	40.8	73.7	43.2	30.8	39.3	46.8	46.2	255
Shiselweni	31.8	68.6	37.2	24.3	29.1	30.0	26.6	213
Lubombo	29.1	69.8	26.1	21.8	34.1	31.6	25.6	178
Living arrangements								
Living with both parents	32.9	64.7	33.6	24.0	35.8	35.7	31.0	151
Living with father/not mother	30.5	70.4	29.7	21.4	32.2	37.3	33.9	71
Living with mother/not father	30.2	69.1	38.0	26.3	36.4	36.5	34.0	295
Not living with either parent	41.3	74.1	36.2	23.0	31.4	35.6	33.7	332
Missing	(29.2)	(63.6)	(33.9)	(16.4)	(28.5)	(30.1)	(21.6)	25
Orphanhood status								
Both parents alive	36.0	68.6	37.4	27.1	35.7	36.7	33.5	552
Mother dead/father alive	38.7	68.6	38.6	17.7	29.8	33.3	39.6	73
Father dead/mother alive	30.8	74.1	30.0	19.7	31.7	36.9	30.0	180
Both parents dead	33.2	74.1	34.8	16.8	28.5	29.3	30.0	69
OVC status								
Orphan ¹	33.1	72.8	33.0	18.6	30.6	34.4	32.2	322
Vulnerable ²	(35.3)	(63.3)	(23.2)	(19.5)	(36.1)	(37.9)	(30.3)	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	36.4	69.5	38.2	27.2	35.6	36.7	33.5	533
Total	34.9	70.2	35.8	24.0	33.8	35.9	33.0	874

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

² Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

Children were also asked if they had seen stickers, clothing, red ribbon, signs on a bus, wall murals, and AIDS plays with HIV/AIDS information over the 12 months prior to the survey. Seven in ten children indicate that they have seen HIV/AIDS information on a red ribbon nadge or on clothing, and 58 percent had seen an AIDS play (Table 18.8). Stickers (38 percent) and wall murals (86 percent) are not as notable as these other media. As is the case with mass media, girls and children who live in urban areas are more likely than other children to have seen these other media messages on HIV/AIDS. Exposure is generally higher among children in the Manzini region, and low among children in the Lubombo region, except for the AIDS play, which has the most viewers in the Lubombo region. There are variations in the exposure to media by the child's living arrangements, orphanhood status, and OVC status, but there is no clear pattern.

Table 18.8 Exposure to HIV/AIDS messages through other media

Percentage of children age 12-14 who have seen HIV/AIDS information or messages on other media during the 12 months before the survey, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Destaure est			Red	Sign on	XA / - 11		
Background	Cut al la su	Charletter	ribbon	bus or	vvall	AIDS	NL
characteristic	Stickers	Clothing	badge	compi	murai	piay	Number
Sex							
Female	41.8	69.4	77.7	48.1	31.2	64.3	465
Male	34.5	68.3	64.8	40.9	20.5	49.8	409
Residence							
Urban	56.2	86.4	84.7	64.8	44.4	76.0	104
Rural	36.0	66.5	69.9	42.0	23.8	55.0	769
Region							
Hhohho	37.2	68.0	68.3	46.2	27.8	57.0	228
Manzini	44.6	71.3	78.4	50.8	30.8	57.0	255
Shiselweni	38.5	69.6	73.9	44.4	23.7	55.4	213
Lubombo	31.0	65.9	63.7	34.5	20.7	61.4	178
Living arrangements							
Living with both parents	34.2	65.5	65.8	40.6	20.7	51.6	151
Living with father/not mother	32.2	70.6	72.3	40.8	33.6	62.4	71
Living with mother/not father	41.6	69.9	73.9	43.9	25.3	58.0	295
Not living with either parent	39.4	70.2	72.1	47.8	26.9	58.8	332
Missing	(30.1)	(56.3)	(74.3)	(49.7)	(41.6)	(56.2)	25
Orphanhood status							
Both parents alive	38.5	67.7	70.6	45.2	26.2	56.0	552
Mother dead/father alive	34.8	73.9	67.9	49.2	33.5	64.9	73
Father dead/mother alive	40.1	72.2	76.4	42.3	25.2	61.3	180
Both parents dead	37.4	65.2	71.9	42.4	21.7	51.8	69
OVC status							
Orphan ¹	38.3	71.1	73.5	43.9	26.3	60.1	322
Vulnerable ²	(37.1)	(64.5)	(81.0)	(40.0)	(22.9)	(63.2)	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	*	*	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	38.5	68.0	70.2	45.0	26.2	56.0	533
Total	38.4	68.9	71.7	44.7	26.2	57.5	874

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

 $^{\rm 2}$ Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

Ascertaining places where the youth access HIV/AIDS information is important to strengthen the interventions. Table 18.9 provides information on the percentage of girls and boys age 12-14 who receive information on HIV/AIDS at various places during the 12 months before the survey according to background characteristics. School plays a key role in providing information to children age 12-14; 83 percent of children say that they receive information on HIV/AIDS in schools, 45 percent from health facilities, and 37 percent from religious meetings. Girls are more likely to have received this information than boys. For instance, 85 percent of girls and 81 percent of boys had received information from school. HIV/AIDS information from youth clubs is more accessible to youth in urban areas (31 percent) than to youth in rural areas (14 percent). There are no major regional variations in places where HIV/AIDS information can be accessed.

Table 18.9 Places for information about HIV/AIDS

Percentage of girls and boys age 12-14 receiving information on HIV/AIDS at various places during the 12 months before the survey, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

Background characteristic	School	Youth club	Com- munity meeting	Religious meeting	Health facility	Doctor's office	Pharmacy or chemist	AIDS organi- sation	Local shop/ spaza	Number
Sex										
Female	85.0	18.1	13.7	39.7	49.7	22.3	13.4	31.6	13.1	465
Male	81.0	13.1	12.1	34.5	40.5	14.1	6.0	22.7	10.2	409
Residence										
Urban	91.0	31.0	10.1	46.2	55.6	23.7	14.4	44.1	16.5	104
Rural	82.1	13.7	13.3	36.1	44.0	17.8	9.4	25.1	11.1	769
Region										
Hhohho	80.1	14.1	12.7	38.9	43.2	16.4	8.6	22.9	12.1	228
Manzini	84.9	17.8	11.6	43.1	45.0	17.7	7.8	30.7	12.5	255
Shiselweni	86.4	14.7	15.8	32.8	48.0	22.6	14.5	29.1	11.9	213
Lubombo	80.5	16.3	11.8	32.2	45.6	17.4	9.3	26.4	9.9	178
Living arrangements										
Living with both parents	77.4	13.9	10.2	33.2	36.7	16.2	8.7	24.7	13.4	151
Living with father/not mother	82.6	17.2	10.8	38.6	50.1	24.1	12.2	30.8	8.8	71
Living with mother/not father	87.7	15.7	12.9	40.9	46.4	19.3	11.3	26.5	10.9	295
Not living with either parent	84.0	16.7	14.7	35.6	47.7	17.9	9.0	29.9	12.7	332
Missing	(53.3)	(10.8)	(12.7)	(37.8)	(41.4)	(15.4)	(9.0)	(11.2)	(7.8)	25
Orphanhood status										
Both parents alive	84.7	17.2	13.3	38.4	47.1	19.2	9.8	26.7	12.0	552
Mother dead/father alive	76.2	14.5	14.2	39.1	49.2	19.1	10.0	32.9	10.2	73
Father dead/mother alive	82.3	12.5	13.5	38.0	44.8	16.2	9.9	27.5	13.1	180
Both parents dead	79.9	14.0	7.7	24.7	29.0	18.1	11.6	26.9	7.8	69
OVC status										
Orphan ¹	80.4	13.3	12.4	35.4	42.4	17.3	10.3	28.6	11.3	322
Vulnerable ²	(82.3)	(7.9)	(15.9)	(34.0)	(48.1)	(17.2)	(11.6)	(24.9)	(4.5)	32
Orphan and vulnerable	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	14
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	84.9	17.6	13.3	38.5	46.9	18.8	9.6	26.6	12.2	533
Total	83.1	15.8	12.9	37.3	45.4	18.5	10.0	27.4	11.7	874

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

² Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

18.6 OPINION ON INFORMATION ABOUT HIV/AIDS

Ascertaining youth's opinion on the content of HIV/AIDS information they receive is important for further development of relevant youth messages. Table 18.10 shows that 47 percent of children age 12-14 say that there was too much focus on condoms in the information on HIV/AIDS they had received in the 12 months preceding the survey; 42 percent say that the information was either not enough for them or was confusing. Girls and urban children are more likely than other children to say that the information on HIV/AIDS was too focused on condoms. There are some regional variations with no specific pattern; 58 percent of the children in Manzini feel that the information had too much focus on condoms, and 49 percent of children in Lubombo think that there was not enough information for children. The information was confusing for 46 percent of urban children and 41 percent of rural children.

The table also shows the opinion of children who know about having sex and who report that they have received HIV/AIDS information in the 12 months preceding the survey. Overall, 61 percent think that too much focus was placed on abstinence, and 52 percent think that too much focus was placed on sex. Only 7 percent of children say that the information they received encouraged young people to have sex and 11 percent think that the information taught children that having sex is OK if safe sex is practiced. Again, there are variations across subgroups of children, but there is no specific pattern.

Table 18.10 Opinion on information about HIV/AIDS

Among all children age 12-14, percentage who had various opinions about the information on HIV/AIDS that they received in the 12 months preceding the survey, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percenta HIV/AI	age of all child DS informatio	ren who said n they had re	d that the eceived:		Percentage of all children knowing about having sex who said that the HIV/AIDS information they had received :				Number of
	,//	Did not	r diej ilda i	boontour						
Background	Had too much focus on	have enough information	Was offending or	Was	Number of	Had too much focus on	Had too much focus	Encouraged young people to	Taught children sex is OK if	knowing about the meaning
characteristic	condoms	tor children	upsetting	confusing	children	abstinence	on sex	have sex	it is safe	ot sex
Sex										
Female	50.8	41.0	22.6	40.4	465	59.2	54.5	7.1	12.0	295
Male	42.9	43.4	23.1	42.9	409	63.2	49.3	7.8	10.1	241
Residence										
Urban	54.8	38.6	27.0	46.0	104	54.4	49.7	10.5	8.8	77
Rural	46.1	42.6	22.3	41.0	769	62.1	52.6	6.9	11.6	459
Region										
Hhohho	42.1	39.0	24.3	41.7	228	64.2	48.7	6.4	13.6	123
Manzini	58.0	43.7	22.0	46.3	255	61.0	63.9	10.4	9.8	159
Shiselweni	39.9	38.2	17.5	33.9	213	56.3	39.5	5.4	8.5	138
Lubombo	46.6	48.6	28.6	44.1	178	63.2	54.8	6.9	13.6	116
Living arrangements										
Living with both parents Living with father/not	41.2	41.2	20.9	39.8	151	59.5	46.0	5.0	9.3	89
mother	41.7	52.5	27.1	48.5	71	70.5	80.3	24.0	16.5	40
Living with mother/not										
father	51.5	44.1	22.8	44.2	295	63.3	48.9	7.3	10.8	189
Not living with either parent	47.1	38.8	22.9	38.7	332	58.5	52.4	5.9	12.1	204
Missing	(46.3)	(38.8)	(21.9)	(40.8)	25	*	*	*	*	15
Orphanhood status										
Both parents alive	47.9	43.2	23.8	43.7	552	59.9	52.9	7.7	12.5	337
Mother dead/father alive	49.0	48.4	33.8	40.8	73	62.4	66.6	12.4	11.1	47
Father dead/mother alive	47.3	39.9	21.1	37.5	180	64.9	45.7	5.5	10.0	106
Both parents dead	38.0	32.6	8.3	36.6	69	58.2	47.2	4.6	3.8	46
OVC status										
Orphan ¹	45.7	40.3	21.2	38.0	322	62.8	51.0	6.9	8.9	199
Vulnerable ²	(45.3)	(46.8)	(32.9)	(33.2)	32	*	*	*	*	15
Orphan and vulnerable Neither orphan nor	*	*	*	*	14	*	*	*	*	6
vulnerable	47.8	42.8	23.6	44.1	533	60.9	52.3	7.9	12.9	328
Total	47.1	42.1	22.8	41.6	874	61.0	52.2	7.4	11.2	536

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

18.7 KNOWLEDGE OF HIV/AIDS HELP LINE

Table 18.11 is presented to provide information on the knowledge of girls and boys age 12-14 about HIV/AIDS information through telephone. Overall, 18 percent of girls and boys know about HIV/AIDS information by telephone; 22 percent of girls and 12 percent of boys. Among those who know about the HIV/AIDS Help line, 35 percent mention the AIDS help line and 12 percent cite TASC. More than half of these children mention other sources. As expected, children in urban areas and in Manzini are more likely than children living elsewhere to know about the HIV/AIDS information through the HIV/AIDS hotline.

Table 18 11	Knowledge of HIV	AIDS help line
	KIIOWIEUge OFFITV	/AIDS HEIP IIIE

Percentage of girls and boys age 12-14 who know about HIV/AIDS information by telephone or help line, and among those who know about HIV/AIDS telephone or help line, percentage who know specific source of information, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

	Percent who know about HIV/AIDS information	Number	Among th hotline, pe	Number of children age 12-14 who know about HIV/AIDS		
Background characteristic	by telephone or help line	of children	AIDS help line	TASC	Other	telephone or help line
Sov	of help line	ormanon	noip inte	1,100	outer	
Female	22.3	465	333	13.1	56.3	104
Male	12.3	409	39.5	8.6	56.0	50
Residence						
Urban	21.4	104	49.7	18.2	40.5	22
Rural	17.1	769	32.9	10.5	58.9	132
Region						
Hhohho	18.2	228	45.2	12.2	42.6	41
Manzini	20.6	255	43.2	5.9	62.2	52
Shiselweni	11.9	213	26.2	8.7	61.0	25
Lubombo	19.6	178	18.5	21.8	59.9	35
Living arrangements						
Living with both parents	17.2	151	39.4	6.2	59.3	26
Living with father/not mother	16.5	71	57.0	17.3	31.1	12
Living with mother/not father	21.0	295	30.8	10.2	63.9	62
Not living with either parent	15.6	332	35.8	13.3	50.8	52
Missing	(11.6)	25	0.0	38.8	61.2	3
Orphanhood status						
Both parents alive	19.4	552	34.6	11.4	59.6	107
Mother dead/father alive	14.3	73	49.5	20.1	30.4	11
Father dead/mother alive	15.0	180	26.8	9.7	59.8	27
Both parents dead	13.7	69	*	*	*	9
OVC status						
Orphan ¹	14.6	322	37.0	12.3	48.5	47
Vulnerable ²	(15.7)	32	*	*	*	5
Orphan and vulnerable	*	14	*	*		1
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	19.3	533	36.0	11.8	58.0	103
Total	17.6	874	35.3	11.7	56.2	154

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

18.8 DISCUSSION ABOUT HIV/AIDS

In the SDHS, children age 12-14 were also asked whether they discussed the topic of HIV/AIDS with their caregiver, parents, friends, or any other person. Table 18.12 provides the results. One in three children had discussed HIV/AIDS with parents or caregivers and 31 percent discussed it with other children. In general, girls and children who live in urban areas are more likely than other children to have discussed HIV/AIDS with anyone. For example, 40 percent of girls say they discuss HIV/AIDS with their parents compared with 25 percent of boys.

Table 18.12 Discussion about HIV/AIDS

Among children age 12-14, percentage who ever discussed HIV/AIDS with parents/caregivers and with other kids with whom they mix and percentage reporting they had discussed HIV/AIDS with someone in the months before the survey, and, among those discussing HIV/AIDS recently, percentage mentioning they had discussed the topic with specific individuals, according to background characteristics, Swaziland, 2006

	Ever dis HIV//	Ever discussed HIV/AIDS			Percentage of children who discussed HIV/AIDS in the past month who mentioned talking about the topic with:				Number of children discussing
Background characteristic	With parents/ caregiver	With other children	month before survey	Number of children	A parent	Friend	Teacher	Other persons	HIV/AIDS in the past month
Sex Female Male	40.2 24.7	31.0 30.6	32.9 27.5	465 409	18.3 7.2	50.3 69.9	29.5 29.9	27.6 14.3	153 112
Residence Urban Rural	47.7 30.9	35.5 30.2	41.1 28.9	104 769	17.4 12.8	68.3 56.7	12.4 33.0	31.4 20.2	43 222
Region Hhohho Manzini Shiselweni Lubombo	35.1 36.6 30.0 28.5	27.8 30.0 34.9 30.9	28.8 37.4 27.5 25.7	228 255 213 178	9.8 17.6 17.2 5.9	55.7 53.8 58.4 73.0	30.8 34.0 24.7 25.5	22.6 22.7 19.8 22.2	66 95 59 46
Living arrangements Living with both parents Living with father/not mother Living with mother/not father Not living with either parent Missing	30.3 25.4 37.0 33.3 (17.8)	33.2 25.9 28.6 32.5 (33.1)	31.4 18.1 33.8 29.1 (34.7)	151 71 295 332 25	13.5 0.0 19.0 10.0 *	65.7 63.2 59.0 54.9 *	30.3 35.4 30.0 28.3 *	15.9 35.1 16.6 28.8 *	47 13 99 97 9
Orphanhood status Both parents alive Mother dead/father alive Father dead/mother alive Both parents dead	35.9 23.1 30.6 26.0	32.8 34.8 25.4 24.1	34.1 21.0 26.5 20.2	552 73 180 69	15.2 * (11.7) *	59.4 * (57.2) *	29.2 * (33.5) *	20.5 * (18.5) *	188 15 48 14
OVC status Orphan ¹ Vulnerable ² Orphan and vulnerable Neither orphan nor vulnerable	27.9 31.8 * 35.9	27.3 40.7 * 32.8	23.9 36.7 * 33.9	322 32 14 533	9.5 * 15.9	56.6 * * 58.4	30.9 * 28.8	25.6 * 20.9	77 12 4 180
Total	32.9	30.8	30.4	874	13.6	58.6	29.7	22.0	265

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

When asked if they had discussed the subject in the past month, a majority of children (59 percent) say that they discussed it with a friend, 30 percent discussed it with a teacher, and 22 percent talked with other persons. It is interesting to note that parents are the children's least likely choice of contact to talk about HIV/AIDS (14 percent). Further, girls are much more likely to discuss HIV/AIDS with a parent than boys (18 percent and 7 percent, respectively).

In both urban and rural areas, most children talk about HIV/AIDS with their friends (68 percent in urban areas and 57 percent in rural areas). However, teachers play a much more important role in rural areas as a contact point for information on HIV/AIDS than in urban areas (33 percent compared with 12 percent).

When asked who would they like to discuss HIV/AIDS with, both girls and boys choose their friends (32 percent) (Table 18.13). Parents come second (26 percent), followed by other relatives (20 percent). Only 12 percent mention teachers. Other than friends, girls tend to mention parent or caregiver (30 percent) and other relatives (22 percent). Boys are more likely than girls to say that they want to discuss HIV/AIDS with their teacher (15 percent compared with 10 percent).

Table 18.13	Persons with	whom	youth	would like
to discuss HI	V/AIDS		,	

Percentage of children age 12-14 years who mentioned that they would like to discuss HIV/AIDS with various people in the last 12 months by specific individuals, according to sex, Swaziland 2006-07

Would like to talk about HIV/AIDS with:	Male	Female	Total
Parent/caregiver	22.0	29.8	26.2
Other relative	17.8	21.6	19.8
Friend	33.3	30.3	31.7
Teacher	14.7	9.8	12.1
Other	4.5	4.1	4.3
Number	409	465	874

18.9 KNOWLEDGE OF PLACES TO BE TESTED FOR THE AIDS VIRUS

The survey also investigated whether girls and boys age 12-14 know where one can be tested for the AIDS virus. Overall, only half of children age 12-14 in the survey know of a place for AIDS testing (Table 18.14). Girls are more likely than boys to know where to go for the AIDS testing (55 percent compared with 48 percent). Urban children are also more likely than rural children to know a place for AIDS testing (65 percent compared with 50 percent).

A government health facility is the most often cited place of testing for the AIDS virus (59 percent), followed by a private or mission facility (24 percent), and FLAS/TASC and other NGOs (20 percent). Children in rural areas are much more likely than those in urban areas to mention a government facility (64 percent compared with 37 percent).

Table 18.14 Knowledge of place to be tested for AIDS virus

Percentage of girls and boys age 12-14 who know about a place to be tested for the AIDS virus, according to background characteristics, Swaziland 2006-07

-			Among cł	nildren kno	wing place	to be	
	Percent who		tested,	percentag	e mentioni	ng:	Number of
	know place		,	1 0	FLAS/	0	children who
	to be tested	Number		Private/	TASC/		know place to
Background	for the	of	Government	mission	other		be tested for
characteristic	AIDS virus	children	facility	facility	NGOs	Other	AIDS virus
Sev			,	,			
Female	54.6	465	58.5	21.0	20.4	2.5	254
Male	47.5	409	60.7	28.5	19.0	1.6	194
Residence							
Urban	64.5	104	36.5	33.4	38.7	0.6	67
Rural	49.5	769	63.5	22.6	16.5	2.4	381
Region							
Hoobo	51 5	228	63.4	10.0	22.6	0.8	117
Manzini	53.2	255	44 1	33.8	32.0	17	136
Shiselweni	48.3	233	86.8	39	6.8	2.0	103
Lubombo	51.7	178	46.3	51.2	12.2	4.6	92
Labornio							
Living arrangements							
Living with both parents	52.2	151	54.2	28.0	16.0	1.2	79
Living with father/not mother	48.5	71	(59.6)	(19.1)	(18.4)	(8.2)	34
Living with mother/not father	52.0	295	61.5	23.2	17.3	1.4	153
Not living with either parent	51.9	332	57.8	25.8	24.5	2.1	173
Missing	(36.4)	25	*	*	*	*	9
Ornhanhood status							
Both parents alive	533	552	55.9	22.1	20.6	2.2	294
Mother dead/father alive	49.3	73	(73.0)	(26.1)	(9.4)	(5.7)	36
Eather dead/mother alive	47.9	180	60.3	33.3	19.5	12	86
Both parents dead	45.5	69	(74.4)	(17.4)	(25.3)	(0.0)	31
·				. ,	. ,	. ,	
OVC status							
Orphan ¹	47.7	322	66.2	28.3	18.3	2.0	154
Vulnerable ²	(45.7)	32	*	*	*	*	15
Orphan and vulnerable	*	14	*	*	*	*	5
Neither orphan nor vulnerable	53.4	533	56.4	20.9	20.9	2.3	285
Total	51.3	874	59.4	24.2	19.8	2.1	448

Note: Figures in parentheses are based on 25-49 unweighted cases. An asterisk indicates that an estimate is based on fewer than 25 unweighted cases and has been suppressed.

¹ One or both parents dead

² Have a very sick parent or live in a household where an adult has been very sick or died in the past 12 months

FLAS = The Family Life Association of Swaziland

TSAC = The AIDS Information and Support Centre

NGO = Non-governmental organisation

REFERENCES

Auvert, B., D. Taljaard, E. Lagarde, J. Sobngwi-Tambekou, R. Sitta, and A. Puren. 2005. Randomized, controlled intervention trial of male circumcision for reduction of HIV infection risk: The ANRS 1265 trial. *PLoS Medicine* 2(11): 1112-1122.

Awasthi, S., D.A.P. Bundy, and L. Savioli. 2003. Helminthic infections. *British Medical Journal* 327(7412): 431-433.

Brookes, H., O. Shisana, and L. Richter. 2004. *The national household HIV prevalence and risk survey of South African children*. Cape Town: Human Sciences Research Council.

Brown, K., K. Dewey, L. Allen, and R. Saadeh. 1998. Complementary feeding of young children in developing countries: a review of current scientific knowledge. Geneva: World Health Organization.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland]. [1976]. *Report on the 1976 Swaziland Population and Housing Census*. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland]. [1986]. *Report on the 1986 Swaziland Population and Housing Census*. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland]. [1991]. *Report on the 1991 Demographic and Housing Survey, volume 1*. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland]. [1997]. *Report on the 1997 Swaziland Population and Housing Census*. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland]. 2003. Swaziland Household Income and Expenditure Survey, 2000-2001. Mbabane, Swaziland: Central Statistical Office.

Central Statistical Office (CSO) [Swaziland], and Centers for Disease Control (CDC). 1990. *Swaziland* 1988 Family Health Survey: final report. Atlanta, Georgia, USA: Centers for Disease Control.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). 1998. Recommendations to prevent and control iron deficiency in the United States. *Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report* 47 (No. RR-3): 1-29.

Gisselquist, D., R. Rothenberg, J. Potterat, and E. Drucker. 2002. HIV infections in sub-Saharan Africa not explained by sexual or vertical transmission. *International Journal of STD and AIDS* 13(10): 657-666.

Graham, W., W. Brass, and R.W. Snow. 1989. Estimating maternal mortality: the sisterhood method. *Studies in Family Planning 20*(3): 125-135.

Gwatkin, D., S. Rutstein, K. Johnson, R. Pande, and A. Wagstaff. 2000. *Socio-economic differences in health, nutrition, and population*. HNP/Poverty Thematic Group. Washington, D.C.: World Bank.

Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS), and World Health Organization (WHO). 2007. *AIDS epidemic update*. Geneva: UNAIDS.

Kunene, S. 2006. Impact of indoor residual house spraying on malaria in Swaziland. *African Health Monitor* 6(1): 62-65.

Ministry of Health and Social Welfare (MOHSW). 2004. *Report for Swaziland Community Health - 2002*. Mbabane, Swaziland: MOHSW, Reproductive Health Unit.

National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIAID). 2006. *Adult male circumcision significantly reduces risk of acquiring HIV*. Press release (December 16). Washington, D.C.: NIAID.

Pan American Health Organization (PAHO)/World Health Organization (WHO). 2003. *Guiding principles for complementary feeding of the breastfed child*. Washington, D.C: Pan American Health Organization.

Ross et al. 2006 (cited in Youth Section 13.11)

Rutenberg, N., and J. Sullivan. 1991. Direct and indirect estimates of maternal mortality from the sisterhood method. In *Proceedings of the Demographic and Health Surveys World Conference*, Vol. 3, 1669-1696. Columbia, Maryland: IRD/Macro International Inc.

United Nations. 2001. Road map towards the implementation of the United Nations Millennium Declaration: report of the Secretary-General. New York: United Nations, General Assembly.

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF). 2003. Building a world fit for children: the United Nations General Assembly Special Session on Children, 8-10 May 2002. New York: United Nations Children's Fund.

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF). 2005. Guide to monitoring and evaluation of the national response for children orphaned and made vulnerable by HIV/AIDS. New York: United Nations Children's Fund.

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF). 2006. *Child protection information sheets*. New York: United Nations Children's Fund.

World Health Organization (WHO). 1999. International consultation on environmental tobacco smoke (ETS) and child health: 11-14 January 1999, Geneva, Switzerland: consultation report. Geneva: Tobacco Free Initiative, World Health Organization.

World Health Organization (WHO). 2002. The world health report 2002: reducing risks, promoting healthy lives. Geneva: World Health Organization.

World Health Organization (WHO). 2005. *Guiding principles on feeding non-breastfed children 6 to 24 months of age*. Geneva: World Health Organization.

World Health Organization (WHO). 2006. WHO child growth standards: length/height-for-age, weight-for-age, weight-for-length, weight-for-height and body mass index-for-age: methods and development. Geneva: World Health Organization.

WHO/UNICEF Joint Monitoring Programme for Water Supply and Sanitation. 2004. *Meeting the MDG drinking water and sanitation target: a mid-term assessment of progress*. Geneva: World Health Organization and United Nations Children's Fund.

WHO/UNICEF Joint Monitoring Programme for Water Supply and Sanitation. 2005. *Water for life: making it happen*. Geneva: World Health Organization and United Nations Children's Fund.



Table A.1 Sample implementation: Women 15-49

Percent distribution of households and eligible women 15-49 by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible women 15-49 and overall women 15-49 response rates, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted), Swaziland 2006-07

	Resi	dence		Region			
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total
Selected households							
Completed (C)	84.7	90.3	85.5	86.3	89.5	91.9	88.1
Household present but no competent							
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.2	1.3	1.4	0.9	0.4	1.0
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.2
Refused (R)	5.2	1.5	4.6	3.9	1.5	1.4	3.0
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.3	0.1	0.4	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.2
Household absent (HA)	2.1	1.9	2.4	1.6	2.8	1.3	2.0
Dwelling vacant/address not a							
dwelling (DV)	5.6	3.9	4.7	5.3	3.8	4.3	4.6
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.7	0.8	0.7	0.8	1.2	0.4	0.8
Other (O)	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of sampled households	2,220	3,280	1,500	1,580	1,080	1,340	5,500
Household response rate (HRR)	92.7	96.9	93.0	93.5	97.3	97.9	95.2
Eligible women							
Completed (EWC)	91.8	95.1	93.1	92.8	96.0	95.0	94.1
Not at home (EWNH)	2.9	2.0	2.4	3.1	1.2	2.0	2.3
Postponed (EWP)	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.0
Refused (EWR)	4.5	1.5	3.1	3.0	1.8	1.7	2.5
Partly completed (EWPC)	0.3	0.1	0.0	0.3	0.0	0.3	0.2
Incapacitated (EWI)	0.3	1.1	1.1	0.4	1.0	0.9	0.8
Other (EWO)	0.2	0.1	0.4	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of women	1,682	3,619	1,357	1,589	1,128	1,227	5,301
Eligible women response rate (EWRR)	91.8	95.1	93.1	92.8	96.0	95.0	94.1
Overall response rate (ORR)	85.1	92.2	86.6	86.8	93.4	93.1	89.6

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

100 * C

C + HP + P + R + DNF

 2 Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EWC

EWC + EWNH + EWP + EWR + EWPC + EWI + EWO

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EWRR/100

Table A.2 Sample implementation: Men 15-49

Percent distribution of households and eligible men 15-49 by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible men 15-49 and overall men 15-49 response rates, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted) Swaziland 2006-07

	Resid	dence		Re	egion		
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total
Selected households							
Completed (C)	84.7	90.3	85.5	86.3	89.5	91.9	88.1
Household present but no competent							
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.2	1.3	1.4	0.9	0.4	1.0
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.2
Refused (R)	5.2	1.5	4.6	3.9	1.5	1.4	3.0
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.3	0.1	0.4	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.2
Household absent (HA)	2.1	1.9	2.4	1.6	2.8	1.3	2.0
Dwelling vacant/address not a							
dwelling (DV)	5.6	3.9	4.7	5.3	3.8	4.3	4.6
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.7	0.8	0.7	0.8	1.2	0.4	0.8
Other (O)	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of sampled households	2,220	3,280	1,500	1,580	1,080	1,340	5,500
Household response rate (HRR)	92.7	96.9	93.0	93.5	97.3	97.9	95.2
Eligible men							
Completed (EMC)	88.0	89.4	88.8	86.8	88.7	91.5	88.9
Not at home (EMNH)	4.2	4.4	3.8	5.8	3.6	3.9	4.4
Postponed (EMP)	0.0	0.2	0.3	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.1
Refused (EMR)	7.0	4.3	5.9	6.1	5.5	3.4	5.2
Partly completed (EMPC)	0.2	0.3	0.2	0.4	0.2	0.2	0.3
Incapacitated (EMI)	0.5	1.4	1.0	1.0	1.9	0.9	1.1
Other (EMO)	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.0
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of men	1,638	3,037	1,147	1,367	945	1,216	4,675
Eligible men response rate (EMRR)	88.0	89.4	88.8	86.8	88.7	91.5	88.9
Overall response rate (ORR)	81.6	86.6	82.7	81.2	86.3	89.6	84.7

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

100 * C

$$C + HP + P + R + DNF$$

 2 Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EMC

EMC + EMNH + EMP + EMR + EMPC + EMI + EMO

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EMRR/100

Table A.3 Sample implementation: Girls 12-14

Percent distribution of households and eligible girls by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible girls and overall response rates for girls, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted) Swaziland 2006-07

	Resi	dence	Region				
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total
Selected households							
Completed (C)	84.4	89.8	84.1	86.7	89.8	90.9	87.6
Household present but no competent							
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.4	0.7	0.4	1.0
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.2
Refused (R)	5.9	1.8	5.6	4.1	1.7	1.6	3.4
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.5	0.1	0.7	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2
Household absent (HA)	2.3	2.1	3.1	1.5	2.4	1.6	2.1
Dwelling vacant/address not a							
dwelling (DV)	5.2	4.0	4.3	5.1	3.7	4.8	4.5
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.5	0.9	0.7	0.6	1.1	0.4	0.7
Other (Ö)	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.0	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of sampled households	1 1 1 1 0	1 640	750	790	540	670	2 750
Household response rate (HRR)	91.9	96.7	91.6	93.7	97.2	97.6	94.8
Eligible girls 12 14							
Completed (ECC)	06.2	06.2	05.0	07.0	07.2	05.5	06.2
Not at home (ECNIH)	26	90.2	93.0 1 7	2.0	37.3	9J.J 1.9	30.2
Parent refused (ECPR)	2.0	2.5	1.7	5.0	2.7	1.0	2.5
Vouth refused (ECP)	1.5	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	1.0	0.0
Incapacitated (ECI)	0.0	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.9	0.2
incapacitated (EGI)	0.0	0.0	2.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of girls 12-14	78	399	119	134	113	111	477
Eligible girls 12-14 response rate (EGRR)	96.2	96.2	95.0	97.0	97.3	95.5	96.2
Overall response rate (ORR)	88.3	93.1	87.0	90.9	94.6	93.2	91.2

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

$\frac{100 * C}{C + HP + P + R + DNF}$

² Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EGC

$$EGC + EGNH + EGPR + EGR + EGI$$

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EGRR/100

Table A.4 Sample implementation: Boys 12-14

Percent distribution of households and eligible boys by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible boys and overall response rates for boys, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted) Swaziland 2006-07

	Resi	dence		Region				
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total	
Selected households								
Completed (C)	84.4	89.8	84.1	86.7	89.8	90.9	87.6	
Household present but no competent								
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.4	0.7	0.4	1.0	
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.2	
Refused (R)	5.9	1.8	5.6	4.1	1.7	1.6	3.4	
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.5	0.1	0.7	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2	
Household absent (HA)	2.3	2.1	3.1	1.5	2.4	1.6	2.1	
Dwelling vacant/address not a								
dwelling (DV)	5.2	4.0	4.3	5.1	3.7	4.8	4.5	
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.5	0.9	0.7	0.6	1.1	0.4	0.7	
Other (O)	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.0	0.2	
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	
Number of sampled households	1.110	1.640	750	790	540	670	2.750	
Household response rate (HRR)	91.9	96.7	91.6	93.7	97.2	97.6	94.8	
Eligible boys 12-14								
Completed (EBC)	88.7	94.4	94.0	95.7	90.5	94.0	93.6	
Not at home (EBNH)	3.2	2.4	1.7	1.7	5.7	1.0	2.5	
Parent refused (EBPR)	4.8	1.1	3.4	0.9	0.0	2.0	1.6	
Refused (EBR)	1.6	0.8	0.0	0.9	1.9	1.0	0.9	
Partly completed (EBPC)	1.6	0.8	0.9	0.9	1.9	0.0	0.9	
Incapacitated (EBI)	0.0	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	2.0	0.5	
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	
Number of boys 12-14	62	377	117	117	105	100	439	
Eligible boys 12-14 response rate (EBRR)	88.7	94.4	94.0	95.7	90.5	94.0	93.6	
Overall response rate (ORR)	81.5	91.3	86.1	89.7	87.9	91.7	88.7	

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

100 * C

C + HP + P + R + DNF

² Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EBC

$$EBC + EBNH + EBPR + EBR + EBPC + EBI$$

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EBRR/100

Table A.5 Sample implementation: Women age 50+

Percent distribution of households and eligible women 50 and older by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible women 50 and older and overall response rates for women 50 and older, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted) Swaziland 2006-07

	Resid	dence					
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total
Selected households							
Completed (C)	84.4	89.8	84.1	86.7	89.8	90.9	87.6
Household present but no competent							
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.4	0.7	0.4	1.0
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.2
Refused (R)	5.9	1.8	5.6	4.1	1.7	1.6	3.4
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.5	0.1	0.7	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2
Household absent (HA)	2.3	2.1	3.1	1.5	2.4	1.6	2.1
Dwelling vacant/address not a							
dwelling (DV)	5.2	4.0	4.3	5.1	3.7	4.8	4.5
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.5	0.9	0.7	0.6	1.1	0.4	0.7
Other (O)	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.0	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of complex households	1 1 1 0	1 6 4 0	750	700	F 40	670	2 750
Household response rate (HPP)	01.0	06 7	/ 50	/90	07.2	070	2,750
Household response rate (HKK)	91.9	90.7	91.0	95.7	97.2	97.0	94.0
Eligible women age 50+							
Completed (EW50C)	91.2	96.2	94.6	95.1	95.9	96.1	95.4
Not at home (EW50NH)	0.9	0.7	0.6	0.0	1.5	0.8	0.7
Refused (EW50R)	6.1	0.7	3.0	1.5	0.5	1.6	1.6
Incapacitated (EW50I)	1.8	2.4	1.8	3.4	2.1	1.6	2.3
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of women age 50+	114	579	167	203	194	129	693
Fligible women age $50 \pm response$ rate		27.5		200		5	
(EW50RR)	91.2	96.2	94.6	95.1	95.9	96.1	95.4
Overall response rate (ORR)	83.8	93.0	86.6	89.1	93.2	93.8	90.4

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

$\frac{100 * C}{C + HP + P + R + DNF}$

 2 Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EW50C

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EW50RR/100

Table A.6 Sample implementation: Men age 50+

Percent distribution of households and eligible men 50 and older by results of the household and individual interviews, and household, eligible men 50 and older and overall response rates for men 50 and older, according to urban-rural residence and region (unweighted) Swaziland 2006-07

	Resi	dence					
Result	Urban	Rural	Hhohho	Manzini	Shiselweni	Lubombo	Total
Selected households							
Completed (C)	84.4	89.8	84.1	86.7	89.8	90.9	87.6
Household present but no competent							
respondent at home (HP)	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.4	0.7	0.4	1.0
Postponed (P)	0.3	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.2
Refused (R)	5.9	1.8	5.6	4.1	1.7	1.6	3.4
Dwelling not found (DNF)	0.5	0.1	0.7	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.2
Household absent (HA)	2.3	2.1	3.1	1.5	2.4	1.6	2.1
Dwelling vacant/address not a							
dwelling (DV)	5.2	4.0	4.3	5.1	3.7	4.8	4.5
Dwelling destroyed (DD)	0.5	0.9	0.7	0.6	1.1	0.4	0.7
Other (Ö)	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.0	0.2
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of sampled households	1,110	1,640	750	790	540	670	2,750
Household response rate (HRR)	91.9	96.7	91.6	93.7	97.2	97.6	94.8
Eligible men age 50+							
Completed (EM50C)	86.5	94.5	91.2	91.7	98.0	90.7	92.7
Not at home (EM50NH)	4.5	1.6	1.5	4.1	0.0	2.8	2.2
Refused (EM50R)	7.2	1.0	3.6	0.7	1.0	4.6	2.4
Partly completed (EM50PR)	0.0	0.3	0.0	0.7	0.0	0.0	0.2
Incapacitated (EM50I)	1.8	2.6	3.6	2.8	1.0	1.9	2.4
Total	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Number of men age 50+	111	381	137	145	102	108	492
Eligible men age $50 +$ response rate)							
(EM50RR)	86.5	94.5	91.2	91.7	98.0	90.7	92.7
Overall response rate (ORR)	79.4	91.4	83.6	86.0	95.3	88.6	87.8

¹ Using the number of households falling into specific response categories, the household response rate (HRR) is calculated as:

100 * C

$$C + HP + P + R + DNF$$

 2 Using the number of eligible women falling into specific response categories, the eligible woman response rate (EWRR) is calculated as:

100 * EM50C

³ The overall response rate (ORR) is calculated as:

ORR = HRR * EM50RR/100

The estimates from a sample survey are affected by two types of errors: (1) non-sampling errors, and (2) sampling errors. Non-sampling errors are the results of mistakes made in implementing data collection and data processing, such as failure to locate and interview the correct household, misunderstanding of the questions on the part of either the interviewer or the respondent, and data entry errors. Although numerous efforts were made during the implementation of the 2006-07 Swaziland Demographic and Health Survey (SDHS) to minimize this type of error, non-sampling errors are impossible to avoid and difficult to evaluate statistically.

Sampling errors, on the other hand, can be evaluated statistically. The sample of respondents selected in the 2006-07 SDHS is only one of many samples that could have been selected from the same population, using the same design and expected size. Each of these samples would yield results that differ somewhat from the results of the actual sample selected. Sampling errors are a measure of the variability between all possible samples. Although the degree of variability is not known exactly, it can be estimated from the survey results.

A sampling error is usually measured in terms of the *standard error* for a particular statistic (mean, percentage, etc.), which is the square root of the variance. The standard error can be used to calculate confidence intervals within which the true value for the population can reasonably be assumed to fall. For example, for any given statistic calculated from a sample survey, the value of that statistic will fall within a range of plus or minus two times the standard error of that statistic in 95 percent of all possible samples of identical size and design.

If the sample of respondents had been selected as a simple random sample, it would have been possible to use straightforward formulas for calculating sampling errors. However, the 2006-07 SDHS sample is the result of a multi-stage stratified design, and, consequently, it was necessary to use more complex formulae. The computer software used to calculate sampling errors for the 2006-07 SDHS is the ISSA Sampling Error Module. This module used the Taylor linearization method of variance estimation for survey estimates that are means or proportions. The Jackknife repeated replication method is used for variance estimation of more complex statistics such as fertility and mortality rates.

The Taylor linearization method treats any percentage or average as a ratio estimate, r = y/x, where y represents the total sample value for variable y, and x represents the total number of cases in the group or subgroup under consideration. The variance of r is computed using the formula given below, with the standard error being the square root of the variance:

$$SE^{2}(r) = var(r) = \frac{1-f}{x^{2}} \sum_{h=1}^{H} \left[\frac{m_{h}}{m_{h}-1} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{m_{h}} z_{hi}^{2} - \frac{z_{h}^{2}}{m_{h}} \right) \right]$$

in which

$$z_{hi} = y_{hi} - rx_{hi}$$
, and $z_h = y_h - rx_h$

where h represents the stratum which varies from 1 to H, m_h is the total number of clusters selected in the h^{th} stratum, y_{hi} is the sum of the weighted values of variable y in the i^{th} cluster in the h^{th} stratum, x_{hi} is the sum of the weighted number of cases in the i^{th} cluster in the h^{th} stratum, and f is the overall sampling fraction, which is so small that it is ignored.

The Jackknife repeated replication method derives estimates of complex rates from each of several replications of the parent sample, and calculates standard errors for these estimates using simple formulae. Each replication considers *all but one* cluster in the calculation of the estimates. Pseudo-independent replications are thus created. In the 2006-07 NDHS, there were 275 non-empty clusters. Hence, 275 replications were created. The variance of a rate r is calculated as follows:

$$SE^{2}(r) = var(r) = \frac{1}{k(k-1)}\sum_{i=1}^{k} (r_{i} - r)^{2}$$

in which

$$r_i = kr - (k-1)r_{(i)}$$

where r

r is the estimate computed from the full sample of 275 clusters,

- $r_{(i)}$ is the estimate computed from the reduced sample of 274 clusters (i^{th} cluster excluded), and
- *k* is the total number of clusters.

In addition to the standard error, ISSA computes the design effect (DEFT) for each estimate, which is defined as the ratio between the standard error using the given sample design and the standard error that would result if a simple random sample had been used. A DEFT value of 1.0 indicates that the sample design is as efficient as a simple random sample, while a value greater than 1.0 indicates the increase in the sampling error due to the use of a more complex and less statistically efficient design. ISSA also computes the relative error and confidence limits for the estimates.

Sampling errors for the 2006-07 SDHS are calculated for selected variables considered to be of primary interest for woman's survey and for man's surveys, respectively. The results are presented in this appendix for the country as a whole, for urban and rural areas, and for each of the eleven regions. For each variable, the type of statistic (mean, proportion, or rate) and the base population are given in Table B.1. Tables B.2 to B.8 present the value of the statistic (R), its standard error (SE), the number of unweighted (N-UNWE) and weighted (N-WEIG) cases, the design effect (DEFT), the relative standard error (SE/R), and the 95 percent confidence limits ($R\pm 2SE$), for each variable. The DEFT is considered undefined when the standard error considering simple random sample is zero (when the estimate is close to 0 or 1). In the case of the total fertility rate, the number of unweighted cases is not relevant, as there is no known unweighted value for woman-years of exposure to child-bearing.

The confidence interval (e.g., as calculated for *children ever born to women aged 40-49*) can be interpreted as follows: the overall average from the national sample is 5.339 and its standard error is 0.118. Therefore, to obtain the 95 percent confidence limits, one adds and subtracts twice the standard error to the sample estimate, i.e., $5.339 \pm 2 \times 0.118$. There is a high probability (95 percent) that the *true* average number of children ever born to all women aged 40 to 49 is between 5.103 and 5.575.

Sampling errors are analyzed for two separate groups of estimates: (1) means and proportions, and (2) complex demographic rates. At the national level, mostly relative standard error values (SE/R) for the means and proportions are below 10 percent, however the highest relative standard error values are for indicators with very low values (i.e. less than 2 percent). So in general, the relative standard errors for most estimates for the country as a whole are small, except for indicators with very small values, i.e. for estimates which are rare in the population. For example, the relative standard error for the total fertility rate (TFR 0-3 years) is small (2.9 percent) since births are a fairly common event. However, for the mortality rates which are rarer events, the average relative standard error value is higher; for example, the relative standard error for the 0-4 year estimate of mortality rates is 9.4 percent.

The relative standard error varies across sub-populations. For example, for the variable *children ever born to women aged 40-49*, the relative standard errors as a percent of the estimated mean for the whole country, for the urban areas and for the rural areas are 2.2 percent, 4.2 percent and 2.5 percent, respectively.

For the total sample, the value of the design effect (DEFT), averaged over all selected variables, is 1.15 which means that, due to multi-stage clustering of the sample, the average standard error is increased by a factor of 1.15 over that in an equivalent simple random sample.

Table B.1 List of selected variables for sampling errors, Swaziland 2006-07

Variable	Estimate	Base population
	WO	MEN
Urban residence	Proportion	All women 15-49
Literate	Proportion	All women 15-49
No education	Proportion	All women 15-49
Secondary education or higher	Proportion	All women 15-49
Net attendance ratio for primary school	Ratio	Children 7-12 years
Never married	Proportion	All women 15-49
Currently in union	Proportion	All women 15-49
Married before age 20	Proportion	Women age 20-49
Had sexual intercourse before age 18	Proportion	Women age 20-49
Currently pregnant	Mean	All women 15-49
Children ever born	Mean	All women 15-49
Children surviving	Mean	All women 15-49
Children ever born to women age 40-49	Mean	Women 40-49
Knows any contraceptive method	Proportion	All women 15-49
Ever using contraceptive method	Proportion	All women 15-49
Currently using any contraceptive method	Proportion	All women 15-49
Currently using ILID	Proportion	All women 15-49
Currently using formale starilisation	Proportion	All women 15-49
Currently using rethate sternisation	Proportion	All women 15-49
Obtained method from public sector source	Proportion	All usors
Want no more children	Proportion	All women 15-49
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	Proportion	All women 15-49
Ideal family size	Mean	All women 15-49
Perinatal mortality (0-4 years)	Ratio	Number of pregnancies of $7 \pm$ months
Mothers received tetanus injection for last birth	Proportion	Women with at least one live birth in past 5 years
Mothers received medical assistance at delivery	Proportion	Births in past five years
Had diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	Proportion	Children 0-59 months
Treated with oral rehydration salts (ORS)	Proportion	Children with diarrhoea in past 2 weeks
Taken to a health provider	Proportion	Children with diarrhoea in past 2 weeks
Vaccination card seen	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Received BCG	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Received DPT (3 doses)	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Received polio (3 doses)	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Received measles	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Fully immunized	Proportion	Children 12-23 months
Height-for-age (below -2SD)	Proportion	Children 0-59 months
Weight-for-height (below -2SD)	Proportion	Children 0-59 months
Weight-for-age (below -2SD)	Proportion	Children 0-59 months
Anaemia in children	Proportion	Children 0-59 months
Anaemia in women	Proportion	All women 15-49
BMI <18.5	Proportion	All women 15-49
Use condom at last high-risk sex	Proportion	All women who has intercourse in past 12 months
Use condom at last high-risk sex (15-24)	Proportion	Women 15-24 who has intercourse in past 12 months
Had High risk Intercourse	Proportion	All women who has intercourse in past 12 months
Abstinence among youth (never had sex)	Proportion	All women 15-24
Sexually active past 12 months never married youth	Proportion	All women 15-24
Had injection past 12 months	Proportion	All women
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	Proportion	All women who have heard of http://AIDS
Total fortility rate (past 2 years)	Proportion	All women
Noopatal mortality (past 5 years)	Rate	Children exposed to the risk of mortality
Post-neonatal mortality (past 5 years)	Rate	Children exposed to the risk of mortality
Infant mortality (past 5 years)	Rate	Children exposed to the risk of mortality
Child mortality (past 5 years)	Rate	Children exposed to the risk of mortality
Under-five mortality (past 5 years)	Rate	Children exposed to the risk of mortality
HIV prevalence (15-49)	Proportion	All women 15-49 tested for HIV
HIV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	Proportion	All pregnant women 15-49 tested for HIV
HIV prevalence (15-24)	Proportion	All women 15-24 tested for HIV
	. oporaon	Continued
		continued

Table B.1—Continued		
V	Estimate	Decementation
variable	Estimate	Base population
	MEN	
Urban residence	Proportion	All men 15-49
Literate	Proportion	All men 15-49
No education	Proportion	All men 15-49
Secondary education or higher	Proportion	All men 15-49
Never married	Proportion	All men 15-49
Currently married/in union	Proportion	All men 15-49
Married before age 20	Proportion	Men 20-49
Had sexual intercourse before 18	Proportion	Men 20-49
Children ever born	Mean	Currently married men
Ever used any contraceptive method	Proportion	Currentlý married men
Knows any contraceptive method	Proportion	Currently married men
Want no more children	Proportion	Currentlý married men
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	Proportion	Currentlý married men
Ideal family size	Mean	All men 15-49
Use condom at last high-risk sex	Proportion	All men 15-49 with high risk intercourse
Condom use last higher-risk intercourse (youth)	Proportion	Men 15-24 with high risk intercourse
Abstinence among youth (Never had intercourse)	Proportion	Men 15-24
Sexual active past 12 months (never married youth)	Proportion	Men 15-24
Had injection past 12 months	Proportion	All men 15-49
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	Proportion	All men 15-49
HIV test and result in past 12 months	Proportion	All men 15-49
Multipartners in past 12 months	Proportion	All men 15-49 with 2+ sexual partners in past 12 months
Paid for sex past 12 months	Proportion	All men 15-49
HIV prevalence (15-49)	Proportion	All men 15-49 tested for HIV
HIV prevalence (15-24)	Proportion	All men 15-24 tested for HIV
Paid for sex past 12 months	Proportion	All men 15-49
HIV prevalence (15-49)	Proportion	All men 15-49 tested for HIV
HIV prevalence (15-24)	Proportion	All men 15-24 tested for HIV
	WOMEN AND ME	N
HIV prevalence (15-49)	Proportion	All women and men 15-49 tested for HIV
HIV prevalence (15-24)	Proportion	All women and men 15-24 tested for HIV
1 ' '		

		Chand	Number	of cases		Dele		
	Value	ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	tive error	Confide	ence limits
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(Ň)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		WOM	EN					
rban residence	0.267	0.013	4987	4987	2.066	0.049	0.241	0.293
terate	0.913	0.005	4987	4987	1.197	0.005	0.904	0.923
o education	0.081	0.004	4987	4987	1.131	0.054	0.072	0.089
et attendance ratio for primary school	0.842	0.009	4322	4524	1.356	0.010	0.825	0.860
ever married	0.499	0.008	4987	4987	1.061	0.015	0.484	0.514
urrently married/in union	0.413	0.008	4987	4987	1.099	0.019	0.398	0.429
larried before age 20	0.225	0.008	3722	3713	1.197	0.036	0.209	0.241
ad sexual intercourse before age 18	0.490	0.010	3/22	3/13	1.194	0.020	0.4/1	0.510
hildren ever horn	0.056	0.004	4987	4987	1.131	0.066	0.049	2 360
hildren surviving	2.055	0.034	4987	4987	1.081	0.017	1.986	2.124
hildren ever born to women age 40-49	5.339	0.118	825	820	1.184	0.022	5.103	5.575
nows any contraceptive method	0.999	0.000	2069	2062	0.830	0.000	0.998	1.000
ver using contraceptive method	0.892	0.008	2069	2062	1.205	0.009	0.876	0.908
urrently using any contraceptive method	0.506	0.012	2069	2062	1.062	0.023	0.483	0.530
urrently using pill	0.099	0.007	2069	2062	1.037	0.069	0.085	0.112
urrently using female sterilization	0.014	0.003	2069	2062	1 1 3 1	0.170	0.009	0.019
urrently using rhythm method	0.003	0.001	2069	2062	1.051	0.444	0.000	0.005
btained method from public-sector source	0.446	0.015	1805	1771	1.259	0.033	0.417	0.476
/ant no more children '	0.682	0.012	2069	2062	1.201	0.018	0.658	0.707
/ant to delay birth at least 2 years	0.151	0.008	2069	2062	1.023	0.053	0.135	0.167
leal family size	2.521	0.028	4952	4951	1.319	0.011	2.466	2.577
erinatal mortality (0-4 years)	29.373	3.266	2852	2864	0.983	0.111	22.841	35.904
tothers received medical assistance at delivery	0.070	0.012	2130	2829	1 189	0.017	0.033	0.033
ad diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.134	0.008	2537	2553	1.204	0.063	0.117	0.151
reated with oral rehydration salts (ORS) '	0.855	0.021	347	343	1.052	0.024	0.814	0.896
aken to a health próvider	0.719	0.033	347	343	1.312	0.046	0.653	0.786
accination card seen	0.841	0.016	538	531	0.976	0.019	0.810	0.872
eceived BCG	0.972	0.008	538	531	1.100	0.008	0.956	0.988
eceived DFT (3 doses)	0.917	0.012	538	531	0.962	0.015	0.845	0.940
eceived measles	0.915	0.014	538	531	1.144	0.015	0.887	0.943
ally immunized	0.817	0.018	538	531	1.042	0.022	0.782	0.853
eight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.289	0.010	2771	2940	1.136	0.035	0.269	0.309
/eight-for-height (below -2SD)	0.025	0.003	2771	2940	0.999	0.120	0.019	0.031
/eight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.054	0.004	2771	2940	0.924	0.0/2	0.046	0.062
naemia in children	0.410	0.013	4595	4598	1.510	0.030	0.393	0.444
MI <18.5	0.032	0.003	4526	4519	1.087	0.023	0.026	0.037
se condom at last high-risk sex	0.546	0.014	1522	1511	1.101	0.026	0.517	0.574
se condom at last high-risk sex - 15-24	0.541	0.019	872	879	1.135	0.035	0.503	0.579
ad high-risk intercourse	0.439	0.010	3465	3441	1.141	0.022	0.420	0.458
bstinence among youth (never had sex)	0.456	0.014	1846	1867	1.221	0.031	0.428	0.484
exually active past 12 months never married youth	0.44/	0.015	1846	1867	1.2/3	0.033	0.418	0.4//
conting attitudes to people with HIV	0.371	0.008	4907	4907	1.202	0.022	0.355	0.300
IV test and result in past 12 months	0.219	0.007	4987	4987	1.152	0.031	0.206	0.233
otal fertility rate (past 3 years)	3.850	0.111	na	13764	1.215	0.029	3.629	4.071
eonatal mortality (past 5 years)	20.263	2.915	2676	2689	1.098	0.144	14.433	26.093
ost-neonatal mortality (past 5 years)	59.501	5.125	2703	2710	1.022	0.086	49.251	69.751
itant mortality (past 5 years)	79.764	5.497	2721	2729	1.061	0.069	68.771	90.758
niid mortality (past 5 years)	36.841 112.667	4.035	2698	2/0/	1.08/	0.110	28.//2	44.910
IV prevalence (15-49)	0 311	0.700	4584	2700 4474	1.097	0.060	0.294	0 3 204
IV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	0.377	0.031	250	241	1.022	0.083	0.314	0.440
	0.007	0.011	2420	2211	1 2 2 2	0.040	0.005	0.110
Table B.2—Continued								
--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--
			Number	of cases				
	Valuo	Stand- ard	Un-	Weight-	Design	Rela- tive	Confide	nce limits
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		MEN	١					
Urban residence Literate No education Secondary education or higher Never married Currently married/in union Married before age 20 Had sexual intercourse before 18 Children ever born Ever used any contraceptive method Knows any contraceptive method Want no more children Want to delay birth at least 2 years Ideal family size Use condom use last higher-risk intercourse (youth) Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse) Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth) Had injection past 12 months (never-married youth) Had injection past 12 months Accepting attitudes to people with HIV HIV test and result in past 12 months Multi partners in past 12 months HIV prevalence (15-49) HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.284 0.896 0.076 0.575 0.658 0.293 0.056 0.314 3.983 0.869 1.000 0.505 0.265 3.162 0.680 0.704 0.576 0.318 0.227 0.466 0.318 0.229 0.0197 0.059	0.011 0.006 0.005 0.012 0.010 0.009 0.005 0.010 0.088 0.012 0.000 0.016 0.015 0.021 0.015 0.021 0.013 0.012 0.013 0.008 0.010 0.006 0.010 0.006 0.009 0.006	4156 4156 4156 4156 4156 4156 2899 2899 1281 1281 1281 1281 1281 1281	$\begin{array}{c} 4156\\ 4156\\ 4156\\ 4156\\ 4156\\ 2833\\ 2833\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 1219\\ 4127\\ 1442\\ 694\\ 2128\\ 2128\\ 4156\\ 2474\\ 4156\\ 3763\\ 2051\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 1.616\\ 1.288\\ 1.236\\ 1.503\\ 1.295\\ 1.287\\ 1.124\\ 1.171\\ 1.049\\ 1.224\\ 1.136\\ 1.185\\ 1.206\\ 1.195\\ 1.206\\ 1.195\\ 1.275\\ 1.260\\ 1.245\\ 1.275\\ 1.245\\ 1.275\\ 1.245\\ 1.245\\ 1.245\\ 1.247\\ 0.965\\ 1.321\\ 1.163\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.040\\ 0.007\\ 0.067\\ 0.020\\ 0.014\\ 0.031\\ 0.086\\ 0.022\\ 0.013\\ 0.000\\ 0.031\\ 0.055\\ 0.012\\ 0.022\\ 0.022\\ 0.021\\ 0.021\\ 0.021\\ 0.021\\ 0.021\\ 0.040\\ 0.037\\ 0.021\\ 0.040\\ 0.037\\ 0.021\\ 0.040\\ 0.045\\ 0.475\\ 0.475\\ 0.044\\ 0.107\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.262\\ 0.884\\ 0.066\\ 0.552\\ 0.639\\ 0.275\\ 0.046\\ 0.293\\ 3.807\\ 0.846\\ 1.000\\ 0.473\\ 0.236\\ 3.088\\ 0.651\\ 0.663\\ 0.551\\ 0.293\\ 0.210\\ 0.446\\ 0.078\\ 0.208\\ 0.000\\ 0.179\\ 0.046 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.307\\ 0.909\\ 0.086\\ 0.598\\ 0.677\\ 0.311\\ 0.065\\ 0.334\\ 4.160\\ 0.892\\ 1.000\\ 0.537\\ 0.294\\ 3.236\\ 0.710\\ 0.746\\ 0.601\\ 0.344\\ 0.243\\ 0.485\\ 0.100\\ 0.250\\ 0.002\\ 0.214\\ 0.071\\ \end{array}$
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.259	0.007	8186	8187	1.497	0.028	0.244	0.273
$\frac{\text{FIV prevalence (15-24)}}{\text{na} = \text{Not applicable}}$	0.143	0.00/	4057	4124	1.265	0.049	0.129	0.15/

Table B.3 Sampling errors for urban sample, Swazil	and 2006-0)7						
			Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confider	nce limits
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(Ň)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		WOM	EN					
Urban residence	1.000	0.000	1544	1330	na 1 147	0.000	1.000	1.000
No education	0.051	0.006	1544	1330	1.055	0.116	0.039	0.062
Secondary education or higher	0.735	0.017	1544	1330	1.529	0.023	0.700	0.769
Net attendance ratio for primary school	0.860 0.499	0.020	/8/ 1544	680 1330	1.439	0.023	0.820 0.470	0.901
Currently married/in union	0.407	0.013	1544	1330	1.077	0.033	0.380	0.434
Married before age 20	0.142	0.013	1252	1081	1.267	0.088	0.117	0.167
Had sexual intercourse before age 18 Currently program	0.406	0.016	1252	1081	1.166	0.040	0.3/4	0.438
Children ever born	1.877	0.061	1544	1330	1.251	0.033	1.754	1.999
Children surviving	1.701	0.055	1544	1330	1.214	0.032	1.592	1.810
Children ever born to women age 40-49	4.007	0.168	241	200 542	1.103	0.042	3.672	4.342
Ever using contraceptive method	0.999	0.001	616	542	1.073	0.001	0.997	0.944
Currently using any contraceptive method	0.581	0.023	616	542	1.169	0.040	0.535	0.628
Currently using pill	0.106	0.015	616	542	1.179	0.138	0.077	0.135
Currently using female sterilization	0.019	0.005	616	542	1.083	0.201	0.008	0.030
Currently using rhythm method	0.007	0.004	616	542	1.157	0.566	0.000	0.014
Obtained method from public-sector source	0.270	0.023	682	576	1.377	0.087	0.223	0.317
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	0.678	0.023	616	542 542	0.920	0.034	0.632	0.723
Ideal family size	2.284	0.047	1533	1320	1.442	0.021	2.189	2.378
Perinatal mortality (0-4 years)	30.430	6.680	734	636	1.065	0.220	17.069	43.790
Mothers received tetanus injection for last birth Mothers received medical assistance at delivery	0.730	0.024	584 724	496 630	1.275	0.032	0.683	0.///
Had diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.093	0.015	638	557	1.231	0.160	0.063	0.122
Treated with oral rehydration salts (ORS)	0.785	0.062	69	52	1.150	0.079	0.660	0.909
Taken to a health provider	0.667	0.072	69 132	52 103	1.119	0.108	0.524	0.811
Received BCG	0.966	0.016	132	103	0.970	0.017	0.934	0.998
Received DPT (3 doses)	0.908	0.026	132	103	0.967	0.028	0.856	0.959
Received polio (3 doses)	0.793	0.036	132	103	0.968	0.046	0.721	0.865
Fully immunized	0.940	0.019	132	103	0.902	0.021	0.702	0.852
Height-for-age (below -2SD)	0.231	0.021	537	483	1.121	0.093	0.188	0.274
Weight-for-height (below -2SD) Weight for ago (below -2SD)	0.032	0.008	537	483	0.996	0.240	0.017	0.047
Anaemia in children	0.043	0.010	442	396	1.547	0.225	0.023	0.005
Anaemia in women	0.358	0.015	1327	1131	1.097	0.041	0.329	0.387
BMI <18.5	0.030	0.005	1392	1183	1.077	0.164	0.020	0.040
Use condom at last high-risk sex - 15-24	0.642	0.025	257	219	1.392	0.039	0.592	0.692
Had high-risk intercourse	0.486	0.018	1119	957	1.230	0.038	0.449	0.522
Abstinence among youth (never had sex)	0.409	0.020	492	420	0.890	0.048	0.369	0.448
Had injection past 12 months	0.465	0.024	492 1544	1330	1.244	0.049	0.430	0.533
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.483	0.018	1543	1330	1.390	0.037	0.448	0.518
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.241	0.010	1544	1330	0.960	0.043	0.220	0.262
Neonatal mortality (past 3 years)	3.015 21.291	0.164	na 1459	3807 1257	1.239	0.055	2.687 7.729	3.344 34.853
Post-neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	52.778	7.514	1460	1258	1.154	0.142	37.749	67.807
Infant mortality (past 10 years)	74.069	9.637	1460	1258	1.183	0.130	54.794	93.344
Under-five mortality (past 10 years)	35.968 107 373	5.916 9.602	1461 1462	1257	1.134	0.164	24.136 88.167	47.801 126.580
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.368	0.019	1321	1171	1.466	0.053	0.329	0.407
HIV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	0.511	0.067	66	62	1.080	0.131	0.377	0.645
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.270	0.023	545	486	1.217	0.086	0.224	0.316 tinued
							CON	

		a 1	Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight-	Design	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2S
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	1.000	0.000	1441	1181	na	0.000	1.000	1.000
Literate	0.932	0.010	1441	1181	1.570	0.011	0.911	0.953
No education	0.062	0.011	1441	1181	1.669	0.170	0.041	0.084
Secondary education or higher	0.725	0.020	1441	1181	1.668	0.027	0.686	0.764
Never married	0.540	0.016	1441	1181	1.255	0.030	0.507	0.573
Currently married/in union	0.415	0.015	1441	1181	1.1/2	0.037	0.384	0.445
Married before age 20	0.03/	0.007	1212	975	1.208	0.1/6	0.024	0.050
Had sexual intercourse before 18	0.313	0.015	1212	9/5	1.134	0.048	0.282	0.343
Children ever born	3.545	0.143	622	490	1.2/3	0.040	3.259	3.831
Ever used any contraceptive method	1.000	0.012	622	490	1.105	0.013	0.095	1.000
Mont no more children	1.000	0.000	622	490	1.245	0.000	1.000	1.000
Want to dolay birth at loast 2 years	0.347	0.023	622	490	1.243	0.040	0.497	0.390
Ideal family size	2 0.205	0.020	1420	490	1.127	0.072	0.245	2 000
Use condom at last high rick sex	2.090	0.031	552	463	1.132	0.010	2.790	2.999
Condom use last higher risk intercourse (youth)	0.742	0.022	214	181	1.177	0.030	0.090	0.700
Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse)	0.000	0.032	494	425	1 301	0.040	0.730	0.000
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth)	0.416	0.029	494	425	1 302	0.069	0.359	0.323
Had injection past 12 months	0.746	0.025	1441	1181	1 383	0.005	0.335	0.77
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.468	0.015	1436	1177	1.505	0.033	0.437	0.277
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.128	0.012	1441	1181	1 329	0.092	0.104	0.155
Multi partners in past 12 months	0.214	0.019	1079	873	1.493	0.087	0.176	0.251
Paid for sex past 12 months	0.002	0.001	1441	1181	0.907	0.605	0.000	0.003
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.256	0.018	1155	1070	1.364	0.069	0.220	0.291
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.072	0.014	425	412	1.152	0.201	0.043	0.101
	V	VOMEN AI	ND MEN					
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.314	0.015	2476	2242	1.607	0.048	0.284	0.344
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.179	0.016	970	899	1.265	0.087	0.148	0.210

		C1 1	Number	of cases		D I		
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
/ariable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		WOM	EN					
Jrban residence	0.000	0.000	3443	3657	na	na	0.000	0.000
literate	0.903	0.006	3443	3657	1.197	0.007	0.891	0.915
Secondary education or higher	0.092	0.003	3443	3657	1.110	0.000	0.001	0.103
Net attendance ratio for primary school	0.839	0.010	3535	3844	1.294	0.011	0.820	0.858
Never married	0.499	0.009	3443	3657	1.033	0.018	0.481	0.516
Currently married/in union	0.416	0.009	3443	3657	1.102	0.022	0.397	0.434
Married before age 20	0.259	0.010	2470	2632	1.188	0.040	0.238	0.280
Tad sexual Intercourse before age 18	0.525	0.012	2470	2632	1.18/	0.023	0.501	0.549
Children ever born	2.430	0.047	3443	3657	1.048	0.019	2.336	2.524
Children surviving	2.184	0.042	3443	3657	1.034	0.019	2.099	2.268
Children ever born to women age 40-49	5.769	0.145	584	620	1.213	0.025	5.480	6.059
Knows any contraceptive method	0.999	0.001	1453	1520	0.880	0.001	0.998	1.000
ver using contraceptive method	0.882	0.010	1453	1520	1.206	0.012	0.861	0.902
Surrently using any contraceptive method	0.480	0.014	1453	1520	0.985	0.029	0.432	0.307
Currently using IUD	0.012	0.003	1453	1520	0.985	0.233	0.006	0.018
Currently using female sterilization	0.049	0.007	1453	1520	1.185	0.137	0.035	0.062
Eurrentlý using rhythm method	0.001	0.001	1453	1520	0.958	0.707	0.000	0.003
Detained method from public-sector source	0.532	0.019	1123	1195	1.277	0.036	0.494	0.570
Vant no more children Nant to delay birth at least 2 years	0.684	0.015	1453	1520	1.196	0.021	0.654	0.713
deal family size	2.608	0.010	3419	3630	1 285	0.000	2 540	2 676
Perinatal mortality (0-4 years)	29.071	3.744	2118	2229	0.953	0.129	21.584	36.559
Nothers received tetanus injection for last birth	0.660	0.014	1552	1638	1.133	0.021	0.632	0.687
Nothers received medical assistance at delivery	0.703	0.013	2088	2199	1.153	0.019	0.677	0.730
Had diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.146	0.010	1899	1996	1.1/5	0.068	0.126	0.166
Tealed with oral renyulation sails (OK3)	0.007	0.021	270	292	1.011	0.023	0.623	0.910
accination card seen	0.862	0.017	406	428	0.989	0.020	0.828	0.897
Received BCG	0.973	0.009	406	428	1.120	0.009	0.955	0.991
Received DPT (3 doses)	0.919	0.013	406	428	0.975	0.014	0.893	0.946
Received polio (3 doses)	0.892	0.016	406	428	0.985	0.017	0.861	0.923
Fully immunized	0.907	0.016	406	428	1.139	0.018	0.874	0.940
Height-for-age (below -2SD)	0.300	0.011	2234	2457	1.094	0.024	0.278	0.323
Weight-for-height (below -2SD)	0.023	0.003	2234	2457	0.979	0.139	0.017	0.030
Veight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.056	0.004	2234	2457	0.862	0.076	0.048	0.065
Anaemia in children	0.404	0.013	2079	2285	1.238	0.033	0.377	0.431
Anaemia in women	0.286	0.009	3268	346/	1.099	0.030	0.269	0.304
lse condom at last high-risk sex	0.032	0.003	973	1046	1.082	0.100	0.023	0.039
Jse condom at last high-risk sex - 15-24	0.507	0.021	615	660	1.053	0.042	0.464	0.549
Had high-risk intercourse	0.421	0.011	2346	2484	1.108	0.027	0.398	0.444
Abstinence among youth (never had sex)	0.470	0.017	1354	1447	1.259	0.036	0.435	0.504
bexually active past 12 months never married youth	0.436	0.018	1354	1447	1.303	0.040	0.401	0.472
au injection past 12 months	0.368	0.010	3443 3431	3645	1.101	0.026	0.349	0.38/
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.211	0.008	3443	3657	1.204	0.040	0.194	0.228
Total fertility rate (past 3 years)	4.213	0.136	na	9957	1.195	0.032	3.941	4.484
Neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	23.586	2.945	3899	4112	1.092	0.125	17.695	29.476
Post-neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	53.959	3.981	3900	4113	0.995	0.074	45.998	61.921
ntant mortality (past 10 years)	77.545	5.003	3901	4114	1.052	0.065	67.538	87.552
Inder-five mortality (past 10 years)	29.754	5.270	3912	4126 4120	1.017	0.110	23.213	30.295
HV prevalence (15-49)	0.291	0.103	3263	3252	1.204	0.033	0.272	0 310
HIV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	0.330	0.035	184	178	0.995	0.105	0.261	0.399
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.213	0.012	1594	1587	1.212	0.058	0.189	0.238
							Coi	ntinued

		c. I	Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Kela- tive error	Confide	nce limit
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+25
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	0.000	0.000	2715	2975	na	na	0.000	0.000
Literate	0.883	0.007	2715	2975	1.199	0.008	0.868	0.897
No education	0.082	0.006	2715	2975	1.089	0.070	0.070	0.093
Secondary education or higher	0.515	0.014	2715	2975	1.477	0.027	0.487	0.544
Never married	0.704	0.011	2715	2975	1.259	0.016	0.682	0.726
Currently married/in union	0.245	0.011	2715	2975	1.283	0.043	0.224	0.266
Married before age 20	0.066	0.006	1687	1859	1.070	0.098	0.053	0.079
Had sexual intercourse before 18	0.314	0.013	1687	1859	1.166	0.042	0.288	0.340
Children ever born	4.278	0.111	659	729	0.915	0.026	4.056	4.501
Ever used any contraceptive method	0.835	0.017	659	/29	1.186	0.021	0.801	0.869
Knows any contraceptive method	1.000	0.000	659	729	na	0.000	1.000	1.000
Want no more children	0.4//	0.020	659	/29	1.044	0.043	0.43/	0.518
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	0.252	0.020	659	/29	1.18/	0.080	0.212	0.293
Ideal family size	3.26/	0.04/	2695	2954	1.185	0.014	3.1/3	3.362
Use condom at last high-risk sex	0.651	0.019	880	9/8	1.1/8	0.029	0.613	0.689
Condom use last higher-risk intercourse (youth)	0.6/1	0.025	464	513	1.155	0.038	0.621	0./21
Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse)	0.603	0.014	1563	1703	1.098	0.023	0.575	0.630
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth)	0.294	0.014	1563	1/03	1.23/	0.049	0.265	0.322
Had injection past 12 months	0.219	0.010	2/15	29/5	1.222	0.044	0.199	0.230
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.465	0.012	2693	2951	1.2/5	0.026	0.440	0.485
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.0/4	0.006	2/15	29/5	1.202	0.082	0.062	0.086
Nulli partners in past 12 months	0.230	0.012	1449	2075	1.109	0.052	0.213	0.203
HIV provolongo (15, 40)	0.001	0.001	2/15	2975	1.021	0.706	0.000	0.002
HIV provalence (15-49)	0.1/4	0.010	2447	2093	1.2/5	0.056	0.154	0.193
HTV prevalence (15-24)	0.055	0.007	1495	1030	1.109	0.125	0.041	0.065
	V	vomen ai	ND MEN					
MEN HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.238	0.008	5710	5945	1.407	0.033	0.222	0.254
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.133	0.008	3087	3226	1.256	0.058	0.118	0.148

		C1 1	Number	of cases		D.		
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
ariable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SI
		WOM	EN					
rban residence	0.305	0.024	1263	1340	1.813	0.077	0.258	0.352
terate	0.926	0.010	1263	1340	1.375	0.011	0.906	0.946
o education	0.081	0.008	1263	1340	1.103	0.104	0.064	0.098
et attendance ratio for primary school	0.854	0.020	1035	1108	1.143	0.016	0.826	0.882
ever married	0.459	0.014	1263	1340	1.017	0.031	0.430	0.487
urrently married/in union	0.448	0.016	1263	1340	1.138	0.036	0.416	0.480
tarried before age 20	0.248	0.016	975	1037	1.162	0.065	0.216	0.280
ad sexual intercourse before age 18	0.474	0.022	975	1037	1.379	0.047	0.429	0.518
urrentiy pregnant	0.051	0.006	1263	1340	0.991	0.120	0.039	0.063
hildren ever born hildren sunviving	2.284	0.064	1263	1340	0.928	0.028	2.156	2.413
hildren ever born to women age 40-49	2.007	0.055	215	225	1.044	0.040	4.780	2.170
nows any contraceptive method	0.999	0.001	570	600	0.877	0.001	0.996	1.000
ver using contraceptive method	0.874	0.014	570	600	1.004	0.016	0.846	0.902
urrently using any contraceptive method	0.537	0.019	570	600	0.906	0.035	0.499	0.575
urrentlý using pill	0.109	0.013	570	600	1.018	0.122	0.082	0.136
urrently using IUD	0.014	0.005	570	600	1.080	0.385	0.003	0.024
urrently using female sterilization	0.052	0.009	5/0	600	0.956	0.1/0	0.035	0.0/0
urrenuy using mythim method	0.002	0.002	570 468	497	0.932	0.990	0.000	0.005
/ant no more children	0.490	0.029	570	600	1.235	0.038	0.439	0.555
ant to delay birth at least 2 years	0.143	0.014	570	600	0.983	0.101	0.114	0.172
leal family size	2.517	0.061	1252	1327	1.387	0.024	2.395	2.639
erinatal mortality (0-4 years)	25.272	6.907	718	770	1.196	0.273	11.457	39.086
others received tetanus injection for last birth	0.642	0.020	538	572	0.971	0.031	0.602	0.682
others received medical assistance at delivery	0./83	0.021	/14	/66	1.141	0.026	0.741	0.824
reated with and rehydration salts (OPS)	0.110	0.015	65	694 77	1.1/5	0.135	0.001	0.140
aken to a health provider	0.865	0.038	65	77	1 713	0.044	0.788	0.942
accination card seen	0.868	0.033	141	149	1.101	0.038	0.802	0.934
eceived BCG	0.972	0.013	141	149	0.962	0.014	0.946	0.999
eceived DPT (3 doses)	0.931	0.021	141	149	0.960	0.022	0.890	0.972
eceived polio (3 doses)	0.893	0.027	141	149	0.967	0.030	0.839	0.946
eceived measles	0.937	0.022	141	149	1.048	0.023	0.893	0.980
ally immunized	0.843	0.032	141	149	0.991	0.037	0.780	0.906
/eight-for-height (below -25D)	0.031	0.007	689	755	1.123	0.227	0.273	0.335
/eight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.067	0.009	689	755	0.895	0.128	0.049	0.084
naemia in children	0.428	0.017	632	697	0.902	0.041	0.393	0.463
naemia in women	0.285	0.015	1150	1226	1.156	0.054	0.255	0.316
MI <18.5	0.020	0.005	1137	1209	1.168	0.244	0.010	0.029
se condom at last high-risk sex	0.564	0.034	340 191	366 100	1.25/	0.060	0.496	0.632
ad high-risk intercourse	0.309	0.050	101 874	929	1.574	0.000	0.400	0.690
bstinence among youth (never had sex)	0.493	0.032	408	436	1.286	0.065	0.429	0.557
exually active past 12 months never married youth	0.424	0.026	408	436	1.073	0.062	0.371	0.476
ad injection past 12 months	0.372	0.016	1263	1340	1.148	0.042	0.341	0.403
ccepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.453	0.018	1261	1339	1.273	0.039	0.417	0.488
IV test and result in past 12 months	0.197	0.015	1263	1340	1.347	0.077	0.167	0.227
opatal mortality (past 3 years)	3.618	0.210	na 1271	3/33	1.226	0.058	3.199	4.038
conatal mortality (past 10 years)	23.012 46.540	0.290 5 220	13/1	1470	0.852	0.203	36.063	57 017
fant mortality (past 10 years)	70.351	9,396	1371	1470	1.254	0.134	51.559	89 144
hild mortality (past 10 years)	27.046	5.882	1375	1475	1.076	0.217	15.282	38.811
nder-five mortality (past 10 years)	95.495	12.551	1375	1475	1.346	0.131	70.393	120.598
IV prevalence (15-49)	0.337	0.016	1146	1192	1.160	0.048	0.305	0.370
IV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	0.324	0.068	63	65	1.138	0.209	0.188	0.460
IV prevalence (15-24)	0.278	0.025	499	516	1.237	0.089	0.228	0.328

Table B.5—Continued								
		c. I	Number	of cases		D.I.		
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	0.348	0.024	1019	1099	1.582	0.068	0.301	0.395
Literate	0.916	0.011	1019	1099	1.313	0.012	0.893	0.939
No education	0.085	0.012	1019	1099	1.419	0.146	0.060	0.110
Secondary education or higher	0.623	0.019	1019	1099	1.273	0.031	0.584	0.662
Never married	0.590	0.021	1019	1099	1.341	0.035	0.548	0.631
Currently married/in union	0.354	0.021	1019	1099	1.377	0.058	0.312	0.395
Married before age 20	0.052	0.012	744	804	1.471	0.231	0.028	0.076
Had sexual intercourse before 18	0.316	0.020	744	804	1.164	0.063	0.277	0.356
Children ever born	4.090	0.107	362	389	0.695	0.026	3.876	4.304
Ever used any contraceptive method	0.8/1	0.023	362	389	1.329	0.027	0.824	0.918
Knows any contraceptive method	1.000	0.000	362	389	na	0.000	1.000	1.000
Want no more children	0.51/	0.023	362	389	0.893	0.045	0.4/0	0.564
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	0.236	0.026	362	389	1.143	0.108	0.185	0.28/
Ideal family size	3.08/	0.066	1006	1086	1.032	0.021	2.956	3.219
Use condom at last nigh-risk sex	0./32	0.026	31/	359	1.040	0.035	0.680	0.784
Condom use last nigner-risk intercourse (youth)	0.821	0.036	134	151	1.090	0.044	0.748	0.893
Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse)	0.593	0.030	452	486	1.304	0.051	0.533	0.653
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married yourn)	0.301	0.030	452	400	1.39/	0.100	0.241	0.301
Had injection past 12 months	0.238	0.018	1019	1099	1.348	0.076	0.202	0.274
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.502	0.016	1015	1096	1.022	0.032	0.470	0.534
Aulti partners in past 12 months	0.000	0.009	1019	1099	1.01/	0.104	0.066	0.104
Paid for sov past 12 months	0.189	0.022	042	1000	1.391	0.114	0.146	0.233
Faiu foi sex past 12 monuns HIV provolonce (15, 40)	0.000	0.000	1019	1099	1 1 2 0 C	0.070	0.000	0.000
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.231	0.010	426	483	1.200	0.079	0.194	0.20/
	0.055	0.015	420	405	1.105	0.255	0.030	0.001
	V	VOMEN AN	ND MEN					
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.289	0.014	2026	2193	1.432	0.050	0.260	0.318
	0.170	0.018	925	998	1.419	0.103	0.135	0.206

		Stor-1	Number	of cases		Dele		
/	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
Variable	(K)	(SE)	(IN)	(VVIN)	(DEFT)	(SE/K)	K-25E	K+25E
		WOM	EN					
Jrban residence	0.392	0.027	1475	1647	2.106	0.068	0.339	0.446
Iterate	0.935	0.006	14/5	1647	0.988	0.007	0.922	0.94/
Secondary education or higher	0.631	0.000	1475	1647	1 542	0.030	0.610	0.003
Net attendance ratio for primary school	0.886	0.010	1192	1332	1.011	0.012	0.866	0.906
Never married	0.520	0.014	1475	1647	1.087	0.027	0.491	0.548
Currently married/in union	0.395	0.015	1475	1647	1.152	0.037	0.365	0.424
Married before age 20	0.198	0.013	1102	1232	1.087	0.066	0.172	0.224
Tad sexual Intercourse before age 18	0.456	0.015	1475	1232	1.010	0.033	0.425	0.486
Children ever born	2.140	0.073	1475	1647	1.178	0.034	1.994	2,286
Children surviving	1.938	0.065	1475	1647	1.152	0.034	1.807	2.068
Children ever born to women age 40-49	5.126	0.222	228	259	1.203	0.043	4.681	5.570
Knows any contraceptive method	0.999	0.001	578	650	0.646	0.001	0.998	1.000
ver using contraceptive method	0.914	0.012	578	650	1.039	0.013	0.890	0.939
Lurrently using any contraceptive method	0.525	0.021	578	650 650	1.024	0.041	0.482	0.568
Currently using IUD	0.019	0.004	578	650	0.766	0.229	0.010	0.028
Eurrently using female sterilization	0.052	0.011	578	650	1.185	0.211	0.030	0.074
Currentlý using rhythm method	0.003	0.003	578	650	1.224	0.997	0.000	0.008
Obtained method from public-sector source	0.330	0.027	550	604	1.326	0.081	0.276	0.383
Want no more children	0.714	0.022	578	650	1.185	0.031	0.669	0.758
deal family size	0.145	0.013	578 1468	1630	0.882	0.089	2 297	2.465
Perinatal mortality (0-4 years)	28.976	5.984	775	879	1.010	0.207	17.009	40.943
Mothers received tetanus injection for last birth	0.726	0.024	591	668	1.304	0.033	0.679	0.774
Mothers received medical assistance at delivery	0.799	0.019	767	870	1.196	0.024	0.760	0.838
Had diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.123	0.015	690	784	1.143	0.120	0.093	0.152
reated with oral rehydration salts (ORS)	0.828	0.048	84	96	1.102	0.058	0./32	0.923
accination card seen	0.714	0.047	04 144	90 162	0.942	0.066	0.620	0.809
Received BCG	0.966	0.018	144	162	1.179	0.018	0.931	1.000
Received DPT (3 doses)	0.933	0.026	144	162	1.263	0.028	0.881	0.986
Received polio (3 doses)	0.884	0.029	144	162	1.097	0.033	0.825	0.942
Received measles	0.905	0.034	144	162	1.411	0.038	0.837	0.974
ully immunized	0.819	0.041	144	162	1.283	0.050	0./3/	0.901
Neight-for-beight (below -25D)	0.295	0.021	747	009 869	0.904	0.070	0.255	0.330
Weight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.023	0.007	747	869	0.874	0.128	0.042	0.071
Anaemia in children	0.451	0.028	663	774	1.421	0.062	0.394	0.507
Anaemia in women	0.333	0.013	1347	1505	0.980	0.038	0.308	0.359
3MI <18.5	0.035	0.005	1344	1494	1.042	0.149	0.025	0.046
Use condom at last high-risk sex	0.606	0.021	463	212	0.936	0.035	0.564	0.649
Had high-risk intercourse	0.309	0.021	1008	200 1121	1.306	0.034	0.418	0.500
Abstinence among youth (never had sex)	0.444	0.023	564	632	1.099	0.052	0.398	0.490
Sexually active past 12 months never married youth	0.430	0.026	564	632	1.267	0.061	0.377	0.483
Had injection past 12 months	0.341	0.013	1475	1647	1.084	0.039	0.314	0.368
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.447	0.020	1469	1642	1.544	0.045	0.407	0.487
TIV test and result in past 12 months	0.242	0.012	14/5	1647	1.067	0.049	0.218	0.265
Neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	32.549	5.988	1473	1663	0.997	0.184	20.572	44.525
Post-neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	49.176	7.094	1474	1664	1.173	0.144	34.988	63.365
nfant mortality (past 10 years)	81.725	8.992	1474	1664	1.087	0.110	63.741	99.708
Child mortalitý (past 10 ýears)	33.393	5.871	1478	1669	1.177	0.176	21.651	45.135
Under-five mortality (past 10 years)	112.389	9.547	1479	1669	1.005	0.085	93.295	131.483
TIV prevalence (15-49)	0.304	0.019	1344	1459	1.489	0.061	0.267	0.342
HV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49) HV prevalence (15-24)	0.455	0.001	638	74 696	0.907	0.154	0.333	0.577
	0.207	0.041	050	0.50	1.4.24	0.101	0.105	0.240

		c. I	Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight-	Design effect	Kela- tive error	Confide	nce limit
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+25
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	0.356	0.024	1186	1349	1.760	0.069	0.307	0.405
Literate	0.907	0.012	1186	1349	1.399	0.013	0.883	0.931
No education	0.052	0.008	1186	1349	1.261	0.157	0.036	0.068
Secondary education or higher	0.636	0.022	1186	1349	1.560	0.034	0.593	0.680
Never married	0.691	0.017	1186	1349	1.28/	0.025	0.656	0.725
Currently married/in union	0.2/3	0.015	1186	1349	1.189	0.056	0.242	0.303
Married before age 20 Had sovual intersource before 19	0.042	0.007	023	930	0.997	0.166	0.020	0.050
Children ever horn	3 581	0.017	323	368	1.041	0.054	3 204	2 950
Ever used any contracentive method	0.010	0.109	222	368	1.132	0.055	0.877	0.04/
Knows any contraceptive method	1 000	0.017	323	368	1.042	0.010	1.000	1 000
Want no more children	0.497	0.033	323	368	1 168	0.065	0.432	0.562
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	0.321	0.028	323	368	1.079	0.088	0.265	0.377
Ideal family size	2 995	0.061	1180	1342	1 353	0.020	2 873	3 117
Use condom at last high-risk sex	0.690	0.025	440	509	1.134	0.036	0.640	0.740
Condom use last higher-risk intercourse (vouth)	0.736	0.034	215	252	1.115	0.046	0.669	0.804
Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse)	0.532	0.021	622	712	1.051	0.040	0.490	0.574
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth)	0.341	0.022	622	712	1.164	0.065	0.297	0.386
Had injection past 12 months	0.213	0.014	1186	1349	1.191	0.066	0.185	0.241
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.467	0.017	1180	1341	1.202	0.037	0.432	0.502
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.092	0.011	1186	1349	1.308	0.119	0.070	0.114
Multi partners in past 12 months	0.255	0.021	703	804	1.294	0.083	0.212	0.298
Paid för sex past 12 months	0.001	0.001	1186	1349	0.928	0.707	0.000	0.00^{2}
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.184	0.017	1018	1223	1.403	0.093	0.150	0.218
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.062	0.010	562	673	1.032	0.170	0.041	0.083
	V	vomen ai	ND MEN					
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.249	0.015	2362	2682	1.687	0.060	0.219	0.280
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.135	0.013	1200	1369	1.277	0.093	0.110	0.16

		c. I	Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limits
ariable	(R)	(SE)	(Ñ)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		WOM	EN					
Irban residence	0.064	0.009	1083	1033	1.272	0.148	0.045	0.083
Iterate	0.928	0.011	1083	1033	1.335	0.011	0.907	0.949
econdary education or higher	0.589	0.020	1083	1033	1.330	0.034	0.549	0.629
let attendance ratio for primary school	0.782	0.024	1079	1144	1.608	0.030	0.735	0.830
lever married	0.571	0.014	1083	1033	0.939	0.025	0.542	0.599
Currently married/in union	0.351	0.013	1083	1033	0.915	0.038	0.324	0.378
1arried before age 20	0.173	0.014	783	732	1.013	0.079	0.145	0.200
lad sexual intercourse before age 18	0.509	0.021	783	732	1.147	0.040	0.468	0.550
urrently pregnant	0.057	0.008	1083	1033	1.068	0.132	0.042	0.072
nnuren ever born Shildren surviving	2.220	0.064	1083	1033	0.802	0.029	2.093	2.348
hildren ever born to women age 40-49	2.017	0.001	155	149	1 266	0.050	4 969	6 1 2 0
nows any contraceptive method	1.000	0.000	385	363	na	0.000	1.000	1,000
ver using contraceptive method	0.880	0.027	385	363	1.625	0.031	0.827	0.934
Currently using any contraceptive method	0.456	0.034	385	363	1.327	0.074	0.388	0.523
Currentlý using pill	0.072	0.014	385	363	1.078	0.197	0.044	0.101
urrently using IUD	0.009	0.005	385	363	1.046	0.557	0.000	0.019
urrently using female sterilization	0.055	0.013	385	363	1.093	0.232	0.029	0.080
urrently using rnythm method	0.006	0.003	385	363	0.900	0.612	0.000	0.012
Vant no more children	0.520	0.032	324	363	1.205	0.061	0.464	0.592
Vant to delay birth at least 2 years	0.050	0.020	385	363	1.135	0.154	0.045	0.200
leal family size	2.589	0.052	1075	1026	1.310	0.020	2.486	2.693
erinatal mortality (0-4 years)	31.054	4.683	646	626	0.641	0.151	21.689	40.420
10thers received tetanus injection for last birth	0.711	0.022	481	460	1.082	0.031	0.667	0.756
10thers received medical assistance at delivery	0.659	0.022	633	615	1.054	0.034	0.615	0.704
ad diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.144	0.015	5/1	558	0.950	0.102	0.115	0.1/4
alian to a health provider	0.670	0.037	00	01	0.90/	0.042	0.797	0.943
accination card seen	0.208	0.003	116	111	0.848	0.092	0.377	0.030
eceived BCG	0.972	0.018	116	111	1.151	0.018	0.937	1.000
eceived DPT (3 doses)	0.926	0.019	116	111	0.768	0.020	0.889	0.964
eceived polio (3 doses)	0.875	0.022	116	111	0.726	0.025	0.831	0.920
eceived measles	0.916	0.025	116	111	0.981	0.028	0.866	0.967
ully immunized	0.837	0.026	116	111	0.762	0.031	0.784	0.889
leight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.289	0.019	694	/45	1.103	0.065	0.252	0.32/
Veight-for-age (below -25D)	0.021	0.008	694 694	745	0.866	0.296	0.009	0.033
naemia in children	0.052	0.007	631	680	1 544	0.073	0.344	0.007
naemia in women	0.322	0.016	1010	968	1.084	0.049	0.290	0.354
MI <18.5	0.036	0.006	988	945	0.996	0.164	0.024	0.048
Jse condom at last high-risk sex	0.522	0.024	366	339	0.903	0.045	0.475	0.569
lse condom at last high-risk sex - 15-24	0.532	0.032	218	209	0.952	0.061	0.467	0.596
lad high-risk intercourse	0.499	0.019	728	680	1.025	0.038	0.461	0.537
insurence among youth (never had sex)	0.46/	0.020	464 767	458 458	U.86/ 1.054	0.043	0.426	0.50/
lad injection past 12 months	0.449	0.024	1083	1033	1.034	0.054	0.400	0.490
ccepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.398	0.022	1081	1033	1.398	0.052	0.356	0.439
IIV test and result in past 12 months	0.210	0.011	1083	1033	0.907	0.054	0.187	0.232
otal fertility rate (past 3 years)	4.280	0.245	na	2823	1.249	0.057	3.789	4.771
leonatal mortality (past 10 years)	15.531	3.435	1178	1132	0.882	0.221	8.662	22.400
ost-neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	60.446	7.405	1178	1132	0.988	0.123	45.636	75.256
ntant mortality (past 10 years)	75.977	8.136	1179	1133	0.980	0.107	59.705	92.248
niid mortality (past 10 years)	25.584	5.158	1180	1133	1.034	0.202	15.267	35.901
HV prevalence (15-49)	99.01/ 0.201	9.688 0.01 5	1102 1011	017	1.001	0.097	00.240	0 2 2 0
IIV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49)	0.291	0.013	61	53	0.923	0.050	0.202	0.520
IV prevalence (15-24)	0.219	0.018	492	459	0.923	0.083	0.182	0.255
··· F·································	··-··	0.010			0.070	0.000	0.102	

		ci I	Number	of cases		D I		
	Value	ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	tive error	Confide	nce limit
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+25
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	0.063	0.008	838	843	1.004	0.133	0.046	0.080
Literate	0.906	0.014	838	843	1.351	0.015	0.879	0.934
No education	0.056	0.008	838	843	1.035	0.146	0.040	0.073
Secondary education or higher	0.538	0.027	838	843	1.564	0.050	0.484	0.592
Never married	0.741	0.019	838	843	1.237	0.025	0.703	0.778
Currently married/in union	0.208	0.018	838	843	1.272	0.086	0.172	0.244
Married before age 20	0.052	0.010	523	506	0.980	0.183	0.033	0.07^{2}
Had sexual intercourse before 18	0.317	0.023	523	506	1.125	0.072	0.272	0.363
Children ever born	4.192	0.235	191	175	1.087	0.056	3.723	4.661
Ever used any contraceptive method	0.798	0.037	191	175	1.261	0.046	0.724	0.871
Knows any contraceptive method	1.000	0.000	191	175	na	0.000	1.000	1.000
Want no more children	0.498	0.051	191	175	1.417	0.103	0.395	0.60
Want to delay birth at least 2 years	0.255	0.042	191	175	1.340	0.166	0.170	0.340
Ideal family size	3.391	0.106	837	842	1.233	0.031	3.180	3.603
Use condom at last high-risk sex	0.643	0.037	288	283	1.309	0.058	0.569	0.717
Condom use last higher-risk intercourse (youth)	0.605	0.046	149	152	1.136	0.076	0.513	0.696
Abstinence among youth (never had intercourse)	0.612	0.025	486	510	1.151	0.042	0.561	0.663
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth)	0.291	0.027	486	510	1.306	0.093	0.237	0.345
Had injection past 12 months	0.223	0.020	838	843	1.368	0.088	0.183	0.262
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.452	0.030	832	837	1.751	0.067	0.391	0.512
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.067	0.011	838	843	1.284	0.166	0.045	0.089
Multi partners in past 12 months	0.239	0.021	451	436	1.062	0.089	0.197	0.282
Paid for sex past 12 months	0.002	0.002	838	843	0.996	0.773	0.000	0.005
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.161	0.018	734	763	1.334	0.113	0.125	0.197
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.053	0.016	454	486	1.470	0.292	0.022	0.084
	V							
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.232	0.013	1745	1681	1.241	0.054	0.207	0.25
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.134	0.012	946	945	1.046	0.087	0.110	0.157

		Cr. I	Number	of cases		D I		
	Value	ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	tive error	Confide	nce limit
/ariable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+25
		WOM	EN					
Jrban residence	0.216	0.021	1166 1166	966 966	1.769	0.099	0.174	0.259
No education	0.154	0.012	1166	966	1.187	0.081	0.129	0.007
econdary education or higher	0.453	0.021	1166	966	1.436	0.046	0.411	0.495
Net attendance ratio for primary school	0.840	0.022	1016	940	1.636	0.026	0.796	0.883
vever married/in union	0.442	0.016	1166	966	1.094	0.036	0.410	0.474
Aarried before age 20	0.292	0.013	862	712	1.521	0.081	0.245	0.339
lad sexual intercourse before age 18	0.555	0.020	862	712	1.160	0.035	0.515	0.594
Currently pregnant	0.059	0.008	1166	966	1.181	0.138	0.043	0.075
Children surviving	2.589	0.106	1166	966	1.350	0.041	2.377	2.801
Children ever born to women age 40-49	5.639	0.254	227	187	1.322	0.045	5.131	6.148
ínows any contraceptive method	1.000	0.000	536	449	na	0.000	1.000	1.000
ver using contraceptive method	0.894	0.016	536	449	1.225	0.018	0.861	0.926
Currently using any contraceptive method	0.480	0.023	536	449	1.072	0.048 0.154	0.433	0.526
Currently using IUD	0.011	0.005	536	449	1.103	0.445	0.000	0.021
Currently using female sterilization	0.075	0.014	536	449	1.256	0.191	0.046	0.103
Currently using rhythm method	0.002	0.002	536	449	1.061	1.004	0.000	0.006
Obtained method from public-sector source	0.502	0.031	433	345	1.289	0.062	0.440	0.564
Vant to delay birth at least 2 years	0.170	0.023	536	449	1.037	0.030	0.136	0.203
deal family size	2.695	0.077	1157	959	1.555	0.029	2.541	2.849
Perinatal mortality (0-4 years)	33.539	8.189	713	590	1.045	0.244	17.161	49.916
Aothers received tetanus injection for last birth	0.606	0.026	526 698	434	1.238	0.044	0.553	0.659
ad diarrhoea in two weeks before survey	0.055	0.024	623	517	1.554	0.141	0.125	0.222
reated with oral rehydration salts (ORS) '	0.862	0.035	113	90	1.071	0.041	0.791	0.933
aken to a health provider	0.779	0.051	113	90	1.231	0.065	0.677	0.881
accination card seen	0.805	0.036	137	110	1.051	0.045	0.732	0.877
Received DPT (3 doses)	0.864	0.012	137	110	0.796	0.028	0.816	0.911
eceived polio (3 doses)	0.828	0.031	137	110	0.946	0.038	0.766	0.890
eceived measles	0.900	0.021	137	110	0.821	0.024	0.857	0.942
leight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.761	0.032	641	571	0.004	0.042	0.697	0.623
Veight-for-height (below -2SD)	0.025	0.004	641	571	0.753	0.178	0.016	0.034
Veight-for-age (below -2SD)	0.037	0.008	641	571	1.094	0.210	0.021	0.052
naemia in children	0.377	0.024	595	529	1.249	0.063	0.330	0.425
Maemia in women MI < 18 5	0.262	0.018	1000	900 870	1.339	0.066	0.226	0.297
Jse condom at last high-risk sex	0.442	0.034	353	291	1.286	0.077	0.374	0.510
Jse condom at last high-risk sex - 15-24	0.455	0.039	215	184	1.144	0.086	0.377	0.533
lad high-risk intercourse	0.409	0.017	855	711	1.039	0.043	0.374	0.444
ostinence among youth (never had sex) exually active past 12 months never married youth	0.415	0.041	410 410	342 342	1.687	0.099	0.333	0.490
lad injection past 12 months	0.391	0.016	1166	966	1.105	0.040	0.359	0.423
ccepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.390	0.016	1163	964	1.105	0.041	0.358	0.421
IIV test and result in past 12 months	0.222	0.015	1166	966	1.217	0.067	0.192	0.252
otal teruitty rate (past 3 years) Jeonatal mortality (past 10 years)	4.022 15.471	0.288	na 1336	2656 1104	1.423	0.072	3.445 8.607	4.598
ost-neonatal mortality (past 10 years)	63.211	8.615	1337	1105	1.110	0.136	45.980	80.441
fant mortality (past 10 years)	78.682	8.492	1337	1105	0.998	0.108	61.699	95.666
hild mortalitý (past 10 ýears)	39.223	5.342	1340	1107	0.830	0.136	28.538	49.907
Inder-five mortality (past 10 years)	114.819	9.128	1341	1109	0.914	0.080	96.562	133.075
IIV provalence (15-49)	0.310	0.016	1083	055 E0	1.162	0.053	0.277	0.342
IIV prevalence for pregnant women (15-49) IIV prevalence (15-24)	0.349	0.030	510	403	0.909	0.101	0.237	0.462
	0.205	0.021	510	105		0.101	0.105	0.2-10

		c. I	Number	of cases				
	Value	Stand- ard error	Un- weighted	Weight- ed	Design effect	Rela- tive error	Confide	nce limit
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)	(DEFT)	(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+25
		MEN	١					
Urban residence	0.306	0.017	1113	865	1.265	0.057	0.271	0.341
Literate	0.845	0.011	1113	865	1.019	0.013	0.823	0.868
No education	0.122	0.011	1113	865	1.112	0.089	0.100	0.144
Secondary education or higher	0.454	0.024	1113	865	1.601	0.053	0.406	0.502
Never married	0.612	0.018	1113	865	1.213	0.029	0.577	0.64
Currently married/in union	0.332	0.018	1113	865	1.28/	0.055	0.295	0.368
Married before age 20	0.08/	0.009	809	593	0.905	0.103	0.069	0.103
Had sexual intercourse before 18	0.309	0.023	809	593	1.399	0.074	0.263	0.354
Lniidren ever born	4.226	0.201	405	28/	1.288	0.048	3.825	4.626
ever used any contraceptive method	0.856	0.019	405	287	1.111	0.023	0.817	0.894
Nows any contraceptive method	0.504	0.000	405	207	1 1 2 0	0.000	1.000	0.50
Want no more children Want to dolay birth at loast 2 years	0.504	0.020	405	207	1.120	0.056	0.440	0.30
Ideal family size	2 202	0.024	1102	207	1.120	0.100	2 162	2 4 2
Use condem at last high risk sex	0.636	0.000	288	2027	1.150	0.020	0.575	0.60
Condom use last higher rick intercourse (youth)	0.630	0.031	180	140	1.2.52	0.040	0.575	0.09
Abstingned among youth (never had intercourse)	0.030	0.047	497	/19	0.918	0.074	0.530	0.72
Sexually active past 12 months (never-married youth)	0.300	0.020	497	419	1 021	0.054	0.289	0.02
Had injection past 12 months	0.332	0.014	1113	865	1.021	0.059	0.209	0.26
Accepting attitudes to people with HIV	0.431	0.014	1102	854	0.931	0.032	0.403	0.20
HIV test and result in past 12 months	0.111	0.012	1113	865	1.292	0.109	0.087	0.13
Multi partners in past 12 months	0.234	0.017	732	536	1.113	0.074	0.200	0.26
Paid for sex past 12 months	0.001	0.001	1113	865	0.805	1.004	0.000	0.00
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.209	0.014	970	776	1.077	0.067	0.181	0.23
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.063	0.011	476	409	0.944	0.166	0.042	0.084
	V	VOMEN AI	ND MEN					
HIV prevalence (15-49)	0.262	0.012	2053	1631	1 250	0.046	0.238	0.28
HIV prevalence (15-24)	0.134	0.012	986	812	1.075	0.087	0.110	0.15

		C. 1	Number	of cases		D I		
	Value	ard	Un-	Weight-	Design effect (DEFT)	Kela- tive	Confidence limits	
Variable	(R)	(SE)	(N)	(WN)		(SE/R)	R-2SE	R+2SE
		GIRL	S					
Urban residence (12-14) Has heard of HIV/AIDS (12-14) HIV prevalence (2-14)	0.122 0.978 0.038	0.011 0.007 0.005	459 459 1828	465 465 1837	0.695 0.990 1.092	0.087 0.007 0.129	0.101 0.965 0.028	0.143 0.992 0.047
		BOY	′S					
Urban residence (12-14) Has heard of HIV/AIDS (12-14) HIV prevalence (2-14)	0.117 0.965 0.039	0.011 0.009 0.005	411 411 1745	409 409 1740	0.703 1.045 1.056	0.096 0.010 0.126	0.094 0.946 0.029	0.139 0.984 0.049
		WOM	IEN					
Urban residence (50+) Has heard of HIV/AIDS 50+) HIV prevalence for elder people (50+) HIV prevalence (2+)	0.129 0.962 0.117 0.221	0.011 0.008 0.012 0.006	661 661 597 7009	669 669 588 6849	0.823 1.078 0.944 1.308	$0.083 \\ 0.008 \\ 0.106 \\ 0.029$	0.107 0.946 0.092 0.208	0.150 0.978 0.141 0.234
		MEN	N					
Urban residence (50+) Has heard of HIV/AIDS (50+) HIV prevalence for elder people (50+) HIV prevalence (2+)	0.177 0.974 0.179 0.149	0.011 0.008 0.021 0.006	456 456 396 5743	444 444 402 5905	0.618 1.062 1.063 1.362	0.062 0.008 0.114 0.043	0.155 0.958 0.138 0.136	0.199 0.990 0.220 0.162

DATA QUALITY TABLES

Appendix C

Table C.1	Table C.1 Household age distribution								
Single-year	age distributio	n of the de fa	acto househol	d population l	by sex (weighted)	, Swaziland 20	006-07		
	Fen	nale	Ma	ale		Fen	nale	M	ale
Age	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Age	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
0	326	2.7	337	3.2	36	119	1.0	97	0.9
1	301	2.5	325	3.1	37	99	0.8	69	0.6
2	317	2.6	307	2.9	38	153	1.3	121	1.1
3	345	2.9	322	3.0	39	87	0.7	60	0.6
4	364	3.0	333	3.1	40	111	0.9	82	0.8
5	315	2.6	296	2.8	41	97	0.8	58	0.5
6	307	2.6	360	3.4	42	109	0.9	67	0.6
7	319	2.7	290	2.7	43	88	0.7	42	0.4
8	343	2.9	335	3.2	44	78	0.7	57	0.5
9	305	2.5	329	3.1	45	88	0.7	43	0.4
10	365	3.0	357	3.4	46	93	0.8	80	0.8
11	343	2.9	293	2.8	47	98	0.8	49	0.5
12	319	2.7	327	3.1	48	83	0.7	64	0.6
13	324	2.7	329	3.1	49	53	0.4	48	0.5
14	404	3.4	355	3.4	50	83	0.7	52	0.5
15	263	2.2	290	2.7	51	64	0.5	53	0.5
16	309	2.6	347	3.3	52	78	0.6	62	0.6
17	276	2.3	281	2.6	53	77	0.6	44	0.4
18	280	2.3	287	2.7	54	91	0.8	62	0.6
19	264	2.2	223	2.1	55	43	0.4	43	0.4
20	266	2.2	259	2.4	56	68	0.6	55	0.5
21	247	2.1	175	1.7	57	50	0.4	33	0.3
22	231	1.9	213	2.0	58	50	0.4	32	0.3
23	216	1.8	182	1.7	59	51	0.4	47	0.4
24	201	1.7	181	1.7	60	75	0.6	57	0.5
25	177	1.5	161	1.5	61	75	0.6	68	0.6
26	194	1.6	150	1.4	62	41	0.3	40	0.4
27	1/5	1.5	139	1.3	63	52	0.4	21	0.2
28	146	1.2	134	1.3	64	51	0.4	46	0.4
29	129	1.1	136	1.3	65	42	0.4	28	0.3
30	163	1.4	109	1.0	66	56	0.5	46	0.4
31	126	1.0	116	1.1	6/	39	0.3	19	0.2
32	134	1.1	98	0.9	68	31	0.3	19	0.2
33	124	1.0	86	0.8	69 70 -	29	0.2	/	0.1
34	116	1.0	8/	0.8	/0+	361	3.0	199	1.9
35	111	0.9	84	0.8	missing	3	0.0	I	0.0
					Total	12,008	100.0	10,604	100.0
Note: The de facto population includes all residents and nonresidents who stayed in the household the night before the interview.									

Table C.2.1 Age distribution of eligible and interviewed women

De facto household population of women age 10-54, interviewed women age 15-49, and percentage of eligible women who were interviewed (weighted), by five-year age groups, Swaziland 2006-07

	Household population of women	Interviewe age 1	ed women 15-49	Percent of
Age group	age 10-54	Number	Percent	women
10-14	1,754	na	na	na
15-19	1,392	1,325	25.6	95.2
20-24	1,161	1,088	21.0	93.7
25-29	821	755	14.6	91.9
30-34	663	627	12.1	94.6
25-39	569	531	10.3	93.4
40-44	483	450	8.7	93.2
45-49	415	400	7.7	96.5
50-54	392	na	na	na
15-49	5,503	5,177	100.0	94.1

Note: The de facto population includes all residents and nonresidents who stayed in the household the night before the interview. Weights for both household population of women and interviewed women are household weights. Age is based on the household schedule. na = Not applicable

Table C.2.2 Age distribution of eligible and interviewed men

De facto household population of men age 10-64, interviewed men aged 15-59 and percent of eligible men who were interviewed (weighted), Swaziland 2006-07

	Household population of men	Interview age 1	ved men 5-59	Percentage of eligible men
Age group	age 10-64	Number	Percent	interviewed
10-14	770	na	na	na
15-19	692	1,326	32.0	191.5
20-24	509	875	21.2	171.9
25-29	366	619	15.0	169.2
30-34	229	427	10.3	186.9
25-39	207	370	9.0	179.0
40-44	144	264	6.4	183.8
45-49	136	256	6.2	188.0
50-54	132	0.0	0.0	0.0
55-59	93	0.0	0.0	0.0
60-64	120	na	na	na
15-59	2,507	4,137	100.0	165.0
na = Not ap	plicable			

Table C.3 Completeness of reporting

Percentage of observations missing information for selected demographic and health questions (weighted), Swaziland 2006-07

Age group	Reference population	Percentage with missing information	Number of cases
Birth date	Births in the 15 years preceding the survey		
Month only		0.46	7,518
Month and year		0.16	7,518
Age at death	Deaths among births in the 15 years preceding		
8	the survey	0.12	694
Age/date at first union ¹	All women age 15-49	0.04	2.500
, go, auto at mot amon	, in trethell age 15 15	0101	_ /000
Respondent's education	All women age 15-49	0.10	4 987
Respondent's education	All women age 13-45	0.10	ч,507
Diarrhoos in past 2 wooks	Living children ago 0 E0 months	4 75	2 552
Diarrioea în past 2 weeks	Living children age 0-59 monuts	4.75	2,335
Anthropometry	Living children age 0-59 months (from household		
	questionnaire)		
Height		6.19	3,301
Weight		6.18	3,301
Height or weight		6.24	3,301
¹ Both year and age missing			

Table C.4 Births by calendar years

Number of births, percentage with complete birth date, sex ratio at birth, and calendar year ratio by calendar year, according to living (L), dead (D), and total (T) children (weighted), Swaziland 2006-07

Calendar	N	umber of	births	Percent	tage with o birth date	complete	S	ex ratio at	birth	Cal	endar vea	r ratio
year	L	D	T	L	D	T	L	D	T	L	D	T
2001	9	1	10	100.0	100.0	100.0	na	0.0	1.102.7	na	na	na
2000	478	35	513	100.0	100.0	100.0	102.8	101.3	, 102.7	na	na	na
1999	534	49	584	100.0	100.0	100.0	106.2	101.5	105.8	109.0	89.4	107.0
1998	502	76	578	100.0	100.0	100.0	101.7	112.9	103.1	97.1	140.3	101.2
1997	499	59	558	100.0	100.0	100.0	97.2	84.4	95.7	102.1	89.8	100.7
1996	476	55	530	100.0	100.0	100.0	98.9	92.3	98.2	104.4	111.3	105.1
1995	412	40	451	100.0	100.0	100.0	93.9	111.8	95.4	81.6	61.0	79.3
1994	533	75	608	98.9	98.0	98.8	121.3	84.3	116.0	122.5	178.8	127.4
1993	459	44	504	99.1	94.7	98.7	98.7	136.2	101.5	94.1	65.2	90.5
1992	443	61	504	99.8	94.6	99.2	86.4	135.2	91.2	100.7	147.5	104.7
1997-2001	2,023	220	2,242	100.0	100.0	100.0	102.9	99.5	102.5	na	na	na
1992-1996	2,322	275	2,597	99.5	97.4	99.3	100.0	107.3	100.8	na	na	na
1987-1991	2,033	166	2,199	99.3	94.5	99.0	98.2	130.5	100.3	na	na	na
1982-1986	1,718	106	1,824	99.0	92.1	98.6	100.7	119.8	101.7	na	na	na
<1982	2,151	369	2,520	99.0	95.0	98.4	103.6	95.4	102.4	na	na	na
All	10,247	1,135	11,383	99.4	96.2	99.1	101.1	105.8	101.5	na	na	na

na = Not applicable

¹ Replace with calendar years in stub. For example, if survey takes place in 2000, 0 becomes 2000, 1 becomes 1999, etc.

² Both year and month of birth given

³ (Bm/Bf)x100, where Bm and Bf are the numbers of male and female births, respectively

⁴ [2Bx/(Bx-1+Bx+1)]x100, where Bx is the number of births in calendar year x

Table C.5 Reporting of age at death in days

Distribution of reported deaths under one month of age by age at death in days and the percentage of neonatal deaths reported to occur at ages 0-6 days, for five-year periods of birth preceding the survey (weighted), Swaziland 2006-07

Age at death	Num	ber of years	preceding the	e survey	
(days)	0-4	5-9	10-14	15-19	Total 0-19
<1	15	23	7	6	51
1	16	15	18	8	57
2	6	2	5	2	15
3	4	3	2	3	11
4	4	1	1	0	5
5	3	4	1	1	9
6	1	1	0	0	2
7	10	8	7	1	25
8	0	0	0	1	1
11	0	1	0	0	1
12	0	0	0	1	1
14	1	1	1	0	3
20	1	0	2	0	3
21	0	2	1	0	3
25	0	2	0	0	2
Total 0-30	61	61	45	22	189
Percent early neonatal ¹	80.6	78.3	74.8	89.5	79.5
$^{1} = 6 \text{ days} / = 30 \text{ days}$					

Table C.6 Reporting of age at death in months

Distribution of reported deaths under two years of age by age at death in months and the percentage of infant deaths reported to occur at age under one month, for five-year periods of birth preceding the survey, Swaziland 2006-07

(months)	0-4	5-9	10-14	15-19	Total 0-19
3	U- 1	5-5	10-14	15-15	10/01/0-15
<1ª	61	61	45	22	189
1	15	14	4	4	37
2	24	11	2	2	38
3	36	17	7	4	64
4	17	16	5	2	40
5	21	12	1	6	39
6	15	20	4	4	43
7	9	11	2	0	23
8	10	4	6	0	20
9	11	7	9	2	29
10	5	1	0	1	7
11	0	4	2	0	6
12	14	17	12	5	48
13	3	1	0	0	4
14	0	3	0	0	3
15	1	1	1	0	3
16	4	0	2	0	6
18	6	4	2	2	13
19	1	1	0	0	2
20	0	0	0	0	0
21	0	1	0	0	1
22	1	0	0	0	1
23	0	0	1	0	1
1 year	4	4	6	0	14
Total 0-11	224	177	87	48	535
Percent neonatal	27.1	34.5	52.0	46.7	35.3

EFFECT OF NONRESPONSE ON THE SDHS HIV PREVALENCE RESULTS

As was seen earlier in Chapter 14 of this report, not all eligible SDHS respondents participated in the HIV testing component. The potential for bias associated with this nonparticipation is a concern since respondents who refused to be tested or were absent at the time of testing may bias the results if their characteristics or behaviours may be different from those who consented to provide a blood sample. To address these concerns, it has become standard procedure in DHS surveys with an HIV testing component to conduct an analysis of those who are not tested in order to look for potential biases¹.

Table D.1 summarizes the results of the nonresponse analysis that was conducted for the 2006-07 SDHS. The table shows the observed HIV rates for women, men, and the total sample and the rates for these groups following an adjustment for nonresponse. Overall, the adjustment for nonresponse raises the HIV prevalence by about 0.1 percentage points above the observed level (from 25.9 percent to 26.0 percent). For women, the adjusted prevalence is 31.0 percent compared with the observed level of 31.1 percent. For men, the effect of the adjustment is slightly bigger, adding about 0.6 percentage points to the observed rate of 19.7 percent. The differences between the observed and adjusted rates were not found to be statistically significant.

Table D.1 Observed and adjusted HIV prevalence among women and men							
Percentage HIV positive among women and men age 15-49 who were tested for HIV, by observed and adjusted prevalence and 95% confidence intervals, Swaziland 2006-07							
Observed HIV prevalence Adjusted HIV prevalence							
	Prevalence	95% confidence interval		Prevalence	95% confidence interval		
Sex	(R)	R-2SE	R+2SE	(R)	R-2SE	R+2SE	
Women	31.1	29.8	32.5	31.0	29.8	32.2	
Men	19.7	18.4	21.0	20.3	19.3	21.4	
Total	25.9	25.9 24.9 26.8 26.0 25.2 26.8					

¹ The analysis predicted HIV prevalence among the two non-responder groups based on multivariate models of HIV for those who were tested, using a common set of predictor variables. A logistic regression model is used to calculate predicted HIV prevalence separately for the "not-interviewed, not-tested" and "interviewed, not-tested" groups. Predictions for the "not-interviewed, not-tested" group are based on a limited set of variables from the household questionnaire including age, education, wealth index, residence, and geographic region. Predictions for the "interviewed, not-tested" group additionally account for several individual socio-demographic and behavioral characteristics of the respondents, as collected in the survey including marital union, childbirth in last five years (women only), occupation, media exposure, religion, circumcision (men only), STI or STI symptom in last 12 months, cigarette smoking/tobacco use, age at first sex, number of lifetime sex partners, number of sex partners in last 12 months, non-spousal sex in last 12 months, condom use at last sex in last 12 months, paid for sex (for men), participation in household decision-making (women only), number of times slept away in last 12 months (men only), away for more than one month in last 12 months (men only), number of years living in current place of residence, knowledge of HIV prevention methods (ABC), attitude toward people living with HIV/AIDS, woman's ability to negotiate for safer sex, medical injection (women only), alcohol use at last sex in last 12 months, and previously tested for HIV. Analysis for total prevalence used variables that commonly available for both women and men.

Minimizing nonresponse is a major challenge to all population-based surveys. The main reasons are refusal and absence. The analysis of nonresponse in Swaziland is consistent with results from other DHS countries with linked HIV data (Kenya, Ghana, Burkina Faso, Tanzania, Uganda, Cameroon, Malawi, Lesotho, Cambodia, India, Rwanda, Côte d'Ivoire, Ethiopia, and Zimbabwe) and indicates that nonresponse does not bias the national HIV estimates from population-based surveys significantly. The overall effect of nonresponse on the observed national HIV prevalence estimates tends to be small.

It is important to recognize that the adjustments only partially address the nonresponse bias. The estimates can only be adjusted to the extent that the sociodemographic and behavioural characteristics included in the analysis are correlated with the risk of HIV infection in Swaziland. Another limitation is that the adjustments for the "not-interviewed, not-tested" respondents are based on somewhat limited information although variables strongly associated with HIV infection such as age, residence, and education are included.

PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE 2006-07 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY

Administration

Ms. Rachel Masuku, Survey Director Ms Nelisiwe Dlamini, Technical Survey Director Mr. Henry Ginindza, Field Coordinator Mrs Thoko Nhlabatsi, Publicity and Information Officer Ms. Allen Waligo, Administrative Assistant Mr. Isidoro Pintu, Finance Officer Ms Dumile Nkambule, Project Secretary Mr. Nkosinathi Dlamini

Technical Team

Mr. Nhlanhla Nhlabatsi	Mr. Themba Ginindza
Ms. Dansile Vilakati	Mr. Mandla Mkwanazi
Ms. Mavis Nxumalo	Mr. Steve Chambers
Mr. Muhle Dlamini	Mr. Thulani Maphosa
Mr Africa Magongo	Ms. Ncamsile Mahajane
Ms Maureen Dlamini	Mr. Nhlanhla Khoza
Ms Thankful Dlamini	

Back-Translation of the Questionnaire and Synchronisation

Ms Petronella Mamba

Data Processing

Mr. Ronald Malangwane	Data Administrator
Ms Thandiswa Ginindza	Office Editor
Ms. Cynthia Simelane	Data Clerk
Ms. Futhi Tsabedze	Data Clerk
Ms. Nomcebo Lukhele	Data Clerk
Ms. Christabel Hasseane	Data Clerk
Ms. Nolwazi Mdluli	Data Clerk

Field Supervisors

Mr. Gcina Dube Mr. Linda Dlamini Mr. Musa Dlamini Mr. Vuyo Dlamini Mr. Mandla Magagula Mr. Thandizwe Shongwe Ms. Zodwa Dlamini Mr. Mbuso Shongwe Ms. Fikile Gama

Field Editors

Ms. Thuli Ndlangamandla	Ms. Gugu
Mr. Bongani Dlamini	Ms. Celiw
Ms. Sakhile Dlamini	Mr. Manc
Ms. Vamile Matsebula	Mr. Fuzile
Mr. Vusi Masango	Mr. Them

Ms. Gugu Bulunga Ms. Celiwe Lukhele Mr. Mancoba P. Nhleko Mr. Fuzile Nobela Mr. Thembinkosi Mabuza

Laboratory Technicians

Ms. Gugu Maphalala Ms. Qinisile Vilakati Mr. Richard Walwema Mr. Langelihle Dlamini Ms. Dumile Sibandze

Interviewers

Mr.Bhekithemba Dlamini Ms Cebile Hlophe Ms.Busisiwe Mathe Ms.Busisiwe Shongwe Ms.Abigail Thwala Mr.Ntokozo Thwala Ms.Cebsile Dlamini Mr.Mathokoza Ginindza Mr.Thabo Masango Ms.Nelisiwe Mavuso Ms.Helen Mgadula Mr.Mancoba P. Nhleko Ms.Jabulile Bhembe Ms.Lethu Dube Mr.Mfanzile Hadzebe Ms.Sthembile Mhlanga Ms.Hlobsile Mayisela Mr.Mbongeleni Xaba Mr.Musa S. Dlamini Ms.Goodness Dlamini Mr.Muzi Dlamini Ms.Nqobile Mpila Ms.Neliswa Xaba Ms.Niabuliso Zondi Ms.Nolwazi Bhebhe Ms.Nomzamo Dlamini Ms.Noncwala Khumalo Mr.Ntokozo Mdluli Ms.Nobuhle Mkhonta Mr.Nicholas Thusi Ms.Colani Gamedze Mr.Sabelo Khoza Ms.Ntombizonke Khulu Ms.Sebenzile Maziya

Ms.Ntokozo Nyatsi Ms.Nkosiph'phile Tsabedze Mr.Zwelithini Dlamini Ms.Simisile Dlamini Ms.Gabsile Mpila Ms.Siphiwe Masuku Mr.Siboniso Ndzinisa Mr.Sdumo Shabangu Mr.Sicelo Dlamini Mr.Sifiso Mdzebele Ms.Sphephile Nyoni Mr.Sibusiso Nkwanyana Ms.Sthembile Sibiya Ms.Gcinile Dlamini Ms.Tengetile Dlamini Ms.Tenanile Khumalo Mr. Thabiso Mthande Mr.Manqoba Nhleko Mr.Nelson Nkambule Mr.Sphiwo Siyaya Ms.Nomsa Dlamini Ms.Thembi Khumalo Mr.Sihle Msibi Mr.Vukani Mdletje Ms.Lomakhosi Dlamini Mr.Sibusiso Mamba Ms.Tjengisile Dlamini Ms.Thandeka Dlamini Ms.Nonhlanhla Sibandze Ms.Nomvula Motsa Ms.Samkelisiwe Masilela Mr.Bonginkosi Malaza Mr.Mfanafuthi Mamba Mr.Ndumiso Magagaula

Drivers

Mr. 1
Mr. 1
Mr. 1
Mr. 1
Mr. 1

Mr. Lucky Lushaba Mr. Phillip Mhlanga Mr. Moses Mthiyane Mr. Mayford Sibandze Mr. David Nhlabatsi

Final Report Writers

Mr. Africa Magongo
Ms. Dudu Dlamini
Ms. Marjorie Mavuso
Ms. Zodwa Mthethwa
Ms. Petronella Mamba

Macro International Inc. Staff

DHS Director
Country Manager
Country Manager
Country Manager
Sampling Statistician
Sampling Statistician
Data Processing Specialist
Dissemination Specialist
Editor
Report Production

2006 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY HOUSEHOLD QUESTIONNAIRE

		IDENTIFICATION							
PLACE NAME				-					
NAME OF HOUSEHOLD	HEAD								
DHS CLUSTER NUMBE	DHS CLUSTER NUMBER								
PSU CODE									
HOUSEHOLD NUMBER									
REGION (HHOHHO = 1,	·								
URBAN/RURAL (URBAN									
SELECTED FOR YOUTH	H SURVEY AND TESTING	G (YES = 1, NO = 2)		·					
LARGE CITY/SMALL CIT (LARGE CITY=1, SMALL	TY/TOWN/RURAL _ CITY=2, TOWN=3, RUR	 AL=4)							
		INTERVIEWER VISIT	S						
	1	2	3	FINAL VISIT					
DATE				DAY MONTH YEAR 2 0 0 6					
INTERVIEWER'S NAME				INT. NUMBER					
RESULT*				RESULT					
NEXT VISIT: DATE				TOTAL NUMBER OF VISITS					
*RESULT CODES: 1 COMP 2 NO HC HOME 3 ENTIR 4 POSTF 5 REFUS 6 DWELI 7 DWELI 8 DWELI 9 OTHEF	TIME								
9 OTHER									

HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE

LINE NO.	USUAL RESIDENTS AND VISITORS	RELATIONSHIP TO HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD	SEX	RESID	DENCE	AGE	IF AGE 15 OR OLDER		ELIGIBILITY			
	Please give me the names of the persons who usually live in your household and guests of the household who stayed here last night, starting with the head of the household.	What is the relationship of (NAME) to the head of the household?	ls (NAME) male or female?	Does (NAME) usually live here?	Did (NAME) stay here last night?	How old is (NAME)?	MARITAL STATUS What is (NAME'S) current marital status?	CIRCLE LINE NUMBER OF ALL WOMEN AGE 15-49	CIRCLE LINE NUMBER OF ALL MEN AGE 15-49	CIRCLE LINE NUMBER OF ALL PERSONS AGE 12-14	CIRCLE LINE NUMBER OF ALL CHILD- REN AGE 0-5	CIRCLE LINE NUMBER OF ALL MEN AND WOMEN AGE 50+
	AFTER LISTING NAMES, RELATIONSHIPS, AND SEX, ASK Qs. 2A-2C TO BE SURE THAT THE LISTING IS COMPLETE. THEN ASK APPROPRIATE QUESTIONS IN COLUMNS 5-35 FOR EACH MEMBER OF THE HOUSEHOLD.	SEE CODES BELOW.	MALE = 1 FE- MALE = 2	YES = 1 NO = 2	YES = 1 NO = 2		SEE CODES BELOW.					
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)
01						IN YEARS		01	01	01	01	01
02								02	02	02	02	02
03								03	03	03	03	03
04								04	04	04	04	04
05								05	05	05	05	05
06								06	06	06	06	06
07								07	07	07	07	07
08								08	08	08	08	08
09								09	09	09	09	09
10								10	10	10	10	10

 CODES FOR Q. 3

 RELATIONSHIP TO HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD:

 01 = HEAD

 02 = WIFE OR HUSBAND/
 08 = BROTH

 PARTNER
 09 = NIECE/I

 03 = SON OR DAUGHTER
 10 = NIECE/I

 04 = SON-IN-LAW OR
 11 = OTHER

 DAUGHTER-IN-LAW
 12 = ADOPT

 05 = GRANDCHILD
 13 = NOT RE

 06 = PARENT
 98 = DON'T I

 07 = PARENT-IN-LAW
 10

- 08 = BROTHER OR SISTER 09 = NIECE/NEPHEW BY BLOOD 10 = NIECE/NEPHEW BY MARRIAGE 11 = OTHER RELATIVE 12 = ADOPTED/FOSTER/STEPCHILD 13 = NOT RELATED 98 = DON'T KNOW

CODES FOR Q. 8 MARITAL STATUS 1 = MARRIED/LIVING TOGETHER 2 = DIVORCED/SEPARATED 3 = WIDOWED 4 = NEVER MARRIED/NEVER LIVED WITH A PARTNER

LINE NO.	IF AGE 18-59 YEARS	IF AGE 0-17 YEARS						IFAGE 0-17 YEARS					
	SICK			SURVIVORSHIP	AND RESIDEN	ICE OF BIOL	OGICAL PARENTS			BROT	HERS	SISTE	RS
	Has (NAME) been very sick for at least three months during the past 12 months? By very sick I mean that (NAME) was too sick to work or do normal activities around the house for at least three of the past 12 months. YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	Is (NAME)'s natural mother alive?	Does (NAME)'s natural mother live in this house- hold? IF YES: What is her name? RECORD MOTHER'S LINE NO. SEE BELOW.	IF MOTHER DOES NOT LIVE IN HOUSEHOLD Has (NAME)'s mother been very sick for at least 3 months during the past 12 months? By very sick I mean too sick to work or do normal activities around the house for at least three of the past 12 months? YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	Is (NAME)'s natural father alive?	Does (NAME)'s natural father live in this house- hold? IF YES: What is his name? RECORD FATHER'S LINE NO. SEE BELOW.	IF FATHER DOES NOT LIVE IN HOUSEHOLD Has (NAME)'s father been very sick for at least 3 months during the past 12 months? By very sick I mean to sick to work or do normal activities around the house for at least three of the past 12 months? YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	CHECK QS. 15 TO 20: CIRCLE LINE NUMBER FOR THE CHILD WHOSE MOTHER AND/OR FATHER HAS DIED (Q. 15 AND 18) OR IS SICK (Q. 17 AND 20).	CHECK Q.15 AND Q.18: IF YES TO Q.15 AND Q.18 (BOTH PARENTS ALIVE), CIRCLE '1', OTHER- WISE CIRCLE '2'.	Does (NAME) have any natural brothers under the age of 18? By natural brothers, I mean born to the same mother and same father.	Do all of (NAME)'s natural brothers under the age of 18 live in this house- hold? YES = 1 NO = 2	Does (NAME) have any natural sisters under the age of 187 By natura sisters, I mean born to the same mother and same father.	Do all of (NAME)'s natural sisters under the age of 18 live in this house- hold? YES = 1 NO = 2
(1)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	(26)
01		Y N DK ¹ ² - ⁸ GO TO 18			Y N DK ¹ ² - ⁸ GO TO 21			01	1 2 GO TO 27	Y N DK 1 2 - 8 GO TO 25		Y N DK ¹ ² 8 GO TO 27	
02		¹ ² ⁸ GO TO 18			¹ ² - ⁸ GO TO 21			02	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² ⁸ 30 TO 27	
03		1 2 ↓ 8 GO TO 18			¹ ² 8 GO TO 21			03	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		1 2_8 GO TO 27	
04		1 2 7 8 GO TO 18			¹ ² * GO TO 21			04	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² 1 ⁸ 30 TO 27	
05		1 2 ↓ 8 GO TO 18			¹ ² 8 GO TO 21			05	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² ↓ ⁸ GO TO 27	
06		¹ ² 7 ⁸ GO TO 18			¹ ² 8 GO TO 21			06	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 - 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² 7 30 TO 27	
07		1 2 - 8 GO TO 18			¹ ² 8 GO TO 21			07	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 - 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² ⁸ 30 TO 27	
08		1 2 7 8 GO TO 18			¹ ² 1 ⁸ GO TO 21			08	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² ⁸ 30 TO 27	
09		1 2 - 8 GO TO 18			1 2 - 8 GO TO 21			09	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 - 8 GO TO 25		¹ ² 7 30 TO 27	
10		1 2 7 GO TO 18			1 2 - 8 GO TO 21			10	1 2 GO TO 27	1 2 8 GO TO 25		1 2_8 GO TO 27	

Qs. 16 AND 19 RECORD '00' IF PARENT IS NOT LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE.

LINE NO.	IF AGI OLI	E 5 YEARS OR DER		IF AGE 5-24 YEARS			IF AGE 0-4	IF AGE 5-17 YEAR		RS
	HIGHE	ST EDUCATION		RECENT SCHOO	DL ATTENDA	ANCE	BIRTH REGIS- TRATION	BASI	C MATERIAL N	EEDS
	Has (NAME) ever attended school?	What is the highest level of school (NAME) has attended? SEE CODES BELOW. What is the highest grade (NAME) completed at that level?	Did (NAME) attend school at any time during the (2005 - 2006) school year?	During this/that school year, what level and grade [is/was] (NAME) attending?	Did (NAME) attend school at any time during the previous school year, that is, (2004 - 2005)?	During that school year, what level and grade did (NAME) attend?	Does (NAME) have a birth certificate? IF NO, PROBE: Has (NAME)'s birth ever been regis- tered with the civil authority?	Does (NAME) have at least one meal per day?	Does (NAME) have a pair of shoes?	Does (NAME) have at least two sets of clothing?
		SEE CODES BELOW.		SEE CODES BELOW.		SEE CODES BELOW.	SEE CODES BELOW.	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8
(1)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	(35)	(36)
01	YES NO 1 2 GO TO 33	LEVEL GRADE	YES NO 1 2 GO TO 31	LEVEL GRADE	YES NO	LEVEL GRADE				
02	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
03	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
04	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
05	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
06	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
07	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
08	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
09	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
10	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
		CODES FOR Qs. 2 EDUCATION LEVE 1 = LOWER PRIMA 2 = HIGHER PRIMA 3 = SECONDARY	8, 30, AND L: .RY 4 = .RY 5 = .8 =	32 HIGH SCHOOL TERTIARY DON'T KNOW	ED (00 = 98 =	JCATION GRADE: = LESS THAN 1 YE (FOR Q. 28 ONLY. NOT ALLOWED F(= DON'T KNOW	AR COMPLETE THIS CODE IS DR Qs. 30 AND	CC D 1: 2: 32) 3: 8:	DDES FOR Q.3 = CERTIFICAT = REGISTRATI = NEITHER = DON'T KNOV	93 E ON V

LINE NO.	NE IF AGE 5 YEARS OR OLDER O.		IF AGE 5-24 YEARS				IF AGE 0-4	IF	AGE 5-17 YEA	RS
	HIGHEST EDUCATION			RECENT SCHOO	DL ATTEND	ANCE	BIRTH REGIS- TRATION	BASI	C MATERIAL N	EEDS
	Has (NAME) ever attended school?	What is the highest level of school (NAME) has attended? SEE CODES BELOW. What is the highest grade (NAME) completed at that level?	Did (NAME) attend school at any time during the (2005 - 2006) school year?	During this/that school year, what level and grade [is/was] (NAME) attending?	Did (NAME) attend school at any time during the previous school year, that is, (2004 - 2005)?	During that school year, what level and grade did (NAME) attend?	Does (NAME) have a birth certificate? IF NO, PROBE: Has (NAME)'s birth ever been regis- tered with the civil authority?	Does (NAME) have at least one meal per day?	Does (NAME) have a pair of shoes?	Does (NAME) have at least two sets of clothing?
		SEE CODES BELOW.		SEE CODES BELOW.		SEE CODES BELOW.	SEE CODES BELOW.	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8	YES = 1 NO = 2 DK = 8
(1)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	(35)	(36)
11	YES NO 1 2 € CO TO 22	LEVEL GRADE	YES NO 1 2 €0 TO 21	LEVEL GRADE	YES NO 1 2 ↓	LEVEL GRADE				
12	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
13	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
14	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
15	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 ↓ GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
16	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 ↓ GO TO 33					
17	1 2 ↓ GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
18	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
19	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					
20	1 2 GO TO 33		1 2 GO TO 31		1 2 GO TO 33					

CODES FOR Qs. 28, 30, AND 32 EDUCATION LEVEL: 1 = PRIMARY 2 = SECONDARY 3 = HIGH SCHOOL 4 = TERTIARY 8 = DON'T KNOW

EDUCATION GRADE: 00 = LESS THAN 1 YEAR COMPLETED (FOR Q. 28 ONLY. THIS CODE IS NOT ALLOWED FOR Qs. 30 AND 32) 98 = DON'T KNOW

CODES FOR Q.33 1 = CERTIFICATE 2 = REGISTRATION 3 = NEITHER 8 = DON'T KNOW

HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
101	What is the main source of drinking water for members of your household?	PIPED WATER PIPED INTO DWELLING 11 PIPED TO YARD/PLOT 12 PUBLIC TAP/STANDPIPE 13 BOREHOLE 21 DUG WELL 21 PROTECTED WELL 31 UNPROTECTED WELL 32 WATER FROM SPRING 41 UNPROTECTED SPRING 41 UNPROTECTED SPRING 51 TANKER TRUCK 61 SURFACE WATER (RIVER/DAM/ 1 LAKE/POND/STREAM/CANAL/ 81 BOTTLED WATER 91 OTHER	+ 106 + 103 + 106 + 103 + 102 + 102 + 103
102	What is the main source of water used by your household for other purposes such as cooking and handwashing?	PIPED WATER PIPED INTO DWELLING 11 PIPED TO YARD/PLOT 12 PUBLIC TAP/STANDPIPE 13 BOREHOLE 21 DUG WELL 31 PROTECTED WELL 31 UNPROTECTED WELL 32 WATER FROM SPRING 41 UNPROTECTED SPRING 42 RAINWATER 51 TANKER TRUCK 61 SURFACE WATER (RIVER/DAM/ 41 LAKE/POND/STREAM/CANAL/ 81 OTHER	→ 106 → 106
103	Where is that water source located?	IN OWN YARD/PLOT 1 ELSEWHERE 2	→ 106
104	How long does it take to go there, get water, and come back?	MINUTES	→ 106
105	Who usually goes to this source to fetch the water for your household?	ADULT WOMAN 1 ADULT MAN 2 FEMALE CHILD 3 UNDER 15 YEARS OLD 3 MALE CHILD 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 6	
106	Do you treat your water in any way to make it safer to drink?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	→ 108

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
107	What do you usually do to the water to make it safer to drink? Anything else? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	BOIL A ADD BLEACH/CHLORINE/JIG B STRAIN THROUGH A CLOTH C USE WATER FILTER (CERAMIC/ SAND/COMPOSITE/ETC.) D SOLAR DISINFECTION E LET IT STAND AND SETTLE F OTHER X (SPECIFY) D DON'T KNOW Z	
108	What kind of toilet facility do members of your household usually use?	FLUSH OR POUR FLUSH TOILET 11 PIT TOILET/LATRINE ORDINARY PIT TOILET 21 VENTILATED IMPROVED PRIVY	
109	Do you share this toilet facility with other households?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 111
110	How many households use this toilet facility?	NO. OF HOUSEHOLDS 0 IF LESS THAN 10 95 10 OR MORE HOUSEHOLDS 95 DON'T KNOW 98	
111	Does your household have: Electricity? A radio? A television? A mobile telephone? A non-mobile telephone? A refrigerator? A stove? A watch or clock?	YESNOELECTRICITY12RADIO12TELEVISION12MOBILE TELEPHONE12NON-MOBILE TELEPHONE12REFRIGERATOR12STOVE12WATCH/CLOCK12	
112	What type of fuel does your household mainly use for cooking?	ELECTRICITY 01 CHARCOAL 02 WOOD 03 GAS 04 PARAFFIN 05 COAL 06 NO FOOD COOKED IN THE 07 OTHER	→ 114 → 116
113	In this household, is food usually cooked on a stove or an open fire? PROBE FOR TYPE.	OPEN FIRE OR STOVE WITHOUT CHIMNEY/HOOD 1 OPEN FIRE OR STOVE WITH CHIMNEY/HOOD 2 CLOSED STOVE WITH CHIMNEY 3 OTHER6 (SPECIFY)	
114	Is the cooking usually done in the house, in a separate building, or outdoors?	IN THE HOUSE	116
115	Do you have a separate room which is used as a kitchen?	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES		SKIP
116	MAIN MATERIAL OF THE FLOOR. RECORD OBSERVATION.	NATURAL FLOOR EARTH/SAND DUNG RUDIMENTARY FLOOR WOOD PLANKS PALM/BAMBOO FINISHED FLOOR PARQUET OR POLISHED WOOD VINYL OR ASPHALT STRIPS CERAMIC TILES CEMENT CARPET OTHER (SPECIFY)	11 12 21 22 31 32 33 34 35 96	
117	MAIN MATERIAL OF THE ROOF. RECORD OBSERVATION.	NATURAL ROOFING GRASS RUDIMENTARY ROOFING RUSTIC MAT PALM/BAMBOO WOOD PLANKS FINISHED ROOFING CORRUGATED IRON ASBESTOS	12 21 22 23 31 32	
		TILES	33 34 35 96	
118	MAIN MATERIAL OF THE WALLS. RECORD OBSERVATION.	NATURAL WALLS GRASS CANE/PALM/TRUNKS MUD RUDIMENTARY WALLS BAMBOO WITH MUD STONE WITH MUD PLYWOOD CARTON CARTON REUSED WOOD FINISHED WALLS CEMENT STONE WITH LIME/CEMENT BRICKS CEMENT BLOCKS MUD BLOCKS WOOD PLANKS/SHINGLES OTHER (SPECIFY)	11 12 13 21 22 24 25 26 31 32 33 34 35 36 96	
119	TYPE OF WINDOWS. RECORD OBSERVATION.	YES ANY WINDOWS 1 WINDOWS WITH GLASS 1 WINDOWS WITH SCREENS . 1 WINDOWS WITH CURTAINS . 1 WOODEN WINDOWS 1 OTHER 1 (SPECIFY)	NO 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	→ 120
120	How many rooms in this household are usually used for sleeping?	ROOMS		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS			CODING CATEGORIE	S	SKIP
121	Does any member of this household own: A bicycle? A motorcycle or motor scooter? An animal-drawn cart? A car or truck? A tractor?		BICYCLE MOTORC ANIMAL-I CAR/TRU TRACTO!	YCLE/SCOOTER DRAWN CART ICKR	YES NO 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	
122	Does any member of this household own any land that can be used for agriculture?		YES NO		1 2	→ 124
123	How many square metres of agricultural land do members of this household own?	s	SQUARE	METRES		
	IF MORE THAN 9500, ENTER '9500'. IF UNKNOWN, ENTER '9998'.		MORE TH DON'T KN	IAN 9500	. 9500 . 9998	
124	Does this household own any livestock, herds, other farm animals, or poultry?		YES 1 NO 2			→ 126
125	How many of the following animals does this household own?				_ 	
	Cattle?	ļ	CATTLE	CATTLE		
	Milk cows?		COWS .			
	Horses, donkeys, or mules?		HORSES	DONKEYS/MULES .		
	Goats?		GOATS			
	Sheep?		SHEEP			
	Chickens?		CHICKEN	IS		
	IF NONE, ENTER '00'. IF MORE THAN 95, ENTER '95'. IF UNKNOWN, ENTER '98'.					
126	Does any member of this household have a bank account	t?	YES NO		1 2	
127	Does your household have any mosquito or bed nets that used while sleeping?	i can be	YES NO	·····	1 2	→ 138
128	How many bed nets does your household have?					
	IF 7 OR MORE NETS, RECORD '7'.	<u>ل</u> ـــــ	110112			
129	ASK THE RESPONDENT TO SHOW YOU THE NET(S) IN THE HOUSEHOLD. IF MORE THAN 3 NETS, USE	OBSER	ET #1	NET #2 OBSERVED 1	NET OBSERVE	#3 D 1
	ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S).	NOT OF	NOT OBSERVED 2 NOT OBSERVED 2 NOT OF		NOT OBSI	ERVED 2
130	OBSERVE OR ASK THE BRAND OF MOSQUITO NET.	ILONG LA NET WHITE BLUE GREEN ITN' NET BLUE GREEN	ASTING' 11 12 J 18 T 21 J 21 J 22 J 22	'LONG LASTING' NET WHITE 11 BLUE 12 GREEN 18 'ITN' NET BLUE 21- GREEN 22-	'LONG LAS NET WHITE BLUE GREEN 'ITN' NET BLUE GREEN	TING' 11 12 18 21 22-
	1	(SKIP I OTHER	O 135) → 31	(SKIP TO 135)	(SKIP TO	135) ↓ 31
		NOT SUF	RE 98	NOT SURE 98	NOT SURE	98

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS		CODING CATEGORIE	S SKIP
131	Did anyone sleep under this mosquito net last night?	YES 1	YES 1	YES 1
		NO 2 (SKIP TO 133) ← NOT SURE 8	NO 2 (SKIP TO 133) ← NOT SURE 8	NO 2 (SKIP TO 133) ← NOT SURE 8
132	Who slept under this mosquito net last night?	NAME	NAME	NAME
	RECORD THE RESPECTIVE LINE NUMBER FROM THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE.	LINENO.	LINE NO.	LINE NO.
		NAME	NAME	NAME
		LINE NO.	LINE NO.	NO.
		NAME	NAME	NAME
		LINENO.	NO.	NO.
		NAME	NAME	NAME
		LINENO.	LINE NO.	LINE NO.
133	How many months ago did your household obtain the mosquito net? IF LESS THAN ONE MONTH RECORD '00'	MOSAGO	MOS	MOSAGO
	IF 37 MONTHS OR MORE, CIRCLE CODE '96'. IF DON'T KNOW, RECORD '98'.	MORE THAN 3 YEARS AGO 96 DK 98	MORE THAN 3 YEARS AGO 96 DK 98	MORE THAN 3 YEARS AGO 96 DK 98
134	When you got the net, was it treated with an insecticide to kill or repel mosquitos?	YES 1	YES 1	YES 1
		NO 2	NO 2	NO 2
		NOT SURE 8	NOT SURE 8	NOT SURE 8
135	Since you got the mosquito net, was it ever soaked or dipped in a liquid to repel mosquitos?	YES 1	YES 1	YES 1
		NO 2 (SKIP TO 137) ← NOT SURE 8	NO 2 (SKIP TO 137) ← NOT SURE 8	NO 2 (SKIP TO 137) ← NOT SURE 8
136	How many months ago was the net last soaked or dipped?	MOS	MOS	MOS
	IF LESS THAN ONE MONTH, RECORD '00'. IF 25 MONTHS OR MORE, CIRCLE CODE '96'.	MORE THAN 2 YEARS AGO 96	MORE THAN 2 YEARS AGO 96	MORE THAN 2 YEARS AGO 96
	IF DON'T KNOW/UNSURE, CIRCLE '98'.	NOT SURE/ DK	NOT SURE/ DK	NOT SURE/ DK
137		GO BACK TO 129 FOR NEXT NET; OR, IF NO MORE NETS, GO TO 138.	GO BACK TO 129 FOR NEXT NET; OR, IF NO MORE NETS, GO TO 138.	GO BACK TO 129 IN FIRST COLUMN OF NEW QUESTION- NAIRE; OR, IF NO MORE NETS, GO TO 138

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
138	During the last 12 months, has anyone sprayed the interior walls of your dwelling against mosquitoes? IF NOT SPRAYED, RECORD '95' IF 'YES', How many months ago was the house sprayed? RECORD '00' IF LESS THAN ONE MONTH.	MONTHS AGO 95	→140
139	Who sprayed the house?	GOVERNMENT PROGRAM 1 PRIVATE COMPANY 2 HOUSEHOLD MEMBER 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 8	
140	Would you like to have a (another) mosquito net?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 142
141	What colour of mosquito or bed net would you prefer?	BLUE 1 GREEN 2 WHITE 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) DK/NO PREFERENCE 8	
142	ASK RESPONDENT FOR A TEASPOONFUL OF SALT. TEST SALT FOR IODINE. RECORD PPM (PARTS PER MILLION)	0 PPM (NO IODINE)	
SUPPORT FOR SICK PEOPLE

201	CHECK COLUMNS 7 AND 14 IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDU	ILE:			
	AT LEAST ONE			→ 301	
202	ENTER IN THE TABLE THE LINE NUMBER AND NAME OF EACH SICK PERSON AGE 18-59, BEGINNING WITH THE FIRST SICK PERSON LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE. ASK THE QUESTIONS ABOUT ALL OF THESE PEOPLE. IF THERE ARE MORE THAN 3 SICK PEOPLE, USE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S).				
203	NAME AND LINE NUMBER FROM COLUMNS 1 AND 2	1ST SICK PERSON	2ND SICK PERSON	3RD SICK PERSON	
		NAME	NAME		
		LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
204	You told me that in your household, (NAME OF EACH SICK PERSON IN 203) has(ve) been very sick for at least three of the past 12 months. I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or support that your household may have received for [that/each of those] person(s) for which you did not have to pay. By formal, organized support I mean help provided by someone working for a program. This program could be government, private, religious, charity, or community based.				
205	Now I would like to ask you about the support you received for (NAME).				
	In the last 12 months, has your household received any medical support for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 207) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 207) ← DK 8	NO 2 (SKIP TO 207) ← DK 8	
206	Did your household receive any medical support at least once a month while (NAME) was sick?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	
207	In the last 12 months, has your household received any emotional or psychological support for (NAME), such as companionship, counseling from a trained counselor, or spiritual support for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 209) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 209) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 209) ← DK 8	
208	Did your household receive any emotional or psychological support in the past 30 days?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	
209	In the last 12 months, has your household received any material support for (NAME), such as clothing, food, or financial support, for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 211) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 211) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 211) ← DK 8	
210	Did your household receive any material support in the past 30 days?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	
211	In the last 12 months, has your household received any social support for (NAME), such as help in household work, training for a caregiver, or legal services, for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 213) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 213) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 213) ← DK 8	
212	Did your household receive any social support in the past 30 days?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	

		1ST SICK PERSON	2ND SICK PERSON	3RD SICK PERSON
NO.	FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
213	In the last 30 days, has (NAME) had severe pain, mild pain, or no pain at all?	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 215)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 215)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 215)
214	When (NAME) was in pain, was he/she able to reduce or stop the pain most of the time, some of the time, or not at all?	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3
215	In the last 30 days, did (NAME) suffer from nausea, coughing, diarrhea, or constipation? IF YES: Did (NAME) suffer severely or mildly?	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 217) -	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 217)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 217)
216	Was (NAME) able to reduce or stop the (nausea/coughing/diarrhea/constipation) most of the time, some of the time or not at all?	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3
217		GO BACK TO 205 IN NEXT COLUMN IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE OR IN THE FIRST COLUMN OF THE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S); IF NO MORE SICK PEOPLE, GO TO 301.		

SUPPORT FOR PERSONS WHO HAVE DIED

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS		CODING CATEGORIES		SKIP	
301	Now I would like to ask you a few more questions about your he Think back over the past 12 months. Has any usual member of household died in the last 12 months?	ousehold your	YES 1 NO		401	
302	How many household members died in the last 12 months?		NO. OF	PERSONS		
303	ASK 304-322 FOR ONE PERSON AT A TIME. IF MORE THAN	N 3 PEOPLE	HAVE DIE	D, USE ADDITIONAL C	UESTIONN	IAIRE(S).
304	What was the name of the person who died (most recently/before him/her)?	NAME 1S	T DEATH	T DEATH NAME 2ND DEATH NA		D DEATH
305	Was (NAME) male or female?	MALE FEMALE	1 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE FEMALE	1 2
306	How old was (NAME) when (he/she) died?	AGE IN YEARS		AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
307	Was (NAME) very sick for at least three of the 12 months before (he/she) died? By very sick, I mean that (NAME) was too sick to work or do normal activities around the house for at least three months.	YES NO (SKIP TO DK	1 2 O 322) ← 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 322) ← DK 8	YES NO (SKIP TO DK	· · · · · 2 0 322) ← · · · · · 8
308	CHECK 306: AGE OF PERSON AT DEATH	<18/60+ (SKIP TO 322) 18-59		<18/60+ (SKIP TO 322) - 18-59	<18/60+ (SKIP TC 18-59	D 322) ◀
	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or support that your household may have received fo [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay. By formal, organized support I mean help provided b someone working for a program. This program could be government, private, religious, charity, or community based					
309	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern	port that you ^r . By formal, iment, privat	ir household organized s te, religious,	I may have received fo upport I mean help provi charity, or community b	ided b ased	
309 310	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern In the last 12 months, did your household receive any medical supplies for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay?	yort that you by formal, ment, privat YES NO (SKIP TO DK	ir household organized s te, religious, 2 O 312) ← 8	I may have received fo upport I mean help provi charity, or community by YES	ided b ased YES NO (SKIP To DK	1 2 O 312) ← 8
309 310 311	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern In the last 12 months, did your household receive any medical supplies for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any medical support at least once a month while (NAME) was sick?	Port that you . By formal, ment, privat YES (SKIP TO DK YES NO DK	rr household organized s ie, religious, 1 2 O 312) ← 8 1 2 8	I may have received fo upport I mean help providentiation of the provide	ided b ased YES (SKIP Tr DK YES NO DK	1 2 O 312) 4 8 1 2 8
309 310 311 312	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern In the last 12 months, did your household receive any medical supplies for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any medical support at least once a month while (NAME) was sick? In the last 12 months, did your household receive any emotional or psychological support for (NAME), such as companionship, counseling from a trained counselor, or spiritual support for which you did not have to pay?	port that you . By formal, nment, privat YES (SKIP To DK NO YES NO YES NO YES NO YES NO DK OK YES NO YES DK NO YES	rr household organized s te, religious, 1 2 O 312) ← 1 8 1 2 8 1 2 O 312) ← 1 2 8 1 2 O 312) ← 1 8	I may have received fo upport I mean help providentity, or community by YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 312) ← DK 8 YES 1 NO 2 DK 8 YES 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 OK 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 314) ← 1 DK 8	ided b ased YES (SKIP Tr DK YES DK YES NO (SKIP Tr DK	1 2 0 312) ← 8 1 2 8 1 2 0 314) ← 8
309 310 311 312 313	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern In the last 12 months, did your household receive any medical supplies for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any medical support at least once a month while (NAME) was sick? In the last 12 months, did your household receive any emotional or psychological support for (NAME), such as companionship, counseling from a trained counselor, or spiritual support for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any emotional or psychological support in the last 30 days before (NAME's) death?	port that you . By formal, nment, privat YES NO (SKIP TC DK NO YES NO	rr household organized s ie, religious, 	Imay have received fo upport I mean help provider version YES INO 2 (SKIP TO 312) DK NO 2 (SKIP TO 312) DK NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 314) DK 8 YES 1 NO 2 DK 8 YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	ided b ased YES (SKIP Tr DK YES NO (SKIP Tr DK YES (SKIP Tr DK YES YES NO DK	1 2 O 312) ↓ 8 1 2 8 1 2 O 314) ↓ 8 8 1 8
309 310 311 312 313 314	I would like to ask you about any formal, organized help or sup [NAME] before (he/she) died, for which you did not have to pay someone working for a program. This program could be govern In the last 12 months, did your household receive any medical supplies for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any medical support at least once a month while (NAME) was sick? In the last 12 months, did your household receive any emotional or psychological support for (NAME), such as companionship, counseling from a trained counselor, or spiritual support for which you did not have to pay? Did your household receive any emotional or psychological support in the last 30 days before (NAME's) death? In the last 12 months, did your household receive any material support for (NAME), such as clothing, food, or financial support, for which you did not have to pay?	Port that you . By formal, ment, privat YES (SKIP TC DK YES NO DK DK DK	rr household organized s ie, religious, 1 2 O 312) ← 8 1 2 8 1 2 O 314) ← 8 1 2 O 314) ← 8 1 2 O 314) ← 8	Imay have received fo upport I mean help provider version YES NO 2 (SKIP TO 312) DK NO 2 (SKIP TO 312) DK NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 DK 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 314) DK 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 314) DK 1 NO 2 DK 8 YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 316) DK 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 316)	ided b ased YES (SKIP Tr DK YES NO (SKIP Tr DK YES NO YES NO CKIP Tr DK	1 2 O 312) ↓ 8 1 2 8 1 2 O 314) ↓ 8 1 2 O 314) ↓ 8 1 2 O 314) ↓ 8 1

		NAME 1ST DEATH	NAME 2ND DEATH	NAME 3RD DEATH
316	In the last 12 months, did your household receive any social support for (NAME), such as help in household work, training for a caregiver, or legal services, for which you did not have to pay?	YES	YES	YES
317	Did your household receive any social support in the last 30 days before (NAME)'s death?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8
318	In the 30 days before (NAME) died, did he/she have severe pain, mild pain, or no pain at all?	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 320)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 320)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 320)
319	When (NAME) was in pain, was he/she able to reduce or stop the pain most of the time, some of the time, or not at all?	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3
320	In the 30 days before (NAME) died, did he/she suffer from nausea, coughing, diarrhea, or constipation? IF YES: Did (NAME) suffer severely or mildly?	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 322)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 322)	SEVERE 1 MILD 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 322) ←
321	Was (NAME) able to reduce or stop the (nausea/coughing/diarrhea/constipation) most of the time, some of the time or not at all?	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3	MOST TIME 1 SOME TIME 2 NOT AT ALL 3
322		GO BACK TO 304 IN NEXT COLUMN IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE OR IN THE FIRST COLUMN OF THE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S); IF NO MORE PEOPLE HAVE DIED, GO TO 401.		

SUPPORT FOR ORPHANS AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN

NO.	. FILTERS				
401	CHECK COLUMN 7 IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE: ANY CHILD AGE 0-17?				
	AT LEAST ONE NO CHILD CHILD AGE 0-17	END INTERVIEW			
402	CHECK COLUMN 14 IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE: ANY ADULT AGE 18-59 WHO IS SICK?				
	NO SICK ADULT AT LEAST ONE SICK ALL CHILDREN AGE 0-17 AGE 18-59 ADULT AGE 18-59 IN THE HOUSEHOLD				
403	CHECK 306 IN THE PREVIOUS SECTION: ANY ADULT AGE 18-59 WHO DIED IN PAST 12 MONTHS?				
	NO ADULT AT LEAST ONE ADULT →ALL CHILDREN AGE 0-17 AGE 18-59 IN 306 AGE 18-59 IN 306 IN THE HOUSEHOLD				
404	CHECK COLUMN 21 IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE: ANY CHILD WHOSE MOTHER AND/OR FATHER HAS DIED OR WHOSE MOTHER AND/OR FATHER IS NOT LIVING IN THE HOUSEHOLD AND/OR IS SICK?				
	AT LEAST ONE CHILD WHOSE MOTHER AND/OR NO CHILD WHOSE MOTHER FATHER HAS DIED AND/OR IS SICK AND OR FATHER HAS DIED AND/OR IS SICK AND NOT IN HOUSEHOLD	END INTERVIEW			
	GO TO 405 AND LIST ALL CHILDREN WHOSE LINE NUMBERS ARE RECORDED IN 21				

405	RECORD NAMES, LINE NUMBERS AND AGES OF CHILDREN AGE 0-17 AS APPROPRIATE, BEGINNING WITH THE FIRST CHILD AND CONTINUING IN THE ORDER IN WHICH THEY ARE LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE OR IN 21, AS APPROPRIATE. IF THERE ARE MORE THAN 8 CHILDREN TO BE LISTED, USE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S).				
400	NAME	1ST CHILD	2ND CHILD	3RD CHILD	4TH CHILD
406	NAME				
	LINE NUMBER				NUMBER
	AGE	AGE	AGE	AGE	AGE
407	I would like to ask you about any formal, or (NAME OF EACH CHILD IN 406) and for w someone working for a program. This progr	ganized help or support rhich you did not have to ram could be governme	that your household m o pay. By formal, organi nt, private, religious, ch	ay have received fo ized support I mean help arity, or community base	o provided by ed
408	Now I would like to ask you about the support your household received for (NAME).				
	In the last 12 months, has your household received any medical support for (NAME), such as medical care, supplies or medicine, for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8
409	In the last 12 months, has your household received any emotiona or psychological support for (NAME), such as companionship, counseling from a trained counselor, or spiritual support, which you received at home and for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 411) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 411) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 411) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 411) ← DK 8
410	Did your household receive any emotional or psychological support in the past three months?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8
411	In the last 12 months, has your household received any materia support for (NAME), such as clothing, food, or financial support, for which you did not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 413) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 413) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 413) ↔ DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 413) ← DK 8
412	Did your household receive any material support in the past three months?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8
413	In the last 12 months, has your household received any social support for (NAME) such as help in household work, training for a caregiver, of legal services for which you dic not have to pay?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 415) ← DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 415) ← DK 8	YES1 NO2 (SKIP TO 415) ← DK8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 415) ← DK 8
414	Did your household receive any social support in the past three months?	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8	YES 1 NO 2 DK 8
415	CHECK 406: AGE OF CHILD	AGE 0-4 □ (SKIP TO 417) ◀ AGE 5-17 □	AGE 0-4 □ (SKIP TO 417) ◀ AGE 5-17 □	AGE 0-4 □ (SKIP TO 417) ◀ AGE 5-17 □	AGE 0-4 ☐ (SKIP TO 417) ◀ AGE 5-17 ☐
416	In the last 12 months, has your	¥ YES 1	¥ YES 1	¥ YES 1	¥ YES 1
	household received any support for (NAME'S) schooling, such as	NO 2	NO 2	NO 2	NO 2
	allowance, free admission, books or supplies, for which you did not have to pay?	DK 8	DK 8	DК 8	DK 8
417	GO BACK TO 40 OF THE ADDITI	6 IN NEXT COLUMN II ONAL QUESTIONNAIF	N THIS QUESTIONNAII RE(S); OR, IF NO MORI	RE OR IN THE FIRST C E CHILDREN, END INT	OLUMN ERVIEW.

501	CHECK COVER: HOUSEHOLD NOT SEL RECORD LINE NUMBE OF ALL CHILDREN AGE (SEE COLUMNS 2, 7 AM IF THERE ARE MORE T A FINAL OUTCOME OF EACH ELIGIBLE CHILD	ECTED FOR YOUTH R, AGE, AND NAME E 0-5 ND 12) THAN SIX CHILDREN, USE ADDITIONAL O THE ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUS , EVEN IF THE CHILD WAS NOT PRESEN	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH RECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NA OF ALL CHILDREN AGE 0-11 (SEE COLUMNS 1, 2, 7, 12) QUESTIONNAIRE(S). T BE RECORDED IN 513 AND FOR THE H IT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTE	ME
		CHILD 1	CHILD 2	CHILD 3
502	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER
	NAME (COLUMN 2)			
	(COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS
503	What is (NAME'S) birth date? IF MOTHER INTER- VIEWED, COPY MONTH AND YEAR FROM BIRTH HISTORY AND ASK DAY; IF MOTHER NOT INTERVIEWED, ASK DAY, MONTH AND YEAR.	DAY	DAY	DAY
504	CHECK 502 AND 503: CHILD AGE 0-5 OR BORN IN JANUARY 2001 OR LATER?	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)
505	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	КG	КG	KG
506	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	см	СМ	см
507	MEASURED LYING DOWN OR	LYING DOWN 1	LYING DOWN 1	LYING DOWN 1
508	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT MEASUREMENT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6
509	AGE: CHECK 503 IS CHILD AGE 0-5 MONTHS, I.E., WAS CHILD BORN IN MONTH OF INTERVIEW OR FIVE PREVIOUS MONTHS?	0-5 MONTHS	0-5 MONTHS	0-5 MONTHS
509A	CHECK COVER AND AGE:	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH
510	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CHILD. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT
511	READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT STATEMENT TO PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE FOR CHILD. CIRCLE CODE AND SIGN.	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 513)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 513)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 513)

As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that us results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that all children age 6 months to 17 years participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you allow (NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test? 502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) NAME NAME (COLUMN 2) NAME	sually				
We request that all children age 6 months to 17 years participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you allow (NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test? 502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) NAME NAME NAME NAME					
The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you allow (NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test? 502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) NAME (COLUMN 2) LINE NAME NAME NAME	We request that all children age 6 months to 17 years participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test.				
Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you allow (NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test? 502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER NAME NAME (COLUMN 2) NAME NAME NAME NAME NAME					
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you allow (NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test? 502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER NAME NAME NAME NAME NAME NAME					
502 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER NAME (COLUMN 2) NAME NAME NAME					
(COLUMN 2) NAME NAME NAME					
AGE (COLUMN 7) AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS	ARS				
512 RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANAEMIA PAMPHLET. G/DL					
513 RECORD RESULT CODE OF HAEMO- GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT. MEASURED 1 MEASURED MEASURED 513 REFUSED NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 1 MEASURED 514 MEASURE- MENT. NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 1 MEASURED 515 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 516 OTHER 0 OTHER 0 OTHER 0 OTHER 0	D 1 ENT 2 3 6				
514 CHECK COVER AND AGE OR MONTH AND YEAR OF BIRTH: HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOL FOR YOUTH 0-1 YEAR OF BIRTH: 0-1 YEAR OR BORN IN JULY 2004 OR LATER 0-1 YEAR OR DO N IN JULY 2004 OR LATER 0-1 Y	LD SELECTED JTH R BORN IN JULY 2004 R1 3 FOR NEXT , IF NO D TO 523)				
2-11 YEARS OR BORN BEFORE 2-11 YEARS OR BORN BEFORE 2-11 YEARS JULY 2004	S OR BORN BEFORE				
HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED HOUSEHOLD FOR YOUTH 3 GO TO 503 FOR NEXT GO TO 503 FOR NEXT GO TO 503 FOR NEXT CHILD OR, IF NO CHILD OR, IF NO CHILD OR, IF NO CHILD OR, IF NO MORE, GO TO 523) MORE, GO TO 523) MORE, GO	D NOT SELECTED JTH				
516 READ HIV GRANTED	1 I				
STATEMENT TO PARENT/OTHER (SIGN) (SIGN) (SIGN) (SIGN)	in)				
ADULT I RESPONSIBLE REFUSED	 2				
FOR CHILD. CIRCLE CODE (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518) (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518) (IF REFUSE AND SIGN.	ED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518)				
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV TEST					
As part of the survey we also are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a villness. The HIV test is being done to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland	very seriou:				
For the HIV test, we need a few more drops of blood from a finger. Again the equipment used in taking the blood is clean and comple It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test	tely safe				
No names will be attached so we will not be able to tell you the test results. No one else will be able to know the test results either					
If you want to know whether your child have HIV, I can provide you with a list of nearby facilities offering counseling and testing for HI I will also give you a voucher for free services for your child (REN) that you can use at any of these facilities.	V				
Do you have any questions?					
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF CHILD(REN)) to take the HIV test?					
517 BAR CODE LABEL PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL PUT THE FI	RST BAR CODE LABEL				
PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM. PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM. PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM. PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM. PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM. PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S ON THE RESPONDENT'S	ND BAR CODE LABEL SPONDENT'S PER AND THE 3RD ANSMITTAL FORM.				
518 OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE BLOOD TAKEN 1 BLOOD TAKEN 1 BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 0 THER 6 OTHER 0 OTHER 0	KEN 1 ENT 2				

519	A FINAL OUTCOME OF THE ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 513 AND FOR THE HIV TEST PROCEDURE IN 518 FOR EACH ELIGIBLE CHILD EVEN IF THE CHILD WAS NOT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTED FOR SOME OTHER REASON.				
502	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) NAME (COLUMN 2) AGE (COLUMN 7)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
520	READ CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL TEST ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE CHILD. CIRCLE CODE AND SIGN.	GRANTED 1 (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN)	
521	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	
522		GO BACK TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN IN COLUMN OF THE ADDITIONAL QUEST	INS QUESTIONNAIRE OR IN THE FIRS IONNAIRE(S); IF NO MORE CHILDREN, G	і 60 то 523.	
We as to be The b Will ye	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify (NAME OF CHILD(REN)). You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?				

		CHILD 4	CHILD 5	CHILD 6
502	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS
503	What is (NAME'S) birth date? IF MOTHER INTER- VIEWED, COPY MONTH AND YEAR FROM BIRTH HISTORY AND ASK DAY; IF MOTHER NOT INTERVIEWED, ASK DAY, MONTH AND YEAR.	DAY	DAY	DAY
504	CHECK 502 AND 503: CHILD AGE 0-5 OR BORN IN JANUARY 2001 OR LATER?	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)	YES 1 NO 2 (GO TO 509)
505	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	KG	KG	KG
506	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	СМ	СМ	см
507	MEASURED LYING DOWN OR	LYING DOWN 1	LYING DOWN 1	LYING DOWN 1
	STANDING UP?	STANDING UP 2	STANDING UP 2	STANDING UP 2
508	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT MEASUREMENT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6
509	AGE: CHECK 503 IS CHILD AGE 0-5 MONTHS, I.E., WAS CHILD BORN IN MONTH OF INTERVIEW OR FIVE PREVIOUS MONTHS?	0-5 MONTHS	0-5 MONTHS	0-5 MONTHS
509A	CHECK COVER AND AGE:	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH 1 HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED FOR YOUTH 0-5 YEARS	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH
510	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CHILD. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT
511	READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT STATEMENT TO PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE FOR CHILD. CIRCLE CODE AND SIGN.	GRANTED	GRANTED	GRANTED

		CHILD 4	CHILD 5	CHILD 6		
502	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER		
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME		
		CONSENT ST	ATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA			
As pa result treat a	rt of this survey, we are as s from poor nutrition, infect anaemia.	king people all over the country to take an a ion, or chronic disease. This survey will as	anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health p sist the government to develop programs to	problem that usually prevent and		
We re of blo throw	equest that all children age od from a finger. The equip n away after each test.	6 months to 17 years participate in the ana ment used in taking the blood is clean and	emia testing part of this survey and give a fe completely safe. It has never been used be	ew drops fore and will bε		
The b	lood will be tested for anae	emia immediately, and the result told to you	right away. The result will be kept confiden	tia		
You c Will ye	an say yes to the test, or y ou allow (NAME(S) OF CH	ou can say no. It is up to you to decide. ILD(REN) to participate in the anaemia test	?			
512	RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANAEMIA PAMPHLET.	G/DL	G/DL	G/DL		
513	RECORD RESULT CODE OF HAEMO- GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT.	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		
514	CHECK COVER AND AGE OR MONTH AND YEAR OF BIRTH:	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH 0-1 YEAR OR BORN IN JULY 2004 OR LATER	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH 0-1 YEAR OR BORN IN JULY 2004 OR LATER	HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH 0-1 YEAR OR BORN IN JULY 2004 OR LATER		
516	READ HIV TEST CONSENT STATEMENT TO PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE FOR CHILD. CIRCLE CODE AND SIGN.	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518)	GRANTED 1 (SIGN) REFUSED 2 (IF REFUSED, CIRCLE '3' IN 518)		
		CONSENT STATEME	NT FOR HIV TEST			
As pa illness	rt of the survey we also are s. The HIV test is being do	e asking people all over the country to take ne to see how big the AIDS problem is in Sv	an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIE vaziland	DS. AIDS is a very seriou:		
For th It has	e HIV test, we need a few never been used before a	more drops of blood from a finger. Again th nd will be thrown away after each test	e equipment used in taking the blood is clea	an and completely safe		
No na	mes will be attached so we	e will not be able to tell you the test results.	No one else will be able to know the test re-	sults either		
l will a	want to know whether you also give you a voucher for	free services for your child (REN) that you	can use at any of these facilities.			
Do yo	u have any questions?					
You c Will yo	You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF CHILD(REN) to take the HIV test?					
517	BAR CODE LABEL	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.		
		PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE 2ND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE 3RD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.		
518	OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		

		CHILD 4	CHILD 5	CHILD 6
502	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 1 AND 12) NAME	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER
519	(COLUMN 2) NAME NAME 519 A FINAL OUTCOME OF THE HEIGHT AND WEIGHT MUST BE RECORDED IN 508, ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 513 A FINAL OUTCOME OF THE HEIGHT AND WEIGHT MUST BE RECORDED IN 508, ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 513 AND FOR THE HIV TEST PROCEDUREIN 518 FOR EACH ELIGIBLE CHILD EVEN IF THE CHILD WAS NOT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTED FOR SOME OTHER REASON.			DURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 513 PRESENT, REFUSED,
520	READ CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL TEST ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPONSIBLE CHILD. CIRCLE CODE AND SIGN.	GRANTED 1 (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 3	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 3
521	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 520: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.
522	GO BACK TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE OR IN THE FIRST COLUMN OF THE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S); IF NO MORE CHILDREN, GO TO 523.			
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE				
We as to be	We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done			
The b Will y	The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify (NAME OF CHILD(REN)). You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?			

628 OLECK COVER: HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH FORCORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME CRECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME CRECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME 0F ALL YOURH AGE 15-43 SEE COLLINES (J, AND AD 2) SEE COLLINES (J, AND AD 2) 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN, USE ADDITIONAL OLUSIONARCIE; J) AND ADD 2 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN, USE ADDITIONAL OLUSIONARCIE; J) AND ADD 2 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN, USE ADDITIONAL OLUSIONARCIE; J) NAME 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN, USE ADDITIONAL OLUSIONARCIE; J) NAME 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN, USE ADDITIONAL OLUSIONARCIE; J) NAME 1F THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX YOUNGN J) WOUNGN J WOUNGN J 264 USE, ADDITIONAL MUMBER NAME NAME 1F THERE ARE AND TSIN NAME NAME AGE IN YEARS 265 WEIGHT NAME NAME AGE IN YEARS 266 COLLAND TO ENTREESENT CAL CAL NOT PARSENT 267 REGURT DE NUMARCIES NAME NAME NOME PARSENT CAL NOT PARSENT 268 DECORTAND NO KG NOME PARSENT CAL NOME PARSENT CAL NOT PAR	WEIGHT, HEIGHT, HAEMOGLOBIN MEASUREMENT AND HIV TESTING FOR WOMEN AGE 12 AND OLDER					
HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH RECORD LIN NUMBER, AC, NOT NAME (SEE COLUMNS 9, 17, 102) IF THERE ARE MORE THAN SIX WOMEN, USE ADDITIONAL COUSTIONNARE(S). A FINAL OTCOME FOR THE HEIGHT AND VECTOR TWO COLUME N IS 37 FOR ECCED LIN ST. HEAD COLOR MUST BE ECCINEDED IN SS. AND THE INF, TEED FOR COLUME N IS 37 FOR ECCIDE IN S7. THE ANALMA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE ECCINEDED IN SS. AND THE INF, TEED FOR COLUME ON EST ENDER COLOR OF THE REASON. VECINE VIEW NO NOT RECENT REQUECTION COLUMN TO BE INFORMATION FOR EXCIDENT S7. THE ANALMA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE ECCINEDED IN SS. AND THE INFORMATION COLUMN TO BE INFORMATION OF THE REASON. VECINE VIEW NO NOT RECENT REQUECTION COLUMN TO BE INFORMATION FOR EXCIDENT S7. THE ANALMA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE INFORMATION OF THE ADDITION OF THE INFORMATION OF TH	523	CHECK COVER:				
BECORD LINE NUMBER AGE, AND NAME OF ALL WORK AGE 143 OF ALL WORK AGE 143 OF ALL WORK AGE 143 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 OF ALL WORK AGE 1543 MARCIN TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE ECODED IN 32. AFPIGU AND THE INV TEST PROCEDURE IN 33 FOR FACH ELOBELY WORKAN INNEE EVEN IF SHEW AND THE INV TEST PROCEDURE IN 33 FOR FACH ELOBELY WORKAN INNEE VIEWEN VERST RESPECTIVE IN 32 FOR FACH ELOBELY WORKAN INNEE 100 NAME NAME 100 NAME NAME 100 NAME NAME 100 NAME NAME 100 AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS 101 MAGENT KG. 102 MAME AGE IN YEARS 103 MELDER NAME 104 MAGENT AGE IN YEARS 105 MARCINEST FOR COLLING TO ELESTED FOR SOME OF PRESENT AGE IN YEARS 104 MARCINEST FOR COLLING TO ELESTED FOR SOME OF PRESENT AGE IN YEARS 104 MAGENT TO THERE AGE IN YEARS		HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH				
Image: Set of the state size of the state set of the state s		RECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME RECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME OF ALL WOMEN AGE 15-49 OF ALL WOMEN AGE 12 AND OLDER (SEE COLUMNS 9, 7 AND 2) (SEE COLUMNS 9, 11, 13, 7 AND 2)				
A PRAL QUTCOME FOR THE HEIGHT AND WEIGHT MUST BE RECORDED IN 527, THE AVAEMAL TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 537, THE AVAEMAL TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 537, THE AVAEMAL TEST PROCEDURE MUST BE RECORDED IN 536 AND THE WITE STREPORCEMENT REFUGED. A COLL DOT FEIT SETEO FOR SOME OTHER REASON.		IF THERE ARE MORE	THAN SIX WOMEN, USE ADDITIONAL Q	UESTIONNAIRE(S).		
Image: Second		A FINAL OUTCOME FO RECORDED IN 536, AI EVEN IF SHE WAS NO	DR THE HEIGHT AND WEIGHT MUST BE ND THE HIV TEST PROCEDURE IN 538 F IT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT	RECORDED IN 527, THE ANAEMIA TEST OR EACH ELIGIBLE WOMAN I BE TESTED FOR SOME OTHER REASO	PROCEDURE MUST BE	
524 LINE NUMBER LINE			WOMAN 1	WOMAN 2	WOMAN 3	
NAME (COLUMN 2) AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS 525 WEIGHT IN RUGORAMS KG. Image: Column 7) KG. KG. Image: Column 7) KG. 526 HEIGHT IN RUGORAMS KG. Image: Column 7) KG. KG. Image: Column 7) KG. 527 RESULT OF INCENTIMETRES CM. Image: Column 7) KG. MEASURED Image: Column 7) KG. MEASURED Image: Column 7) KG. 528 CHECK 534: IS: IT YEARS 1 + 530 12:14 YEARS 1 + 530 12:14 YEARS 1 + 530 529 CHECK 534: IS: IT YEARS 2 + 530 12:14 YEARS 2 + 530 15:17 YEARS 2 + 530 529 CHECK COLUMN E MARTIAL STATUS CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER	524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 9 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
AGE AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS 525 WEIGHT INCORAMS KG KG INCORAMS 526 HEIGHT INCORAMS KG INCORAMS KG INCORAMS 527 RESULT OF MEASURED INCOP RESENT I		NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME	
525 WEIGHT IN KLOGRAMS KG. KG. KG. KG. 526 HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES CM. CM. CM. CM. 527 RECORD LINE AGE NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 3 NEFUSED N NERONALL AVERIAL VALUES 3 NEFUSED 3 NEFUSED N NERONALL AVENALL		AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
528 HEIGHT HICENTMETRES CM. CM.<	525	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	KG	KG	KG	
527 RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT AND HEIGHT AND HEIGHT MAD URIGHT REFUSED MEASURED 1 MOT PRESENT 2 NOT	526	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	СМ	СМ	СМ	
MEASUREMENT OTHER 6 OTHER 6 OTHER 6 OTHER 6 528 CHECK 524: AGE 12:14 YEARS 12:14 YEARS 1 => 530 12:14 YEARS 1 => 530 529 CHECK COLUMN 6: MARTAL STATUS CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 530 RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER (GO TO 531) CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 530 RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER (GO TO 531) CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 531 RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER (GO TO 531) CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 531 RECORD 10W (F NOT LISTED. (GO TO 531) (GO TO 531) CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION	527	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3	MEASURED	MEASURED	
528 CHECK 524: AGE 12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 1 → 72 (GO TO 531) 1 → 1 DHE 1 → YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 1 → YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 1 → YEARS 1 → YEARS 1 → YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 1 → Y		MEASUREMENT	OTHER	OTHER	OTHER	
529 CHECK COLUMN 8: MARITAL STATUS CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 OTHER CODE 5010 1 OTHER CODE 5010 1 OTHER CODE 5000 1 PARENTOTHER I NESPONSIBLE ADULT I IN ESPONSIBLE ADULT I IN ESPONSIBLE ADULT I IN ESPONSIBLE ADULT I PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2	528	CHECK 524: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531	
300 RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADDLESCENT. LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE FOR ADDLESCENT. LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT . LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . QRANTED . 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . QRANTED . 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . QRANTED . 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . QRANTED . 2 PARENT/OTHER ADULT REFUSED .	529	CHECK COLUMN 8: MARITAL STATUS	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 OTHER	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 OTHER	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION 1 OTHER	
300 NLWMEE NGT PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADDLESCENT. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED. LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT . LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT . INE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT . 311 READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT GRANTED . INE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT . INE NUMBER OF PARENT OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . INE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . INE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . INE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . INE NUMEE RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED . INE REFUSED . INE ADULT REFUSED . INE ADULT REFUSED . INE ADULT REFUSED . INE REFUSED . INE ADULT REFUSED . INE NUME REFUSED . INE REFUSED .	530		(GO TO 531) 🛶			
531 READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED 1 RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED RESPONDENT REFUSED 1 (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADULTS CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADULTSCONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. AS PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FON HER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCE	330	NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADOLESCENT. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	
Itest Conserved PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN- UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER RESPONDENT (SIGN) RESPONDENT REFUSED PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE (SIGN) PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT. (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. A spart of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result toid to you righ	531	READ ANAEMIA	GRANTED 1	GRANTED 1	GRANTED 1-	
AND NEVER-IN- UNION WOMEN AG 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT. (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) CONSENT SCONSENT. (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?		STATEMENT. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	
ADULT IDENTIFIED (SIGN) (SIGN) (SIGN) N 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, DENT'S CONSENT. CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE '3' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can s		AND NEVER-IN- UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM DADENT/OTHER	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	
ASKING RESPONDENTS CONSENT. (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536) CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?		ADULT IDENTIFIED	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLDER READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?		ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)	
READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?			CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAE	MIA TEST FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND O	LDER	
FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	READ CODE	CONSENT STATEMEN E '3' IF SHE REFUSES.	T TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE COD	DE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS	TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND	
As part of this survey, we are asking people all over the country to take an anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health problem that usually results from poor nutrition, infection, or chronic disease. This survey will assist the government to develop programs to prevent and treat anaemia. We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	FOR RESF IF TH	GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND N PONSIBLE FOR THE ADO E PARENT (OTHER ADU	IEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, AS DLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFOR JLT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ON	SK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OT RE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER ILY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADUL	HER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 T) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.	
We request that you participate in the anaemia testing part of this survey and give a few drops of blood from a finger. The equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	As pa from p	rt of this survey, we are a boor nutrition, infection, or	sking people all over the country to take an chronic disease. This survey will assist the	anaemia test. Anaemia is a serious health e government to develop programs to preve	problem that usually results nt and treat anaemia.	
The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	We re the bl	equest that you participate ood is clean and complete	in the anaemia testing part of this survey a ely safe. It has never been used before and	and give a few drops of blood from a finger. will be thrown away after each test.	The equipment used in taking	
Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	The b	lood will be tested for ana	nemia immediately, and the result told to you	u right away. The result will be kept confide	ntial.	
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?	Do yo	u have any questions?				
	You c Will y	an say yes to the test, or ou (allow NAME OF ADO	you can say no. It is up to you to decide. LESCENT to) take the anaemia test?			

		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR A	NAEMIA TEST FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14	
We a or has	re asking children like you s been sick. This will help	u to take a blood test. The test is for a probl o the government to plan programs to preve	em in the blood that can happen when a pe nt and treat this problem in children.	rson does not eat well
We w is clea	ould like you to take the t an and safe. It has not be	est. You will have to give a few drops of blo en used before and we will throw it away aft	od from a finger. The needle we use ter we use it with you.	
We w	ill do the blood test right a	away and tell you the results. No one will be	e told the results.	
Do yo	ou have any questions?	you can say no. It is up to you to decide		
Do yo	ou want to be tested for th	is blood problem?		
		WOMAN 1	WOMAN 2	WOMAN 3
524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMN 9)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER
	(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS
532	CHECK 524: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15 + YEARS 2	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15-17 YEARS 2	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15-17 YEARS 2
533	PREGNANCY STATUS: CHECK	YES 1	YES 1	YES 1
	226 IN WOMAN'S QUESTIONNAIRE	NO 2	NO 2	NO 2
	OR ASK: Are you pregnant?	DK 8	DK 8	DK 8 2
534	READ THE HIV TEST CONSENT	GRANTED 1–	GRANTED 1–	GRANTED 1–
	STATEMENT. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED
	UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3-
	CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER	▲ ·		↓
	ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)
	ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)
535	535 RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANAEMIA PAMPHLET. G/DL G/DL G/DL G/DL			
536	RECORD RESULT	MEASURED	MEASURED	MEASURED
	GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT. NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6 OTHER 6			
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV	TEST FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLD	ER
READ SHE	D CONSENT STATEMEN REFUSES.	IT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE COD	E '1' IN 534 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS	S TO THE HIV TEST AND CODE '3' IF
FOR RESF	GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND M PONSIBLE FOR THE AD NE PARENT (OTHER AD	NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, AS OLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFOR JLT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ON	IK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OT IE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER ILY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADUL	HER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 534 .T) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.
As pa illnes	art of the survey we also a s. The HIV test is being d	re asking people all over the country to take one to see how big the AIDS problem is in S	an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes A Swaziland	IDS. AIDS is a very seriou
For th It has	ne HIV test, we need a few never been used before	w more drops of blood from a finger. Again t and will be thrown away after each test	he equipment used in taking the blood is cle	ean and completely safe
No na OF A	ames will be attached to the DOLESCENT) test results	he blood sample which will keep the results s, and so we will not be able to tell you the to	completely anonymous. For this reason, we est results either.	e will not be able to know (your/NAMI
If you want to know whether you (your child) have HIV, I can provide you with a list of nearby facilities offering counseling and testing for HIV I will also give you a voucher that you can use at any of these facilities.				
Do you have any questions?				
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the HIV test?				
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HI	V TEST FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14	
We a illnes	re asking people all over t s. We are doing the HIV to	the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the vi est to see how big the AIDS problem is in S	rus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very seriou waziland	lš
We w It has	ould like you to take the t not been used before an	est. You will have to give a few drops of blo d we will throw it away after we use it with v	od from a finger. The needle we use is clea ou	n and completely safe
We w	ill not write your name on	the blood sample. No one will know that it i	s your blood. We will not be able to give you	u the test results
lf you I will a	want to know if you have also give you a note for fr	HIV, I can provide you the names of places ee testing that you can use at any of these p	s that can help you. blaces.	
Do yo	ou have any questions?	·····		
You o Do yo	can say yes to the test, or ou want to be tested for H	you can say no. It is up to you to decide. IV?		

		WOMAN 1	WOMAN 2	WOMAN 3	
524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMN 9)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME	
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
537	BAR CODE LABEL	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	
		PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	
538	OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	
539	A FINAL OUTCOME FO PROCEDURE IN 538 F TESTED FOR SOME (DR THE ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MU OR EACH ELIGIBLE WOMAN EVEN IF SH DTHER REASON.	UST BE RECORDED IN 536 AND FOR TH HE WAS NOT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR C	E HIV TEST COULD NOT BE	
540	CHECK 538: OUTCOME OF HIV TEST	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN	
541	READ THE CONSENT STATE- MENT FOR ADDITIONAL TESTS. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER- IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/ OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPONDENT'S CONSENT.	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2– RESPONDENT REFUSED 3– (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2– RESPONDENT REFUSED 3– (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2– RESPONDENT REFUSED 3– (SIGN)	
542	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	
REAL CODE FOR RESF IF TH We as to be The b Will y	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLDER READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 541 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ADDITIONAL TESTS AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 541 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 539 IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify (you/NAME OF ADOLESCENT). You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?				
We as	CONSEN	STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMP	LE FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14 sample at the laboratory		
to be	used for testing or resear	ch in the future. We are not certain about w	hat tests might be done		
The b Will y	The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify you. You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?				

	WEIGHT.	HEIGHT.	. HAEMOGLOBIN MEASUREMENT AND HIV TESTING FOR WOMEN AGE 12 AND OLDE	R
--	---------	---------	---	---

<u> </u>	ļ	WOMAN 4	WOMAN 5	WOMAN 6		
524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 9 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER		
	(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME		
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS		
525	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	КG	KG	KG		
526	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	СМ	СМ	см		
527	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT MEASUREMENT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		
528	CHECK 524: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531	12-14 YEARS 1 → 530 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 531		
529	CHECK COLUMN 8: MARITAL STATUS	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER		
530	RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADOLESCENT. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT		
531	READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT STATEMENT. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN- UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 536)		
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLDER						
READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 531 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES.						
FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 531 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.						
As pa from p	rt of this survey, we are as	king people all over the country to take an an chronic disease. This survey will assist the g	naemia test. Anaemia is a serious health prot overnment to develop programs to prevent a	olem that usually results nd treat anaemia.		
We re the bl	equest that you participate i ood is clean and complete	in the anaemia testing part of this survey and ly safe. It has never been used before and wi	give a few drops of blood from a finger. The II be thrown away after each test.	equipment used in taking		
The b	lood will be tested for anae	emia immediately, and the result told to you ri	ght away. The result will be kept confidential			
Do yo	Do you have any questions?					

You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?

CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14					
We ar	e asking children like you	to take a blood test. The test is for a problem	n in the blood that can happen when a person	does not eat well	
We we	ould like you to take the te	st. You will have to give a few drops of blood	from a finger. The needle we use		
We wi	ill do the blood test right av	way and tell you the results. No one will be to	bld the results.		
Do yo	u have any questions?				
You c Do yo	an say yes to the test, or y u want to be tested for this	ou can say no. It is up to you to decide. s blood problem?			
		WOMAN 4	WOMAN 5	WOMAN 6	
524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMN 9)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
	(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME	
	(COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
532	CHECK 524: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15 + YEARS 2	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15-17 YEARS 2	12-14 YEARS 1 → 534 15-17 YEARS 2	
533	PREGNANCY STATUS: CHECK	YES 1	YES 1	YES 1	
	226 IN WOMAN'S QUESTIONNAIRE	NO 2	NO 2	NO 2	
	Are you pregnant?	DK 0	UK 0	2	
534	READ THE HIV TEST CONSENT				
	GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN	ADULT REFUSED 2-	ADULT REFUSED 2-	ADULT REFUSED 2-	
	UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3-	
	PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	
	IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 538)	
535	RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANAEMIA PAMPHLET.	G/DL	G/DL	G/DL	
536	336 RECORD RESULT CODE OF HAEMO- GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT. MEASURED 1 MEASURED 1 MEASURED 1 0 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6 0				
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV TEST FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLDER					
SHE F	REFUSES.				
RESP	PONSIBLE FOR THE ADD NT (OTHER ADULT) REF	LESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE . USES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOT	ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CON TH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE	NSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 534 E ADOLESCENT CONSENT.	
As pa illness	rt of the survey we also an a. The HIV test is being do	e asking people all over the country to take a ne to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swa	n HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. aziland.	AIDS is a very serious	
For the HIV test, we need a few more drops of blood from a finger. Again the equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test.					
No names will be attached to the blood sample which will keep the results completely anonymous. For this reason, we will not be able to know (your/NAME OF ADOLESCENT) test results, and so we will not be able to tell you the test results either.					
If you want to know whether you (your child) have HIV, I can provide you with a list of nearby facilities offering counseling and testing for HIV. I will also give you a voucher that you can use at any of these facilities.					
Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide.					
Will yo	ou (allow NAME OF ADOL	ESCENT to) take the HIV test?			
We ar illness	e asking people all over th . We are doing the HIV te	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIN the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus st to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swa	TEST FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14 s that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious ziland.		
We we	ould like you to take the te not been used before and	st. You will have to give a few drops of blood we will throw it away after we use it with you	from a finger. The needle we use is clean an	d completely safe.	
We w	ill not write your name on t	he blood sample. No one will know that it is y	rour blood. We will not be able to give you the	test results.	
lf you I will a	want to know if you have I also give you a note for free	HIV, I can provide you the names of places the testing that you can use at any of these places are placed as a set of the	nat can help you. ces.		
Do yo You c	u nave any questions? an say yes to the test, or y	rou can say no. It is up to you to decide.			
Do yo	u want to be tested for HI\	/?			

		WOMAN 4	WOMAN 5	WOMAN 6
524	LINE NUMBER (COLUMN 9)	LINE UMBER	LINE UMBER	LINE NUMBER
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS
537	BAR CODE LABEL	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.
		PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.
538	OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6
539	A FINAL OUTCOME FO PROCEDURE IN 538 FO TESTED FOR SOME O	R THE ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUS OR EACH ELIGIBLE WOMAN EVEN IF SHE THER REASON.	T BE RECORDED IN 536 AND FOR THE HI WAS NOT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR COU	V TEST LD NOT BE
540	CHECK 538: OUTCOME OF HIV TEST	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT WOMAN
541	READ THE CONSENT STATE- MENT FOR ADDITIONAL TESTS. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER- IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/ OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 530 BEFORE ASKING RESPONDENTS CONSENT.	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN)
542	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 541: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE FROM WOMEN AGE 15 AND OLDER READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 541 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ADDITIONAL TESTS AND CODE '3' IF SHE REFUSES. FOR GIRLS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION WOMEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 530) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HER CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 541 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 539 IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done.				
Will yo	bud sample will not have a bud allow us to keep the blo	any name or other data attached that could id od sample stored for later testing or research	?	ao not nave to agree.
	CONSENT	STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE	E FROM GIRLS AGE 12-14	
We as to be	sk you to allow the Central used for testing or researc	Statistical Office to store part of the blood sa h in the future. We are not certain about what	mple at the laboratory t tests might be done.	
The b Will yo	lood sample will not have a ou allow us to keep the blo	any name or other data attached that could id od sample stored for later testing or research	lentify you. You do not have to agree. ?	

WEIGHT, HEIGHT, HAEMOGLOBIN MEASUREMENT AND HIV TESTING FOR MEN AGE 12 AND OLDER					
543	CHECK COVER:				
	HOUSEHOLD NOT SELECTED FOR YOUTH HOUSEHOLD SELECTED FOR YOUTH			итн	
	RECORD LINE NUMBER, AGE, AND NAME OF ALL MEN AGE 15-49 (SEE COLUMNS 2, 7 AND 10)		RECORD LINE NUMBER, A OF ALL MEN AGE 12 AND ((SEE COLUMNS 2, 7, 10, 12)	GE, AND NAME ↓ DLDER I, AND 13)	
	IF THERE ARE MORE TH	HAN SIX MEN, USE ADDITIONAL QUEST	IONNAIRE(S).		
	MUST BE RECORDED IN NOT PRESENT, REFUSI	THE HEIGHT AND WEIGHT MUST BE R N 554 AND FOR THE HIV TEST PROCEDI ED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTED FOR SC	LECORDED IN 547, FOR THE ANAEMIA IE URE IN 556 FOR EACH ELIGIBLE MAN EV DME OTHER REASON.	ST PROCEDURE EN IF HE WAS	
		MAN 1	MAN 2	MAN 3	
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE UMBER	
	NAME (COLUMN 2)		NAME		
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
545	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	KG	KG	KG	
546	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	СМ	СМ	СМ	
547	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT MEASUREMENT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	
548	CHECK 544: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551	
549	CHECK COLUMN 8: MARITAL STATUS	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551) ←	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551) ←	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551) -	
550	RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADOLESCENT. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	
551	READ ANAEMIA	GRANTED 1–	GRANTED 1–	GRANTED 1–	
	TEST CONSENT STATEMENT. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2-	
	UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	
	ADULT IDENTIFIED	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	
	ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 554)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 554)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 554)	
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAL	EMIA TEST FROM MEN AGE 15 AND OLD	ER	
READ CODE	CONSENT STATEMENT	TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE	'1' IN 551 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS	O THE ANAEMIA TEST AND	
FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 551 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.					
As pa poor i	rt of this survey, we are ask nutrition, infection, or chroni	ing people all over the country to take an a c disease. This survey will assist the gover	naemia test. Anaemia is a serious health proment to develop programs to prevent and	oblem that usually results from treat anaemia.	
For th It has	e anaemia testing, we will r never been used before an	need a few drops of blood from a finger. The id will be thrown away after each test.	e equipment used in taking the blood is clea	n and completely safe.	
The b	lood will be tested for anaer	mia immediately, and the result told to you	right away. The result will be kept confident	ial.	
Do yo	u have any questions?	an ann ann an 161a an 45 ann 46 de 10			
You d Will y	You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?				

	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14				
We ar or has	re asking children like you to s been sick. This will help th	o take a blood test. The test is for a problem ne government to plan programs to prevent	n in the blood that can happen when a pers and treat this problem in children.	on does not eat well	
We w is clea	ould like you to take the tes an and safe. It has not been	t. You will have to give a few drops of blood used before and we will throw it away after	I from a finger. The needle we use r we use it with you.		
We w	ill do the blood test right aw	ay and tell you the results. No one will be to	old the results.		
Do yo You c	ou have any questions? an say yes to the test, or yo	ou can say no. It is up to you to decide.			
Do yo	ou want to be tested for this	blood problem?			
		MAN 1	MAN 2	MAN 3	
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME	
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
552	READ THE HIV	GRANTED 1–	GRANTED 1-	GRANTED 1–	
	STATEMENT. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2	
	AND NEVER-IN UNION MEN	RESPONDENT	RESPONDENT	RESPONDENT	
	CONSENT FROM	KEFUSED	KEFUSED	KEFUSED	
	ADULT IDENTIFIED	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	
	ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)	
553	RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANEMIA PAMPHLET.	G/DL	G/DL	G/DL	
554	RECORD RESULT CODE OF HAEMO- GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT.	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED	MEASURED	
555	BAR CODE LABEL	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	
		PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	
556	OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV TEST FROM MEN AGE 15 AND OLDER					
READ HE R	CONSENT STATEMENT EFUSES.	TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE	'1' IN 552 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS 1	TO THE HIV TEST AND CODE '3' IF	
FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 552 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.					
As part of the survey we also are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious illness. The HIV test is being done to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland.					
For th It has	For the HIV test, we need a few more drops of blood from a finger. Again the equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test.				
No na OF Al	ames will be attached to the DOLESCENT) test results,	blood sample which will keep the results co and so we will not be able to tell you the tes	ompletely anonymous. For this reason, we vertice the settler.	will not be able to know (your/NAME	
lf you I will a	want to know whether you also give you a voucher for	(your child) have HIV, I can provide you with free services that you can use at any of the	h a list of nearby facilities offering counselin se facilities.	g and testing for HIV.	
Do yo	u have any questions?				
You o Will y	an say yes to the test, or yo ou (allow NAME OF ADOLE	ou can say no. It is up to you to decide. ESCENT to) take the HIV test?			

544 LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11) NAME (COLUMNS 10 AND 11) NAME (COLUMN 2) AGE (COLUMN 7) LINE NAME AGE IN YEARS LINE NUMBER LINE NUMBER NAME NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS NAME CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14 We are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious illness We are doing the HIV test to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland We would like you to take the test. You will have to give a few drops of blood from a finger. The needle we use is clean and completely safe It has not been used before and we will throw it away after we use it with you We will not write your name on the blood sample. No one will know that it is your blood. We will not be able to give you the test results If you want to know if you have HIV, 1 can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?			MAN 1	MAN 2 MAN 3	
INAME NAME NAME NAME NAME NAME AGE AGE IN YEARS NAME AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS Image: Name AGE IN YEARS AGE IN	544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER
AGE (COLUMN 7) AGE IN YEARS <		(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14 We are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious illness We are doing the HIV test to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland We would like you to take the test. You will have to give a few drops of blood from a finger. The needle we use is clean and completely safe It has not been used before and we will throw it away after we use it with you We will not write your name on the blood sample. No one will know that it is your blood. We will not be able to give you the test results If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?		AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS
We are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious illness We are doing the HIV test to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland We would like you to take the test. You will have to give a few drops of blood from a finger. The needle we use is clean and completely safe It has not been used before and we will throw it away after we use it with you We will not write your name on the blood sample. No one will know that it is your blood. We will not be able to give you the test results If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?		-	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HI	V TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14	
We would like you to take the test. You will have to give a tew drops of blood from a tinger. The needle we use is clean and completely safe It has not been used before and we will throw it away after we use it with you We will not write your name on the blood sample. No one will know that it is your blood. We will not be able to give you the test results If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?	We a We a	re asking people all over the re doing the HIV test to see	e country to take an HIV test. HIV is the viru how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland	is that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious	illness
We will not write your name on the blood sample. No one will know that it is your blood. We will not be able to give you the test results If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?	We w It has	ould like you to take the tes not been used before and	it. You will have to give a few drops of blood we will throw it away after we use it with you	d from a finger. The needle we use is clean a J	and completely safe
If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places. Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?	We w	ill not write your name on th	ne blood sample. No one will know that it is	your blood. We will not be able to give you t	he test results
Do you have any questions? You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?	If you I will a	want to know if you have H also give you a note for free	IIV, I can provide you the names of places to testing that you can use at any of these places to the set and the	hat can help you. aces.	
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?	Do yo	ou have any questions?			
	You o Do yo	can say yes to the test, or yo ou want to be tested for HIV	ou can say no. It is up to you to decide. ?		
557 CHECK 556: BLOOD BLOOD NOT BLOOD NOT BLOOD NOT BLOOD NOT	557	CHECK 556:	BLOOD BLOOD NOT	BLOOD BLOOD NOT	BLOOD BLOOD NOT
		OUTCOME OF HIV TEST			
	559				
IN 554 FOR EACH ELIGIBLE MAN EVEN IF HE WAS NOT PRESENT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTED FOR SOME OTHER REASON.	556	IN 554 FOR EACH ELIGI	BLE MAN EVEN IF HE WAS NOT PRESEN	NT, REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TEST	ED FOR SOME OTHER REASON.
559 READ THE GRANTED	559	READ THE CONSENT STATE-	GRANTED 1-	GRANTED 1	GRANTED 1
MENT FOR PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE		MENT FOR	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE
ADDITIONAL TESTS ADDIT REFOSED 2 ADDIT REFOSED 2 WITH LEFT OVER 2 ADDIT REFOSED 2 2		WITH LEFT OVER	ADULT REFUSED	ADULT REFUSED 2	ADULT REFUSED 2
BLOOD. FOR RESPONDENT RESPONDENT RESPONDENT BOYS AGE 12-14 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3 REFUSED 3		BLOOD. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3-	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3-	RESPONDENT REFUSED 3
AND NEVER-IN		AND NEVER-IN			
AGE 15-17, ASK		AGE 15-17, ASK			
CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER		CONSENT FROM			
		ADULT IDENTIFIED	4	←	
IN 550 BEFORE (SIGN) (SIGN) (SIGN) ASKING RESPON-	(SIGN)				
DENT'S CONSENT.		DENT'S CONSENT.			
560 ADDITIONAL TESTS CHECK 559: CHECK 559:	560	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 559:	CHECK 559:	CHECK 559:
IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED. WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL GRANTED. WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL GRANTED. WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL			IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL	IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL	IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL
TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER. TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER. TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.			TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE FROM MEN AGE 15 AND OLDER			CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAG	E OF SAMPLE FROM MEN AGE 15 AND	
READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 559 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ADDITIONAL TESTS AND	READ		TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE	'1' IN 559 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS	TO THE ADDITIONAL TESTS AND
FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17. ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE	FOR	BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NE	VER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17. ASK CO	NSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER	ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 558 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 559 ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.	FOR (OTH	THE ADOLESCENT (SEE (ER ADULT) REFUSES. CI	QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE A RCLE CODE '1' IN 559 ONLY IF BOTH THI	DOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCL E PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE AD	E CODE '2' IN 558 IF THE PARENT OLESCENT CONSENT.
We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done.	We a to be	sk you to allow the Central sused for testing or research	Statistical Office to store part of the blood sa in the future. We are not certain about what	ample at the laboratory at tests might be done.	
The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify (you/NAME OF ADOLESCENT). You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?	The b Will y				
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE FROM BOYS AGE 12-14		CONSENT S	STATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLI	E FROM BOYS AGE 12-14	
We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory to be used for testing or research in the future. We are not certain about what tests might be done.	We a to be	sk you to allow the Central sused for testing or research	Statistical Office to store part of the blood san in the future. We are not certain about what	ample at the laboratory at tests might be done.	
The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify you. You do not have to agree.	The b	blood sample will not have a	iny name or other data attached that could i	dentify you. You do not have to agree.	

	<u></u>			MANIC		
<i></i>		MAN 4	MAN 5	MAN 6		
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	NUMBER	NUMBER	LINE NUMBER		
	(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME		
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS		
545	WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS	KG	KG	KG		
546	HEIGHT IN CENTIMETRES	СМ	СМ	СМ		
547	RESULT OF WEIGHT AND HEIGHT MEASUREMENT	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		
548	CHECK 544: AGE	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551	12-14 YEARS 1 → 550 15-17 YEARS 2 18 + YEARS 3 → 551		
549	CHECK COLUMN 8: MARITAL STATUS	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551) ↓	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551)	CODE 4 (NEVER IN UNION) 1 OTHER 2 (GO TO 551) ←		
550	RECORD LINE NUMBER OF PARENT/OTHER ADULT RESPON- SIBLE FOR ADOLESCENT. RECORD '00' IF NOT LISTED.	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT	LINE NUMBER OF PARENT OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT		
551	READ ANAEMIA TEST CONSENT STATEMENT. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 550 BEFORE ASKING RESPON-	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2- RESPONDENT REFUSED 3- (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED	GRANTED 1– PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2– RESPONDENT REFUSED 3– (SIGN) (IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED.		
	DENT'S CONSENT.	CIRCLE '3' IN 554)	CIRCLE '3' IN 554)	CIRCLE '3' IN 554)		
CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM MEN AGE 15 AND OLDER READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 551 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ANAEMIA TEST AND CODE '3' IF HE REFUSES.						
FOR FOR (OTH	FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 551 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.					
As pa poor i	rt of this survey, we are aski nutrition, infection, or chronic	ng people all over the country to take an anal disease. This survey will assist the governm	emia test. Anaemia is a serious health proble nent to develop programs to prevent and treat	em that usually results from anaemia.		
For th	e anaemia testing, we will ne	eed a few drops of blood from a finger. The e	quipment used in taking the blood is clean an	d completely safe.		
The b	It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test. The blood will be tested for anaemia immediately, and the result told to you right away. The result will be kept confidential.					

WEIGHT, HEIGHT, HAEMOGLOBIN MEASUREMENT AND HIV TESTING FOR MEN AGE 12 AND OLDER

Do you have any questions?

You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the anaemia test?

	CONSENT STATEMENT FOR ANAEMIA TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14					
We an or has	re asking children like you to s been sick. This will help th	take a blood test. The test is for a problem in e government to plan programs to prevent ar	n the blood that can happen when a person d nd treat this problem in children.	loes not eat well		
We w	ould like you to take the test	. You will have to give a few drops of blood fr	om a finger. The needle we use			
We w	ill do the blood test right awa	ay and tell you the results. No one will be told	the results.			
Do yo	ou have any questions?					
You c Do yo	can say yes to the test, or you ou want to be tested for this b	u can say no. It is up to you to decide. blood problem?				
		MAN 1	MAN 2	MAN 3		
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER		
	(COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME		
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS		
552	READ THE HIV	GRANTED 17	GRANTED 1-	GRANTED 17		
	STATEMENT. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED	PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED		
	UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED	RESPONDENT REFUSED		
	PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED	(SIGN)	(SIGN)	(SIGN)		
	IN 550 BEFORE ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)	(IF CODE '2' OR '3' CIRCLED, CIRCLE '3' IN 556)		
553	RECORD HAEMO- GLOBIN LEVEL HERE AND IN ANEMIA PAMPHLET.	G/DL	G/DL	G/DL		
554	RECORD RESULT CODE OF HAEMO- GLOBIN MEASURE- MENT.	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	MEASURED 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		
555	BAR CODE LABEL	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.	PUT THE FIRST BAR CODE LABEL HERE.		
		PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.	PUT THE SECOND BAR CODE LABEL ON THE RESPONDENT'S FILTER PAPER AND THE THIRD ON THE TRANSMITTAL FORM.		
556	OUTCOME OF HIV TEST PROCEDURE	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6	BLOOD TAKEN 1 NOT PRESENT 2 REFUSED 3 OTHER 6		
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR H	IV TEST FROM MEN AGE 15 AND OLDER			
READ HE R	CONSENT STATEMENT 1 EFUSES.	O EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1'	IN 552 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO T	'HE HIV TEST AND CODE '3' IF		
FOR FOR (OTH	FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 552 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CONDUCT THE TEST ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT.					
As pa The ⊢	As part of the survey we also are asking people all over the country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus that causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious illness. The HIV test is being done to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swaziland.					
For th It has	For the HIV test, we need a few more drops of blood from a finger. Again the equipment used in taking the blood is clean and completely safe. It has never been used before and will be thrown away after each test.					
No na OF Al	ames will be attached to the DOLESCENT) test results, a	blood sample which will keep the results com nd so we will not be able to tell you the test re	pletely anonymous. For this reason, we will r esults either.	not be able to know (your/NAME		
If you I will a Do yo	want to know whether you (also give you a voucher for fi ou have any questions?	your child) have HIV, I can provide you with a ree services that you can use at any of these	a list of nearby facilities offering counseling ar facilities.	d testing for HIV.		

You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Will you (allow NAME OF ADOLESCENT to) take the HIV test?

		MAN 1	MAN 2	MAN 3	
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
	NAME (COLUMN 2)	NAME	NAME	NAME	
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR HIV	/ TEST FROM BOYS AGE 12-14		
We ar illness	e asking people all over the . We are doing the HIV test	country to take an HIV test. HIV is the virus t to see how big the AIDS problem is in Swazi	hat causes AIDS. AIDS is a very serious land.		
We we lt has	ould like you to take the test not been used before and w	. You will have to give a few drops of blood fr we will throw it away after we use it with you.	om a finger. The needle we use is clean and	completely safe.	
We wi	ill not write your name on the	e blood sample. No one will know that it is you	ur blood. We will not be able to give you the te	est results.	
If you want to know if you have HIV, I can provide you the names of places that can help you. I will also give you a note for free testing that you can use at any of these places.					
Do you have any questions?					
You can say yes to the test, or you can say no. It is up to you to decide. Do you want to be tested for HIV?					
-				•	

		MAN 1	MAN 2	MAN 3	
544	LINE NUMBER (COLUMNS 10 AND 11) NAME (COLUMN 2)	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
	AGE (COLUMN 7)	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	AGE IN YEARS	
557	CHECK 556: OUTCOME OF HIV TEST	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT MAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT MAN	BLOOD BLOOD NOT TAKEN TAKEN GO TO NEXT MAN	
558	A FINAL OUTCOME FOR IN 554 FOR EACH ELIGI	THE ANAEMIA TEST PROCEDURE MUST BLE MAN EVEN IF HE WAS NOT PRESENT	BE RECORDED IN 552 AND FOR THE HIV , REFUSED, OR COULD NOT BE TESTED	TEST PROCEDURE FOR SOME OTHER REASON.	
559	READ THE CONSENT STATE- MENT FOR ADDITIONAL TESTS WITH LEFT OVER BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM PARENT/OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED IN 650 PEROPE	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 3 (SIGN)	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 3-	GRANTED 1 PARENT/OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT REFUSED 2 RESPONDENT REFUSED 3	
	ASKING RESPON- DENT'S CONSENT.	(SIGN)	(31014)	(31014)	
560	ADDITIONAL TESTS	CHECK 559: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 559: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	CHECK 559: IF CONSENT HAS NOT BEEN GRANTED, WRITE "NO ADDITIONAL TEST" ON THE FILTER PAPER.	
		CONSENT STATEMENT FOR STORAG	GE OF SAMPLE FROM MEN AGE 15 AND C	DLDER	
REAL CODI FOR FOR (OTH We at to be	READ CONSENT STATEMENT TO EACH RESPONDENT. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 559 IF RESPONDENT CONSENTS TO THE ADDITIONAL TESTS AND CODE '3' IF HE REFUSES. FOR BOYS AGE 12-14 AND NEVER-IN-UNION MEN AGE 15-17, ASK CONSENT FROM THE PARENT OR OTHER ADULT IDENTIFIED AS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ADOLESCENT (SEE QUESTION 550) BEFORE ASKING THE ADOLESCENT FOR HIS CONSENT. CIRCLE CODE '2' IN 559 IF THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) REFUSES. CIRCLE CODE '1' IN 559 ONLY IF BOTH THE PARENT (OTHER ADULT) AND THE ADOLESCENT CONSENT. We ask you to allow the Central Statistical Office to store part of the blood sample at the laboratory				
The b Will y	The blood sample will not have any name or other data attached that could identify (you/NAME OF ADOLESCENT). You do not have to agree. Will you allow us to keep the blood sample stored for later testing or research?				
	CONSENT	TATEMENT FOR STORAGE OF SAMPLE	FROM BOYS AGE 12-14		
We at to be	sk you to allow the Central S used for testing or research	tatistical Office to store part of the blood sam in the future. We are not certain about what t	ple at the laboratory ests might be done.		
The b Will y	blood sample will not have an ou allow us to keep the bloo	y name or other data attached that could ide d sample stored for later testing or research?	ntify you. You do not have to agree.		

2006 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY WOMEN'S QUESTIONNAIRE

		IDENTIFICATION		
PLACE NAME				-
NAME OF HOUSEHOLD H	IEAD			-
DHS CLUSTER NUMBER				
PSU CODE				
HOUSEHOLD NUMBER .				
REGION (HHOHHO = 1, M	ANZINI = 2, SHISELWE	NI = 3, LUBOMBO = 4)		
URBAN/RURAL (URBAN =	: 1, RURAL = 2)			
LARGE CITY/SMALL CITY (LARGE CITY=1, SMALL C	/TOWN/RURAL CITY=2, TOWN=3, RURA			
NAME AND LINE NUMBER	R OF WOMAN			. []
L			<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	1		3	EINAL VISIT
DATE INTERVIEWER'S NAME RESULT*				DAY MONTH YEAR 2006 INT. NUMBER RESULT
TIME				TOTAL NUMBER OF VISITS
*RESULT CODES: 1 COMPLET 2 NOT AT HO 3 POSTPON	ED 4 REFUS DME 5 PARTI ED 6 INCAF	SED LY COMPLETED ACITATED	7 OTHER	(SPECIFY)
LANGUAGE OF QUESTIO	NNAIRE: 2	RESPONDEN	I'S LANGUAGE:	
LANGUAGE OF INTERVIE	W:	TRANSLATOR (NOT AT ALL=	USED 1; SOMETIMES=2; ALL	THE TIME=3)
LANGUAGE: 1 SISWATI	2 ENGL	ISH	3 OTHER	
SUPERVIS	OR	FIELD EDIT	OR	OFFICE KEYED BY EDITOR
NAME	^ ►	IAME	— []	
DATE		DATE		

SECTION 1. RESPONDENT'S BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION AND CONSENT

INFORMED CONSENT

Hello. My name is

_ and I am working with the Central Statistical Office. We are conducting a national survey about the health of women, men and children. We would very much appreciate your participation in this survey. I would like to ask you about your health and the health of your children. This information will help the government to plan health services. The survey usually takes an hour to complete. Whatever information you provide will be kept strictly confidential and will not be shown to other persons.

Participation in this survey is voluntary and you can choose not to answer any individual question or all of the questions. However, we hope that you will participate in this survey since your views are important.

Ť

At this time, do you want to ask me anything about the survey? May I begin the interview now?

Signature of interviewer:

Date:

RESPONDENT AGREES TO BE INTERVIEWED..... 1 RESPONDENT DOES NOT AGREE TO BE INTERVIEWED ... 2→ END

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
101	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR	
102	How long have you been living continuously in (NAME OF CURRENT PLACE OF RESIDENCE)? IF LESS THAN ONE YEAR, RECORD '00' YEARS.	YEARS	→ 104
103	Just before you moved here, did you live in a city, in a town, or in the countryside?	CITY	
104	In the last 12 months, on how many separate occasions have you traveled away from your home community and slept away?	NUMBER OF TRIPS	→ 106
105	In the last 12 months, have you been away from your home community for more than one month at a time?	YES1 NO2	
106	In what month and year were you born?	MONTH	
107	How old were you at your last birthday? COMPARE AND CORRECT 106 AND/OR 107 IF INCONSISTENT.	AGE IN COMPLETED YEARS	
108	Have you ever attended school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 112
109	What is the highest level of school you attended: primary, secondary, or higher?	LOWER PRIMARY1HIGHER PRIMARY2SECONDARY3HIGH SCHOOL4TERTIARY5	
110	What is the highest (grade/form/year) you completed at that level?	GRADE/FORM/YEAR	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
111	CHECK 109: ANY PRIMARY CODE '1' OR '2' CIRCLED CODE '3' OR '4' OR 5 CIRCLE	D	→ 115
112	Now I would like you to read this sentence to me. SHOW CARD TO RESPONDENT. IF RESPONDENT CANNOT READ WHOLE SENTENCE, PROBE: Can you read any part of the sentence to me?	CANNOT READ AT ALL	
113	Have you ever participated in a literacy program or any other program that involves learning to read or write (not including primary school)?	YES 1 NO 2	
114	CHECK 112: CODE '2', '3' OR '4' CIRCLED CIRCLED		→ 116
115	Do you read a newspaper or magazine almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
116	Do you listen to the radio almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
117	Do you watch television almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
118	What is your religion?	TRADITIONAL 01 CHARISMATIC 02 PROTESTANT 03 ROMAN CATHOLIC 04 PENTECOSTAL 05 ZIONIST 06 APOSTOLIC SECT 07 ISLAM 08 NONE 09 OTHER	

SECTION 2. REPRODUCTION

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
201	Now I would like to ask about all the births you have had during your life. Have you ever given birth?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 206
202	Do you have any sons or daughters to whom you have given birth who are now living with you?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 204
203	How many sons live with you?	SONS AT HOME	
	And how many daughters live with you?	DAUGHTERS AT HOME	
	IF NONE, RECORD 100.		
204	Do you have any sons or daughters to whom you have given birth who are alive but do not live with you?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 206
205	How many sons are alive but do not live with you?	SONS ELSEWHERE	
	And how many daughters are alive but do not live with you?	DAUGHTERS ELSEWHERE .	
	IF NONE, RECORD '00'.		
206	Have you ever given birth to a boy or girl who was born alive but later died?		
	IF NO, PROBE: Any baby who cried or showed signs of life but did not survive?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 208
207	How many boys have died?	BOYS DEAD	
	And how many girls have died?	GIRLS DEAD	
	IF NONE, RECORD '00'.		
208	SUM ANSWERS TO 203, 205, AND 207, AND ENTER TOTAL. IF NONE, RECORD '00'.	TOTAL	
209	CHECK 208:		
	Just to make sure that I have this right: you have had in TOTAL births during your life. Is that correct? YES NO CORRECT 201-208 AS		
	NECESSARY.		
210	CHECK 208:		
			→ 226

211 Now I would like to record the names of all your births, whether still alive or not, starting with the first one you had. RECORD NAMES OF ALL THE BIRTHS IN 212. RECORD TWINS AND TRIPLETS ON SEPARATE LINES. (IF THERE ARE MORE THAN 12 BIRTHS, USE AN ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE).									
212	213	214	215	216	217 IF ALIVE:	218 IF ALIVE:	219 IF ALIVE:	220 IF DEAD:	221
What name was given to your (first/next) baby? (NAME)	Were any of these births twins or multiple?	Is (NAME) a boy or a girl?	In what month and year was (NAME) born? PROBE: What is his/her birthday?	ls (NAME) still alive?	How old was (NAME) at his/her last birthday? RECORD AGE IN COM- PLETED YEARS.	Is (NAME) living with you?	RECORD HOUSE- HOLD LINE NUMBER OF CHILD (RECORD '00' IF CHILD NOT LISTED IN HOUSE- HOLD).	How old was (NAME) when he/she died? IF '1 YR', PROBE: How many months old was (NAME)? RECORD DAYS IF LESS THAN 1 MONTH; MONTHS IF LESS THAN TWO YEARS; OR YEARS.	Were there any other live births between (NAME OF PREVIOUS BIRTH) and (NAME), including any children who died after birth?
01	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH YEAR	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1 MONTHS 2	
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(NEXT BIRTH)	YEARS 3	
02	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH YEAR	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1 MONTHS 2	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	↓ (GO TO 221)	YEARS3	NO 2
03	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH YEAR	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS 3	NO 2
04	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH YEAR	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS3	NO 2
05	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH YEAR	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS3	NO 2
06	SING 1	BOY 1		YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS 3	NO 2
07	SING 1	BOY 1		YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓ 220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS 3	NO 2

	1			-					T
212	213	214	215	216	217 IF ALIVE:	218 IF ALIVE:	219 IF ALIVE:	220 IF DEAD:	221
What name was given to your next baby? (NAME)	Were any of these births twins or multiple?	Is (NAME) a boy or a girl?	In what month and year was (NAME) born? PROBE: What is his/her birthday?	Is (NAME) still alive?	How old was (NAME) at his/her last birthday? RECORD AGE IN COM- PLETED YEARS.	Is (NAME) living with you?	RECORD HOUSE- HOLD LINE NUMBER OF CHILD (RECORD '00' IF CHILD NOT LISTED IN HOUSE- HOLD).	How old was (NAME) when he/she died? IF '1 YR', PROBE: How many months old was (NAME)? RECORD DAYS IF LESS THAN 1 MONTH; MONTHS IF LESS THAN TWO YEARS; OR YEARS.	Were there any other live births between (NAME OF PREVIOUS BIRTH) and (NAME), including any children who died after birth?
08	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1	LINE NUMBER	DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2	YEAR	NO 2		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	MONTHS 2 YEARS3	NO 2
09			MONTH	220	AGE IN		LINE NUMBER	DAYS 1	
	SING 1	BOY 1	YEAR	YES 1	YEARS	YES 1		MONTHS 2	YES 1
	MOLT 2	GIRL 2		220		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS 3	NU 2
10	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1	LINE NUMBER	DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2	YEAR	NO 2		NO 2		MONTHS 2	NO 2
				◆ 220			(GO 10 221)	YEARS 3	
11	SING 1	BOY 1	MONTH	YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1	LINE NUMBER	DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2	YEAR	NO 2		NO 2		MONTHS 2	NO 2
				220					
12	SING 1	BOY 1		YES 1	AGE IN YEARS	YES 1		DAYS 1	YES 1
	MULT 2	GIRL 2		NO 2 ↓		NO 2	(GO TO 221)	YEARS3	NO 2
000				220			``````````````````````````````````````		
222	Have you ha	YES, REC	DIRTINS SINCE THE DIRTN ORD BIRTH(S) IN TA	OF (NAME ABLE.	OF LAST	YES NO			
223		208 WITH		IS IN HIST	ORY ABOVE A	ND MARK:			
	ARE S		J DIFFERE	NT	(PROB	E AND REC	ONCILE)		
	СН	ECK: FC	OR EACH BIRTH: YE	EAR OF BII	RTH IS RECOR	DED.			
		FC	OR EACH LIVING CH	HILD: CUR	RENT AGE IS F	RECORDED			
		FC		ILD: AGE A		ECORDED.		YACT	
		FC	JMBER OF MONTH	S.	טא ז YEAR:	PROBE 10	DETERMINE E		
224	CHECK 215 IF NONE, R	AND ENT ECORD '0'	ER THE NUMBER C	OF BIRTHS	IN 2001 OR LA	ATER.			

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP			
225	FOR EACH BIRTH SINCE JANUARY 2001, ENTER 'B' IN THE MONTH OF BIRTH IN THE CALENDAR. WRITE THE NAME OF THE CHILD TO THE LEFT OF THE 'B' CODE. FOR EACH BIRTH, ASK THE NUMBER OF MONTHS THE PREGNANCY LASTED AND RECORD 'P' IN EACH OF THE PRECEDING MONTHS ACCORDING TO THE DURATION OF PREGNANCY. (NOTE: THE NUMBER OF 'P'S MUST BE ONE LESS THAN THE NUMBER OF MONTHS THAT THE PREGNANCY LASTED.)					
226	Are you pregnant now?	YES	↓ 229			
227	How many months pregnant are you? RECORD NUMBER OF COMPLETED MONTHS. ENTER 'P's IN THE CALENDAR, BEGINNING WITH THE MONTH OF INTERVIEW AND FOR THE TOTAL NUMBER OF COMPLETED MONTHS.	MONTHS				
228	At the time you became pregnant did you want to become pregnant <u>then</u> , did you want to wait until <u>later</u> , or did you <u>not want</u> to have any (more) children at all?	THEN 1 LATER 2 NOT AT ALL 3				
229	Have you ever had a pregnancy that miscarried or was aborted?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 230A			
230	When did the last miscarriage or abortion happen?	MONTH 98				
		YEAR				
230A	Have you ever had a pregnancy that ended in a stillbirth?	YES 1 NO 2	— ∎ 231			
230B	When did your last stillbirth happen?	MONTH 98 DON'T KNOW MONTH 98 YEAR 1 DON'T KNOW WONTH 9008				
230C	Was this last stillbirth macerated or fresh? By macerated I mean the body may have started to decompose.	MACERATED 1 FRESH 2 DON'T KNOW 8				
231	CHECK 230 AND 230B: LAST MISCARRIAGE/ ABORTION/STILLBIRTH ENDED JANUARY 2 OR LATER		→ 237 → 237			
232	How many months pregnant were you when the last miscarriage/ abortion/stillbirth happened? RECORD NUMBER OF COMPLETED MONTHS. ENTER 'T' IN THE CALENDAR IN THE MONTH THAT THE PREGNANCY TERMINATED AND 'P' FOR THE REMAINING NUMBER OF COMPLETED MONTHS.	MONTHS				
233	Since January 2001, have you had any other pregnancies that did not result in a live birth?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 237			

	I	l l	1
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
234	ASK THE DATE AND THE DURATION OF PREGNANCY FOR EAC PREGNANCY BACK TO JANUARY 2001.	CH EARLIER NON-LIVE BIRTH	
	ENTER 'T' IN THE CALENDAR IN THE MONTH THAT EACH PREC FOR THE REMAINING NUMBER OF COMPLETED MONTHS.	GNANCY TERMINATED AND 'P'	
235	Did you have any pregnancies that terminated before 2001 that did not result in a live birth?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 237
236	When did the last such pregnancy that terminated before 2001 end?	MONTH 98 DON'T KNOW MONTH 98 YEAR 1 DON'T KNOW YEAR 9998	
237	When did your last menstrual period start? (DATE, IF GIVEN)	DAYS AGO 1 WEEKS AGO 2 MONTHS AGO 3 YEARS AGO 4 IN MENOPAUSE/ 4 HAS HAD HYSTERECTOMY 994	
		BEFORE LAST BIRTH 995 NEVER MENSTRUATED 996	
238	From one menstrual period to the next, are there certain days when a woman is more likely to become pregnant if she has sexual relations?	YES	→ 301
239	Is this time just before her period begins, during her period, right after her period has ended, or halfway between two periods?	JUST BEFORE HER PERIOD 1 BEGINS 1 DURING HER PERIOD 2 RIGHT AFTER HER 2 PERIOD HAS ENDED 3 HALFWAY BETWEEN 3 TWO PERIODS 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 8	

301	Now I would like to talk about family planning - the various ways a couple can use to delay or avoid a pregnancy.	302 Have you ever used (METHOD)?	
	Which ways or methods have you heard about? FOR METHODS NOT MENTIONED SPONTANEOUSLY, ASK: Have you ever heard of (METHOD)?		
	CIRCLE CODE 1 IN 301 FOR EACH METHOD MENTIONED S THEN PROCEED DOWN COLUMN 301, READING THE NAM EACH METHOD NOT MENTIONED SPONTANEOUSLY. CIRC IS RECOGNIZED, AND CODE 2 IF NOT RECOGNIZED. THEN WITH CODE 1 CIRCLED IN 301, ASK 302.	SPONTANEOUSLY. E AND DESCRIPTION OF CLE CODE 1 IF METHOD N, FOR EACH METHOD	
01	FEMALE STERILIZATION Women can have an operation to avoid having any more children.	YES 1 NO 27	Have you ever had an operation to avoid having any more children? YES
02	MALE STERILIZATION Men can have an operation to avoid having any more children.	YES 1 NO 27	Have you ever had a partner who had an operation to avoid having any more children? YES 1 NO 2
03	PILL Women can take a pill every day to avoid becoming pregnant.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
04	IUD Women can have a loop or coil placed inside them by a doctor or a nurse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
05	INJECTABLES Women can have an injection by a health provider that stops them from becoming pregnant for one or more months.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
06	IMPLANTS Women can have several small rods placed in their upper arm by a doctor or nurse which can prevent pregnancy for one or more years	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
07	CONDOM Men can put a rubber sheath on their penis before sexual intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
08	FEMALE CONDOM Women can place a sheath in their vagina before sexual intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
09	DIAPHRAM Women can place a thin flexible disk in their vagina before intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
10	FOAM/JELLY Women can place a supersitory jelly or cream in thier vagina before intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1
11	LACTATIONAL AMENORRHEA METHOD (LAM) Up to six months after childbirth, a woman can use a method that requires that she breastfeeds frequently day, and night and that her menstrual period has not returned.	YES 1 NO 27	NO 2 YES 1 NO 2
12	RHYTHM/BILLINGS/MUCUS METHOD Every month that a woman is sexually active she can avoid pregnancy by not having sexual intercourse on the days of the month she is most likely to be pregnant or the woman observes her discharge and temperature of the vagina. If the temperature is high and the discharge streches then she can avioid sexual intercourse	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
13	WITHDRAWAL Men can be careful and pull out before climax.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
14	EMERGENCY CONTRACEPTION Women can take pills up to five days after sexual intercourse to avoid becoming pregnant.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
15	Have you heard of any other ways or methods that women or men can use to avoid pregnancy?	YES 1	YES 1
		(SPECIFY) (SPECIFY) NO 2	NO 2 YES 1 NO 2
303	CHECK 302: NOT A SINGLE "YES" (NEVER USED)		→ 307

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
304	Have you ever used anything or tried in any way to delay or avoid getting pregnant?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 331
306	What have you used or done?		
	CORRECT 302 AND 303 (AND 301 IF NECESSARY).		
307	Now I would like to ask you about the first time that you did something or used a method to avoid getting pregnant.	NUMBER OF CHILDREN	
	How many living children did you have at that time, if any?		
	IF NONE, RECORD '00'.		
308	CHECK 302 (01):	• •	
	WOMAN NOT STERILIZED STERILIZED		>311A
309	CHECK 226:		
			→ 331
310	Are you currently doing something or using any method to delay or avoid getting pregnant?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 331
311	Which method are you using?	FEMALE STERILIZATION A	216
	CIRCLE ALL MENTIONED.	PILL C	
	IF MORE THAN ONE METHOD MENTIONED, FOLLOW SKIP INSTRUCTION FOR HIGHEST METHOD ON LIST.	IUD D INJECTABLES E IMPLANTS F	→ 315
2114		FEMALE CONDOM	
311A	SINCLE A FORTEWALE STEMEIZATION.	FOAM/JELLY	→ 315
		RHYTHM METHOD L	
		WITHDRAWAL M	→ 319A
		OTHER X (SPECIFY)	
312	RECORD IF PILL OR CONDOM IS HIGHEST METHOD ON LIST IN 311.	PACKAGE SEEN 1	
	PILL MALE/FEMALE CONDOM	BRAND NAME	314
	May I see the package May I see the package of pills you are using? of condoms you are using?	PACKAGE NOT SEEN 2	
	RECORD NAME OF BRAND IF PACKAGE SEEN.		
313	Do you know the brand name of the (pills/condoms) you are using?	BRAND NAME	
	RECORD NAME OF BRAND.	DON'T KNOW 98	
314	How many (pill cycles/condoms) did you get		
	ure rast unite?	DON'T KNOW	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
314A	CHECK 311/311A:		
			→ 315
314B	How do you usually dispose of used condoms?	BURN 1 FLUSH IN TOILET 2 BURY IN HOLE 3 THROW AWAY 4 PIT LATRINE 5 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	
315	The last time you obtained (HIGHEST METHOD ON LIST IN 311), how much did you pay in total, including the cost of the method and any consultation you may have had?	COST]→ 319A
316	In what facility did the sterilization take place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PUBLIC SECTOR 11 GOVT. HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY) 16 PRIVATE SECTOR 21 PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC 21 PRIVATE DOCTOR 23 OTHER PRIVATE 26 (SPECIFY) 31 MISSION 31 OTHER MISSION 36 (SPECIFY) 36 NGO FLAS FLAS 41 OTHER NGO 46 (SPECIFY) 00 OTHER_ 96 (SPECIFY) 96	
317	CHECK 311/311A: CODE 'A' CIRCLED Before your sterilization operation, were you told that you would not be able to have any (more) children because of the operation? How much did you pay in total for the sterilization, including any consultation you may have had?	DON'T KNOW 98 YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 COST 1	
319	In what month and year was the sterilization performed?	FREE	
319A	In what month and year did you start using (CURRENT METHOD) continuously? PROBE: For how long have you been using (CURRENT METHOD) now without stopping?	MONTH	
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
-----	---	---	----------------
320	CHECK 319/319A, 215 AND 230:		
	ANY BIRTH OR PREGNANCY TERMINATION AFTER MONTH AN YEAR OF START OF USE OF CONTRACEPTION IN 319/319A		
	GO BACK TO 319/319A, PROBE AND RECORD MONTH AND YEA USE OF CURRENT METHOD (MUST BE AFTER LAST BIRTH OR	AR AT START OF CONTINUOUS PREGNANCY TERMINATION).	
321	CHECK 319/319A:		
	YEAR IS 2001 YEA OR LATER OF	R IS 2000 REARLIER	→ 329
323	CHECK 311/311A:	NO CODE CIRCLED	→ 331
	CIRCLE METHOD CODE:	MALE STERILIZATION	→ 333
	IF MORE THAN ONE METHOD CODE CIRCLED IN 311/311A, CIRCLE CODE FOR HIGHEST METHOD IN LIST.	PILL 03 IUD 04 INJECTABLES 05 IMPLANTS 06 CONDOM 07 EEMALE 08	→ 330
		DIAPHRAGM 09 FOAM/JELLY 10 LACTATIONAL AMEN. METHOD 11 RHYTHM METHOD 12 WITHDRAWAL 13	→ 327 → 333
		OTHER METHOD	
324	At the time you started using the (CURRENT METHOD), were you told about side effects or problems you might have with the method?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 326
325	Were you ever told by a health or family planning worker about side effects or problems you might have with the method?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 327
326	Were you told what to do if you experienced side effects or problems?	YES 1 NO 2	
327	CHECK 324:		
	CODE '1' CIRCLED		
	At that time, were you told When you obtained (CURRENT about other methods of family planning that you could use? METHOD) were you told about other methods of family planning that you could use?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 329
328	Were you ever told by a health or family planning worker about other methods of family planning that you could use?	YES 1 NO 2	
329	CHECK 311/311A:	FEMALE STERILIZATION 01	→ 333
	CIRCLE METHOD CODE:	PILL 03 IUD 04	
	IF MORE THAN ONE METHOD CODE CIRCLED IN 311/311A, CIRCLE CODE FOR HIGHEST METHOD IN LIST.	INJECTABLES 05 IMPLANTS 06 FEMALE CONDOM 08 DIAPHRAGM 09 FOAM/JELLY 10	
		LACTATIONAL AMEN. METHOD 11	→ 333

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
330	Where did you obtain (CURRENT METHOD) the last time? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 RHM/CBD 15	
	WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	OTHER PUBLIC16 (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR	
	(NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC 21 PHARMACY 22 PRIVATE DOCTOR 23 MOBILE CLINIC 24 CBD 25	333
		OTHER PRIVATE26 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL	-
		CLINIC	
		NGO FLAS 41 OTHER NGO (SPECIFY) 46	
		OTHER SOURCE SHOP 51 CHURCH 52 FRIEND/RELATIVE 53	
		OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW	
331	Do you know of a place where you can obtain a method of family planning?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 333
332	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S).	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC	
	IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	PRIVATE SECTOR PHARMACY H PRIVATE DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L COTOR L CBD L C	
	(NAME OF PLACE)	(SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL M CLINIC N OTHER MISSION O	
		(SPECIFY) NGO FLAS P OTHER NGO Q	
		(SPECIFY) OTHER SOURCE SHOP CHURCH CHURCH T OTHER X (SPECIFY)	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
333	In the last 12 months, were you visited by a RHM/CBD who talked to you about family planning?	YES 1 NO 2	
334	In the last 12 months, have you visited a health facility for care for yourself (or your children)?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 401
335	Did any staff member at the health facility speak to you about family planning methods?	YES 1 NO 2	

SECTION 4. PREGNANCY, POSTNATAL CARE AND CHILDREN'S NUTRITION

401	CHECK 224: ONE OR MORE BIRTHS IN 2001 OR LATER	BIRTH BIRTH IN 200 OR LATE	IO IS IR R		→ 550
402	ENTER IN THE TABLE THE LINE NUMBER, NAME, AND SURVIVAL STATUS OF EACH BIRTH IN 2001 OR LATER. ASK THE QUESTIONS ABOUT ALL OF THESE BIRTHS. BEGIN WITH THE LAST BIRTH. (IF THERE ARE MORE THAN THREE BIRTHS, USE LAST TWO COLUMNS OF ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRES). Now I would like to ask you some questions about the health of all your children born in the last five years. (We will talk about each separately.)				
403	LINE NUMBER FROM 212	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LA LINE NUMBER	ST BIRTH
404	FROM 212 AND 216	NAME LIVING DEAD	NAME	NAME	EAD
405	At the time you became pregnant with (NAME), did you want to become pregnant <u>then</u> , did you want to wait until <u>later</u> , or did you <u>not want</u> to have any (more) children at all?	THEN 1 (SKIP TO 407) LATER 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 407)	THEN 1 (SKIP TO 429)← LATER 2 NOT AT ALL 3 (SKIP TO 429)←	THEN (SKIP TO 42 LATER NOT AT ALL (SKIP TO 42	1 29) ↓ 2 3 29) ↓ ↓
406	How much longer would you have liked to wait?	MONTHS 1 YEARS 2 DON'T KNOW 998	MONTHS 1 YEARS 2 DON'T KNOW 998	MONTHS 1 YEARS 2 DON'T KNOW	. 998
407	Did you see anyone for antenatal care for this pregnancy? IF YES: Whom did you see? Anyone else? PROBE FOR THE TYPE OF PERSON AND RECORD ALL PERSONS SEEN.	HEALTH PROFESSIONAL DOCTOR A NURSE/MIDWIFE B NURSING ASSISTANT C OTHER PERSON TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT/ RHM D TRADITIONAL HEALER E OTHER X (SPECIFY) NO ONE			

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
408	Where did you receive antenatal care for this pregnancy?	HOME YOUR HOME A OTHER HOME B PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL C GOVT. HEALTH CENTER D		
	CIRCLE ALL MENTIONED.	PHU/CLINIC E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY)		
	IF SOURCE IS HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, OR CLINIC, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINICG OTHER PRIVATE H (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITALI CLINICJ OTHER MISSION K (SPECIFY) NGO FLAS L OTHER NGO M (SPECIFY) OTHER X (SPECIFY)		
409	How many months pregnant were you when you first received antenatal care for this pregnancy?	MONTHS . DON'T KNOW . 98		
410	Including this first visit, how many times did you receive antenatal care during this pregnancy?	NUMBER OF TIMES DON'T KNOW . 98		
411	As part of your antenatal care during this pregnancy, were any of the following done at least once?	YES NO		
	Were you weighed? Was your blood pressure measured? Did you give a urine sample? Did you give a blood sample? Were you physically examined?	WEIGHT 1 2 BP		
412	During (any of) your antenata care visit(s), were you told about the signs of pregnancy complications?	YES		
413	Were you told where to go if you had any of these complications?	YES		
414	During this pregnancy, were you given an injection in the arm to prevent the baby from getting tetanus, that is, convulsions after birth?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 417) ← DON'T KNOW 8		

		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
415	During this pregnancy, how many times did you get tetanus injection?	TIMES		
416	CHECK 415:	2 OR MORE OTHER TIMES (SKIP TO 421)		
417	At any time before this pregnancy, did you receive any tetanus injections?	YES		
418	Before this pregnancy, how many times did you get a tetanus injection? IF 7 OR MORE TIMES, RECORD '7'.	TIMES		
419	In what month and year did you receive the last tetanus injection before this pregnancy?	MONTH 98 DK MONTH		
420	How many years ago did you receive that tetanus injection?	YEARS AGO		
421	During this pregnancy, were you given or did you buy any iron tablets? SHOW TABLETS	YES, GIVEN 1 YES, BOUGHT 2 NO		
422	During the whole pregnancy, for how many days did you take the tablets? IF ANSWER IS NOT NUMERIC, PROBE FOR APPROXIMATE NUMBER OF DAYS.	NUMBER OF DAYS DON'T KNOW 998		
422A	During this pregnancy, did you take any drug for intestinal worms?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8		
423	During this pregnancy, did you have difficulty with your vision during daylight?	YES		
424	During this pregnancy, did you suffer from night blindness?	YES		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
425	During this pregnancy, did you take any drugs to prevent you from getting malaria?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 429) ← DON'T KNOW 8		
426	What drugs did you take? RECORD ALL MENTIONED. IF TYPE OF DRUG IS NOT DETERMINED, SHOW DRUGS TO RESPONDENT	SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE B OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z		
427	CHECK 426: DRUGS TAKEN FOR MALARIA PREVENTION.	CODE 'B' CODE CIRCLED B' NOT CIRCLED (SKIP TO 429) ←		
428	How many times did you take Chloroquine during this pregnancy?	TIMES		
429	When (NAME) was born, was he/she very large, larger than average, average, smaller than average, or very small?	VERY LARGE 1 LARGER THAN AVERAGE 2 AVERAGE 3 SMALLER THAN AVERAGE 4 VERY SMALL 5 DON'T KNOW 8	VERY LARGE 1 LARGER THAN AVERAGE 2 AVERAGE 3 SMALLER THAN AVERAGE 4 VERY SMALL 5 DON'T KNOW 8	VERY LARGE 1 LARGER THAN AVERAGE 2 AVERAGE 3 SMALLER THAN AVERAGE 4 VERY SMALL 5 DON'T KNOW 8
430	Was (NAME) weighed at birth?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 432) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 432) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 432) ← DON'T KNOW 8
431	How much did (NAME) weigh? RECORD WEIGHT IN KILOGRAMS FROM HEALTH CARD, IF AVAILABLE.	KG FROM CARD 1	KG FROM CARD 1	KG FROM CARD 1
432	Who assisted with the delivery of (NAME)? Anyone else? PROBE FOR THE TYPE OF PERSON AND RECORD ALL PERSONS ASSISTING. IF RESPONDENT SAYS NO ONE ASSISTED, PROBE TO DETERMINE WHETHER ANY ADULTS WERE PRESENT AT THE DELIVERY.	DOCTOR A NURSE/MIDWIFE B NURSING ASST C TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT/RHM D RELATIVE/FRIEND E TRADITIONAL HEALER F OTHER X (SPECIFY) NO ONE Y	DOCTOR A NURSE/MIDWIFE B NURSING ASST C TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT/RHM D RELATIVE/FRIEND E TRADITIONAL HEALER F OTHER X (SPECIFY) NO ONE Y	DOCTOR A NURSE/MIDWIFE B NURSING ASST C TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT/RHM D RELATIVE/FRIEND E TRADITIONAL HEALER F OTHER X (SPECIFY) NO ONE Y

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
433	Where did you give birth to (NAME)?	HOME YOUR HOME 11 (SKIP TO 440) ← OTHER HOME 12	HOME YOUR HOME 11 (SKIP TO 441) ← OTHER HOME 12	HOME YOUR HOME 11 (SKIP TO 441) - 12
	IF SOURCE IS HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, OR CLINIC, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 22 GOVT. CLINIC 23 OTHER PUBLIC 26 26	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 22 GOVT CLINIC 23 OTHER PUBLIC 26 (SPECIFY)	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 22 GOVT CLINIC 23 OTHER PUBLIC 26 26
		PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC	PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC 31 OTHER PRIVATE 36 (SPECIFY)	PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC 31 OTHER PRIVATE 36 (SPECIFY)
	(NAME OF PLACE)	MISSION HOSPITAL 41 CLINIC 42	MISSION HOSPITAL 41 CLINIC 42	MISSION HOSPITAL 41 CLINIC 42
		OTHER MISSION 46 (SPECIFY) NGO 51 OTHER96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 440) ←	OTHER MISSION 46 (SPECIFY) NGO	OTHER MISSION 46 (SPECIFY) 51 NGO 51 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96 (SPECIFY) 96 (SPECIFY) 96
434	How long after (NAME) was delivered did you stay there? IF LESS THAN ONE DAY, RECORD HOURS. IF LESS THAN ONE WEEK, RECORD DAYS.	HOURS 1 DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW 998	HOURS 1 DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW 998	HOURS 1 DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW 998
435	Was (NAME) delivered by caesarean section?	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2
436	Before you were discharged after (NAME) was born, did a health professional conduct a physical examination on you?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 439) ←	YES 1 (SKIP TO 451) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 451) ← NO 2
437	How many hours, days or weeks after delivery did the first check take place? IF LESS THAN ONE DAY, RECORD HOURS. IF LESS THAN ONE WEEK, RECORD DAYS.	HOURS 1 DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW 998		
438	Who checked on your health at that time? PROBE FOR MOST QUALIFIED PERSON.	DOCTOR		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
439	After you were discharged, did a health professional, a traditional birth attendant or a RHM conduct a physical examination on you?	YES 1 (SKIP TO 442) ← NO	YES 1 (SKIP TO 451) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 451) ← NO 2
440	Why didn't you deliver in a health facility? PROBE: Any other reason? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	COST TOO MUCH . A FACILITY NOT OPEN B TOO FAR/ NO TRANS- PORTATION . C DON'T TRUST FACILITY/POOR SERVICE D NO FEMALE PROVIDER AT FACILITY E NO MALE PROVIDER AT FACILITY F HUSBAND/FAMILY OPPOSED G NOT NECESSARY . H NOT CUSTOMARY . I OTHER X (SPECIFY)		
441	After (NAME) was born, did a health professional, a traditional birth attendant, a RHM, or a traditional healer conduct a physical examination on you?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 445) ← J	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 460) ↓	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 460)
442	How many hours, days or weeks after delivery did the first check take place? IF LESS THAN ONE DAY, RECORD HOURS. IF LESS THAN ONE WEEK, RECORD DAYS.	HOURS 1 DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW . 998		
443	Who checked on your health at that time? PROBE FOR MOST QUALIFIED PERSON.	DOCTOR 1 NURSE/MIDWIFE 2 NURSING ASSISTANT 3 TRADITIONAL HEALER 4 TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT/RHM 5 OTHER 6		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
444	Where did this first check take place?	HOME YOUR HOME 11 OTHER HOME 12		
	IF SOURCE IS HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, OR CLINIC, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 22 PHU/CLINIC 23 OTHER PUBLIC 26		
		(SPECIFY)		
	(NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC 31 OTHER PRIVATE 36 (SPECIFY)		
		MISSION HOSPITAL 41 CLINIC 42 OTHER 46		
		(SPECIFY) NGO FLAS		
		(SPECIFY) OTHER 96 (SPECIFY)		
444A	CHECK 439:	YES NOT ASKED (SKIP TO 449)		
445	In the two months after (NAME) was born, did a health professional or traditional birth attendant check on his/her health?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 449) ← DON'T KNOW . 8		
446	How many hours, days or weeks after the birth of (NAME) did the first check take place?	AFTER BIRTH HOURS 1		
	IF LESS THAN ONE DAY, RECORD HOURS. IF LESS THAN ONE WEEK, RECORD DAYS.	DAYS 2 WEEKS 3 DON'T KNOW . 998		
447	Who checked on (NAME)'s health at that time?	DOCTOR 11 NURSE/MIDWIFE . 12		
	PROBE FOR MOST QUALIFIED PERSON.	NURSING ASSISTANT 13 TRADITIONAL 14 HEALER 14 TRADITIONAL BIRTH ATTENDANT 15 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY)		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
NO. 448	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS Where did this first check of (NAME) take place? IF SOURCE IS HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, OR CLINIC, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. (NAME OF PLACE)	NAME YOUR HOME 11 OTHER HOME 12 PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HOSPITAL 21 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 22 PHU/CLINIC 23 OTHER PUBLIC 26 (SPECIFY) PRIVATE MED. SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC 31 OTHER PRIVATE 36 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL 41 CLINIC 42 OTHER MISSION 46 (SPECIFY) NGO FLAS 51 OTHER NGO 56 (SPECIFY) OTHER MGO 56	NAME	NAME
449	Within the first two months after delivery, did you receive a vitamin A dose like (this/any of these)? SHOW COMMON TYPES OF CAPSULES.	(SPECIFY) YES 1 NO 2		
450	Has your menstrual period returned since the birth of (NAME)?	YES 1 (SKIP TO 452) ← NO 2 (SKIP TO 453) ←		
451	Did your period return between the birth of (NAME) and your next pregnancy?		YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 455)+J	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 455) ←
452	For how many months after the birth of (NAME) did you <u>not</u> have a period?	MONTHS 98	MONTHS 98	MONTHS 98

NO		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH
453	CHECK 226: IS RESPONDENT PREGNANT?	NOT PREGNANT PREG- OR UNSURE (SKIP TO 455)		
454	Have you resumed sexual relations since the birth of (NAME)?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 456)◀		
455	For how many months after the birth of (NAME) did you <u>not</u> have sexual relations?	MONTHS 98	MONTHS 98	MONTHS 98
456	Did you ever breastfeed (NAME)?	YES 1 (SKIP TO 457) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 457) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 457) ← J NO 2
456A	What was the main reason you did not breastfeed (NAME)?	MOTHER ILL/WEAK 01 CHILD ILL/WEAK 02 CHLD DIED 03 NIPPLE/BREAST PROBLEM 04 NOT ENOUGH MILK 05 MOTHER WORKING/ AT SCHOOL 06 CHILD REFUSED . 07 FEAR OF HIV TRANSMISSION . 08 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 463)	MOTHER ILL/WEAK 01 CHILD ILL/WEAK 02 CHLD DIED 03 NIPPLE/BREAST PROBLEM 04 NOT ENOUGH MILK 05 MOTHER WORKING/ AT SCHOOL 06 CHILD REFUSED .07 FEAR OF HIV TRANSMISSION .08 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 460)	MOTHER ILL/WEAK 01 CHILD ILL/WEAK 02 CHLD DIED 03 NIPPLE/BREAST PROBLEM 04 NOT ENOUGH MILK 05 MOTHER WORKING/ AT SCHOOL 06 CHILD REFUSED . 07 FEAR OF HIV TRANSMISSION . 08 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 460)
457	How long after birth did you first put (NAME) to the breast? IF LESS THAN 1 HOUR, RECORD '00' HOURS. IF LESS THAN 24 HOURS, RECORD HOURS.	IMMEDIATELY 000 HOURS 1		
458	OTHERWISE, RECORD DAYS. In the first three days after delivery, was (NAME) given anything to drink other than breast milk?	DAYS 2 YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 460) ↓		

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO- LAST BIRTH NAME	SECOND-FROM- LAST BIRTH NAME
459	What was (NAME) given to drink? Anything else? RECORD ALL LIQUIDS MENTIONED.	MILK (OTHER THAN BREAST MILK) . A PLAIN WATER B SUGAR OR GLU- COSE WATER C GRIPE WATER D SUGAR-SALT-WATER SOLUTION E FRUIT JUICE F INFANT FORMULA . G TEA/INFUSIONS H HONEY I OTHER X (SPECIFY)		
460	CHECK 404: IS CHILD LIVING?	LIVING DEAD (SKIP TO 462)	LIVING DEAD (SKIP TO 462)	LIVING DEAD ((SKIP TO 462)
461	Are you still breastfeeding (NAME)?	YES 1 (SKIP TO 464) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 466) ← NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 466) ← NO 2
462	For how many months did you breastfeed (NAME)?	MONTHS 98	MONTHS	MONTHS
463	CHECK 404: IS CHILD LIVING?	LIVING DEAD (GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO (SKIP TO 466) TO 467)	LIVING (GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO (SKIP TO 466) TO 467)	LIVING DEAD (GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT-TO-LAST COLUMN OF NEW QUESTIONNAIRE; OR, IF NO MORE (SKIP TO 466) BIRTHS, GO TO 467)
464	How many times did you breastfeed last night between sunset and sunrise? IF ANSWER IS NOT NUMERIC, PROBE FOR APPROXIMATE NUMBER.	NUMBER OF NIGHTTIME FEEDINGS .		
465	How many times did you breastfeed yesterday during the daylight hours? IF ANSWER IS NOT NUMERIC, PROBE FOR APPROXIMATE NUMBER.	NUMBER OF DAYLIGHT FEEDINGS .		
466	Did (NAME) drink anything from a bottle with a nipple yesterday or last night?	YES	YES	YES
467		GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 501.	GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 501.	GO BACK TO 405 IN NEXT-TO-LAST COLUMN OF NEW QUESTIONNAIRE; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 501.

SECTION 5. IMMUNIZATION, HEALTH, AND WOMEN'S NUTRITION

501	1 ENTER IN THE TABLE THE LINE NUMBER, NAME, AND SURVIVAL STATUS OF EACH BIRTH IN 2001 OR LATER. ASK THE QUESTIONS ABOUT ALL OF THESE BIRTHS. BEGIN WITH THE LAST BIRTH. (IF THERE ARE MORE THAN THREE BIRTHS, USE LAST TWO COLUMNS OF ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRES).					
502	LINE NUMBER FROM 212	LAST BIRTH LINE NUMBER	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH LINE NUMBER	SECOND-FROM-LAST BIRTH LINE NUMBER		
503	FROM 212 AND 216	NAME LIVING DEAD (GO TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547)	NAME LIVING DEAD (GO TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547)	NAME LIVING DEAD GO TO 503 IN NEXT- TO-LAST COLUMN OF NEW QUESTIONNAIRE, OR IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547)		
504	Has (NAME) ever received a vitamin A dose like (this/any of these)? SHOW CAPSULES.	YES	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 506) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 506) ← ↓ DON'T KNOW 8		
505	How many months ago did (NAME) take the last dose?	MONTHS AGO	MONTHS AGO	MONTHS AGO DON'T KNOW		
506	Is (NAME) currently taking iron pills like this (any of these)?	YES	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8		
506A	Has (NAME) taken any tablet or syrup for intestinal worms worms in the past six months?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8		
507	Do you have a card where (NAME'S) vaccinations are written down? IF YES: May I see it please?	YES, SEEN	YES, SEEN	YES, SEEN 1 (SKIP TO 509) ← J YES, NOT SEEN 2 (SKIP TO 511) ← J NO CARD		
508	Did you ever have a vaccination card for (NAME)?	YES 1 (SKIP TO 511) ← 1 NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 511) ← 1 NO 2	YES 1 (SKIP TO 511) ← 1 NO 2		



		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST BIRTH
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
510	Has (NAME) received any vaccinations that are not recorded on this card, including vaccinations received in a national immunization day campaign? RECORD 'YES' ONLY IF RESPONDENT MENTIONS BCG, POLIO 0-3, DPT 1-3, AND/OR MEASLES VACCINES.	YES 1 (PROBE FOR ↓) VACCINATIONS AND WRITE '66' IN THE CORRESPONDING DAY COLUMN IN 509) (SKIP TO 513) ↓) NO 2 (SKIP TO 513) ↓)	YES 1 (PROBE FOR VACCINATIONS AND WRITE '66' IN THE CORRESPONDING DAY COLUMN IN 509) (SKIP TO 513) NO 2 (SKIP TO 513) (SKIP TO 513)	YES 1 (PROBE FOR ← VACCINATIONS AND WRITE '66' IN THE CORRESPONDING DAY COLUMN IN 509) (SKIP TO 513) ← NO 2 (SKIP TO 513) ←
		DON'T KNOW 8	DON'T KNOW 8	DON'T KNOW 8
511	Did (NAME) ever receive any vaccinations to prevent him/her from getting diseases, including vaccinations received in a national immunization day campaign?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 515) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 515) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 515) ← DON'T KNOW 8
512	Please tell me if (NAME) received any of the following vaccinations:			
512A	A BCG vaccination against tuberculosis, that is, an injection in the arm or shoulder that usually leaves a scar?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8
512B	Polio vaccine, that is, drops in the mouth?	YES	YES	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 512E) ← DON'T KNOW 8
512C	Was the first polio vaccine received in the first two weeks after birth or later?	FIRST 2 WEEKS 1 LATER 2	FIRST 2 WEEKS 1 LATER 2	FIRST 2 WEEKS 1 LATER 2
512D	How many times was the polio vaccine received?	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES
512E	A DPT vaccination, that is, an injection given in the thigh sometimes at the same time as polio drops?	YES	YES	YES
512F	How many times was a DPT vaccination received?	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES
512G	An HBV injection given on the thigh sometimes with polio drops?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 512I) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 512I) - DON'T KNOW 8	YES
512H	How many times was an HBV vaccination received? This is an injection that is usually given in the thigh.	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES	NUMBER OF TIMES
5121	An injection to prevent measles? This injection is usually given in the left upper arm.	YES	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8
513	Were any of the vaccinations (NAME) received during the last two years given as part of a national immunization day campaign?	YES	YES	YES

		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
514	At which national immunization day campaigns did (NAME) receive vaccinations? RECORD ALL CAMPAIGNS MENTIONED.	POLIO AND VIT A (JULY 2004) A MEASLES AND VIT A (JULY 2006) B	POLIO AND VIT A (JULY 2004) A MEASLES AND VIT A (JULY 2006) B	POLIO AND VIT A (JULY 2004) A MEASLES AND VIT A (JULY 2006) B
515	Has (NAME) had diarrhoea in the last two weeks?	YES	YES	YES
516	Was there any blood in the stools?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES	YES
517	Now I would like to know how much (NAME) was given to drink during the diarrhoea. Was he/she given less than usual to drink, about the same amount or more than usual to drink? IF LESS, PROBE: Was he/she given much less than usual to drink or somewhat less?	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 NOTHING TO DRINK 5 DON'T KNOW 8	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 NOTHING TO DRINK 5 DON'T KNOW 8	MUCH LESS1SOMEWHAT LESS2ABOUT THE SAME3MORE4NOTHING TO DRINK5DON'T KNOW8
518	When (NAME) had diarrhoea, was he/she given less than usual to eat, about the same amount, more than usual, or nothing to eat? IF LESS, PROBE: Was he/she given much less than usual to eat or somewhat less?	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 STOPPED FOOD . 5 NEVER GAVE FOOD 6 DON'T KNOW 8	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 STOPPED FOOD . 5 NEVER GAVE FOOD 6 DON'T KNOW 8	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 STOPPED FOOD . 5 NEVER GAVE FOOD 6 DON'T KNOW 8
519	Did you seek advice or treatment for the diarrhoea from any source?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 524)←	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 524)	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 524)

		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
520	Where did you seek advice or treatment? IF SOURCE IS A HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, OR CLINIC, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL A GOVT HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC . D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL A GOVT HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL A GOVT HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC
	(NAME OF PLACE) Anywhere else? RECORD ALL PLACES MENTIONED.	PRIVATE MED. SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC GBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL. MOTHER MISSION (SPECIFY) NGO (SPECIFY) NGO ROTHER SOURCE SHOP OTHEALER HEALER OTHER_R	PRIVATE MED. SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) M MISSION HOSPITAL. MOSTHER MISSION O (SPECIFY) NGO (SPECIFY) NGO OTHER SOURCE SHOP SHOP Q TRADITIONAL HEALER HEALER X (SPECIFY) X	PRIVATE MED. SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) M MISSION HOSPITAL. MOTHER MISSION O (SPECIFY) NGO (SPECIFY) NGO MGO P OTHER SOURCE SHOP SHOP Q TRADITIONAL HEALER HEALER X (SPECIFY) X
521	CHECK 520:	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 523) ←	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 523) ←	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 523)
522	Where did you first seek advice or treatment?	FIRST PLACE	FIRST PLACE	FIRST PLACE
523	How many days after the diarrhoea began did you first seek advice or treatment for (NAME)? IF THE SAME DAY, RECORD '00'.	DAYS	DAYS	DAYS
524	Does (NAME) still have diarrhea?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8
525	Was he/she given any of the following to drink at any time since he/she started having the diarrhea:	YES NO DK	YES NO DK	YES NO DK
а	A fluid made from a special packet called ORS	ORS PKT 1 2 8	ORS PKT 1 2 8	ORS PKT 1 2 8
b	Sugar-Salt-Solution (SSS)	SSS 1 2 8	SSS 1 2 8	SSS 1 2 8

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST BIRTH NAME
526	Was anything (else) given to treat the diarrhea?	YES	YES	YES
527	What (else) was given to treat the diarrhea? Anything else? RECORD ALL TREATMENTS GIVEN.	PILL OR SYRUP ANTIBIOTIC A ANTIMOTILITY B VITAMIN A C OTHER (NOT ANTI- BIOTIC, ANTI- MOTILITY/VIT. A D UNKNOWN PILL OR SYRUP E	PILL OR SYRUP ANTIBIOTIC A ANTIMOTILITY B VITAMIN A C OTHER (NOT ANTI- BIOTIC, ANTI- MOTILITY/VIT. A D UNKNOWN PILL OR SYRUP E	PILL OR SYRUP ANTIBIOTIC A ANTIMOTILITY B VITAMIN A C OTHER (NOT ANTI- BIOTIC, ANTI- MOTILITY/VIT. A D UNKNOWN PILL OR SYRUP E
		INJECTION ANTIBIOTIC F NON-ANTIBIOTIC . G UNKNOWN INJECTION H	INJECTION ANTIBIOTIC F NON-ANTIBIOTIC . G UNKNOWN INJECTION H	INJECTION ANTIBIOTIC F NON-ANTIBIOTIC . G UNKNOWN INJECTION H
		(IV) INTRAVENOUS I HOME REMEDY/ HERBAL MED- ICINE J OTHER X (SPECIFY)	(IV) INTRAVENOUS I HOME REMEDY/ HERBAL MED- ICINE J OTHER X (SPECIFY)	(IV) INTRAVENOUS I HOME REMEDY/ HERBAL MED- ICINE J OTHER X (SPECIFY)
528	CHECK 527: GIVEN VITAMIN A?	CODE "C" CIRCLED NOT CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 530)	CODE "C" CODE "C" CIRCLED NOT CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 530) ←	CODE "C" CODE "C" CIRCLED NOT CIRCLED (SKIP TO 530)
529	How many times was (NAME) given vitamin A?	TIMES 98	TIMES DON'T KNOW 98	TIMES DON'T KNOW 98
530	Has (NAME) been ill with a fever at any time in the last two weeks?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8
531	Has (NAME) had an illness with a cough at any time in the last two weeks?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 534) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 534) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 534) - DON'T KNOW 8
532	When (NAME) had an illness with a cough, did he/she breathe faster than usual with short, rapid breaths or have difficulty breathing?	YES	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 535) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 535) ← DON'T KNOW 8
533	When (NAME) had this illness, did he/she have a problem in the chest or a blocked or runny nose?	CHEST ONLY 1 NOSE ONLY 2 BOTH 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 535)	CHEST ONLY 1 NOSE ONLY 2 BOTH 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 535)	CHEST ONLY 1 NOSE ONLY 2 BOTH
534	CHECK 530: HAD FEVER?	YES NO OR DK (GO BACK TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 546)	YES NO OR DK	YES NO OR DK

		LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST BIRTH
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NAME	NAME	NAME
535	Now I would like to know how much (NAME) was given to drink during	MUCH LESS 1	MUCH LESS 1	MUCH LESS 1
	the illness with a (fever/cough). Was he/she given less than	SOMEWHAT LESS . 2	SOMEWHAT LESS . 2	SOMEWHAT LESS . 2
	usual to drink, about the same amount, or more than usual to	ABOUT THE SAME . 3	ABOUT THE SAME . 3	ABOUT THE SAME . 3
	drink?	MORE 4	MORE 4	MORE 4
	IF LESS, PROBE: Was he/she given much less than usual to	NOTHING TO DRINK 5	NOTHING TO DRINK 5	NOTHING TO DRINK 5
	drink or somewhat less?	DON'T KNOW 8	DON'T KNOW 8	DON'T KNOW 8
536	When (NAME) had a (fever/cough), was he/she given less than usual to eat, about the same amount, more than usual, or nothing to eat? IF LESS, PROBE: Was he/she given much less than usual to eat or somewhat less?	MUCH LESS1SOMEWHAT LESS2ABOUT THE SAME3MORE4STOPPED FOOD5NEVER GAVE FOOD6DON'T KNOW8	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 STOPPED FOOD . 5 NEVER GAVE FOOD 6 DON'T KNOW 8	MUCH LESS 1 SOMEWHAT LESS . 2 ABOUT THE SAME . 3 MORE 4 STOPPED FOOD . 5 NEVER GAVE FOOD 6 DON'T KNOW 8
537	Did you seek advice or treatment for the illness from any source?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 542)←	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 542) 4	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 542)◀
538	Where did you seek advice or treatment? Anywhere else? RECORD ALL SOURCES MENTIONED.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL A GOVT HEALTH CENTER CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) F PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J OTHER PRIVATE K (SPECIFY) K MISSION N HOSPITAL<	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL GOVT HEALTH CENTER CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD C (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC CLINIC G PHARMACY PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J OTHER PRIVATE K (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL. L CLINIC MOTHER MISSION NO (SPECIFY) NGO P OTHER SOURCE SHOP OTHER SOURCE SHOP OTHER ADITIONAL HEALER R OTHER OTHER Q	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT HOSPITAL A GOVT HEALTH CENTER CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) F PRIVATE SECTOR PVT. HOSPITAL/ CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J OTHER PRIVATE K (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL L CLINIC M OTHER MISSION N (SPECIFY) NGO NGO P OTHER SOURCE SHOP SHOP Q TRADITIONAL HEALER HEALER R OTHER (SPECIFY)

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	LAST BIRTH	NEXT-TO-LAST BIRTH	SECOND-FROM-LAST BIRTH NAME
539	CHECK 538:	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 541)	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 541)	TWO OR ONLY MORE ONE CODES CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED (SKIP TO 541)
540	Where did you first seek advice or treatment? USE LETTER CODE FROM 538.	FIRST PLACE	FIRST PLACE	FIRST PLACE
541	How many days after the illness began did you first seek advice or treatment for (NAME)? IF THE SAME DAY, RECORD '00'.	DAYS	DAYS	DAYS
542	Is (NAME) still sick with a (fever/ cough)?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8
543	At any time during the illness, did (NAME) take any drugs for the illness?	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 546) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 546) ← DON'T KNOW 8	YES 1 NO 2 (SKIP TO 546) - DON'T KNOW 8
544	What drugs did (NAME) take? Any other drugs? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXYCILLIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H OTHER DRUGS PANADOL I PHENERGAN J OTHERX (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXYCILLIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H OTHER DRUGS PANADOL I PHENERGAN J OTHERX (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXYCILLIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H OTHER DRUGS PANADOL I PHENERGAN J OTHERX (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z
544A	CHECK 544: ANY CODE A-H CIRCLED?	YES NO	YES NO	YES NO
545	Did you already have (NAME OF DRUG FROM 544) at home when the child became ill? IF YES, CIRCLE CODE FOR THAT DRUG. ASK SEPARATELY FOR EACH ANTIMALARIAL OR ANTIBIOTIC DRUG GIVEN IN 544.	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE . B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXCYCILIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H NO DRUG AT HOME Y	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE . B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXCYCILIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H NO DRUG AT HOME Y	ANTIMALARIAL DRUGS SP/FANSIDAR A CHLOROQUINE . B QUININE C OTHER ANTI- MALARIAL D ANTIBIOTIC COTRIMOXAZOLE E AMOXCYCILIN F PEN VK G ERITHROMYCIN H NO DRUG AT HOME Y
546		GO BACK TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547.	GO BACK TO 503 IN NEXT COLUMN; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547.	GO TO 503 IN NEXT-TO-LAST COLUMN OF NEW QUESTIONNAIRE; OR, IF NO MORE BIRTHS, GO TO 547.

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
547	CHECK 215 AND 218, ALL ROWS:		
	NUMBER OF CHILDREN BORN IN 2001 OR LATER LIVING WITH	THE RESPONDENT	
			→ 550
	+		
548	The last time (NAME OF YOUNGEST CHILD) passed stools, what was done to dispose of the stools?	CHILD USED TOILET OR LATRINE 01 PUT/RINSED INTO TOILET OR LATRINE 02 PUT/RINSED INTO DRAIN OR DITCH 03 THROWN INTO GARBAGE 04 BURIED 05 LEFT IN THE OPEN 06	
		OTHER96 (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW	
549	CHECK 525(a) AND 525(b), ALL COLUMNS:		
	NO CHILD ANY C RECEIVED FLUID RECE FROM ORS PACKET FROM	CHILD IVED FLUID	→ 552
550	Have you ever heard of a special product called ORS that you can get for the treatment of diarrhoea?	YES 1 NO 2	
552	CHECK 215 AND 218 IN ALL ROWS:		
	HAS AT LEAST ONE CHILD BORN IN 2003 OR LATER AND LIVING WITH HER RECORD NAME OF YOUNGEST CHILD LIVING	HAVE ANY CHILDREN RN IN 2003 OR LATER ND LIVING WITH HER	→ 601
	WITH HER (AND CONTINUE WITH 553)		
	(NAME)		
553	Now I would like to ask you about liquids or foods (NAME FROM 552) had yesterday during the day or at night.		
	Did (NAME FROM 552) (drink/eat):	YES NO DK	
	Plain water?	PLAIN WATER 1 2 8	
	Commercially produced infant formula?	FORMULA 1 2 8	
	Any baby food, e.g., Cerelac, ligugu?	BABY CEREAL 1 2 8	
	Any (other) porridge or gruel?	OTHER PORRIDGE/GRUEL 1 2 8	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS		CODING CA	TEGORIES	SKIP
554	Now I would like to ask you about (other) liquids or foods that (NAME yesterday during the day or at night. I am interested in whether your combined with other foods.	E FRC child	0M 552) or you may h or you had the item ev	ave had ven if it was	
			CHILD	MOTHER	
	Did (NAME FROM 552)/you drink (eat):		YES NO DK	YES NO DK	
	a. Milk such as tinned, powdered, or fresh animal milk?	a	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	b. Tea or coffee?	b	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	c. Sugary drinks such as sodas or fruit juices?	c	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	d. Any other liquids?	d	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	e. Bread, rice, noodles, maize meal, or other foods made from grains?	e	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	f. Pumpkin, carrots, squash or sweet potatoes that are yellow or orange inside?	f	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	g. White potatoes, white yams, taro (emathapha), cassava, or any other foods made from roots?	g	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	 Any dark green, leafy vegetables? (such as cassava leaves, spinach, ocra, blackjack and pumkin leaves) 	h	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	i. Ripe mangoes, paw paw, oranges or guavas?	i	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	j. Any other fruits or vegetables?	j	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	k. Liver, kidney, heart or other organ meats (such as tripe, offals and tongue)?	k	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	I. Beef, pork, lamb, goat, rabbit or impala?	<u> </u>	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	m. Chicken, duck, turkey or other birds?	m	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	n. Eggs?	n	1 2 8	128	
	o. Fresh or dried fish or shellfish?	<u> </u>	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	p. Any foods made from beans, peas, or lentils?	р	1 2 8	128	
	q. Any nuts?	<u>q</u>	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	r. Cheese, sour milk, yogurt or other milk products?	r	1 2 8	128	
	s. Any oil, fats, or butter, or foods made with any of these?	s	1 2 8	128	
	t. Any sugary foods such as chocolates, sweets, candies, pastries, cakes, or biscuits?	t	1 2 8	1 2 8	
	u. Any other solid or semi-solid food?	u	1 2 8		

SECTION 6. MARRIAGE AND SEXUAL ACTIVITY

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
601	Are you in a civil or traditional marriage or both civil and traditiona marriage?	CIVIL MARRIAGE 1 TRADITIONAL MARRIAGE 2 BOTH CIVIL AND TRAD 3 NO 4	→ 601B
601A	Was dowry/labola paid?	YES 1 - NO 2 -	605
601B	Are you living with a man as if married?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 605
602	Have you ever been married or lived together with a man as if married?	YES, FORMERLY MARRIED 1 YES, LIVED WITH A MAN 2 NO 3	→ 619
604	What is your marital status now: are you widowed, divorced, or separated?	WIDOWED 1 DIVORCED 2 SEPARATED 3	610
605	Is your husband/partner living with you now or is he staying elsewhere?	LIVING WITH HER	
606	RECORD THE HUSBAND'S/PARTNER'S NAME AND LINE NUMBER FROM THE HOUSEHOLD QUESTIONNAIRE. IF HE IS NOT LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD, RECORD '00'.	NAME	
		LINE NO	
607	Besides yourself, does your husband/partner have other wives or does he live with other women as if married?	YES	↓ 610
608	Including yourself, in total, how many wives or partners does your husband live with now as if married?	TOTAL NUMBER OF WIVES AND LIVE-IN PARTNERS DON'T KNOW 98	
609	Are you the first, second, wife?	RANK	
610	Have you been married or lived with a man only once or more than once?	ONLY ONCE	
611	CHECK 610:		
	LIVED WITH A MAN ONLY ONCE	MONTH	
	In what month and yearNow I would like to ask aboutdid you start living withwhen you started living withyour husband/partner?your first husband/partner.	DON'T KNOW MONTH	
	In what month and year was that?	YEAR	→ 614
		DON'T KNOW YEAR	
612	How old were you when you first started living with him?	AGE	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
614	CHECK 604: IS RESPONDENT CURRENTLY WIDOWED?		
	NOT ASKED OR WIDOWED WIDOW	VED	→ 617
615	CHECK 610:		
			s 619
616	How did your providus marriage or union and?		→ 019
010		DIVORCE 2 SEPARATION 3]→ 619
617	Who did most of your late husband's property go to?	RESPONDENT 1 OTHER WIFE 2 SPOUSE'S CHILDREN 3 SPOUSE'S FAMILY 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 7	→ 619
618	Did you receive any of your late husband's assets or valuables?	YES 1 NO 2	
619	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS.		
	BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PF	RIVACY.	
620	Now I need to ask you some questions about sexual activity in order to gain a better understanding of some family life issues.	NEVER HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE	
	How old were you when you had sexual intercourse for the very first time?	AGE IN YEARS	→ 622
		HUSBAND/PARTNER	→ 622
621	Do you intend to wait until you get married to have sexual intercourse for the first time?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW/UNSURE 8	642
622	CHECK 107: AGE AGE 15-24 25-49		→ 627
623	The <u>first</u> time you had sexual intercourse, was a male condom or female condom used?	YES, MALE CONDOM 1 YES, FEMALE CONDOM 2 NO 3 DON'T KNOW/DON'T REMEMBER 8	
623A	What was the main reason you did not use a condom the <u>first t</u> ime you had sexual intercourse?	AVAILABILITY 01 COST 02 NOT NECESSARY 03 NOT THOUGHT OF 04 PARTNER REFUSED 05 REDUCES PLEASURE 06 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
624	How old was the person you first had sexual intercourse with?	AGE OF PARTNER	→ 627
625	Was this person older than you, younger than you, or about the same age as you?	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 ABOUT THE SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW/DON'T REMEMBER 8	627
626	Would you say this person was ten or more years older than you or less than ten years older than you?	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3	
627	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your recent sexual Let me assure you again that your answers are completely confident If we should come to any question that you don't want to answer, just question.	al activity. ial and will not be told to anyone. t let me know and we will go to the next	
627A	When was the <u>last</u> time you had sexual intercourse? IF LESS THAN 12 MONTHS, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN DAYS, WEEKS OR MONTHS. IF 12 MONTHS (ONE YEAR) OR MORE, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN YEARS.	DAYS AGO 1 WEEKS AGO 2 MONTHS AGO 3 YEARS AGO 4	→ 641

		LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	SECOND-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	THIRD-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER
628	When was the last time you had sexual intercourse with this person?		DAYS . 1 WEEKS 2 MONTHS 3	DAYS . 1 WEEKS 2 MONTHS 3
629	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this (second/third) person, was a male condom or a female condom used?	YES, MALE CONDOM. 1 YES, FEMALE CON. 2 (SKIP TO 630) ← NO	YES, MALE CONDOM. 1 YES, FEMALE CON 2 (SKIP TO 630) ← NO	YES, MALE CONDOM. 1 YES, FEMALE CON. 2 (SKIP TO 630) ← NO
629A	What was the main reason you did not use a condom the last time you had sexual intercourse with this (second/third) person?	NOT AVAILABLE 01 COST 02 NOT NECESSARY 03 NOT THOUGHT OF 04 PARTNER REFUSED . 05 REDUCES PLEASURE 06 OTHER96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 631)	NOT AVAILABLE 01 COST 02 NOT NECESSARY 03 NOT THOUGHT OF 04 PARTNER REFUSED . 05 REDUCES PLEASURE 06 OTHER96 (SPECIFY) (SKIP TO 631)	NOT AVAILABLE 01 COST
630	Was a male or a female condom used everytime you had sexual intercourse wth this person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2
631	What was your relationship to this person with whom you had sexual intercourse? IF PARTNER: Were you living together as if married? IF YES, CIRCLE '02' IF NO, CIRCLE '03'	HUSBAND 1 (SKIP TO 637) LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT LIVING WITH RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUAINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER 5 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	HUSBAND 1 (SKIP TO 637) LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT LIVING WITH RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUAINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER 5 OTHEF6 (SPECIFY)	HUSBAND 1 (SKIP TO 637) LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT LIVING WITH RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUAINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER 5 OTHEF6 (SPECIFY)
632	For how long (have you had/did you have) a sexual relationship with this person? IF ONLY HAD SEXUAL RELATIONS WITH THIS PERSON ONCE, RECORD '01' DAYS.	DAYS . 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3	DAYS . 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3	DAYS . 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3
633	CHECK 107:	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 ↓ ↓ (SKIP TO 637) ↓	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 ↓ ↓ (SKIP TO 637) ↓	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 (SKIP TO 637)
634	How old is this person?	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 637) ON'T KNOW 98	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 637) ← DON'T KNOW 98	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 637) ← DON'T KNOW 98
635	Is this person older than you, younger than you, or about the same age?	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 637)	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 637)	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 637)

		LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	SECOND-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	THIRD-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER
636	Would you say this person is ten or more years older than you or less than ten years older than you?	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER . 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER . 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER . 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER . 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER . 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER . 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3
637	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this person, did you or this person take alcohol or other intoxicating substances?	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2
637A	CHECK 637:	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 639)	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 639)	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 640)
638	Were you or your partner drunk at that time? IF YES: Who was drunk?	RESPONDENT ONLY 1 PARTNER ONLY 2 RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH . 3 NEITHER 4	RESPONDENT ONLY 1 PARTNER ONLY 2 RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH . 3 NEITHER 4	RESPONDENT ONLY 1 PARTNER ONLY 2 RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH . 3 NEITHER 4
639	Apart from [this person/these two people], have you had sexual intercourse with any other person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 (GO BACK TO 628 - IN NEXT COLUMN) NO 2 (SKIP TO 641)	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
640	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in the last 12 months?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS LAST 12 MONTHS	
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.		
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'	DON'T KNOW	
641	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in your lifetime?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS	
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.		
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'	DON'T KNOW	
641A	CHECK 301 (07): HAS HEARD OF MALE CONDOM	HAS NOT HEARD OF MALE CONDOM	→ 645
642	Do you know of a place where a person can get male condoms?	YES 1 NO	→ 645
643	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR	
	(NAME OF PLACE(S)	PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC G PHARMACY H PRIVATE DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) M MISSION N HOSPITAL M CLINIC N OTHER MISSION O (SPECIFY) O MGO FLAS OTHER NGO Q (SPECIFY) Q	
		OTHER SOURCE SHOP R CHURCH S FRIENDS/RELATIVES T OTHER X (SPECIFY)	
644	If you wanted to, could you yourself get a male condom?	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
645	CHECK 301 (08): HAS HEARD OF FEMALE CONDOM	рг П	 701
645A	Do you know of a place where a person can get female condoms?	YES	→ 701
646	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE(S))	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F PRIVATE SECTOR	
		OTHERX	
647	If you wanted to, could you yourself get a female condom?	YES 1 NO	

SECTION 7. FERTILITY PREFERENCES

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
701	CHECK 311/311A: NEITHER HE OR SHE STERILIZED STERILIZED		→ 713
702	CHECK 226: NOT PREGNANT OR UNSURE Now I have some questions about the future. Would you like to have (a/another) child, or would you prefer not to have any (more) children? PREGNANT Now I have some questions about the future. After the child you are expecting now, would you like to have another child, or would you prefer not to have any more children?	HAVE (A/ANOTHER) CHILD 1 NO MORE/NONE	
703	CHECK 226: NOT PREGNANT OR UNSURE How long would you like to wait from now before the birth of (a/another) child? PREGNANT After the birth of the child you are expecting now, how long would you like to wait before the birth of another child?	MONTHS 1 YEARS 2 SOON/NOW 993 SAYS SHE CAN'T GET PREGNANT 994 AFTER MARRIAGE 995 OTHER 996 (SPECIFY) 998	→ 708 → 713 → 708
704	CHECK 226: NOT PREGNANT PREGNANT OR UNSURE		→ 709
705	CHECK 310: USING A CONTRACEPTIVE METHOD?		→ 713
706	CHECK 703: NOT 24 OR MORE MONTHS ASKED OR 02 OR MORE YEARS	DR 00-01 YEAR	→ 709

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
707	CHECK 702:	NOT MARRIED A	
	WANTS TO HAVE WANTS NO MORE/ ANOTHER CHILD NOL You have said that you do not want (a/another) child soon, but ou are not using any method sooid pregnancy. You have said that you do not want any (more) children, but ou are not using any method sooid pregnancy. Can you tell me why you are not using a method? Can you tell me why you are not using a method? Any other reason? Any other reason? RECORD ALL REASONS MENTIONED.	FERTILITY-RELATED REASONS NOT HAVING SEX HIV POSITIVE B OTHER REASONS C INFREQUENT SEX D MENOPAUSAL/HYSTERECTOMY E SUBFECUND/INFECUND F POSTPARTUM AMENORRHEIC G BREASTFEEDING H FATALISTIC I OPPOSITION TO USE RESPONDENT OPPOSED J HUSBAND/PARTNER OPPOSED L RELIGIOUS PROHIBITION M LACK OF KNOWLEDGE KNOWS NO METHOD N KNOWS NO SOURCE O METHOD-RELATED REASONS HEALTH CONCERNS P FEAR OF SIDE EFFECTS Q LACK OF ACCESS/TOO FAR R COSTS TOO MUCH S INCONVENIENT TO USE T INTERFERES WITH BODY'S NORMAL PROCESSES NORMAL PROCESSES U OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW	
708	CHECK 310: USING A CONTRACEPTIVE METHOD?		→ 713
709	Do you think you will use a contraceptive method to delay or avoid pregnancy at any time in the future?	YES	→ 711
710	Which contraceptive method would you prefer to use?	FEMALE STERILIZATION 01 MALE STERILIZATION 02 PILL 03 IUD 04 INJECTABLES 05 IMPLANTS 06 CONDOM 07 FEMALE CONDOM 08 DIAPHRAGM 09 FOAM/JELLY 10 LACTATIONAL AMEN. METHOD 11 RHYTHM METHOD 12 WITHDRAWAL 13 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) UNSURE 98	→ 713

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
711	What is the main reason that you think you will not use a contraceptive method at any time in the future?	NOT MARRIED	7
	CIRCLE ONLY ONE CODE.	SUBFECUND/INFECUND24WANTS AS MANY CHILDREN AS POSSIBLE26OPPOSITION TO USE RESPONDENT OPPOSED31HUSBAND/PARTNER OPPOSED32OTHERS OPPOSED33RELIGIOUS PROHIBITION34	
		LACK OF KNOWLEDGE KNOWS NO METHOD	→ 713
		METHOD-RELATED REASONSHEALTH CONCERNS51FEAR OF SIDE EFFECTS52LACK OF ACCESS/TOO FAR53COSTS TOO MUCH54INCONVENIENT TO USE55INTERFERES WITH BODY'S56	
		OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW	
712	Would you ever use a contraceptive method if you were married?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
713	CHECK 216: HAS LIVING CHILDREN If you could go back to the time you did not have any children and could choose exactly the number of children to have in your whole life, how many would that be?	NONE	→ 715
	your whole life, how many would that be? PROBE FOR A NUMERIC RESPONSE.	OTHER 96 (SPECIFY)	→ 715
714	How many of these children would you like to be boys, how many would you like to be girls and for how many would the sex not matter?	BOYS GIRLS EITHER NUMBER	
715	In the last six months have you heard or seen about family planning: On the radio? On the television? In a newspaper or magazine?	YES NO RADIO 1 2 TELEVISION 1 2 NEWSPAPER OR MAGAZINE 1 2	
716	In the last six months have you heard or seen any writing about family planning in: Billboards? Posters? Pamphlets? T-shirts? Other?	YES NO BILLBOARDS 1 2 POSTERS 1 2 PAMPHLETS 1 2 T-SHIRTS 1 2 OTHER 1 2	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
716A	In the last six months, have you discussed the practice of family planning with your friends, neighbors, or relatives?	YES 1 NO 2	717
716B	With whom? Anyone else? RECORD ALL PERSONS MENTIONED.	HUSBAND/PARTNER A MOTHER B FATHER C SISTER(S) D BROTHER(S) E DAUGHTER(S) F SON(S) G MOTHER(S)-IN-LAW H FRIENDS/NEIGHBOURS I OTHER	
717	CHECK 601, 601B, 604: YES, CURRENTLY MARRIED VES, LIVING WITH A MAN VINION		→ 801
718	CHECK 311/311A: NEITHER CODE CODE B, G, OR M B, G, NOR M CIRCLED, CIRCLED BUT SOME OTHER CODE(S) NO CODE CIRCLED CIRCLED		→ 720 → 722
719	Does your husband/partner know that you are using a method of family planning?	YES	→ ₇₂₁
720	Would you say that using contraception is mainly your decision, mainly your husband's/partner's decision, or did you both decide together?	MAINLY RESPONDENT 1 MAINLY HUSBAND/PARTNER 2 JOINT DECISION 3 OTHER6 (SPECIFY)	
721	CHECK 311/311A: NEITHER HE OR SHE STERILIZED STERILIZED		→ 801
722	Do you think your husband/partner wants the same number of children that you want, or does he want more or fewer than you want?	SAME NUMBER1MORE CHILDREN2FEWER CHILDREN3DON'T KNOW8	

SECTION 8. HUSBAND'S BACKGROUND AND WOMAN'S WORK

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
801	CHECK 601 AND 602: CURRENTLY FORMERLY MARRIED/ LIVING WITH LIVED WITH A MAN A MAN	NEVER MARRIED AND NEVER	→ 803 → 807
802	How old was your husband/partner on his last birthday?	AGE IN COMPLETED YEARS	
803	Did your (last) husband/partner ever attend school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 806
804	What was the highest level of school he attended: primary, secondary, or higher?	LOWER PRIMARY1HIGHER PRIMARY2SECONDARY3HIGH SCHOOL4TERTIARY5	
805	What was the highest (grade/form/year) he completed at that level?	GRADE/FORM/YEAR 98	
806	CHECK 801: CURRENTLY MARRIED/ LIVING WITH A MAN What is your husband's/partner's occupation? That is, what kind of work does he mainly do? CURRENTLY MARRIED/ LIVED WITH A MAN What was your (last) husband's/ partner's occupation? That is, what kind of work did he mainly do?		
807	Aside from your own housework, have you done any work in the last seven days?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 811
808	As you know, some women take up jobs for which they are paid in cash or kind. Others sell things, have a small business or work on the family farm or in the family business. In the last seven days, have you done any of these things or any other work?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 811
809	Although you did not work in the last seven days, do you have any job or business from which you were absent for leave, illness, vacation, maternity leave or any other such reason?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 811
810	Have you done any work in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	
810A	What have you been doing for most of the time over the last 12 months?	GOING TO SCHOOL/ 1 STUDYING 1 LOOKING FOR WORK 2 RETIRED 3 UNABLE TO WORK, ILL/ 4 HOUSEWORK/CHILD CARE 5 OTHER (SPECIFY)	818

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
811	What is your occupation, that is, what kind of work do you mainly do?		
812	CHECK 811: WORKS IN DOES NOT WORK AGRICULTURE IN AGRICULTURE		→ 814
813	Do you work mainly on your own land or on family land, or do you work on land that you rent from someone else, or do you work on someone else's land?	OWN LAND 1 FAMILY LAND 2 RENTED LAND 3 SOMEONE ELSE'S LAND 4	
814	Do you do this work for a member of your family, for someone else, or are you self-employed?	FOR FAMILY MEMBER1FOR SOMEONE ELSE2SELF-EMPLOYED3	
815	Do you usually work at home or away from home?	HOME 1 AWAY 2	
816	Do you usually work throughout the year, or do you work seasonally, or only once in a while?	THROUGHOUT THE YEAR 1 SEASONALLY/PART OF THE YEAR 2 ONCE IN A WHILE 3	
817	Are you paid in cash or kind for this work or are you not paid at all?	CASH ONLY 1 CASH AND KIND 2 IN KIND ONLY 3 NOT PAID 4	
818	CHECK 601: CURRENTLY MARRIED/LIVING WITH A MAN		→ 824
819	CHECK 817: CODE 1 OR 2 CIRCLED OTHER OTHER		→ 822
820	Who decides how the money you earn will be used: mainly you, mainly your husband/partner, or you and your husband/partner jointly?	RESPONDENT1HUSBAND/PARTNER2RESPONDENT AND1HUSBAND/PARTNER JOINTLY3OTHER6	
821	Would you say that the money that you earn is more than what your husband/partner earns, less than what he earns, or about the same?	MORE THAN HIM 1 LESS THAN HIM 2 ABOUT THE SAME 3 HUSBAND/PARTNER DOESN'T 3 BRING IN ANY MONEY 4 DON'T KNOW 8	→ 823
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
-----	---	--	------
822	Who decides how your husband's/partner's earnings will be used: mainly you, mainly your husband/partner, or you and your husband/partner jointly?	RESPONDENT 1 HUSBAND/PARTNER 2 RESPONDENT AND 1 HUSBAND/PARTNER JOINTLY 3 HUSBAND/PARTNER DOESN'T 3 BRING IN ANY MONEY 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	
		RESPONDENT = 1 HUSBAND/PARTNER = 2 RESPONDENT & HUSBAND/PARTNER JOINTLY = 3 SOMEONE ELSE = 4 OTHER = 6	
823	Who usually makes decisions about health care for yourself: mainly you, mainly your husband/partner, you and your husband/partner jointly, or someone else?	1 2 3 4 6	
	Who usually makes decisions about making major household purchases?	1 2 3 4 6	
	Who usually makes decisions about making purchases for daily household needs?	1 2 3 4 6	
	Who usually makes decisions about visits to your family or relatives?	1 2 3 4 6	
824	PRESENCE OF OTHERS AT THIS POINT (PRESENT AND LISTENING, PRESENT BUT NOT LISTENING, OR NOT PRESENT)	PRES./ PRES./ NOT LISTEN. NOT PRES. LISTEN.	
		CHILDREN < 10	
825	Sometimes a husband is annoyed or angered by things that his wife does. In your opinion, is a husband justified in hitting or beating his wife in the following situations:	YES NO DK	
	If she goes out without telling him?	GOES OUT 1 2 8	
	If she neglects the children?	NEGL. CHILDREN 1 2 8	
	If she argues with him?	ARGUES 1 2 8	
	If she refuses to have sex with him?	REFUSES SEX 1 2 8	
	If she burns the food?	BURNS FOOD 1 2 8	
	If she has sex with other men?	SEX WITH OTHER MEN 1 2 8	

SECTION 9. HIV/AIDS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
901	Now I would like to talk about something else. Have you ever heard of an illness called AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 942
902	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by having just one sex partner who is not infected and who has no other partners?	YES	
903	Can people get the AIDS virus from mosquito bites?	YES	
904	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by using a condom every time they have sex?	YES	
905	Can people get the AIDS virus by sharing food with a person who has AIDS?	YES	
906	Can people reduce their chance of getting the AIDS virus by abstaining from sexual intercourse?	YES	
907	Can people get the AIDS virus because of witchcraft or other supernatural means?	YES	
907A	Can people get the AIDS virus from having anal sex?	YES	
907B	Can people get the AIDS virus from having oral sex?	YES	
907C	Can people get the AIDS virus from open wounds or sores of an infected person?	YES	
908	Is there anything else a person can do to avoid or reduce the chances of getting the AIDS virus?	YES	□ → 910

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
909	What can a person do? Anything else?	ABSTAIN FROM SEX A USE CONDOMS	
	RECORD ALL WAYS MENTIONED.	HAVE MANT FARINERS F AVOID SEX WITH HOMOSEXUALS G AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO INJECT DRUGS INTRAVENOUSLY H AVOID BLOOD TRANSFUSIONS I AVOID BLOOD TRANSFUSIONS I AVOID SHARING RAZORS/BLADES K AVOID SHARING RAZORS/BLADES K AVOID MOSQUITO BITES M SEEK PROTECTION FROM TRADITIONAL HEALER N AVOID SHARING UTENSILS O AVOID DRINKING SAME CUP Q AVOID SHARING CIGARETTES R	
		OTHER W (SPECIFY) OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	
910	Is it possible for a healthy-looking person to have the AIDS virus?	YES	
911	Can the virus that causes AIDS be transmitted from a mother to her baby: During pregnancy? During delivery? By breastfeeding?	YES NO DK DURING PREG 1 2 8 DURING DELIVERY 1 2 8 BREASTFEEDING 1 2 8	
912	CHECK 911: AT LEAST ONE 'YES'		→ 914
913	Is there any special drug that a doctor or a nurse can give to a woman infected with the AIDS virus to reduce the risk of transmission to the baby?	YES	
914	Have you heard about special antiretorviral drugs (ARV) that people infected with the AIDS virus can get from a doctor or a nurse to help them live longer?	YES	
914A	CHECK FOR PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PRIM	VACY.	
915	CHECK 208 AND 215: NO BIF	RTHS	→ 924
	LAST BIRTH SINCE LAST BIRTH BEF JANUARY 2003 JANUARY	ORE	→ 924
916	CHECK 404 AND 407 FOR LAST BIRTH: HAD ANTENATAL CARE NAME:	NO ATAL	→ 924

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
917	During any of the antenatal visits for (NAME OF LAST BIRTH), did anyone talk to you about:	YES NO DK	_
	Babies getting the AIDS virus from their mother? Things that you can do to prevent getting the AIDS virus? Getting tested for the AIDS virus?	AIDS FROM MOTHER 128THINGS TO DO128TESTED FOR AIDS128	
918	Were you advised to have a test for the AIDS virus as part of your antenatal care?	YES 1 NO 2	
919	I don't want to know the results, but were you tested for the AIDS virus as part of your antenatal care?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 924
920	I don't want to know the results, but did you get the results of the test?	YES 1 NO 2	
921	Where did you go to take the test? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER, VCT CENTER, OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER 13 PHU/CLINIC 14 MOBILE CLINIC 15 OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY)	
	(NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR	
		26 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL	
		CLINIC	
		NGO FLAS 41 TASC 42 0THER NGO 46	
		(SPECIFY) OTHER96 (SPECIFY)	
922	Have you been tested for the AIDS virus since that time you were tested during your pregnancy?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 925
923	When was the last time you were tested for the AIDS virus?	LESS THAN 12 MONTHS AGO 1 12 - 23 MONTHS AGO 2 2 OR MORE YEARS AGO 3	931
924	I don't want to know the results, but have you ever been tested to see if you have the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 929
925	When was the last time you were tested?	LESS THAN 12 MONTHS AGO 1 12 - 23 MONTHS AGO 2 2 OR MORE YEARS AGO 3	
926	The last time you had the test, did you yourself ask for the test or were you advised to have the test, or was it required?	ASKED FOR THE TEST 1 ADVISED 2 REQUIRED 3	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
927	I don't want to know the results, but did you get the results of the test?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 928
927A	How long after the test did you get the result?	SAME DAY 1 WITHIN A WEEK 2 WITHIN A MONTH 3 MORE THAN ONE MONTH 4	
928	Where did you go to take the test? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTORGOVERNMENT HOSPITAL11GOVT. HEALTH CENTER12STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER13PHU/CLINIC14MOBILE CLINIC15OTHER PUBLIC16	
	WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	(SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR	
	(NAME OF PLACE)	OTHER PRIVATE 26 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL 31 CLINIC 32 OTHER 36 (SPECIFY) NGO FLAS 41 TASC 42 OTHER NGO 46 (SPECIFY) 46 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	9 31
929	Do you know of a place where people can go to get tested for the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 931
930	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER VCT CENTER, OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE(S))	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER C PHU/CLINIC D MOBILE CLINIC E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR G STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER H MOBILE CLINIC I OTHER PRIVATE J (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL K CLINIC L OTHER M MISSION M HOSPITAL K CLINIC L OTHER M MGO FLAS FLAS N TASC O OTHER NGO P	
		(SPECIFY) X	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
931	Would you buy fresh vegetables from a shopkeeper or vendor if you knew that this person had the AIDS virus?	YES	
932	If a member of your family got infected with the AIDS virus, would you want it to remain a secret or not?	YES, REMAIN A SECRET 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
933	If a member of your family became sick with the virus that causes AIDS, would you be willing to care for her or him in your own household?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
934	In your opinion, if a female teacher has the AIDS virus but is not sick, should she be allowed to continue teaching in the school?	SHOULD BE ALLOWED1SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED2DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS8	
935	Do you personally know someone who has been denied health services in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2 DK ANYONE WITH AIDS 8	→ 940
935A	Do you personally know someone who has been fired or sacked from work because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
936	Do you personally know someone who has been denied involvement in social events, religious services, or community events in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
937	Do you personally know someone who has been verbally abused or teased in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
938	CHECK 935, 936, AND 937: OTHER AT L ONE	EAST	→ 940
939	Do you personally know someone who is suspected to have the AIDS virus or who has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
940	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: People with the AIDS virus should be ashamed of themselves.	AGREE 1 DISAGREE 2 DON'T KNOW/NO OPINION 8	
941	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: People with the AIDS virus should be blamed for bringing the disease into the community.	AGREE 1 DISAGREE 2 DON'T KNOW/NO OPINION 8	
942	Husbands and wives do not always agree on everything. Please tell me if you think a wife is justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she knows he has a disease that can be transmitted through sexual contact?	YES	
943	When a wife knows her husband has a disease that can be transmitted through sexual contact, is she justified in asking that they use a condom when they have sex?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
944	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she is tired or not in the mood?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
945	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she is feeling unwell?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
946	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she has recently given birth?	YES	
947	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she knows her husband has sex with women other than his wives?	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
948	Should children age 12-14 be taught about using a condom to avoid AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
949	Should children age 12-14 be taught to wait until they get married to have sexual intercourse in order to avoid AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
950	Should condoms be available in secondary school?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
951	CHECK 601: CURRENTLY MARRIED/ LIVING WITH A PARTNER NOT IN UNION	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	→ 954
952	Can you say no to your husband/partner if you do not want to have sexual intercourse?	YES	
953	Could you ask your husband/partner to use a condom if you wanted him to?	YES	
954	Do you believe that young men should wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES	
955	Do you think that most young men you know wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
956	Do you believe that men who are not married and are having sex should only have sex with one partner?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
957	Do you think that most men you know who are not married and are having sex, have sex with only one partner?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
958	Do you believe that married men should only have sex with their wives?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
959	Do you think that most married men you know have sex only with their wives?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
960	Do you believe that young women should wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
961	Do you think that most young women you know wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
962	Do you believe that women who are not married and are having sex should only have sex with one partner?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
963	Do you think that most women you know who are not married and are having sex, have sex with only one partner?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
964	Do you believe that married women should only have sex with their husbands?	YES	
965	Do you think that most married women you know have sex only with their husbands?	YES	

SECTION 10. OTHER SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED INFECTIONS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
1001	CHECK 901: HEARD ABOUT AIDS Apart from AIDS, have you heard about other infections that can be transmitted through sexual contact? HEARD ABOUT ABOUT HEARD ABOUT AIDS Have you heard about infections that can be transmitted through sexual contact?	YES 1 NO 2	>1004
1002	If a man has a sexually transmitted disease, what signs or symptoms might he have? Any others? RECORD ALL SYMPTOMS MENTIONED.	ABDOMINAL PAIN A GENITAL DISCHARGE/DRIPPING B FOUL SMELLING DISCHARGE C BURNING PAIN ON URINATION D REDNESS/INFLAMMATION IN GENITAL AREA GENITAL AREA E SWELLING IN GENITAL AREA F GENITAL SORES/ULCERS G GENITAL WARTS H GENITAL ITCHING I BLOOD IN URINE J LOSS OF WEIGHT K IMPOTENCE L OTHER	
1003	If a woman has a sexually transmitted disease, what signs or symptoms might she have? Any others? RECORD ALL SYMPTOMS MENTIONED.	ABDOMINAL PAIN A GENITAL DISCHARGE B FOUL SMELLING DISCHARGE C BURNING PAIN ON URINATION D REDNESS/INFLAMMATION IN GENITAL AREA GENITAL AREA E SWELLING IN GENITAL AREA F GENITAL SORES/ULCERS G GENITAL WARTS H GENITAL ITCHING I BLOOD IN URINE J LOSS OF WEIGHT K HARD TO GET PREGNANT/HAVE A A CHILD L OTHER	
1004	CHECK 620: HAS HAD SEXUAL HAS NOT HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE INTERCOURSE		→1101

1005 CHECK 1001: HEARD ABOUT INFECTION TRANSMITTED THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT HAS NOT HEARD ABOUT INFECTION TRANSMITTED THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT 1005A CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PRIVACY. 1006 Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact? YES 1007 Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge? YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer? YES 1 1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY YES) HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW YES 1 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES 1 1	SKIP	CODING CATEGORIES	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	NO.
1005A CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PRIVACY. 1006 Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact? YES 1007 Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal discharge. During the last 12 months, have you had a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge? YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer? YES 1 1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW YES 1 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES 1	1007		CHECK 1001: HEARD ABOUT INFECTION TRANSMITTED THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT	1005
1006 Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact? YES 1 1007 Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal discharge. YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital discharge? YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. YES 1 1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION OR GANY YES') YES 1 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES 1		RIVACY.	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PF	1005A
1007 Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge. During the last 12 months, have you had a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge? YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer? YES 1 1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer? YES 1 1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW Image: CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES 1		YES	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact?	1006
1008 Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer? YES 100 1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW Image: Check 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES 1 NO		YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge. During the last 12 months, have you had a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge?	1007
1009 CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW 1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES		YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer?	1008
1010 The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment? YES	→1101		CHECK 1006, 1007, AND 1008: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES')	1009
	→1012	YES 1 NO 2	The last time you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment?	1010
1011 Where did you go? Any other place? GOVT. HOSPITAL A RECORD ALL SOURCES MENTIONED. B PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CENTER E CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). MOBILE CLINIC C WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. F GENTAL CLINIC (NAME OF PLACE(S)) (SPECIFY) PHARMACY F (NAME OF PLACE(S)) (SPECIFY) MISSION MOBILE CLINIC J (SPECIFY) MISSION GSPECIFY) MISSION N (SPECIFY) MISSION N GSPECIFY) MISSION NOTHER MISSION N T GOUTHER SOURCE SHOP C C SHOP C C C HEAL ER F C T T	1013	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) F PRIVATE SECTOR F PVT. HOSPITAL/ G CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT. DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J OTHER PRIVATE K (SPECIFY) K MOBILE CLINIC J OTHER PRIVATE K (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL L CLINIC M OTHER MISSION N IOTHER MISSION N IOTHER SOURCE SHOP SHOP Q TRADITIONAL HEALER	Where did you go? Any other place? RECORD ALL SOURCES MENTIONED. PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE(S))	1011

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
1012	What was the main reason for not seeking advice or treatment?	NOT NECESSARY	
		(SPECIFY)	
1013	When you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you inform the person(s) with whom you were having sex?	YES 1 NO 2 SOME/ NOT ALL 3 DID NOT HAVE A PARTNER 4	→ 1101
1014	When you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 1006/1007/1008), did you do anything to avoid infecting your sexual partner(s)?	YES 1 NO 2 PARTNER(S) ALREADY INFECTED 8	<u> </u>
1015	What did you do to avoid infecting your partner(s)? Did you	YES NO	
	Use medicine?	USE MEDICINE 1 2	
	Stop having sex?	STOP SEX 1 2	
	Use a condom when having sex?	USE CONDOM 1 2	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
1101	Now I would like to ask you some other questions relating to health matters. Some women are circumcised, that is, they may have part of their genital cut. Are you circumcised?	YES 1 NO 2	
1102	Have you had an injection for any reason in the last 12 months? IF YES: How many injections have you had? IF NUMBER OF INJECTIONS IS GREATER THAN 90, OR DAILY FOR 3 MONTHS OR MORE, RECORD '90'. IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	NUMBER OF INJECTIONS	→ 1106
1103	Among these injections, how many were administered by a doctor, a nurse, a pharmacist, a dentist, or any other health worker? IF NUMBER OF INJECTIONS IS GREATER THAN 90, OR DAILY FOR 3 MONTHS OR MORE, RECORD '90'. IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	NUMBER OF INJECTIONS	→ 1106
1104	The last time you had an injection given to you by a health worker where did you go to get the injection? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY) (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR 21 DENTAL CLINIC/OFFICE 22 OFFICE OR HOME OF NURSE/ HEALTH WORKER HEALTH WORKER 23 MOBILE CLINIC 24 OTHER PRIVATE 26 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL 31 CLINIC 32 OTHER MISSION 36 (SPECIFY) 36 MGO 41 OTHER PLACE 41 OTHER PLACE 51 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	
1105	Did the person who gave you that injection take the syringe and needle from a new, unopened package?	YES	
1106	Do you currently smoke cigarettes?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 1108
1107	In the last 24 hours, how many cigarettes did you smoke?	CIGARETTES	

SECTION 11. OTHER HEALTH AND WELFARE ISSUES

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
1108	Do you currently smoke or use any other type of tobacco?	YES	→ 1110
1109	What (other) type of tobacco do you currently smoke or use? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	PIPEA CHEWING TOBACCO B SNUFF	
1110	Do you drink clochol?		
1110		NO 2	1112
1111	How often do you drink alcohol?	LESS THAN ONCE A MONTH 1 ONCE A MONTH 2 ONCE A WEEK 3 2-3 TIMES PER WEEK 4 EVERYDAY 5 OTHER 6	
		(SPECIFY)	
1112	Have you ever heard of an illness called tuberculosis or TB?	YES	→ 1116
1113	How does tuberculosis spread from one person to another? PROBE: Any other ways? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	THROUGH THE AIR WHEN COUGHING OR SNEEZING A THROUGH SHARING UTENSIL§ B THROUGH TOUCHING A PERSON WITH TB WITH TB C THROUGH FOOD D THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT E THROUGH MOSQUITO BITE§ F	
		OTHERX (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	
1114	Can tuberculosis be cured?	YES	
1115	If a member of your family got tuberculosis, would you want it to remain a secret or not?	YES, REMAIN A SECRET	
1116	Now I would like to ask you some questions about medical care for you yourself.		
	Many different factors can prevent women from getting medical advice or treatment for themselves. When you are sick and want to get medical advice or treatment, is each of the following a big problem or not?	BIG NOT A BIG PROB- PROB- LEM LEM	
	Getting permission to go?	PERMISSION TO GO 1 2	
	Getting money needed for treatment?	GETTING MONEY 1 2	
	The distance to the health facility?	DISTANCE 1 2	
	Having to take transport?	TAKING TRANSPORT 1 2	
	Not wanting to go alone?	GO ALONE 1 2	
	Concern that there may not be a female health provider?	NO FEMALE PROV 1 2	
	Concern that there may not be any health provider?	NO PROVIDER 1 2	
	Concern that there may be no drugs available?	NO DRUGS 1 2	
		.	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
1117	Did you use any soap for any purpose yesterday or today?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 1119
1118	For what purpose did you use the soap? Any other purpose? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	HANDWASHING BEFORE EATING A AFTER EATING B AFTER USING TOILET C AFTER USING TOILET C AFTER CLEANING CHILD'S BOTTOM BOTTOM D BEFORE PREPARING FOOD E BEFORE FEEDING CHILD F OTHER G (SPECIFY) WASHING CHILD'S HANDS WASHING CHILD'S BODY J WASHING CLOTHES/ JISHES DISHES K OTHER X	
1119	Are you covered by any medical aid?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 1121
1120	What type of medical aid? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	EMPLOYER A SELF B EMPLOYER AND SELF C OTHER X (SPECIFY)	
1121	Are you the primary care giver for any children?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 1201
1122	Are any of these children for whom you are the primary caregiver under the age of 18?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 1201
1123	Now I would like to ask you about the child(ren) who (is/are) under the age of 18 and for whom you are the primary caregiver. Have you made arrangements for someone to care for (this child/these children) in the event that you fall sick or are unable to care for (him/her/them)?	YES 1 NO 2 UNSURE	
1124	Are you comfortable talking to the children in your care about sex and HIV/AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 CHILDREN NOT OLD ENOUGH 3 DK/UNSURE/DEPENDS 4	

	SECTION 12. MATERNAL MORTALITY								
NO.	QL	JESTIONS AND FII	LTERS			CODING CA	TEGORIES		SKIP
1201	Now I would like to a brothers and sisters, natural mother, inclu- living elsewhere and	sk you some questi that is, all of the ch ding those who are those who have di	ions about your hildren born to your hilving with you, the ed.	ose	NUM NAT	IBER OF BIRTHS URAL MOTHER	то		
	How many children d	lid your mother give	e birth to, including	you?					
1202	CHECK 1201: TWO OR MO] (Rł	ONLY ON ESPONDEN	NE BIRT	тн .Y)			→ ###
1203	How many of these you were born? DRAW AN ARROV OLDER SIBLING. EXCLUDE THE RI	Dirths did your mo WAFTER THE RES ESPONDENT FRO	other have before SPONDENT'S NEX M 1204.	¢Τ	NUM PRE	IBER OF CEDING BIRTHS			
1204	What was the name given to your oldest (next oldest) brother or sister?	(1)	(2)	(3)		(4)	(5)		(6)
1205	Is (NAME) male or female?	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE FEMALI	1 E 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	M, FE	ALE 1 EMALE 2
1206	ls (NAME) still alive?	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 DK 8 GO TO (2)	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 ↓ DK 8 GO TO (3) ↓	YES NO GO TO 12 [/] DK GO TO	. 1 . 2 08 ↓ . 8 (4) ↓	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 ↓ DK 8 GO TO (5) ↓	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 ↓ DK 8 GO TO (6) ↓	YE N(GO 1 Dł G ⁽	ES 1 ⊃ 2 ro 1208 ↓ K 8 O TO (7) ↓
1207	How old is (NAME)?	GO TO (2)	GO TO (3)	GOT	O (4)	GO TO (5)	GO TO (6)		GO TO (7)
1208	How many years ago did (NAME) die?								
1209	How old was (NAME) when he/she died?	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (2)	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (3)	IF MALE DIED BEI 12 YEAF AGE GO	E OR FORE S OF TO (4)	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (5)	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (6)	IF DIE 12 AGI	MALE OR D BEFORE YEARS OF E GO TO (7)
1210	Was (NAME) pregnant when she died?	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 4 NO 2	YES GO TO 12 NO	. 1 13 ↓ . 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YE GO T N(ΞS 1 ΓΟ 1213 ↓ Ο 2
1211	Did (NAME) die during childbirth?	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213	YES GO TO 12 NO	. 1 13 ↓ . 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 4 NO 2	YE GO 1 N(ΞS 1 ΓΟ 1213 ↓ Ο 2
1212	Did (NAME) die within two months after the end of a pregnancy or childbirth?	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES NO	. 1 . 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YE N(ES 1 ⊃ 2
1213	How many live born children did (NAME) give birth to during her lifetime (before this pregnancy)?								

IF NO MORE BROTHERS OR SISTERS, GO TO 1214.

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS				CODING CATEGORIES SKIP			SKIP
1204	What was the name given to your oldest (next oldest) brother or sister?	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)		(12)
1205	Is (NAME) male or female?	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MALE FEMALE	1 MALE 1 2 FEMALE 2	MALE 1 FEMALE 2	MAL FEM	E 1 ALE 2
1206	Is (NAME) still alive?	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 J DK 8 GO TO (8) J	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 J DK 8 GO TO (9) J	YES NO GO TO 1208 DK GO TO (10	1 YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 1208 → B DK 8 GO TO (11) →	YES 1 NO 2 GO TO 908 ↓ DK 8 GO TO (12) ↓	YES NO GO TO DK GO	1 2 1208 ↓ 8 TO (13) ↓
1207	How old is (NAME)?	GO TO (8)	GO TO (9)	GO TO (²	10) GO TO (11)	GO TO (12)	GC) TO (13)
1208	How many years ago did (NAME) die?							
1209	How old was (NAME) when he/she died?	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (8)	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (9)	IF MALE O DIED BEFO 12 YEARS (AGE GO TO	R IF MALE OR RE DIED BEFORE DF 12 YEARS OF (10) AGE GO TO (11)	IF MALE OR DIED BEFORE 12 YEARS OF AGE GO TO (12)	IF M. DIED 12 YE AGE G	ALE OR BEFORE ARS OF O TO (13)
1210	Was (NAME) pregnant when she died?	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 NO 2	YES GO TO 1213 NO	1 YES 1 GO TO 1213 2 NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 NO 2	YES GO TO NO	···· 1 1213 ···· 2
1211	Did (NAME) die during childbirth?	YES 1 GO TO 1213 ↓ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 NO 2	YES GO TO 1213 NO	¹ ^{YES} ¹ GO TO 1213 ¹ NO 2	YES 1 GO TO 1213 NO 2	YES GO TO NO	···· 1 1213 4 ··· 2
1212	Did (NAME) die within two months after the end of a pregnancy or childbirth?	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES NO	1 YES 1 2 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES NO	1 2
1213	How many live born children did (NAME) give birth to during her lifetime (before this pregnancy)?							
IF NO M	IF NO MORE BROTHERS OR SISTERS, GO TO 1214.							
1214	CHECK QS. 1210, 1211 AND 1212 FOR ALL SISTERS ANY YES ALL NO OR BLANK Just to make sure I have this right, you told me that your sister(s) (NAME) died when delivered). she was (pregnant/delivering/just delivered). Is that correct? IF CORRECT, END INTERVIEW. IF NOT, CORRECT QUESTIONNAIRE AND CONTINUE TO 1215.					→END		
1215	RECORD THE TIM	1E.			HOUR			

INSTRUCTIONS:	
ONLY ONE CODE SHOULD APPEAR IN ANY I	BOX.

 BIRTHS AND PREGNANCIES

 B
 BIRTHS

 P
 PREGNANCIES

 T
 TERMINATIONS

 O
 NON-EVENT

	12	DEC	01	
	11	NOV	02	
	10	OCT	02	
	10	001	03	
	09	SEP	04	
2	08	AUG	05	
0	07		06	
0	07	JUL	00	
0	06	JUN	07	
6	05	MAY	08	
U	04		00	
	04	APR	09	
	03	MAR	10	
	02	EED	11	
	02	FED		
	01	JAN	12	
	12	DEC	12	
	12	DEC	15	
	11	NOV	14	
	10	OCT	15	
	00	0ED	16	
-	09	SEF	10	
2	08	AUG	17	
0	07	.101	18	
õ	00	UUL	10	
0	06	JUN	19	
5	05	MAY	20	
	04	ADD	21	
	04	APK	21	
	03	MAR	22	
	02	FFR	23	
	02		20	<u> </u>
	01	JAN	24	
	10	DEC	25	r 1
	12	DEC	20	<u> </u>
	11	NOV	26	
	10	OCT	27	
		001	21	
	09	SEP	28	
2	08	AUG	29	
0	07		20	
0	07	JUL	30	
0	06	JUN	31	
Δ	05	ΜΔΥ	32	
4	00		52	
	04	APR	33	
	03	MAR	34	
	02		25	
	02	FED	35	
	01	JAN	36	
	40		07	
	12	DEC	37	
	12 11	DEC NOV	37 38	
	12 11 10	DEC NOV	37 38 39	
	12 11 10	DEC NOV OCT	37 38 39	
	12 11 10 09	DEC NOV OCT SEP	37 38 39 40	
2	12 11 10 09 08	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG	37 38 39 40 41	
2	12 11 10 09 08 07	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG	37 38 39 40 41 42	
2 0	12 11 10 09 08 07	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL	37 38 39 40 41 42	
2 0 0	12 11 10 09 08 07 06	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	
2 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	
2 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	
2 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV SEP	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEP	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 51	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53	
2 0 0 3	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 11 10 09 08 07	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 70 6	DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEP AUG JUL	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 52	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEG JUL JUN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05	DEC NOV SEP AUG JUL JUN MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV SEP AUG JUL MAY	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55 56	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT SEP AUG JUL JUNY APR AUG JUL JUNY APR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 55 57	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 05 04	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR MAR FEN DEC NOV SEP AUG JUL MAY APR SUD JUN MAY APR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 56 57	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 8 07 06 05 04 03 03	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCF AUG JUL JUN MAR APR MAR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 57 58	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 02	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUN MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SED AUG JUL JUN MAY APR FEB	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 56 57 58	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 04 03 02 01	DEC NOT SEP JUL JUN MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP JUL JUN MAR FEB JUL JUN MAR FEB SEC NOT SEP SED SEP SEC NOT	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 90	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOT SEUG JUL JUNY APR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEUG JUL JUN MAY APR FEB JAN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60	
2 0 3 2 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR MAR FEB JUL MAY APR APR BAUG JUL SEP AUG JUL SEP AUG JUL SEP AUG SEP ADA FEB SEP AUG SEP ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE SEP ADA SE ADA ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE ADA ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE ADA ADA SE ADA SE ADA SE ADA ADA SE ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA AD	$\begin{array}{c} 37\\ 38\\ 39\\ 40\\ 41\\ 42\\ 43\\ 44\\ 45\\ 46\\ 47\\ 48\\ 49\\ 50\\ 51\\ 52\\ 53\\ 54\\ 55\\ 56\\ 57\\ 58\\ 59\\ 60\\ \end{array}$	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 51 52 53 54 55 56 56 57 58 59 60	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAR FEN DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR MAR FEN JUN MAY APR FEN DEC OCT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR DEC DEC NOT SEP AUG DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR APR SEP AUG DEC NOT APR APR APR APR APR APR APR DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR APR DEC NOT DEC NOT DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAY APR APR APR APR DEC NOT DEC NOT SEP AUG DEC NOT DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC DEC	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 56 57 58 9 60 61	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 11	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OSEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOT DEC NOT	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 57 57 58 59 60 61 62	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 80 77 66 55 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 99 80 77 66 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 12 11 11 10	DEC NOCT SEP AUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP AUG JULN MAY APR MAR FEN JUN MAY APR MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP AUG JUN MAY APR DEC NOCT SEP AUG JUN MAY APR SAUG JUN MAR FAN SED SED SED SED SED SED SED SED SED SED	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 56 60 60 61 62 63	
2 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 55 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 9 90 8 07 06 50 4 03 02 01 12 11 10 9 90 8 07 10 90 90 8 07 10 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90	DEC NOT SEUG JUL MAR FEB JAD DEC NOT SEUG JUL MAR FEB JAD DEC NOT SED SED SED SEC NOT SED SED SED SEC SED SEC SED SEC SED SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC SEC	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 2 53 54 55 56 57 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 8 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 8 02 01	DEC NOCT SEP AUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP AUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP AUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP AUG SEP SEP AUG SEP AUG SEP AUG SEP SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 64 62	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 55 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 09 08 07 09 08 07 09 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 08 09 08 09 08 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL SEP AUG SEP AUG JUL MAY MAR FEB DEC NOT SEP AUG SEP AU	$\begin{array}{c} 37\\ 38\\ 39\\ 40\\ 41\\ 42\\ 43\\ 44\\ 45\\ 46\\ 47\\ 48\\ 50\\ 51\\ 52\\ 53\\ 54\\ 55\\ 56\\ 57\\ 58\\ 59\\ 60\\ \hline \\ 61\\ 62\\ 63\\ 64\\ 65\\ \end{array}$	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 11 10 09 8 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 8 07 06 05 07 06 07 06 07 04 07 08 07 06 07 08 08 07 08 08 07 08 09 08 07 08 09 08 09 08 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 08 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUAY APR FEB JAN DEC NOV OCT SEP GJUL DEC NOV OCT SEP GJUL DEC NOV OCT SEP GJUL	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 07 06 5 07 06 5 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCT SEUG JULN MARR FEB DEC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC NOCT SEUC SEUC JULN MARR FEA JULN FEA JULN MARR FEA JULN FEA JULN MARR FEA JULN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 66 66	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 07 06 05 07 06 05 04 07 07 06 05 07 06 05 07 07 06 05 07 07 06 00 07 07 06 00 07 07 06 00 07 07 07 06 00 07 07 07 07 07 06 00 07 07 07 07 07 07 00 00 00 07 07 00 00	DEC NOT SEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OSEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV OSEP AUG JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR MAR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY APR ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY ADR FEB JUL JUNY	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 66 66 67 7	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 05 00 10 05 00 05 00 05 00 05 05 00 04 05 05 04 07 05 06 05 05 04 05 05 00 05 05 04 05 05 00 00 05 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEA DEC NOCT SEP GUN MAR FEA DEC NOCT SEP GUN MAR FEA DEC NOCT SEP GUN MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN MAR FLAN GED GUN SEP GUN MAR FEA JULN MAR MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN MAR FEA JULN	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 66 67 68	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 90 8 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 90 8 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 90 8 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 04 05 04 03 02 01 04 05 04 04 03 02 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 04 04 05 05 04 04 05 05 04 04 05 05 04 04 05 05 04 00 05 05 04 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCT SAUG JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOV SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOCT P AUG JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN DEC NOCT P SAUG JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR MAR FEB JAN OCT P SEP G JULNY APR APR APR APR APR APR APR APR APR APR	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 66 67 68 99 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 05 04 05 04 05 04 05 04 05 06 05 04 06 05 04 07 06 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 07 06 05 04 00 05 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEP GULN MAY FEN DEC NOCT SEP GULN MAY REB JULN MAY REB JULN MAY REB JULN MAY REB JULN MAY REB SAUG SEP SAUG JULN MAY REB SAUG SEP SAUG SE	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 66 67 67 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 72 7	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 55 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 9 08 07 06 55 04 03 02 01 12 11 109 08 07 7 06 55 4 03 02 01 12 11 109 09 08 07 7 06 55 04 03 07 7 06 55 04 07 09 08 07 7 06 55 04 07 09 08 07 7 06 55 55 10 10 9 08 07 7 06 55 50 10 9 10 9 08 07 7 08 50 7 7 08 50 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEB JAD DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEB JAD DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEB JAD DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEB JAD SEP G MAR FEB JAD SEP G MAR FEB JAD SEP G MAR FEB JAD SEP G SEP G MAR FEB JAD SEP G SEP SE SEP G SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SE SEP SE SEP SE SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SE SEP SEP	$\begin{array}{c} 37\\ 38\\ 39\\ 40\\ 41\\ 42\\ 43\\ 44\\ 45\\ 46\\ 47\\ 48\\ 45\\ 50\\ 51\\ 52\\ 53\\ 54\\ 55\\ 56\\ 57\\ 57\\ 57\\ 58\\ 59\\ 60\\ \hline \\ 61\\ 62\\ 63\\ 66\\ 67\\ 68\\ 89\\ 70\\ \hline \end{array}$	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 09 08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 05 04 05 04 03 02 01 00 05 04 03 02 00 00 05 04 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCT SAUG JULN MAR FEN DEC NOCT SEUG JULN MAY APR FEB DEC SEUG JULN MAY APR FEB DEC SEUG JULN MAY APR FEB DEC SEUG JULN MAR FAN SEUG JULN MAR FEN SEUG JULN MAR FEN SEUG JULN MAR FEN SEUG SEUG JULN MAR FEN SEUG SEUG JULN MAR FEN SEUG SEUG SEUG SEUG SEUG SEUG SEUG SEUG	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 8 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 66 67 68 69 70 71	
2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2	12 11 10 99 08 07 06 5 5 4 03 02 01 12 11 10 9 08 07 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 09 08 07 7 06 5 04 03 02 01 12 11 10 9 09 08 07 06 5 04 01 09 08 07 06 5 04 07 06 5 04 07 08 07 06 5 04 07 08 07 06 5 04 04 07 09 08 07 06 5 04 04 07 09 08 07 06 5 04 04 07 09 08 07 06 5 04 04 07 09 08 07 06 5 04 04 09 08 07 07 08 09 08 00 07 09 08 00 09 09 08 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	DEC NOCTP AUG JULN MAPR MAR FEB DEC NOCTP AUG JULN MAPR MAR FEB DEC NOCTP AUG JULN MAPR MAR FEB JULN MAPR APR FEB JULN MAPR APR FEB JULN MAPR FEB MAPR FEB JULN MAPR FEB MAPR FEB MAPR FEB MAPR FEB MAPR FEB MAPR FE	37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 70 71 72 72	

INTERVIEWER'S OBSERVATIONS

TO BE FILLED IN AFTER COMPLETING INTERVIEW

COMMENTS ABOUT RESPONDENT:

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:

ANY OTHER COMMENTS:

SUPERVISOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF SUPERVISOR: _____ DATE: _____

EDITOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF EDITOR: ______ DATE: _____

2006 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY MEN'S QUESTIONNAIRE

IDENTIFICATION							
PLACE NAME							
NAME OF HOUSEHOLD	NAME OF HOUSEHOLD HEAD						
DHS CLUSTER NUMBER	२						
PSU CODE							
HOUSEHOLD NUMBER							
REGION (HHOHHO = 1,	MANZINI = 2, SHISELWE	NI = 3, LUBOMBO = 4)					
URBAN/RURAL (URBAN	l=1, RURAL=2)						
LARGE CITY/SMALL CIT (LARGE CITY=1, SMALL	TY/TOWN/COUNTRYSIDE . CITY=2, TOWN=3, COU	E NTRYSIDE=4)					
NAME AND LINE NUMBI	ER OF MAN						
	1	2	3	FINAL VISIT			
	·						
DATE				DAY			
				MONTH	_		
INTERVIEWER'S				YEAR 200	6		
NAME				INT. No:			
RESULT*				RESULT			
NEXT VISIT: DATE				TOTAL NUMBER OF VISITS			
*RESULT CODES: 1 COMPLETED 2 NOT AT HOME 5 PARTLY COMPLETED 3 POSTPONED 6 INCAPACITATED							
LANGUAGE OF QUESTI	ONNAIRE: 2	RESPONDENT	T'S LANGUAGE:				
LANGUAGE OF INTERVIEW: TRANSLATOR USED (NOT AT ALL=1; SOMETIMES=2; ALL THE TIME=3)							
LANGUAGE: 1 SISWATI	LANGUAGE: 1 SISWATI 2 ENGLISH 3 OTHER						
SUPERVI	ISOR	FIELD EDIT	OR	OFFICE KEYED E EDITOR	3Y		
NAME	[N.	AME	— []				
DATE	D.	ATE					

SECTION 1. RESPONDENT'S BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION AND CONSENT

INFORMED CONSENT

Hello. My name is ______ and I am working with the Central Statistical Office. We are conducting a national survey about the health of men, women and children. We would very much appreciate your participation in this survey. I would like to ask you some questions related to health. This information will help the government to plan health services. The survey usually takes about 30 minutes to complete. Whatever information you provide will be kept strictly confidential and will not be shown to other persons.

Participation in this survey is voluntary and you can choose not to answer any individual question or all of the questions. However, we hope that you will participate in this survey since your views are important.

Ť

At this time, do you want to ask me anything about the survey? May I begin the interview now?

Signature of interviewer:

Date:

RESPONDENT AGREES TO BE INTERVIEWED ... 1 RESPONDENT DOES NOT AGREE TO BE INTERVIEWED ... 2→ END

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
101	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR	
102	How long have you been living continuously in (NAME OF CURRENT PLACE OF RESIDENCE)? IF LESS THAN ONE YEAR, RECORD '00' YEARS.	YEARS 95 ALWAYS 96	→ 104
103	Just before you moved here, did you live in a city, in a town, or in the countryside?	CITY 1 TOWN 2 COUNTRYSIDE 3	
104	In the last 12 months, on how many separate occasions have you traveled away from your home community and slept away?	NUMBER OF TRIPS 00	→ 106
105	In the last 12 months, have you been away from your home community for more than 1 month at a time?	YES	
106	In what month and year were you born?	MONTH	
107	How old were you at your last birthday? COMPARE AND CORRECT 106 AND/OR 107 IF INCONSISTENT.	AGE IN COMPLETED YEARS	
108	Have you ever attended school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 112
109	What is the highest level of school you attended: primary, secondary, or higher?	LOWER PRIMARY 1 HIGHER PRIMARY 2 SECONDARY 3 HIGH SCHOOL 4 TERTIARY 5	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
110	What is the highest (grade/form/year) you completed at that level?	GRADE/FORM/YEAR	
111	CHECK 109: ANY PRIMARY CODE '1' OR '2' CIRCLED OR '1' CIRCLED		→115
112	Now I would like you to read this sentence to me. SHOW CARD TO RESPONDENT. IF RESPONDENT CANNOT READ WHOLE SENTENCE, PROBE: Can you read any other part of the sentence to me?	CANNOT READ AT ALL 1 ABLE TO READ ONLY PARTS OF 2 SENTENCE 2 ABLE TO READ WHOLE SENTENCE 3 NO CARD WITH REQUIRED 4 LANGUAGE 4 BLIND/VISUALLY IMPAIRED 5	
113	Have you ever participated in a literacy program or any other program that involves learning to read or write (not including primary school)?	YES 1 NO 2	
114	CHECK 112: CODE '2', '3' OR '4' CIRCLED		→ 116
115	Do you read a newspaper or magazine almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
116	Do you listen to the radio almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
117	Do you watch television almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY1AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK2LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK3NOT AT ALL4	
118	What is your religion?	TRADITIONAL 01 CHARISMATIC 02 PROTESTANT 03 ROMAN CATHOLIC 04 PENTECOSTAL 05 ZIONIST 06 APOSTOLIC SECT 07 ISLAM 08 NONE 09 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	

SECTION 2. REPRODUCTION

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
201	Now I would like to ask about any children you have had during your life. I am interested in all of the children that are biologically yours, even if they are not legally yours or do not have your last name. Have you ever fathered any children with any woman?	YES	⊒→ 206
202	Do you have any sons or daughters that you have fathered who are now living with you?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 204
203	How many sons live with you? And how many daughters live with you? IF NONE, RECORD '00'.	SONS AT HOME	
204	Do you have any sons or daughters you have fathered who are alive but do not live with you?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 206
205	How many sons are alive but do not live with you? And how many daughters are alive but do not live with you? IF NONE, RECORD '00'.	SONS ELSEWHERE	
206	Have you ever fathered a son or a daughter who was born alive but later died? IF NO, PROBE: Any baby who cried or showed signs of life bu did not survive?	YES]_ 208
207	How many boys have died? And how many girls have died? IF NONE, RECORD '00'.	BOYS DEAD	
208	SUM ANSWERS TO 203, 205, AND 207, AND ENTER TOTAL. IF NONE, RECORD '00'.	TOTAL CHILDREN	
209	CHECK 208: HAS HAD MORE THAN ONE CHILD ONE CHILD HAS NOT H ANY CHILD	IAD REN	→ 212 → 213
210	Did all of the children you have fathered have the same biological mother?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 212
211	In all, how many women have you fathered children with?	NUMBER OF WOMEN	
212	How old were you when your (first) child was born?	AGE IN YEARS	
213	 I will now read you some statements about pregnancy. Please tell me if you agree or disagree with them. a) Childbearing is a woman's concern and there is no need for the father to get involved. 	DIS- AGREE AGREE DK CHILDBEARING WOMAN'S CONCERN 1 2 8	
	b) It is crucial for the mother's and child's health that a woman have assistance from a doctor or nurse at delivery.	DOCTOR/NURSE'S ASSISTANCE CRUCIAL 1 2 8	

301	Now I would like to talk about family planning - the various ways a couple can use to delay or avoid a pregnancy	or methods that	302 Have you ever used (METHOD)?
	Which ways or methods have you heard about? FOR METHODS NOT MENTIONED SPONTANEOUSLY, ASK: Have you ever heard of (METHOD)?		
	CIRCLE CODE 1 IN 301 FOR EACH METHOD MENTIONED S THEN PROCEED DOWN COLUMN 301, READING THE NAME EACH METHOD NOT MENTIONED SPONTANEOUSLY. CIRC IS RECOGNIZED, AND CODE 2 IF NOT RECOGNIZED. THEN WITH CODE 1 CIRCLED IN 301, ASK 302.	PONTANEOUSLY. E AND DESCRIPTION OF ELE CODE 1 IF METHOD I, FOR EACH METHOD	
01	FEMALE STERILIZATION Women can have an operation to avoid having any more children.	YES 1 NO 27	
02	MALE STERILIZATION Men can have an operation to avoid having any more children.	YES 1 NO 27	Have you ever had an operation to avoid having any more children? YES 1 NO 2
03	PILL Women can take a pill every day to avoid becoming pregnant.	YES 1 NO 27	
04	IUD Women can have a loop or coil placed inside them by a doctor or a nurse.	YES 1 NO 27	
05	INJECTABLES Women can have an injection by a health provider that stops them from becoming pregnant for one or more months.	YES 1 NO 27	
06	IMPLANTS Women can have several small rods placed in their upper arm by a doctor or nurse which can prevent pregnancy for one or more years.	YES 1 NO 27	
07	CONDOM Men can put a rubber sheath on their penis before sexua intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
08	FEMALE CONDOM Women can place a sheath in their vagina before sexual intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	
09	DIAPHRAGM Women can put a thin flexible disk in their vagina before intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	
10	JELLY/FOAM Women can put a supesitory jelly or cream in their vagina before intercourse.	YES 1 NO 27	
11	LACTATIONAL AMENORRHEA METHOD (LAM) Up to six months after childbirth, a woman can use a method that requires that she breastfeeds frequently, day and night, and that her menstrual period has not returned.	YES 1 NO 2	
12	RHYTHM/BILLING/MUCUS METHOD Every month that a woman is sexually active she can avoid pregnancy by not having sexual inter- course on the days of the month she is most likely to get pregnant	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
13	WITHDRAWAL Men can be careful and pull out before climax.	YES 1 NO 27	YES 1 NO 2
14	EMERGENCY CONTRACEPTION Women can take pills up to five days after sexual intercourse to avoid becoming pregnant.	YES 1 NO 27	
15	Have you heard of any other ways or methods that women or mer can use to avoid pregnancy?	YES 1	
		(SPECIFY) (SPECIFY)	
		NO 2	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
303	CHECK 302 (02):		
			→ 305A
304	Are you currently doing something or using any method with any partner to delay or avoid a pregnancy?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 306
305	Which methods are you or your partner using to delay or avoid a pregnancy? Any other method (with any partner)? CIRCLE ALL MENTIONED.	FEMALE STERILIZATION A MALE STERILIZATION B PILL C IUD D INJECTABLES E	
305A	CIRCLE 'B' FOR MALE STERILIZATION.	IMPLANTS F CONDOM G FEMALE CONDOM H DIAPHRAGM I FOAMJJELLY J LACTATIONAL AMEN. METHOD K RHYTHM METHOD L WITHDRAWAL M OTHER X (SPECIFY) X	
306	In the last six months have you heard/seen about family planning	YES NO	
	On the radio? On the television? In a newspaper or magazine?	RADIO 1 2 TELEVISION 1 2 NEWSPAPER OR MAGAZINE 1 2	
307	In the last six months, have you discussed the practice of family planning with a health worker or health professional?	YES 1 NO 2	
308	Now I would like to ask you about a woman's risk of pregnancy From one menstrual period to the next, are there certain days when a woman is more likely to become pregnant if she has sexual relations?	YES]_ 310
309	Is this time just before her period begins, during her period, right after her period has ended, or halfway between two periods?	JUST BEFORE HER PERIODS BEGINS	
310	Do you think that a woman who is breastfeeding her baby car become pregnant?	YES	
311	I will now read you some statements about contraception. Please tell me if you agree or disagree with each one.	DIS- AGREE AGREE DK	
	 Contraception is women's business and a man should not have to worry about it. 	CONTRACEPTION WOMAN'S BUSINESS 1 2 8	
	b) Women who use contraception may become promiscuous.	WOMAN MAY BECOME PROMISCUOUS 1 2 8	

SECTION 4. MARRIAGE AND SEXUAL ACTIVITY

NO.	QUESTIONS AND	FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
401	Are you currently married or living married?	together with a woman as if	YES, CURRENTLY MARRIED YES, LIVING WITH A WOMAN NO, NOT IN UNION	$\begin{array}{c}1\\2\\3\end{array} \longrightarrow 404\end{array}$
402	Have you ever been married or liv married?	ed together with a woman as if	YES, FORMERLY MARRIED YES, LIVED WITH A WOMAN NO	1 2 3 → 413
403	What is your marital status now: a divorced, or separated?	re you widowed,	WIDOWED DIVORCED SEPARATED	1 2 3 → 410
404	Is your wife/partner living with you elsewhere?	now or is she staying	LIVING WITH HIM	1 2
405	Do you have more than one wife o woman with whom you are living a	or do you have more than one is if married?	YES NO DON'T KNOW	1 2 8 407
406	In total, how many wives do you h live with now as if married?	ave or other partners do you	TOTAL NUMBER OF WIVES AND LIVE-IN PARTNERS	 98
407	CHECK 405 ONE WIFE/ PARTNER Please tell me the name of your wife (the woman you are living with as if married). RECORD THE NAME(S) AND TH THE HOUSEHOLD QUESTIONN/ AND LIVE-IN PARTNER(S). IF A WOMAN IS NOT LISTED IN RECORD '00'. ASK 408 FOR EACH PERSON.	MORE THAN ONE WIFE/ PARTNER Please tell me the name of each of your current wives (and/or of each woman you are living with as if married). E LINE NUMBER(S) FROM AIRE FOR THE WIFE (WIVES) THE HOUSEHOLD,	408 Ho old was old was (NAME) on her last birthday AGE	~]]]]
409	CHECK 407: ONE WIFE/ PARTNER	MORE THAN ONE WIFE/ PARTNER		→ 411A
410	Have you been married or lived wi more than once?	th a woman only once or	ONLY ONCE	1 2↓411A
411 411A	In what month and year did you st (partner)? Now I would like to ask a question In what month and year did you st partner?	art living with your wife about your first wife/partner. art living with your first wife/	MONTH	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
412	How old were you when you first started living with her?	AGE	
413	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS.		
	BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PRIV	VACY.	
414	Now I need to ask you some questions about sexual activity in order to gain a better understanding of some family life issues.	NEVER HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE	
	How old were you when you had sexual intercourse for the very first time?	AGE IN YEARS	→ 416
		LIVING WITH (FIRST) WIFE/PARTNER	→ 416
415	Do you intend to wait until you get married to have sexual intercourse for the first time?	YES	↓ 445
416	CHECK 107: AGE AGE 15-24 AGE 25-49		→ 421
417	The <u>first</u> time you had sexual intercourse, was a male/female condom used?	YES, MALE CONDOM 1 YES, FEMALE CONDOM 2 NO 3	418
417A	What was the main reason you did not use a condom the first time you had sexual intercourse?	NOT AVAILABLE 1 NOT NECESSARY 2 NOT THOUGHT OF 3 PARTNER REFUSED 4 REDUCES PLEASURE 5 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	
418	How old was the person you first had sexual intercourse with?	AGE OF PARTNER	→ 421
419	Was this person older than you, younger than you, or about the same age as you?	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 ABOUT THE SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW/DON'T REMEMBER 8	421
420	Would you say this person was ten or more years older than you or less than ten years older than you?	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER	
421	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your recent sexua Let me assure you again that your answers are completely confident If we should come to any question that you don't want to answer, just question.	I activity. ial and will not be told to anyone. t let me know and we will go to the next	
421A	When was the last time you had sexual intercourse?	DAYS AGO 1	
	IF LESS THAN 12 MONTHS, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN DAYS, WEEKS OR MONTHS.	WEEKS AGO	
	IF 12 MONTHS (ONE YEAR) OR MORE, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN YEARS.	MONTHS AGO	
		YEARS AGO 4	→ 435

		LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	SECOND-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	THIRD-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER
422	When was the last time you had sexual intercourse with this person?		DAYS 1 WEEKS 2 MONTHS 3	DAYS 1 WEEKS 2 MONTHS 3
423	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this (second/ third) person, was a male condom or a female condom used?	YES, MALE CONDOM 1 (SKIP TO 424) ← YES, FEMALE CONDOM 2 NO 3	YES, MALE CONDOM 1 (SKIP TO 424) ← YES, FEMALE CONDOM 2 NO 3	YES, MALE CONDOM 1 (SKIP TO 424) ← YES, FEMALE CONDOM 2 NO
423A	What was the main reason you did not use a condom the last time you sexual intercourse?	NOT AVAILABLE 1 NOT NECESSARY 2 NOT THOUGHT OF 3 PARTNER REFUSED 4 REDUCES PLEASURE 5 OTHER6 (SPECIFY)6	NOT AVAILABLE 1 NOT NECESSARY 2 NOT THOUGHT OF 3 PARTNER REFUSED . 4 REDUCES PLEASURE . 5 OTHER6 (SPECIFY)6	NOT AVAILABLE 1 NOT NECESSARY 2 NOT THOUGHT OF 3 PARTNER REFUSED 4 REDUCES PLEASURE 5 OTHER
424	Did you use a condom every time you had sexual intercourse with this person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2	YES 1 NO 2
425	What was your relationship to this person with whom you had sexual intercourse? IF PARTNER Were you living together as if married? IF YES, CIRCLE '2' IF NO, CIRCLE '3'	WIFE	WIFE 1 (SKIP TO 431) 1 LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT 1 LIVING WITH RESPONDENT RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUAINTANCE ACQUAINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER SEX WORKER 5 OTHER 6	WIFE 1 (SKIP TO 431) ↓ ↓ LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT LIVING WITH RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUAINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER 5 OTHER6
426	For how long (have you had/did you have) a sexual relationship with this person? IF ONLY HAD SEXUAL RELATIONS WITH THIS PERSON ONCE, RECORD '01' DAYS.	DAYS . 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3	DAYS 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3	DAYS 1 MONTHS 2 YEARS 3
427	CHECK 107:	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 (SKIP TO 431)	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 (SKIP TO 431)	AGE AGE 15-24 25-49 (SKIP TO 431)
428	How old is this person?	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 431)	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 431)	AGE OF PARTNER (SKIP TO 431) DON'T KNOW 98
429	Is this person older than you, younger than you, or about the same age?	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 431)	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 431)	OLDER 1 YOUNGER 2 SAME AGE 3 DON'T KNOW 8 (SKIP TO 431)
430	Would you say this person is ten or more years older than you or less than ten years older than you?	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER . 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER . 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3	TEN OR MORE YEARS OLDER . 1 LESS THAN TEN YEARS OLDER . 2 OLDER, UNSURE HOW MUCH 3

		LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	SECOND-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER	THIRD-TO-LAST SEXUAL PARTNER
431	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this person, did you or this person drink alcohol or used any other intoxicating substance?	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2 (SKIP TO 433) ←	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2 (SKIP TO 433)	YES NO ALCOHOL 1 2 OTHER 1 2 (SKIP TO 433)
431A	CHECK 431:	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 433)	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 433)	ANY ALL YES NO (SKIP TO 434)
432	Were you or your partner drunk at that time? IF YES: Who was drunk?	RESPONDENT ONLY 1 PARTNER ONLY RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH NEITHER	RESPONDENT ONLY 1 PARTNER ONLY RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH NEITHER	RESPONDENT ONLY1PARTNER ONLYRESPONDENT ANDPARTNER BOTH3NEITHER4
433	Apart from [this person/these two people], have you had sexual intercourse with any other person in the last 12 months?	YES1 (GO BACK TO 422 ↓ IN NEXT COLUMN) NO2 (SKIP TO 434) ↓	YES 1 (GO BACK TO 422 ↓ IN NEXT COLUMN) NO 2 (SKIP TO 434) ↓	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
434	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in the last 12 months?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS LAST 12 MONTHS	
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	DON'T KNOW	
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'		
435	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in your lifetime?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS	
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	DON'T KNOW	
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'		
437	CHECK FOR PRESENCE OF OTHERS: DO NOT CONTINUE UNTIL EFFECTIVE PRIVACY IS ENSURE PRIVACY OBTAINED PRIVACY NOT POSSIBI Now I would like to ask you some questions about your recent sexu- are completely confidential and will not be told to anyone. If we show just let me know and we will go to the next question.	D. CY al activity. Let me assure you again that your answers uld come to any question that you don't want to answer	→445
440	CHECK 423, MOST RECENT PARTNER (FIRST COLUMN):		
	CONDOM NO CONDOM USED USE		→445
441	You told me that you used a condom the last time you had sex. Do you have the package of condoms you used that time?	PACKAGE SEEN	
	IF YES: May I see it?	BRAND NAME (SPECIFY)	→ 443
	RECORD NAME OF BRAND IF PACKAGE SEEN.	DOES NOT HAVE/NOT SEEN 2	
442	Do you know the brand name of the condom you used that time?	BRAND NAME	
	RECORD NAME OF BRAND.	DON'T KNOW	→ 443
442A	What is the main reason you chose this brand?	EFFECTIVENESS 1 AVAILABILITY 2 FREE 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	
443	How many condoms did you get the last time?	NUMBER OF CONDOMS 998	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
444	From where did you obtain the condom the last time? PROBE TO IDENTIFY TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTOR - GOVT. HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 RHM/CBD 15	
	WRITE THE NAME OF PLACE (NAME OF PLACE(S))	OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC 21 PHARMACY 22 PRIVATE DOCTOR 23 MOBILE CLINIC 24 CBD 25 OTHER PRIVATE 26 (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL 31 CLINIC 32 OTHER 36 (SPECIFY) 36 MISSION 41 OTHER NGO 46 (SPECIFY) 46 OTHER SOURCE 51 SHOP 51 CHURCH 52 FRIENDS/RELATIVES 53 OTHER 96	→ 448
444A	How do you usually dispose the used condoms?	PIT LATRINE 1 FLUSH IN TOILET 2 BURY 3 BURNT 4 THROWN AWAY 5	
		OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	
445	CHECK 301(7), KNOWS MALE CONDOM HAS HEARD OF MALE CONDOM HAS NEVER HEARD MALE CONDOM) OF	→ 501
445A	Do you know of a place where a person can get male condoms?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 447A

		I	Ì
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
446	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY TYPE(S) OF SOURCE(S) AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S).	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVT. HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC RHM/CBD	
	IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC G PHARMACY H PRIVATE DOCTOR H PRIVATE DOCTOR I	
	(NAME OF PLACE(S))	MIOBILE CELINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL M CLINIC N OTHER MISSION MISSION O MISSION O	
		FLAS P OTHER NGO Q (SPECIFY) Q OTHER SOURCE S SHOP R CHURCH S FRIENDS/RELATIVES T OTHER X (SPECIFY)	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
447	If you wanted to, could you yourself get a condom?	YES 1 NO 2	
447A	CHECK 301(8), KNOW FEMALE CONDOM		
	FEMALE CONDOM V FEMALE CONDOM		→ 501
448	Do you know of a place where a person can get female condoms?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 501
449	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY TYPE(S) OF SOURCE(S) AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC G	
	(NAME OF PLACE(S))	PRIVATE DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) M MISSION M CLINIC N OTHER MISSION O (SPECIFY) O MISSION O MOSPITAL M CLINIC N OTHER MISSION O (SPECIFY) NGO	
		FLAS P OTHER NGO Q (SPECIFY) Q OTHER SOURCE R SHOP R CHURCH S FRIENDS/RELATIVES T OTHER X	
450	If you wanted to, could you yourself get a female condom?	YES 1 NO 2	

SECTION 5. FERTILITY PREFERENCES

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
501	CHECK 407: ONE WIFE/ PARTNER ONE WIFE/ PARTNER ONE WIFE/ PARTNER		→ 506
502	CHECK 305: MAN NOT MAN STERILIZED STERILIZED		→ 506
503	(Is your wife (partner)/Are any of your wives (partners)) currently pregnant?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
504	CHECK 503: NO WIFE/PARTNER PREGNANT OR UNSURE Now I have some questions about the future. Would you like to have (a/another) child, or would you prefer not to have any (more) children? WIFE(WIVES)/ PREGNANT PREGNANT Now I have some questions about the future. Now I have some questions about the future. After the child(ren) you and your (wife (wives)/partner(s)) is/are expecting now, would you like to have another child, or would you prefer not to have any more children?	HAVE (A/ANOTHER) CHILD 1 NO MORE/NONE 2 MAN INFECUND 3 WIFE (WIVES)/PARTNER(S) 1 INFECUND/STERILIZED 4 UNDECIDED/DON'T KNOW 5	506
505	How long would you like to wait from now before the birth of (a/another) child?	MONTHS 1 YEARS 2 SOON/NOW 993 AFTER MARRIAGE 995 OTHER 996 (SPECIFY) 998	
506	CHECK 208 HAS LIVING CHILDREN NO LIVING CHILDREN NEVER HAD CHILDREN If you could go back to the time you did not have any children and could choose exactly the number of children to have in your whole life, how many would that be? PROBE FOR A NUMERIC RESPONSE.	NONE 00 NUMBER 00 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	→ 601 → 601
507	How many of these children would you like to be boys, how many would you like to be girls and for how many would the sex not matter?	NUMBER BOYS GIRLS EITHER NUMBER 96 OTHER96	

SECTION 6. MAN'S WORK

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
601	Are you currently working?	YES	→ 604
601A	Have you done any work in the last seven days?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 604
602	Although you did not work in the last seven days, do you have any job or business from which you were absent for leave, illness, vacation, or any other such reason?	YES	→ 604
603	Have you done any work in the last 12 months?	YES	→ 603B
603A	During the last 12 months, how many months did you work?	NUMBER OF MONTHS	▶ 604
603B	What have you been doing for most of the time over the last 12 months?	GOING TO SCHOOL/STUDYING 1 LOOKING FOR WORK 2 RETIRED 3 UNABLE TO WORK, ILL/ 4 HANDICAPPED 4 HOUSEWORK/CHILDCA 5 OTHER (SPECIFY)	→ 610
604	What is your occupation, that is, what kind of work do you mainly do?		
605	CHECK 604: WORKS IN AGRICULTURE	DRK JRE	→ 607
606	Do you work mainly on your own land or on family land, or do you work on land that you rent from someone else, or do you work on someone else's land?	OWN LAND1FAMILY LAND2RENTED LAND3SOMEONE ELSE'S LAND4	
607	Do you do this work for a member of your family, for someone else, or are you self-employed?	FOR FAMILY MEMBER1FOR SOMEONE ELSE2SELF-EMPLOYED3	
608	Do you usually work throughout the year, or do you work seasonally, or only once in a while?	THROUGHOUT THE YEAR1SEASONALLY/PART OF THE YEAR2ONCE IN A WHILE3	
609	Are you paid in cash or kind for this work or are you not paid at all?	CASH ONLY 1 CASH AND KIND 2 IN KIND ONLY 3 NOT PAID 4	
610			
	WIVES/PARTNERS		+613
611	CHECK 609: CODE 1 OR 2 OTH CIRCLED OTH		→ ⁶¹³

		I I	
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
612	Who decides how the money you earn will be used: mainly you, mainly your (wife (wives)/partner(s)), or you and your (wife (wives)/partner(s)) jointly?	RESPONDENT1WIFE/PARTNER2RESPONDENT AND WIFE/ PARTNER JOINTLY3SOMEONE ELSE4RESPONDENT AND SOMEONE ELSE JOINTLY5	
612A	On average, how much of your household's expenditures do your earnings pay for: almost none less than half, about half, more than half, or all?	ALMOST NONE1LESS THAN HALF2ABOUT HALF3MORE THAN HALF4ALL5NONE, HIS INCOME1IS ALL SAVED6	
613	Sometimes a husband is annoyed or angered by things that his wife does. In your opinion, is a husband justified justified in hitting or beating his wife in the following situations:	YES NO DK	
	If she goes out without telling him?	GOES OUT 1 2 8	
	If she neglects the children?	NEGL. CHILDREN 1 2 8	
	If she argues with him?	ARGUES 1 2 8	
	If she refuses to have sex with him?	REFUSES SEX 1 2 8	
	If she burns the food?	BURNS FOOD 1 2 8	
	If she has sex with other men?	SEX WITH OTHER MEN 1 2 8	

SECTION 7. HIV AND OTHER SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED INFECTIONS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
701	Now I would like to talk about something else. Have you ever heard of an illness called AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 735
702	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by having just one sex partner who is not infected and who has no other partners?	YES	
703	Can people get the AIDS virus from mosquito bites?	YES	
704	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by using a condom every time they have sex?	YES	
705	Can people get the AIDS virus by sharing food with a person who has AIDS?	YES	
706	Can people reduce their chance of getting the AIDS virus by abstaining from sexual intercourse?	YES	
707	Can people get the AIDS virus because of witchcraft or other supernatural means?	YES	
707A	Can people get the the AIDS virus from having anal sex?	YES	
707B	Can people get the AIDS virus from oral sex?	YES	
707C	Can people get the AIDS virus from open wounds or sores of an infected person?	YES	
708	Is there anything else a person can do to avoid or reduce the chances of getting the AIDS virus?	YES	→ ₇₁₀
709	What can a person do?	ABSTAIN FROM SEX A USE CONDOMS	
	Anything else?	PARTNERS D AVOID SEX WITH PROSTITUTES E AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO HAVE MANY PARTNERS F	
	RECORD ALL WAYS MENTIONED.	AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO INJECT DRUGS	
		AVOID SHARING TOILETS P AVOID DRINKING SAME CUP Q AVOID SHARING CIGARETTES R OTHER W (SPECIFY)	
		OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
710	Is it possible for a healthy-looking person to have the AIDS virus?	YES	
711	Can the virus that causes AIDS be transmitted from a mother to her baby:	YES NO DK	
	During pregnancy? During delivery? By breastfeeding?	DURING PREG. 1 2 8 DURING DELIVERY 1 2 8 BREASTFEEDING 1 2 8	
712	CHECK 711: AT LEAST OTH ONE 'YES'		→ 714
713	Are there any special medications that a doctor or a nurse can give to a woman infected with the AIDS virus to reduce the risk of transmission to the baby?	YES	
714	Have you heard about special anteretorviral drugs (ARV) that people infected with the AIDS virus can get from a doctor or a nurse?	YES	
714A	CHECK FOR PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAK	E EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PRIVACY	
715	I don't want to know the results, but have you ever been tested to see if you have the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 720
716	When was the last time you were tested?	LESS THAN 12 MONTHS AGO 1 12 - 23 MONTHS AGO 2 2 OR MORE YEARS AGO 3	
717	The last time you had the test, did you yourself ask for the test or were you advised to take the test, or was it required?	ASKED FOR THE TEST 1 ADVICED 2 REQUIRED 3	
718	I don't want to know the results, but did you get the results of the test?	YES 1 NO	
718A	How long did it take to get the results?	SAME DAY 1 WITHIN ONE WEEK 2 WITHIN ONE MONTH 3 MORE THAN A MONTH 4	
719	Where did you go to take the test? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 RHM/CBD 15 OTHER PUBLIC 16	
	WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	(SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR	722
		(SPECIFY) MISSION 31 CLINIC	
		FLAS 41 TASC 42 OTHER NGO 46	
720	Do you know of a place where people can go to get tested for the AIDS virus?	YES	→ 722
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
-----	--	---	-------
721	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY TYPE(S) OF SOURCE(S) AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B STAND-ALONE VCT CENTEF. C MOBILE CLINIC D OTHER PUBLIC E (SPECIFY) PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR PRIVATE DOCTOR F STAND-ALONE VCT CENTEF. G MOBILE CLINIC. H OTHER PRIVATE I (SPECIFY) MISSION HOSPITAL J CLINIC K OTHER (SPECIFY) NGO FLAS TASC N OTHER NGO O	
722	Would you buy fresh vegetables from a shopkeeper or vendor if you knew that this person had the AIDS virus?	OTHER (SPECIFY) X YES 1 2	
723	If a member of your family got infected with the AIDS virus, would you want it to remain a secret or not?	DON'T KNOW 8 YES, REMAIN A SECRET 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURF/DEPENDS 8	
724	If a member of your family became sick with the virus that causes AIDS, would you be willing to care for her or him in your own household?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
725	In your opinion, if a female teacher has the AIDS virus but is not sick, should she be allowed to continue teaching in the school?	SHOULD BE ALLOWED 1 SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
726	Do you personally know someone who has been denied health services in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2 DK ANYONE WITH AIDS 8	→ 731
727	Do you personally know someone who has been denied involvement in social events, religious services, or community events in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
28	Do you personally know someone who has been verbally abused or teased in the last 12 months because he or she is suspected to have the AIDS virus or has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
29	CHECK 726, 727, AND 728: OTHER	AT LEAST ONE "YES"	→ 731
/30	Do you personally know someone who is suspected to have the AIDS virus or who has the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	
'31	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: People with the AIDS virus should be ashamed of themselves.	AGREE 1 DISAGREE 2 DON'T KNOW/NO OPINION 8	
'32	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: People with the AIDS virus should be blamed for bringing the disease into the community.	AGREE 1 DISAGREE 2 DON'T KNOW/NO OPINION 8	
'33	Should children age 12-14 be taught about using a condom to avoid AIDS?	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
734	Should children age 12-14 be taught to wait until they get married to have sexual intercourse in order to avoid AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
735	CHECK 701: HEARD ABOUT AIDS Apart from AIDS, have you heard about other infections that can be transmitted through sexual contact?	YES 1 NO 2	
736	CHECK 421A: HAS HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE IN LAST 12 MONTHS (CODE 1,2,3) HAS NOT HAD INTERCO	D SEXUAL DURSE IN MONTHS (CODE 4)	→ 744
737	CHECK 735: HEARD ABOUT OTHER SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED INF YES	NO .	• 739
738	Now I would like to ask you some questions about you health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact?	YES	
739	Sometimes men experience an abnormal discharge from their penis. During the last 12 months, have you had an abnormal discharge from your penis?	YES	
740	Sometimes men have a sore or ulcer near their penis During the last 12 months, have you had a sore or ulcer near your penis?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
741	CHECK 738, 739, AND 740: HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW		→ 744
742	The last time you had (PROBLEM FROM 738/739/740), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 743
742A	What is the main reason for not seeking advice or treatment?	NOT NECESSARY 1 EXPENSIVE 2 RELIGIOUS PROHIBITION 3 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	743A

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
<u>NO.</u> 743	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS Where did you go? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY TYPE(S) OF SOURCE(S) AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	CODING CATEGORIES PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B PHU/CLINIC C MOBILE CLINIC D RHM/CBD E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY) F PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR F PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR F PRIVATE HOSPITAL/ G CLINIC G PHARMACY H PVT DOCTOR I MOBILE CLINIC J CBD K OTHER PRIVATE K OTHER PRIVATE L (SPECIFY) M MISSION N OTHER SPECIFY NGO SPECIFY NGO G FLAS P OTHER NGO Q OTHER SOURCE S SHOP R CHURCH S OTHER X	SKIP
743A	When you had (PROBLEM FROM 738/739/740), did you inform the person with whom you were having sex?	YES 1 NO 2 SOME/NOT ALL 3 DID NOT HAVE PARTNER 4	→ 744
743B	When you had (PROBLEM FROM 738/739/740), did you do something to avoid infecting your sexual partner(s)?	YES 1 NO 2 PARTNER ALREADY INFECTED 3	→ 744
743C	What did you do to avoid infecting your partner(s)? Did you Use medicine? Stop having sex? Use a condom when having sex?	YES NO USE MEDICINE 1 2 STOP SEX 1 2 USE CONDOM 1 2	
744	Husbands and wives do not always agree on everything. Please tell me if you think a wife is justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she knows he has a disease that can be transmitted through sexual contact?	YES	
745	When a wife knows her husband has a disease that can be transmitted through sexual contact, is she justified in asking that they use a condom when they have sex?	YES	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
746	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she is tired or not in the mood?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
747	Is a wife justified in refusing to have sex with her husband when she knows her husband has sex with other women?	YES	
748	Do you believe that young men should wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES	
749	Do you think that most young men you know wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO	
750	Do you believe that men who are not married and are having sex should only have sex with one partner?	YES	
751	Do you think that most men you know who are not married and are having sex, have sex with only one partner?	YES	
752	Do you believe that married men should only have sex with their wives?	YES 1 NO	
753	Do you think that most married men you know have sex only with their wives?	YES 1 NO	
754	Do you believe that young women should wait until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO	
755	Do you think that most young women you know wail until they are married to have sexual intercourse?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
756	Do you believe that women who are not married and are having sex should only have sex with one partner?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
757	Do you think that most women you know who are not married and are having sex, have sex with only one partner?	YES	
758	Do you believe that married women should only have sex with their husbands?	YES	
759	Do you think that most married women you know have sex only with their husbands?	YES	

SECTION 8. OTHER HEALTH AND WELFARE ISSUES

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
801	Some men are circumcised. Are you circumcised?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 805
802	At what age were you circumcised?	BELOW AGE 13 (INFANT/CHILD) 1 13-19 YEARS OLD 2 20 OR MORE YEARS 3	→ 808
803	Who performed the circumcision?	TRADITIONAL PRACTITIONER 1 HEALTH PROFESSIONAL 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
804	What is the main reason you were circumcised?	TRADITION/RELIGION 1 HEALTH/HYGIENE 2 SEXUAL SATISFACTION 3 EASE OF PUTTING ON CONDOM 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 6 DON'T KNOW 8	→ 808
805	Would you want to get circumcised?	YES	→ 807 → 808
806	What is the main reason you would want to get circumcised?	TRADITION/RELIGION 1 HEALTH/HYGIENE 2 SEXUAL SATISFACTION 3 EASE OF PUTTING ON CONDOM 4 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 8	808
807	What is the main reason you would not want to get circumcised?	TRADITION/RELIGION 01 HEALTH/HYGIENE 02 SEXUAL SATISFACTION 03 DIFFERENT 04 COST 05 PAIN 06 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 98	
808	Now I would like to ask you some other questions relating to health matters. Have you had an injection for any reason in the last 12 months? IF YES: How many injections have you had? IF NUMBER OF INJECTIONS IS GREATER THAN 90, OR DAILY FOR 3 MONTHS OR MORE, RECORD '90'. IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	NUMBER OF INJECTIONS NONE	
809	Among these injections, how many were administered by a doctor, a nurse, a pharmacist, a dentist, or any other health worker?	NUMBER OF INJECTIONS	
	IF NUMBER OF INJECTIONS IS GREATER THAN 90, OR DAILY FOR 3 MONTHS OR MORE, RECORD '90'. IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	NONE 00	→ 812

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
810	The last time you had an injection given to you by a health worker, where did you go to get the injection? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY)	
	WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR 21 DENTAL CLINIC/OFFICE 22 OFFICE OR HOME OF NURSE/ 23 MOBILE CLINIC 24 OTHER PRIVATE 26 (SPECIFY)	
		HOSPITAL 31 CLINIC 32 OTHER MISSION 36 (SPECIFY) 36 NGO 41 OTHER PLACE 41 AT HOME 51 OTHER 96 (SPECIFY) 96	
811	Did the person who gave you that injection take the syringe and needle from a new, unopened package?	YES	
812	Do you currently smoke cigarettes?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 814
813	In the last 24 hours, how many cigarettes did you smoke?	CIGARETTES	
814	Do you currently smoke or use any other type of tobacco?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 816
815	What (other) type of tobacco do you currently smoke or use? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	PIPE A CHEWING TOBACCO B SNUFF C OTHER X (SPECIFY)	
816	Have you ever heard of an illness called tuberculosis or TB?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 820
817	How does tuberculosis spread from one person to another? PROBE: Any other ways? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	THROUGH THE AIR WHEN COUGHING OR SNEEZING A THROUGH SHARING UTENSILS B THROUGH TOUCHING A PERSON WITH TB C THROUGH FOOD D THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT E THROUGH MOSQUITO BITES F OTHER X (SPECIFY) Z	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
818	Can tuberculosis be cured?	YES	
819	If a member of your family got tuberculosis, would you want it to remain a secret or not?	YES, REMAIN A SECRET 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW/NOT SURE/ 8	
820	Are you covered by any medical aid?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 822
821	What type of medical aid? RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	EMPLOYER A SELF B EMPLOYER AND SELF C OTHER X (SPECIFY)	
822	Are you the primary care giver for any children?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 826
823	Are any of these children for whom you are the primary caregiver under the age of 18?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 826
824	Now I would like to ask you about the child(ren) who (is/are) under the age of 18 and for whom you are the primary caregiver. Have you made arrangements for someone to care for these (this child/these children) in the event that you fall sick or are unable to care for (him/her/them)?	YES 1 NO 2 UNSURE 8	
825	Are you comfortable talking to the children in your care about sex and HIV/AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 CHILDREN NOT OLD ENOUG 3 DK/UNSURE/DEPENDS 4	
826	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR	

INTERVIEWER'S OBSERVATIONS

TO BE FILLED IN AFTER COMPLETING INTERVIEW

COMMENTS ABOUT RESPONDENT:

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:

ANY OTHER COMMENTS:

SUPERVISOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF SUPERVISOR: _____ DATE: _____

EDITOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF EDITOR: _____ DATE: _____

2006 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR PERSONS AGE 12-14

IDENTIFICATION	
PLACE NAME	
NAME OF HOUSEHOLD HEAD	
DHS CLUSTER NUMBER	
PSU CODE	
HOUSEHOLD NUMBER	
REGION (HHOHHO = 1, MANZINI = 2, SHISELWENI = 3, LUBOMBO = 4)	
URBAN/RURAL (URBAN=1, RURAL=2)	
LARGE CITY/SMALL CITY/TOWN/COUNTRYSIDE (LARGE CITY=1, SMALL CITY=2, TOWN=3, COUNTRYSIDE=4)	
NAME AND LINE NUMBER OF RESPONDENT	
RESPONDENT'S GENDER (GIRL = 1, BOY = 2)	

		INTERVIEW	ER VISITS			
	1	2	3	FI	NAL VISIT	
DATE				_ DAY MONTH		
INTERVIEWER'S NAME RESULT*				YEAR INT NUMBE	2 U U U	0
NEXT VISIT: DATE TIME				TOTAL NUN OF VISITS	1BER	
*RESULT CODES: 1 COMPLETED 4 PARENT REFUSED 7 INCAPACITATED 2 NOT AT HOME 5 RESPONDENT REFUSED 8 OTHER 3 POSTPONED 6 PARTLY COMPLETED (SPECIFY)			()	_		
LANGUAGE OF QUESTI	ONNAIRE: 2	RESPONDENT	'S LANGUAGE:		· 🗌	
LANGUAGE OF INTERV	IEW:	TRANSLATOR (NOT AT ALL=	USED 1; SOMETIMES=2; AL	L THE TIME=3)		
LANGUAGE: 1 SISWATI	2 ENG	ELISH	3 OTHER			
SUPERVI	SOR	FIELD EDIT	OR	OFFICE	KEYED BY	Y
NAME		NAME]

SECTION 1. RESPONDENT'S BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION AND CONSENT							
A. INFOR	A. INFORMED CONSENT FROM PARENT/GUARDIAN/OTHER ADULT						
RECORD LINE NUMBER FROM HOUSEHOLD QUESTIONNAIRE OF PARENT/ GUARDIAN/OTHER ADULT FROM WHOM CONSENT IS REQUESTED. Hello. My name is and I am working with the Central Statistical Office. We are conducting a national survey about health of the Swazi population. As part of the survey, I would like to ask (NAME) some questions that will help the government plan health programs for youth. The survey usually takes between 10 and 15 minutes to complete. Whatever information (NAME) will provide will be kept strictly confidential and will not be shown to other persons.							
Particip to parti	pation in this survey is voluntary and you can choose not to allow (NAM cipate in this survey since his (her) answers are important.	IE) to take part. However, we hope that you allow him (her)					
At this Do I ha	time, do you want to ask me anything about the survey? ive your consent to talk to (NAME) now?						
Signatu	ure of interviewer:	Date:					
PAREN AGREE TO BE	NT/GUARDIAN/OTHER ADULT ES TO ALLOW YOUTH INTERVIEWED PARENT/GUARDIAN/OTHI DOES NOT AGREE TO AL YOUTH TO BE INTERVIEW	ER ADULT LOW 2					
B. INFOR	MED CONSENT FROM YOUTH						
AFTER OBTAINING CONSENT FROM THE PARENT, GUARDIAN OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE ADULT, ASK THE YOUTH FOR HIS/HER CONSENT. Hello. My name is We are talking with many youths like you. We would very much like to have you be part of this study. I would like to ask you some questions that will help the government plan health programs for youth. The questions will take about 10 and 15 minutes of your time. I will not tell or show your answers to anyone, not even your pare You do not have to be in this study. You can choose not to answer some or all of the questions. We hope that you will say yes and be in this study because your answers are important. Do you want to ask me anything about the survey? Do you want to be in the study? Signature of interviewer:							
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES SKIP					
101	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR					
102	In what month and year were you born?	MONTH					
103	How old were you at your last birthday? COMPARE AND CORRECT 102 AND/OR 103 IF INCONSISTENT.	AGE IN COMPLETED YEARS					

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
104	CHECK 103: 15+ LESS THAI YEARS 12 YEAR	N AS	
	12-14 YEARS		
	COMPLETE ELIGIBLE WOMEN'S OR MEN'S QUESTIONNAIRE		
105	Are you currently attending school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 107
106	Have you ever attended school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 110
107	What is the highest level of school you attended?	LOWER PRIMARY1HIGHER PRIMARY2SECONDARY3HIGH SCHOOL4	
108	What is the highest (grade/standard/form) you completed at that level?	GRADE/STANDARD/FORM	
109	CHECK 107:		
			→ 115
	CIRCLED CODE '3' OR '4' OR 5 CIRCLE	D	
110	Now I would like you to read this sentence to me.	CANNOT READ AT ALL	
	SHOW CARD TO RESPONDENT.	SENTENCE	
	IF RESPONDENT CANNOT READ WHOLE SENTENCE, PROBE:	NO CARD WITH REQUIRED	
	Can you read any part of the sentence to me?	LANGUAGE4 (SPECIFY LANGUAGE)	
		BLIND/VISUALLY IMPAIRED 5	
111	Have you ever been in a program to learn how to read and write? Do not include what you were taught in school.	YES 1	
440		NU 2	
112	CHECK 110: CODE '2', '3' CODE '1' OR '5'		
			→ 114
113	v Do vou read a newspaper or magazine almost every day, at least	ALMOST EVERY DAY 1	
	once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK	
		NOT AT ALL	
114	Do you listen to the radio almost every day, at least once a week,		
	less than once a week of not at an?	LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK	
		NOTATALL 4	
115	Do you watch television almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week or not at all?	ALMOST EVERY DAY 1 AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK 2	
		LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK 3 NOT AT ALL 4	
116	What is your religion?	TRADITIONAL	
		CHARISMATIC	
	NAME OF CHURCH	ROMAN CATHOLIC04PENTECOSTAL05	
		ZIONIST	
		ISLAM	
		OTHER 96	
		(SPECIFY)	

SECTION 2. CARE AND PROTECTION

NO.	QUESTIONS AND F	ILTERS	CODING CATEGOR	RIES SKIP	
201	Now I am going to ask you some que Can you tell me the names of all of t	estions about who looks after you he persons who look after you whe	when you are at home. en you are at home?		
	RECORD THE NAMES OF THE PERSONS IN 202. CHECK THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE AND RECORD THE LINE NUMBER OF EACH CARETAKER WHO IS LISTED IN THE THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE. IF THE CARETAKER IS NOT INCLUDED IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE, RECORD '00'. USE ANOTHER QUESTIONNAIRE IF MORE THAN THREE CARETAKERS ARE MENTIONED.				
202	CHECK COLUMNS 1 AND 2 IN	NAME	NAME	NAME	
		LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	
203	CHECK 202	CODE OTHER '00' (SKIP TO 205)	CODE OTHER OTHER (SKIP TO 205)	CODE '00' (SKIP TO 205)	
204	How old is (NAME OF CARETAKER)?	AGE 98	AGE JON'T KNOW 98	AGE 98	
205	What is (NAME'S) relationship to you?	BIOLOGICAL MOTHER01 STEPMOTHER 02 BIOLOGICAL FATHER 03 STEPFATHER 04 GRANDMOTHER 05 GRANDFATHER 06 FEMALE SIBLING 07 MALE SIBLING 08 AUNT 09 UNCLE 10 OTHER FEMALE RELATIVE RELATIVE 12 FATHER'S GIRLFRIEND13 MOTHER'S BOYFIRIEND. 14 FEMALE NANNY/HIRED CAREGIVER CAREGIVER 15 MALE NANNY/HIRED CAREGIVER CAREGIVER 16 FEMALE FRIEND/NEIGHBOUR ACQUAINTANCE ACQUAINTANCE 17 MALE FRIEND/NEIGHBOUR ACQUAINTANCE ACQUAINTANCE 18 OTHER 96	BIOLOGICAL MOTHER 01 STEPMOTHER 02 BIOLOGICAL FATHER 03 STEPFATHER 04 GRANDMOTHER 05 GRANDFATHER 06 FEMALE SIBLING 07 MALE SIBLING 09 UNCLE	BIOLOGICAL MOTHER01 STEPMOTHER 02 BIOLOGICAL FATHER 03 STEPFATHER 04 GRANDMOTHER 05 GRANDFATHER 06 FEMALE SIBLING 07 MALE SIBLING 07 MALE SIBLING 08 AUNT 09 UNCLE 10 OTHER FEMALE 11 OTHER FEMALE 12 FATHER'S GRUFFRIEND. 13 MOTHER'S BOYFIRIEND. 14 FEMALE NANNY/HIRED CAREGIVER CAREGIVER 16 FEMALE FRIEND/NEIGHBOUR ACQUAINTANCE ACQUAINTANCE 17 MALE FRIEND/NEIGHBOUR ACQUAINTANCE ACQUAINTANCE 18 OTHER	
206	Now I am going to ask some question were at home over the past seven da CHECK 202: ONLY ONE CAREGIVER MENTIONED Was there any time during the week when you were at home and (NAME) was not there?	MORE THAN ONE CAREGIVER MENTIONED Was there any time when during the week when you were at home and none of the persons who usually look after you were there?	YES NO DON'T KNOW	$\begin{array}{c} \dots & 1 \\ \dots & 2 \\ \dots & 8 \end{array} \xrightarrow{1} 209$	
207	Was another adult always present in caregiver(s) was (were) away?	the home when your	YES NO DON'T KNOW	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
208	On how many days during the past seven days were you at home at least part of the day without adult supervision?	DAYS	
	IF EVERYDAY, RECORD '7'	DON'T KNOW	
209	In the past week have you been:	YES NO	
	Sent out of the home yard on an errand alone? Playing/visiting a friend out of the home yard without adult supervision?	SENT ON ERRAND ALONE 1 2 PLAYING/VISITING WITHOUT ADULT SUPERVISION 1 2	
210	When you go out, are you required to tell your caregiver where you are going always, most of the time, only sometimes, or hardly ever?	ALWAYS1MOST OF THE TIME2ONLY SOMETIMES3HARDLY EVER4	
211	Do you share the room where you sleep?	YES	→ 215
212	Who shares the room where you usually sleep?	NAME LINE NUMBER	
	CIRCLE 995. OTHERWISE RECORD THE NAME OF ALL THE INDIVIDUALS SHARING THE ROOM.		
		2	
		3	
		ALL HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS 995	
213	Do you share the bed (mat) where you sleep with any of these persons?	YES 1 NO 2	215
214	Who usually shares the bed (mat) with you?	NAME LINE NUMBER	
	BED (MAT) AS THE RESPONDENT, CIRCLE 998. OTHERWISE RECORD THE NAME OF ALL THE INDIVIDUALS WHO	1	
	USUALL'I SHAKING THE BED (MAT).	2	
		3	
		ALL PERSONS SHARING ROOM USE THE SAME BED (MAT) 998	
215	CHECK 105:		
	CURRENTLY NOT ATTENDING SCHOOL]	→ 301
216	Does your caregiver or another adult accompany you from home to school each day?	YES, CAREGIVER 1 YES, OTHER ADULT 2 NO 3	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
217	Does your caregiver or another adult accompany you from school to home each day?	YES, CAREGIVER 1 YES, OTHER ADULT 2 NO 3	
218	Do you walk to school or do you use transport to get there?	WALKS TO SCHOOL1PRIVATE TRANSPORT2PUBLIC TRANSPORT3	
		OTHER6 (SPECIFY)	
219	At your school is there:	YES NO	
	A teacher or other adult always present in the classroom?	ALWAYS IN CLASSROOOM 1 2	
	A teacher or other adult always watching when children are coming to or leaving school?	WATCHING CHILDREN COMING/LEAVING 1 2	
	A teacher or other adult monitoring the toilets?	MONITORING TOILETS 1 2	
	A teacher or other adult checking that no unauthorized person enters the school?	CHECKING FOR UNAUTHORIZED VISITORS 1 2	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
301	Now I would like to talk about something else. Do you know what it means to have sex?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 304
302	Has your parent (caregiver) ever talked to you about sex?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
303	Has your parent or caregiver ever talked to you about sexual abuse?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
304	Have you ever attended a life skills course	YES NO	
	at school?	SCHOOL 1 2	
	anywhere else?	ELSEWHERE 1 2 (SPECIFY)	
305	Do you agree or disagree with the following statements:	YES NO DK	
	It is acceptable for a boy to have many girlfriends	BOY MANY GIRLFRIENDS . 1 2 3	
	It is acceptable for a girl to have many boyfriends	GIRL MANY BOYFRIENDS . 1 2 3	
306	CHECK 301:		
	KNOWS DOES NOT KNOW MEANING OF SEX]	→ 308
307	Do you agree or disagree with the following statements:	YES NO DK	
	If a boy proposes love, a girl cannot refuse sex	WHEN BOY PROPOSES LOVE 1 2 3	
	If a boy gives a girl presents, she cannot refuse sex	WHEN BOY GIVES PRESENTS 1 2 3	
	Boys should decide when, where and how to have sex	BOY DECIDES ABOUT SE). 1 2 3	
308	Are you circumcised?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 401
309	At what age?	AGE IN YEARS	
		DON'T KNOW	

SECTION 3. KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES ABOUT SEX

SECTION 4. KNOWLEDGE OF AIDS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
401	Now I would like to talk about something else. Have you ever heard of an illness called AIDS?	YES	→ 404
401A	Is there anything else a person can do to avoid or reduce the chances of getting the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	→ 403
402	What can a person do? Anything else?	ABSTAIN FROM SEX A USE CONDOMS B LIMIT SEX TO ONE PARTNER/STAY FAITHFUL TO ONE PARTNER C LIMIT NUMBER OF SEXUAL PARTNERS D AVOID SEX WITH PROSTITUTES E AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO HAVE MANY PARTNERS F AVOID SEX WITH HOMOSEXUALS G	
	RECORD ALL WAYS MENTIONED.	AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO INJECT DRUGS INTRAVENOUSLY. H AVOID BLOOD TRANSFUSIONS J AVOID INJECTIONS J AVOID SHARING RAZORS/BLADES K AVOID KISSING L AVOID MOSQUITO BITES M SEEK PROTECTION FROM TRADITIONAL HEALER N AVOID SHARING UTENSILS O AVOID SHARING TOILETS P AVOID SHARING TOILETS P AVOID DRINKING SAME CUP Q AVOID SHARING CIGARETTES R	
		OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	
403	Is it possible for a healthy-looking person to have the AIDS virus?	YES	
404	Have you ever heard about MALE condoms?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE 8	
404A	Have you ever heard about FEMALE condoms?	YES	
404B	CHECK 401: HAS HEARD OF AIDS HAS NOT HEARD OF AIDS OF AIDS		420
404C	CHECK 404 AND 404A: AT LEAST ONE YES		→ 405A
405	Should children your age be taught about using a condom to avoid AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
405A	CHECK 301: KNOWS DOES NOT KNOW MEANING OF SEX OF SEX	1	407

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
406	Should children your age be taught in school about waiting until they get married before having sex in order to avoid AIDS?	YES	
407	Have you received HIV/AIDS information from:	YES NO	
	Television?	TELEVISION 1 2	
	Radio?	RADIO 1 2	
	Newspaper?	NEWSPAPER 1 2	
	Magazine?	MAGAZINE 1 2	
	Leaflets?	LEAFLETS 1 2	
	Posters?	POSTERS 1 2	
	Billboards?	BILLBOARDS 1 2	
408	Have you seen any of the following items in the last 12 months carrying HIV/AIDS information or messages:	YES NO	
	Stickers?	STICKERS 1 2	
	Clothing such as a T-shirt or cap?	CLOTHING 1 2	
	Red ribbon badge?	RED RIBBON BADGE 1 2	
	Sign on a bus or mini kombi?	SIGN ON BUS OR KOMBI 1 2	
	Painted wall mural?	PAINTED WALL MURAL 1 2	
	AIDS play?	AIDS PLAY 1 2	
409	Have you received HIV/AIDS information from any of the following places in the last 12 months:	YES NO	
	At school?	SCHOOL 1 2	
	At a Youth Club?	YOUTH CLUB 1 2	
	A community meeting?	COMMUNITY MEETING 1 2	
	A religious meeting?	RELIGIOUS MEETING 1 2	
	Health facility?	HEALTH FACILITY 1 2	
	Doctor's office?	DOCTOR'S OFFICE 1 2	
	Pharmacy or chemist?	PHARMACY/CHEMIST 1 2	
	AIDS organization?	AIDS ORGANIZATION 1 2	
	Local shop or spaza shop?	SHOP/SPAZA 1 2	
410	Thinking of HIV/AIDS information that you have received in the last 12 months, do you think:	YES NO DK	
	there is too much focus on condoms?	TOO MUCH ON CONDOMS 1 2 3	
	there is not enough information for your age group?	NOT ENOUGH INFO 1 2 3	
	some of the messages are offensive or upsetting?	OFFENSIVE/UPSETTING 1 2 3	
	the messages are confusing?	CONFUSING 1 2 3	
4104			
410A		_	
	MEANING OF SEX		→ 411
410B	Thinking of HIV/AIDS information that you have received in the last 12 months, do you think:	YES NO DK	
	there is too much focus on abstinence?	TOO MUCH ON ABSTINENCE 1 2 3	
	there is too much focus on sex?	TOO MUCH ON SEX 1 2 3	
	they encourage young people to have sex?	ENCOURAGES SEX 1 2 3	
	they teach young children that sex is okay as long as it is safe?	CHILDREN LEARN SEX IS OK 1 2 3	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
411	Are you aware of the existence of any telephone or help line that gives HIV/AIDS information?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 413
412	Which ones do you know of?	AIDS HELPLINE A TASC B	
	RECORD ALL MENTIONED.	OTHER X SPECIFY	
413	Has your parent/caregiver ever talked with you about HIV/AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	
414	Do other kids you mix with talk about HIV/AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	
415	Have you spoken to someone in the past month about HIV/AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 417
416	Who have you spoken with?	RELATIVE BROTHER/SISTER A PARENT B GRANDPARENT C OTHER RELATIVE D NONRELATIVE E BOYFRIEND/GIRLFRIEND F FIEND G TEACHER H DOCTOR/NURSE I COMMUNITY LEADER/ POLITICIAN PEER EDUCATOR L COMMUNITY HEALTH WORKEF. M TBA N TRADITIONAL HEALEI O OTHER X (SPECIFY) X	
417	Who would you like to talk to about HIV/AIDS?	RELATIVE BROTHER/SISTER A PARENT B GRANDPARENT C OTHER RELATIVE D NONRELATIVE D NONRELATIVE E BOYFRIEND/GIRLFRIEND F FRIEND G TEACHER H DOCTOR/NURSE I COMMUNITY LEADER/ POLITICIAN POLITICIAN J AIDS ORGANIZATION K PEER EDUCATOR L COMMUNITY HEALTH WORKEF. M TBA N TRADITIONAL HEALE! O OTHER X (SPECIFY) X	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
418	Do you know of a place where people can go to get tested for the AIDS virus?	YES	→ 420
419	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). IF UNABLE TO DETERMINE IF HOSPITAL, HEALTH CENTER VCT CENTER, OR CLINIC IS PUBLIC OR PRIVATE MEDICAL, WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE(S))	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER C MOBILE CLINIC D OTHER PUBLIC E (SPECIFY) PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC PRIVATE MEDICAL SECTOR F STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER G MOBILE CLINIC H OTHER PRIVATE I MEDICAL I (SPECIFY) I MISSION HOSPITAL MOBILE CLINIC K OTHER J (SPECIFY) NGO FLAS M TASC N OTHER NGO O (SPECIFY) OTHER NGO OTHER	
420	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR	

INTERVIEWER'S OBSERVATIONS

TO BE FILLED IN AFTER COMPLETING INTERVIEW

COMMENTS ABOUT RESPONDENT:

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:

ANY OTHER COMMENTS:

SUPERVISOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF THE SUPERVISOR: _____ DATE: _____

EDITOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF EDITOR: ______ DATE: _____

2006 SWAZILAND DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR PERSONS AGE 50+

		IDENTIFICATION			
PLACE NAME					
NAME OF HOUSEHOLD					
DHS CLUSTER NUMBER					
PSU CODE					
HOUSEHOLD NUMBER					
REGION (HHOHHO = 1, M	MANZINI = 2, SHISELWEI	NI = 3, LUBOMBO = 4)			
URBAN/RURAL (URBAN	= 1, RURAL = 2)				
LARGE CITY/SMALL CIT (LARGE CITY=1, SMALL	Y/TOWN/RURAL CITY=2, TOWN=3, RURA	L=4)			
NAME AND LINE NUMBE	R OF RESPONDENT				
RESPONDENT'S GENDE	R (WOMAN = 1, MAN = 2)			
		INTERVIEWER VISITS			
	1	2	3	FINAL VISIT	
DATE				DAY MONTH 2 0 0 6	
				YEAR	
RESULT*				RESULT	
NEXT VISIT: DATE				TOTAL NUMBER OF VISITS	
*RESULT CODES: 1 COMPLET 2 NOT AT H 3 POSTPON	red 4 Refus Iome 5 Partl Ned 6 Incap	GED Y COMPLETED ACITATED	7 OTHER	(SPECIFY)	
LANGUAGE OF QUESTIC	DNNAIRE: 2	RESPONDENT	'S LANGUAGE:	[]	
LANGUAGE OF INTERVI	LANGUAGE OF INTERVIEW: TRANSLATOR USED (NOT AT ALL=1; SOMETIMES=2; ALL THE TIME=3)				
LANGUAGE: 1 SISWATI 2 ENGLISH 3 OTHER					
SUPERVIS	SOR	FIELD EDITO	DR	OFFICE KEYED BY EDITOR	
NAME		AME	— []		
DATE	└_↓ │ ▫	ATE			

SECTION 1. RESPONDENT'S BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION AND CONSENT

INFOF	RMED CONSENT					
Hello. My name is and I am working with the Central Statistical Office We are conducting a national survey about the health ofmen, women and children. We would very much appreciate participation in this survey. I would like to ask you about your health (and the health of your children). This informatior will help the government to plan health services. The survey usually takes betweenabout 30 minutes to complete. Whatever information you provide will be kept strictly confidential and will not be shown to other persons						
Partici Howev	pation in this survey is voluntary and you can choose not to a ver, we hope that you will participate in this survey since your	nswer any individual question or all of the qu views are important	uestions			
At this May I	time, do you want to ask me anything about the survey? begin the interview now?					
Signat	ure of interviewe <u>r:</u>	Date:				
RESP	ONDENT AGREES TO BE INTERVIEWED 1 RESPONDE ↓ INTERVIEW	ENT DOES NOT AGREE TO BI	2→ END			
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP			
101	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR				
102	How long have you been living continuously in (NAME OF CURRENT PLACE OF RESIDENCE)?	YEARS				
	IF LESS THAN ONE YEAR, RECORD '00' YEARS.	ALWAYS 95 VISITOR 96	104			
103	Just before you moved here, did you live in a city, in a town, or in the countryside?	CITY 1 TOWN 2 COUNTRYSIDE 3				
104	In the last 12 months, on how many separate occasions have you traveled away from your home community and slept away?	NUMBER OF TRIPS 00	→ 106			
105	In the last 12 months, have you been away from your home community for more than one month at a time?	YES 1 NO 2				
106	In what month and year were you born?	MONTH				
107	How old were you at your last birthday?					
	COMPARE AND CORRECT 106 AND/OR 107 IF INCONSISTENT.	AGE IN COMPLETED				
108	Have you ever attended school?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 112			
109	What is the highest level of school you attended: primary, secondary, or higher?	LOWER PRIMARY1HIGHER PRIMARY2SECONDARY3HIGH SCHOOL4TERTIARY5				
110	What is the highest (grade/form/year) you completed at that level?	GRADE/FORM/YEAR				

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
111	CHECK 109:		
			→ 115
	CIRCLED CODE '3' OR '4' OR 5 CIRCLE	Ð	
112	Now I would like you to read this sentence to me.	CANNOT READ AT ALL	
	SHOW CARD TO RESPONDENT.	SENTENCE	
	IF RESPONDENT CANNOT READ WHOLE SENTENCE,	ABLE TO READ WHOLE SENTENCE	
	PROBE:	NO CARD WITH REQUIRED LANGUAGE	
	Can you read any part of the sentence to me?	4	
		BLIND/VISUALLY IMPAIRED 5	
113	Have you ever participated in a literacy program or any other program that involves learning to read or write (not	YES 1	
	including primary school)?	NO 2	
114	CHECK 112:		
			→ 116
	CIRCLED ¥		
115	Do you read a newspaper or magazine almost every day, at least once a week, less than once a week	ALMOST EVERY DAY 1 AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK 2	
	or not at all?	LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK 3 NOT AT ALL	
116	Do you listen to the radio almost every day, at least once	ALMOST EVERY DAY 1	
110	a week, less than once a week or not at all?	AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK 2	
		NOT AT ALL	
117	Do you watch television almost every day, at least once	ALMOST EVERY DAY 1	
	a week less than once a week or not at all?	AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK 2 LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK 3	
		NOT AT ALL 4	
118	Are you currently working?	YES 1 NO 2	121
119	Have you done any work in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 121
120	What have you been doing for most of the time over the	GOING TO SCHOOL/STUDYING 1	h
	last 12 months?	RETIRED	
		UNABLE TO WORK, ILL/ HANDICAPPED	▶ 122
		HOUSEWORK/CHILDCARE 5	
		(SPECIFY)	
121	What is your occupation, that is, what kind of work do you		
	manny uu ?		
122	What is your religion?	TRADITIONAL01	
		CHARISMATIC 02 PROTESTANT 03	
	NAME OF CHURCH	ROMAN CATHOLIC	
		ZIONIST	
		APOSTOLIC SECT	
		NONE	
		(SPECIFY) 96	
		•	•

SECTION 2. MARRIAGE AND SEXUAL ACTIVITY AMONG WOMEN

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
201	CHECK COVER: RESPONDENT IS A		
			301
	\downarrow —		
202	Are you currently living with a man as if married?	YES, CURRENTLY MARRIED 1 YES, LIVING WITH A MAN 2 NO, NOT IN UNION 3	l, 205
203	Have you ever been married or lived together with a man as if married?	YES, FORMERLY MARRIED 1 YES, LIVED WITH A MAN 2 NO 3	→ 213
204	What is your marital status now: are you widowed, divorced, or separated?	WIDOWED 1 DIVORCED 2 SEPARATED 3	210
205	Is your husband/partner living with you now or is he staying elsewhere?	LIVING WITH HER	
206	RECORD THE HUSBAND'S/PARTNER'S NAME AND LINE NUMBER FROM THE HOUSEHOLD	NAME	
	QUESTIONNAIRE. IF HE IS NOT LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD, RECORD '00'	LINE NO	
207	Besides yourself, does your husband/partner have other wives or does he live with other women as if married?	YES	210
208	Including yourself, in total, how many other wives or partners does your husband live with as if married?	TOTAL NUMBER OF WIVES AND LIVE-IN PARTNERS DON'T KNOW	
209	Are you the first, second, wife?		
		NO RANK	
210	Have you been married or lived with a man only once or more than once?	ONLY ONCE	
211	CHECK 210:		
	MARRIED/ LIVED WITH A MAN A MAN ONLY ONCE	MONTH	
	In what month and year Now I would like to ask about did you start living with when you started living with	DON'T KNOW MONTH	
	your husband/partner? your first husband/partner. In what month and year was that?	YEAR	→ 213
		DON'T KNOW YEAR	
212	How old were you when you first started living with him?	AGE	
213	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS.		
	BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE PF	RIVACY.	
214	Now I need to ask you some questions about sexual activity in order to gain a better understanding of some family life isues.	NEVER HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURS	→ 401
	How old were you when you had sexual intercourse for the very first time?		
		LIVING WITH (FIRST) LIVING WITH (FIRST) HUSBAND/PARTNEF	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
215	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your recent sext Let me assure you again that your answers are completely confider If we should come to any question that you don't want to answer, ju the next question.	ual activity. ntial and will not be told to anyone. ıst let me know and we will go to	
215A	When was the last time you had sexual intercourse?		
	IF LESS THAN 12 MONTHS, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN DAYS, WEEKS OR MONTHS.	WEEKS AGO	
	IF 12 MONTHS (ONE YEAR) OR MORE, ANSWER	MONTHS AGO	
	MUST BE RECORDED IN YEARS.	YEARS AGO 4	→ 220
216	The last time you had sexual intercourse, was a condom used?	YES	
217	Was a condom used every time you had sexual intercourse in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	
218	What was your relationship to this person with whom you had the last sexual intercourse?	HUSBAND 1 LIVE-IN PARTNER 2	→ 221
	IF BOYFRIEND: Were you living together as if married?	PARTNER NOT LVING WITH RESPONDENT	
	IF YES, CIRCLE '02'	CASUAL ACQUINTANCE	
	IF NO, CIRCLE '03'	OTHER6	
219	For how long have you had/did you have a sexual		
	relationship with this person?	DAYS 1	
		WEEKS 2	
	IF ONLY HAD SEXUAL RELATIONS WITH THIS PERSON ONCE, RECORD '01' DAYS.	MONTHS 3	
		YEARS 4	
220	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this person, did you or this person drink alcohol or any other intoxicating substance?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 221A
221	Were you or your partner drunk at that time?	RESPONDENT ONLY	
	IF YES: Who was drunk?	RESPONDENT AND PARTNER BOTH	
221A	CHECK 215A:		
	HAS HAD SEXUAL HAS NOT	HAD SEXUAL	
	INTERCOURSE IN IN LAST 12 MONTHS IN LAST	NTERCOURSE	→ 224
	(C0DE 1,2,3) ↓	(CODE 4)	
222	Apart from this person, have you had sexual intercourse with any other person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 224
223	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in the last 12 months?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS LAST 12 MONTHS	
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	DON'T KNOW	
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'		
224	In total, with how many different people have you had sexual intercourse in your lifetime?	NUMBER OF PARTNERS	401
	IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE.	DON'T KNOW	
	IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'		

SECTION 3. MARRIAGE AND SEXUAL ACTIVITY AMONG MEN

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
301	Are you currently married or living with a woman as if married?	YES, CURRENTLY MARRIED1YES, LIVING WITH A WOMAN2NO, NOT IN UNION3	→ 308
302	Is your wife/partner living with you now or is she staying elsewhere?	LIVING WITH HIM 1 STAYING ELSEWHERE	
303	CHECK 301:		
	CURRENTLY LIVING WITH A MARRIED WOMAN]	→ 306
304	Do you have one wife or more than one wife?		
	IF ONLY ONE WIFE, RECORD '01' .	NUMBER OF WIVES	
	IF MORE THAN ONE, ASK: How many wives do you currently have?		
305	Are there any other women with whom you live as if married?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 307
306	Are you living with one (other) woman or more than one (other) woman as if married?		
	IF ONLY ONE LIVE-IN PARTNER, RECORD '01'.	NUMBER OF LIVE-IN PARTNERS	
	IF MORE THAN ONE, ASK: How many women are you living with as if married?		
307	Apart from the woman/women you have already mentioned, do you currently have any other regular or occasional sexual partners?	REGULAR PARTNER(S) ONLY1OCCASIONAL PARTNER(S)2ONLY2REGULAR AND OCCASIONAL4PARTNERS3NO SEXUAL PARTNER4]→ 311
308	Do you currently have any regular sexual partners, occasional sexual partners, or do you have no sexul partner at all?	REGULAR PARTNER(S) ONLY 1 OCCASIONAL PARTNER(S) 2 ONLY 2 REGULAR AND OCCASIONAL 2 PARTNERS 3 NO SEXUAL PARTNER 4	
309	Have you ever been married or lived with a woman?	YES, FORMERLY MARRIED 1 ONLY 1 YES, LIVED WITH A WOMAN 2 ONLY 2 YES, BOTH 3 NO 4	→ 314 → 319
310	What is your marital status now: are you widowed, divorced, or separated?	WIDOWED 1 DIVORCED 2 SEPARATED 3]→ 314
311	WRITE THE LINE NUMBERS FROM THE HOUSEHOLD QUESTIC WIFE/PARTNER REPORTED IN QUESTIONS 304 AND 306 ONLY NOT LISTED IN THE HOUSEHOLD SCHEDULE, RECORD '00' IN THE NUMBER OF LINES FILLED IN MUST BE EQUAL TO THE NU AND PARTNERS . (IF RESPONDENT HAS MORE THAN FIVE WIN USE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE(S). CHANGE THE WIFE/PAR NUMBER TO 6, 7, 8, 9 AND 10).	NNAIRE FOR EACH IF A WIFE/PARTNER IS THE LINE NUMBER BOXES. JMBER OF WIVES /ES/PARTNERS RTNER	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
312	CHECK: 304 AND 306 SUM OF SUM OF 304 AND 306 = 01 Please tell me the name of your wife/partner. WIFE/ PARTNER NUMBER NAME 1 2 3 4 5	LINE STATUS How old was your wife/ partner on her last birthday? NUMBER WIFE = 1 PART- QUEST. NER= 2 AGE 1 2 AGE	
313	CHECK 312: ONLY ONE WIFE/ PARTNER WIFE/PARTNER		→ 315
314	Have you been married or lived with a woman only once or more than once?	ONCE 1 MORE THAN ONCE 2	→ 317 → 316
315	Have you ever been married to or lived as if married to any woman other than those you have just mentioned?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 317
316	In total, how many women have you been married to or lived with as if married in your whole life?	NUMBER OF WOMEN	
317	CHECK 312 AND 313: ONLY ONE WIFE/PARTNER In what month and year did you start living with your wife/partner? OTHER Now we will talk about your first wife/partner. In what month and year did you start living with her?	MONTH 98 DON'T KNOW MONTH 98 YEAR 91 DON'T KNOW YEAR 9998	→ 319
318	How old were you when you started living with her?	AGE	
318A	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSURE F	PRIVACY.	
319	Now I need to ask you some questions about sexual activity in order to gain a better understanding of some family life issues. How old were you when you first had sexual intercourse (if ever)?	NEVER .00 AGE IN YEARS FIRST TIME WHEN STARTED	→ 401

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
320	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your recent sexu. Let me assure you again that your answers are completely confiden If we should come to any question that you don't want to answer, just to the next question.	al activity. tial and will not be told to anyone. st let me know and we will go	
320A	When was the last time you had sexual intercourse?	DAYS AGO 1	
	IF LESS THAN 12 MONTHS, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN DAYS, WEEKS OR MONTHS.	WEEKS AGO 2	
	IF 12 MONTHS (ONE YEAR) OR MORE, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN YEARS.	MONTHS AGO 3	324
		YEARS AGO 4	- 324
321	The last time you had sexual intercourse, was a condom used?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 322A
322	What was the main reason you used a condom on that occasion?	RESP. WANTED TO PREVENT 1 STD/HIV 1 RESP. WANTED TO PREVENT 2 RESP. WANTED TO PREVENT 8 BOTH STD/HIV AND 7 PREGNANCY 3 DID NOT TRUST PARTNER/FELT 7 PARTNER HAD OTHER 4 PARTNER REQUESTED/ 5 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY) 8	→ 323
322A	What was the main reason a condom was not used on that occasion?	NOT AVAILABLE NOT NECESSARY NOT THOUGHT OF	$ \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 6 \end{bmatrix} \rightarrow 324 $
323	Did you use a condom every time you had sexual intercourse with this person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	
324	The last time you had sexual intercourse with this person, did you or this person drink alcohol or any other intoxicating substance?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 326
325	Were you or your partner drunk at that time? IF YES: Who was drunk?	RESPONDENT ONLY1PARTNER ONLY2RESPONDENT AND PARTNERBOTH3NEITHER4	
326	What was your relationship to this person with whom you had the last sexual intercourse? IF PARTNER: Were you living together as if married? IF YES, CIRCLE '2' IF NO, CIRCLE '3'	HUSBAND 1 LIVE-IN PARTNER 2 PARTNER NOT LIVING WITH 3 RESPONDENT 3 CASUAL ACQUINTANCE 4 COMMERCIAL SEX WORKER 5 OTHER 6 (SPECIFY)	→ 328
327	For how long have you had/did you have a sexual relationship with this person?	DAYS 1	
	IF ONLY HAD SEXUAL RELATIONS WITH THIS PERSON ONCE, RECORD '01' DAYS.	MONTHS 3 YEARS 4	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
327A	CHECK 320A: HAS HAD SEXUAL HAS NO INTERCOURSE IN LAST 12 MONTHS (CODE 1,2,3)	OT HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE AST 12 MONTHS (CODE 4)	→ 330
328	Apart from this person, have you had sexual intercourse with any other person in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	
329	In total, with how many different people have you had sex in the last 12 months? IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE. IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'	NUMBER OF PARTNERS	
330	Have you ever paid for sex in cash or in kind?	YES, IN CASH 1 YES, IN KIND 2 YES, CASH & KIND 3 NO 4	→ 335
330A	CHECK 320A: HAS HAD SEXUAL HAS NO INTERCOURSE IN LAST 12 MONTHS (CODE 1,2,3)	OT HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE AST 12 MONTHS (CODE 4)	→ 334
331	In the last 12 months, did you pay anyone in exhange for sex?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 333
332	The last time you paid for someone in exchange for sex, was a condom used?	YES	
333	Did you use a condom every time you paid someone to have sexual intercourse in the last 12 months?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 335
334	How long ago was the last time you paid for sex? IF LESS THAN 12 MONTHS, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN DAYS, WEEKS OR MONTHS. IF 12 MONTHS (ONE YEAR) OR MORE, ANSWER MUST BE RECORDED IN YEARS.	DAYS 1 WEEKS	
335	In total, with how many different people have you had sex in your lifetime? IF NON-NUMERIC ANSWER, PROBE TO GET AN ESTIMATE. IF NUMBER OF PARTNERS IS GREATER THAN 95, WRITE '95.'	NUMBER OF PARTNERS	

SECTION 4. HIV/AIDS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
401	Now I would like to talk about something else. Have you ever heard of an illness called AIDS?	YES 1 NO 2	
402	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by having just one sex partner who is not infected and who has no other partners?	YES	
403	Can people get the AIDS virus from mosquito bites?	YES	
404	Can people reduce their chances of getting the AIDS virus by using a condom every time they have sex?	YES	
405	Can people get the AIDS virus by sharing food with a person who has AIDS?	YES	
406	Can people reduce their chance of getting the AIDS virus by abstaining from sexual intercourse?	YES	
407	Can people get the AIDS virus because of witchcraft or other supernatural means?	YES	
408	Can people get the AIDS virus from having anal sex?	YES	
409	Can people get the AIDS virus from having oral sex?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
410	Can people get the AIDS virus from open wounds or sores of an infected person?	YES	
411	Is there anything else a person can do to avoid or reduce the chances of getting the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	↓ ₄₁₃

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
412	What can a person do? Anything else? RECORD ALL WAYS MENTIONED.	ABSTAIN FROM SEX A USE CONDOMS B LIMIT SEX TO ONE PARTNER/STAY FAITHFUL TO ONE PARTNER C LIMIT NUMBER OF SEXUAL PARTNERS D AVOID SEX WITH PROSTITUTES E AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO HAVE MANY PARTNERS F AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO HAVE MANY PARTNERS F AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS WHO INJECT DRUGS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS H AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS J AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS J AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS I AVOID SEX WITH PERSONS J AVOID SHARING RAZORS/BLADES K AVOID BLOOD TRANSFUSIONS I AVOID MOSQUITO BITES M SEEK PROTECTION FROM TRADITIONAL HEALER N AVOID SHARING TOILETS O AVOID SHARING CIGARETTES R OTHER Q AVOID SHARING CIGARETTES R	
		(SPECIFY) OTHER X (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW Z	
413	Is it possible for a healthy-looking person to have the AIDS virus?	YES	
414	Can the virus that causes AIDS be transmitted from a mother to her baby: During pregnancy? During delivery? By breastfeeding?	YES NO DK DURING PREG 1 2 8 DURING DELIVERY 1 2 8 BREASTFEEDING 1 2 8	
415	CHECK 414: AT LEAST OTH ONE 'YES'	HER	417A
416	Is there any special drug that a doctor or a nurse can give to a woman infected with the AIDS virus to reduce the risk of transmission to the baby?	YES	
417	Have you heard about special antiretorviral drugs (ARV) that people infected with the AIDS virus can get from a doctor or a nurse to help them live longer?	YES	
417A	CHECK FOR PRESENCE OF OTHERS. BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSU	RE PRIVACY.	
418	I don't want to know the results, but have you ever been tested to see if you have the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 423
419	When was the last time you were tested?	LESS THAN 12 MONTHS AGO 1 12 - 23 MONTHS AGO 2 2 OR MORE YEARS AGO 3	
420	The last time you had the test, did you yourself ask for the test, advised to take the test, or was it required?	ASKED FOR THE TEST 1 ADVISED. 2 REQUIRED 3	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
421	I don't want to know the results, but did you get the results of the test?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 422
421A	How long after the test did you get the results?	A DAY 1 A WEEK 2 A MONTH 3 MORE THAN A MONTH 4	
422	Where was the test done? PROBE TO IDENTIFY THE TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE. WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE. (NAME OF PLACE)	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL 11 GOVT. HEALTH CENTER 12 PHU/CLINIC 13 MOBILE CLINIC 14 OTHER PUBLIC 16 (SPECIFY) 17 PRIVATE SECTOR 18 PRIVATE SECTOR 16 PRIVATE SECTOR 21 STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER 22 MOBILE CLINIC 23 OTHER PRIVATE 26 MEDICAL 26 (SPECIFY) 31 CLINIC 32 OTHER PRIVATE 31 MEDICAL 32 OTHER 36 (SPECIFY) 36 MOB 41 TASC 42 OTHER 46 (SPECIFY) 96 (SPECIFY) 96	→ 425
423	Do you know of a place where people can go to get tested for the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 425

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
424	Where is that? Any other place? PROBE TO IDENTIFY EACH TYPE OF SOURCE AND CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE CODE(S). WRITE THE NAME OF THE PLACE.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER C PHU/CLINIC D MOBILE CLINIC E OTHER PUBLIC F (SPECIFY)	
	(NAME OF PLACE)	PRIVATE SECTOR PRIVATE HOSPITAL/CLINIC/ PRIVATE DOCTOR STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER H MOBILE CLINIC OTHER PRIVATE MEDICAL SPECIFY	
		MISSION HOSPITAL K CLINIC L OTHER M (SPECIFY)	
		NGO N FLAS N TASC O OTHER P (SPECIFY) X OTHER X	
425	Would you buy fresh vegetables from a shopkeeper or vendor if you knew that this person had the AIDS virus?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
426	If a member of your family got infected with the AIDS virus, would you want it to remain a secret or not?	YES, REMAIN A SECRET 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
427	If a member of your family became sick with the virus that causes AIDS, would you be willing to care for her or him in your own household?	YES 1 NO 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	
428	In your opinion, if a female teacher has the AIDS virus but is not sick, should she be allowed to continue teaching in the school?	SHOULD BE ALLOWED 1 SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED 2 DK/NOT SURE/DEPENDS 8	

SECTION 5. OTHER SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED INFECTIONS

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
501	CHECK 401: HEARD ABOUT AIDS Apart from AIDS, have you heard about other infections that can be transmitted through sexual contact?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 504
502	If a man has a sexually transmitted disease, what signs or symptoms might he have? Any others? RECORD ALL SYMPTOMS MENTIONED.	ABDOMINAL PAIN A GENITAL DISCHARGE/DRIPPING B FOUL SMELLING DISCHARGE C BURNING PAIN ON URINATION D REDNESS/INFLAMMATION IN GENITAL AREA GENITAL AREA E SWELLING IN GENITAL AREA F GENITAL SORES/ULCERS G GENITAL WARTS H GENITAL ITCHING I BLOOD IN URINE J LOSS OF WEIGHT K IMPOTENCE L OTHER	
503	If a woman has a sexually transmitted disease, what signs or symptoms might she have? Any others? RECORD ALL SYMPTOMS MENTIONED.	ABDOMINAL PAIN A GENITAL DISCHARGE B FOUL SMELLING DISCHARGE C BURNING PAIN ON URINATION D REDNESS/INFLAMMATION IN GENITAL AREA GENITAL AREA E SWELLING IN GENITAL AREA F GENITAL SORES/ULCERS G GENITAL WARTS H GENITAL ITCHING I BLOOD IN URINE J LOSS OF WEIGHT K HARD TO GET PREGNANT/HAVE A A CHILD L OTHER	

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
504	CHECK COVER: RESPONDENT IS A		
			→ 511
505	CHECK 215A:		
	HAS HAD SEXUAL HAS NOT H INTERCOURSE IN INT LAST 12 MONTHS IN LAST (CODE 1, 2, 3)	AD SEXUAL FERCOURSE 12 MONTHS (CODE 4)	• 523
507	CHECK 501:		
	HEARD ABOUT INFECTION TRANSMITTED THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT THROUGH SEXUAL CONT	DUT TED ACT	→ 523
507A	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS.		
	BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSUI	RE PRIVACY.	
508	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
509	Sometimes women experience a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge. During the last 12 months, have you had a bad smelling abnormal genital discharge?	YES	
510	Sometimes women have a genital sore or ulcer. During the last 12 months, have you had a genital sore or ulcer?	YES	516
511	CHECK 320A: HAS HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE IN LAST 12 MONTHS (CODE 1,2,3) (CODE 4)		→ 523
512	CHECK 501:		
	HEARD ABOUT INFECTION TRANSMITTED THROUGH SEXUAL CONTACT THROUGH SEXUAL CONT.	ОUТ ТЕД — АСТ	→ 523
512A	CHECK FOR THE PRESENCE OF OTHERS.		
	BEFORE CONTINUING, MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO ENSUI	RE PRIVACY.	
NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
-----	--	--	-------
513	Now I would like to ask you some questions about your health in the last 12 months. During the last 12 months, have you had a disease which you got through sexual contact?	YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	
514	Sometimes men experience an abnormal discharge from their penis. During the last 12 months, have you had an abnormal discharge from your penis?	YES	
515	Sometimes men have a sore or ulcer or near their penis. During the last 12 months, have you had a sore or ulcer on or near your penis?	YES	
516	CHECK 508, 509, AND 510 FOR WOMAN OR 513, 514, AN	D 515 FOR MAN:	
	HAS HAD AN INFECTION (ANY 'YES') HAS NOT HAD AN INFECTION OR DOES NOT KNOW		→ 523
517	The last time you had (PROBLEM FROM 507/508/509 for woman or PROBLEM FROM 513/514/515 for man), did you seek any kind of advice or treatment?	YES 1 NO 2	→ 519
518	Where did you go? Any other place? RECORD ALL SOURCES MENTIONED.	PUBLIC SECTOR GOVERNMENT HOSPITA A GOVT. HEALTH CENTER B STAND-ALONE VCT CENTER C MOBILE CLINIC D OTHER PUBLIC E	520

NO.	QUESTIONS AND FILTERS	CODING CATEGORIES	SKIP
519	Why was treatment not sought for the (PROBLEM(S) IN FROM 508/509/510 for woman or PROBLEM FROM 513/514/515 for man)?	NOT NECESSARY 1 EXPENSIVE 2 RELIGIOUS PROHIBITION 3 OTHER 6	
		SPECIFY	
520	When you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 508/509/510 FOR WOMAN OR PROBLEM(S) FROM 513/514/515 FOR MAN), did you inform the person(s) with whom you were having sex?	YES 1 NO 2 SOME/ NOT ALL 3 DID NOT HAVE A PARTNER 4	
521	When you had (PROBLEM(S) FROM 508/509/510 FOR WOMAN OR PROBLEM (S) FROM 513/514/515 FOR MAN), did you do anything to avoid infecting your sexual partner(s)?	YES]_ ₅₂₃
522	What did you do to avoid infecting your partner(s)? Did you Use medicine? Stop having sex? Use a condom when having sex?	YES NO USE MEDICINE 1 2 STOP SEX 1 2 USE CONDOM 1 2	
523	RECORD THE TIME.	HOUR	

INTERVIEWER'S OBSERVATIONS

TO BE FILLED IN AFTER COMPLETING INTERVIEW

COMMENTS ABOUT RESPONDENT:

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:

ANY OTHER COMMENTS:

SUPERVISOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF SUPERVISOR: _____ DATE: _____

EDITOR'S OBSERVATIONS

NAME OF EDITOR: _____ DATE: _____